
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

 
 

 
i 

ENVIRONMENT SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

To:   Scrutiny Committee Members: Kightley (Chair), Saunders (Vice-Chair), 
Blencowe, Marchant-Daisley, Owers, O'Reilly, Reid and Tunnacliffe 
 
Alternates: Councillors Brierley and Herbert 
 
Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste Services: Councillor 
Swanson 
 
Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change: Councillor Ward  
 
Executive Councillor for Public Places: Councillor Reiner  
 

Despatched: Thursday, 26 September 2013 

  

Date: Tuesday, 8 October 2013 

Time: 5.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 1 & 2 - Guildhall 

Contact:  James Goddard Direct Dial:  01223 457013 
 

AGENDA 

1    APOLOGIES   
 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

 Members are asked to declare at this stage any interests that they may 
have in an item shown on this agenda. If any member of the Committee is 
unsure whether or not they should declare an interest on a particular 
matter, they should seek advice from the Head of Legal Services before 
the meeting.  

3    MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 64) 
 

 To approve the minutes of the meetings held on 12th March 2013, 14th May 
2013, 23rd May 2013 and 11th June 2013 as correct records. (Pages 9 - 64) 

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

4    PUBLIC QUESTIONS   
 

 Please see information at the end of the agenda  

5    PETITION - 20MPH SPEED LIMIT ON VICTORIA ROAD FOR SAFETY 
REASONS   
 

 A petition has been received stating the following: 
 
“Statement:  

We the undersigned petition the council to have the speed limit on Victoria 
Road reduced from 30 mph to 20 mph. It is a narrow Victorian street with no 
room for cycle lanes, and vehicles cannot pass if there is traffic coming in 
the opposite direction. The pavements are very narrow, dangerously so in 
parts. There are no delivery bays for vehicles and pavements are often 
blocked as a result. 
 
Justification:  

There are a number of small Victorian streets exiting onto Victoria Road 
which creates additional traffic hazards, together with the lack of crossings 
for pedestrians and cyclists.” 
 
Under the Council’s procedure the petitioners may present the petition and 
speak for five minutes. Members of the Committee may then discuss the 
petition for a maximum of 15 minutes.  

6   PRESENTATION BY CAMBRIDGE BID LIMITED ON ITS ACTIVITY 
SINCE THE LAUNCH ON 1ST APRIL 2013   

7   DECISIONS TAKEN BY EXECUTIVE COUNCILLORS   

7a    Dog Control Orders  (Pages 65 - 68) 

 Record of Urgent Decision taken by the Executive Councillor for 
Environmental and Waste Services 
 
To note decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Environmental and 
Waste Services since the last meeting of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee.  

7b    Tourist Information Centre - Air Cooling (Special Urgency)  (Pages 69 - 78) 

 Record of Urgent Decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Public 
Places 
 
To note decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Public Places since 



 
iii 

the last meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee 
 

7c    Stourbridge Common Riverbank Restoration  (Pages 79 - 100) 

 Record of Urgent Decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Public 
Places 
 
To note decisions taken by the Executive Councillor for Public Places since 
the last meeting of the Environment Scrutiny Committee 

 
Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor, Without Debate 
These Items will already have received approval in principle from the Executive 
Councillor. The Executive Councillor will be asked to approve the recommendations 
as set out in the officer’s report.   
 
There will be no debate on these items, but members of the Scrutiny Committee and 
members of the public may ask questions or comment on the items if they comply 
with the Council’s rules on Public Speaking set out below. 
 
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor  
These items will require the Executive Councillor to make a decision after hearing 
the views of the Scrutiny Committee.    
 
There will be a full debate on these items, and members of the public may ask 
questions or comment on the items if they comply with the Council’s rules on Public 
Speaking set out below. 
 

Decisions for the Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change 

  
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor 

8    A14 CONSULTATION   
 

 Report to follow  

9   CAMBRIDGE CYCLE PARKING PROJECT  (Pages 101 - 230) 

10   CAMBRIDGE 20MPH PROJECT – PHASE 1 CONSULTATION REPORT  
(Pages 231 - 260) 

11   CAMBRIDGE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) – DRAFT 
CHARGING SCHEDULE  (Pages 261 - 410) 



 
iv 

 

Decisions for the Executive Councillor for Public Places 

  
Items for Decision by the Executive Councillor, Without Debate 

12   ROUSE BALL PAVILION - PROJECT APPRAISAL  (Pages 411 - 416) 

 
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor 

13   RIVERSIDE MOORINGS CONSULTATION FINDINGS AND OPTIONS 
APPRAISAL  (Pages 417 - 424) 

14   PARKER'S PIECE LIGHTING  (Pages 425 - 498) 

15   PARKERS PIECE PUBLIC ART PROJECT  (Pages 499 - 530) 

16   DEVELOPER CONTRIBUTIONS: 2ND PRIORITY - SETTING ROUND   
 

 Report to follow 
  

 

Decisions for the Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste Services 

  
Items for Debate by the Committee and then Decision by the Executive 
Councillor 

17   JOINT MATERIALS RECYCLING FACILITY PROCUREMENT PROCESS  
(Pages 531 - 556) 

18   PROPOSAL FOR COLLECTION OF COMMERCIAL FOOD WASTE FOR 
COMPOSTING  (Pages 557 - 562) 



 
v 

 
 

Information for the Public 
 

 
 

Location 
 
 
 
 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the Market Square 
(CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is accessible 
via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street and the Market Square 
entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) are on the 
first floor, and are accessible via lifts or stairs.  
 

 
 
 

Public 
Participation 

Some meetings may have parts that will be closed to 
the public, but the reasons for excluding the press 
and public will be given.  
 
Most meetings have an opportunity for members of 
the public to ask questions or make statements.  
 
To ask a question or make a statement please notify 
the Committee Manager (details listed on the front of 
the agenda) prior to the deadline.  
 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items on the published agenda, the deadline is 
the start of the meeting. 

 

• For questions and/or statements regarding 
items NOT on the published agenda, the 
deadline is 10 a.m. the day before the meeting.  

 
 
Speaking on Planning or Licensing Applications is 
subject to other rules. Guidance for speaking on these 
issues can be obtained from Democratic Services on 
01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 
Further information about speaking at a City Council 

 



 
vi 

meeting can be found at; 
 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/speaking-at-
committee-meetings  
 
Cambridge City Council would value your assistance 
in improving the public speaking process of 
committee meetings. If you have any feedback please 
contact Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

Filming, 
recording 
and 
photography 

The Council is committed to being open and 
transparent in the way it conducts its decision-making.  
Recording is permitted at council meetings, which are 
open to the public. The Council understands that 
some members of the public attending its meetings 
may not wish to be recorded. The Chair of the 
meeting will facilitate by ensuring that any such 
request not to be recorded is respected by those 
doing the recording.  
 
Full details of the City Council’s protocol on 
audio/visual recording and photography at meetings 
can be accessed via: 
 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx
?NAME=SD1057&ID=1057&RPID=33371389&sch=d
oc&cat=13203&path=13020%2c13203 
 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding please follow 
the instructions of Cambridge City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Level access to the Guildhall is via Peas Hill. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee Room 1, 
Committee Room 2 and the Council Chamber.  
 
Accessible toilets are available on the ground and first 
floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print and other 
formats on request prior to the meeting. 
 
For further assistance please contact Democratic 

 



 
vii 

Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a committee 
report please contact the officer listed at the end of 
relevant report or Democratic Services on 01223 
457013 or democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, councilors and the 
democratic process is available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
�����
����












�


�����������	
������	���������	 ��
�����
����	

 ����

�
����
 �



�������!
 
 �����""���
 #�$�	"��
 %�����&�
 �������
 %'���������&�
 (�������

�������	�)���"���
*+����
,����
-����"��
���
.��/��	



�0��	���
�����""��
1��
����������	�"
���
2��	�
��������!
(���
�+�����



�0��	���
�����""��
1��
3"�����$
���
��	����/"�
����� ��	!
���
2���




���������		
.���
�1
3"�����$
��������
�
3�	��
)�""


.���
�1
,�1��
4
����������	

�
(��
5�""�

)����	��
�1
����������	
�
�����
3����

 

6�/��
)���$�
4
��������	���
����$��
�
7"��
,���������


����
5�����
%���������"&
�
8���9
.�������

3��:��	
)�"�����
���
����������	
����$��
�
;����+
3���	��

.���
�1
� ����"��	
��������
�
3�"
<���




���	���	�����������	��	���	�������	




���������	 � !"!#���	


; �"�$���
+���
��������
1���
�����""��
,������
�����""��
-����"��
+��

 �����	
��
	��
�"	����	��



����$����	 %��"&�&��!��	!�	��������	





�!'���""!�		 ���(	 ��������	

�������
 ����=��<'



�������<'


3������"!
���/��
�1
���/���$�
3��	�
3�����	
���

8	��


3������"!
���/��
�1
���/���$�
���"�
��� ��$�


,���
 ����=��<'



�������<'


3������"!
���/��
�1
���/���$�
3��	
3�����	
���

8	���

3������"!
���/��
�1
���/���$�
���"�
��� ��$�










����)����	 ���'���	

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 9



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
�����
����












�




���
���	��
�1
	��
���	��$
�1
	��
��	�
(�����
����
+���
�  �����
���

��$���
��
�
������	
�������

���
���	��
�1
	��
���	��$
�1
	��
����
(�����
����
+���
�  �����
���

��$���
��
�
������	
������
�/:��	
	�
	��
1�""�+��$
������	����!




���	�
��/��
�������<'!
���	���
���������	����
 ���$�� �
1����
"��	

���	�����
>.�+�����
�	
+��
	��
��"�
���"
��
�11��?
+��
��"�	���
;
�����
	� ��$

�����
+��
�"��
������	���


���*+����	 �',"��	-'����!��	


���	��
5�������	�
�1
���/���$�
���"�
��� ��$�
���������
	��
�����		��

��$�����$
���"�
3��9��$�
8""
��	��"�
���
��	��
�	
�	��
�������<'�



�.&�#�	�!	�#��/&	��/��	


6����
 ���$�� �
@����
�1
	��
�����"
3�������
,"���
	��
�����
���
���

������	���
	�
�"	��
	��
�����
�1
	��
�$����
�	����
.�+�����
1��
����
�1
	��

�������
	����
���	��
+�""
1�""�+
	��
�����
�1
	��
�$�����



���*�����	 ��0��!�(���&"	&�/	1&���	
��0����	�!���!"�!	�"&�	*+����2	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


����
�� ��	
�������
	��
���1	
����������	�"
4
2��	�
��������
3��	1�"��
3"��

������@�
+����
��	�
�	
	��
�	��	�$��
�/:��	����
1��
	��
 ��	1�"��
1��
	��
����

������
������/��
	��
���	�0	
��
+����
	��
 ��	1�"��
+��
/���$
��"������
���

��	��"��
	��
��	���	���
��A����
	�
��"����
	��
�	�����
���
	��
�������


3��1�������
�������
���
���9�
+���
�"��
���+�
1��
����
�	��	�$��
�/:��	����



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	��0��!�(���&"	&�/	1&���	
��0���	
	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!




��
 ;  ����
	��
���1	
����������	�"
4
2��	�
��������
3��	1�"��
3"��
�����
�@�




��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��


Page 10



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
�����
����












�


	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
�0��	���
�����""��
1��

����������	�"
���
2��	�
��������
��$�����$
	��
3��	1�"��
3"��
1��
������@�




B�
��� ����
	�
A��	����
1���
���/���
�1
	��
�����		���
	��
�0��	���

�����""��
���1�����
	��
1�""�+��$
 ���	�!




��
 ���
"���	���
�1
����	����"
/���
���
��	
��	
/���
��������

���
 ���
���	��"
 ����
�1
/��
�� "������	
���
������	��	�
��
	��
��	�
���	���

����
 �$$��	����
 "���	����
 1��
 ����	����"
 /���
 +�"�
 /�
 +�"������
 ;���


�����		���
��"�
��������
	����

���
 B	
+��
��9��+"��$��
	��	
/�$$��
��$
+��	�
��"�
/�
 "����
��
���
/���


.�+�����
 ��$
+��	�
 /���
+���
 ���
 	�
 ��$�"�$�	
 	��
 ����
 	�
 �"���
  

�1	��
��$��


��
 ���
5���
C���
���"�	
2��9��$
7�� 
+�"�
/�
���	��$
����	"�
���
�	
+��

�0 ��	��
	��	
	��
 ��:��	
+�"�
/�
��"������
��
	����


���
 ����"	��	�
���
��������
	��
	��"�	
 ��������
������
	��
��	�
���
��	��

	���
 ��
 	����
 �1
 	����
 �����	���
 ���
 	��
  �	��	��"
 1��
 �"	����	���

������	�
	��"�	
 ��������
��
	����
"���"�	��


����
 3�����	�
 	�
 �	���
  ���������
 ���
 ��
 ��� �
 ���
 ���	����	��
 1��
 	��

 /"��
��
�1
1���"�	���
���
/���
�"��
�	�



�����
 �-��
����"�����	
+��
/���$
�����	�$�	���



���
�����		��
����"���
/�
@
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��





���**����	 8�
���

�
	��9�������	����	*+��:*+�2	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


���
8���
�	�������
;$����
%8�;&
��A����
����
1���
��1�������	
�	����	�

	�
  �����
 ��
 ����"
 +��9
  "��
 �	"����$
 	��
 1���
 ��1�������	
  ��$�����

	��	
+�""
/�
1�""�+��
	�
�����
1���
/��������
���
��� "���	�
���
-��������

,�$"�	���
3"��
������@
����� ���	��
	��
������
���
$������
$����
	�
5���"

;	����	���
/�
8�;
���
	��
.��"	�
4
��1�	�
�0��	���
%.��&�





Page 11



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����@
 �������
��
�����
����












@


%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	��0��!�(���&"	&�/	1&���	
��0����	


���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!




��
 ;  ����
	��
�		�����
-��������
,�$"�	���
3"��
������@

	
��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
����
5�����
%���������"&�

��$�����$
	��
-��������
,�$"�	���
3"��
������@�




��������
+���
�0 ������
	��	
��+
�  �����
��$�	
���"	
��
�
�"�  �$�
�1
	��

�����	
��$�
�	��������
B	
+��
�$$��	��
	��	
"���	��
��� ��	���
 ��$������

+�"�
������$�
��� "������
���
���	
�		��$�




���
.���
�1
,�1��
���
����������	
�0 "�����
	��	
	��
�	��	�$��
�����	���

���
����$��
��
 ��	
�1
�
��	����"
�  �����
+�	�
 ��	������ 
+��9��$
+�	�

/��������
����
��
	��
+��
1��+����
���
�"	��
����$�
+��
/��9��
 

�	�		���
��1�������	
 ��������
+���
�������




�����""��
.��/��	
�$$��	��
	��	
�
�	���$��
�����$�
������
	�
/�
���	
	�

$��������	
	�
�0 ����
���/���
��������
�/�	
	���
�  ������
,�����

��� ��	����
��
	��
�����	
��������
�"���	�
+�"�
"���
/��������
	�
�	
���	

���
�������	�
+�"�
1�""�+�
���
"���
�1
	��
�� 	
1���
.��"	�
���
��1�	�

�0��	���
+��
��	��$����
�	� �
,�$"�	���
+��
������
	�
�����
�	�������

���
��	
��� �







���
�����		��
����"���
/�
@
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*�����	 �! !#�& .��&"	
'�0�4�	�!�	9�&��!�	�&��;	-'���	����	����&��	
&�/	9�&�/	���&/�	�'"��	
�!��4	�&�	�&�<�	

Page 12



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
�����
����












�




�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


;�
  ��	
 �1
 �
  ��$�����
 �1
 >"�1�
 ����
  "�����$?
 1��
 	��
 ���
  ��9
 ����	��
 	��

�����"?�
3��9��$
�������
+��
�������$
�	
�����	��"
�� ����
���
����	������

	�
 �	�
 1���
 �"	���	����
 ���
  ��9��
 B	
 +��
  �� ����
 	�
 �/	���
 	� �$�� ����"

������
 1��
 	��
7��1	��
���	�
D���
;���
�������
���
7����
;�����
�"	��
�	����
 ���
  ��9�
 	��	
 +�"�
 ����
 	�
 /�
 � ���1���
 /�
 �
 � ����"��	
 ����"	��	�

�� �$�� ����"
 ������
 +���
 ����$���
 	�
  ������
 ��1����	���
 ���

���������	�
 	�
 �����	
 � ����"��	
 �����	�$�	���
 ��	�
 ���
  ��9
 �	��	����
 ���

�����
 ��1����	���
 +�"�
 ��" 
  �� ���	���
 +��9
 	�
 �������
 	��
 1����/�"�	��

 "�����$
 ���
 ����$�
 �����
 +�	���
 	��
 ���
  ��9��



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���!




��
 ��
��"�$�	�
�	����	�
	�
	��
)����	��
�1
����������	
����
��
����"	�	���

+�	�
 	��
 )����	��
 �1
 ,�������
 ���
 	��
 .���
 �1
 5�$�"
 	�
  �����
 ���

�+���
 �
 ���	���	
 	�
 �� "����	
 	� �$�� ����"
 ������
 1��
 	��
 7��1	��

���	�
 D���
 ;���
 �������
 ���
 7����
 ;�����
 �"	���	����
 ���
  ��9�

+�	���
	��
��	�
�	
�
���	
�1
�  ��0���	�"�
E�������


	
��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
<�;
F
<�	
��A��	��
1��
 ������	����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*2����	 �"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	�!���!"�!	�"&�	*+����2	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


���
�� ��	
�������
	��
���1	
3"�����$
���
�"���	�
����$�
3��	1�"��
3"��

������@�
+����
��	�
�	
	��
�	��	�$��
�/:��	����
1��
	��
 ��	1�"��
1��
	��
����

������
������/��
	��
���	�0	
��
+����
	��
 ��	1�"��
+��
/���$
��"������
���


Page 13



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����=
 �������
��
�����
����












=


��	��"��
	��
��	���	���
��A����
	�
��"����
	��
�	�����
���
	��
�������


3��1�������
�������
���
���9�
���
�"��
���+�
1��
����
�	��	�$��
�/:��	����



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!




��
 ;  ����
	��
���1	
3"�����$
���
�"���	�
����$�
3��	1�"��
3"��
������@�

	
��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
�0��	���
�����""��
1��
3"�����$

���
�"���	�
����$�
��$�����$
3��	1�"��
3"��
1��
������@�




��������
+���
�0 ������
�/�	
�������	
	�������
/�	+���
	��
�� ���	����
	�

 �������
	��
������	��
�1
	��
��	�
���
	��
A�"�	�
�1
	��
����$��
/���$
�$����

/�
	��
 "�����$
���	���
���
�0��	���
�����""��
��� 	��
	���
���
��9��
1��

��	��"�
��
� ���1��
�������
+����
	����
+���
���������
B	
+��
�$����
	��	
	���

+�"�
/�
��������
�	����
	���
���	��$�
���
)����	��
�1
����������	
�	�	��

	��	
�11�����
+���
�����		��
	�
$�		��$
	��
/��	
 ����/"�
�	�����
1��
	��
��	�

+�	���
	��
���"�	���
���
����	����	�
�1
	��
 "�����$
 �������




B�
��� ����
	�
A��	����
1���
	��
�����		��
���/���
	��
1�""�+��$
 ���	�

+���
���1�����!


��
 
���
 ���	���	
 ���	��$
 ������
  ��:��	
+��
��9��$
 $���
  ��$����
 ���
 �

���������
�1
6�����	�����$
+��
��
 	�
/�
�$����
+�	�
���/���$�

6�������	�
��
	��
����
1	���




���
 <�
  ��$����
 ���
 ��	
 /���
 ��������
 	�+����
 �
 ���� ���	���
 ����$�

�������


����
 *11�����
+���
��	
 �����	
	�
�0 "���
+��
	����
+��
��
��	
	��$�	
1��
�*�

����	���
���
��
���+��
+�"�
/�
����"�	��
	�
���/���
����	"��


���
 2��9
 +��
 ���$���$
 +�	�
 	��
 ���	�
 �����"
 	�
 ��	�$�	�
 	��
 �� ��	
 �1

����	����"
 /���
 ��A����
 1��
 	��
 1���$�
 ����"� ���	��
 ���
 ���	�

�����"?�
	���� ��	
�	��	�$�
+�"�
 ��9
	���
����
 
���
	��
��	�
�����"

+�"�
����
��
�� 	
��	�
���
����������


��
 B	
+��
��������
	��	
	��
���/��
����$����	
 ��$�����
+��
/����
��

A��	����/"�
/���"���
��	��





Page 14



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
�����
����












�


���
�����		��
����"���
/�
@
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*=����	 �&(,��/#�	���4	������	�4�"�	�&�<��#	��!5���	


�',"��	
 �&<��	�&����	�'�&�:
(��.	!�	�&(,��/#�	�4�"�	�&( &�#�	


���	��
5�������	�
���������
	��
�����		��
���
����
	��
1�""�+��$
 ���	�!


•
 B� �������	�
	�
���"�
 ��9��$
���
����
+�"�����

•
 ���"�
 ��9��$
��
���	
�11��	���
���
���������
��
�1
	��
��	�
���	���

•
 3"�����$
 �"���
������
	�
��1����
���"�
 ��9��$
	�
	��
������	
�	��������

•
 ���/���$�
���"�
��� ��$�
+�"�
"�9�
	�
�$$��	
����	����"
"���	����
1��


���������	���
 ���
+�"�
 ��A��	
 	��	
 	��
 ����	����"
 � ����
 /�
 � ����

������
	��
��	��


•
 �$$��	��
"���	����!
3��	
*11���
��������
#��$?�
3������
*	����
�����	�

.�""
���
,�$��	
�������
%�� "����$
���
 ��9��$
� ����
��	���
 	���
 "���

�1
$����
� ���&�




���
�0��	���
�����""��
1��
3"�����$
���
�"���	�
����$�
	���9��
��
5����
���	�
1��
���
�$$��	�����
����������
�1
���
 ��9��$
� ����
+��
����

���������	����
.�+�����
	���
+�"�
���"	
��
�
"���
�1
������
	�
	��
���	�

�����"�
)�	��"��
����������
��
 �� ����
"���	���
+���
1��
�
"�	��
��	��


���/���$�
���"�
��� ��$�
+�"�
/�
����	��
	�
������	�
�
�� �����	�	���
	�

	��
 ��:��	
/�����


	
�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


����
�� ��	
���9�
	�
�$���
	��
 ��:��	
 �� ���"�
 ��$�����
���
��� �
1��
	��

���/���$�
��	�
���	��
���"�
3��9��$
3��:��	�




B	
1�	���
���9�
�  ����"
	�
��������
����"	�	���
��
	��
����	���	
���"�

 ��9��$
 �� ���"�
���"���
+�	���
�
3��"�������
)���$�
,� ��	�



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#��	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���!


��
 ��
 �  ����
 ���	��	���
 �1
 	��
  ��:��	�
 	��
 ��� �
 ���
 	��
  ��$�����
 ��

����������
+�	�
	��
 ��:��	
������	�	���
��1�������
��
	���
�� ��	�
+�	�

�� "����	�	���
 �/:��	
 	�
 1�	���
 ���	���
 	���$�
 �  ����"
 �1
  ��:��	


Page 15



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����G
 �������
��
�����
����












G


�  �����"��
� ���1��
�  ����"
��
��$�	
1��
	��
 ��:��	�
+����
���"���
	��

1�""�+��$!


H
3��:��	
3�� ���"
,� ��	
%�  ��/�3	�&
�1
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�

H
3��:��	
3��$�����
%�  ��/�3	8&
�1
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�


���
 ��
 �  ����
 �����������	
 �1
 	��
 ����$�
 ���
 ����"	�	���
 �1
 	��
 ���
�	���	
  ��9��$
  �� ���"�
 ��	��"��
 ��
 	��
 3��"�������
 )���$�
 ,� ��	

%�  ��/�3	�&
�1
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�


	
��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
3��:��	
)�"�����
���
����������	

����$��
��$�����$
	��
���/���$�
��	�
���	��
���"�
3��9��$
3��:��	�




���
�����		��
����
	��
1�""�+��$
������	�
��
��� ����
	�
	��
�� ��	�


��
 B	
 +��
 ��9��+"��$��
 	��	
 	����
 +��
 ���11�����	
 1����$
 1��
 �
 	����

����$����
���"�
 ��9�


���
 ���
����"
�� ��	
�1
��$�������	�
���"�
 ��9��$
��
	��
���	����
����
+�"�

����
����1"
���������	����



����
 B	
 +��
 �$$��	��
 	��	
 	��
 ��""�$��
 ��"�
 /�
 ��9��
 �1
 	���
 ����
 "���

�� ���	�
1��
���"�
 ��9��$
������



���
 ���
 �A�"�	�
 B� ��	
 ;��������	
 ���"�
 /�
 �������
 	�
 ��1"��	
 	��

 ���	���
 �� ��	�
 �1
 ������$��$
  �� "�
 ���"��
 B	
 ���"�
 �"��
 ��$�"�$�	

����$�	����"
�� ��	
�1
���"�
 ���9�
��
 	��	
 	���
��
��	
����	�
�/�	��"��

1��
�	���
 ������	
�����


��
 B	
+��
�$����
	��	
	��
���	
,���
����
	�
/�
�����
��
��
����
��
����
�1

����
���"�
 ��9��$�




���
�����		��
����"���
�������"�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*>����	 ��!:&���0�	�!����0&��!�	1!�<	��!#�&((�	*+��:�2	



Page 16



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����I
 �������
��
�����
����












I


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


���
�� ��	
 �����+��
	��
+��9
 	��	
���
/���
��� "�	��
��
�������
��
 ��	
�1

	��
 �����	
  �����	���
 ��������	���
 +��9
  ��$������
 ���
  � ���
 �1
 	��

�� ��	
 +��
 	�
  ��	�
���/���
 ��
 	��
+��9
 	��	
 ���
 /���
 ��� "�	���
 +��	

+��
�	�	�����$�
���
+��	
+��
 �� ����
1��
������@�

���
�� ��	
�"��
��	��

	��
� ���
	�
��	�
��
	��
 ��$������




%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!




��
 <�	�
;  ����0
�
�1
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	
+����
��� �����
��
 ��	�
�1
	��

 ��$�����
�1
 �����	���
��������	���
+��9
����	�9��
 ��
�������
���

+��9
�	�""
	�
/�
��� "�	��
��
������@�


���
 ;  ����
	��
/�$�	
�����
����
1���
�������
	�
�  ��	
	��
���������
�1

	��
 ��$������


��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
6�/��
)���$�
���
��������	���

����$��
��$�����$
	��
3�����	���
��������	���
2��9
3��$�����
������@�

���/���
+�"�����
	��
�  ���	���	
�1
�
������	��
��������	���
*11����
���

�  ��	��
	��
 ��$������





���
�����		��
����"���
�������"�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*�����	 �!(('���4	����&���'��'��	��04	���"�(��&�4	%�&��	�.&�#��#	

�.�/'"�	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	



Page 17



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
�����
����












��


���
 � ���
�1
	��
�� ��	
+��
	�
 ��	�
���/���
��
	��
+��9
	��	
+��
/���$

����	�9��
	�
 �� ���
�
������	�
B�1���	��	��
5���
%�B5&
1��
���/���$�

���
���9
�  ����"
	��	
�
3��"�������
)��1	
����$��$
�����"�
��
 /"�����
1��

 /"��
����"	�	���
��
������



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!


��
 �������
 	��
 ���/���$�
 �B5
 '��/�"�	�
 ;��������	
 %;  ����0
 �
 �1
 	��

*11����?�
 �� ��	&
 ��
 /��9$����
 ��������
 	�
 �  ��	
 	��
  �� ����

3��"�������
)��1	
����$��$
�����"�J
����


���
 ;  ����
 	��
  /"���	���
 �1
 	��
 ���/���$�
 3��"�������
 )��1	
 ����$��$

�����"�
%�		�����
��
;  ����0
�
�1
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	&
1��
�
��0�+��9

����"	�	���
 �����
/�	+���
�G
�����
����
���
�I
; ��"
�����


	
��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
���
��
�������	��
 �����	�	���
1���
	��

������
3"�����$
3�"���
*11����
��$�����$
	��
)��1	
����$��$
�����"�
1��
	��

������	�
B�1���	��	��
5����
�����""��
.��/��	
�	�	��
	��	
���
$�� 
+�"�

��� ���
1����""�
	�
	��
����"	�	����



���
�����
��	������
����"	��	��
,������
)�0��
���
,�/
����"�
�1
)�0���
����"�
553
+��
+���
 �����	
	�
���+��
A��	����
��$�����$
	��
 �����	�	���

���
	��
�� ��	�



B�
��� ����
	�
A��	����
1���
	��
�����		��
	��
1�""�+��$
 ���	�
+���

�"���1����




��
 '����/"�
����$��$
��	��
1��
"��$�
��
���""
��	��"
��	�
���
������
��11����	

+����
 +�	���
 	��
 ��	�
 +�"�
 ���
 	�
 �
 ��$���
 �1
 ��� "���	���
 	�
 	��

 ������
���
+�"�
�����
	��
�����
���	��



���
 #�� ��$
 	��
 ������
��� "��
���
�����	��$
 	��
�B5
����$��
 	�
 	��
���	

��"����	
����"� ���	
	� ���
+��
�$$��	��
��
	��
/��	
�����
�1
��	���

1��
	��
���	��"
 �����
	�
�����
���	�����
�����A������


����
 ��		��$
 �������	��"
 ��	��
 �	
 	��
 ��$�
 �
 "���"
 ��"�
 ����
 ��
 �� ��	
 ��

���/�"�	�
�1
����"� ���	
���
��
 	��
 �� ����
 ��	��
+���
 �	����
�	
 	��

�������$��


Page 18



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
�����
����












��


���
 �����
+�"�
����
	�
/�
�
��/�	
��������
/���
	�
�  ��	
���
����
	�

�����/"�
/������
�B5
��	���


��
 B�
��� ����
	�
A��	�����
 	��
����"	��	�
�11����
	�
 ������
 ��1����	���

1���
 �	����	���
 	��	
 ���
 �"�����
 ��	������
 �B5
 1��
 ��� ������

 � �����



���
 ��������
+���
������
	��	
����
����"� ���	�
���
�
$���	��
�� ��	
��

	��
 "���"
 ������	�
 	���
 �	�����
 ���
 ����"	��	�
 ���1�����
 	��	
 ���=

�$������	�
��"�
�	�""
/�
���
��
�
��	��� ���1��
/����
��
��	�$�	����



����
 ���
�� ��	
�1
��
��1"�0�/"��
1"�	
��	�
��
	��
��"�����
�1
�11����/"�
�����$

+��
A��	������
���
����"	��	�
�	�	��
	��	
 �������$
�11����/"�
�����$

���
 �
 $���	��
 �� ��	
 ��
 ������
 ���/�"�	�
 	���
 �B5�
 ���
 "���"
 �1

�11����/"�
�����$
��A����
+�"�
����
	�
/�
��	
	�
��1"��	
	����


�����
 ���
 �����	�/"�
 �	�	��
 ���
 �������	��
 �����	���
 �0�� 	����
 �1

6�������	���
 1���
�B5
+��
 ������
��
�
�������
+����
��"�
 ���"	
 ��
��

��/�"����
��
	��
 ��������
�1
�	���	
���������	����


�0�
 B	
+��
���1�����
	��	
	����
+�"�
/�
�
	�����	���
 �����
1���
���=
	�
�B5

���
 ����""��$
 +��9
 +��
 ���$���$
 	�
 ��	�/"���
 	��
 �� ��	
 ��
 ����� 	�

���������


0�
 ���
 $���������
 �1
 �B5
 1���
 +��
 ���������
 ���
 	��
 $���������

�����$����	�
���
/�
.�	��$��������
)��	���	
�����"
+���
��"�
 
��

��
�0�� "��
���
.���
�1
3"�����$
 ���	��
�	
	��	
$���������
+��
��

����
��
+����
+��9
+��
����+���
����
+�"�
/�
	��
�/:��	
�1
�
�� ��	

	�
���/���
�	
�
"�	��
��	��



0��
 ���
 K���
 ��	�
 �  "���
 	�
 ��	�"�
+��
 :�	�1���
 ��
����
 ��	�"
 ��	��
+���

�����	"�
����"� ��
��
���$���"
���/�"�	��


0���
 8���$�
 ��	��
 ���
 �����
 /������
 ����"� ���	�
+�"�
 ����
 	�
 /�
 9� 	

����
 ���������	���
 ��
 ��"�	���
 	�
 	��
 ����$��$
 5���"
 3"��
 $��+	�

��A������	��





���
�����		��
����"���
/�
@
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*$����	 ��0����#&��!�	��	�!	8'�"/��#	&�	��/��#�!'�/	�&�	�&�<	&�	�&�<	

�����	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	



Page 19



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
�����
����












��


���
�����"
��
�����	"�
����������$
� 	����
1��
	��
1	��
�1
3��9
�	���	
�"	��
�	����
���
 ��9�
*��
�1
	��
����������	����
	��	
1�""�+�
1���
	��
�����		��

�� ��	
 ��
 (��
 ����
 ��
 	�
 �����	
 �����	�$�	����
 ��	�
 	��
 1����/�"�	�
 �1

����	��	��$
��
����$����
���
 ��9
��
	��
�����	
��	��



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!

8�������"
����������	����	?		

•
 ;  ����
	��
�����������	
�1
	���
�������
+����
��
��	
���"���
��
	��

�����"?�
�� �	�"
4
,�����
3��:��	
3"��




•
 ���
 	�	�"
 ���	
 �1
 	��
  ��:��	
 ��
 E=�����
 1����
 1���
 ���
 3��9�

�	��	��"
���
�A� ���	
,4,
/�$�	�




•
 �����
���
��
��$���$
������
�� "���	����
������$
1���
	��
 ��:��	�


3��������	
����������	����!


•
 ;  ����
 	��
 �������$
 �	
 ���
 ��� "�	���
 �1
 	��
  ��������	
 �1

�����	�$�	����
��	�
	��
1����/�"�	�
�1
����	��	��$
��
����$����
���
 ��9

��
	��
3��9
�	���	
��	��


•
 �/:��	
	�!

�
 ���
 ���������
�1
	��
)����	��
�1
,�������
/���$
��$�	
 ����
	�


 ��������$
 �1
 	��
A�	�	���
��
 	�����
��
�0�����
 	��
��	���	��

���	���	�





�
 ���
 ���������
1���
	��
�0��	���
�����""��
/���$
��$�	
/�1���


 ��������$
 �1
 	��
 ��"�
 �0�����
 	��
 ��	���	��
 ���	���	
 /�
����

	���
��L�




��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
.���
�1
� ����"��	
��������

��$�����$
����$����
�����	�$�	����
�	
3��9
�	���	
�"	���	���
���
3��9�






���
�����		��
����"���
�������"�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����


Page 20



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
�����
����












��




�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��



���*)����	 ��!#�&((�	!�	�!"/��#	�� &���	�!	�&�<	
�����	�'"��:��!��4	�&�	
�&�<	


�&����	�!�	%�����!��	


���
�����"
+��
����������$
� 	����
1��
	��
1	��
�1
3��9
�	���	
�"	���	����

���
 ��9�
+����
+��
��+
��
�����
�"��
��
�����
�	�
��1�
� ���	����
 ������
�

��1�
����������	
 	�
 	��
 /"��
���
�11�����
�1
 	��
�����"�
���
 ��	��	
 1	��

������
 �	�����
 �	�"
 ������"� ���	
 ��
 �� "����	��
 ��
 ������=�
 �����	��"

�	��	��"
 ���
 ��1�	�
 �� ����
+�"�
 /�
 ��A����
 ����
 	��
 ��0	
 	����
 ������
 ;

 ��$�����
�1
+��9�
�1
E�������
��
������@�
E������
��
���@���
���
E������

��
 ������=
 ���
 /���
 ���+�
  �
 ���
 �
 � ����"��	
 ���	���	��
 +��
 ��A����
 	�

��� "�	�
 ���
 ����$�
 	��
 ��A����
 +��9��
 � ����"��	
 ��" 
 +��
 ��A����
 	�

� ���1�
 ���
 ���"�	�
 	��
  ��������	�
 B	
 +��
 ��	��� �	��
 	��	
 	��
 �����	��"

+��9�
 +�"�
 /�
 	��
 ������
 ��A������	�
 ��
 ����
 �
 	�
 �����
 ���	����

� ���	����
���
��$���$
��"���$
 �� ����
 ���
���"�	����
+�""
 /�
 ���������
 ��

�����
�
���
��



%�����!�	!�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	�!�	�"&����#	&�/	�"�(&��	�.&�#�	
���
�0��	���
�����""��
����"���
	�!

8�������"
����������	����	?		

•
 ;  ����
	��
�����������	
�1
	���
�������
+����
��
�"�����
���"���
��

	��
�����"?�
�� �	�"
4
,�����
3��:��	
3"��
%���I�&�




•
 ���
 	�	�"
���	
�1
 	��
 ��:��	
 ��
��	���	��
 	�
/�
E�������
����
 	����

������
1����
1���
�	��	��"
���
�A� ���	
,4,
1����


•
 �����
���
��
��$���$
������
�� "���	����
������$
1���
	��
 ��:��	�


3��������	
����������	����!


•
 ;  ����
	��
�������$
�	
���
��� "�	���
�1
	��
 ��������	
�1
�����	��"

�	��	��"
�� ����
	�
	��
���
 ��9
�	��	���
�� ����
	�
	��
���
 ��9�
�� ��	

/��������
 ������$�
 �� ����
 ���
 ���"���$
 �������	��
 � ����"��	
 	�������"

���
  ��:��	
 ����$����	
 �  ��	
 	�
 � ���1�
 ���
 � ������
 	��
 �� ���

+��9�
����
	��
��0	
	����
�����
	�
	��
��"�
�1

E��������


•
 �/:��	
	�!


Page 21



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����@
 �������
��
�����
����












�@


�
 ���
 ���������
�1
	��
)����	��
�1
,�������
/���$
��$�	
 ����
	�

 ��������$
 �1
 	��
A�	�	���
��
 	�����
��
�0�����
 	��
��	���	��

���	���	�





�
 ���
 ���������
1���
	��
�0��	���
�����""��
/���$
��$�	
/�1���


 ��������$
 �1
 	��
 ��"�
 �0�����
 	��
 ��	���	��
 ���	���	
 /�
����

	���
��L�




��&�!�	�!�	�.�	%�����!��		
;�
��	
�	
��
	��
*11����?�
�� ��	�	
	
��4	�"����&��0�	� ��!��	�!���/���/	&�/	��5����/�		
<�	
�  "���/"��

	

��'���4	�!���/��&��!���		
���
�����		��
��������
�
�� ��	
1���
	��
.���
�1
� ����"��	
��������

��$�����$
��"���$
�� ����
	�
3��9
�	���	
�"	���	����
���
3��9�




��������
+���
������
	��	
	���
+��
�/��	���
�0 ����	���
���
)����	��
�1

����������	
���1�����
	��	
+��"�
�0 ����	��
+�"�
/�
9� 	
	�
�
�������
��

	��
��	����	�
�1
 /"��
��1�	�
�	
���
	�
/�
����	�9���
��	����"�
+�"�
/�

�����
+����
 ����/"��






���
�����		��
����"���
/�
�
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	��
����������	�����



���
�0��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	��
����������	����



�!��"����	!�	��������	/��"&��/	,4	�.�	�3��'��0�	�!'���""!�	6&�/	&�4	
/�� ���&��!��	#�&���/7	
<�	
�  "���/"��









���
���	��$
�����
�	
����
 �










�����	



Page 22



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


�����������	
������	���������	 ��
���
����	

 ����

�
����
 �



�������!
 
 �����""���
 #�$%	"��
 &�%���'�
 �������
 &(�����%���'�
 )����"���

*��+��	�
,�%�����
����%��	�-���"���
./���
���
0�����



�1��	���
�����""��
2��
3"�����$
���
�"���	�
�%��$�!
���
4���




5�����
�2
	%�
�����"!
���
)��6



���������		
-����	��
�2
����������	!
�����
3����

*���
�2
3"�����$
��������!
3�	��
-�""

�����		��
����$��!
,����
7������



�����	��������	��������	
�������
-����	��
&7��/	%
8
9�2���	��	��'
:
���	�
�����"!
7��%��
*$%��






���	���	�����������	��	���	�������	




���� ���!	 �"#$#%���	


; �"�$���
/���
��������
2���
�����""��
0����



�����""��
)����"��
�		�����
��
��
�"	����	�
���+���


��������!	 &��$'�'��#��	#�	��������	






�'(�	 ���(	 ��������	

�����""��

�������


���������
 3������"!
 ���+��
 �2
 ���+���$�
 ���"��$

��� ��$��






����)���!	 �*+$��	,*����#��	


<�
 +"��
=��	����
/���
���������


��������!	 �"%�'-�	�#	��.	

Public Document Pack

Page 23



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�




�'����	�#�	&�����#�	
.�
 �
 ; ��"
 ����
 ���+���
 ��=��	��
 �
 � ����"
 ����������	
 ���	���

�����		��
���	��$
 	�
 ������
 	%�
 "�	��	
  �� ���"�
 2��
 �� �������	�
 	�
 	%�

;��
��%����



.�
�>
; ��"
����
?""
�����"
��+�	��
�
��=��	
2���
���+���$��%���
���	�

�����"
 2��
 �
 2�������"
 ���	��+	���
 	�/����
 	%�
 ���	
 �2
 	%�
  �� ����
 ;��

@ $����
 ��%����
 9	
 /��
 ����"���
 	�
 �+�	���
 2���
 ��6��$
 �
 2����$

���	��+	���
 	�
 	%�
;��A
 ���
 	�
 ���	���
 ���	��+	��$
/%�	
 2���
 	%�
�����"

��"�
 ��6�
 ����"�+"�
 2��
  +"��
 	���� ��	
 ���
 ���"��$
 /�	%��
 	%�
 ��	�
 	�
 %�" 

��	�$�	�
	%�
�� ��	
�2
����	��$
��	�
	%�
��	��
��
 ��	��"��
+�
�	��	��$
�
B#�� 

���+���$�
�����$
?��B�



�%�
.22����C�
�� ��	
��	
�	
	%�
+��6$����
	�
	%�
��+�	�
�	
?""
�����"
���

�"��
����	�2���
6��
�����
	%�	
/�"�
����
	�
+�
	�6��
2��/���
	%��$%
2����"

 ��������
 2��
 ���������	���
 �2
 	%�
  $����
 ��%���
 ���
 ��	�+"��%���	
 �2
 �

D#�� 
���+���$�
�����$C
?���



&�����#�	#�	�/��*��!�	�#*���$$#�	�#�	�$'����%	'�-	�$�('��	��'�%�	

&�'
 <�	��
	%�
��������
�2
?""
�����"
��
	%�
��%����

&��'
 <�	��
	%�
2�""�/��$
��������	
��
5�+��C�
 ���	���
�	�	����	!




�%�
�1��	���
�����""��
��
��6��
	�




�'
 ���	�	�
 	%�	
 	%�
��	�
�����"
 ��
�����		��
 	�
�
��E��
;��
 $����
���

/�""
/��6
E���	"�
/�	%
	%�
���	�
�����"
	�
�����
�""
�����	��"
����	����"

"���"
 ���+���$�
�������
 ���
 �� "����	���
 	�
��1�����
 ���������
 �2

��$���$
E������
/�	%��
���+���$�
	�
�������


�'
 ��$�����
 ��
 �""� ��	�
 ���	��$
 /�	%
 	%�
 ��/
 ���	�
 �����"�
 ��2"��	��$

�����	
 �"�	���"
�%��$���
����	��$
�""
���+���$��%���
�����"�
	�
��$�	��	�

�
���$"�
��
����
D#�� 
���+���$��%���
�����$
?��C�
��
��
��	�$��"
 ��	

�2
 ���
 ��%���
 ��$�	��	��
 /�	%
 7��������	�
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ��	
 �"�
 �	

� 	����
 +�2���
 ������$
 	%�
 +��	
 ��%����+"�
 ��%���
 ��
 ����"� ��
 2��

���+���$�
���
���+���$��%���
�������	�


�'
 ����	�6�
 �
 ����"	�	���
 /�	%
 �������	�
 ���
 +���������
 ���
 �� ��	

/%�	%��
��� �����
�  ��	
	%�
 $����


�'
 +���$
 �
 2�	%��
 �� ��	
 	�
�����		��
 �2	��
 	%�
���	��$�
 ���"���$
 ��
 	%�

2�	%��
 ��	��"��
 	��22��
 �� ��	
 ���"����
 ���
 	%�
 "��	
 �2
 ��/
 �������

�������
 ������
 2��
 ���+���$��
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ������
 �
 ��/
 <4

���+���$�
  ��6
 ���
 �����
  +"��
 	���� ��	
 ��	���%��$��
 ���
 ��/


Page 24



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


���"�/����
 /%��%
 /�""
 ����
 	�
 +�
 2""�
 ��	�$��	��
 ��
 ���
 �����""
 ;��

��%���
���
�
�������
���	�
����� ��	
�	��	�$��
��	
�� ���	��


	
��'�#�	�#�	���	&�����#�	
;�
��	
�	
��
	%�
.22����C�
�� ��	�	
	
��0	�$����'��!�	�"��#��	�#���-���-	'�-	��1����-	
<�	
�  "���+"��

	

��*���0	�#���-��'��#��	
�%�
�����		��
��������
�
 �� ��	
 2���
	%�
-����	��
�2
����������	
 ��$�����$

	%�
@ $����
	�
;���



�%�
�����		��
����
	%�
2�""�/��$
������	�
��
��� ����
	�
	%�
�� ��	!




&�'
 ��$%	
 �"���2���	���
 ��$�����$
 �������
 ���
 ��"��+�"�	�
 �2
 	���� ��	

����""��$
��	��


&��'
 <�	��
 	%�	
 ����
 %����$
 ����"� ���	�
 �	����
 	%�
 ��	�
 +������

/���
 �� �����	
 ��
 ;��
 �� �������	�
 $���$
 �%����
 �����""���

��6��
 2��
 	��22��
 ����""��$
 ��	�
 	�
 �%�/
 	%�
 �� ��	
 ��
 ��	�
 	��22��A

�%�/��$
 �""
 �22��	�����	��$������
 2���
 ;��
 �� �������	�
 $���$

�%���
��
��	�


&���'
 ��$%	
 �"���2���	���
 ��$�����$
 	%�
 +���2�	�
 	�
 ���+���$�
 2���
 ;��

�� �������	��




5�+��
 �����""���
 2�"	
 	%�
 ;��
  $����
 /��
 �
 +�$
 ����
 ���
 �1 ������

�� ����
	%�	
�
��������
%��
+���
	�6��
/�	%�	
	%�
�  ��	��	�
	�
���	�����
�	�

�%��
/�"�����
	%�
�  ��	��	�
	�
��
��
��/�
�%�
5�����
�2
	%�
�����"
����

	%�	
	%�
���	�
�����"
%��
 ���������
	%�
��	�
�����"
2��
�
��� �����
��
�	

������
�1 �����	
	�
	�6�
	%�
 �� ���"
	�
?""
�����"�



9�
 ��� ����
 	�
 �����""��
 *��+��	C�
 =��	����
 	%�
 �1��	���
 �����""��
 2��

3"�����$
���
�"���	�
�%��$��
-����	��
 �2
����������	
���
�������
-����	��

&�	��	�$�
���
-���"� ���	'
����
	%�
2�""�/��$!




&�'
 �%�
5���"
3"��
����
��	
%���
�
� ���2��
 �"���
��
	%�
;��
���
����

�2
 	%�
 �""���	����
 /�	%��
 ��	�
 "���	�
 ��
 	%�
 5���"
 3"��
 ���
 �����	"�

���	��$��	
��
��
 $����
�2
 	%�
�����
�/�
����"� ���	�
�	����
�2

	%�
��	�
 "���	�
 &<��	%�	�/�
���
4�	��+���%'
/���
�� �����	
��
 	%�

;��
 �� �������	
���
��"�
��	
$�
�%���
/�	%�	
 �	�
;"���+��
/��

��	
�� �����	
��
 	%�
;��
 $�����
+	
/��
 ��"�	��
 	�
 �	�
)�������2	

?���
/��
��	
�� �����	
���
��
��"�	��
	�
	%�
 $�����


Page 25



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


&��'
 ����""��$
�2
	���� ��	
�����
%��
+���
����	�6��
���
.22�����
/���

���2����	
 �2
 �	�
 ��"��+�"�	��
 .��
 �2
 	%�
 ���	
 �� %��	���	��
 ����""��$

���	���
��
	%�
���	��
%��
+���
����


&���'
 ����""��$
 �$$��	��
 	���� ��	
 �� ��	�
 ��
 	%�
 ��	�
 2���
 	%�
 ;��

 $����
 /��
 ��
 �����""
 ����	���
 ��
 	��22��
 "���"��
 ��	�
 	��22��
 "���"�

���
 ��������
 2���
 %����$
 ����"� ���	��
 +	
 	%��
 /��
 �
 �� ���	�

�����
 ��	�
 	��22��
 "���"�
 /�"�
 +�
 �22��	��
 +�
 %����$

$��/	%�����"� ���	�
��	%��
	%��
;��
�� �������	��


&��'
 �%�
���	�
�����"
%��
 �������
�""
 	���� ��	
����""��$
��	�
 	�
 	%�

��	�
�����"
	�
2��	��
�	
��	�
	%�
5���"
3"���


&�'
 0�2�����
 	�
 	%�
 ����� ��	
 �	��	�$�
 2��
 2�$���
 ��
 %����$
 $��/	%

�� ��	
��
	��22��
"���"��


&��'
 �%�
 ��	�
 ���
 ���	�
 �����"�
 %��
 +���
 ��������$
 ��	�$��	��

��2���	��	��
 �����$����	�
 ���
 "��6�
 	�
 5���"
 3"��
 %����$

����"� ���	��
 �%���
 ����������
 /���
  	
 ��
 %�"�
 ��
 	�
 "���"

�"��	���
���"	�A
+	
/�"�
�����
�2	��
 	%�
��/
���	�
5�����
/��

���2������





9�
 ��� ����
 	�
�����""��
 #�$%	"��C�
 =��	����
 	%�
�������
-����	��
 &�	��	�$�

���
-���"� ���	'
����
	%�
2�""�/��$!




&�'
 ����� ��	
����""��$
%��
+���
����	�6��
��
������"
����������

&��'
 �%�
����"
/��
 ��������""�
 ��	��
 	�
��"���	�
 �	�
�%�
 "��	
��������


/��
 ��
�����
+	
 	��22��
��"���
%��
�%��$��
 "�		"�
����
 	%�
 "��	
 2�/

������


&���'
 �%�
����"
/��
�
��"��+"�
	��"�
�"+��	
/�	%
�
���$��
�2
������

&��'
 �%�
;��
/��
 ����� �""�
�
�	��	�$��
�����
��
	��22��
/��
����
"�6�"�
	�


$�
�����
	%�
��	�
	%��
��	���



9�
 ��� ����
 	�
 �����""���
 )����"���
 ./���
 ���
 ������C�
 =��	����
 	%�

�������
-����	��
&�	��	�$�
���
-���"� ���	'
����
	%�
2�""�/��$!




&�'
 ����� ��	
����""��$
���
��	
2��	��
��
�������	��
	��22��
���$��	���
�	��

&��'
 �%�
����""��$
 ������	���
 /��
 	�
 ����"
 �
 ��$"��
 ����
 �	
 /�"�
 +�


���  �� ���	�
	�
����"
����$"��
����	�
��
	%��
/���
���"�



9�
 ��� ����
 	�
 �����""���
 #�$%	"��
 ���
 ������C�
 =��	����
 	%�
 �1��	���

�����""��
2��
3"�����$
���
�"���	�
�%��$�
 "�
-����	��
�2
����������	
���

�������
-����	��
&�	��	�$�
���
-���"� ���	'
����
	%�
2�""�/��$!




&�'
 �%�
 6��
 ������
 2��
 ;��
 �� �������	�
 ��
 ����"������
 	%�
 ����
 /��

� ���	��$
�+���
�� ���	�
�	
 �����	�


Page 26



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


&��'
 9	
 /��
 ���"�
 +	
 ��	
 � �������	��
 2��
 �����"�
 	�
 $���
 �	%��

�����"�
2�������"
���	��+	����
	�
�	��	�$��
��	/��6��


&���'
 �%�
���	�
�����"
/��
/��6��$
/�	%
 	%�
-� ��	���	
 2��
����� ��	

&-2�'
���
��������
�%��
 ��2�����
 	%�
���	�
�����"
 	%�	
 	%�
;��

�� �������	
��%���
/�"�
��	
$�
�%���
/�	%�	
"���"
���	��+	�����


&��'
 �%�
-2�
��%���
/��
��	
� ��
 	�
��������	�
��
 	%�
5�����
�2
 	%�

��	�
 �����"
 %��
  �� ����
 �
 B#�� 
 ���+���$�
�����$
 ?��B�
 �%�

��	�
�����"
��"�
��	
��
�����"
	�1
���	��+	�����
��
���	���
/�"�

%���
 	�
 ��"�
 ��
 ������	�
 9�2���	��	��
 5���
 ���
 �����
 -2�
 ��	

	%���
� ���2���	����
��
�""
���	��+	����
��	
+�
���%�


&�'
 92
;��
 �� �������	�
/��	
 �%����
 	%�
 ��	�
 ��"�
 �1 ��	
��
 ��������

2���
 +������
 ��	���
 �%���
 ��"�
 ���	��+	�
 	�/����
 	���� ��	

2����$�
 �%�
 �����"
 /��
 ��6��
 	�
 ���	��+	�
 F��
 ����
 ��
 �����

	�$�	%��
/�	%
���$%+����$
�	%���	����


&��'
 �%�
5�����
�2
 	%�
�����"
���
 	%�
-����	��
�2
����������	
����
 	%�

��	�
�����"
 ��""��	��
FG��
 ��
+������
 ��	���
+	
 6� 	
��"�
FH�
�2

	%����
9	
/�"�
����
	�
��������
	%�
��	
����	
�2
+������
��	��
&��

����	
 ��	�����'
 	�
 �����
 ���	��"
 7��������	C�
 ��2���	��	��

���	��+	���
 ��=������	�A
 	%��
 /��
 %���
 	�
 ���
 �%�
 "��6
 +�	/���

+������
 ��	�
 ��������
 ���
 ;��
 �� �������	�
 /��
 ��"����
 �%�

�����		��
/��
��	
��
�
 ���	���
	�
������	
	%�
�����"
��������
2��
��1

���	%�
 2��
 �������
��	
�	
 ��
 	%�
.22����C�
 ����������	���
&��
 "�$�"

���
�������
�� "���	����'�
)������
��	��
/���
"���	��
	�
�
 �����
�2

�����
������
/%��%
���
��	
�""�/
	%�
�����"
	�
�����	
	�
���$
	%���

2��
 �
 	/��	�
 2���
 ����
 /��6
  ��$������
 *����
 	%�
 5�����C�
 B#�� 

���+���$�
�����$
?��B�


&���'
 �%�
 ���"�
 �2
 ��2���	��	��
 /��
 ���"�	��
 	�
 	�""��$�
 ;
 	�""
 ����
 /��

 �� ����
2��
�	��	�$��
�����
�2
	%�
;���
 ���""�"
������
��	��
/�"�

$���
������
	�
���+���$�
���
+�
2����


&����'
 �%�
����	��
 &3�	���6
���"�$%"��'
%� ��
 	�
�������
��	��"�
�2
 	%�

;��
�� �������	
��%���
&���"���$
	�""��$'
��
�� 	��+��
�����
�%�

���	�
 �����"
 ���
 ���	��"
 7��������	
 /�"�
 ��$�	��	�
 �
 2����$

 ��6�$�
 +�	/���
 ,��
 ���
 �� 	��+���
4��6
 �%�"�
 ��������
 ��

���>�




5�+��
 �����""���
 ��=��	��
 �
 �%��$�
 	�
 	%�
 ����������	�����
 �����""��

*��+��	
2����""�
 �� ����
	�
��"�	�
	%�
.22����
����������	����
���
�� "���

/�	%
	%�
2�""�/��$!




�%�
�1��	���
�����""��
��
��6��
	�




Page 27



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


�'
 ���	�	�
 	%�	
 	%�
��	�
�����"
 ��
�����		��
 	�
�
��E��
;��
 $����
���

/�""
/��6
E���	"�
/�	%
	%�
���	�
�����"
	�
�����
�""
�����	��"
����	����"

"���"
 ���+���$�
�������
 ���
 �� "����	���
 	�
 ��1�����
 ���������
 �2

��$���$
E������
/�	%��
���+���$�
	�
�������


�'
��$�����
 ��
 �""� ��	�
 ���	��$
 /�	%
 	%�
 ��/
 ���	�
 �����"�
 ��2"��	��$

�����	
 �"�	���"
�%��$���
����	��$
�""
���+���$��%���
�����"�
	�
��$�	��	�

�
���$"�
��
����
D#�� 
���+���$��%���
�����$
?��C�
��
��
��	�$��"
 ��	

�2
 ���
 ��%���
 ��$�	��	��
 /�	%
 7��������	�
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ��	
 �"�
 �	

� 	����
 +�2���
 ������$
 	%�
 +��	
 ��%����+"�
 ��%���
 ��
 ����"� ��
 2��

���+���$�
���
���+���$��%���
�������	�


�'
����	�6�
 �
 ����"	�	���
 /�	%
 �������	�
 ���
 +���������
 ���
 �� ��	

/%�	%��
��� �����
�  ��	
	%�
 $����


�'
+���$
 �
 2�	%��
 �� ��	
 	�
�����		��
 �2	��
 	%�
���	��$�
 ���"���$
 ��
 	%�

2�	%��
 ��	��"��
 	��22��
 �� ��	
 ���"����
 ���
 	%�
 "��	
 �2
 ��/
 �������

�������
 ������
 2��
 ���+���$��
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ������
 �
 ��/
 <4

���+���$�
  ��6
 ���
 �����
  +"��
 	���� ��	
 ��	���%��$��
 ���
 ��/

���"�/����
 /%��%
 /�""
 ����
 	�
 +�
 2""�
 ��	�$��	��
 ��
 ���
 �����""
 ;��

��%���
���
�
�������
���	�
����� ��	
�	��	�$��
��	
�� ���	��




�%�
 ��������	�
 /���
 $#��	 2+0	 .	 !#���	 �#	 .	 '�-	 #�	 ���	 ��'��3�	 �'����%	
!#��45	


�����""���
��=��	��
�
�%��$�
	�
 	%�
����������	����
�����""��
�������

2����""�
 �� ����
	�
/�	%���/
	%�
2�""�/��$
����������	���
2���
	%�
.22����C�

�� ��	!




�1��	���
�����""��
��
�����������
	�!



�'
 ;$���
	%�
 ������
��	
�	
��
	%��
�� ��	
2��
2	��
/��6
��
��"�	���
	�
	%�


;��
@ $����
��%���
���
	%�
D#�� 
���+���$�
�����$
?��C�



�%�
�����		��
*�'��(#*�$0
�  �����
/�	%���/��$
	%��
����������	����



�%�
2�""�/��$
����������	���
/��
2����""�
 �� ����!



�%�
 �1��	���
 �����""��
 ��
 ��6��
 	�
 ��	�
 	%�
 2�""�/��$
 ��������	
 ��

5�+��C�
 ���	���
�	�	����	!



�%�
�1��	���
�����""��
��
��6��
	�




�'
 ���	�	�
 	%�	
 	%�
��	�
�����"
 ��
�����		��
 	�
�
��E��
;��
 $����
���

/�""
/��6
E���	"�
/�	%
	%�
���	�
�����"
	�
�����
�""
�����	��"
����	����"


Page 28



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����H
 �������
��
���
����












H


"���"
 ���+���$�
�������
 ���
 �� "����	���
 	�
��1�����
 ���������
 �2

��$���$
E������
/�	%��
���+���$�
	�
�������


�'
 ��$�����
 ��
 �""� ��	�
 ���	��$
 /�	%
 	%�
 ��/
 ���	�
 �����"�
 ��2"��	��$

�����	
 �"�	���"
�%��$���
����	��$
�""
���+���$��%���
�����"�
	�
��$�	��	�

�
���$"�
��
����
D#�� 
���+���$��%���
�����$
?��C�
��
��
��	�$��"
 ��	

�2
 ���
 ��%���
 ��$�	��	��
 /�	%
 7��������	�
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ��	
 �"�
 �	

� 	����
 +�2���
 ������$
 	%�
 +��	
 ��%����+"�
 ��%���
 ��
 ����"� ��
 2��

���+���$�
���
���+���$��%���
�������	�


�'
 @����	�6�
 �
 ����"	�	���
 /�	%
 �������	�
 ���
 +���������
 ���
 �� ��	

/%�	%��
��� �����
�  ��	
	%�
 $����


�'
 )���$
�
 2�	%��
 �� ��	
 	�
�����		��
�2	��
 	%�
���	��$�
 ���"���$
��
 	%�

2�	%��
 ��	��"��
 	��22��
 �� ��	
 ���"����
 ���
 	%�
 "��	
 �2
 ��/
 �������

�������
 ������
 2��
 ���+���$��
 �%��
 �%�"�
 ������
 �
 ��/
 <4

���+���$�
  ��6
 ���
 �����
  +"��
 	���� ��	
 ��	���%��$��
 ���
 ��/

���"�/����
 /%��%
 /�""
 ����
 	�
 +�
 2""�
 ��	�$��	��
 ��
 ���
 �����""
 ;��

��%���
���
�
�������
���	�
����� ��	
�	��	�$��
��	
�� ���	��




�%�
�����		��
*�'��(#*�$0
��������
	%��
����������	����



�%�
�1��	���
�����""��
�  �����
	%�
����������	����



�#��$����	 #�	 ��������	 &��$'��-	 +0	 ���	 �/��*��!�	 �#*���$$#�	 2'�-	 '�0	
&��"���'��#��	6�'���-4	
<�
���2"��	�
�2
��	����	
/���
���"����
+�
	%�
�1��	���
�����""���








�%�
���	��$
�����
�	
����
 �










�����	



Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 ��������
��
���
����












�


�����������	
������	���������	 ��
���
����	

 ������
�
��� 
��



�������!
 
 �����""���
 #�$�	"��
 %�����&�
 �������
 %'���������&�
 ("����)��

�������	�*���"���
+)����
+,-��""��
-���
���
�����"�..�




����	��������
�/��	���
�����""��
.��
0"�����$
���
��	����1"�
��������	!

�����""��
2����
�/��	���
�����""��
.��
01"��
0"����!
�����""��
-�����
���

	��
�/��	���
�����""��
.��
����������	�"
���
2��	�
��������!
�����""��

�)������








���	���	�����������	��	���	�������	




��������	 ������� ���	�!	"�#���� ���	��$�	
%�&���'	
&(	��  �����	



���
 ���	���
 �����		��
 �$����
 	��
 ���1������
 �.
 	��
 *���"�����	
 0"��

���	���
�1������		��!


�""��!
-����
��������
(����"���
�������	�*���"���
0����
���
("����)�



3"	�!
("��4���	
���
5��1��	






���
���	���
�����		��
�$����
	��
�����
���
'���
�����
.��
	��
�1�
�����		��!


6�����	����
.��
�����!
�""�
-���
��
�������	�*���"��


6�����	���
.��
'���
�����!
�""�
�������





���)����	 ������� ���	��	�&���*�	+�*���	



���
�����		��
�����������
������	���	�
	�
	��
�	����
1�����
"��	��
1�"�)�


���
�/��	���
�����""��
.��
0"�����$
���
��	����1"�
��������	�
�/��	���

�����""��
.��
01"��
0"����
���
	��
�/��	���
�����""��
.��
����������	�"

���
2��	�
��������
�$����
	��
������	���	�
1�"�)!


	

Public Document Pack

Page 31



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 ��������
��
���
����












�


��%$�	,$���	���& 	-�.	

�""�!
�)�����


	

�$ (��*/�	���#��������	������$�0�	1����	��&�%��0�	���& 	-�.	

�""��!
2����
0�����
���
(��	"��



�


1����	
��$��/�%	��$������	$�*	
�$��$�	��$����/	2��&�	-�3).	

�""��!
2����
-�����	��"
���
("����)�


3"	�!
-���
���
0����






��$������	$�*	
�$��$�	��$����/	
������/	2��&�	-�3).


�""��!
-����
2���
���
("����)�



3"	�!
-�����	��"
���
0����




	

��%'%���/	��	�$ (��*/�	$�*	�����(���&/4	-�����.	-�.	

�""�!
�)�����


+�����	���
���4��!
+)���






1����	��$������	$�*	��$����/	��$*	�� (��	2��&�	-�.	

�""�!
2���






������	�*5&*�%$����	$�*	+&�	�$��	�*5&*�%$����	1����	��  �����	-�.	


�""�!
2���




	
�'%���/	�4$ ����	-�.	


�""�!
���	��""


Page 32



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 ��������
��
���
����












�




"���/�	�4$ ����	-�.



�""�!
�	��	



	
�������%	��#���� ���	�4$ ����	-�.	


�""�!
�����"�..�






	










���
���	��$
�����
�	
��� 
��










�����	



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 34



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


�����������	
������	���������	 ��
���
����	

 ����
��
�
����
��



������� 
 
 �����!!���
 "�#$	!��
 %�$���&�
 �������
 %'�����$���&�
 (!����)��

*���$��	�+���!���
,)����
,-.��!!��
.���
���
(����!��



�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
����������	�!
���
1��	�
�������� 
����
�)�����



�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
2!�����#
���
�!���	�
�$��#� 
���
1���




�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
23!��
2!���� 
4�����
.�����



4!��
������	 
�����!!���
5��3��	
���
(��	!��



,00����� 


5���
�0
2!�����#
�������� 
2�	��
+�!!

6�3��
+���#�
7
��������	���
*���#�� 
8!��
.��$������

4����	��	 
.��$���
1��3����

2��9��	
+�!�����
���
����������	
*���#�� 
4����)
2���	��

:�	��
��������	���
2��9��	�
,00���� 
8�
(�!�$��

������
��	����3�!�	�
,00���� 
����
+�����

6�3��
8��)	$
2��9��	�
*���#�� 
���
1�	$��0��!�

2�������!
2!�����#
2�!���
,00���� 
������
8�!3��	�1��!����#�

2!�����#
2�!���
���
��������
+���!�����	
,00���� 
�	��$��
*�!��

�����		��
*���#�� 
����
(��;��

�	��	�#�
���
2��	����$���
*���#�� 
+����
"���	��

5���
�0
�������	�
�	��	�#� 
4����)
<��3

2�������!
��������	���
���
+���#�
,00���� 
�$���	���
(����

������
��	����3�!�	�
,00���� 
�!���
2�!0�����



���	�
�����!
,00�����
������	 
5���
�0
��������	
7
=�0���	��	���
+���3$!�

<�)���
���
��������	
���
=�0���	��	��
�	��	�#�
*���#���
������
���	$





���	���	�����������	��	���	�������	




������
�	 ���������	


4��!�#���
)���
��������
0���
�����!!��
�����!�00��
�����!!��
(����!��
)��

������	
��
	$�
�!	����	��


��� ��
�	 !�"�#�#�����	�$	��������	

Page 35



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�







��%�"�����		 ���&	 ��������	

�������
 �������:'
 2������! 
*��3��
�0
���3���#�
2��	�
2�����	
���

>	��


2������! 
*��3��
�0
	$�
.�2(

2������! 
*��3��
�0
���3���#�
���!��#
������#�


.���
 �������:'
 2������! 
*��3��
�0
���3���#�
2��	
2�����	
���

>	���

2������! 
*��3��
�0
���3���#�
���!��#
������#�

2������! 
5��
!��;�
)�	$
���3���#�
.�	��0�	

2������! 
<����
��
�
3�!���#
�0
<���!
=�	����	


,?.��!!�
 �������:'
 2������! 
*��3��
�0
���3���#�
���!��#
������#�


(!����)�
 �������:'
 2������! 
 �$������
 �0
 @*�4
 >��	3�!!
 �!3
 )$�

$���
����
��������	�	���
��
	$��
�	��


"�#$	!��
 �������:'
 2������! 
���!����
�0
:=4(






���'��
�	 ���%���	

���(��
�	 �%)��"	*%�������	


.���!!
����
���������
	$�
�����		��
��#�����#
	$�
(���0��#
.����	
��

4�	��!�
A�
+�	��!�
���
!��	��
����
�	��
����B��:'�





��$�
*���
���
.�#��
���3	���
���������
	$�
�����		��
��#�����#
	$�

���3���#�
<���!
2!���
+�	��!�
��
!��	��
����
�	��
�������:'�
�����!!���

<�)��
5��3��	�
����
�)�����
���
��
(��	!��
�!��
���������
	$�
�����		��

��
	$�
<���!
2!��
�	���


�+#���	��	�%)���+�,	����,#	��,��	


6����
����#���$
A����
�0
	$�
�����!
2�������
.!���
	$�
�$���
���
$��

������	���
	�
�!	��
	$�
�����
�0
	$�
�#����
�	����
5�)�����
0��
����
�0
	$�

�������
	$���
���	��
)�!!
0�!!�)
	$�
�����
�0
	$�
�#�����


���-��
�	 ���.�"�	����#��#�/	�����#"�	����0#��	$��	$%��1	�2���	#�,	
3�+�"��	����&#��"�4	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	



Page 36



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


>!��	
*���#����	
	��;
���	��!
�0
���3���#�
��	�
�����!?�
0�!
���!���
��

���	��3��
���B
���
	�������
0��
���!�
�0
	$�
0�!
	$��#$
��2,�
�$��

���	���	
��
��
	�
�/����
��
���	��3��
�����
=	
)��
����
���	
�00��	���
	�

����#�
	$�
0�!
��
$���
��
	�
	$�
)$�!�
��!�
���$���
���	
��������
	�

������
����
�	
!���!
�������
�	�	�����



'�$��!�
	�!���	���
)���
���	�!!��
��
���	��3��
���B
���!����#
	$�
4'��

���	��
%4	���	��
'�$��!�
<���	���
���	��&
���
��������
�
��3��
�0
;��

3���0�	� 
��������
�����	�
�0
���������
$��!	$
���
��0�	�
�0
���!������

��#��0����	
����	���
��
0!��	
���3��
����������
����	����
��
��$��!�
��	��

�!����
	�
��
�������
���
�����#�
��
0�!�




�$�
	���
���	���	
)��
���������
0��
	$�
���!�
�0
	����
��C����
	�
��
	$�

�����!?�
0!��	
�0
��$��!���




�$�
 	���
 ���	���	
)�!!
 ��C���
��
�	����
�������
��������
 	�
 ��#!��!�
 ������	

���
 ���!���
 	�����
 �$���
 ������	�	���
 ����	������
 �������
 )�!!
 �������
 �

�����#
��
	�
!���
)���
���
	���
��
��$��!�
���	��



!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��3����&���#�	#�,	6#���	
��3�"��/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 




���"%��&���	��"�&&��,#����� 


��
 4������
	$�
�������#
�	
���
����!�	���
�0
	$�
���������	
�0
	�����
0�!


���
	�!���	�����>�!

 �
D���;
���
����



�������
�
D�E;
���
����



����!���	���


�
D�A;
���
����



 

���
 �39��	
	� 


���$�
����������
�0
	$�
+����	��
�0
.�������
3���#
��#$	
�����
	�


���������#
�0
	$�
C�	�	���
��
	�����
��
�/�����
	$�
��	���	��

���	���	�





����$�
����������
0���
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
3���#
��#$	


3�0���
���������#
�0
	$�
��!�
�/�����
	$�
��	���	��
���	���	
3�

����
	$��
��F�



	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		

Page 37



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����A
 �������
��
���
����












A


:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
:�	
���!���3!�
��
�������	���
)��
��	
��C��	���




�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


���9��
�	 :;�:���	��3��%�	#�,	�#���#�	�%��%��1	�#��2	���0#�,�	#�,	

����$�"#��	�#��#�"��	<	��3����&���#�	#�,	6#���	
��3�"��	����$����	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
�����	
������	��
�
������
�0
	$�
�������
�		��
����	���
%��	�!

������
���
�/�����	��&
0��
��������
)�	$��
	$�
����������	�!
���
1��	�

��������
���	0�!���
��������
	�
	$�
0���!
3�#�	
0��
	$�
�����
�$�
����	���
0��

������
���
����	�!
)��
�����	��
���
���������
0���
3�#�	�
���
$�#$!�#$	���

	�#�	$��
)�	$
�/�!���	�����
.�C��	�
	�
�����
0��)���
0����#
������#
0���

���	���
3�#�	
����������
��	�
������A
���
����	�0����




=	
)��
��	��
	$�	
�		��
�����	�
3���#
������	��
��
	$��
�����		��
���!�

��0!��	
	$�
�����	��#
�	��	���
��
�!���
�����
	�
	$�
�����	
�$��#��
��
�/��	���

���	0�!����
=�
!�#$	
�0
	$���
�$��#��
%	�#�	$��
)�	$
	$�
��C������	
	�
�����	

�		��
��
	$�
3����
�0
���	0�!���
��
�!���
����#
�������&
���3���
�0
	$��

�����		��
)���
��;��
	�
��������
	$�
�������!�
	�
�����
0��)���
3�#�	�
���

��;�
	$���
���)�
;��)�
	�
�$�
<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
7

.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����
	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����!�






!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��3����&���#�	#�,	6#���	
��3�"��/	
	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��	��
	$�
���)�
�0
	$�
���	���
�����		��
��#�����#

	$�
 0�!!�)��#
 �������!��
 ���
 ����!���
 	�
 ��;�
 	$���
 ���)�
 ;��)�
 	�
 �$�

<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
���
.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����

	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����! 




��
 ��
�����
0��)���
DGA����
�0
������
3�#�	
0���
�������
	�
������A�
��

��	��!��
��
4������/
�
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�


���
 ��
�����
0��)���
����	�!
��������
	�
0��
���$����
��	
����	�!
�������#

�0
D��E����
0���
�������
��	�
������A�
��
��	��!��
��
4������/
+�


Page 38



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
4����	��	
��#�����#
	$�
.�����

���
����	�!
,		���
�����
>��)����
���
��#��0����	
����������




=�
��������
	�
C��	����
0���
*��3���
	$�
5���
�0
�	���	�
���
,���
������

��������
����	����!
��0����	���
��
	������#
�����������



�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	�����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


���=��
�	 �%)��"	������	��$%�)��+&���	7����	#�,	>	
��3��	
�����8	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
�����	
��C��	��
	$�
�	$���	�
	�
	�!���
	$�
�����
:�	����!
*����

>����)��;
0��
	$�
����#�
���
����	��	���
�0
	$�
<���
@���
���
��!���
�	���	

���!�	
.�0�3��$���	
2��9��	��
6	�!���	���
�0
	$��
0����)��;
)�!�
�����
�
	$�

��!�����
�0
	$�
���9��	��
���!���
3��	
��!�
���!	��#
0���
�
��	����!
�����	�	���

	�������#
�/������
���
�!!�)
0��
���!�
���	���	��
����!�����	
	$��#$�	
	$�

����#�
	�
�����
���	�
	����
3�!��3�!�	�
���
����	������
���
����������

	$��#$�	
�!!
���9��	
�	�#���



!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��3����&���#�	#�,	6#���	
��3�"��/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 




��
 4	$�����
 	$�
 ���������	
 �0
 >��	$0!
 ���
 8�!�
 %>H8&
 ���
 "���
 0��

����#�
���
����	��	���
��������
0��
	$�
������!�����	
�0
	$�
<���
@���

���
 ��!���
 �	���	
 23!��
 ���!�	��
 ���#
 	$�
 �����
 :�	����!
 *����

>����)��;�


���
 4#���
 	�
 	�;�
 	$�
 ��������
 	�
 �������
 	$�
 ���9��	
 ��������!
 ���

���!����	�	���
 �0
 	$�
 <���
 @���
 .�0�3��$���	
 )��;�
 �	
 �0
 	$�


Page 39



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����E
 �������
��
���
����












E


�����		��
 ���!��
 ��
 ����!	�	���
 )�	$
 	$�
 �$���
 ���
 ���;���
 �39��	
 	�

	$�
0���!
��������
����	��	���
���	�
��	
�/������#
DA��;�


	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
2��9��	
+�!�����
���
����������	

*���#��
��#�����#
	$�
23!��
���!�	
.�0�3��$���	��
=�
��������
	�
���3���?

C��	�����
$�
�/�!�����
	$�
����
3��;
�����	��#
�������
���
�00����

����	����!
�!���	�
��
	$�
�	�	�
�0
	$�
���	���	�



*��3���
�/�������
	$���
	$��;�
	�
	$�
<���
@���
���!�	
1��;��#
2��	�
���

)���
�!�����
	$�	
	$���
���	
��	�
	$�
���9��	
)�!�
���	����





�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
�������!�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����;��
�	 ����#,�	#�,	�������	�$	�+�	��&����2	#�,	���&#����%&	
�,&������#����	
2���&	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


��
�#����
	$�
�/��	��#
����	���
���
�����	����
4������	��	���
���	��

���
	����0��
	$�	
���	��
	�
�
$��	��
�����#����	
)�	$
8�)��
����!	��	��




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	�%)��"	��#"��/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 





���#�"�#�	��"�&&��,#�����	?		
��
 .��������
	$��
��$���
%)$��$
��
��	
���!���
��
	$�
�����!?�
����	�!


7
 .�����
 2��9��	
 2!��&
 0��
 �������!
 3�
 �����!�
 �39��	
 	�
 ��������

3���#
����!�3!�
	�
0��
	$�
����	�!
���
������
���	��


I
 �$�
 	�	�!
 ���	
 �0
 	$�
 ���9��	
 ����
 A
 �����
 ��
 D���A���
 0����
 0���


(���������	
��������
=�
.���)�!
7
.��!������	
>��



Page 40



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����G
 �������
��
���
����












G


I
 �$�
��#���#
 ������
���	�
�0
 	$�
���9��	
���
DE����
 %�/�!
 ��0!�	���&�

0����
0���
�/��	��#
������
�����	�







���"%��&���	��"�&&��,#����� 


���
 4�������
	$�
�������#
�	
���
����!�	���
�0
	$�
���������	
�0 


����
 �$�
 	����0��
 �0
 	$�
 ���!�#
 (���!�
 ���
 �����	���
 ���
 4������	��	���


���	��
	�
�
$��	��
�������
)�	$
8�)��
����!	��	��


���
 �$�
�#����
�0
	$�
�����	
���	��
	�
	$�
!�	��	
�	�3!�
��!����
��
���	
�0


	$�	
��������

�39��	
	� 



I
 �$�
 ����������
 �0
 	$�
 +����	��
 �0
 .�������
 3���#
 ��#$	
 �����
 	�

���������#
 �0
 	$�
 C�	�	���
 ��
 	�����
 ��
 �/�����
 	$�
 ��	���	��

���	���	�



I
 �$�
 ����������
 0���
 	$�
 �/��	���
 �����!!��
 3���#
 ��#$	
 3�0���

���������#
�0
	$�
��!�
�/�����
	$�
��	���	��
���	���	
3�
����
	$��

��F�





��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
=	
)��
�����3!�
	�
�#����
���
��	���
	$�
���	��
���$����
5�)�����
�	
)�!�

3�
 ���������
 	�
 ��	
 ��!�
 ���!���
 	$�
 �/��	��#
 ������
 3	
 �!��
 ���$���

����	����!
�C�����	
	�
��
	$�
��	�3���
���
)�3�0����#
���������
���������#

3�	$
	$�
����	�!
���
������
���	�
�0
	$�
���	���	
	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
:�
4��!���3!�
��
�������	���
)��
��	
��C��	���



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


�,,�����#�	����,#	���&	<	:;�:���	��3��%�	#�,	�#���#�	�#��2	���0#�,�	


�$�
�$���
�!��
	$�	
����
���(%A&%3&
�0
	$�
<���!
8��������	
4�	
��G�
	$�

!�	�
�	��
0���
	$�
4����	��	
3�
����������
�����	�
��	
3���#
����
�3!��!�

����!�3!�
0��
	$��
�����		��
0���
�!���
����
�����
	�
	$�
���	��#�





Page 41



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ����B
 �������
��
���
����












B


�$�
������
	$�	
	$��
������	
��!�
��	
3�
��0�����
)��
	$�	
�	
)��

������	���3!�
	�
��0��
	$�
��������
�	�!
	$�
��/	
�����		���






�������
�	 :;�:���	��3��%�	#�,	�#���#�	�#��2	���0#�,�	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
,00����?�
�����	
������	��
�
������
�0
	$�
�������
������
�����

0��)���
���
����	�!
���$����#
��C��	�
0��
	$�
��)
23!��
2!����
���	0�!���

.�C��	�
	�
�����
0��)���
0����#
������#
0���
���	���
3�#�	
����������

��	�
������A
)���
����	�0����



1$�!�	
	$�
3�#�	
����������
���
�����C��	
�����
0��)���
��C��	�
)���

�������
)$��
	$���
��������
0�����
���	
�0
	$�
4�	��
����	
7
23!��
2!����

���	0�!��
�����	��#
	�
	$�
������	�
���������
	$���
�	���
)�!�
0���
���	
�0

3�#�	���
���	��!
0��
	$��
���	���
�����		��
���
2��	0�!��
0��
	$�
������A

0�������!
�����



=	
)��
��	��
	$�	
�		��
�����	�
3���#
������	��
��
	$��
�����		��
���!�

��0!��	
	$�
�����	��#
�	��	���
��
�!���
�����
	�
	$�
�����	
�$��#��
��
�/��	���

���	0�!����
=�
!�#$	
�0
	$���
�$��#��
%	�#�	$��
)�	$
	$�
��C������	
	�
�����	

�		��
��
	$�
3����
�0
���	0�!���
��
�!���
����#
�������&
���3���
�0
	$��

�����		��
)���
��;��
	�
��������
	$�
�������!�
	�
�����
0��)���
3�#�	�
���

��;�
	$���
���)�
;��)�
	�
�$�
<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
7

.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����
	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����!�



4�
	$�
������	�
��������
���	���
�����		��
)��
��	
3���#
$�!�
�	�!
��

����
�	
)��
�����	��	
	$�	
���3���
�0
	$��
���	���
�����		��
)���
#����
	$�

�����	��	�
	�
������	
��
0	��
3�#�	���
�����
��
������	
�0
	$��
���	0�!���




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	�%)��"	��#"��/	
	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��	��
	$�
���)�
�0
	$�
���	���
�����		��
��#�����#

	$�
 0�!!�)��#
 �������!��
 ���
 ����!���
 	�
 ��;�
 	$���
 ���)�
 ;��)�
 	�
 �$�

<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
���
.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����

	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����! 


��
 ��
�����
0��)���
��C��	��
	�	�!!��#
DA�����
��
��	��!��
��
4������/
�
�0

	$�
,00����?�
�����	�


���
 ��
�����
0��)���
����	�!
��������
	�
0��
���$����
��	
����	�!
�������#

�0
D��E����
0���
�������
��	�
������A
��
��	��!��
��
4������/
+
�0
	$�

�00����?�
�����	�


	

Page 42



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����
 �������
��
���
����












�


��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
4����	��	
��#�����#
������
�����

0��)���
���
����	�!
���$����#
��C��	��




*��3���
�����	��
	$�
�������$
�##��	��
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�





�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����:��
�	 �������,	"+#���	�$	6��,��$�	��%��	��#��		#�	6���	���	��"#�	
�#�%��	�����3�1	�+���2	������4	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
(��0����$����
���3���#��$���
7
:��	$���	���$���
%(�:&
1�!�!�0�
���	

$���
��
�/��	��#
���#!�
!����
$�!�
�0
	)�
��9����	
��	�
�����!
�)���
<���!

:�	��
.�������
%<:.�&
��
�$����
5��	���
;��)�
��
<���;�!�
�!���
<:.
���

1��	
2�	
<:.�
�$�
(�:
1�!�!�0�
���	
$���
��C��	��
��!����
0���
	$�
!�����

����
�������#
1��	
2�	
<:.
��
	�
���������
���;�
�������	��
)�	$
	$�
�$�!;

0���
�0
	$�
��	
��#�
���
	$�
�������
�!3
��	��
�!��
!�����
0���
	$�
�����!�

�	
	$�
3���
�0
	$�
��	�
�$���
��
�
���
���	$
	������	���
������
��
	$�
�/��	��#

!�����
,00�����
��������
�
�$��#�
�0
�������
����
���
�
��)
	)��	�
0���
����

!����
	�
	$�
(�:
1�!�!�0�
���	
�������#
<���;�!�
�!���
<:.
��!��




�$�
����#����	
�0
 	$�
1��	
2�	
<:.
)�!�
 �����	
3��;
 	�
 	$�
��	�
�����!

����
	$�
�	���	�
7
,���
������
4���	
*���#����	
	���
)$�
����#�
	$�

�	$��
 ��	�
 <���!
 :�	��
 .��������
 ,00�����
 ��������
 	�
 ���	��!!�
 �!���
 ��

��0����!
 0��	��	$
 �	
 1��	
 2�	
 �!��#
 	$�
 ��#�
 �0
 	$�
 �$�!;
 0���
 )$�!�	
 ��0�	�

���������	�
���
�������!
)��;�
)���
����	�;���
23!��
������
	�
	$�
<:.

)�!�
������
0���
	$�
!��3�
�	
	$�
	��
�0
<���;�!�
5�!!�



!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	�%)��"	��#"��/	

Page 43



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 




��
 4������
 	$�
�$��#�
�0
������
����
���
��)
 	)��	�
 0���
����
 !����
�0

<���;�!�
<���!
:�	��
.������
	�
	$�
(�:
1�!�!�0�
���	�



���
 =��	��	
 �00�����
 	�
 ����	�;�
 ���;
 ���������	�
 0��
 ���	����
 �3!��

������
 	�
 	$�
 �$�!;
 �!����
 �	
 1��	
 2�	
 ���
 �������
 ��	�3!�
 0	��

����#����	
���
������
	�
	$�
<���!
:�	��
.�������




��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
5���
�0
�	���	�
���
,���
������

��#�����#
	$�
��������
�$��#�
�0
	$�
1�!�!�0�
���	
!����
�	
1��	
2�	
<���!

:�	��
.�������




=�
��������
	�
���3���
C��	����
�00�����
���0�����
	$�	
	$���
)�!�
3�

������!
�����	
��
	$�
�������
�!3
���
�3!��
������
	�
	$�
��	��
4!	����	���

��	$)���
���
������
����	�
)�!�
3�
��	�3!��$��
	�
�����
	$�
��0�	�
�0
	$�

�3!���





�$�
�����		��
����!���
�������!�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


�������
�	 !�3��3�,	,�"�����<&#@���	#�,	,�3������	"�����)%�����/	
%�,#��	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


��
��������
	$�
��������
�������
0��
	$�
������
������	����		��#
�����
	�

�������
��
���	�
��
	$�
���#����
3���#
����
��
���9��	�
0����
0���

����!����
���	��3	����
���
	�
��	�
��!�	��
�����
3���#
����������



!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	�%)��"	��#"��/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 


Page 44



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��




��
 :�	�
 	$�
���#����
3���#
����
 	�
��!����
����!����
���	��3	���
 0����


���9��	��
 ���!���#
 �	��	�#��
 ������	���
 0���
 	$�
 0���	
 ����
 �0
 ����!���

�����������;��#J


���
 :�	�
 	$�
 ��������
 �������
 0��
 	$�
 ������
 ������	����		��#
 ����
 �0

����!����
���	��3	����
����!���
�����������;��#J


����
 :�	�
 	$�
���	��
���!����
�0
 ����!����
 ���	��3	����
����!���
 	�
���$

����
�����		��
0��
���
	$�
��	��)���
0��J


���
 :�	�
	$�
 �����
��!�	��#
	�
	$�
��
�0
����!����
���	��3	����
	$�	
)���

�����	!�
3���#
����������


	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
6�3��
8��)	$
2��9��	
*���#���

)$��$
$�#$!�#$	��
	$�	 




•
 ����!����
���	��3	�����0����
���9��	�
���
�����#
0��)����
%��/
��)

���
��������
!���!
0���!�	���
$���
3���
����!�	��
�����	!�&J


•
 	$�
��������
�������
0��
	$�
������
����
�0
������	����		��#
�����	��

!���!
�$����
%��	
!���	��
	�
���9��	�
����3!�
�0
�$��	�	���
��!�����&�
)$�!�	

��;��#
���
	$�	
�	
��
����#��3!�
���
��$����3!�
���
��
0���
���

������	��	
��
�����3!�
	�
�!!
�����J


•
 	$���
��
�
���	����#
�����	���	
���
����#�
	�
�	���#	$��
	$�
�����!?�

�������$
	�
��!������#
����!����
���	��3	����0����
���9��	�
�
	$�
0���

��
��
���9��	
��!������




*��3���
�0
	$�
�����		��
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
������	�
��
��������
	�
	$�

�����	�
0��
�00�����
	�
	�;�
��	�
�����	
��
0���!����#
	$�
��������




��
 �$�
 �������$
 	�
 	$�
 0���	
 ����
 �0
 ������	����		��#
 ����
 ����!����

���	��3	����

����!���
�����������;��#
$��
3���
������
3�
	$�
����
	�

�����
	$�
�����
C��;!�
��	$��
	$��
	$�
���9��	�
���	
�������


���
 �$�
 �����	
 �������
 )��
 ��������	���
 ���
 ����
 !��#�	����
 !��#�
 ���!�

���9��	�
$�����
	�
��$�����


����
 2�����	����		��#
 3����
 ��
 �����
 ���
 )��$��
 ����	�0���
 3�
 ����

����!	�	���
)��;�$���
$��
��	
3���
	$�
���	
$�!�0!
�������$
)�	$�	

�39��	���
�	�	��	���
���
��������
�0
�����


Page 45



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


���
 4�	��!�	�
 #����
 $��
 3�		��
 ������
 	�
 0����#
 )$�!�	
 $������	������$

#����
 ��#$	
 ����
 �	�
 5�)�����
 ���3���
 )���
 )���
 	$�	
 �	$������#

�00�����
	�
��;�
�����0��
�����#����	�
	�
����!	
��$
#����
��!�
��	

�
�
����!!�!
��������
�$�
��#�#����	
�������
������
	�
3�
����!�
���

	�
����!��
���3����



��
 �$�
���$����
������
	�
3�
��
��!������

���
 �$�
 ������	�	���
 �0
 	$�
 �������
 )��
 	$�#$	
 	�
 3�
 ����!�
 ����!���	��


���
��!�
3���0�	
0���
����!������
�������
��������	����

����
 4
0!�)
�$��	
	�
�/�!���
	$�
�������
)��
�#����
	�
3�
�
#���
�����

�����
 .������	�
 ������
 	�
 3�
 ;��	
 ��0�����
 ��#�����#
 	$�
�	�	�
 �0
 ���9��	�


	$�	
)���
������	����
��
	$�
0���	
����
���
�����	��	���
0��
	�;��#
0��)���

�	$��
���9��	
�����
	$�	
$��
��	
��	
3���
������	�����


�/�
 *���
 0!�/�3�!�	�
 )��
 ������
 �	
 ��
 ����
 !���!
 ��
 ���!���#
 	$�
 ��������

�������	�
�������
!���!!��


/�
 ��������
 )���
 ������
 �3�	
 	$�
 0����#
 �0
 ���9��	�
 ������
 ����

�����		��
 3��������
 �����
 	�
 ����!���
 �����������;��#�
 2������!�
 	�

�������
�����
��!�	��#
	�
	$�
:�)	�)�
������	�
+���!�����	
����	�!

8���	�
2��#�����
)���
)�!������


/��
 4
 C���
 )��
 ������
 )$�	$��
 �����	
 ��00��!	���
 ��!�	��#
 	�
 	$�
 2��;��?�

2����
�3!��
��	
���9��	
)�!�
$���
���
���	��!��
 0�������!
 ���!���	�����

�$�
 �00����
 �!���0���
 	$�	
 	$�
 ����!����
 ���	��3	����
 )$��$
 $��
 	�
 3�

����	
 3�
 ��/	
 ������
 $��
 3���
 ���!!���	��
 	�
 ���	$��
 ���9��	
 ���

	$���0���
 ����������
 +���!����
 ���	��3	����
 )�	$
 �/����
 ��	��
 ���

����	����
�!���!�
	�
�����
����!����
���	��3	����
$����#
	�
3�
��	�����




�$�
�����		��
����!���
	�
�����
����������	���
���
�0
	$�
�����	
	�
����

��
0�!!�)
%����	����!
)�����#
��
3�!�
���
����!����& 




���
 ��
�������

����
	$�
��������
�������
0��
	$�
������
������	����		��#


����
�0
����!����
���	��3	����
����!���
�����������;��#
%���
���	���

�
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	&





�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


���� ��
�	 A��%�	B����	!�#��#��	



Page 46



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


��
�������
	$�
����	�;��#
�0
�
0����3�!�	�
�	��
���
��	��	��!
�$�����!

����������	�
	�
	$�
������#�
������	�
�0
��
����
�0
�E�����
�0
����
8�����

	�
�!!����	�
���3!���
)�	$
�������!
�	�����#
��0���
)�	���




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	�%)��"	��#"��/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 

	
���#�"�#�	��"�&&��,#�����	


��
 �$�
 �/��	���
 �����!!���
 ��
 ����!	�	���
 )�	$
 	$�
 �$���
 ���
 ���;��	 ��

��;��
 	�
 �������
 	$�
 0����3�!�	�
 �	��
 ���
 �����������	
 �0
 	$��

��$����
 )$��$
 ��
 �!�����
 ���!���
 ��
 	$�
 �����!?�
 ����	�!
 7
 .�����

2��9��	
2!��
%2.��A�
�
�B��E&�



•
 �$�
 	�	�!
 ���	
 �0
 	$�
 ���9��	
 ��
 D
 �������
 0����
 0���
 ����!����

���	��3	����



•
 �$�
���#���#
������
���	�
�0
	$�
���9��	
���
D
�����
���
����
����

�
��
����
�������
0����
0���
�	���	�
���
,���
������
.������
���

.���)�!�
0���





���"%��&���	��"�&&��,#����� 



���
 �$�
 �/��	���
 �����!!��
 ��������
 	$�
 �����������	
 �0
 	$�
 ���9��	

���
���������	�
 ���!���#
	$�
�)���
�0
���	���	�
�0
���	���	���
0��
 	$�

������#�
����������	�
0��
����
8����


�39��	
	� 



•
 �$�
����������
�0
	$�
+����	��
�0
.�������
3���#
��#$	
�����
	�

���������#
�0
	$�
C�	�	���
��
	�����
��
�/�����
	$�
��	���	��

���	���	
��!��



•
 �$�
����������
0���
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
3���#
��#$	
3�0���

���������#
�0
	$�
��!�
�/�����
	$�
��	���	��
���	���	
3�
����
	$��

��F�






��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
2��9��	
+�!�����
���
����������	

*���#��
��#�����#
����
8����
+�����#�
=���������	��





Page 47



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����A
 �������
��
���
����












�A


�����!!��
"�#$	!��
��������
��
��������	
	�
	$�
0�������!
����������	����

��
0�!!�)
%����	����!
)�����#
��
3�!�
���
����!����& 





•
 �$�
�/��	���
�����!!���
 ��	"���%��#����	0��+	�+�	�+#��	#�,	
��@��	
��
 ��;��
 	�
 �������
 	$�
 0����3�!�	�
 �	��
 ���
 �����������	
 �0
 	$��

��$����
 )$��$
 ��
 �!�����
 ���!���
 ��
 	$�
 �����!?�
 ����	�!
 7
 .�����

2��9��	
2!��
%2.��A�
�
�B��E&�



*��3���
�#����
	$�
��������	�




=�
��������
	�
C��	����
0���
���3����
	$�
,00����
���0�����
	$�
0�!!�)��# 


��
 �$�
 ��������
 )��;�
 )�!�
 ��	
 �	��
 0!�����#
 3	
 )�!�
 �����
 	$�

#����
�������
C��;���


���
 4�3����!	��!
,00�����
)�!�
3�
����!	��
3	
��
�����	
��
	$�
	����
)��

��	�����	���


����
 �$���
)�!�
3�
�
����!
�����	
��
	$�
����
0��
����
���	$��
5�)����

!��#
	���
����!
�����	�
)�!�
3�
��00��	���


���
 +���������
)���
���#���#
)�	$
	$�
����������	
4#�����

��
 *��3���
)�!�����
	$�
�������	
�0
���#
	$�
����
��
�
����	�
0���!�	�
0��


!��#��
�������
�0
	$�
����
	$��
�����	!�
�����3!��





�$�
�����		��
����!���
�������!�
	�
�������
	$�
�������

����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����'��
�	 �#&)��,��	��"#�	��#�	<	��0#�,�	:;��	<	!�#$�	��"#�	��#�	$��	
����%��#����	


A�+�	���,	
��$�
*���
���������
	$�
�����		��
���
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
����	� 




•
 (���
 ������
 ������	�
 	$�	
 	$�
 !���
 �0
 	$�
 8����
 (�!	
 )�!�
 $���
 �

��#��0����	
�����	
��
)�!�!�0��


•
 �$�
���!�#���!
���$����
�0
	$�
����������	
)�!�
3�
!��	�


•
 �$�
��!�����
)�	$��
	$�
�!��
������
���	�����	����
>��
�/���!��
2�!���
G�

���
2�!���
�E
���
���	�����	���
��#�����#
�;�!��;��


Page 48



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


•
 +�	�
 0���
 	$�
 1�!�!�0�
 ���	
 ��#�����#
 ��	��
 8(
 �
 K
 A
 $���
 3���

�����#������


•
 �$���
��������
	�
3�
�
!��;
�0
��	��!��
��������
��#�����#
)�!�!�0��
��$

��
)$�	
�����	�
�0
3�	�
��$�3�	�
���
#����
�����




�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
���������
)�	$
	$�
0�!!�)��#
������	� 




•
 1$���
����������
��	��
)�!�
3�
�39��	
 	�
 0�	$��
 �����	�#�	���
3�0���

����!�����	
���������


•
 =����	�#�	��#
	$�
8����
(�!	
)��
�
$#�
����	�;��#
���
�!!
��	��
��
	$�

�!��
$��
3���
�����	�#�	���


•
 >���3��;
 $��
 3���
 #�	$����
 0���
 ����
 ��������
 ���
 �����
 ������

)���
!��	��
��
	$�
���	
	���!
������	
���
��������	�	����
���	���
�0
	$�

�����	�


•
 �$��#��
 $��
 3���
 ����
 ��
 	$�
 ��L�
 �0
 	$�
 ��	��
 3���#
 �����������

���
��
	$�
��	��!��
��	�#�	���
��C������	�
	�
���	��	
)�!�!�0�
$�3�	�	��


•
 �$�
�$����	��
�0
1��	?�
����)��
)�!�
3�
���	��	��
���
��3���
��

	$�	
��	�
$��
3���
�������




��$�
*���
�##��	��
	$�	
����
��������
)��
������
���
	$�	
	$�
!���
�0

�����)�
)�!�
$���
��
�����	
��
)�!�!�0��



�����	��#)����	�+#��	�$	�%��#�	��#,	����,���C�	����"�#����	
	
.�#��
���3	���
���������
	$�
�����		��
���
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
����	�
�3�	

	$�
�!�0	��
.���
����
 




•
 <���!
�������	�
$���
��������
�3�	
	�������	
������


•
 �$�
�������!�
)�!�
���
�
����!�����	
�!���	
��
!��#�
��
�(��


•
 �$���
 )���
 ��������
 	$�	
 !���!
 9�3�
 )�!�
 3�
 !��	
 ��
 	$�
 ����
 )��

����!����
��	�
$�#$
����
����	���	�
0��
<�����
����	����


•
 4�����
�����
!��;
�!���	��


•
 <������
!����	
0���
�(�
����
	�
3�
���!���
	�
	$��
��	��


•
 ��������	
 �	��	�#���
�0
3�	$
��	$
���3���#��$���
+��	���	
�����!
���

	$�
 ���3���#��$���
 ���	�
 �����!
 ���
 ���������	��#
 ���
 !��;��#
 ��

��	���
�!����




�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
���������
)�	$
	$�
0�!!�)��#
������	� 




•
 �$���
��
�
��C������	
	�
����	�0�
���
���	
����!�����	
�����
���
	$��

$��
!��
	�
�
�����������	
�0
	$��
��	�
	�
��;�
	$�
3��	
��
�0
	$�
������


Page 49



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����E
 �������
��
���
����












�E


•
 4
)����
�!��
)�!�
3�
������
0��
	$�
!��#
	���
0	��
�0
	$�
�����


•
 �$�
����
)�!�
3�
����!����
)�	$
�
���!����	���
�!�����#
������	�

���	��
�!��
���
�
	�������	
�	��
	�
�����
�
C�!�	�
����!�����	�




.�#��
���3	���
�	�	��
	$�	
�������	�
)���
��	
�������
	�
	$�
����!�����	
�0

	$�
��	�
3	
	$�	
	$���
)���
��������
�3�	
	$�
��L�
���
���!�
�0
	$�
�������!��



��%�"�����	
0#����	
	
�����!!��
�)�����
������	��
	$�	
���3���#�
1�	��
���
����
	$�
��9��

)�	��
����
	$�	
�������
8(�
�	
	$�
����!����?�
�/������
�$�
�!��
C��	�����

)$�	
$��
$�������
	�
�	$��
<���!
4	$���	���
)$�
$��
0��!��
	�
���	
����	�0���

����!�����	
	��#�	��



�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
����������
�$�
:22>
���
�/��������
0���

�!��)$���
)��
�!���
	$�	
�����
�00��	
�$�!�
3�
����
3�
�����!�
	�
���	

����	�0���
�����
����	
)��;��#
)�	$
���#$3����#
�	$���	���
$��
����	�0���
	$�

��3��
�0
$����
���
9�3�
�������
�$�
<���!
2!��
$��
������	��	��
��

���3�!�	�
	�
0!!�
���	
	$�
����
)�	$��
	$�
�/��	��#
����#����3�!	
!���	����
���

$��
�������	�	��
�
�����)
�0
	$�
8����
(�!	�



�$�
���;
0��
	$�
�����!
��
0��!��
	�
������
�
�!��
	�
���	
�����
)��
	$�	
	$��

��!�
!���
	�
	$�
�!��
3���#
0���
	�
3�
������
�$��
��!�
���!	
��

���������
3���#
	�;��
�	
�0
��	�
�����!
���	��!
���
��!�
���!	
��

����!�	���
����!�����	
�!���
�����#
0��)����

	
��%�"�����	���)���	
	
�����!!��
5��3��	
���������
	$�
�����		��
���
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
����	� 




•
 �	�	���
4���
���	
��������
	�
3�
�
�����
!�	�
����	���
	�
	$�
�!��
�0
�

0�	$��
A��
$�����


•
 �$��
)��
�
!��#�
��	��
�!���
	�
	$�
���!)��
���
�
���
��
$����#
��3���

)��
�������


•
 2��;��#
������	�
��
�	���	�
��
��!����#�
)�!�
3�
!��	�


•
 1$�!�
 ����#�����#
 	$�
 ����
 	�
 ����!��
 	$�
 ��	��
 	$���
 �������
 	�
 3�
 �

!��;
�0
!���!
����!	�	����


•
 4�
4���
4�	���
2!��
)��
�������


•
 +���!�����
)�!!
��;�
0�!��
���������


•
 �$��
��
�
$�#$
��!�
��	�
���
	$���
)�!�
3�
�������
	�
��������
�����	��




Page 50



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����G
 �������
��
���
����












�G


�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
���������
���
��;��)!��#��
	$�	
	$�

	���0�����
0��
	$�
�!��
$��
3���
	�#$	�
5�)�����
	$�
��	�
$��
3���
����0!!�

�����������
:�	
�!!
���	�
�0
	$�
��	�
)�!�
3�
��	�3!�
0��
�������	��!
��
3	
	$�

��	�
�00����
��	��	��!�
�$�
��	�
��
��00����	
0���
�(�
���
)�!�
3�����
�
���	

�0
�/��	��#
������	����
<������
$��
3���
!����	
���
�
���
)�!�
3�
��	�



��%�"�����	D������	
	
�����!!��
(��	!��
���������
	$�
�����		��
���
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
����	� 

	

•
 �$�
3����������	�
�0
��	��
8(�
���
8(�
�������
���	��	����


•
 <���!
�������	�
)���
�#����	
	$�
����!�����	�


•
 �$�
�����	
��
)�!�!�0�
$��
3���
������	���	���


•
 1$�
$��
��	��
3���
����/������
9�	
	�
0�!!
	$�
�$��	0�!!
�0
��3���M



�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
����������
,00�����
)$�
$��
�/������
	$�

�!��
)���
���0��	�3!�
)�	$
	$�
�������!��
��������
$��
3���
	�;��
��	�

�����	
���
0�	$��
�����
)��;
)��
�!������


	
�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
�����	
���������
	$�
��)
���0	
���3���#�
<���!
2!���




�$�
+���!�����	
2!��
���	���
�3������		��
����������
	$�
���0	
<���!

2!��
��
��
*���
�$�
������
�0
	$�
�����	
)��
	�
������	
	$�
����!�	�

�������
�0
	$�
2!��
��
�����	!�
���0	���
���!���#
����������
���
	$�
�$��#��

��C��	��
3�
	$�
+���!�����	
2!��
���	���
�3������		���




�$�
�����	
�����������
	$�	
	$�
2!��
�$�!�
3�
����������
3�
	$�

����������	
���	���
�����		��
���
	$��
3�
>!!
�����!�




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	

�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!��� 





Page 51



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����B
 �������
��
���
����












�B


��
 ��
�#���
 	$�
���0	
���3���#�
<���!
2!��
���A
�39��	
 	�
���
�$��#��

�����������
3�
����������	
���	���
�����		��
��
�����
���
>!!

�����!
 ��
 �G
���
 %���!���#
 	$�
����	���
�0
 	$�
 ���3���#��$���
 ���

2�	��3���#$
 *��������
 �0
 ��������	���
 �������$
 0��
 �!��
 ��;��#

����
	$�
�	�
	�
��������	�
%4������/
5
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	&&J



���
 ��
���������
	�
>!!
�����!
	$�	
	$�
2!��
��
��������
0��
	$�
�������

�0
 �3!���	���
 ����
 .�#!�	����
 ��
 ���
 ��
 �0
 	$�
 ��)�
 ���
 ���	��

2!�����#
%<���!
2!�����#&
%��#!���&
.�#!�	����
�����



����
 ��
 �#���
 	$�	
 ���
 ��������	�
 ���
 ���	��#
 �$��#��
 	$�	
 ����
 	�
 3�

����
 	�
 	$�
 ���0	
 <���!
 2!��
 %���
 �������	��
 ��	����3�!�	�
 4�������!

���
 �	$��
 ����������&
 �	
 	�
 >!!
 �����!
 3�
 �#����
 3�
 	$�
 �/��	���

�����!!��
 ��
 ����!	�	���
 )�	$
 	$�
 �$���
 ���
 ���;��������
 �0

+���!�����	
2!��
���	���
�3������		���



	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������

��#�����#
���3���#�
<���!
2!��
K
��)���
���A�
�$�
�����		��
����������

	$�
�!��
���	���
3�
���	����




�"����	:	


+���3$!�
<�)����
5���
�0
��������	
7
=�0���	��	���
���
������
���	$�

��������	
���
=�0���	��	��
�	��	�#�
*���#��
3�	$
0���
���3���#��$���

���	�
�����!
)���
������	
���
#���
��
���	�
��
	$�
��������	
�	��	�#��

�$�
��	�
�����!
)�!�
3�
����	��
	�
�������
	�
	$�
����!	�	����
*��3���

��	��
	$�	
	$�
��!�����
�0

	$�
<���!
2!��
)��
��������	
��
	$�
��������	

�	��	�#��




��
 =0
3�!���#
��
�����		��
��
	$�
8����
(�!	
	$��
)�!�
��	
�
��������	
���

�	$���
)�!�
���;
	�
��
	$�
�����


���
 <���
�0
8����
(�!	
)�!�
���!	
��
	$�
��������	
!���
�0
�
�����
�0
0���

�����	����
 4����#
 	�/	
 	�
 ��0!��	
 	$�
 ��
 �0
 8����
 (�!	
 !���
 0��

�#���!	��!
������
)��
�#�����





�"����	�	
	

Page 52



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


��
 �$�
 ��������
 ��
 ��3��
 0��
 	$�
 �	�	���
 ����
 )��
 C��	������
 ,00�����

���0�����
 	$�	
 	$�
�!��
$��
���!���
���
 	$�
��	�
$��
3���
�����)��
 ��

!���
)�	$
 ����	�0���
�����
���
 ����	�0���
��
��
�00�����	
��
�0
 !����
�$�

��3��
�0
��	�
�##��	��
��!�
�$��#��





�"����	(	


,00�����
���0�����
	$�	
)��;
$��
3���
������������
	�
!��;
��	�
	$�

400����3!�
5����#
	$���$�!���
>�����#�
)�!�
3�
�����	��
	�
>!!
�����!
��

	$�
�G
����




�"����	-	
	

��
 �$�
�����		��
���
��	
������
	�!!
3�!���#�
3	
)�!�����
	$�
��!�����
��

�!���
	�
�����
$�#$
C�!�	�
����!�����	�
���
�����	����


���
 =�
 ��������
 	�
 C��	�����
 �00�����
 ���0�����
 	$�	
 2�!���
 �E
 ��	�
 �	

���	����
 )$��$
 ��!�
 �����	
 ��
 ��	�����#
 	$�
 ����!�����	
 �0
 #�	��

������	����


����
 ��������
 )���
 �/�������
 	$�	
 	$�
 )�����#
 ��#�����#
 ����
 ������
 ��

2�!���
EG
��������
	�
$���
�$��#��
���
��
!��#��
��C����
��	�#�	���
��

	$�
����
�����
*��3���
��#$	
���0����	���
	$�	
	$�
)�����#
)�!�
3�

�������
	�
��0!��	
	$�
����
	�
���������
����
������
��
!���!
	$�
�����



���
 *��3���
��C��	��
��
����	���
	�
4������/
�
���	���
G
�0
 	$�
�!��
	�

����	�0�
����
������
��
�
1���
3�
1���
3�����





�"����	9	



��
 �$�
 �����		��
 ��;��
 0��
 ����	����!
 )�����#
 	�
 2�!���
 G�
 ��#�����#

����	�
0���!�	����


���
 =	
)��
��	��
 	$�	
3������
 �$��#��
$��
���������
�������
��������

��#�����#
	$�
�	�	�
�0
	$�
���3���#�
<�����
2��;
��
�
<���!
���	���


����
 4����#
�
����	���
 �	�	����	
 ��#�����#
��	����3!�
 	�������	
 ��	����
 0��

��������
�����
)��
�##��	���


���
 �$�
 �����		��
 ��������
 	$�
 ����	�
 �0
 !���	��#
 ���;��#
������
 ��
 ��)

����!�����	
 ���
 �����3!�
 �������!!
 ���3!���
 	$��
 �����
 �!��)$����

�����!!��
 1���
 ���0�����
 	$�	
 	$���
 $��
 3���
 �
 ��!�3���	�
 ��!���
 	�

�������#�
���
��
���
�����
	$�	
	$�
��)
�!��
��
�!�#$	!�
����
��!�/��

��
	$��
����
	$��
	$�
�!�
�!���




�$�
����	�
�0
�������	��!
����!�����	�
)�	$
��
���;��#
)���
���������

������
���	$
�	�	��
	$�	
	$�
���	�
�����!
��������	
�	��	�#�
)�!�

�/�����
	$��
�����



Page 53



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��




�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����(��
�	 :;�:���	��3��%�	#�,	�#���#�	�%��%��1	�#��2	���0#�,�	#�,	

����$�"#��	�#��#�"��	<	��#�����	#�,	
%��#��#)��	��#������	����$����	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$��
�����	
������	��
�
������
�0
	$�
�������
�		��
����	���
%��	�!

������
���
�/�����	��&
0��
��������
)�	$��
	$�
2!�����#
7
�!���	�
�$��#�

���	0�!���
��������
	�
	$�
0���!
3�#�	
0��
	$�
�����
�$�
����	���
0��
������

���
����	�!
)��
�����	��
���
���������
0���
3�#�	�
)���
$�#$!�#$	���

	�#�	$��
)�	$
�/�!���	�����
.�C��	�
	�
�����
0��)���
0����#
������#
0���

���	���
3�#�	
����������
��	�
������A
)���
����	�0����




=	
)��
��	��
	$�	
�		��
�����	�
3���#
������	��
��
	$��
�����		��
���!�
��0!��	

	$�
�����	��#
�	��	���
��
�!���
�����
	�
	$�
�����	
�$��#��
��
�/��	���

���	0�!����
=�
!�#$	
�0
	$���
�$��#��
%	�#�	$��
)�	$
	$�
��C������	
	�
�����	

�		��
��
	$�
3����
�0
���	0�!���
��
�!���
����#
�������&
���3���
�0
	$��

�����		��
���
��;��
	�
��������
	$�
�������!�
	�
�����
0��)���
3�#�	�
���

��;�
	$���
���)�
;��)�
	�
�$�
<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
7

.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����
	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����!�







!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	
	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��	��
	$�
���)�
�0
	$�
���	���
�����		��
��#�����#

	$�
 0�!!�)��#
 �������!��
 ���
 ����!���
 	�
 ��;�
 	$���
 ���)�
 ;��)�
 	�
 �$�

<������
0��
���������	���
�	
�	��	�#�
���
.�������
���	���
�����		��
�����

	�
$��
����������	����
	�
�����! 




��
 ��
�����
0��)���
DA��B��
�0
������
3�#�	�
0���
�������
��	�
������A�

��
��	��!��
��
4������/
�
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�





���
 ��
�����
0��)���
����	�!
��������
	�
0��
���$����
��	
����	�!
�������#


�0
D�E�����
0���
�������
��	�
������A�
��
��	��!��
��
4������/
+
�0
	$�

,00����?�
�����	�



Page 54



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��




	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
4����	��	
��#�����#
������

.�����
���
����	�!
,	���
�����
>��)����
���
��#��0����	
'���������




*��3���
�/�������
��	��0��	���
)�	$
	$�
������	�
��	��
��
	$�
�����	�





�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����-��
�	 ���%#�	���&#��	�+#���	
��#���2E	�#�)��	�#�#��&���	��#�	
#�,	���&#��	�+#���	�%�,	
�#�%�	������	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	





�$�
�����	
��������
��
���	�
��
���#����
����#
�������
��
��	����
	�

��!����
	$�
	$���
�	��	�#��
�39��	����
�0
	$�
��	�
�����!?�
�����	
�!���	�

�$��#�
�	��	�#��
)$��$
�������
�
0���
����
������
0���
��������E�
4�
���	
�0

	$���
	$�
�����	
���!���
��
���	�
��
���#����
��
���!����	��#
	$�
�����!?�

���3��
*���#����	
2!��
��������E�
�$�
2!��
��	�
����
	$�
�	��	�#�
���

�!���
�
;��
��!�
��
��$�����#
�	�
0���	
�	��	�#��
�39��	����
)$��$
��
	�
�����

���3��
���������
0���
	$�
��	�
�����!?�
��	�	�
���
�����	�����




�$�
�����	
�!��
��������
��
���	�
��
	$�
�����	
����	���
�0
	$�
�!���	�

�$��#�
>���
)$��$
��������
�����	
	�
���9��	�
	$�	
$�!�
	�
�����
	$�

�����!?�
�)�
���3��
���������
������
����#�
�!���	�
�$��#�
���;�
	�

�����!
�	�00
���
������	��




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 


Page 55



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��




��
 :�	�
	$�
���#����
��$�����
����#
�������
��
���!����	��#
	$�
�!���	�


�$��#�
�	��	�#�
���
	$�
���3��
*���#����	
2!���


���
 :�	�
	$�
�!���	�
�$��#�
>��
�	�	�
.����	�




��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
�����	
0���
	$�
�	��	�#�
���
2��	����$���
*���#��

��#�����#
	$�
4���!
�!���	�
�$��#�
�	��	�#��






*��3���
�/�������
�������
	$�	
	$�
��	�
��	�����	���
0�#���
���
��	

�������
�!���	�
��
���
�����#
�����





=�
��������
	�
C��	�����
�	
)��
���0�����
	$�	
	$�
�����!
���
��
����������

)�	$
���3���#�
6�������	�
�3�	
��)
���3��
����	���
	��$��!�#���
���

��	����
0��
	$�
0	���





�$�
�����		��
����!���
3�
�������!�
	�
�������
	$�
����������	�����



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��




����9��
�	 D���$���	������	��	����"��	 	!���"�����	#�,	"����,��#����	�$	
�+���	%��	��	�#&)��,��	


�%�����	�#&�	?	�""��,�#	����,���	
	
.���!!
����
���������
	$�
�����		��
���
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
����	� 


•
 �$�
�������	�
�0
4�������
)�!�
)�!����
	$�
!���	��
��
�0
4�	��!�
A
0��

	$�
0�!!�)��#
�������
K


Page 56



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


•
 4�������
0!!�
���	�
	$�
��C������	�
�0
��
�	
��
�/���	����!
���

�����		��
 ����!�����	
 ��#$	�
 )�!�
 3�
 ��	�����	�!
 	�
 	$�

��$����


•
 �$�
��	�
��
��!0����	������


•
 �$�
 ���	��!
 )��;
 $��
 �!�����
 3���
 ����
 ���
 	$�
 �������!�
 �0

���	��	���
��
)�!������


•
 �$�
����	����!
#������
)�!�
$�!�
�������	
	�
����!��


•
 �$�
�������	�
�0
4�������
��C��	
	$�	
��
��	
��)
3�0���
	$�
��	�#��	�
�0

	$�
����#�
��
!��	�




�#����	$��	!�"�����/	





�$�
�����!
$��
	$�
��	���
	�
��
4�	��!�
A
+����	����
�
�
	��!
����!�3!�
	�
<���!

2!�����#
4	$���	���
��
���������#
	�
	$�
���	��!��
�����
�0
	$���
�����
4�

4�	��!�
A
+����	���
)�	$���)�
���	���
2����		��
+���!�����	
��#$	�
���
	$�

�00��	
��
	�
��C���
�
�!�����#
���!���	���
0��
����!�����	
	$�	
)�!�
��	

�	$��)���
����
����
�$��
�����	
��������
	$�
��	��	��!
��
�0
4�	��!�
A

+����	����
��
�	
���!���
	�
�3!��
$����J
	�
��������	���
�����J
	�
4�������J

���
����
#�����!!��
	�
(�!���#�
�0
<���!
=�	����	�




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!��� 




��
 �$�	
	$�
��$���
�0
��!�#�	���
��
�������
	�
���3!�
	$�
5���
�0

2!�����#
%��
����!	�	���
)�	$
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
2!�����#
7

�!���	�
�$��#��
���
�$���
���
���;��&
	�
��;�
4�	��!�
A
+����	����

��

������	
�0
�3!��
$����
���
(<=?�%<���!
5���	�#�
4���	�&
)$���

��������
�##��	�
��#��0����	
$���
��
�����3!�
	$��#$
	$�
�/������
�0

�����		��
����!�����	
��#$	��




���
 �$�	
	$�
��	�
�����!
��������	���
	���?�
2�����	���
��������	���


���#�����
���!��
�
�$����
���#�����
%���
���
����
�	��	��#
���	

������A&
�0
��	������#
0������
4�	��!�
A
+����	����
0��
��������	���

4����
)$���
����	��
��������!�
$���
���������
$���
	�
	$���
����-�

�$����	��
��
����������
��
)$���
�����0��
��C��	�
���
3��#$	
	�
	$�

�		��	���
�0
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
2!�����#
7
�!���	�
�$��#��




����
 �$�	
�00�����
���0	
��
4�	��!�
A
+����	���
0��
	$�
4�������
��	�	�
���
��


�����������#
����!	�	���
�������
0��
	$�
���������	���
�0
�
0	��

����������	�!
���	���
�����		���





��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		

Page 57



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����A
 �������
��
���
����












�A


4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
�$�
�����		��
��������
�
3���0��#
�����	
0���
	$�
2�������!
��������	���
���

+���#�
,00����
��#�����#
4�	��!�
A
+����	����
���
���������	���
�0
	$���
6��
��

���3���#��




�$�
�����		��
����
	$�
0�!!�)��#
������	�
��
��������
	�
	$�
�����	�


��
 ��������
 )���
 ������
 �3�	
 	$�
 )�����#
 �0
 	$�
 ����������	�����

.���������	���
�&
���
��	
 ���!��
�$��#�
�0
���
����������	���
3&

)��
 ��#�
 ���
 !����
 ��	��!
 ���
 ����������	���
 �&
 )��
 C��	�����

��#�����#
$�)
)�!!
�	
��	
	$�
���	�����


���
 ��������
 )���
 ������
 �3�	
 	$�
 !���!
 �0
 ����!	�	���
 �0
 4�������

�������	��
	$�
��#���
�0
�����	
������
�!!
	����
	����
���
0	��
�3�!�	�

�0
	$�
��	�
	�
���!��
���
����!���


����
 4�	��!�
A
)��
�
)���
���#��#
!�#�!
	��!
���
��������
)���
�/�������
	$�	

	$�
�����	
����������	����
)���
��	
�����0��
���#$�




�$�
5���
�0
2!�����#
��������
�#����
	$�	
	$��
)��
��)
	����	���
���
	$�	
	$�

������
�	
	$��
�	�#�
)��
	�
#�	
�
�	���
0���
���3���
��
�����
	�
	�;�
	$�

���9��	
0��)����



*��3���
��������
	$�
���	��	���
�00����
	�
23!��
$����
���
)$���
	$��
��	

��
	$�
!�#�!
0����)��;�
,	����
�
��������	���
����
23!��
5����
)���

�!����3!��
�����!!��
1���
�	�	��
	$�	�
)$�!�
�
�$��#�
�0
��
���
��	
��#�	�

	$�
���	��	���
�0
�
23!��
5���
!�		!�
��!�
3�
����
����
�
3�!���#
$��
3���

����!��$���



�$�
�$���
����	��
	$�
��������	�	����
0���
4�������
5����#
	�
������	�
=��

����
�	�	��
	$�	
$�
��!�
�������
��������
	$�	
�������	�
������
	$�
	����

	����
)���
�����	���
�0
	$�
�������$
�##��	���
.������	�
)�!�
)�!����
�

����
	�
	$�
��/	
�	�#�
�0
	$�
����!	�	���
��������



�$�
�����		��
����!���
	�
�����
����������	���
���
3&
�0
	$�
,00����?�

�����	
	�
����
��
0�!!�)�
%����	����!
)�����#
��
3�!�
���
����!���� 



�+#�	#	������	)�	)��%�+�	��	�+�	��&&�����
��
���	
�0
	$�
��	�
�����!

��������	���
	���?�
2�����	���
��������	���
���#������
�
�$����

���#�����
%���
���
����
�	��	��#
���	
������A&
�0
0������
4�	��!�
A


Page 58



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


+����	����
0��
��������	���
4����
3�
��	������
)$���
����	��
��������!�

$���
���������
$���
	�
	$���
����-�
�$����	��
��
����������
��
)$���

�����0��
��C��	�
���
3��#$	
	�
	$�
�		��	���
�0
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
0��

2!�����#
7
�!���	�
�$��#��



�$�
�����		��
����!���
�������!�
	�
�������
	$�
0�!!�)��#

����������	���� 




��
 �$�	
	$�
��$���
�0
��!�#�	���
��
�������
	�
���3!�
	$�
5���
�0

2!�����#
%��
����!	�	���
)�	$
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
2!�����#
7

�!���	�
�$��#��
���
�$���
���
���;��&
	�
��;�
4�	��!�
A
+����	����

��

������	
�0
�3!��
$����
���
(<=?�%<���!
5���	�#�
4���	�&
)$���

��������
�##��	�
��#��0����	
$���
��
�����3!�
	$��#$
	$�
�/������
�0

�����		��
����!�����	
��#$	��




���
 �$�	
�00�����
���0	
��
4�	��!�
A
+����	���
0��
	$�
4�������
��	�	�
���
��


�����������#
����!	�	���
�������
0��
	$�
���������	���
�0
�
0	��

����������	�!
���	���
�����		���





�$�
�����		��
����!���
A
��	��
	�
�
	�
�������
	$�
0�!!�)��#
�������

����������	��� 




•
 �$�	
 �
 �����	
 3�
 3��#$	
 	�
 	$�
 �����		��
 ��
 ���	
 �0
 	$�
 ��	�
 �����!

��������	���
 	���?�
 2�����	���
 ��������	���
 ���#������
 �
 �$����

���#�����
 %���
 ���
 ����
 �	��	��#
 ���	
 ������A&
 �0
 0������
 4�	��!�
 A

+����	����
 0��
 ��������	���
 4����
 3�
 ��	������
 )$���
 ����	��

��������!�
 $���
 ���������
 $���
 	�
 	$���
 ����-�
 �$����	��
 ��

����������
��
)$���
�����0��
��C��	�
���
3��#$	
	�
	$�
�		��	���
�0
	$�

�/��	���
�����!!��
0��
2!�����#
7
�!���	�
�$��#��




�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


����=��
�	 B�#$���	6���	�#�	�#�@	��$%�)��+&���	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
8��0	��
1��	
���
���;
��
	$�
���!!
�!	�
�	����
��/	
	�
	$�
8��0	��
���	��

���
��
��������
0���
*����
����)���





Page 59



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����E
 �������
��
���
����












�E


:�
�����	��
��
�	��	��!
����	������
$��
	�;��
�!���
)�	$��
	$�
���
���;

�����
�	
)��
3�!	
��
	$�
���!�
��B��
���
�	
��
	$���0���
�$�)��#
�	�
�#��




����
 �0
 	$�
 )��;
 ��
 ��C����
 	�
 $�!�
 ���	��	
 	$�
 3�!���#
 �	��	��J
 	$�

���������
 ��
 	�
 �������
 �����	����
 0��
 ��
 ��	������
 =	
 ��
 ��
 ��	��	���
 	$�	

��������#
 	$�
 ����������	
 )�!!
 ��������
 	$�
 ������	���
 �0
 �3!��
 ��0�	�
 ���

���!	
��
��������
��	����
��	��0��	����



!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 



���#�"�#�	��"�&&��,#�����	K



��
 4�������
	$�
�����������	
�0
	$��
��$����
)$��$
��
�!�����
���!���

��
	$�
�����!?�
����	�!
7
.�����
2��9��	
2!��
%�����&�



•
 �$�
	�	�!
���	
�0
	$�
���9��	
��
�
	�
D�B�����
����
�
�0 



D�������
0����
0���
���
���;�
�	��	��!
.7.





 
 
 DA�����
0���
���
���;
�C�����	
.7.
���



D������
0���
	$�
�!���	�
�$��#�
0��





•
 �$��
 �!���	�
 �$��#�
 0����#
 $��
 3���
 ���!���
 ��
 	$�
 ���3��

����#����	
2!��
)$��$
$��
3���
��������
3�
����������	
���	���

�����		��
��
���
����



•
 4
������	���
�0
	$��
���9��	
)�!!
���	��3	�
	�
������#
�!��	����	�
���	�

��
	�
���	�!!��#
����#�
�����#
<�+
!�#$	��



•
 =��	�!!�	���
 �0
 ���'
 �������
 )�!!
 $�!�
 �������
 ��	����
 ��0�	�
 3	

)�!!
 ����
 ��
 ����!
 ����	����#
 0��
 �0
 �����/���	�!�
 DG�����
 4

������	�
3��
)�!!
3�
����
	�


�����
 	$���
 ���	�
 ��
 	$�
 3�#�	
 �����
 ���'
 �������
 )�!!
 ��	
 3�

���	�!!��
�	�!
�0	��
0����#
0��
����	����#
$��
3���
��������





���"%��&���	��"�&&��,#����� 



���
 4�������
 	$�
 �������#
 �	
 ���
 ����!�	���
 �0
 	$�
 ���������	
 0��
 �

��0�3��$���	
�0
8��0	��
1��	
���
���;�





�39��	
	� 



•
 �$�
����������
�0
	$�
+����	��
�0
.�������
3���#
��#$	
�����
	�

���������#
 �0
 	$�
C�	�	���
 ��
 	�����
 ��
 �/�����
 	$�
��	���	��

���	���	�



•
 �$�
����������
0���
	$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
3���#
��#$	
3�0���

���������#
 �0
 	$�
 ��!�
 �/�����
 	$�
 ��	���	��
 ���	���	
 3�
 ����

	$��
��F�


Page 60



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����G
 �������
��
���
����












�G




��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
:�	
���!���3!�
��
��
���
���	���
)��
��C��	���



�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����



���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��


���:;��
�	 ������3#����	���#	����#��#��	$��	D���@�#�,�	�3��%�1	

�%�+#"��	#�,	��0�+#&	���$�	������3#����	���#�	


�#����	$��	!�"�����/	


�$�
��	�
�����!
$��
��
�3!�#�	���
����
���	���
E�
�0
	$�
2!�����#
%<��	��

(�!���#�
���
��������	���
4����&
4�	
����
	�
���������!!�
�����)
�	�

��������	���
4���
����#��	����
���
3���������
	�
��������
���
��)
������

���
����
���	���
G�
�0
	$�
4�	
	�
0���!�	�
���
�3!��$
�������!�
0��
	$�

��������	���
���
��$�������	
�0
	$���
������



(���;!����
4����

���!���
	$��
�����
	$�
�����!
������	��
����!	��	�
)$�
$���
���0	��
��

4�������!
�0
	$�
(���;!����
4����
��������	���
4����
�$�
����!	��	�

�������
��
�/	������
	�
	$�
3������
�0
	$�
��������	���
4���
�	
	$�
����

	����
�$��
���0	
4�������!
��������
��
�
	�
��	�
���������	
�0
	$�
)���
	$�	

	$�
(���;!����
4����
����
���	�
�����	
��	����!
���	����
��
	����
�0
������!

���$�	��	��!
���
$��	����
��	����	
0��
��������	���
4���
����#��	����
���
��

����	���
����!���
	$�	
���	����
�����	!�
�	����
	$�
�/��	��#
3������
���

�!��
)��	$�
�0
���!�����



4
������
�0
�3!��
����!	�	���
)��
$�!�
3�	)���
���
4���!
���
��	$
4���!
�����

�$�
3����
��������
�0
�������
)��
��
0����
�0
	$�
�������!�
��
�	!����
��

	$�
���0	
4�������!�





��	$����
��������	���
4���


=�
�����
����!	��	�
���0	��
��
4�������!
�0
	$�
��	$����
��������	���
4����

�$�
��	$����
��������	���
4���
)��
����#��	��
��
���B�
�$��
���0	


Page 61



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 �����B
 �������
��
���
����












�B


4�������!
��������
��������
	�
�!!�	��	�
	$�	
	$�
��	$����
��������	���
4���

�	�!!
���	�
�����	
��	����!
���	����
��
	����
�0
������!
���$�	��	��!
���
$��	����

��	����	
0��
��������	���
4���
����#��	����



4
������
�0
�3!��
����!	�	���
)��
$�!�
3�	)���
���
���
��	$
4���!
�����
�$���

$���
��!�
3���
�
���������
	�
	$�
����!	�	����
�����3!�
3�����
	$���
���
��

�������!�
	�
�!	��
	$�
3�������
�$���
���������
$���
3���
���������
��

4������/
�
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�




:�)�$��
���0	
��������	���
4���

=�
�����
����!	��	�
���0	��
��
4�������!
�0
	$�
:�)�$��
���0	
��������	���

4����
�$�
:�)�$��
���0	
��������	���
4���
)��
����#��	��
��
���B�
�$��

���0	
4�������!
��������
��������
	�
�!!�	��	�
	$�	
	$�
:�)�$��
���0	

��������	���
4���
�	�!!
���	�
�����	
��	����!
���	����
��
	����
�0
������!

���$�	��	��!
���
$��	����
��	����	
0��
��������	���
4���
����#��	����



4
������
�0
�3!��
����!	�	���
)��
$�!�
3�	)���
���
���
��	$
4���!
�����
�$���

$���
��!�
3���
�
���������
	�
	$�
����!	�	����
�����3!�
3�����
	$���
���
��

�������!�
	�
�!	��
	$�
3�������
�$���
���������
$���
3���
���������
��

4������/
�
�0
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�




!�"�����	�$	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	$��	��#�����	#�,	���&#��	�+#���/	
�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
����!���
	� 





��
 4������
	$�
4�������!
�0
	$�
(���;!����
4����
��������	���
4���

)$��$
)��
�		��$��
��
��
4������/
	�
	$�
,00����?�
�����	
���
	�
�#���

	$�
�������
��������	���
4���
3�������



���
 4#���
	$�
���0	
4�������!
�0
	$�
��	$����
��������	���
4���
)$��$
)��

�		��$��
��
4������/
	�
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�



����
 4#���
	$�
���0	
4�������!
�0
	$�
:�)�$��
���0	
��������	���
4���

)$��$
)��
�		��$��
��
��
4������/
	�
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�



	
��#���	$��	�+�	!�"�����/		
4�
��	
�	
��
	$�
,00����?�
�����	�	
	
��2	������#��3�	�������	�����,���,	#�,	��.�"��,/		
:�	
���!���3!��

	

"�%���2	�����,��#�����/		
:�	
���!���3!�
��
���
���	���
)��
��	
��C��	���





�$�
�/��	���
�����!!��
��������
	$�
����������	����




Page 62



����������	
���	���
�����		��
 ������
 �������
��
���
����












��


���$��"��	�$	��������	,�"�#��,	)2	�+�	�5�"%��3�	��%�"�����	7#�,	#�2	
,������#�����	��#���,8	
:�	
���!���3!��








�$�
���	��#
�����
�	
����
��










�����	



Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

Record of Executive Decision  

 

Introduction of Dog Control Orders  

 

Decision of:  Councillor Jean Swanson, Executive Councillor for Environmental and 
Waste Services 

 

Reference: 13/ENV/EW1 

 

Date of decision:  5TH July 2013     Recorded on: 5th July 2013 

 

Decision Type:  Non Key 
 
Matters for Decision:   
To approve the creation of four Dog Control Orders under the Clean Neighbourhoods 
and Environment Act 2005:  
 

• The Dogs Fouling of Land (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dog Exclusion (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dogs on Leads (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dogs on Lead by Direction (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 
 

The Council proposes to use these Orders to introduce greater control of dogs in 
particular areas, promote responsible behaviour through the ability to ask that dogs 
are placed on a lead when out of control or exclude dogs from some sensitive areas.   
 
Why the decision had to be made (and any alternative options):   
 
The original decision to approve a schedule of Dog Control Orders for public 
consultation and representations was approved at Environment Scrutiny committee 
on 9 October 2012. It was also agreed that the finalised Orders would be approved 
following consultation with Spokes. Following consultation the four draft orders were 
amended in line with consultee’s comments and responses.  
 

The Executive Councillor’s decision:   
Agreed to make the following Dog Control Orders following consultation: 

• The Dogs Fouling of Land (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dog Exclusion (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dogs on Leads (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 

• The Dogs on Lead by Direction (City of Cambridge) Order 2013 
 

 
Reasons for the decision:  As above.  
 

Scrutiny consideration:  The Executive Councillor and Spokesperson were 
consulted prior to the Orders being made. 

Agenda Item 7a

Page 65



 2

 

Report:  See attached memo.    

 

Conflicts of interest:  No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive 
Councillor. 

 
Comments:  The Dog Control Orders were made on 17 June 2013 and will come 
into force on 8 July 2013.  
 
 

Page 66



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL MEMO 

  
To: 

 
Carol Patton 

 
Dept: Legal Services 

 
Building: Guildhall 

 
Room:  

 
From: 

Toni Ainley  
Dept: 

Streets and Open 
Spaces 

 
Phone: 01223 458201 

 
Room: Mill Road Depot 

 
Date: 

 
12 June 2013 

 
Subject: 

Dog Control Orders 2013 

 
The Dog Control Orders consultation took place between 2 January and 8 February 
2013 and was carried out as follows:  
 

• Public notice in the Cambridge Evening News on 29 December 2012 

• Posters advertising the issue of dog control orders inviting people to respond 
to the consultation were displayed at the Customer Service Centre and 
community centres across the city 

• Web based information and questionnaire  

• Promotion on the Council’s Twitter and Facebook account 

• Attendance at all area committees during January 2013 

• Display during the consultation period at the Customer Service Centre 

• 128 letters and emails were sent to relevant consultees including animal 
businesses, charities, resident associations and friends of groups.  

 
60 responses were received on paper, two of these were illegible and one response 
was received after the deadline.  A further 79 were received via the website.  An 
additional 19 emails / letters were received during the consultation responses. 
Responses from the consultation questionnaire (both paper and web responses) 
were collated and analysed before the final Dog Control Orders were produced.  
 
The consultation process was carried out in accordance with Dog Control Orders 
(Procedures) Regulations 2006, and the final Orders were approved by the 
Executive Councillor and Spokes in May 2013 (see attached emails).  
 
The new Orders will be made on 21 June 2013 and come into force on 8 July 2013, 
and in accordance with the procedures a public notice will be placed in Cambridge 
Evening News on 21 June 2013. Signage summarising the order on land to which 
the orders will be erected prior to 1 July 2013.  
 
Appendices:  
 

• Email from Councillor Jean Swanson (Executive Councillor for Environmental 
and Waste Services) dated 8 May 2013 

• Email from Cllr George Owers (Spokes for Environmental and Waste 
Services) dated 21 May 2013 

 

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

Record of Executive Decision 

 

TOURIST INFORMATION CENTRE AIR COOLING SCHEME 
 

Decision of:  Executive Councillor for Public Places, Andrea Reiner  

Reference:  13/URGENCY/ENV/1 

Date of decision:   10/07/13 Recorded on:  10/07/13 

Decision Type:   Non-Key Decision  

Matter for 
Decision:  

The Executive Councillor was asked to approve the 
commencement of the Tourist Information Centre Air Cooling 
Project, which was already included in the Council’s Capital and 
Revenue Project Plan (SC573).   

The total cost of the project is £34,480, funded from Reserves, of 
which £25,000 has been approved and £9,480 is pending 
approval.   

The Executive Councillor is therefore asked to approve the 
additional funding relating to the project, using the urgency 
decision powers as stated in the following section of Cambridge 
City Council Constitution:  
 
"Urgent decisions outside the budget or policy framework", 
Section 6 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules 
(Part 4C of the Constitution) 

 

Why the decision 
had to be made 
(and any 
alternative 
options): 

As stated in Part 4C section 6.1 of the Council’s Constitution, 
individual members of the Executive ‘may take a decision which 
is contrary or not wholly in accordance with the budget approved 
by the full Council if the decision is a matter of urgency’.  

As specified under Part 4C 6.1.2 of the Councils Constitution, it 
was not deemed practical to convene a quorate meeting of 
Council to take this decision.  
 

The Executive 
Councillor’s 
decision(s): 

The Executive Councillor approved the commencement of the 
project, which is already included in the Council’s Capital & 
Revenue Project Plan (SC573).   

 

The total cost of the project was £34,480, funded from Reserves, 
of which £25,000 had been approved. 

 The Executive Councillor approved the additional funding of 
£9,480. 

 

Agenda Item 7b

Page 69



 
Reasons for the 
decision: 

 
An August installation of the proposed air cooling system is 
important, as the service is beginning to experience daily 
problems with the temperature in the Tourist Information Centre. 
High temperatures have an impact on dwell time for visitors and 
the comfort levels for staff, during the busiest time of the year for 
the service, and if not resolved in the near future, will have a 
detrimental effect on the level on commercial income that can be 
generated during this key period of the year. 
 

The lead time for the manufacturing of the cooling unit, of which 
is a key part of the project, is 5 weeks. In order to secure an 
August installation, confirmation of the contract would need to 
take place as soon as possible.   

 

Scrutiny 
consideration: 

As required by the Councils Constitution under the urgent 
decisions and special urgency procedure rules (Para 16 of Part 
B), the agreement of the Chair of the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee has been obtained.  

 

Report: See attached  

 
Conflicts of 
interest: 

 
None 

Comments: This urgent decision under special urgency will be reported back 
to Full Council on 18 July 2013 and the Environment Scrutiny 
Committee on 8 October 2013.  

 

Page 70



 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 

Project Name: Tourist Information Centre – Air Cooling 

To: Executive Councillor for Public Places 

Report by: Emma Thornton 

Scrutiny committee:  ENVIRONMENT   

Wards affected: All 

 

Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 

Project Name: Cambridge Tourist Information Centre – Air Cooling 

 

 

The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the commencement of this 
scheme, which is already included in the Council’s Capital & Revenue Project 
Plan (SC573).   

 

The total cost of the project is £34,480, funded from Reserves, of which 
£25,000 has been approved and £9,480 is pending approval.   

 
The Executive Councillor is therefore asked to approve the additional funding 
relating to the project, using the urgency decision powers as stated in the 
following section of Cambridge City Council Constitution:  
 
 
"Urgent decisions outside the budget or policy framework", Section 6 of the 
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules (Part 4C of the Constitution) 
 
 
It is requested that the Executive Councillor makes this decision as a matter of 
urgency, as the next scheduled scrutiny committee meeting is not until after 
the summer period. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 71



 

 
An August installation of the proposed air cooling system is important, as the 
service is beginning to experience daily problems with the temperature in the 
Tourist Information Centre. High temperatures have an impact on dwell time 
for visitors and the comfort levels for staff, during the busiest time of the year 
for the service, and if not resolved in the near future, will have a detrimental 
effect on the level on commercial income that can be generated during this 
key period of the year. 
 
The lead time for the manufacturing of the cooling unit, of which is a key part 
of the project, is 5 weeks. In order to secure an August installation, 
confirmation of the contract would need to take place as soon as possible.   
 

The Executive Councillor is therefore asked to approve the carrying out and 
completion of the procurement of the installation of an air cooling system for 
the Tourist Information Centre (TIC) 

 
 

Project Name:  

  

1 Summary 

1.1 The project 

 

 

1.2 Anticipated Cost 

Total Project Cost £ 34,480 

The project is the installation of an air-cooling unit to lower the internal 
temperature in the TIC during the summer months in accordance with the 
Chartered Institution of Building Serves Engineers (CIBSE) recommendation.  

Target Dates:  

Start of procurement  Mid June 

Award of Contract End June/Beg July 

Start of project delivery Mid-August 

Completion of project End of August 

Date that project output is expected to 
become operational (if not same as 
above) 

End of August 

Page 72



 

 

 

1.3 Procurement process 

Four written quotations will be sought from external specialist suppliers in line 
with the Council’s Constitution. 
 

2 Project Appraisal & Procurement Report 

2.1 Project Background 

 
The Tourist Information Centre (TIC) has experienced excessive temperatures 
during the summer period, since its relocation to the old crown court complex 
in the Guildhall in 2009. A feasibility study was undertaken by an external 
Building Services Consultant to determine what options were available to 
combat the overheating problem. The excessive heat experienced in the 
centre has not only had an impact on staff working in the TIC, but it has also 
led to complaints from users of the Tourist Information Centre and in turn 
reduced dwell time in the centre. This is of particular concern given the 
pressures on the TIC to achieve challenging income targets. 

 

2.2 Aims & objectives  

The aim of the project is to control the internal summertime temperature in the 
TIC to those recommended by the Chartered Institution of Building Services 
Engineers (CIBSE). 

 

2.3 Major issues for stakeholders & other departments   

The main issues are the high temperature experienced by the staff working in 
the TIC during the summertime, which is detrimental to their wellbeing and the 
comfort of users of the TIC. 

Cost Funded from: 

Funding: Amount: Details: 

Reserves £ 25,000 SC573 

Repairs & Renewals £ 0.00  

Developer Contributions £ 0.00  

Climate Change Fund £ 0.00  

Other £ 9,480 
Seeking further funding from 
City Council  Reserves 

Page 73



 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 

• Staff 

• Unison 

• Conservation team  

 

Discussions have been held with the Conservation Officer who has advised 
that given that the solution proposed involves the installation of an air cooling 
unit in the basement, listed building consent will not be required.       

 

2.4 Summarise key risks associated with the project  

The key risk is the closure of the TIC during the periods of high internal 
temperature, which would significantly impact on the service that could be 
provided to the visitors to Cambridge. In addition there is a risk of the service 
being unable to maximise its income potential through the TIC due to reduced 
dwell time by users of the centre as a result of the uncomfortable atmosphere. 

 

2.5 Financial implications 

We have a budget secured of £25,000, the actual costs for this project have 

come in at £34,480.   

 

2.6 Net revenue implications (costs or savings) 

 

 

The on-going revenue costs of this project is in the region of £450 to £650 per 
annum – it is felt that provision can be made with the tourism service budget 
to cover this on-going cost.  

 

Revenue £ Comments 

Maintenance £450-£650  

R&R Contribution 0.00  

Developer Contributions  0.00  

Energy savings 0.00    

Income / Savings 0.00  

Net Revenue effect £450-£650 Cost 

Page 74



 

2.7 VAT implications 

There are no adverse VAT implications for undertaking this project 

 

2.8 Energy and Fuel Savings 

 

Is this project listed in the Carbon Management Plan?  
No 

 
 

2.8 Climate Change Impact 

 

Positive Impact No effect Negative Impact 

     -M  

 

 

 2.10 Other implications  

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been prepared for this project. 

 

 2.11 Staff required to deliver the project 

 

Service Skills Total Hours 

Project Management M&E Technical 
Knowledge ( Johns 
Slater Haward) 

10 hours 

Property – Jim Stocker  8 hours 

   

 

 

 2.12 Dependency on other work or projects 

 

N/A 

 

 
 

Page 75



 

 2.14 Inspection of papers 

Author’s Name Emma Thornton 

Author’s phone No. 01223 - 457464 

Author’s e-mail: emma.thornton@cambridge.gov.uk 

Date prepared: 21st June 2013 

 

 

Page 76



 

Capital Project Appraisal - Capital costs & funding - Profiling Appendix AAppendix AAppendix AAppendix A

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£ £ £ £ £

Capital Costs

Building contractor / works 27,280 

Purchase of vehicles, plant & equipment      

Professional / Consultants fees 7,200 

Other capital expenditure:

Total Capital cost 34,480 0 0 0 0 

Capital Income / Funding

Government Grant

Developer Contributions      

R&R funding

Earmarked Funds

Existing capital programme funding 25,000 

Revenue contributions      

Total Income 25,000 0 0 0 0 

Net Capital Bid 9,480 0 0 0 0 

Comments

P
age 77



 

 

Page 78



CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL

Record of Executive Decision

Stourbridge Common River Bank Restoration

Decision of: Andrea Reiner, Executive Councillor for Public Places

Reference: 13/URGENCY/ENV/2

Date of 
decision:

11/09/13 Recorded 
on:

11/09/13

Decision Type: Non Key

Matter for 
Decision: 

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

To approve the tendering and letting of a contract for a 
design and build of a river bank restoration programme 
at Stourbridge Common.

To approve the spending of £100k in year 2013/14

To approve the preparation of future capital bids for 
future works along the Stourbridge Common river bank

Agenda Item 7c

Page 79



Why the 
decision had to 
be made (and 
any alternative 
options):

A structural survey report carried out on the riverbank in 
January 2013 identified several sections that are in a 
poor condition. Risks have been identified to site users, 
including moorers, members of the public, City Council 
staff, rowers and fishermen, as well as livestock which 
graze the site under license. Temporary measures to 
make safe existing holes in the riverbank will be 
undertaken, however, the priority stretch is in urgent 
need of complete replacement. Officers have requested 
an out of cycle decision to ensure the procurement of 
these urgent works. The procurement will involve a 
tender, design, consultation, consents and construction 
phase and delay in securing approval will set back the 
programme. In addition the works are adjacent to the 
river and in the flood plain so works could be subject to 
additional delay due to seasonal flooding. It is unlikely 
work would be complete by the scheduled date of 
March 2014 if a decision was delayed until the next 
committee.

The Executive 
Councillor’s 
decision(s):

i. Approved the tendering and letting of a contract 
for a design and build of a river bank restoration 
programme at Stourbridge Common.

ii. Approved the spending of £100k in year 2013/14.
iii. Approved the preparation of future capital bids for 

future works along the Stourbridge Common river 
bank.

Reasons for the 
decision:

As set out in the Officers Report

Scrutiny 
consideration:

The Executive Councillor and Spokesperson were 
consulted prior to the decision being made.

Report: See attached memo.   

Conflicts of 
interest:

No conflicts of interest were declared by the Executive
Councillor

Comments: None 

Page 80



1 MLM Report

Cambridge City Council Item

To: Executive Councillor for Public Places: 
Councillor Andrea Reiner

Report by: Head of Streets & Open Spaces: Toni Ainley

Relevant scrutiny 
committee: 

Environment Scrutiny        

Wards affected: Abbey, East Chesterton

Non Key Decision

1. Executive summary

Cambridge City Council is the riparian owner of the riverbank along
Stourbridge Common.  A structural survey of the existing riverbank has 
revealed significant stretches that are in need of repair.

Consideration has been given to the methods of repair and the preferred 
approach for a replacement design would be the use of soft engineering 
principles (such as bank stabilisation using natural materials and aquatic 
marginal plants) Once established these will provide a long term sustainable 
solution, requiring no or low maintenance, reducing costs and significantly
enhancing the river aesthetic and biodiversity of this recently designated 
Local Nature Reserve.

This approach would be supported by the Environment Agency as it would 
meet national targets to re-naturalise rivers under the Water Framework 
Directive.

The Drainage Engineer and Nature Conservation Officer will provide the 
technical input for a tender specification for the contract to be let as a
design and build by specialist firms. This report provides evidence to 
support this approach and allows the Executive Councillor to make a 
decision based on the information supplied.

Page 81



2 MLM Report

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

To approve the tendering and letting of a contract for a design and build of a
river bank restoration programme at Stourbridge Common.

To approve the spending of £100k in year 2013/14

To approve the preparation of future capital bids for future works along the 
Stourbridge Common river bank

3. Background

Cambridge City Council is the riparian owners of 860m of riverbank on 
Stourbridge Common Local Nature Reserve (LNR), situated on the southern 
bank of the main River Cam in north east Cambridge. The site is Common 
land (subject to the Commons Act 2006), a designated LNR and a non-
statutory County Wildlife Site. In addition the entire length of the River Cam 
is designated as a County Wildlife Site as it passes through the City.

The existing concrete riverbank is reaching the end of its lifespan along 
several sections and a structural survey was undertaken in January 2013 to 
assess the extent and prioritise areas.

The river wall is a king post pile retaining wall construction over most of its
length. Precast concrete piles driven into the river bed retain precast
concrete wall panels, which themselves retain the bank material to the rear
of the wall. A reinforced concrete capping beam finishes the top of
the wall, providing a finish to the piles and wall panels.

The survey confirmed that the piled wall is beginning to fail and lean into the 
river. The integrity of the riverbank being broken down into four categories:

Significantly leaning into the river = 138m
Leaning into the river = 148m
Slightly leaning into the river = 70m
No Lean into the river = 504m

Other issues identified where voids forming at the back of the wall that could 
be a trip hazard (this is prevalent along 250m of bank) and the capping 
beam is also in poor condition in a significant number of areas.

Page 82



3 MLM Report

There is also significant tree root ingress into the river in places that is 
undermining sections of wall that are not yet leaning.

The Environment Agency, in line with the European Water Framework 
Directive no longer advocates the use of hard engineering of riverbanks in 
locations where soft engineering and habitat diversification can be 
championed. As this site has recently been designated a Local Nature 
Reserve, officers are proposing the use of natural techniques of bank 
stabilisation using aquatic vegetation and natural materials.

The costs of riverbank schemes are significant and a phased programme of 
prioritised stretches is proposed. Phase one being to design the scheme in 
its entirety and to tackle the area’s most at risk of failing.

Asset management group have considered the project and recommended to 
approve the approach.

4. Implications

(a) Financial Implications

The initial phase of the Capital scheme SC551 (Cost Centre 38182) was 
approved as part of the 2012 Medium Term Strategy presented to Council 
on 25 October 2012.  Additional works will be required in subsequent 
phases, subject to officers prioritising further sections and preparing budget 
bids in 2014/15 and beyond.

(b) Staffing Implications

The design and build contract will limit the need time. However, the client 
role will still require input from Streets & Open Spaces Officers, including 
contract management and checking progress against agreed targets and 
sign off upon satisfactory completion.

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications

There are no equal opportunity implications identified with the proposed 
scheme. The tender specification requires the successful contractor to 
consider opportunities for maintaining and enhancing access for all to the 
riverbank.

(d) Environmental Implications

Page 83



4 MLM Report

The proposed soft engineering approach to the riverbank will help to 
increase the riparian habitats and biodiversity of this stretch of the 
River Cam. Rivers and their floodplains provide key opportunities for 
wildlife to disperse through the countryside and City, enhanced
habitats will therefore aid organisms in their ability to adapt and move 
in relation to a changing climate. These habitats will both diversify the 
Local Nature Reserve and provide interest to recreational users and 
commuters on the adjacent cycle path, potentially increasing the 
number of local people using the Common.

The works are ultimately more sustainable that a replacement 
concrete option as there is less embodied CO2 within the initial 
construction and the natural vegetation establishes to prevent further 
erosion by navigation.

Procurement100k has been allocated in 2013/14 for the design and 
build of the first phase. This will be tendered in line with procurement 
rules and advertised with specialised contractors invited to bid for the 
works.

Consultation and communication

The proposed scheme will be subject to stakeholder consultation 
including the Friends of Stourbridge Common,Cam Conservators, The 
BCN Wildlife Trust and Environment Agency,  as well as with site 
users through the use of onsite notices. The area is used extensively 
by local people as a commuter route between Fen Ditton and the City 
centre, via a surfaced footpath and cycle way (several metres from the 
existing river bank line), it is a popular dog walking and picnicking 
route and several house boats have temporary mooring licences. 
Fishing occurs and the water way is popular with rowing clubs and 
visiting motor boats. 

The opposite northern river bank comprises mainly rear gardens of
private properties and their moorings. These properties will be letter 
dropped during the consultation phase.

5. Background papers

These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:

Page 84



5 MLM Report

River Cam Wall Survey,  MLM Consulting, 1st February 2013

Cambridge City Council  Medium Term Strategy 2013/14

6. Appendices

Location Map
7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact:

Author’s Name: Guy Belcher
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 458532
Author’s Email: Guy.belcher@cambridge.gov.uk

Page 85



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



S
T

0
1

S
T

0
2

S
T

0
3

S
T

0
4

S
T

0
7

S
T

0
8

S
T

0
9

S
T

1
0

S
T

1
1

S
T

1
3

S
T

1
4

5
.1

7

5
.1

9

5
.0

9

5
.0

7

5
.0

1

4
.9

1

4
.9

3

4
.9

3

4
.9

5

4
.8

3

4
.7

4

4
.6

2

4
.7

5
4

.8
3

B
O

B
O

4
.8

4

4.8
7

4
.8

8

4
.6

6

4
.4

9

4
.8

9

4
.3

6

4
.5

4

4
.8

0

4
.9

6

5
.0

1

4
.9

2

4
.9

7

5
.0

0

4
.9

4

4
.9

7

5
.0

8

5
.3

3

5
.3

4
5
.2

5
5
.2

9

5
.3

2

5
.2

7 5
.3

2

5
.3

2

B
O

B
O

S
I

5
.2

3

5
.1

2

5
.3

5

5
.0

9

4
.5

4

4
.4

0

4
.3

7

3
.6

9

3
.7

5

3
.3

1

3
.7

7

4
.5

6

4
.3

6

3
.7

5

3
.7

8

4
.2

4

4
.2

1

3
.7

0

4
.3

7

4
.5

8

4
.7

4

5
.0

1

4
.5

9

4
.9

9

4
.9

4

5
.0

1

5
.0

5

5
.1

2

5
.1

8

5
.3

0

5
.2

3 5
.2

4

5
.0

2

5
.1

3

5
.0

8

5
.0

6

5
.1

0

5
.1

4

5
.0

9

5
.0

9

5
.1

5

5
.1

1

5
.1

7

5
.3

8

5
.4

4

5
.4

3

5
.4

4

5
.2

7

5
.2

8

5
.2

1

5
.0

8

5
.3

4

5
.3

3

5
.2

4

5
.0

1

4
.8

4

4
.8

9

4
.8

9

5
.0

2

5
.0

1

5
.0

9

5
.1

8

5
.2

4

7
.9

5

7
.9

7

4
.5

5
4
.1

8

4
.5

8

4
.1

3

4
.5

2

4
.1

1

4
.4

6

4
.1

3

4
.4

1

4
.1

3

4
.4

3

4
.1

3

4
.3

6
4
.1

2

4
.3

8

4
.1

2

4
.3

7

4
.1

1

4
.4

1 4
.0

6

4
.3

6
4
.0

9

4
.2

9

4
.1

1

4
.2

6

4
.0

9

4
.1

9

4
.0

8

4
.4

8

4
.1

0

4
.4

4

4
.1

1

4
.4

4

4
.0

9

4
.4

1

4
.1

0

4
.3

8

4
.0

9

4
.3

8

4
.0

9

4
.6

3

4
.1

0

4
.1

4
5

.1
2

5
.1

9

5
.1

3

5
.0

8

5.04

4
.1

5

4
.1

5

4.93

4
.2

9

4
.4

7

4
.7

9
T

o
W

4.94

4
.7

3

4
.1

7

4
.1

8

4
.1

5

4.17

4
.9

3

4
.2

6

4
.9

1
T

o
W

4
.8

0

4
.6

1

4
.7

7

4
.9

4

5
.0

7

4
.1

5

5
.2

7
5
.2

9

C
L
 5

.3
4

IC

5
.2

6

A
s
p
h
a

lt

5
.0

7
W

B

5
.0

6

5
.0

1

5
.0

9

5
.0

6

5
.1

5

5
.1

3

5
.1

4

5
.1

1

5
.2

7

5
.2

7

W
B

C
L

 5
.1

1
M

H

L
P

5
.1

95
.1

9

5
.2

1

5
.2

2

W
B

5
.4

7

5
.4

1

5
.3

5

5
.3

7

5
.2

2

5
.2

6
T

o
W

4
.0

0
T

o
W

4
.0

2
T

o
W

4
.8

1
T

o
W

4
.3

4
T

o
W

A
c
e
r 

1
4

h

5
.0

95
.1

2

5
.2

2

5
.2

4

5
.2

0
5

.3
2

5
.2

7

5
.3

2

5
.2

6

5
.2

0

5
.1

9

5
.1

95
.2

3P
la

n
e

 1
4

h

P
la

n
e

 1
4

h

5
.3

85
.4

1

L
P

A
c
e

r 
1

4
h

4
.0

9

4
.1

0

4
.1

3

4
.1

3

4
.1

3

4
.0

8

4
.1

4

4
.1

4

4
.4

3
T

o
W

4
.4

2
T

o
W

4
.4

6
T

o
W

4
.8

7
T

o
W

3
.9

1
W

L

S
T

0
5

5.00

5.01

5.08

5
.1

3

5
.2

4

5
.2

4

5
.2

8

5
.2

2

5
.1

3

5
.1

15
.0

4

5
.0

3
A

c
e

r 
1
4

h

5
.1

1

5
.0

4

A
c
e
r 

1
4

h

5
.1

2

5
.1

0 5
.2

2

5
.0

6

5
.0

9

5
.1

4

5
.1

5

4
.9

5
4
.6

9

W
ill

o
w

 1
4
h

W
ill

o
w

 1
4
h

W
ill

o
w

 1
4
h

4
.9

7

5
.0

0

5
.0

0

4
.8

3

4
.9

4

5
.0

6

5
.1

7

W
B

4
.1

1

4
.1

1

S
I

4
.1

1

S
I

4
.0

5
4
.5

4
T

o
W

4
.1

6
T

o
W

4
.1

2
T

o
W

4
.3

2
T

o
W

S
T

0
6

L
P

4
.6

5

4
.8

1

4
.9

8

4
.9

3

4
.8

0

4
.6

7

4
.5

94
.6

1

4
.6

9

4
.5

1

4
.7

2

4
.8

6

4
.9

3

5
.0

2

5
.1

3

5
.2

1
5
.1

3

W
il
lo

w
 1

4
h

4
.3

1
T

o
W

4
.4

6
T

o
W

4
.5

5
T

o
W

4
.3

4
T

o
W

4
.3

8
T

o
W

7
.5

9

M
P

G
V

4
.0

9

4
.3

8

4
.4

2

4
.9

2

4
.9

9

4
.8

8

4
.8

9

4
.9

1

4
.7

9

4
.8

4

4
.9

3

4
.9

3

4
.9

6

4
.9

8

5
.0

0

5
.0

2

5
.0

9
B

e
e
c
h
 9

h

5
.0

0

5
.0

3

4
.9

9 A
c
e

r 
1

0
h

5
.0

8

W
BW
il
lo

w
 1

4
h

W
il
lo

w
 1

2
h

4
.7

6

4
.4

2

4
.3

4

4
.1

3

4
.1

2

4
.1

4

4
.1

0
T

o
W

4
.0

7
T

o
W

4
.2

1
T

o
W

4
.3

4
T

o
W

4
.4

1
T

o
W

4
.1

9
T

o
W

4
.8

1

4
.6

9

4
.6

0

4
.6

9

4
.8

2

4
.9

8

4
.9

7

4
.9

6

G
ra

s
s

5
.0

4

5
.0

3

4
.9

4

4
.9

9

5
.0

8

A
c
e
r 

9
h

W
ill

o
w

 1
2
h

P
O

4
.1

2

4
.1

3

4
.0

6

4
.1

0

4
.5

8

4
.5

7

4
.1

7

4
.4

9

4
.4

8

4
.5

5

4
.5

0

4
.5

4

4
.5

5

4
.5

3

4
.6

3

4
.6

2

4
.5

8

4
.8

2

5
.0

3

A
c
e
r 

1
2
h

U
K

 9
h

A
c
e
r 

1
2
h

A
c
e
r 

1
2
h

P
la

n
e
 1

5
h

4
.8

5

4
.8

3

4
.7

9

4
.9

5

4
.8

9

5
.0

2

4
.9

4

4
.9

9

4
.8

5

4
.7

2

4
.7

4

4
.5

8

4
.6

0

3
.8

8
W

L

4
.1

4
S

I
4

.1
0

4
.0

9

4
.0

9

4
.0

4

4
.0

4

4
.0

7

4
.0

8

4
.1

0

4
.0

9

4
.1

8
T

o
W

4
.1

4
T

o
W

4
.1

6
T

o
W

4
.9

7
T

o
W 4
.0

7
T

o
W

4
.0

1
T

o
W

3
.9

3
T

o
W

4
.0

9
T

o
W

4
.0

9
T

o
W

4
.0

7
T

o
W

4
.0

7
T

o
W

4
.0

8
T

o
W

4
.1

4
T

o
W

4
.3

1
T

o
W

P
la

n
e
 1

5
h

5
.3

7

5
.3

0

5
.2

1

5
.1

9

5
.4

1

4
.8

7

4
.9

3
4

.6
0

4
.6

1

4
.6

4

4
.7

1

4
.7

8

5
.0

9

5
.2

4

5
.1

0

5
.0

4

5
.2

0

5
.0

9

4
.9

6

5
.0

2

4
.9

6

4
.8

6

A
c
e

r 
1
3

h

B
u
d
 4

h

W
ill

o
w

 1
3
h

P
la

n
e

 1
4

h

4
.9

7

4
.9

6

4
.9

5

4
.8

4

B
e
e

c
h

 9
h

5
.0

4

5
.0

4W
ill

o
w

 1
0
h

5
.1

1

5
.1

3

A
c
e
r 

1
2
h

H
o

rs
e

 C
h

e
s
tn

u
t 
1
2

h

4
.5

1

4
.4

6

4
.5

3

4
.3

4

4
.6

8

4
.8

5

4
.9

5

4
.6

2

4
.7

5

4
.5

7

4
.8

0

4
.7

9

4
.6

2

4
.1

0

4
.1

0

4
.1

2

4
.0

9

4
.1

0

4
.0

9

4
.1

1

4
.0

2

4
.1

0

4
.1

0

4
.1

6

C
L

 4
.7

3
M

H

S
T

1
2

A
c
e
r 

1
3
h W

B

H
o
rs

e
 C

h
e
s
tn

u
t 
1

4
h

W
ill

o
w

 1
4
h

A
c
e

r 
1

1
h

4
.9

4

4
.7

8

4
.8

3

4
.6

3

4
.7

8

4
.7

9

4
.9

2

4
.6

9

4
.7

0

4
.6

6

4
.5

1

4
.4

8

4
.5

4

4
.5

5
4
.5

6

3
.8

8
W

L

4
.0

7

4
.1

2 S
I

4
.0

7

4
.5

4

4
.1

9

4
.0

0

4
.0

7

4
.0

8

4
.1

0

4
.0

8

4
.8

5

4
.9

1

U
K

 5
h

A
c
e
r 

1
1
h

U
K

 9
h

A
c
e

r 
1
1

h
W

ill
o
w

 1
0
h 4

.8
4

4
.8

6

4
.9

1

4
.6

9

4
.7

9

4
.9

9

4
.9

8

4
.8

8

4
.8

9

4
.7

4
4
.6

8

4
.7

2

4
.7

0

4
.6

4

4
.6

5

4
.6

9

4
.6

9

4
.0

8

4
.0

4

3
.9

7

4
.0

6

4
.0

7

4
.0

7

4
.0

7 4
.0

8

4
.6

9

4
.8

4

4
.1

5

P
/R

1
.5

h

P
/R

1
.4

h

Paved

I/R
1.1h

Concrete

P
/R

1
.4

h

P/R
1.4h

P/W1.8h

P/W1.8h

P/W
1.8h

P/R 1.4h

P
/R

1.
4h

P
/R

1
.5

h

P
/R

1
.5

h

C
o
n
c
re

te

P
/W

1
.8

h

P
/W

1
.8

h

P
/W

1
.8

h

P
/W

1
.8

h

P
/W

1
.4

h

P/W
1.4h

W
B

W
BW

ill
o
w

 1
4

h

W
ill

o
w

 1
4
h

W
il
lo

w
 1

0
h

B
ri
d
g

e
 S

o
ff

it

P
ie

r

P
ie

r

Brid
ge

H
o
rs

e
C

h
e
s
tn

u
t
1

2
h

H
o
rs

e
C

h
e

s
tn

u
t
1

2
h

P
/R

1
.4

h

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

sp
h
a
lt

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

s
p
h
a
lt

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

s
p
h
a
lt

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

sp
h
a
lt

F
o
ot

w
a
y

-
A
sp

ha
lt

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

sp
h
a
lt

F
o
o
tw

a
y

-
A

s
p
h
a
lt

T
im

be
r
W

a
lk

w
a
y

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

s
s

G
ra

te

G
ra

te

G
ra

te

G
ra

te

B
e

n
c
h

B
e
n

c
h

B
e
n

c
h

B
e

n
c
h

B
e
n
c
h

B
e
n

c
h

B
e
n

c
h

P
a
s
tu

re

Footway-Asphalt

Footway-Asphalt

Footway-Asphalt

Footway-Asphalt

T
ra

ck

T
ra

c
k

T
ra

c
k

2
0
0

25
0

1
5
0

1
0
0

5
0

00

300

350

400

450

500

650

550

600

700

750

800

850

900

950

1000

+
1
.4

0

+
1

.4
9

+
1
.2

5

+
0
.8

4

+
1

.0
3

+
1
.0

1

+
1
.2

2

+
1

.2
0

+
1
.1

5

+
0

.3
0

+
0
.7

0

+
1
.1

0

+
0
.8

0

+
0

.7
3

+
1

.5
0

+
1

.2
8

+
1

.2
5

+
1

.2
8

+
1

.2
0

+
1
.0

8

+
1
.0

5

+
1
.0

5

+
0
.9

5

+
0
.8

0

+
1

.1
0

+
0
.8

8

+
1
.0

5

+
1
.1

8

+
1
.3

5

+
1

.2
3

+
1
.2

5

+
1

.1
8

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

S
im

o
n
 P

a
y
n
e

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0

, 
C

a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

, 
C

B
1

  
0

J
H

  
  

T
e
l:
 0

1
2
2
3
 -

 4
5
7
2
0
0
 o

r 
4
5
7
2
0
1
 

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

A
L

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 i
s
 r

e
p

ro
d

u
c
e
d

 f
ro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u
rv

e
y
 m

a
te

ri
a

l 
w

it
h
 t

h
e
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 

o
f 

O
rd

n
a

n
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
n

tr
o

lle
r 

o
f 

h
e

r 
M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
ti
o

n
a

ry
 

O
ff
ic

e
 ©

C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
ri
g

h
t.
 U

n
a
u

th
o
ri

z
e
d

 r
e

p
ro

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

fr
in

g
e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 

c
o
p

y
ri

g
h

t 
a
n

d
 m

a
y
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 p

ro
s
e

c
u
ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
c
iv

il 
p

ro
c
e

e
d

in
g
s
."

 C
a
m

b
ri

d
g
e

 

C
it
y
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

(L
ic

e
n
c
e

 n
o

. 
 1

0
0

0
1

9
7
3

0
) 

2
0
1

1
.

S
c
a

le
D

a
te

B
y
:

D
O

  
N

O
T

  
S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t 

b
e
 t

a
k
e
n
 i
n

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e
 

to
 s

c
a
le

d
 d

im
e
n
s
io

n
s
.

R
e
v

D
a

te
B

y
D

e
ta

ils
C

h
k

A
p
p

D
ra

w
in

g
:

P
ro

je
c
t:

J
o

b
 R

e
f 

/ 

D
W

G
.N

o

N

N
T

S
S

B
1

9
/0

7
/2

0
1
3

S
C

-P
A

-1

S
T

O
U

R
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
O

M
M

O
N

 P
R

IO
R

IT
Y

 A
R

E
A

S
T

O
U

R
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
O

M
M

O
N

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11

Capital Project Appraisal & Procurement Report

Project Title Stourbridge Common River Bank Restoration

Target Start Date August 2013

Target Completion Date March 2014

Project Manager / Lead Officer Alistair Wilson / Guy Belcher

Scrutiny Committee and Portfolio
Environment Committee
Executive Councillor for Public Places

Scrutiny Committee Date Proposed out of cycle decision – July 2013

1 Recommendation/s 

 To approve the tendering and letting of a contract for a design and build of a 
river bank restoration programme at Stourbridge Common.

 To approve the spending of £100k in year 2013/14 for Phase 1 of the works

 To approve the preparation of future capital bids for future works along the 
Stourbridge Common river bank

2 What is the project?  Provide a description of the proposed project, justify 
the reason for the project, and note what alternative options were 
considered.

Cambridge City Council is the riparian owner of 860m of riverbank on Stourbridge 
Common Local Nature Reserve (LNR), situated on the southern bank of the main 
River Cam in north east Cambridge. The site is Common land (subject to the 
Commons Act 2006), a designated LNR and a non-statutory County Wildlife Site. In 
addition, the entire length of the River Cam is designated as a County Wildlife Site 
as it passes through the City.

The existing river bank wall is a king post pile retaining wall construction over most 
of its length. Precast concrete piles driven into the river bed retain precast
concrete wall panels, which themselves retain the bank material to the rear
of the wall. An insitu reinforced concrete capping beam finishes the top of
the wall, providing a finish to the piles and wall panels.

The existing concrete riverbank is reaching the end of its lifespan along several
sections of the common bank and a structural survey was undertaken in January 
2013 to assess the extent of degradation and prioritise areas for renewal.

The survey confirmed that the piled wall is beginning to fail and lean into the river

Page 89



Page 2 of 11

The integrity of the riverbank being broken down into four categories:

Significantly leaning into the river = 138m
Leaning into the river = 148m
Slightly leaning into the river = 70m
No Lean into the river = 504m

Other issues identified were voids forming at the back of the wall that could be a 
trip hazard (this is prevalent along 250m of bank) and the capping beam is also in 
poor condition in a significant number of areas.

There is also significant tree root ingress into the river in places that is undermining 
sections of wall that are not yet leaning.

The Environment Agency, in line with the European Water Framework Directive no 
longer advocates the use of hard engineering of riverbanks in locations where soft 
engineering and habitat diversification can be championed. As this site has recently 
been designated a Local Nature Reserve, officers are proposing the use of natural 
techniques of bank stabilisation using aquatic vegetation and natural materials.

The current capital budget has been allocated to produce a phased bank 
restoration programme and prioritise stretches for future resource allocation. Phase 
one being to design the scheme in its entirety and to replace the river bank along 
one or more priority sections, identified as most at risk of failing, in 2013/14.

Page 90



Page 3 of 11

3 Outline the aims and objectives of the project and highlight how it 
contributes to achieving the Council’s Medium Term Objectives.

To restore and maintain a safe riverbank along the entire length of Stourbridge 
Common.

To design and implement phase 1 of a riverbank restoration project on Stourbridge 
Common. The proposed soft engineering approach to the riverbank will help to 
increase the riparian habitats and biodiversity of this stretch of the River Cam. Rivers 
and their floodplains provide key opportunities for wildlife to disperse through the 
countryside and City, enhanced habitats will therefore aid organisms in their ability to 
adapt and move in relation to a changing climate. These habitats will both diversify the 
Local Nature Reserve and provide interest to recreational users and commuters on the 
adjacent cycle path, potentially increasing the number of local people using the 
Common for recreation.

The proposed approach is ultimately more sustainable that a replacement concrete 
option as there is less embodied CO2 within the initial construction and the natural 
vegetation establishes to prevent further erosion by navigation.

The proposed projects seek to achieve the objectives of the Council’s Medium Term 
Strategy by protecting & enhancing the environment and tackling the causes and 
consequences of climate change.

4 Identify and summarise the impact on and major issues for stakeholders & 
other departments.  Summarise the key results of initial consultation 
(including members where appropriate).

The proposed design will be subject to stakeholder consultation including the Friends 
of Stourbridge Common, prior to seeking necessary permission or consents from the 
Environment Agency, Cam Conservators and the Planning Inspectorate. Notification of 
the consultation will be sent to Ward Councillors, the Cam Conservators, Cam Boaters, 
Cambridge Past present and Future, The BCN Wildlife Trust and Environment Agency, 
as well as site users through the use of onsite notices. 

The area is used extensively by local people as a commuter route between Fen Ditton 
and the City centre, via a surfaced footpath and cycle way (several metres from the 
existing river bank line), it is a popular dog walking and picnicking route and several 
house boats have temporary mooring licences. Fishing occurs and the water way is 
popular with rowing clubs and visiting motor boats. It is envisaged that the phased 
programme will impact little on the existing access and enjoyment of the common by 
site users during the construction phase. The tender specification requires the 
successful contractor to consider opportunities for maintaining and enhancing access 
for all to the riverbank during and post construction.

Page 91



Page 4 of 11

5 Procurement.  What resources for this project will be procured from 
outside the Council?  What method of procurement are you to use?  What 
is the estimated total value for each procurement element?

 The initial phase of the Capital scheme SC551 (Cost Centre 38182) was 
approved as part of the 2013 Medium Term Strategy presented to Council on 25 
October 2012.  £100,000 has been allocated for 2013/14 to complete and 
approve the design for the entire 860m stretch and implement phase 1 along an 
agreed priority stretch. Additional works will be required in subsequent phases,
subject to officers prioritising further sections and preparing budget bids in 
2014/15 and beyond.

 An open tender procurement exercise is proposed, seeking interest from market 
leaders in this ‘soft engineering sector’. The specification has been drafted to 
include both the design and build by the successful contractor; including options 
for future works beyond 2014 should budgets be secured.

6 Summarise key risks associated with the project. Include the key risks the 
project aims to mitigate, risks involved in delivery of the project and risks 
that might occur if the project does not take place. 

 If allowed to continue the deteriorating condition of the existing river bank has 
the potential to cause injury to members of the public, their animals or livestock 
grazing the site.

 In addition, the potential collapse of sections of the existing riverbank into the 
river poses risks to boaters and potential to cause serious damage to craft 
navigating the river.

 At present the structural condition allows a phased approach to the replacement 
of the riverbank. If delayed then a greater percentage of bank may require 
replacement at any given time, requiring much greater capital bids for works.

Page 92



Page 5 of 11

7 Financial implications.  Comment on any special financial considerations 
associated with the project such as grant or funding conditions. Ensure 
that any additional insurance costs/implications are considered.

Appraisal prepared on the following price base Fixed budget allocation

The project has secured funding for phase 1 only. Future works to complete the 
designed solution will require further budget bids and / or external grant applications if 
eligible.

Page 93



Page 6 of 11

8A Capital costs & funding

£ Comments 

Capital Costs

Design / Consents 15,000 Estimated

Phase 1 Construction 85,000 Estimated

Other capital expenditure 0

Total Capital cost 100,000

Capital Income / Funding

100,000
SC 551

Revenue contributions

Total Income 100,000

Net Capital Bid

Expenditure profiling: £ Comments 

Year 1:  20013 / 2014 100,000 (

Net Capital Bid 100,000 (

Appendix A, Capital Project Appraisal profiling, should also be completed.

Page 94



Page 7 of 11

8B Revenue costs

In 2013/
per  (year)

£
Ongoing

£
Comments

Revenue Costs

Repair & renewal 
contributions

Total revenue cost

Revenue Income

Existing revenue budget/s

Total income

Net revenue bid 0 0

Page 95



Page 8 of 11

9      VAT implications.  Comment on any VAT implications identified in 
consultation with the Finance Department.

 There are no adverse VAT implications to this project

10    Other implications.  Comment on any other relevant implications including 
property, accommodation, environmental, health & safety, community 
safety, procurement, human resource, equal opportunities and diversity.

 The proposed location for the site is in City Council Freehold ownership.

11    Estimate of staffing resource required to deliver the project.  Comment on 
the availability of internal project team resources.  Ensure that the costs 
of external resources required have been included in the financial table/s 
above.

 The proposed design and build contract, including the securing of necessary 
consents, will limit the need for internal officer time. However, the client role will 
still require input from Streets & Open Spaces Officers, including tender 
specification preparation, tender award, contract management and sign off upon 
satisfactory completion.

Skills required / internal
Estimated 
number of 

hours

Proposed Timescale

Start date Finish date

Tender Specification and Award
35 July 2013

September 
2013

Contract Management
60

September 
2013

March 2014

Page 96



Page 9 of 11

12 Identify any dependencies upon other work or projects.  Identify any other 
projects which cannot progress until this particular piece of work is 
complete

 The full management plan for Stourbridge Common Local Nature Reserve is 
due to be drafted in 2013/14 following botanical surveys, being undertaken by 
the local Wildlife Trust between May – August 2013.The plan will need to 
incorporate appropriate vegetation management of the new river bank features
and reference future phases of restoration.

13 Background Papers.  List any background papers used in the preparation 
of this project appraisal.

 River Cam Wall Survey,  MLM Consulting, 1st February 2013

 Cambridge City Council  Medium Term Strategy 2013/14

14 Inspection of papers

Author’s Name Guy Belcher Nature Conservation Officer

Author’s phone No. 01223 458532 Email Guy.belcher@cambridge.gov.uk

Filename/path N:\POLICY AND PROJECTS\
Last 
amended

Page 97



Page 10 of 11

Finance Department use only:

Project Approval Dates Date

Approved by DoF

Reviewed by AMG / ICT

Executive Councillor Approval

Scrutiny Committee Approval (if 
applicable)

Council Funding Approval

Added to Hold List

Removed from Hold List

Added to Capital Plan

Page 98



P
a
g
e
 1

1
o
f 
1
1

Page 99



Page 100

This page is intentionally left blank



�

����������	�
�����
�

��������	
����
������


�

���	��
���������
���
��������
������		
�	���	�������

���	��
���	�
��������	
����
�	���	
����	
�������
���	���

��

����������������������������������������
	������
�����������������
��

�	���
���
 ������	����� �!�����������������������

��������
������		�

 �"#$%&"'�"�� (�&���)���*+,�

�����
���	��	��
 '��-���




�	���	���������

 !"
 #��������
�	���	�������� ��

�

.� ������������������������������-�������������������������������
���������/����������������-��
������������0�������������������������
��������������1����������2�%�������	��3����	���.�

.*� ���� ������ ���������� ����� ��� ���� ��/������� ��������� ��� 4*,5�+++�
������� ����� ���� ����� ������� ������ 	��-��
� 	��3���� ��������
�������������567.�

.,� ���������������/
���
��������������������������3���.��




$!"
 �����	�	��
�	���	�������8�

������������������������������-�������������������������
���������
��������������������������������8�

�

*.� ������������������������������������������-��
���������������������
�����)���.+������������������������-�
��������0��
����������������
��������������.�

*.*� ���������������)3�������������������������������������������������0�
��������������������)���.+�������9�

�� ���'���1���������

�� �����%����

�� 	����:���;�����������

Agenda Item 9

Page 101



�

����������	�
����*�
�

*.,� ��)3������8�
�
�� ������������������ ����!�����������%���������)���
����
���

������ ������������
� ��� ����<������������ �������������������
����������������������.��
�

�� ���������������������������������������������)���
����
���
)������ ���������
� ��� ���� ������ �������� ���� ����������
���������)������������5=.�

�



���	��
���	�
 ��������	
����
�	���	
����	
�������

���	��




�%&&��'


(!"
 �)	
���	��


���������	
�����
��������������������
��������	����	�	�����������
���	��� ��� 
��� ����
� ��� 
��� 	�
�� 	��
���� ����� ��� �������� 
�� ���
�	�������
�������
�����������������
�

�� ��	�����������
���
� 	�	��� �������� 
��������
� 
��� 	�
�� 	��
���
 ����� ���	�� ���� �� ���� 
��� ������ ���� 	�	��� �������� ���
������
�

�� !�
����	�� �� 
����� �����	����� ��	���� 	�	��� ������ ������� 
��

������
�"����#
�����$�����%�	����	����������
�

�
����� �����
� ��������� ������������� ��� 
��� ����
���
� �����
� ��� 
���
�����	
��&��������
�� �������	�����
�������� ���
��������
�
�����
�����
������
����������	�������	����	�	���������
�
�

����	�
*��	��


!��������!���
��2�	�������������
$����������8�

&���)������!����)���*+,�

���������	����������8� !����)���*+,�

�0���������������8� !����)���*+,�

�������������������������8� >�������*+6�

�����������������������8� '�����*+6�

� �

Page 102



�

����������	�
����,�
�

+!"
 ���������	�
���


�

������	��3��������� 4�*,5�+++�

����������)���-��0���������������)�������������������������������������

�

�

,!"
 �����	�	��
���	��


�

5.� 	������������������� ���������������0����)�������
������?���������
!��������@����0��-��
���������0����������������������������������
��� ��� ����������� 0���� ���� ��<���������� ��� ���� ����� �������1��
���������	���������%����.�

5.*� @����0��
� ����������� ��������� ����0�����
� �������0����)�� �����������
�����0��
������������)�����-�������������������.�

�

�

-!"
 ���	��
.��������


�

A.� �����������������������������������������������������)������������
�����������������������������������������������0��������������
������������������
���������������������-��
��������
�������������
���������������)�����������)�������������������.


A.*� ���������������������3����0���������������������������������������
�����������������������-����0������������������������������������
���������������������������������'����%���.���������������������
���������)�����������������������������������������������?���������
������.�

�

�����@����������8�

@�����
8� ������8� !������8�

%�������� 4�*,5�+++� ��������	����%��8���567��

%�������2�%���0���� 4� �

!���������
������)�������

4� �

������������
��
@����

4� �

&����� 4�
�

�

Page 103



�

����������	�
����6�
�

A.,� ��������������������
�����B�������������'��-����<������������
0������
���
�������������
�����
�������������������������������-��
��
0�����������
��������������������������������������-��
����������.�

A.6� ����������)3������������������3�������������������������������
���-��
�����������������������������������������B�������������'��-���
�<���������������
�������������������������0�����������������������.


A.5� �����������)������������0�������������������������������
�����
��������������������-��
���������������0��������-��
��������������
����������
������������������������������������
���������
��������������0��������������������.


A.A� ��������������������
��������������������������)����������������
������3��������0�������)���
������������������������������
��3������������������������������������)������
�0�������0�����������
��������)��.�


A.C� '�������������������������������������������
�����������
��������
������������������/�����������������������)���������)����)��������
��������-�.�����������������������������0��������������)����<���������
��������������������0�����0������������)�������������������
��
������0��-��
�0����������������������.�


A.(� �����������������������0���������������������������������������������
�����������������0���������)3����������������������������)��
������������'���'�B������!������D������������)���
�������
�������������������0������������)����������:�
�0����2�����������
$�������������.


A.7� �����
�������������������������������������
�����
�����������
���3������������������������������������������������������-��
������
)����������������������������������.���������������
������������
���������������������������������������)������
�0�������������������
�������������0����.


�

�

/!"
 ����	�
�	����	�
��
����	�	������





C.� �������������������������)�����������������-��
��������������
���������������������)��-������������������������������������
������������)���.+���������.


C.*� $����������������������������������������������������������)���
.+��0����������)����)3�������������������������������
��������������
�������.





Page 104



�
�
�
��
��
�	

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

��
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
 
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�	
�


�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�	
�


�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�

�	
�
��

��
	
�

��
	
�
��


�


�

��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��

��
	
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
��

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�

�
�

!
!

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

 
�


�
�!
� 
�


�
"
���
#
���
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
�
��


�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�


%
�
��


�
�"
�
�
��
�"
��
��
�
�
��
�
&
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
	


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�'
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!
(�
�

��
%
�
��
�
�

�


��
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
&
��
��
�
�
��
�
�$
�
�
��
�
��
�)
�
��
*
�
#
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
��
��
�
�%
�
��
��
��
�"
�
�
�
"
��
!
�

+
�
�

�
�
�
�
�,
���
�-
��
"
�

�
��
.
�

�
��
/
�
#
�
��
(�
��
�
�
�
�
.
�
0

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�

�
�
�

"
#

1
�
�
�
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
��
��
"
"
�


�
��
�


�
��"
�

"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
"
�
%
%
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�"


��
��
!
�"
�
%
%
�
�
��
��
�
�


��
$
��
��
���
�!
��
��
%
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	


�
��
��
�
�2
�
�
�
(��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.
�

�
"
��
$
��
!
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
3
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
�
��
��
�

"


��
�
�
��
!
��
�
.


��
��
!
��
��
"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
� 
�


�
�!
�

1
�
�


"
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
.
��
��
%
�
��
�
!
�
��
�
�4
�

�
�
!
�
��
1
�
�


"
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
.
�"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
.
��
�


�
��
�!
�
���
#
��
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
�5
��
�
�6
�
�
�
��
�
�
+
�
�

$
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

&

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

��'���(�����)

*+�������

�� ����

����������

����������

,���-���

����������

�
��
/
�
#
�
��
(�
��
�
�
�
�
.
�
0

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�

�
�
�

"
#

"


��
�
�
��
!
��
�
.


��
��
!
��
��
"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
� 
�


�
�!
�

 
�


�
"
���


�
�
.
�
��
�
��
��
6
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�


�
��
�!
�
���
#
�

���
�
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
�5
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�#
�
���


�
�
�
7�

#
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��

��
�
�
��
�
��
$
�
��
.
�
��
��
�
��
�
�4
�

��
��


.
�
�


��
�
�
"
�
�	


�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
��

�
&
��
��
�
.
��
�


�
��
�!
�
���
#
��
��
�
�
��


��
��
�
�5
��
�
�6
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�,
���
��
��
�
�
��
"
�
�
�#
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
�#
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
.
��


��
�
.
��
�
�
��
$
�
�
��
.
�

+
�
�

'


���
�
�
���
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
4

�
�

8
�

9
8

#
#

1
�
�
�
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
��
��
"
"
�


�
��
�


�
��"
�

"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
"
�
%
%
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�"


��
��
!
�"
�
%
%
�
�
��
��
�
�


��
$
��
��
���
�!
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
%
�:
��
�
�
��
�
	


�
��
��
�
�
��
"
"
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

'


���
�
�
���
�
�
��
�
�
"
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
.
�

�
��
�
�
��
.
��
"
��
$
��
!
�

��
��
��
�
.
��
�
��
�
�
��
%
�
���
�
�
�
��
�
�.
�
��
�
���

�
%
�
���
��
�


"
��
�
�
��
�.
�
#
�
!
�"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
�
��

��
�
�
��
.
�

�
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�#
��
�
��
�

"


��
�
�
��
�
�
�#
�
��
��
.
��
��
�
�
!
��
�%
�
��
�
�
��
�"
��
�
�
��
-�
�
�
�

"
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�$
�
�
0

+
�
�

6
�

%
�
��
.
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�



�

�
�
�

�
�


.
!

/
&
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
"
��
�
�
�"
��
�
�
��
�
�;
��
.
(�
�<
�
�
�
��
$
�
��

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�

<
�
�
�
��
��
8
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
�3
��
�
��
!
��
�
!
�
�

+
�
�

;
��
.
(�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
	

=�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.
��
�
�
�#
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�


�
�!
� 
�


�
"
���
��
�
��

��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
7�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


.
.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

#
���
��
%
�
�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�%
�
$
�
%
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
�
�,
�


�
�
7�
#
�
�"
�
��
�
�
��
��
%
�
���

�
��
�
�
��
"
�
�>
�

*
�

Page 105



$
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

&

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

��'���(�����)

*+�������

�� ����

����������

����������

,���-���

����������

2
�
�
�
(��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
�

�
�

!
	

=�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.
��
�
�
�#
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�


�
�!
� 
�


�
"
���
��
�
��

��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
7�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�"
�
%
%
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

#
���
��
%
�
�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
%
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�"


��
�
�
��
!
�

�
&
�
�
��
�
�
"
�
�
��
��


�
�
��
�
�
�"
��
"
�
��
��
��
�
�?


�
"
��
�
�
��
��

2
�
�
�
(��
�
��
�
�
�
�;
��
.
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

 


��
�
�
��
�
�
�#
�
��
��
.
��
��
�
�
!
��
�%
�
��
�
�
��
�"
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
%
�
$
�
�
�

+
�
�

�
�
��
�6
�
��
�
"
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
9

�
�

�
�


�

/
"

=�
"
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
$
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
7�
��
���
#
��
.
�

�


%
�
��


�
��


.
.
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
"
�
�$
�
�
��
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�

*
�

1
�
.
�
�
��
6
�
��
�
"
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
8

�
�
�

�
	

�
�.
�
��
�"
�
�
��
�
�
?�
"
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
.
��
�
�
��
�
�
"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�(
�
��
��
"
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
1
�
.
�
�
��

6
�
��
�
"
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
%
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
#
��
�
��
��
�
�"


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�"
!
"
��
��
�
��
��
.
��

�
�.
�
��
�"
�
�
��
��
�


�
�
��
�
��
��
�.
�
��
$
�
�
�"
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
�
��
��
.
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�$
�
�
��
�
�

"
�
�
?

�
"
��
�
�
�#
��
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
$
��
�
��
�
�%
�
��

@
�
��
��
.
��
�
�
��
�"
��
�
�
�
��
�
�1
�
.
�
�
��
6
�
��
�
"
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�"
��
�
�
��
��
.
��
��
�
�
!
��
�%
�
7�
#
�
���
��

%
�
��
��
��
��
.
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
.
��
�
#
�
��
�
�

'
�
�
$
���
�
��
��
"
�
�

�

�
�
��
��
.
��
��
�
.
��
�
�
��
�
�
"
�
���
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
$
�
�
��
.
�
��
�
��

A


�
!
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
B

�
�
�

�
	

�
�
?�
"
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
"
�
�$
�
�
��
�
��


.
�
�

"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
$
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��

��
�
�/
=�
��
��
?�
"
��
#
�
�"
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
?�
"
�
�
��
��
�2
��
�
.
�
��
��

�

C
�
�


�
�<
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�


�


�
#

6
�
�
�"


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
��
�
�
��
�"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
��
D
�

$
�
�
�"
��
�
��
E
�
�
.
�
��
�
��
��
��
%
��
�
�
� 
�


�
�!
� 
�


�
"
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
��
�
�
#
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
.
�
��
��
B
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
$
�
��
.
�
�

�
�
�
.
�
��
�
�
.
��
.
��
��
%
��
9
��
�
�B
�

��
��


.
�
�


��
�
�
"
�
�	


�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
��

1
�
%
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
D
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

+
�
�
�

�
��
C
�
�
�
(�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
D

�
4
8

�
	

6
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
?�
"
��
�
��
�
��
!
��
��
C
�
�
�
(�
�

"
�
���
.
�
��
�
�.
��


�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
.
�"
�
�
�
"
��
!
�

��
	


��
�
%
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
"
�
�

�

Page 106



$
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

&

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

��'���(�����)

*+�������

�� ����

����������

����������

,���-���

����������

6
��
�
��
!
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
D

4
�

9
8

9
8

�
"

3
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
%
�
��
�
?�
"
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
7�
��
�
��
%
�
�
"
��
�
��
��
�


"
��
.
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.
�

�
�
!
��
!
��
�
�
�$
�
�
�"
��
��
�
�
.
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
%
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�
�

�
�.
�
��
�"
�
�
��
�
�
��
�%
�
�
��
��
�%
�
�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
7�
#
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
"
��
.
��
��
�
.
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
"
!
"
��
�

�
�
��
��
.
��
��
$
��
��
�
�

1
�
�


"
��
�
�
��
�
��
�)
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�6
��
�
��
!
�

 
�
���
.
�
��
�
��
�
�
"
�
��
-�
�
�
�$
�
�
�"
��
��
�
�
.
��
0

+
�
�

�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�


8

4


0

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�/
�
��
�


�.
�
�@
�
�
���
�
��
���
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
���
#
��
.
��
�
?�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
�"
�
��
��
%
�

��
�
� 
�


�
�!
� 
�


�
"
���

*
�

<
��
�
�+
�
��
��
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�




8


#
!

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
� 
�


�"
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
�


��
��
�

�%
�
��
$
�
��
&
�
��
�
.
��
��
�
��
%
�
�#
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
#
�

6
�
�
��
&
��
��
�
.
��


��
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
&
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�#
�
!
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

E
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

%
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
"
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
�
��
��
.
�
#
�
!
�

+
�
�

 
�
��
�
�(�
�<
�
�
�
��
��
"
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

!
	

 
�
��
�
�(�
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
!
��
%
�
��
%
�
�
��
�

*
�

6
�
�
�
��
� 
�


��
�1
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
4

�
�
8

�
�

!
	

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

<
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
��
�
��
!
��
�
�
"
�

+
�
�

:
��
�
��
"
�
�
�
��
<
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�


4
8

9
�

/
0

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

<
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
��
�
��
!
��
�
�
"
�
�
�

+
�
�

6
�

%
�
��
.
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
9

�
4
8

4
8

/
0

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

<
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
��
�
��
!
��
�
�
"
�
�
�

+
�
�

'
��
�
��
��
��
"
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
8

�
�


8
0

1
�
"
�
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
���
��
�
��
%
�
�
"
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
"
�
��
�
��
�
%
�
��
�

*
�

6
��
�
��
!
�<
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
B

�
4
�

�
	

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�
��
�
�"
�
�
"
�
��
�
��
$
�
��
�%
�
�
"
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�$
�
�
�"


��
��
%
�
$
�
%
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
"

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

*
�

 
�
�
��
�
�1
�
#

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
D

�
�

�
"

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

*
�

�
��
5
�
�
��
#
(�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
!

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

<
�
�
�
��
.
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
.
��
�
%
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�


�
��
�
��
&
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
&
��
��
�
.
��


���
��


��
�6
1
�
�

��
	


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
&
��
��
�
.
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
��
.
��
�
"
���
�!
��
�
#
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
��
!
�"
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
�

1
�
.
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
�

�
�

�
"

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

1
�
%
�
$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
.
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
!
��
!
��


��
��
�
�

/
�
�
�
&
�,
�


�
�
��
�
	


��
�
�
�

+
�
�

Page 107



$
��
%
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

&

�
�
��

�

�

�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

��'���(�����)

*+�������

�� ����

����������

����������

,���-���

����������

/
�%
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
"

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

+
�
�

:
��
)
��
!
�<
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
4

�
�
�

�
	

6
�
�


.
�
��
��
��
%
�
�
"
��
�
�
��
�
�$
�"
�
�!
�
��
��
"
"
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

'
��
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
7�
�
�
��
�"


��
��
!
��
�
��
��
�.
�
�$
�
�
�"
��
�

�
"
"
�
�
�
�

�

2


��
�
�.
�
��
��
"
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
�

�
�

�
"

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

*
�

*
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�
8

�
8

�
0

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
"
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
�


��

*
�

�
'
�
�
&

1
.
0

,
�
%
��
�
�

�
�
�
�&

�
�
��

�
�
�2
��
�
�
3�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��

�

/
�
�
��
1
�
�
�

�
8

�
�
�

�
!

�


��
��
�
��
�
�
�2
��
��
�
�
�,
�
�
��
�:
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�#
�
!
�

*
�

�
�
��
�
��
,
���

=�
��
�
�
��
%
�
���
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�
%
�
��
�
.
�
�
1
�
%
�
$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
7�
�


��
"
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
,
���

�
�

�
8

!
0

=�
��
�
�
��
%
�
���
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
��


��
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�
%
�
��
�
.
�
�

E
�
�$
�
��
��
!
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�

1
�
%
�
$
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
.
��
�
!
7�
�


��
"
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

"
�
�
�
"
��
!
��
&
��
��
�%
%
�
�
��
��
�!
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
!
�

+
�
�

�
�
�
�
�,
���
��
��
��
�C
�
%
��
(�

�
�

�
�


#

1
�
�
�
�
�.
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
%
�
��
$
�
�

�
"
"
�
�
�
��
���
�!
�#
�
�"
�
�"


��
�
�
��
!
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
&
��
��
��
��

%
�
�
���
�!
��
%
�
�
��
�
�
�

<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
.
��
�
�
"
�
��
�
��
��
�
�'


���
�
�
��

+
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
�

#
!

�

��
�
��
�
��
'
 
�
��
��
��

��
�

0
�
"

Page 108



�

����������	�
�����
�

���� ����	�
�������	���������	�������	����	������

��� ������� ��� �������
������� ������� �������� �� ���� ���������������
�����������������������
����������������������������������������
������������� ��� ��� ������������������� ���������� �� ��������������� ����
���������������������������������������

�!� "������ ������ ���������� ��� ����� ��� ���� ��������������#� ��
��
��������� ���������� �������� ��
�������� ������ �������� ����� ���
��$������ ��� ��� �������� ���� ��� ���� ������� �������#� ���  ���� ����
�%�����
����������������������������������������������� �������������
��������������� ������������������&� ���� ��� ����������������������
������ ����
���������������������������������������������������������
����
���������������������'��������������������(�����

�)� �� ������� ��� ���� ��������� ���������� ������� ��� ��������� ���'��
�
����������#��������������������'�������#�����%�����
����������
��������
�������������������

�*� +���� ��� ���
�� ��� ������ ���������� ���� ����� ��� ����� ��� ����
��������������#��������������� ���,�����������-���������

�.� ������������
�������� ���������� �������� ������ ������ ����	����/����
������������0��������#������������������������������������������������
����������������������������������������������������������
��������
����� �������� ���� ����� �������� ����� �� ������
� ����� ����� ����� �����
���� ��������
�����������������������������������������������

�1� ��� ������������ �������������'��
������������������� ��� ����� ������
�
���� �����
� ���� � ����
� ���� ��� ��"�����#� ����������� ��� ���� ���
����� ��� ��������� � ��� ����� ������ ���������� �%����� ��� ����� ���������
�����
��������������

�2� /��� ��#� ���� ����� ����������� ����� ��� �������� ���� ������ ����� ���
��$������ ��� ���� ��������� �� ����������� ������ ��#� ����� ��� ��� 3��
��
	����������������0�������������������'��

�� ���� ���������� ��������� ����
��������
����"�����#� �������������
4��������5���������� 6�������� �������� ���� ����� ��� �� ������ ��� �)��
��7�����������8����������������������������������������������

�9� ���������������
��������������������������#���������������������
�������������������������
������������������������

��:� ;���� ��������� ������� ���� 0��������#� ������� ���� ����� ,%����
��
���� ����� �������#� ����� �� �� ���� ���������� ��� 
��������
������������� ������
����� ���#������� ���������� ������
������������
��������������	����/��������<�������"������������

Page 109



�

����������	�
����9�
�

���� 6������� ������������� ���������� ��'��� ������ �������� ���� ����
��������#� ������ ������ ����� ��� ���� ���������� ���� ������ ������� ���
����������

��!� ����������������������
������������������������������������������
����� ��'��� ����� �������� ��� ���� �� ����� ��������� ��������� ��� �����
������#�������������� �������������
������������������������������
��� �� ���� ��� ��� ���� ������������ ��������� ���� ������
����� ���� ��� ���
��
 ����������������� ���������������������

��)� /��� ��#� ��������������������������/0=� �������� ��������� ������
�����������������������������������������������������)����� ���
*��

��*� ������� ����� ���������� ��'�� ������ ��� 	������ ������� ��� ������ ����
������ ����������������� ������������������������� ������%��������
;���>��"����������	����/��������3��
��	�������

��.� ������ ����������������������������	����/�������������������������
������������������������ ������������

��1� ������  �������� ���� ����� ��
������� ������� ���'���� ��� �� ���
,����������� ��������� ���� ������ ����
� ���'��
� ������������� ��� �����
������

��2� ;�������������,%����
������������������������� ���������������
����
��� ��� ���� ��������� ������#� ������ ������� ���� ���
����� ������ ��� �������� ��������� ����� ��������� ���� ����� ��������
�����������������
�������������
�������
�� ���������

�
���� ���������
������	�����
�
9��� 5���� �������� ��� ���� ������������� ���� ��� ������ ��� ���� �������������

�����������������%�;�����������������
�
�
����� �
����
���
���
���
����

�

�:��� ����������������������������������
�����������?�!:�)@�*�

�:�!� ����������������������
�����������
�������������

�
�
����� ���	����
���
���
������������	����
� �!�

�

������������������������� �������������������� ���
���������������(�����

Page 110



�

����������	�
�����:�
�

�"��� #$%�
���
���
����
�

�������������=����������������������
��������������(�����

�

�&��� '�	 (���������)��
� ��

�

A�B������������(�������������������������
C���
������	���D�

�
E��

�
�

�*��� ��
�������� �+������

�

	����� ���������
E��

�������
E�
��� ���������

� � F6� � � � �

�
���� ������������������ ��������(������������� ���� ����� ���������
���'��
� ����������� ���� ���� ����� ������� ���� �������
�� ������
� ��� ��
��������������������������� �������������� ��� ��������������������
�������������������
�����������������#����������������������������
����������(���������������'��������� ����������

�

�

�,��� -��	�
���
���
�����

�

�.��� ���,$�������������������������A,$��B����������������������������
���(������������������������������%�+��

�.�!� ���,� ��������������������������������������������������������
��������(������������������������������%�,�

�
�
�.��� )�����	/�
	����	������
�	(��������	�����
�

)	�
�� )�
���� %�����0��	��

����������	�
����
������������������������
�����

�������������������

������������

�������	��	������

��������������������

������������������������

��������
�����������������

�������� ��	�����!"�����

�������������������	�
#�����������$������%�
&�����

Page 111



�

����������	�
�������
�

�1��� 2�����(�������	�3�	���	��	������

�

�1��� �������(������� �����������������������������������������
��������������������
�����������������������C�����������������������
�������$���������������
������������������������������������
���� ����������������������������(��������������������������������
���������

�

����� $����
�����4��� 	�����5��	��

�

�		,E+�G���
5���������;���'�����
�
�		,E+�G�;�����
�������������4������
�
�		,E+�G�����
	����������������������������
�
�		,E+�G�+���
,$�������������������������A,$��B�
�
�		,E+�G�,�
,� �����������������������������

�

�

�

������+�����
���������	��

�

������>��E���� �������	�������

������>��	�����E��� :�!!)�*.2!2��

������>���7����?� ��������������H�������
��
� ��'�

+������������?� ��:9��)�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 112



�

����������	�
������
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�����������
	
�����������

Page 113



�

��
�

��
�

�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
 
!
�!

�
�
��
�
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
��
�

	
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

"
#
��
�
�
�

$
��
�
��
�
�
�
���
��
�
%
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&

"
 
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��

 
!
�

�
�
�
#�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��

 
$
�
��
�	
%
�
&

�
'

'
�
�
�
��
 
�
�
��
'
��
�
�

(
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
��
�)
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�

*
�
*
��
�
�
�
��



+
�
� 
�
��
�
�
�,
�
�
�
�

+
%
��
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
 
 
�
��
�
�
�
��



�
"
#
��
�
�
�

-
!
#
.
/
�!
0
�
��
�	
�
��
��


�	
��
1�
�
�

*
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�)
�
��
�
�
�

"
 
��
��
��

 
$
�

�
�
�
#�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
(

&

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
 
$
$
�
�
�!

Page 114



�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������	�

������������������

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

Page 115



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
�

�������	
�������
��
��
����
������	�����
���
�
���������������������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
 ����!����"#$%�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��������	
����
������

���		��
���
��	�
����	�


��	
���������

��������	

���
���


Page 116



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
������������������������
�

�
����������	�
	��� � � � � � � � � ���������
�
�
�
��
�����
��������� � � � � � � � � ��
�
�
�����
����	�����
	���
��
�
�
�� �������	�����

���� � ����������������	
��������������	�� �� � � � !�

���� "	 ����#�	������� � � � � � � !�

��!� "	 �������������� � � � � � � $�

�
�
�� �����
�������%	��&����

���� �����
����������	���� � � � � � � '�

���� (��)
��*�+������������������,- ��������� � � � � '�

��!� .������� � � � � � � � � '�

��$� "��� �
������ � � � � � � � /�

�
�
!� ���
�	������
�����������������

!��� ���
�	������
�����������
��� � � � � � /�

!��� "��������)����
�	������
���������������� � � � ���

!�!� %��������
�"����������� � � � � � � �!�
�
�
�
$� "������� � � � � � � � � � �$�
�
�
�
%������-�%� �����
�������0��1������	���� � � � � � �
�
%������-�#� ��	�����)�0����
��������������	��&���� � � � �
�
%������-��� 2�� �����	������	
��"���������
�"��&�������
��� � �
� �
�

�
�

Page 117



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
������������������������
�

�
��
�����
���������
�

�
�
� �����
�	�	����
���������&�����������)�� �����
�	������� ������� �
������ ��
�����������������&��� ����&��1������ �����������
�	�������)����������
�	�	
������������
� �� ������)�� ��	����	��������
�
�������������������	�
������������	������
����������� ��&��1���-������������ ����
1 ���������������� �����
�	�	����
��������2�1�&��*���������	�������������1�

������&���
����

����������������*��������������	 ���������� ���	 �����������
���
�
������������

��)�
��� ���� ��	����
������� ��������	����	������		���)�

���� ��
	����
����������	 �����1��������&������������	�*�1�� ��&����33�������������	��&���
)�����	������ ��	����
�������������� �������	��������������������
��������
�14�
�

��� ����������
��������
��������������������)���� ��������	������� ����������)�
���������
�	�	
������������	������������������	�������
�

��� "����)�	����	��	�����&���� ��&����
�����	���)�� ��	���������
����������)�	�	
��
������������������������ ��5��
� �

*����5��
� �

�"�����*�6�����"7���������
�����	�
��
�������2�

��

�
!�� 8�	�
��������
�������
�&����&� �	
���		�����
����#���9��"������������ ��. ��
���"��

���������2�

������)���� ��%����� ���������������,-	 �������������	����������
����������&����
���))�	�����

�
$�� �������
��)���"������2�������������������������(����1����� ��� �����������

������)���1 ��������������1�� � �� ���������������������
�

'�� "��������	��������� �����������
�����)����������	����������9�����	������ ������
�)�������������	���

�
/�� � ����������������
�����
�1�� �������������	�	
���������������	���	��������

���� ���	���
�
:�� �
�����������)������������
�	�	
������������������ ��	����	������������� �������

�-������������	�&���	�	
�������
�

Page 118



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������!�
�

�
;�� %�
�	��)���������)�����������)�	����������������)�������������)���� �� �� �

	���	�������
��	�	
����������
�
�
������	
����)����� ��	����������	��&��*�� ���� ��������������������)�	��	������
��������
� ���������
���������� ��5��
� �

*�1 ����� �������	������
��� ������������������)���
���������
�	�	
������������� ��	����������)������������1���������
�
� ���������)���	�	
������������� ��	����	���������	
����)����

������������� ��
)���������
������)�� ��������	�����������&�����������������������)�	�
������)����-�������
�������������)������	�	
�������1� ��
�
2�1�&��*�� ��������	
���
�������	��)
�	�������������������	��1�� ���� ��	����	������
������)������
��	��1�

������������)��������1����� �����&�������)����������
�	�	
��
������������ ��������&������������&������	����� ������� ������������������
�����������
�)�� ��	����	�������
�
�
�

�� �	���������	�
�
�
���� � ����������������	
��������������	��
�
%� 	�����
� �����)�<'33*333�1��������&������8�

�����	�
� ����	�������3��*� ��� )���� � ��
��������������	
��������������	�*�1 �	 ������������&�����*333����������
�	�	
���������
���	������� �� ������)�� ��	����	��������
�
� ��	����	������ ����&������1������������������������*�1 �	 �������������	���������� ��
	�����-�����*������	�
��
��������� ���� )����������� ��� � �������)�	�������1� ���������� ��
���������	�
9��&�������)���	����1 �����������������������������
��������
�	����������*�����
�������)���������������&���)���� ��������	���� ���������)�����	����	�	
������������� ��
	�������	
����)����

� ������������ ��������	���������������)�	���
����	������	���	�������� ��
 ������)�� ��	����	������1 ����� ������������������� �� �����.�� �� ����������*�� �������	��
 ����1���������=�
�

�� ��� ���&���� 
�	�
����� ���������� 	�	
�� ������� � ���� ���� � �� 	���� 	������ 1 ����
���	���

�1������� ���������)���	�	
������������ �� ��

�� �������	���� � ���������	�&�����	����	�	
�����*�����
��� ��� � �����������"������
5�����%�	����	����������

�
�
���� "	 ����#�	�������
�
%������
����������
�&�
��������)�� ��	����	������ ��������	����������*��������������� ��
�������)�� ��	����	������1 ����� �������	������
����� ��������)���	����	�	
��������*�

������������)����
���������������������	��&���������������)�	�	
����
�

Page 119



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������$�
�

� ��������������������� ��5��
� �

�����6�����"7���������
)�1���� �� 
�� �������
 �&�����������)�	����� ���)�

����������*�1 �
��� �&����� ���������������
�)������������
�
����������&�������
�
� �����������	��&���)�� ��������	�����������&������	����	�	
������������� �� ������)�� ��
	����	����������� ��5��
� �

�����6�����"7�������������������������� ��)�	�
�������
1�� ���� �� ������	�	�����
�
%�	���������
����� �����1���� ���)�����
�	������� ����������)����������
�	�	
��
����������� �������*�1 �
���������������		�����	��)
�	�������������)������ ���*���	 ����

��������		���*������������)
�1�������������&��������
�
� �����
����������������)�� ����	 ���� ����
��������	��������������	�����	�����1�� �
���������� ���������������	�
*����� ������������)�� ���������
���))�	��� �����
�	�
 �� 1���)���1 �	 ����������������
����
�
6�����)�� ���������
���
�������	������-����������))�	�����
������������*���	 �������
�������������������
�������*������
��������������-��������%�)��� ����������������	����
1�

�� ���)���������7���������������� ����������*�1 �	 �1�

������������	�����������
� ���� �	
����1������1�� �� �������������	�
��
�
� ���� ����� ��	��	�����������
�����������������������)�� ��������	�*��������������
�

�	�������)������������
�	�	
��������� �&����������	�������)���&����������������� ����
 �&���������)����� ����������
�)�����&������))�	������� �����
�	� �� 1��������)���
�)����
���&����
����1������
�
�
��!� "	 ��������������
�
�

�����	��"��������������	�������"����� 0�	�������3������>��������3�!�

���	����0������"����� >����������6��	 ��3�!�

���
��������0������"����� 6��	 ����>�����3�!�

���������	��������	� ���������
��
��
�� !�"�

%����&�
��)��������������������6�������� ;��	�������3�!�

0����
���0������"�����
?��	
���������))�	�����
���������������	���@�

�	�������3�!����0�	�������3�!�

�����	������)��������	�������)��������� 0�	�������3�!�

�������	����� >����������6��	 ��3�$�

�
���
����������������������	
��������������	������������?���������������������
�@�

�
�

Page 120



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������'�
�

 � ��	��������	����������
�
�
���� �����
����������	����
�
� �����
�	�	����
�������1���	������������������)��
�	�
����������*������������������ ���
������� �
������)�� ���	 ������������	��������������
�������
��������������	�������
� ������&�
&���������� ����&�
��������)�� ���	 �������&������&�
���
������������
)�����	����� ���������������������
�
� ��	����
��������������������������/�>�
���3�!�����)���� �������!�%�������3�!����
��������������	���
�����7��������������1����������������������� �����������	�
����
� ��
���������)�� ��	����
�������������*� �1�&���� �����������	�
���	���������

�1�
����
������������)�	������������
�:� �"����������3�!��
�
%���- ���������)�� ���������
��1����
��� �
������ ��5��
� �

�� ���� ����� ��	����
�������
������������))�	����1����������������1���		��������������
��� ��������������������	����
� ���������
��1�� �� �������	��������
��
�
���� (��)
��*�+������������������,- ���������
�
%��������)�� ��	����
����������	�������%!���A��
��)
���1��������	���)�����	 �
�	���������
 �
��� �����
�	������������������������)�� ���&���

������	�����1�

�����

������������)�� ��
�����
����������
�������	 �����&����
�
�	�������,�	
�����1�� �����	 �
��)
���1�����
)��������7��������������(��)
����1������
�&�������� ��������

�������������	
����
���-��������*����1�� ���&��1��)*���	 ����������
�	�������
�
� �����
�	��- ������������������%3�����
�����)�� ��
�	�������1�� ������
����
�����)�� ��

�����������������(��)
����)�����	 �
�	������1�����
����&��
��
��)���&�����������	���
����
����
��&�������	���������������-��
�
� ����	�����)����1������ ���)������� ��������)���� ���	����
�������	������)��������
%������-�%��)�� �����������
�
�
��!� .�������
�
%�1��������)���� ��������	��1���	����������
����� ��������������&������)������������� ��
�����	�*���	
��������������������
�

� �������	��1��������	������)��������� ��)�

�1����1����������4�
�

 ����4BB111�	�����������&��B	����	������	�	
���������
�
� ��1�����������&����������
�����)���������)�����	 �
�	��������������*������
���
��	
���������������)�)�������*�����
����� �����
�	������&��)�����	������������ ���1���
	��&����������� ����� ����)����������	
����4�

�

Page 121



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������/�
�

�� 0�1�
����������08��)���	 �
�	����������)��������7��������������
�

�� ����
���������C��
����+������������D�
�

�� %

�1����� �����
�	�������������	������������������������������ ���	 �����
�

�� 6�������1��� �������
����������
��������������	����	��� ����
�&������������
� �����������	�
��

�
�
��$� "��� �
�����
�
%���	�����)����1���������	�&������
������1��������������������)������������������
���� �
��������������������*���&������� ��������&��)�����	�����	������������ ��
����������	 ���������������� ���
�������- ����������
�
E������� �
�������	
����=�
�
� ��)�8�����))�	���
����"�� ��
����������0��)�%���	�������
���������� ����6��	���
0�����
�������������� ����
,�����)�,��
����%���
��	��"��&�	��
��
�	��%�&����*������������ �������)�������	��
��������������*���������F�8������
�����2��
����%���	�������"��� ��������,��������������
G��&��������)�����������
"��&���������*�������������
�	��"�)���H��� ���� ����������	����
�

�

"� ���������	��������	�#
���	�
��
�
!��� ���
�	������
�����������
���
�
� ���������������� ���������������������)����1���������*�)����
��)���� ���������������
� ��7������������������������ ��7�������������	��	�������� ��)�����������	����)�� ��
����������	 ������ ����	�����������1���� ��	��������������������������������
� ��7������������������)�����������������&����
�����������)�������� �
���������
�����������
�
� �����������	�
���	��&����&����33���	����������������� ���� ����� ��	����
�������
��������-	
������� ������	��&���)����������� �
������,&�����))���� ����������������
�������� ���� ������� ��������������������	����
�����������
���)����� ������������
��	��&����
�
� ��������
�������������� ������&����
����������
�	�����������

�����������
�1�������
��
��������)��������3��
�

Page 122



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������:�
�

���������(�	������ I��� H�� 6����� H�����)����	��

#���J��"������ ;$� �!� K� !�

����
��"������ ;�� !� /� :�

� ����J��(���� :/� /� ;� ;�

� ����J�����	��� ;�� !� /� ;�

,����"������ ::� '� ;� /�

8��A����(���� :/� !� �3� ;�

8����"	 ��
�(���� ;!� !� K� !�

5�������
�	�� :/� $� ��� !�

5��
� �

�"������ :;� �� K� ��

>�����(���� ;3� :� :� /�

E���J��������� ;:� ��� /� ��

(����I����B�"������"������ ;'� :� /� $�

6�����"7����� ;�� ';� �3� ��

H��)�
�"������ :K� �� �3� /�

���������	�� :'� �� �3� ;�

�����2�

� :;� �;� ;� $�

+�������� :/� K� K� :�

������������	���������J�����	�� :�� ;� �3� '�

������������	��� :/� !� :� :�

�������"������ ;$� �� ;� :�

������� ��	 �"������ ;�� �� :� !�

"������"������� :K� �!� ;� !�

"������2�������������� //� �:� ��� '�

"���%����1J��"������ ;$� '� ;� !�

"���>� �J��"������ :/� �3� ;� '�

������������������ :K� /� ��� :�

��������(���� :�� K� /� �3�

��������"������ :$� :� �!� ��

������������"��������(�	�������� ;!� '� ;� ��

������������"��������(�	�������� ;$� /� /� !�
�
��������	���
������������������������������������������

�

Page 123



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������;�
�

�
�

�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

Page 124



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
����������������������K�
�

� ����	��&��������)���� ������������7��������� �&���
��������	�

���������	������
)�������
�1=�

�
�
� +G,"���H4���2�1��)�����������	�	
������ ��	����	�����L�
�

�
�
�
� +G,"���H4����
�������

����� ������������������	�	
������ ��	����	�����L�
�
�

�
�
�

Page 125



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�����������������������3�
�

� +G,"���H4���0����� ��
�	��)�	�	
����������))�	����������&�

����	 ��	�L�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
� +G,"���H4���. ������� �����������������)�	���������������������)�	�	
��������L�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 126



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�������������������������
�

+G,"���H4���2�&����&��1���� �������*��
�����	��)����1 �	 �������)�	�	
�����������������
��������������������������)��L�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
%��������
�	��������1�����������������������)�� ���������������&����
�
�	��������%�
	����� ����&����	�����)�� ����	��������	������)��������%������-�#��)�� �����������
�
� ��&��1���-������������ ����1 ���������������� �����
�	�	����
���������������
��	������
��������������� �����������	�
��. �
�����������	�������������1�

������&������
�

����������������*��������������	 ���������� ���	 ���*�� ����1�

�������������	�

��
��������)��1���������������)�� ��)���
��	 ���������&�
����	�����
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 127



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�������������������������
�

!��� "��������)����
�	�	����
����������������
�
� ����	��&������������	��������)����� ���	����
������� �&����������
���������� ��
������������	��������������������)�

�1�4�
�

�� 8����
�����1���	
����� ���� ��������	�����������

��&����1�
	���������������)�	����
����������)�� ������������������� ���	����
��������
�

�� 5�����
�	��	�����1�����-���������&�����������
�	��)
�	���1�� ��� ��������*�
�����	�
��
������������������
��������	��&������������	��)����������
�	������*���	 �
���"������"�����*�� ��6�����"7���������"������2��������������

�

�� ���������)����������
����������� �� 
�� ����� ���� ����������)�����)�� �� �� �
	���	����	�	
������������� ���������
�����)����
������������1���)�������
�����
�����
�����	�
��
������������ ���������)�� ��5��
� �

��

�

�� �����)�� �������	������ �� 
�� �������������
��������� ���������)�����������
	�	
�������� ���&����������������)���������������)�� ����	���������	���	����
���&�����������������������
�*�����	��

��	������������ ��
�&�
��)���&��������
����������

�

�� � ������ ���	�����	���)�	�	
������������&������ ��������7�����������������*�
�����	�
��
�����
�	��������)� �� � ������	�&�
��*���	 ����"��>� �9��"�����*���������
"�����*�E������������������������5�����"��6���9��� ��	 ����6�����"7������

�

�� � ������	�����
��������	��&�������"��>� �9��"��������������"������1�����	��	����
�-������������ ����

���9������������������� ��������&���������1������	 ��)�
 �� 1��*�1�� �	���������
����������
�)���	����������	���������
�������&� �	
���
�
�	����� ��	�������1����������� ��
�	��)�
�������)�	�
�������

�

�� � �������������)�	��	������
��������� ���������������� ��5��
� �

*�6�����"7�����
����&� �	�
����		�������� �������2�

���������� ��������)�� ��5��
� �

��

�

�� %����������	����������$/������������1�����	��&���)����6�����������������	��������
� ��������������&�������)�	�	
������������6�����"7��������� ����������� ������1�

�
 �&���������)�	������&���������	������ ����
��������	��&���������� �����������������)�
��	 �������

�

�� %������	�����)����6����F�"���	����1����
�����	��&���	������� ����������
�)���
����	������		�������� ����
��������������6�����"7������

�

�� ���1���)�
��� ���� ���������
�����5��
� �

�"���������� ��(����I����������)�� ��
5��
� �

�	��
�� �&��� ����������
������������		����)����&��������� �����

�����

����� �

���)�� ��5��
� �

��

�

�� � ����������)����������	�	
������������� ���
�	������1����
���� ��� ������������
� ��&��1������� ���)����
������� ���� ����6�����"7�����)����8�� ���"7������

�

Page 128



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�����������������������!�
�

�� � ����1�������	 ��������������	��������� ���������
������ �������2�

�������)�� ��
5��
� �

*����������� ����������)����������	�	
�������������	��������� ��&��1��
����
������� ���� ����� ��#���9��"������������ ���&��
��
�����	��)���
�����������
�����
�����������	��&�����
�

�� ���	����1����
����-������������ �������,-	 ���������%����� ������1�� �����������
� ����������
�)�������	������ ���������)�	����
��������	��&���*�1 �	 �����
������
����
�����	�������))�	�
�����������*����������� ���-������� �� 1���
�������������))�	�
������������	��������

�

�� %	��&������������ ��	
�	����� �����	������)�#���9��"������E������������1����
���
 �� 
�� �����������������������*����� ��������� ������	��
�����)��� ����-����������
���� ��������������������
�	�	
����������

�

�� � ��)���
������������)�	����������1����������� ���������
������������������-�����
� ��	�������	�	
�����������������9�����	������ �������)�������������	����

�

�� � �����&�
&���� ��
�����)������-�����
��:�����)��-����������������	�*�1 �	 �1���
������
������	���������������������������

�

�� ������������� �������)�� �� �� �	���	�������
���������1�����
�����	��&��*�1�� �� ��
���������)�&�������� �����������M� �))��
�9����
���������� ������
����)�� �� �� �
	���	��������������
����� ����9��(����	������)��������%������-����)�� �����������
"�����)�� ���������	����� �&�����������
&������� ����1���������)� �� �	���	����
��	*� �1�&���� �����������������	��&����������1���=�

�
�� �&��
��	���
�	�����
�� G�
��
�� %��������F��))�������
�	B��
�	�
�� #���)���1 ��
���������
�� 0�))�	�
��)�����������
�)����������� �� ��������
�� �������)���� ����1�� ��������������������

�

�
!�!� %
�������&��"�����������
�
"�����������)������������
�	�	
���������
�	�������1�����
�����	��&����������
���)�� ���
	����
���������
�
� ������	
����=�
�

�� � ��
��������������� ������ ��)�5�����"��6���9��� ��	 ��

�� ��������#����� �2�����8�������������������,����������

�� %�����������>����9�����
�����������������������2�

�

�� ����������
�	��"������������������

�� %��+������%���������	����������

�� ����
��"������

�� %������� ��������������

Page 129



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�����������������������$�
�

$� ��������
�
������������

��)�
��� ���� ��������������������������	
��������������	�����
�	�
�����
������� ��������	����	������		���)�

���� ��	����
����������	 �����1��������
&������������	�*�1�� ��&����33�������������	��&���)����� �����
�	�����)��� ���
������������	��&���)����������)����������� �
������,&������������1�� ���&��1��)���	 �
�)�� �����������
�	�������1����
��� ������
�&�������
��)
����
�
� ��	����
�������)��� ��� �� 
�� ����� ��	
�����������)������������
�	�	
������������� ��
 ������)�� ��	����	�����*������
���� ������������
��	�����&��������������� ��	��)
�	�����
��������)������	��)������ �������������� ������	������ ���������	�����
�
���1����
��� �� 
�� ����� ���� �����������
�&�
��)���&������������ ������������
��������
���&�������
�����������������	���������������������
�&�
���)����������������
���������	�*������������ ���� �������&����������)�	�
�������������������
������
�))�	��&��������)��1������ ����� ��������������� ������������������ ������������
���	�����-�����)���� ������
��������������)�����������	�	
����� ���1�

���7�����)��� ���
���	�������������&�
�������1�� ����������� ���������������	�
*�������������������
1 ������)�����
������������)�� �� �� 1�����	������1�� ���������	���	������
���&��
��
�����
��� ���� ���������
�
� ����������)�� �� �� �	���	����	�	
�������*������	�
��
��� ����&�����������*�1 �
���������
	����	�������������1������

�1�
	��������������)�� ����������������� ��������&��
�������� ���1�����������1�

� �&����������
��	������� �����������	 ��&�� �� ���������
)�	�
�����*��������� �������)�	����
�	��)��&��
��
�����	�������&����	����	��	����	��������
� �����-��	��������)����)��������
����������)�� �� �� 1���1�����
�������)��	������
������������	��&���)������	 ��������
�
� ��
�	�������� ��� �&���������� �������	��	����1�

������&��1���)�

�1����� �����	����
�)�� ���	����
������*���)��������)���
��������
����������)��1����)������
������������
� ����1�

���	
����� ���������������� ��5��
� �

�����6�����"7���������� �������1�
����������	 ����"������"�����*�"��>� �9��"��������������"���
�
"�����)�� ���� ���
�	�������� ��� �&���������	��	���������
��������������	���
���
�*�
���� �������&����
��������	����)���������������� ��	�	
������������&�����*���	 ����� ��
�������������9�����	������ �������)�������������	���
�
8��� ���	����
�������1�

������	����������������1����������
�
�	������������&����������
�-��������������
��� ����������������� �&���������)�	���
�� �� �������	�*���)����� ����
���
�����������	��
�����	�����������
�
�
�
8���)��� �����)�����������
���������� ��	��������)�� �����������
�����	����	�4�
�
%����1���������
�����	��0�
�&����F�,�&���������6�������
��
4������3���!�$':�:��
,���
4�������1��������N	�����������&���

Page 130



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�����������������������'�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

����%&�'���
�����
�������0��1������	����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 131



C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

   C
IT

Y
   C

E
N

T
R

E
   C

Y
C

L
E

   P
A

R
K

IN
G

   P
R

O
J

E
C

T

O
N

-
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

 
 

P
R

O
P

O
S

A
L

S

S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
A

M
E

:

B
e
n
e
’t S

tre
e
t

C
a
s
tle

 S
tre

e
t

C
h
ris

t’s
 L

a
n
e
/D

ru
m

m
e
r S

tre
e
t

C
h
ris

t’s
 P

ie
c
e
s
/D

ru
m

m
e
r S

tre
e
t

E
d
e
n
 S

tre
e
t

F
itz

ro
y
 L

a
n
e

F
re

e
 S

c
h
o
o
l L

a
n
e

G
ra

n
ta

 P
la

c
e

G
u
ild

h
a
ll S

tre
e
t

J
e
s
u
s
 L

a
n
e

K
in

g
s
 P

a
ra

d
e

L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

 

M
a
rk

e
t S

q
u
a
re

N
o
rfo

lk
 S

tre
e
t

P
a
rk

 T
e
rra

c
e

P
e

a
s
 H

ill

Q
u
a
y
s
id

e

R
e
g
e
n
t S

tre
e
t

R
e
g
e
n
t T

e
rra

c
e

R
o
u
n
d
 C

h
u
rc

h
 S

tre
e
t

S
e
n
a
te

 H
o
u
s
e
 P

a
s
s
a
g
e

S
id

n
e
y
 S

tre
e
t 

S
t A

n
d
re

w
’s

 S
tre

e
t

S
t J

o
h
n
’s

 S
tre

e
t 

T
e
n
n
is

 C
o
u
rt R

o
a
d

T
rin

ity
 L

a
n
e

T
rin

ity
 S

tre
e
t 

T
ru

m
p
in

g
to

n
 S

tre
e
t

D
R

A
W

IN
G

 N
U

M
B

E
R

:

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
4

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
9

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
2

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
2

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
2

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
3

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
4

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
6

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
3

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
8

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
4

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
1

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
2

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
4

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
5

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
3

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
7

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
1

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
6
 / 0

1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
1

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
8

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
7

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
0
 / 0

1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
1

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
1
 / 0

1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

2
0

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
9

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
3

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
7

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
9

0
1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

0
4
 / 0

1
4
-0

1
8
/0

0
0
/0

1
5

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
 R

 O
 J

 E
 C

 T
    D

 E
 L

 I
 V

 E
 R

 Y

Page 132



S
ite

 o
n
 e

x
is

tin
g

 o
ff-p

e
a

k
 ta

x
i ra

n
k
 

(fro
m

 4
.0

0
P

M
-6

.0
0
P

M
), w

h
ic

h
 

a
llo

w
s
 8

 s
p

a
c
e

s
. T

h
is

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 

w
o

u
ld

 re
d

u
c
e

 it b
y
 4

.

C
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 g
u

llie
s
 

a
n
d
 u

tility
 c

o
v
e
rs

.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

g
u

llie
s
 a

n
d
 u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

1
4

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
2

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

M
a

rk
e

t S
q

u
a

re

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t M
a
rk

e
t 

S
q

u
a

re
.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 C
h

u
rc

h
 o

f S
t M

a
ry

 T
h

e
 G

re
a

t: 1
4

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 M
&

S
/O

a
s
is

 s
h

o
p

 fro
n

ta
g

e
: 1

0
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 4

8

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

1
4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 k

e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t fo

r h
ig

h
 

c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

N
o
te

s
:

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt B

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt A

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
0
0

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

B

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

B
R

e
lo

c
a

tio
n
 o

f th
e

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 th
e
 c

h
u

rc
h
 d

u
e

 to
 n

e
w

 

'ta
x
i ra

n
k
' m

a
rk

in
g
s

0
4
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3

Page 133



PeasHill

E
x
is

tin
g

 fo
u

r b
o
lla

rd
s
 

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e

d

E
x
is

tin
g
 n

in
e
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 b
e

 re
m

o
v
e

d

E
x
is

tin
g

 fiv
e

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 b
e

 re
m

o
v
e

d

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 g

u
llie

s
, u

tility
 

c
o

v
e
rs

, o
u
td

o
o

r c
a

fe
, C

h
ris

tm
a

s
 tre

e
, d

o
u

b
le

 

y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
, lo

a
d

in
g

 b
a

y
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a
y
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

LOADINGONLY

DISABLED DISABLED

LOADING BAY

DISABLED
DISABLED P

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 b
o

lla
rd

s
 to

 

b
e

  2
 m

e
tre

s
 a

p
a
rt

R
e

lo
c
a

tio
n
 o

f th
e
 1

N
o

. lo
a
d

in
g

 

b
a

y
 a

n
d
 2

N
o
. d

is
a

b
le

d
 b

a
y
s

R
e
lo

c
a
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 o
u

td
o
o

r 

ta
b

le
s
 a

n
d
 c

h
a

irs
 lic

e
n

c
e

 fo
r 

G
re

e
n

 C
o

ffe
e

 C
o
m

p
a
n

y
 

E
x
is

tin
g

 lo
a

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 

b
a
y
s
 to

 b
e

 re
lo

c
a

te
d

T
O

U
R

IS
T

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

PeasHill

S
t

E
d

w
a
rd

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

S
t

E
d

w
a

rd
's

P
a
s
s
a

g
e

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

 S
T

 

E
D

W
A

R
D

 K
IN

G
 

A
N

D
 M

A
R

T
Y

R

B
e
n
e
't

S
tre

e
t

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 

A
R

T
S

 T
H

E
A

T
R

E

LOADINGONLY

DISABLED DISABLED

LOADING BAY

DISABLED
DISABLED

DISABLED

GuildhallStreet

T
H

E
 

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L

S
ta

tu
e

Y
O

! S
U

S
H

I

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

g
u
llie

s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e
rs

 a
n

d
 

d
o
u
b

le
 y

e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g
 p

u
b

lic
 n

o
tic

e
 b

o
a
rd

to
 re

m
a
in

E
x
is

tin
g

 s
ix

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e

d
E

x
is

tin
g
 th

re
e

 b
o
lla

rd
s
 to

 

b
e
 re

m
o
v
e

d

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd
s
 to

 b
e
 

in
s
ta

lle
d

 a
t a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 

2
 m

e
tre

s
 a

p
a
rt

N
o
te

s
:

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 P
E

A
S

 H
IL

L

2
1

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
e
a
s

 H
ill

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t P
e

a
s
 

H
ill o

p
p
o

s
ite

 th
e

 G
u

ild
h
a

ll: 8
4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

6
8

G
u

ild
h

a
ll S

tre
e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll S

tre
e

t. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 th
e
 G

u
ild

h
a

ll: 4
0

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

0

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
1

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt B

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

B

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
E

A
S

 H
IL

L

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
3

R
e

v
.A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:2

5
0

B
E

x
te

n
d

e
d
 th

e
 fo

o
tw

a
y
 a

t P
e

a
s
 H

ill a
n
d

 re
lo

c
a

te
d

 th
e
 o

u
td

o
o
r c

a
fe

, 

lo
a

d
in

g
/d

is
a

b
le

d
 b

a
y
s
 to

 in
c
re

a
s
e

 c
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

0
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 k

e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t fo

r h
ig

h
 

c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 134



P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rd

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 o
u
td

o
o

r 

c
a

fe
/ta

b
le

s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

irs

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

g
u

llie
s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

r, d
o

u
b
le

 a
n
d

 

s
in

g
le

 y
e

llo
w

 lin
e
s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

K
in

g
's

L
a
n

e

E
x
is

tin
g

k
e
rb

b
u
ild

-o
u

t
a

n
d

b
o

lla
rd

to
b
e

re
m

o
v
e
d

F
iv

e
e

x
is

tin
g

'A
'-fra

m
e

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d

s
to

b
e

re
p
la

c
e
d

w
ith

tra
d
itio

n
a

l
c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d

s

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

b
o

lla
rd

T
w

o
e

x
is

tin
g

P
a

y
a

n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a

r
p
a

rk
in

g
b

a
y
s

to
b

e
re

m
o

v
e

d
a
n

d
p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
b

e
in

s
ta

lle
d

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 s
in

g
le

 

y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

E
x
is

tin
g

k
e

rb
b

u
ild

-o
u

t
a

n
d

b
o

lla
rd

to
b
e

re
m

o
v
e

d

TrumpingtonStreet

E
x
is

tin
g

k
e

rb
b

u
ild

-o
u

t
to

b
e

re
m

o
v
e
d

T
w

o
e

x
is

tin
g

P
a

y
a

n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a

r
p

a
rk

in
g

b
a

y
s

to
b

e
re

m
o

v
e

d
a
n

d
p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d

s
to

b
e

in
s
ta

lle
d

T
w

o
e
x
is

tin
g

P
&

D
c
a

r
p

a
rk

in
g

b
a

y
s

to
re

m
a

in

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
b

o
lla

rd

TrumpingtonStreet

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 e
x
is

tin
g

 

g
u
llie

s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e
rs

, d
o
u

b
le

 

y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
 a

n
d
 c

lo
s
e

 to
 

e
n

tra
n

c
e
 to

 K
in

g
's

 L
a

n
e
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rd

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

B
E

N
E

'T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, K

IN
G

'S
 P

A
R

A
D

E
 A

N
D

 

T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T2

2
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
4

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

K
in

g
's

 P
a

ra
d

e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 T
h

e
 

C
a

m
b

rid
g

e
 C

h
o
p

 H
o
u

s
e

: 5
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

0

B
e

n
e
't S

tre
e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
: 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 T
h

e
 

C
a

m
b

rid
g

e
 C

h
o
p

 H
o
u

s
e

: 1
0

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 2

0

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 C
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 

K
in

g
's

 L
a

n
e

 (n
o
rth

.): 1
0

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 D
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 

K
in

g
's

 L
a

n
e

 (s
o

u
th

): 2
4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 E
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 

C
o

rp
u
s
 C

h
ris

ti C
o

lle
g

e
: 1

0
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt A

A

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt B

B

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt C

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt D

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt E

C

S
c
a

le
 1

:2
5
0

E

B
E

N
E

'T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, K

IN
G

'S
 P

A
R

A
D

E
 A

N
D

 T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
c
a

le
 1

:2
5
0

S
c
a

le
 1

:2
5
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

5
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

5
0

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
0
0
0

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
2

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

D

B
R

e
m

o
v
e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a
ls

 o
p

p
o

s
ite

 K
in

g
's

 C
o

lla
g

e
  a

s
 th

e
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 is

 a
 

'p
a

s
s
in

g
 p

la
c
e

' fo
r v

e
h
ic

le
s

1
2

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1

3

Page 135



P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 lo
c
a
tio

n
 fo

r tra
d

itio
n
a

l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 in

 p
a
ra

lle
l to

 

e
x
is

tin
g

 ra
ils

.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

MOTORCYCLE
BAYS

R
e

m
o

v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d

 re
p

la
c
e

 w
ith

 

tra
d
itio

n
a
l c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

s
 

s
h
o

w
n

. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

P
A

R
K

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

2
2

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
5

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

P
a
rk

 T
e
rra

c
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t P
a

rk
 

T
e
rra

c
e
.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

T
h

e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 s
ix

 'b
u

tte
rfly

'-s
ty

le
 s

ta
n

d
s
 a

n
d

 tw
o

 

'd
o

u
b

le
-lo

o
p

s
'-s

ty
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 (w

h
ic

h
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

m
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 to
 a

c
c
o
m

o
d

a
te

 te
n

 c
y
c
le

 

p
a

rk
in

g
) a

re
 to

 b
e

 re
p

la
c
e

d
 w

ith
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 c
a

r p
a

rk
: 1

2
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
: 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

2

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
2

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt B

P
A

R
K

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
0
0

B

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt A

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 136



R
e

m
o

v
e

 a
ll te

n
 e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 re
p

la
c
e

 w
ith

 

tra
d
itio

n
a
l c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

s
 

s
h
o

w
n

. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g

 n
o

tic
e

 b
o
a

rd
, s

ig
n

 a
n

d
 b

in
 to

 

b
e

 re
lo

c
a

te
d

 a
lo

n
g

 P
a
rk

e
r's

 P
ie

c
e
s
 

a
w

a
y
 fro

m
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 la

y
o

u
t 

N
e
w

 w
o
o
d
e
n
 

fe
n
c
e

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

g
re

s
s
 

in
to

 c
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 n

e
w

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 o

n
 n

e
w

 

g
ra

s
s
 a

re
a
 to

 b
e
 tu

rn
e
d
 in

to
 c

o
n
c
re

te
 

(a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

2
s
q
.m

.) b
e
h
in

d
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

c
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 o

n
 P

a
rk

e
r's

 P
ie

c
e

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

t 4
5
° a

n
g
le

.

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 s

in
g
le

 

y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

R
E

G
E

N
T

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

2
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
6

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

B
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
3

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

A
P

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 a
t R

e
g

e
n

t T
e
rra

c
e

 o
p
p

o
s
ite

 R
e

g
e
n

t H
o

te
l

0
1

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 la

n
d

 ta
k
e

-u
p

 fo
r n

e
w

 c
y
c
le

 

p
a

rk
in

g

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a

le
 1

:5
0
0

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt A

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt B

B

S
c
a
le

 1
:2

0
0

R
E

G
E

N
T

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

R
e

g
e
n

t T
e

rra
c
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

T
e

n
 e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 w

ill b
e

 re
p

la
c
e
d

 w
ith

 

n
e

w
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 re
a

rra
n

g
e

d
 to

 

a
c
c
o

m
o

d
a
te

 fu
rth

e
r s

ta
n

d
s
. 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

T
e

rra
c
e

 o
p

p
o
s
ite

 th
e

 P
iz

z
a

 H
u

t o
n

 n
e
w

 la
n

d
 a

t 

P
a

rk
e

r's
 P

ie
c
e

s
: 3

6
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

T
e

rra
c
e

 o
p

p
o
s
ite

 th
e

 R
e

g
e

n
t H

o
te

l: 5
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

2

E
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 b
e

 re
p

la
c
e

d
 

w
ith

 n
e

w
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 137



S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

p
la

n
te

rs
, ra

ilin
g

 a
n

d
 b

in
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

Q
U

A
Y

S
ID

E

2
3

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
7

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

Q
u

a
y
s

id
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t Q
u

a
y
s
id

e

o
p

p
o

s
ite

 th
e

 R
iv

e
r C

a
m

: 1
0

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 2

0

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
2

3
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

A

S
c
a

le
 1

:5
0
0

Q
U

E
Y

S
ID

E

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 138



D
IS

A
B
LE

D
P
A
R
K
IN

G
B
A
Y
S

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 d

o
u

b
le

 

y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
, b

u
s
 s

to
p

, a
n

d
 lo

s
s
 

o
f a

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

n
 

s
e

c
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 e
x
is

tin
g

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 

b
a
y
s

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

J
E

S
U

S
 L

A
N

E

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
8

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

J
e
s

u
s

 L
a

n
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t J
e
s
u

s
 

L
a

n
e

:
7

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

4

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
2

4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

J
E

S
U

S
 L

A
N

E

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 139



S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

d
ra

in
a
g

e
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

P
o
s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 fo

r 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
T

 J
O

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 T
R

IN
IT

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

2
4

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
9

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

S
t J

o
h

n
's

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
t 

J
o

h
n

's
 S

tre
e

t. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
t J

o
h

n
's

 C
o

lle
g

e
: 1

8
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

6

T
rin

ity
 S

tre
e

t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t T
rin

ity
 

S
tre

e
t.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 A
ll S

a
in

ts
' G

a
rd

e
n

 A
rt a

n
d

 C
ra

ft 

M
a

rk
e
t: 1

6
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 C
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 T
rin

ity
 C

o
lle

g
e

: 1
2

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 5

6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
4

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

A

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt B

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt C

B

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

2
5

C

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
T

 J
O

H
N

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 T
R

IN
IT

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

E
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 b
e

 re
p

la
c
e

d
 b

y
 

h
ig

h
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 140



R
e

m
o

v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e

 w
ith

 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a
tio

n
 fo

r 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
ID

N
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

2
9

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
0

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

S
id

n
e

y
 S

tre
e

t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
id

n
e
y
 

S
tre

e
t.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
ta

 T
ra

v
e

l a
n
d

 F
o

p
p

 (to
 re

p
la

c
e

 th
e

 

fo
u

rte
e

n
 e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
): 1

7
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 th
e
 E

d
in

b
u

rg
h
 W

o
o

lle
n

 M
ill a

n
d
 

S
a

n
ta

n
d
e

r: 6
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 4

6

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e

rt B

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

2
9

 M
a

y
 2

0
1

3

S
ID

N
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A

B

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 141



P
o
s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a
tio

n
 fo

r 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

E
x
is

tin
g

 ta
x
i ra

n
k
 

to
 b

e
 re

lo
c
a
te

d

R
e

m
o

v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e

 w
ith

 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 g

u
lly

 

a
n

d
 la

m
p

 c
o
lu

m
n
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

L
IO

N
 Y

A
R

D
, S

ID
N

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 S

T
 

A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

3
0
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
1

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

S
id

n
e

y
 S

tre
e

t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
id

n
e
y
 

S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 p
h

o
n

e
s
4

u
: 1

5
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

0

S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
's

 S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 L
io

n
 H

o
u

s
e

/W
a

r 

M
e

m
o
ria

l (to
 re

p
la

c
e

 th
e

 tw
e

lv
e

 e
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
): 1

6
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

2

L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 C
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

 

o
p

p
o

s
ite

 C
h

u
rc

h
 o

f S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 T

h
e
 G

re
a

t: 3

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

3
0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt B

S
e

e
 In

s
e

rt C

A

B

C

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
2
5

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

L
IO

N
 Y

A
R

D
, S

ID
N

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 S

T
 A

N
D

R
E

W
'S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 142



E
x
is

tin
g

 p
u

b
lic

 n
o
tic

e
 

b
o

a
rd

 to
 re

m
a

in

L
a
m

p
 

C
o

lu
m

n

L
a

m
p

C
o
lu

m
n

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 u

tility
 

c
o

v
e
rs

, la
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n

s
 a

n
d

 a
 

p
u

b
lic

 n
o
tic

e
 b

o
a

rd
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 tre
e
 

ro
o
ts

 a
n

d
 g

u
lly

.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 L
A

N
E

/D
R

U
M

M
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 P
IE

C
E

S
/D

R
U

M
M

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

1
6

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
2

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

A
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t B
u

s
 S

ta
tio

n
0
1

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
3

B
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

1
6
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

C
h

ris
t's

 L
a
n

e
/D

ru
m

m
e
r S

tre
e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t/C
h

ris
t's

 L
a

n
e

. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 b
u

s
 s

ta
tio

n
: 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

C
h

ris
t's

 P
ie

c
e
s

/D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t D
ru

m
m

e
r 

S
tre

e
t/C

h
ris

t's
 P

ie
c
e

s
.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 p
u

b
lic

 to
ile

ts
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt B

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

B

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 L
A

N
E

/D
R

U
M

M
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 P
IE

C
E

S
/D

R
U

M
M

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 143



S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

g
u

llie
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
u

b
le

 y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

G
a
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 

u
n
iv

e
rs

ity
 b

u
ild

in
g

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
E

N
N

IS
 C

O
U

R
T

 R
O

A
D

3
0
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
3

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

T
e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt R

o
a
d

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t T
e

n
n
is

 

C
o

u
rt R

o
a
d

. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 U
n

iv
e

rs
ity

 o
f C

a
m

b
rid

g
e

 D
o

w
n

in
g

 

S
ite

:
8

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

T
E

N
N

IS
 C

O
U

R
T

 R
O

A
D

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 144



S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

d
o
u
b

le
 y

e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 u
tility

 

c
o
v
e
rs

.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o
lla

rd

T
w

o
e
x
is

tin
g

P
a

y
a

n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
s

to
b

e
re

m
o
v
e
d

a
n
d

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
b
e

in
s
ta

lle
d

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

F
R

E
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 L

A
N

E

3
0
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
4

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l L
a

n
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t F
re

e
 

S
c
h

o
o
l L

a
n

e
.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 C
o

rp
u

s
 C

h
ris

ti C
o

lle
g

e
: 9

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 P
h

o
e

n
ix

 B
u

ild
in

g
: 9

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

6

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

B

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
2
5

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e

rt B

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

F
R

E
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 L
A

N
E

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 145



S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 

H
o

b
s
o
n
's

 C
o
n
d

u
it. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

M
O
TO

R
C
Y
C
LE

P
A
R
K
IN

G
B
A
Y
ST

w
o

e
x
is

tin
g

P
a
y

a
n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a
r

p
a

rk
in

g
b
a

y
s

to
b
e

re
m

o
v
e

d
a
n
d

p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
b

e
in

s
ta

lle
d

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

b
o

lla
rd

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 

H
o
b

s
o

n
's

 C
o

n
d

u
it. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

T
w

o
e

x
is

tin
g

P
a

y
a

n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a
r

p
a

rk
in

g
b

a
y
s

to
b

e
re

m
o

v
e
d

a
n

d
p
ro

p
o
s
e

d
c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
b
e

in
s
ta

lle
d

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
b

o
lla

rd

CARPARKING
BAYS

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
b

o
lla

rd

CARPARKING
BAYS

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T3

0
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
5

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 F
itz

w
illia

m
 M

u
s
e

u
m

: 9
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 G
ro

v
e

 L
a
n

e
: 9

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

3
0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt A

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt B

T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
C

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

p
p
o

s
ite

 th
e

 P
itt B

u
ild

in
g

 re
m

o
v
e
d

 a
s
 th

e
s
e

 w
e

re
 

o
n

 p
riv

a
te

 la
n

d
 

0
5
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

3

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
0
0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

2
5

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

5
0

B

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 146



S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 g

u
llie

s
 

a
n

d
 d

o
u

b
le

 y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

G
R

A
N

T
A

 P
L
A

C
E

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
6

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

G
ra

n
ta

 P
la

c
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t G
ra

n
ta

 

P
la

c
e

 o
p

p
o
s
ite

 D
o

u
b
le

tre
e

 H
o

te
l: 7

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

4

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

3
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

A

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

G
R

A
N

T
A

 P
L

A
C

E

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 147



S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

g
u

llie
s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

d
o

u
b
le

 y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o
lla

rd

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

g
u
llie

s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
, s

te
p

s
 a

n
d

 

la
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n

s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 lo
c
a
tio

n
 a

t 4
5
° a

n
g
le

.

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

u
tility

 c
o
v
e

rs
 a

n
d
 d

o
u
b
le

 y
e

llo
w

 

lin
e
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
R

IN
IT

Y
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 S
E

N
A

T
E

 H
O

U
S

E
 

P
A

S
S

A
G

E

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
7

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

T
rin

ity
 L

a
n

e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t T
rin

ity
 

L
a

n
e

.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
1

:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 T
rin

ity
 H

a
ll: 6

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
2

:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 K
in

g
's

 C
o

lla
g

e
: 5

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 2

2

S
e
n

a
te

 H
o

u
s
e
 P

a
s
s
a

g
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
e

n
a

te
 

H
o

u
s
e

 P
a

s
s
a

g
e

.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
e

n
a

te
 H

o
u

s
e

: 4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

3
1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt B

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt C

A

C B

S
c
a

le
 1

:5
0
0

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

T
R

IN
IT

Y
 L

A
N

E
 A

N
D

 S
E

N
A

T
E

 H
O

U
S

E
 P

A
S

S
A

G
E

Page 148



P
o

s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 fo

r tra
d
itio

n
a
l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 o

n
 e

x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 

b
u

ild
-o

u
t

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

R
O

U
N

D
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
8

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

R
o

u
n

d
 C

h
u

rc
h

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
o

u
n

d
 

C
h

u
rc

h
 S

tre
e

t. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 M
u

ltis
to

re
y
 C

a
r P

a
rk

: 4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

R
O

U
N

D
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T
P

ro
p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 149



S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 

d
ra

in
a

g
e
 a

n
d

 la
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

C
A

S
T

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
9

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

C
a
s
tle

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t C
a

s
tle

 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 M
u

ltis
to

re
y
 C

a
r P

a
rk

: 4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

C
A

S
T

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 150



K
e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t a

t to
p

 e
n

d
.

R
e
lo

c
a

te
 th

e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 lo
a

d
in

g
 b

a
y
s
 

a
n

d
 d

is
a

b
le

d
 b

a
y
 b

y
 6

 m
e

tre
s
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

E
x
is

tin
g

 5
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 re
m

a
in

R
E L O

C
A

T I O
N

O
F

E X I S T I N
G

L O
A

D
I N

G

B
A

Y S

RELOCATIO
N

OF

EXIS
TIN

G
DIS

ABLED
BAY

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 

d
ra

in
a

g
e

 s
lo

ts
 o

n
 b

o
th

 s
id

e
s
 o

f 

th
e

 b
a
y
s
 a

n
d

 u
tiliy

 c
o

v
e

rs
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 w

ith
in

 

th
e

 e
x
is

tin
g

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill b

e
 re

p
o
s
itio

n
e

d
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

 

O
F

F
IC

E
S

T
H

E
 R

E
G

A
L

 

P
H

T
H

E
 C

IN
E

M
A

P
H

H
A

L
L

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 

B
A

P
T

IS
T

 C
H

U
R

C
H

P
H

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o
lla

rd

R
E L O

C
A

T I O
N

O
F

E
X I S

T I N
G

L O
A

D
I N

G

B
A

Y
S

RELOCATIO
N

OF

EXIS
TIN

G
DIS

ABLED
BAY

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
0

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
's

 S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e

t 

B
a
p

tis
t C

h
u
rc

h
: 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt A

A

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

B
C

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 o

n
 S

t A
n

d
re

w
's

 S
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 J
o
h

n
 L

e
w

is
 re

m
o

v
e

d
 a

s
 

th
e

s
e
 w

o
u

ld
 c

a
u

s
e
 b

o
ttle

n
e
c
k
 fo

r p
e

d
e
s
tria

n
s

0
5

 J
u

n
e

 2
0

1
3

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 151



P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

MOTORCYCLE

BAYS

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 u

tility
 

c
o
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 m

o
to

rc
y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
 

b
a
y
s
 a

n
d
 d

o
u
b
le

 y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

T
w

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 re
m

a
in

.

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
.

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 p

o
s
ts

, 

s
ig

n
s
, b

in
s
 a

n
d
 a

 b
u

s
 s

to
p
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g
 s

ig
n
 a

n
d
 

p
o
s
ts

 to
 re

m
a
in

.

E
x
is

tin
g

 s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
o
s
t to

 re
m

a
in

.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

R
E

G
E

N
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 R

E
G

E
N

T
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
1

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

R
e

g
e
n

t S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

S
tre

e
t.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
e

le
c
t: 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 B
:

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 E
s
s
e

x
 H

o
u

s
e

: 3
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

8

R
e

g
e
n

t T
e

rra
c
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 C
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

T
e

rra
c
e

 o
p

p
o
s
ite

 'T
h

e
 A

v
e

ry
' P

H
: 5

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

0

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e
e
 In

s
e

rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt B

S
e

e
 In

s
e
rt C

A

B

C

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

R
E

G
E

N
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 R

E
G

E
N

T
 T

E
R

R
A

C
E

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

B
P

ro
p
o

s
a

l o
u

ts
id

e
 R

a
v
e

n
s
c
ro

ft H
o

u
s
e
 re

m
o

v
e

d
 a

s
 th

e
 s

p
a

c
e
 is

 

a
llo

c
a

te
d

 fo
r o

u
td

o
o

r c
a

fe

1
2
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

3

Page 152



Existing parking bays
Eden Street

Eden Street Backway

E
lm

S
treet

E
d
e
n

C
o
u
rt

O
rc

h
a
rd

 S
tre

e
t

P
H

O
rc

h
a
rd

C
o
u
rt

P
H

N
o

. 7
3

Existing parking bays

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 d
o

u
b
le

 

y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
ro

p
p
e

d
 k

e
rb

s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rdN
o

. 7
3

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

E
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
2

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

E
d

e
n

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t E
d

e
n

 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 H
o

u
s
e

 N
o
. 7

3
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt A

A

S
c
a

le
 1

:5
0
0

E
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
0

3
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
3

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 153



K
E

E
P

C
L
E

A
R

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 d
o

u
b
le

 

y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
 a

n
d

 

'K
E

E
P

 C
L
E

A
R

' m
a
rk

in
g
s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

F
IT

Z
R

O
Y

 L
A

N
E

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
3

R
e

v
.A

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

F
itz

ro
y

 L
a

n
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 A
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t F
itz

ro
y
 

L
a

n
e

.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 G
ra

fto
n

 W
e

s
t C

a
r P

a
rk

: 5
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

0

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

F
IT

Z
R

O
Y

 L
A

N
E

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
0

3
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

Page 154



C
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

e
le

c
tric

a
l/c

o
m

m
. c

a
b

in
e

ts
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

B
U

R
L
E

IG
H

 P
L
A

C
E

 A
N

D
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 

S
T

R
E

E
T

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
4

R
e

v
.B

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

N
o

rfo
lk

 S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 C
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t N
o

rfo
lk

 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 E
a

s
t R

o
a
d

: 8
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

6

S
c

a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

N
O

R
F

O
L

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
N

o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
0

3
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
3

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

B
R

e
m

o
v
e

d
 B

u
rle

ig
h
 P

la
c
e

 a
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
a
l is

 o
n

 p
riv

a
te

 la
n

d
1

2
 J

u
ly

 2
0
1

3

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

Page 155



��������������	
��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�������������������������
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������	�
��	������������ ��������������	������

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 156



��������� �������������

	
�� �������

�	
���

 ��

��
����� ��

���������������������� ���
��
������������������������	��
����������������������������������������
��������

����	
�����
���� ���!�"���
�� �������#���������
����������������$	��� ���������������� ��

�����������������������������������%��������&	�������%������	�����������!

��  ��� ���������
� 
�������
� ����������#������������
������������������������	��������������'�

���������(�	
����
��	����!��������� ��
����
�%�  �)�������� ��������������)����������������

�����������*���
�+��������������
!��,	���������'�����*���
�+����������������������

�����
�
���
��	�
������) ��
�������%�������	�������
� 
�%�	 ���������	���!�����
�

��	 ����#������������������
�$	����
'�������	 �� �������
��������������  ���-
�������
�����

�������#��%!�����������������������
��������������������������(�	
���
�%�  ��
���������

��  ���-
�
�	�������
�� �����%�  ������	)����������������

����������)	� ������	��������

�����������#��	�����!

"�#�
��������
�
������
������'�������������
����$	�
���������)	
��%������	��
������������ ������

��������!�����������
������ ��
����
�%�  ���������	��
�
��	���������������
��
�������������

���������
������������	
�� ���!��� ��� �����
�%�  ���#����� �������
��������� �������
'�����

�������������	
����������������������#�����
�������������+��
�(�  ��������������������

��
����� "���#�� �����������	��%�)
��������
������������������
�����
����� ���

��������� ���� ��
����
��  ��#������)�����!��.��������������"�%�
����

������������
�����-��������!����	��
�
�
����������� ���������������	
�� ���

������
����������������!��"��������#������%�
�����������������
�����������	


/��������	�����������
����������������(�	
��/������)����������	��
�
����

)���� �
�
�%�	 ��)��
����!��������� ������
���	 �������)���	���������
�	��


�����������-��������'�����
�������������
���
���!

��
����� ���������� �������
�������)	��*���-
�+��������������-��������������	����� ��������� ��

� 	���������%�#���)���
�������������������	 ����
0��������������������
�������) �
����

��#�����
��	�
��������
!����	������
�����
�����������)���� ������������� ��
�����*���-
�

+�����0����������
� ���������-��
������������	
�������	��������
������������
�����
!�"��


����������
�����������������������
�������%� �����*���-
�+������
�������%�  �

���#���) ��)���	���#���)���������
���1
�������
���������
���%��������%� �!�"������ ������

��
�) ��������������� ����
����2�����������������  ���0�%���������������������������*���-
�

��
����� ����)�������������
������ �
�����*���
�+�����!

���"3��

3����%�����

������	
���)��������� �#����#���� �
!����������)�	���� �#����#���� �
�

)������)
��	����������� ��)��
������#���	
���%������� �
������������ �

 �!

�	
���

 ��� ������
����*���
�+������%�  �) �����������������%�������

�
������	��
�
�

������������
�����  �����#��%���������	
�� ���!�

4
����������������
����
�����
�������������(�	
��1�����	
�� �����
���-
���)	
��������

�������
��#���������
��  ���������������� �
�
����
������������'��������������������

��#�����!�"�����
�����
������������������ �
�)����

����#���� �
'������������� ���
�����

��������
�)��%������
��	�������� �
�
�������

����#���� �
�5��������� �'�%���� �������

������� ������� �
6!

7�	 ��� ��������������/������������������ �%!�����
������������������	
�������� �
�
!

*���
������������)�����
����������
�
����� �������� ����� �����
��	���������������

����������������
�������������	�����
�!�� ���������
��#���� �
���#���������������� ����

�� ������ �
�������
�
��������)���� �
�%�	 ���� ����������) ���%��
�!�8� �#���� �����
�

����)��%������ �#����
�� 
����������
�
����!�8�����������������������������	 ������

)	
���

�
�����������9

7������
��������������������'����������
����������� ��������%�	 ��������������	������

�����/�������������&	�������%����*���
�+�����'�������
����������
������%����%�����)���
�

��������������*���
�+������������������������ ����%�������������#���� �
�5����

������	 �� ���� �#���� �����
����������%���6!������
������ ���	��5%����������	����	��6������
�

�������������������� �
�
���������������������
��������
����� �����
���#����)�������!�

���������������'����
�������
���
����
�%�	 ��)������ ���������%����������������� �%�

��� ���������'�����������#����������	 ������	�����������������
��� �!

�����������������������	��
�
�
�������������������� ������������������	
�� ���!�

+����
���������������-�
����	
���)���� �#���� �����
�����������
!����	�� ����������
�����

��������� ��
� ��������

��������	���������������������������������������������������������������

Page 157



	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� �������	������	��� -
� ��������
���������
�)������������	�����
�������� ���������

������
� ��(�  ��������	 �����  ��	
��)������������#��	�
!

��������� ����
��
�2���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� ��

7���������������������������� ������
������
��%�  ��  �� ��������
�
�2���!

���������������������� �������
�����%�����������������&������������
� ��������
��� �
�� ���
���%��������������
�

������������������������%�  �)������������������ ������������
� ����������������#��!

��������� ����
��
�+����


	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� 3���������!�"�%�	 ���)
��#�'���%�#��'�����������/������
���  �������� ���������������

������/ �����������������������������%� ���������'�������)�������������

����
�-
�+����
/������� ����������	 �� ������������
1�������	
��������� ��5�!��

������
1�	�����6� ��������#�����!���� ������ �������!�

��������� ����������

	
�� �������

��
����� ����

7����#����)������) ���������
�
������%������
�� �����
����#�������5
�������
�)����
�����

)��	
����
�����#0�
�������
��� �#�������	����	�
����6��������
�#���� ��� ��
��������

�������������������	��5	
	�  ����#��
���6!��
�"� �#����������������"������#�������	  �)�	������

���
�������#�������� �������������������������������%�  �����������������������	
�!�������

���
����������������� ����������������)�  ����%�
�������������������������������#�����!�"�

��#�����������������)�  ������
� ��������������������!�
������� ��)��������������	��  �����
���

�����������	����� ������
��%��)�  ���
��������)���  �%���&	
���������������������������

 �����
!�7����������#��������������#�������	
����������������:���%�#��'����
��
���������

������%��������������������� �
�����
�!���
��	 ��
���%�����������#����)������ ����������

���) ���������
�%����#�������
����
�	������
�����!�

��
����� "��������������%�������������
� 
�������� �����������������������!

�
����������#��'�"�����
�����%�����������������������������
������ ����������%�	 ��


����	
 ��������������)� ����������
���������	#����������������!��
����
����
'�����

��������
���#���������%��	 /��/
��'��	���������������������)��
'���������������	����� ��

�����
���������� �����������
�����

����� ���

����� ���!����
�������
������������
����

%�������
�%������������

��
�����
!����
����) ����
�%��
������ �����
�����#��
'�%����������

���������!����
��
��
�����  ��
����#�������) ����������������+��
�������%'��������������

��������%����������
�)����	���������'������%�  ����� ��� ��) ��������&	�������%���� ��

������!

,	���������'������ �����%���� �'��� �#����#��
����� �����
�5��� 	��������� ���� '���
��'�

��	����
'����!6�������
����)���� ��������
������������� ������������ �#����
!�"�����
������%�
�

�����#�� �) ���	�������� ���������'�����������%�	 ����#����%��������
�����������

�������5��
���������%������������	��������%����������6�/����%��
�'������%�	 ��
�����������

Page 158



����*����������
�� ������������������������#�����	��'�%���������%�
�����
�����) ����

������
�5"�%�
���#� #�����������������������������'��	�����
����������#�������	���

���
�������%�
�����
����������������
����6�����
�����)�������������
����)�������'�"�%�	 ��

�������������)�����/�����������#�����	��������;���
!�+�����
����������������	������

���#�
����������������������������
������)������
���
������������
������
��������%�	 ��

)���������
��
�) �� �������!

"��������
�'�������
�������
�����������)��
��������
	�������;���!�"�%�	 ���������������)��

�	������������
�����
-��������'���#����������%�����) ��
�%����*�����������
�����
-�

�������!

,	���������'�"�$	�
�������%��	�����������) ����������	����� ���
�%������� �������������

����������!�"����� ��
���)���
��������������������'�����%����"��������
������� �����

����
����)����������������)������ ��������	)��	�
����+���
��������� �/������������
�

����) ������#�����
'��
��������
���� ������������

�������
�$	����%������

���%��!�

���
�������������%��%�  �	
���������� ����
�������������������������
�����'�%���������
�

���
��%�	 ���� ��)��	
��	 ��������
����������������	)
'�%��
��)���
���#����#�������

��	
��������������)
��	�����
������������!

"�%�	 ��)����
��������������#������	�%�����	���������	���
�������������
� 
!
�	
���

 �"
�����
���������  ��%�������	����������
��
��� �#���� �����
�
	����
�����#� �#��
��	
��

)���) �������

!���	 ����������
�)����
������������  � �����������  �����������������:����

��
����� 7�  ���	
���	�
����������	
��� �
!�3��������%���	)
!�3��
����������!�� 
�����	�����

�����)���������
!�3����������� ��������	��)��������


��������� ,��;����2���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

������ ����������	 �� ������������
1�������	
��������� ��5�!��������
1�	�����6� �������

�#�����!���� ������ �������!�

���,��;���� ���'�"����	���
���)�	����������������������������	�������
����
�/�"���� ������

����������������� �%��	���������)���
 �������!!����)����#��������� ��� ���	��������
�:

"�-
������ ����%�����	���
�����,��;����2���� ��������
��#�
!

��������� ,��������� �2���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� ��

��  ��� ,��������� �2�����
���� �� ������)�������
�
����� ����������������
�������
���������������

%����	��	������������� �������!��������� ����������%�  �� 
����	
���� �#��������

�

���) ��
����������  ����
����%������
�����������!

��
����� ���
��
�� %��
�#����� 	�������%������� �
'��
�����  �����	�������)�  ���
������������-��

����������!����
�������������
���
���������	�������!��  �<�%��%��� ��<��������'����!�

������)���
'�
��	 ��)����#�������� �������'�
�������
��������7���� ���	
�	�'�%�����

������������%����
�%����������������#���� �
�%�  ������)
��	�����������%��'��
�%�  ��
�

���������%�����%��
��������2���!

�	
���

 �"
�����
���������  ��%�������	����������
��
��� �#���� �����
�
	����
�����#� �#��
��	
��

)���) �������

!���	 ����������
�)����
������������  � �����������  �����������������:�

��������� �������+ ���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

�7�������������������
���������������������+ ���'����
��
��	 ������)����
��  ���	��� �����

%���
����+��)�������  ������#��)�������� �����)���	
������������	 ������
��������

 ������� �#���� �����
���������$	��� ��	
�����
�����

���	��!������ ��������������� ���
�

���������������������(� ����� ���
�����)���
�������� ����%���� �����#���� �
�����%�������
�

��������
�	
��������(� ���������#���  �"�)� ��#���
��������������!������
����
�� 
����$	����

����������'�)��)�  ���
��������������
!�

Page 159



��������� �	� ���  �������

	
�� �������

�	� ���  ����%�  ��� ��)���������  ����
��	����'���%�#��'�+��
�(�  �%�  �)��)�� ��

�)
��	����'���������
�����
'����=�� ����
'���������� �
�
�������
�) ����������!�7�����

������������� ���������'�)	���������
	�����������
����������  �����


��
����� ��

���������������������� 5�����������
����8�
����������� ������������ �����

��

	�
����������
���+��
�(�  �

�����6

����



������%�����
������������������)����������
���������������������	� ���  !����
��
�����

���������������
���
�����$	��� ��	
�����������

�����#���
��������(�  
�����%�	 ����	
��

������	 ���
�����)���� �����������	� �����������$	�������������������

�����#�
����
�%����

��)� �����

	�
!

��
����� ���
�%�  ������	����#������
�����)�������	� ���  ���������
������	
��)��%� �����!

�	
���

 �"�)� ��#����������
�)�����)����
���
�����)����) �������,��������������

���������������

�$	���!��"��%�	 ��� 
�������������������������������	� ���  ����2�����	� �����5����	� ���  �


������#����������	 �!��

����������
� 
�����+��
�(�  �������������������	� ���  ����� ��� ����#��-�������������

����	���������$	�������
�������� ��� �)	
���

'����������	 ����������
��������!����
�%�  �

� 
�����	���������������� 	���������� ���
�%������$	��� ��	
��������	) ����  �%� ���
!���

.���	� ���  ����������-
������������	
������ ����)��%������� �
�
���������
�����
�5�����

��� �
�
�%������������������	���������������%���������������������)���
6!�������
��
�) ��

����	� ���  �
������%�	 ��)�����������	���������
�������� �������� ���������	� ���  ���
� ��

�������%�����������#�������	�!��5"�����������%�
�����
���)�����	
��������� �
�
�%�	 ��

� ������)���) ����� ����������)���
������
�������	� ���  �%�  ����������%�	 ��)����������

���������
��
�) �!6��

��������� >�
	
�2���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

������� ��

�������������������1���	�������������������)�����

��
����� 3����������)	�����
������������)
��	�����'����������%��������)	
�
���'�%�	 ��)��)������

��
���������	��������
�����>�
	
�2�������������������������)�������	���������� ��������������

������!

���"3��

3����%�����

������	
���)��������� �#����#���� �
!����������)�	���� �#����#���� �
�

)������)
��	����������� ��)��
������#���	
���%������� �
������������ �

 �!

��������
��#���������
��  ���������������� �
�
����
������������'��������������������

��#�����!�"�����
�����
������������������ �
�)����

����#���� �
'������������� ���
�����

��������
�)��%������
��	�������� �
�
�������

����#���� �
�5��������� �'�%���� �������

������� ������� �
6!

��������#� ����8�
�) ���)��
����>�
	
�2����
��	 ������)�����
��������������
����!

>�
	
�2����/���������#�����
�) �����������
��������
�-��
�������
�������'�	� �

���-
�

)�������#�����������
�
������
�-�����	�������
���������������

"����	�
	����������>�
	
� ������������������
���������������#������������������������)	
�


���'�����%����������������'����� �����#���� �
�%���	
�������
�����������������������

����#� ��������
�) �����������)��!

��������� *���
�+�����

	
�� �������

�	
���

 �����!�����������
������#����!�

�	
���

 ��

��
����� ��

Page 160



�	
���

 "���#����#��%������������
������ �����
	 ������!

"������)��������������)�	��������� ������
��	�����)��
��������*���
�+�������	�
����+�����

3	�)���?!�������%�	 ��)��#���� ��� ��
�������������
�����
�5������	 �� ��������
�) ��6�����

)��%��������������������������������� ������
!

��
����� ���
��%�  �)������
�
����#�
	�  ��%���������
���������!����
�
������
��	 ����#��)����

� �
��������������@A�����
������������#���������������'�������� '���� �������������� ��


��#�
����	���� �������������
������
���/����!

7������������������*���
�+�����������
� '�	�����	���� �����
� ���������
�	
���#����������

)�� �������	�����	�
!����������������
��� ����'����/�����
��������� ��������	�
����
�����"�

)� ��#����������
�
����������������������
�����
������#����	 ���������������
��	 ��)��

����������
�
	��!����������  �'��������
����������

�)� ���������� ��������� ���������������

%�  �	��������) �������%���������
����������

'�������	 �� ��%������
��	�����

�
��) �
�����
�� ������) �
��	�
�������
	�����5����������������)������7������������
�

�������� ���������� �������������������
������#��6!

�.��*���-
�+������������%�  �����)�����	���
��������%� ����%���������������������)����

������
��	��������)���	
��������
��	������	�
������
�������) �
�����������������) �������

�� ��������� �����!

��������� 2���������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� 3.

2���������B����
��
���������	 �� �������
�����������������
������
������
�����������	�!�

��� �
� ��������������%�  �%������� ���
��������������
��������!�"���
�����#��) �������#��

��� ������
����������"������
������������#� ����� ��� �!�

2���������B���������%���������
������
�����	���������-)	�����
��  -������
��������	����

��� ���
!�����$	�	�
�������)
��	�������
��������#�����!�"���
������
������������-)	�����


��  -��
�����
�������� 
�%�����%������������
������
����!�(���������������� ������
����

��� �������
���������
�%��������

����������	��
������������������%��!

7� �������������������!�,������������
����
����
�������	 �����	
��5�������� ����)����%����


�������6!�� ������
���������� ������
�%����������������� ������ ��
��/���	 �������)��

 �)�  ����
�
	��:

��������� ��������$	���

	
�� �������

�	
���

 3.

,����������
�%�  �������������

�) ������
	�� ���
������������������
-�#��
����� �����
�

�����������������
$	���!�����������
������%����	����������������� ������%��������������

#���� �
�������������������
����
���!

��
����� ��

��
����� ��

(����
��	�����
������������%���
�������

�	
���

 3�

����	
����	�� ��������#������)������) ���%�������
�����'����� ���������������������

�#�����#���#�����
� �������C�� ����������������
��	������%��
�

��
����� ��

�����
���������)���
�%�  �)�������������������������������$!��
�
������
� ����������

���
���!�� 
�����%�  �
������� �
�
��������������
��
����%����%
����!

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

Page 161



������������� �
���������������������  ������
��������"�%�
�
��������� 
�����������
	 ��������)�	����%�

��� ��
����
���������������������)������)��������������!��"���#������������
����

���)��������� ������������'����%�����"���������)��!�(�#���������
����
�������������

�������%�	 ��)��%������	 '�)	�������)�������
�������'�������������%�������
������"�%�	 ��

 ��������������������� �!��"�����������������������������������)�����'��
������������)��

������������
����������	��%��!

E!��"�����

	�������������
��
����
����� ����������%����
��	�
��������
)	��-
�����������

��!��"�	
������	
������������� ��
����
�����������������������) �������������%����������%�

���
�"���� ������	
�����
��
����
!����	������� ��������	��)������������������%���/���!�

�����������#������
���!�����
��
��������	  ��������
�����
'��
�����������	��)������������	���

��	���	
�� ��
�������) ��
���������
�����
!�����
�
���
������

'�
��������������
����

�
�� �
��������������������
������������������������������� �

�����
�����
������!��"���
�� 
��

�������	�� ������������������ �
�
�����������������
����!���������
�-��������	��������������

����������������������
'����������
�������
 �% ��������
����� �
�'���� 	������������

���

����
����
���������������
�������������
��/�%���������������������	�	��:�"�������)����������

G!�������������������
�)����)������������������%�� ���
�����	
�����)���
���������� ��

��������	��������� �����
�
1%�  
����������������� ��
����
�%�������#����
���#���
'�


���
'���
���)	��� ��� ��
����!������������������	���	����������
����
������������) ���

�
���� ���������'������	�������������) ��������� ����������������������������!

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

Page 162



������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

Page 163



������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

Page 164



������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

Page 165



������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

������������� 3.

.)&������������
������ ���������������������$	�����
������%�  ���	
������)
��	���������

����(���%���)��%����D!@A�/�EA��������?�/�F����#��������%�� 
�������������������
�����


�������������������	�!����������������������������
������ ����������)	���)&�������

��#�������
�� ����������	�����������$	���!�

���������������������� �������������
���#��� �����������

�����������������������
������������

�����

 ������1	� �����������	������	�����������������%�������������
��������������
$	���!�

�C��� 
����#�� ������� �#����#���� �
�����

�������
�������%������������������� ������

���  ������%��������

!�� �
�����
	 �������
��	 ��)��
�	����%����������
������������

����������C�!���� ������
�����������������-
�
������	 ����
����������

����� �����

��  �����������)������������������%����%��� �!

��
����� ��

�����������
��������������������)���
������������	�������
�������
�����!

��
����� ��  ����
��
����
�%�  �)������)
� 	�����
�
���������%�
���������
����������� ��
��#��

�
�������������������	 ��1�)
��	�����������������������
!�"��)
��#�����������#��%
����

�������������-
��������� ��)�������#��'�������'�)��
�������#��������)���
�)� �%���!

��

H����� ������
�������������
���������������	�����������������������������$	�������

������	 ���/�)�� ��������9

�"��������������
��	�
�����C��%�  ���	
���)
��	�����

���"3��

�������
��� ����������
�����������������	��������������
$	��������"����������
��������%�  �

)����	
��������������� �
�
������������	
���������
�����


"��%�	 ��)���������������������
����
������#��%
��������%��������������'����������

����-
'������������C����>���-
����� �����������	� �� ���������������������
����
!

Page 166



�������������������� ����
��)�	������ ��������������������
�����
��"�����
���������
���

%���������	��� �%�	 ��%����������	������
��	�����������������$	���!����������������������


�����
����+C8�)��
��������������������
���� ���	  �
��%
��������
���#��������������������

����!�"���
������ %��
����#����������	
�������	 ��/
��������������
!

���"3��

.����������$	�������������
���
����
�%�  ������������%�������#������'��
�����  ������


����������������.�
�
'���-
����%�������	���������%����	��������)
��� �
�5�����������	
�

���
����������#��6!�

�	
���

 ���"3��

"������ ������1	� �������������������	��
����5�C�6!��	����� ��?A��������	 ����� �����
�

���������  � �����C�����%����	��� �
���������#��
������� �������)��!���� �������%�  �
����

 �����
��� ����#��
���!

���"3��

+����
���)��������
�������������������&�����������������@/?��������������������C������

.�
�
!����������� 
��%�������	��� �
������	))�
��)��
�
�������%�	 ����#����
��������

����

!�"�������#�����������%�	 �������������
�����
'������������%�	 �����������������

������������������ �#����
!

��������� 3���� ��������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��������� +�����������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

�+������������5��� ���������
�����)��
6������
��������������
��	 ��)����������������


������/����������#���)���
���  �����#�������������
�
���������!�������� ��
����
�

��&����������������� ��)��
�����������������)�
����)���
����������!����

.��+��������������-
�������������
�-�����
����������� �%����������#�������	������5�����%�
��

��������� ����)��%��������
�����
�������� �
�
6!�

Page 167



��������� +��
�(�  

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

�	� ���  ����%�  ��� ��)���������  ����
��	����'���%�#��'�+��
�(�  �%�  �)��)�� ��

�)
��	����'���������
�����
'����=�� ����
'���������� �
�
�������
�) ����������!�7�����

������������� ���������'�)	���������
	�����������
����������  �����


��
����� ��

�����������#���������	��������� ���������%��������������
���
������������������������
�

%� �����

�	
���

 3.

���)�������������	��� ��
������
�������� ������� ��������
�%�����%���	����� ����������

�� ���������	�
����
�����������!����
����� ��������
��	��)	
���

���������  ��#��) ������

��
� �

�%�	 ����	
������������� �
	�������	��
���!

�����#�
����
���������������+��
�(�  '�������	 �� ���	�
����������	��
��"�����������

�������5�"�6!������	�)��������� ������
�%�	 ��)��	���������#�����������
���
	) ����� �

�������
��� �)������'������������� �������������$	��������������������	������������

��%��+��
�(�  !�

7��%� ���������
������
���������+��
�(�  '�)	��)� ��#��������� ������
�%�	 ��-� 	��	�-�

������������+��
�(�  ������	������
�����
���������������������%���� ������	�)��
����

��� �
�
'���
�������������
������� �%!�

����������
��� �#� ������� �
�
�%�	 ��� 
�����������
�) �������

�����"�'�����%���
�

��	�������������
�) �����������)��
!�

��������
� 
�%�	 ����#����������#�������������	�)��
�#�
�������"�������� ���������������

�	�)��
�#�
������
����������	
��	���	���#��!�����������������
���	 ����	
����	��� ����

�#���	�  ��� �
���"�!�

� 
�����������%�	 ��)�����)��������������������������)	
���

�
����+��
�(�  '�

7��� ������������������-��������!

�	
���

 ����+��
�(�  �
������
�����������������������
��������'�� ���	�����������
�����������

�������)����������
������������������
����
��
������������
�) ��������������������(�  
�

���%�	 ��)��������������������������������%�	 ��)���#�� �) �������� ����&��������������

��������!

���"3���

���������
� 
�����+��
�(�  �� ��� ����#��-�����������������	���������$	�������
��������

 ��� �)	
���

'����������	 ����������
��������!����
�%�  �� 
�����	���������������� 	��

�������� ���
�%������$	��� ��	
��������	) ����  �%� ���
!���

��
����� �����	������
�;��������� �������)���%�	 ��)����
	��������������������
���������

��$	�������
'���������������)����������%������
�) ���)��
� �������
������������������

�$	���!�2��������������
�) ���)��
��������	 ����	
������������ ����  ����
��������
�

���������
�������
�#���������
����%����������������
�����#������������!

��
����� ����

"����	��) �����������������
���������������� ��
�5#�
	�  ����������6'���%�#���"����

���������
�������)��������	��
��"�����������.������#��������	
���!�"���
�������
����  �%����

����)	� ����� �����������)������������	� ���  !�"������������%�  �)��� ����������
������%���


�������������������� ������
�����!�"����� 
���	)��	
��)�	�������
� 
���������#����

������
�) ���)��
������#�	�������� ������
!

��
����� �����	������� ��
�
���������� �����	�������	
�) ���������������	��������	� ���  �/���

����������#����	�)��������%�����
'���
��	����
�����������)	
���

�
�������������

���#���) ��������
������� �#����
!���������
��������������������$	����G?���	������

�

���� �������	��
�����������������������)	
���

!���
��������������
������#�� �) ��%�  �

��	
������������
����'��	��������	
��������������)	
���

�
�����������
	�#�#�������������!

�	
���

 ��������  ��������
����������	��'�%����������#����
���/ �����������'�%��)� ��#�����������

)����

�) ������
������������ ���� ����������)��������������'�)	�����
��  ���
�� �!�

�����	 ����
����������%�  ���������)����#��������
	������������

�������������#���

��
�

������������
��!

�	
���

 ���"3��

"���#���������)�����������
�����������
�%�  ���#������#��
���������������)	
���

�"�


��	�� �����)��
�����
�����
�������
���#� �������%�������������������%�	 �����������#���

����������
	�#�#�'�� ��
����������
���������
���������!�"�������������	�%�  ����
��������

�������� �����
���������	���%����	������������ 
����	
������ ��������	
�����
�"�%����D�

���
���%�����������������������
�)	
���

�#��) �����������	�����������������)�#�������

���
���������!

���"3��

.��+��
�(�  ���-
������������	
������ ����)��%������� �
�
���������
�����
�5�������� �
�
�

%������������������	���������������%���������������������)���
6!��

Page 168



���"3��

4
��������
�) ���)��
!�����#� ����@����F���
�) ���)��
��
�#����	�&	
�!�7����������
�

��#����������	��
	��������� ���
�����!�3��������
����� �
�
�)	��%�  ���������#�������������

���
��%������������

!�.)&�������#�
	� ����	��
!������)�������������������

��
��	����
�����%�  �)��
��� ��%��������
�����)��������
!����� �������)����������
���������

�
�����
��  �/���������� �
������� �����
������	��!

���������������������� �������� ����!

���
�������
���#� �������������#������������#�������������������%������������	 �	�� �����������

��%������	 �
� ������������
��	����
'����
���������������������� ��
!��
�����
	 ������
�

)�����������	���)	
��������!

"�����������������
��������  ��������#��������
���#����������������	
��
�������
�����������

�����������������5�

����� ���������������	������������ �
	���

���������"�'���
�������
'�

�������
��������������  �����)	
���

�
�������
�����6'�%��)� �#����������%�  �)���������������


����	������� ����#�
��� ���������%��+��
�(�  ������������������$	���!�"��������������%�  �

)��������������������������� ��������������	
�����
������%� �%��'����������	 ����������


������������	� ���  �%��������� ���������
�#���������
�����������
!����
���������
�)����

���
������	 �� ��)��)	
���

�
��������7��� ������������������������%�
�����)�����	�����

����%���
��������. ������ ��
������5��%�(	�����

6������#��������
���
�%��������

����
���
�������
����
��	!�8	��������
������
��������#��������������������) �����	������

���������  !

�����"����������	 �� �������#�������)�������#�
����
���#����������	 ��� �����������/����
�����

���
������!

7�� 
����#������������������������������������ �
��������	��������%��������������%���

��	 ��)��)�������� '����%�	 ����������)���%
�������  ����������#��/�	� ��� ��%����������� ��

�����

����+��
�(�  �
������
�����������������������
��������'�� ���	�����������
�����������

�������)����������
������������������
����
��
������������
�) ��������������������(�  
�

���%�	 ��)��������������������������������%�	 ��)���#�� �) �������� ����&��������������

��������!������	������
�;��������� �������)���%�	 ��)����
	��������������������
���������

��$	�������
'���������������)����������%������
�) ���)��
� �������
������������������

�$	���!�2��������������
�) ���)��
��������	 ����	
������������ ����  ����
��������
�

���������
�������
�#���������
����%����������������
�����#������������!

�����	������� ��
�
���������� �����	�������	
�) ���������������	��������	� ���  �/���

����������#����	�)��������%�����
'���
��	����
�����������)	
���

�
�������������

���#���) ��������
������� �#����
!���������
��������������������$	����G?���	������

�

���� �������	��
�����������������������)	
���

!���
��������������
������#�� �) ��%�  �

��	
������������
����'��	��������	
��������������)	
���

�
�����������
	�#�#�������������!

����!"����

��������  ��������
����������	��'�%����������#����
���/ �����������'�%��)� ��#�����������

)����

�) ������
������������ ���� ����������)��������������'�)	�����
��  ���
�� �!�

�����	 ����
����������%�  ���������)����#��������
	������������

�������������#���

��
�

������������
��!

���"3��

�������%�  �� 	�����%�����	����	��!����������
����������	 ���������� ��
	���
����!�4� ��

�������� ��
����!�8������
�����������������	��� �����������)	�����������
�
�����!

������� ���"3��

3����������	�� �'�%��� �������%����%��� �� ���1	� ���������	 ����� �����
������������


������'� ������������
�	����$	������!�"�� �������������
�) ���������������
�����

��#������%�  �������������

�) ���������#�
����������	�����
�����������������!

���"3��

���������)�	�� �

������
�) ������������������	��
�������������!��� �����)����
��������

����������"��%�  ������� ����	��
�
���������/�����������	�
����������!

���"3��

��� ������
�%�  ���������
�- ��
	�������-���� �#����� 	����������������
����
��� �)������!�

�	
���

�������
�%�  ������%�!�3�%���������  ������
�� 
����+��
�(�  !���� ������
�%�  �

&	
��)����  ������������ ��%������  ����)���
!�7�����%�  ��������� �����
�����:�7����

�)�	��������
�) ���
����
:

��������� I	��
���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

Page 169



��  ��� ����� ������  �����
� ���������#��
�����������
�����������  �%�������
��
B

E!�I	��
���������
�
���������������
����#��
����#��%
�������)�����!�����%������� ������
�

������
� ��������%�  ��)
��	������
��#��%
���������������������������������������
�

��������#����#�����������!

G!�������������%�  ���#����������#������������������������#� 	�����I	��
����������  �'�

������ ��) �����������#��%'�)	��� 
�� ����������� 	����!��������
��������������������+��;;��

���������������� ��������
!�������� ���'�����
� ��� ���������������
�%�  �)��������  ���%����

�)��������)���
!

@!��������
�� 
�������

	����������
�������������	 �����������������������
�����������!����
�

��������I	��
������
����������������$	�	�
�������� ��%��������������

���	������-
�

�������
��
�%�  ��
����)������+	�������������-
�)���������
�!������������ 
������

�	�
����
�����������
�����������
��	����
���������
!

�
���	����%'�������  �����
��	����� ��%�����������������
����%��������+��&����8� �#����

����������#� �����������������
�����������#��������� ������#�����
����I	��
���!�"��

%�	 �������
��
��������� �������������)�����
��������
������������
���������#�!�

��
����� ���
������
'�������� ��������������
���
���	) ��������#��/
���� �������
�%�  �)�����

��#��������� ����
�
���!

���"3��

���
��
��������������%�� ���
�%��������� ������
������� �������������#��!����������
�

�������� 	����'�%�  ��)
��	�������#��%'�������������������	 ���������� �����
������������������

I	��
�����#�� �������������#��!

���I	��
���'�"��������)� ��#�������%��
��	 ��)������	���������� ������������������
�

� �
�����������#���������������#� ������
������
�������!

I	��
�����
��������%����%������� �
�
�	
�����������������������>�
	
������'�%������
�����

��
������������� �
�
!����
�
��	 �����)�) ��)����
��	�����!

��������� �������������

	
�� �������

��
����� ����������5	� ������� ���������
� �������������������6

��
����� �������#�
�������������
����
��
�����'�)	��������� �����������
�� ��%�����%�  �����#�����

��  ���������!��� �
�
�%�  �������	������������������)���� �
����������#�� �) ���������

���������������� ���	�������)
��	�������
��������#��������
�
����������#����������

��� ���������%����
���
����� ����
�%���������������������)	� ����
'�������������
���������

JAK�%���������
	���� 	�	
�&	
������#������!"���� �
��������������������� �
������
�����

�	�
�����	��)	� ����'����
�
�����
��������?��������
���������)�	��EAA���  �%��������
����

��

���'��  �� �
����������� ������
�
����������
�%�������	 ����#��)����	
��!����

�� �
������������ �
����������)����	
�������
�����) ����
���������
�����
�%�����������

����������������������������������������������������'���������������#��
�%�������

�������������������	���#������������)���
��������������������
�����
!

��������)���
���

�) ���#����  �5�!�!������#�� ��
���������+�;;���	����������
�����#����

�������������������������)�����-�����������
������� ����
�%�  6!

���������������5�����
���6�
��	 ��)���������������

8�����
�
�
����������#�������������
�� ��
�!�/�%��
����������
�����
!

�������
��������#�����
������ �����������
����%����
�������	����	�������<�<�)����
����!

��������� ���������������///�����
����+�;;��(	�

	
�� �������

�	
���

 ��

��
����� ��

��
����� ����

7�� ������
�������������������)��������
������)���� ������ ����
'�����
��������������������

��	��� ��������������������
	������
������ ����
������) �������  ����� ��/���
�) �������

� ��� ��/����	
��� 
�'

���"3��

8��-��	
��������
����������� ���������!�����)�
�/����
����������������� �������
������

�����
����
�/�����
	����)�	��������
������
!"�����
�����������������
����������������������


����
�)	���
�
�������%������
���
�����������
��������)��)�����"���#���� �����)�
����

����"������������)��
��) ������)� ������%���������
������������ ��
������������������#��

�����!

Page 170



���"3��

������
����
�
��	 ������)�������������	���!�����������������	
!���	
���

�
������

����

�������������������������������
!

������������
	���
����
����	��������
����
�
	����
�+�����-
�+�������������)��%�  �

���	�����	�������
	���
	���) �� ������������������ �
��	������������
����������������)���
!�

"���
� ��%�	 ��������� ���������) �����	������
�����������%��%���������%������
����

�������������
�����������������%�����������
����������	 ��!

���"3��

2�

�������

����+�����������!������������� �����������
������������������
����
����������

)������#�������	����� ������������
����!

���"3��

���	 ������)���������������������
	�����
�����������������������
����!

���"3��

�������������	�������
����
���
������������� �)��������
�%����	��	
�������

�������
!

���"3��

"��)&�����������
��	��	��
��������������������������
����
���������������� 	�����+�����-
�

+����!

���"3��

7��
	���
����������
��
�#����	���
���) ���
����%�  �	
��	�������������	
�������
�����

�����������������������
�����#�����/	
�����������������
����
!��� �������#�� �������
�����

��������� �)��������������	 ����� 	�������+����������������'��������+� ���������������

+���
���!

���"3��

8��-��
���������������5�!�!����

��6�
����������+�����-
�+����0���� ������������������


����������+��������������
����!�

+�����
-�+�����/���%�
�����������

�
��	 ��)����������
�������

������������� �
����
�����%� ��������%�#���������������� �%����	���������� �����������


��� ������

������� ���������	
��-&��
-!

���������
9�"�������%�������������#�
�������	 ���������0���������� ��	
��������������	���

+�����-
�+��������
��	���������)���


��������� ���������������///�����
����(��� 

	
�� �������

�	
���

 �%�����������
������%��������
�%�  �)����������
���)�� �������������� ������
��
�
��%�!�

(�� ���������������

	�!�+ ��
��������������#��
������%����� ��������������>	���GAEG�

����
	)
�$	�������� 
!�"�
��  ���������� 
�%������#�������	����!

�������
��#���������
��  ���������������� �
�
����
������������'��������������������

��#�����!�"�����
�����
������������������ �
�)����

����#���� �
'������������� ���
�����

��������
�)��%������
��	�������� �
�
�������

����#���� �
�5��������� �'�%���� �������

������� ������� �
6!

Page 171



��������� ��	�����	����������

	
�� �������

�	
���



.	�������������������	�����	����������������
� 
���������
�����
���

�) ������
��  �

&	������)���������	������ ��������� �
�����
��
����	������������!�+�

�) �������

���#�
���������������������
��������������%�  :

+��#�
����������� 
��)�����#�������������������� �
�
�����������#�����'������������%�����

%��'�������	 �� ��%����)	
��%��������
�����
!

��
����� ��

��
����� � ���	������
������ ������������������� �
����������&�������	 ��/
�������������������
�����

���
���	�	
!���������
�%�	 ��)��)������ ��������#����������� ����������#���� ������

���  �
'�%������������%���
����%� �����%��'����
	)
	����������������)������
�� �����

�����	 ��/
�����������������
� �!

�������(�	
��+�

���!�+����
� 
���������
������%�	 ��)����<��%�
�����8�
�
���<!���


������%�����������
�	�/� 	�����������	�/
��� ��)������
�������	����	�������  !����
��
�

���������
�����
!�2�����������	��
������� �	�
������������
����%�  
���������� ���
�����

)� �%����
��	�/��������
��!�8��-���	�����'�� ��
�!

��������%
��������!�"����������������%��������
����
�%�  �������!����
�����'����������

%��������	� �������'��
���)	
�
������!�7��������)��������
�)�������
����������������
��

���������:�7��-�����)���������	
������  :����'�%�	 ��-������
���������

���
���
������

����'�)��)�����:

���"3��

3����%�����

������	
���)��������� �#����#���� �
!����������)�	���� �#����#���� �
�

)������)
��	����������� ��)��
������#���	
���%������� �
������������ �

 �!

���"3��

3���������	�����	����������
����
����
�#����)	
��� ������%����)	
�
����������%������

������#�����
!��7�	 ����	
������������
����!��

��������� �������(�	
��+�

���

	
�� �������

��  ��� "���#�� ����������������%���
�����%�	 �����
��������������������� ����������

������� ������
������
��������������(�	
��+�

����5���%����ED6�����)�

	����	 �������#���������#��
�� ��
����
�%������  �����,�  �%
������	���
���

�  ���  ���
������������������	 ��������
�	����
���  �%��������	�����

���������
���������������(�	
�!��������
��  ������������ ������
�%�	 ������

���������
�������������������#������
�	����
��	������������������

���%��

�����)����	
�������
�����) �������
�������������
�����
�������� �
�
�%�
����

������#� �� ����������

���%���!

��  ��� 7���������#�	
��)�	������������	 ���� �������������/(�	
��+�

����
��%�����8��%����

AE?/AEL1AAA1AED!�����
�� ���
���	������������ �-������� �-�����
�����
����������������

(���	�'�%�����%�  ��)
��	�������8�����
-�8������������������������/(�	
�!��"�
	
�����

��������
���������
�
���
�
����	
���
���������
����!��"��%�	 ��� 
����������������
�����

� ����������	��������������������	���
����������������������/(�	
�� �%����������� �

����

���!

���"3��

������������ �������
��������
����
��
�) ��)�
�������������	������	
������������� ��

�������(�	
��+�

���!����
��
�� ������������������%�������������
������������ �
������

������������
�%�  ��� ��������)���������

	�!�

���"3��

�������(�	
��+�

�����
�� ������#���������%�����������	 �������������	��!

�	
���

 .� ��.*����� ������������  ��

�������(�	
��+�

�����
���������������
$	��;���
����
����
'���������
�����
�C���� �
�
�

� ���0�)��������
������%�	 ��)����� ��������;���!

"��
	�����%������	��
�
���#����)	
�������	���������������
�����
�������� �
�
!

 �����������
��������	
����

����%�	 ������������#������#��
� ��%��������	������

���������
0�����������������������
��������	
���	���������	�������
���������� ��

��&������������������
��� �������!

Page 172



4��#��
��� �
�8���������
��
'�����-8�����
-�8���-�%����� ���
�������������
��������������/(�	
��

��%����
������
���
������������/(�	
����

�����
�������/�����5������������������

�) ��

����
����������(�	
��������	��/� ���� �#� '�)	���������#� ���� ���%���#�� �) �����������

��  ���'����%����������
�����8�����
-�8���6!�������	����	��#�������8�����
-�8�����
� ��� ��

���)���	��
 �%�
����������%��'�)���	
����������� ���#� �������%��������������
���
�

��%�'�
�����������������������������#�������%������������)	� ����������������	 ��

%�	 ��)��	���
���) �!��
������
�8������������������
��������������'�%��� 
����#��

������������
����.���)��'�3�#��)��'�>��	���'�,�)�	���'�������5G����
6'����� '�����

����>	 ���
�%�  ��
�������	�����
���������� �����

������� ����>	���%���������������
!�

2������	�)��
������%�����	���
�5E'AAAM������������
����������������
6���

��	��

����	�������8�����
-�8�������������%� ����%������
���
����������������/(�	
�������

#�������3����������5�������������
����������������(���	�6!���������� �����

����
����

��  ���
���#���� ��������	���
�������  ����.������
�
���������������+�

����)��%����

���"3��

���������	
�� ���������
�������	 ���	
��)������	��#��
���!�����
�%�  ��������������#�������

������������%������
!

���"3��

(���
������%�	 ����	
��
����	
�������	 ���
���������
�����
�������� �
�
������������
�����

��
������	������$	������)��#�
����
�����
�	����
�

��������� ��������������

	
�� �������

��  ��� ��

��������� ���� �����������
�� %��
�%� �����)	�����
��	
��)����� ��������%��������

���#���������������#� ����)���
������� 	�������#�����
�������������
�����
���������������

����������

��
����� ��

��
����� .	�
��������
)	��-
�����������������������
�����&���������������	
����%���������

�����
��������
������
'�����
�����
�������� �
�
�������������������%��!��������&	�������

����������������#�
�)� �����
���
��������������� �
�
��	�����������������������������)
�	���!�

"������
�����������G���� �����������
�)������
������������������
����
��������������������

� �����������������%�  �������������  ���!�������#������������
������%���������
�����
�

���������)�������������
��
�����  ��%����)���
�����������������
������%�  !�� 
�����%�	 ��

)����
����������� �
�
������	���������)���
������������������%��!

��
����� �"����%���������
��
�%������#�������%���
����)��)	��"�)� ��#��������  ����
������
�)�����

������������ �
�
������������������������������'����������%��������
'��� �#���� �����
'�����

<���������<�#���� �
�����������������������������������������
��
����������#���������

��������������'�����
�����'�
��������
�����!��  ��������'���� 	�������� �
'�
��	 ��)��

����#��������������������������� �
��������
�������  �%�������	��������
���GE
������	���

��#��������!

��

H����� ������
�������������
���������������	�����������������������������$	�������

������	 ���/�)�� ��������9

�	
���

 ��"
�������#���������  ��%�������	����������
!�"���
���#����)	
���������������� ������

�#�����%����������������
���
��
�����  ��)����	�����	�
� ������������������	

���

������������  ����)	� ����
������������!�"��%���	
����#�����������'���%��)�	��� ��������

����%�����������%�����
�������������	��!������������������N�2�������
����"
�����

��#���������  ��%�������	����������
�������������!����������
�)��+����
�?�4�������)��

.*�)	������
���#����)	
����#�����!

Page 173



�	
���

 7���������������%�������������
� 
�
��%��������� ��� ��!������#�����
����������%�����

�����	�)��
��������
�����
�%���	
����������������������	 �� ��������������
!�����

���
���������
���	
�������
�����������	 �� ���	�
��������
)	��
�5�
�����  ��%����

)���� �
�����)������	���������������	������������
���������
����%�����	
�������
�����

��

����)�60������������
�	��������������
��������&��������������  ��� ����������2���������

%�������������������%
��
����&���
���������%
��������)������������������������#� 	������

����
�����
��
�
$	��;����������������
����!7��������������������
��	�
��������
)	��
�

���������
�������)������#��������� ��������	�
�����������)	����7�� �����  !����
�%�  �

��#�����������
���������������%���
������������#�����'�������
���������
������������

��������������!��
����������������
�����%���5� ���	������
������������
���)�������

��� �
�
6������������'�����
���� ��������#���� �
�����)���� �
���	������������������������

��������
�����
����

�����������������%�  �)���)
�	����)����������
������������
'�

������
������
�������&	������	
��
!������#�������	�
�������)	����7�� �����  ��
�	
���

)��#���� �
������� �#����
�����  �������&������
���
�����)	
���

������
�
�5��� 	������	��

�%�6�����)����
���
�������������������
�������������
�����!�������	��� ��
��	����� ���� ������

������#�������	�
�����	���������%����) ������#���'����
	��) ���������
������������
��
���

����

�����	����������������#����������!�7����������������
)	��
���#���������� �#����
�

������������)������������������
�
�%��������
���������������%������#������	
���!.	��

������������������
������� �����������
�������������
�������#������)����������
���)����

����
��
���
�����
)	��
�����
���������������
�
���&�����!����)	
������
����
��
�

� ����������
��#�����������	
�%��������#� 	���������� ����

���'�������	 �� ���	���������

���� ��������������	
�'�����%���	�
� #�
�������	
���)
��	�����������������
������� �%�

%�� 
��	� ��������������������������	���������������������� �#����
!.�������������
��
�

�����������#�����
����������
�����
����� ��������� �����������������
�����������������������
�����������	 ������
������)��%����EA�������?���)���	
���������#� 	������

)���� ��������������������#���� �
�
�����������
�����
���������
��������������#�����
�����

������
�����!���	
�����%��������������#�����
��
�������� !7��$	�
�����������
���)� �������

��������)���� �
����
	�����)	
������	�����	��!���������������
�� ������)������#���

�%�������������	��� �����
!�7����
�����
������ ����������  �%���������������)���� �
:�

3�%������������#�������
�)������� ����%��������������������������)�
��������%�) ����

��#���'�%���������	
���
�)���������
��������
�	���#�����������'�%������
	����
�����������

�����������	��� ��
����
��������� ����������
�������������%�)���� ������
!

��
�����
�%�  ��)
��	�������
�����


3�������2 ���
�)�����/��������
���������
��)
��	�������
�����
������#���������%����������

)��%������������������������������
�
����)����������������%�  ������#�����������) ��!

�������������������� ����
��)�	������ ��������������������
�����
��"�����
���������
���

%���������	��� �%�	 ��%����������	������
��	������������������!������������������
�����


����+C8�)��
��������������������
���� ���	  �
��%
��������
���#��������������������

����!�"���
������ %��
����#����������	
�������	 ��/
��������������
!

�7�������������������������������������
� 
'�������	 �� ���������������������'�"�%�	 ��


	���
�������������� ����������)�������
���
���%���� �������)��
�5
������� �#���� �����
�

����������������������#����������6���������  ���� ����������������5������� 	���)�  ���
�

����  �������
��������������������
6!��

.����������������"����-��������������
��	 ��)���������������������)	������  �������

)���	
����-
������������	
�����) ��
���������
�����
!�

���"3��

"����-����������-
������������������#����� ������
�������
�������������
��������
�%�����

 ������	�)��
��������
�����
�%� ������������������
�����$	���������%!�+�����	 �� ��� ����

�������������'�%���������
����$	��� �����#������������
����%��������������������
�����
����


��� ��%� ����%���������������	�������)���
!���

���"3��

������
�����������������
�������
���
������������� �����������%�������#���%��
�'�

���������� �
�
� �������������)���
�	�����
����������:

���"3��

��� �������������������?D���������������%�	 ����	
����&������ �������
�������������
�

%������ �#�����������	�� �����
�%�	 ����#�����) ��
��������!

Page 174



��������� ��������%�
�������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��	��� 7��%�  �)�����������)��������%���� �������������� ����
�� �������	�
����������	��� �

������
������������%
������������������ ������������������
�������
�) ���)������� �������

)��
!�������
�) ���)����
����������	
��)������ ��%�������	
����������	����)�������

%������
������������%������
!

�	
���

 �
������	�����
���
�������  ���
��������������������	���������������������� #����������

%����#�������� �����	�����)�	������������%��
���������#�����	�� ��� ������������

���)����������������������������������� ������� ��� �
������
�������	��
�
!��������

�������������#�������	�
�����	��
���
��
������%�����%����#������������
� ���)��
�

������ ���	�
�����  �����
���
�����������������
�������
�%����#�� �����#��
��������
�

��������	�
����) �����������#��%��������
���������
����������������
���������������!�

8	���������
	����������
��� ��������	��
�
��	����������	��������������������������������

%���� �������
������%���#����������������*���
�+�����!��
����
��
����������
�������

����

������)������%����� ���������
������������)�������#��!�7�����������
�	

����%����

�%����I	�� �������������)��������������%�  ��������)������������������)����	��

����������������
� �����������������#�����
�
������������#������������������)��������  !�

���������� �����
����B

E!�����������	��������������������%��������*���
�+����������� #����������5����������

��
�����������������������	��������������������������� #��������������)	�������������#���

��������6!

G!��"����#��������&	�������%������ #����������������	���������������������������
���������

��� �
�
���������
�����
����

���!

@!������������������������ �� ���
�����������
���������������%�������!

��	���������#��������
����������#��	
���
�����%����	�������������%������ �������#��

������
���
������
��#�� �) �

��������#� ����8�
�) ���)��
�������������%
����
��	 ������)�����
��������������
����'�


	�� ������#����8�
�) ���
����
���������� ��(�	
��%�	 ��)�������
���� ���!

��������� ���>����
��������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

"���� �����%������
�����
�����%������������������%������
���1
���� �
���������
���� ��


��	�� ������������
�������
��	�� �� �������)���'�
��"�
����� ��������������
��	 ��)�����

������
������	���������� ����


��
����� ��

��
�����

�3.�/�����>���-
���  ����	
�
����
� ��)�������� �#����
'��
�����
�� 
��	
���)���������

������
�����  ������-
�+�

���!�

���������������������� ���
��
���#���������
������������
����������������������
��������������
��� ������������

������� ������
���	 ����	
������

����) ��
����#��
����� �����
���������	  �������

	� ���!���� )���
�����������������������
�����
�����)�����
�������	�����	����) �������

���������)	
���	��!�����������
�� 
��� �
��������������	
���)�������������������
������

�  ������-
������������ ������1	� ������!

��
����� �3����!����
��
����#���� �������%��!

�	
���

 �7�������� ������������
�������������)	� ����� ��#������������%���� ���:���

"��%�	 ��)���������������������
����
������#��%
��������%��������������'����������

����-
'������������C����>���-
����� �����������	� �� ���������������������
����
!

���>���-
��������
���������%���
�����������
��%�����%�����1���)��	�	
�
����
!�����

����
��
����������'���������� �
��
��������!�

Page 175



��  ���

3.

5�
�������������
	 ������������>���-
���  ���6

������  �����
�������	 �� ������������������������
� ������
��������%���� ��
����
�%������

���� ��/)�����5�������������6����>���-
������������
�������>���-
���  ���!����
� ��/)���
�

	
��������� ��)��������  ���'�)	��� 
��)�����	�)����������� ��
�����������
!���!�>���-
�

�������1��������������������)������#����)	
��%������� ������������ �#����
���������
�

�

����� ������#�����#�
��������#���� �
���������%������������� �#����
�������#��������


������)��������) �������	��������
����
���������� �#����������
!

������  �����)&���
�������
�
���������������������
� 
�����
	���
�
���������
���� ��


����
�%�	 ��)������������������ ���� ������&	
��
�#��� ������
��������
�	���%�����

������%�	 ������������)����������������#�����������������������!

��  ��� 3.

������  �����)&���
��������	
��������� ��/)��������� �����������
����>���-
������������

��������������
��������������	������
����������� �#�����������
����������  ���
��������

����'�
���
�����)	
���

�
�����
��  /�� ���
�����  ������
�������!�����
�������
������%�

������������������ ���������#� �������
����%������� �
�
�������������	
����	�!�,�������

�� �#���� �����
�����#��
���������������������%�  �������
�������
������������#����

#���� �
���������
�	��!�"��
���
����#��
�������#��
� ����������)� ���������� �
�
������&���

������������
	�����)	
������!

������  �����%�
���������������#������������	�
��������8�#����������� '�
������

�����
� ����
������� ������
��%������������ ��/)��%�  ������
��������  ��������������	������


	����%���
���!

��������� �����
���	�������

	
�� �������

4��#��
��� ��

��
����� "���#��&	
���������	�� ��� ����	� ����������� ��
�����������)��������
����������
���	���

����!��
������ ����� �
��"��	  ��
	���������
��������
� 
!�����	� �������������� ����	���
B

/��
�������
���������������������
��������:

/���#������� ���������
�����������
������������
��� ������	
���)������
���������
�	����
����

����8�%���������'�������������)������ ��#�
������������%��������:

��
����� (�#����)�  ���
����)�������
��
���#��������������)	���������) ����
���������� �
�%�  �
�����

�	����������������/���� ����������������)�������
�#�������

��/������������
���������������

�����
��)���������)��������������
'���
�����  ��������
�%�����������
���$	�	����%���
�

������������������������������������������#��
�%����	������	�������
�����#���,��;%�  ����

������!��+�����
������
�����#��������	 ��)����������)��%��������)�  ���
�����

����������������� ��
����
������� ��� �!

4��#��
��� "�������%�������������
� 
!�"��%�	 ��)��)����������������� �
���	 ��)�����������������


����'�

�����	  ��%����������%�
�� ��
����
���
������������������� ������!��������� �����������
�

��
����� ��

��
����� 3.

����������� �����������
��������) ��
���������
���	�������!�������������
�$	�	�
����

���
�����'�������� ��%�����������������������������������������'����������

�������������

������������8�%����������#����������	 �!����������������	��������������)��
�)���������

��� ����������%�  �������)�������
������ 
���������G/%������������ �%�������
���������

�����
���	�������!

3.

3���
	���%��������
���	��������%�	 ��������������#�
����/�����	��#��
������
���� ��

)�������������������8�%��������������. �������)�����-
'������#����������
��	 ��

���#�����������
����1
�	����
����
	����� �������

��� �������%�  �������)����
��������������������������%�����!�3������  �������� �
������ ��

)��	
���)��
�	����
����������� ���� �
�
!

��� �������%�  �������)����
��������������������������%�����!���������������� �
�
�%�	 ��)��

��������� ���;����������
��������!

Page 176



��������� ��������2�����

	
�� �������

��
����� ���
�� ���������������������������*���-
���  ����%�  �)�'����)�
��	�����	����'�)	����
	 �����

���� ���-
����������0������
���������	������
��� �����)�����������!

��������2�����
���������������
$	��;���
����
����
'���������
�����
�C���� �
�
�� ���0�)����

����
������%�	 ��)����� ��������;���!�
 ���� �� �

���������
$	��;�'�������
'������

�������(�	
��+�

���'�)	��%�������O�
O�)	
�'�)��������
�%�	 ��)����;����	
���������!�

���"3��

�	
�������	�������%��������
�����
'���� �
�
������� �#���� �����
!�� �������������	
 ��


��������
���������������
�����(�H
������	#��������	���#	 ����) �������	
��
!

���"3��

7����������������������2���� ���������'�"�)� ��#�����������
� 
�%�	 ����������������/������

��������
�����
�������
�
������%�������	 �� ����������� ����%����#����	 ����������'�

������	 �� ���� �#����#��
�5
������������)
���������%�������	���������������
��������������

�����	
�����
���	���	������	����������	�
�����
6!�7������������2���� ��������������

�������(�	
��2���'������������%���������	�)��������	��
�
�	
���������
��������


	����'��
���������� �������
������������������!�

���"3��

(���
������%�	 ����	
��
����	
�������	 ���
���������
�����
�������� �
�
������������
�����

��
������	������$	������)��#�
����
�����
�	����
�

��������� ���������������

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

"�%��������������������������	���)��)���9

��
����� ��

��  ��� ����

�	������������� ������
'�)	�����) ��
�%���������
� !

��)) ��������)��%���������������������������������������  ������������!����� ��/)��

����
�������>���-
�������������������������������	
����#��������5���������	 ���)������

EA�������������?��6�)���� �#����#���� �
����)	
���

�
������������������!�����������

� ���������) ��
�%���������������������)) �
�����������1��#����������) ���������  ����

����

!

+����
��� �������
����� �

���� ��/)��
�����%�  �������)�������) ��
!�7�  ���	
��

�����
�����)���� �#����#���� �
������������������'�����������
�����
�������������
�%����

��� �
�
'��
�����  ��)��%����L!@A/P��!

��  ��� "����%����������)��� ���������������  ���'��������������������
������ �������������� ����
'�


��������  ��� �����������������������
�������������������� 
������
����,����������
����

�������������!��7��%�
����������  ���)&����������
�������
� 
!��3����� ��%�  ����
���#����

���������� �����������������������#����
������
�����
�5� �������#���	��%������� ����������

��
�������������
��������#�����6�)	��� 
��
���������� ��������
������ �������)�������
�

�����  �
���
�� ��������
�����!��.����������������'�����
� ��� �������#������������������������

 �������#���� �
������������������)) ���
����������
���������������������'�����������-
�

 ���!

�	
���

 �.	���������������%�������������
������� �����������������������
���������%�  �
�#��� ��

���	���������������
����
������� �#���� �����
�%������������
��
�� ������������	 �!�7�� 
��

%��������������������� ��������������
����)�������#�������
��������������������
��������

���
�����������	������������� �� �%������������� �������������%�
�����!�� ���	����� �#����
�

	
	�  �������� ����)������EA�!�!������������������?�!�!�%������

�) ��������%�  �)����%�

)���
����	��'�����
���������	����������
����
����
�-����������
����������	��!

��
����� �������
��
�������������������5�"����%���������
��
�%������#�������%���
����)��)	��"�

)� ��#��������  ����
������
�)����������������� �
�
������������������������������'�

���������%��������
'��� �#���� �����
'�����<���������<�#���� �
�������������������������

����������������
��
����������#�����������������������'�����
�����'�
��������
�����!��  �

�������'���� 	�������� �
'�
��	 ��)������#��������������������������� �
��������
������

�  �%�������	��������
���GE
������	�����#��������!6!����������	��  �'����
��
��#���������

�	
���

 ������#������������
����������#� �������%���������
�%�  ������� ��) ����#����)	
��

����
�)	��� 
����	
��)	������������	�����	�
��������
������%�  ������� �������������	
��

��������
��  ������������������������� �����������	
!�7�������� ������������
���������

Page 177



"��%�	 ��)���������������������
����
������#��%
��������%��������������'����������

����-
'������������C����>���-
����� �����������	� �� ���������������������
����
!

�"������������'����������
� 
�������������������������������������  ������
�+�

��������

 ������������������� ����)��%��������
�����
�����#����	 ������������
��������)���������
����

�
�$	���������%!�����������
� 
��������
�	�������  ������
�+�

���������������) �!

���������������
���������%���
�����������
��%�����%�����1���)��	�	
�
����
!���������


��
����������'���������� �
��
��������!�

��������� ��	����������������///�����
����*���
-
�2���1����	
�����
�����  ���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

��
����� �
������	�����
���
�������  ����5������� ��'�����(��%���'�#��������#������������

������������
���  ���6�%����#��)���������������������#�����
�������
�����!�+�������

��
� ���)��
������� ���	�
��������
���
������ �����#��
��������
�) ��������#��%����


���������
!�+�#�������
����������%������  �������	��
�
!�"����
�	

����%�����%����

I	�� ���������)��������������%�  �)���	����������������������
� ����������#�����
�

��� 	����B

/����������	�������������������/%��������*���
�+����������� #����������

/������#����&	�������%������ #����������������	������������������������
������������ �
�
�

��������
�����


/�������������� �� ���
�����������
����������/%�������

/�������
����%����������#������������� #�������������*���
�+�����

/���
����������������'�)	����� 	����� ������1	� �������)��
!

+ ��
������������
���������� ������
�)��������������� ��������� �#����������
!

7��������������������	���������������������
� 
'����%�	 ��)��)�������� ���������%�����

����'������ ���
�����%�����������#�������������%�
�����
����������������������#������

������������'�
�����������
����������

��
������	��������
�������!

H����	
��	 ������#����������� ���� ��������������!���
�����
����
������������	  �����

����	���������/
���� ��������!

��������� ��	����������������///�����
����,��;%�  ������	
�	���������%�
1��
���

	
�� �������

��
����� ��

+ ��
�������������#�������������� ��)��
�������������� ����)���� ��
����
!

��	��� "�������������� ��� �1��
�) ������)��
���������������������������������	��!�� ������

#������%���������
����
!�8��-��%������� ��
������������� ��)��
!�

��������� #����	


	
�� �������

��
����� (�#���� ������������������
���
���
�������%���� ������
�"�����
����
�����������$	�������

������
���������������������!���
�����	���	����������������
�
��������"����������������

�������������������� ���
������
������������	�
�%����	��) ���������������
!�����
��

�����
� 
����������������������� ��
������

�) �����
����� ���
!���
���������
�����
�

�������������)�� �����%����)���� �
�%�������	
���������;���
'� ����	�
���� ������%�  �

� 	�����	�����������������
����������
�������)�����!����	����  �����-��
�������������)�	��

����������������)�������������0�����)��	���	 �
�����
������	�����)����� 	��������
������


���
'��	))�
������)���� �
!�������������
�������
���
���
�������������� �������
�

��� 	������������	�
����������	��
��"�����������������!��7����
��#����������	�����	�
����

������� ��
����
���������
	����������������������������
����
�%�������������

�) �����	
��

�����	���#���� �����)�
����������
� ����� ���������%��������
�������!

"����#�� �#���������)�������  ���� ����������� ���������)����������?F�����
�)	�����
��  �

����  ���)������)���#��	�������������
������������	�)��������  �%���� �
�
������������	���

�������
�������
�	��������	
���������� �������������<��������
����<���������!��������� ��

��	��
�%�����"����������������
�	
���#���������������� ������������'��#�����%������

�	  ��������� �
!

Page 178



��
����� �"���	
����������)��
�%�  �� 
�����������
	��
����������������%����������������	��

��#�����
��������� �!������������%�������	 ����
	�������������%���#�����
'���������

��������
�����%��� �����
'�����
������
�����
�
	����
��	

���������'�+������	�������

���������� ����
�����1��� �����������
�-
�2���'��
�%�  ��
������
������� ���������)���
'�

����������  ���)������+� ���'�+��.-
������������7�����
�����  �%���������)����� ������

)������
�����
!��	������
	��
'���� ��
�'���	 ��� ������
������
���
���������

���� ������)�	����� �
�
������������!�

��
������5������������

#�
	�  ���������6

(���/������������ ������
���������������#�	��) �������
��������������� ����� ������
�/�

%������� �
�����
���%������������������ !����������������%�  �������  ��#������
������	����	
�

��	
�����)
��	�������������
����������%��
!������������ ����� ������
������������ ��

��;����	
�������	 �� ��%�����#�� �����!���������������#����������	�
���� �����%�����
���

��
�����'�)��	���	 �����!�"���
���#�
�) �����������

��������������������������
��
�����������

������������%�����������������������
����������%��!���� �
�
��������������������������

�������������
������������%�����	
������������#�������������
�����
'������	 �� ��

�����������%�%�����������
��%������)� �������) ��
�������
�)� ����
!

/�-���

���-�������������	� ����1���������%
�&	������!����������
���������#��)����

)���
������������� ����#����%������
��������	
���������#�
	�  ����������!�������
���
����

)������������������������#� ����
	���������
!�3������
�
��	 ��)��� ���������!��  �

�
� �����)���
�
��	 ��)������#��!

/����������������
�
�2�����������������%���!����
��
���������	 ��������������������%����


�������	����	��������
� �����)���
�������� ������!�(�����������������
�
��	 ����� ����

����������� �����
�%��������

��������������%��!���������� ����#����-����
������

���

���-��
�����
���!�������  ������

���
�5���;�)������

���
-�
��	 ��)��
���%�����

� �������
�����!

/�+�������	���!�"�	����
������������������������
������;���
�%�
������)����!��	��
�������

��������
���� �
�
�
��	 ��)��-���
�������-��������
�����
!����
��
�����������

���!

/�"�������������	�����	���!�����

�������
�������	 ���	������	�)��
��������
�����
�����

��������������)�����������!�����
�������������� ���������
��	 ��)�����	 �� ������#���)��

��� ��%�����
!

/�+�����-
�+�����)������������
!�(���������������� ������
�
�������������)	
�
���������

�
�
	���
����/�������
���������������
����'���  �����������#�  ��+ ���!�� 
����� ��

����
�����
����+���
��������� �����
�	����
!

/�����
�
�+����
!��	���
��������������������
��������������
���	��
������  ��%��� �������

���*����������!/�7�����
�
��	 ��)����#�����%����������#���)
��	���#��)���
!�,	��
�
��	 ��)��

���#������������	 ���������������	�����QL!G���  �����  �������������)��������������

����������� ���!

/������+���/���/�����
���
'� �������������#��
��������	 ��/
���������/����
����)����

����
!���� ����)��)������������������������������������������������
�������#����������

(�������
������� ��
����
������� �����  ��	
��	 �����������������
����)���
!�,�����%��)���
�

%������������	 ������	������)�����������%��� 
���������������	 �����)���� �����$	��� ��

����)�
���
�����������������
���
����������� ���

 �
!�"���#�����
������
����
��	���

����
��#�� �) ��������� �������%������������#� ������
���������	
������!����������)��

#�����%�%�����������)���
�������������� ��)��
����	 �� ���������� ��!�7����������� ��


����
�)���
�����)�������������
����%��
���	�������#����� �
��������� �)��
!�

+��
	�����������
�)�������
����
	�#�������������N�%����������������� ��%��� ��#��

������)���
��
����
������
����%�������:��������
��
���
��	  �:�����)��������������  �����

�����������������
������������� �������%����)��������
�:�"
������������������������������

�������#���I	�����������������
��� �
��:�.���������)���������������I	���������:����

"�����
��)�������������������������� ����
������'������� �����������������)���������������

���
�
����%��������#� ����!

������
��	 ��)�����������������������������
����
!�+�������)���� �
�������

��
�����

�����������!�"����#����
�����������������

�	����������%�  �)��%�����%����������%���

%������'��	�����������	�������
�������%�  ���#������)����������������������������������

�� ��� ��)������������
�����%�  �)�� �
�!�"���� ���������%���� �������� %��
������
���%�����

��� ��#�����)���!

"�������  �������#���������������
�������� ������
!����)������
��	 ��)���������� ���

��� �������������������
���������4*9

"�%�	 ����������������	 �����	
��������������
��������
�)���	
��������
��� ���
�)� ����5������

�������
6�)	�����������������������%�  ��  �%���������� ����������������)���
!

8������� ������	����������
��	���5�!�!�������������	��6���������
�������)�����
�-��

%��� ������!�����������
�����������	 �� ������ �����#�����������������������5�!�!���
� ��

��������������	�������)	
�
������6!

��  �������� ���

�
������	��������
��������������
���
�/�� ������  ����
	�����
����
�������#�����
!��

Page 179



����������
�����������
��������	��� ��
�����R3������
�� ����"�)� ��#�����
���#�
����������#��

#��%�������������
������ �������� ����������%������������%���������������
!�"�������

� ���
�R�������  ��� ���������
�%�	 ��%����)�����!�������� ����������������� �
��
�

������������������'��
�����  ��%������� �
�����)�� ��������������������!������%�  �) ����

��������%�����������%�
�����
!�������� �� �'���������
�������)�������������	 �� ��) ������

)����	�����	�
��������
����� ����)��&	
������	� ��
���������� �����%����	�����	��������

�����
!����"���	
��)�������)������������������� ��5�
�����  ������ ��
������������


�	��������	�
6���	) ��������� ������������� ������
���������������
������������

������� ��� �����
��� ����� ��%�  �����!����(�#��������
�
�%����R���������������
�� ��������

����
	���
������
�����
�)���������:��"�)� ��#��
	��������� ���������%����
�%�	 ����
������

#��)� �����������
�����
!����������������
������������
'���

�) �� ���� ��)� ������%��

%�	 ��)������ ���#� ���������
�#��%�������#�������������
� ����
����
�
��	 ������
�

��)������
� 	������
����)	� ��
����������� ������
� �����������
����+�������C�������������!�

+ ��������� ���
��������
�����)��
����!�4������������+ ���'�����������������(�)
�����'�

�����
��������+���������������'�	�����3�%��$	�����������������������'�*����������!�

��  ���
����)����$	��������)	� ��
����
��������#����#�������)
��	������
	����
����

���������!����

�#������%�����������������
��)
��	�����
�C������#�������
�

����
�����
�C���
�) ��!����	����
���������
�������������
�
'����)�) ��#���� �
��C�


	)
�$	�����)���������!����
�����������
���
����
�%�  �)��������
����C���������

������ ��
������  ����
	���	�����
�C���������	��
�
!�"������)��������)	�����%�  �)��

������%�
����������� ��������!�,�  �%�����3����� ���
������ ��/������%���
!

"�����)
� 	�� �������#�	�����������
������ �����������#�� �)� ���!���������
�"���#��
����

��
���������������
�%�����"�
�����������
������������������������������%�����"������

���
�������� �������������)���	  ������������!�"������������
������ ��������������

�����

������������%�  �)����������� ����
���!

�)�	�������%����#�����������������������
��	���)�����������������%�9

����	
��"����-��	
�����
��
�����
�
���������
	���%�����������������������������!������

� ��������#����� ���������!�"�� 	���
���� ����������
�����) ������������)���
�%������� ��


���
��������������������
!��3���$	���������������'�)	��
���������	 �����%����
����


����
�������������#� ������������)	
�
���
!

"������������������ ����������
������� ������������������� ����#�
�����
�
	���
����)������

��	��� �%�  ��� ����
��	�����������
�
��������������������������������������	�������

������	��
���������������	
������������������	#��������������
�� ���!��+ ��
�����)��

)� ���)�	�����
!

8�
�) �����������
����
�
��	 �����'���������� '�)�� �
�������� ���������!��� �������

����)�'����)�'�)	������ �
�!

"������� ��#�
�������������"�� ���!�����)��������
�������� �������+������-
������������

����  ���'��������������������������#���������������������������
����
�������)�#�!�������

��#������'��������	�����-�� �
�'��������������� ���������#�������(��������������������
�

����������������������  ���  �%
������������������������%�����	 ���)���� �
��38�	������%��

�� ������������
'��!�!�,.4��)���� �
�
��	 �����	
 �!

�������%�� �����
���������������
!��)	��
��  ������
����
���$	�����������������������

"�������������%�
�� ������
�������	�������������������) ��������	 ���������� ��
����!�"�

��� �	��������	��� ������������
������������
���
���
�������������� ������
'�����"�#����

�	���������������	�������������

���������#� 
�������������%�����  ��������!

����
�
�������������������� ���%������
����
�����5������� �����������(�������������


����6�/�� ���	��'�"������������"-#������
���������	) �����
� �����������	� ���  �5%�����

������#����� �������������
��
�������
6!��������������������
����
�%�  ���������������

�������'��� �����	
��
�����)��)��������	
�������������� ��5�����������
���  ������

�������#� ���) ��������
�6!��+��
���  �'�"������������
��� ������������)	
���

��������

������� ��
����'���������������������%��
����%����������������������)�������#���%����

���
��5��������� �'�����#�
�����	  ��
����������#���������� ��������)���
1%��� 
6!

�������� ������������
������ ��������'�� ������
��
�)����������

��!��(�������������


����
����-�������)���
����
����������%������	�� �������-��������
���������������!�� ������

�����) �����������������	�
��������
)	��-
�/�"���#����
��������
�;��8/ ���!

"���
���������
���
������#���������
�����
������	 ��
 �%���%����������� �%
���������
����

����
!�"�%�	 ����������������������	�����������%���� ����������%�  � �������������������

��������#� ������� �
������ �������	��)��	���	 ����������	����	
� �������
!

������������ ��������������)�����!

"����#����� ��
������
��������������	��� ��
�������	�������� ���������� ����������

���#�
���!��(�%�#��'�"���#�� ����)� ��#����������������������%�����
����#���������
����

� 	�������)���)��������)���
'�%���������)������������������'������������������� ���!������

����������������
�
���
�������������
����$	�������) �������������������������������

������
:����� 
�'�"�%�
�� ����������������������
����������'���� ���	�	
��%������
���#����

$	��������������������'��������������	��
�
'��������������������� �������%�
������� ���	  '�

%�����"���#���� �����#��	
 ������	�������������	����
!��"�� ���
� �������)����������
�

����������������������)���������� ������������������������������ ���������������/
������

Page 180



,	  ��
	�������������� ���������!�"
��	���������!

�������������	������ ��������������� ���������!

����	������%� �������	�
��
����������� ��	���'�"�����%�����������
�����������
�����

�����������
�������� �
����������
�������
� 
�%�  ����#������
�����
��������������%���/�

%����������
� ��%�  �)����������	
�������������� �
�
�%���� �����������������������

����
�����
�%���������� ����)���������

����������!�

+ ��
��)��������������%��	���
������
���$	�����������������������������������������#����

��)���� �!��4
	�  ��������� �
��%�  ��	  �������� �������)���%��������������������
�����

)�������	����������������������������������!��"����� ���� ��������-��������
�����
�)�������

��%���
� ������� �#����#���� �
����������
��#����#���� �
�%������ ��������  ���������%���

�
��������

!��"����� ���� �����������(�	
����

�������
�%�  �)��������������

�) ��

%���� ������	�)��
��������
�����
�������

������������������������������� �
�
����!��"��

%�  �������������
���������������	������ �����
��������
�����������	��
�����	�
�%����������

�	��������#�������#��	� �������������
!

"���
��������������)���) ����� ��������)���������������������!����
��
� �

���
��������������

�������������
!

����� �������
�
�������������	���������%������)��	
��	 !��.��*���-
�+�����'�2���������

5 ��������86'�3���� ����'�I	��
���'�����������������������%���'�"���������������/���������


����
�%�	 ��)����)�������������)���	
������������� ����������
�������������'������������

)���
�%�	 ��)���������%��!

"���������
����
��	 ��)����	���������������)���������5����  ��%�������H6� �������
���������

�����������������+�����������+���!�"�������������������)����������
�
�������� ����

)���	
����-
� �

� ��� �����������������)����

��
/)������)���	
����-
����������������

����� �����
!

%�	 ���	������������� ��
�����%���������� �)���5)�������

�������6������������������� ����

4/
������������� ��
������
����
������� ��������#���� 
���������#�
�%��� ��
�������

��	�������
��������
�����������������
��� �)���� �
!�����������
9

�
����������������
'�����
�
��
�) �������
��	�������
�����
������	
�������
!��������� ��

�������������� ���� �����
!

�����
���
�)������	������1
	������������	����� 
��	�
����������%����%
���
��������

%�������
���
������
���-3����� �
:-�5��� ��%���������
�����������������
���������	�
�6��/����

��&	�������� �������������
'�)	��#������%�
���
���

8� ���������������
��� ��
�����)����������������������
������������ ����)����������

 ���!

7������	 �������������� �����������
������
���/�
��� �'��������������)�����!

"����-��)� ��#���������� ������
��������(�
�������������%�  ���#������
���#������������

 �#����������)�����!��
�����
�����'�����
�����'���� �
�������������#��'�"�%�	 ���������
���


������� ��������
5	
�������������
6'������J/D�����%� �������
���������������������������

�����������
���������
�����
'�
���������	�����%� �����)����)�����
��%�����	  ���)� ����

)	��� 
�����
��%�����������)���
���)� ���
��������	 ��)������
��	�� �������������	���

��� ���)
��� �
!��)�#���  �� ��
��������� ������)�������	������������� ��
���������'�

��������	

����������������������%
���������
�� ������
�������������� � �������
!��
�����/

 �������������)������"� �#���������������'����������	�������
�����	
���� ������
'�"�%�	 ��

����%�
���������������
�����  !�"������������	���������� �������
����������������� ����	 ��

����	������)��)�������������%� ������ �
��J/EA����	��
����
�%�	 ��)���������)� ��������

��#�������#��!��������
�������
���%�������� �
��
��	 ��)�������������� 1���������������

���������#��'������
��	 ����������������%� ����
�������
������������������������)���
!

*��������������������)�����'�����	����������

������  '���� �
�
���������
�����
'�����

���������
������
���������#�!����)�B�"���������������������
����  ��	
��	 '�)	������

�����
������	���������
����%���0�� ��
�'�� ��
��
�������
��	�����+'���-
�
��������	 ���������

��������)������������������)�������������������	�
�������'��
���	����-�����������)����

�������!�+ 	
�"�������� �������������	�%�� ������ �
������������������) ��������%�������

%��� �����
'���)� ����
������
������	
�������	
��
'��
����� ������
����
���������������

������)����
��	�� ������������������) ��������%��!

�"-�����  �� ������	�������
�������#����)��������
�%�����#��
�����������#��	��� ���
����

���
��� ���	��)����$	��� �!����)�����%��������������#��)�������  ����������������������������

��%��%�	 �� ���� ��
� #����

���������������
���������9

����-�������������-�
����
�����������	 ���������

������������	
�����%��� �)������!�

#������

�) �� ��������
��	 ��)��	
��!��8	�����)���� �
��	
��)������#������	 �� �!��

������������%�����
����������
�����

�) ����������
��	�� �����������%��������!

"����#�	�!�+ ��
��������� �����������	�
�����	)
�%��������������%�
���������������� �!�

"���
���	
�������������"���#����%�����
������� ��#�����)�����	�
������������� ������

���)������� 	����������*���
�������
!�.�������%��������������
����
���	 ��)����
� ��

���#�����!�"��%�	 ��� 
�����	�������������������� ��� ���
�����
�)�����	���������

�	�)���������� ��%���������)���
�������������������
!

Page 181



"�
����� ��
	�������������� ����������	
��������
��� ��������� ������
�����������������

	� ����������������
����
!��"�����
���������	) ������ �����������������������������������

���������%�	 ��)���������) ������ 	��������������
����
���������)������#��%
!

���)��������������������
������ ������
��������� ���������'�
�����
�������
� 
�����

#����%� ����!�7�����)�	������������
�������)�����'���%�#��:���  ������������������

)���� �
�5������	 �� ��������	 ��� �������
� ����������/��6��
�� 
�������$	���!

"����-����������� ������������������������	��������� �������
��	������ ���������'������	�����

�����������
���������������#���� �
�!

���  ��������!�8������������������
�)�����������)���
� ������������ ���
����!����	������

)��������� ������� ��������������������+���
�%�	 ��)��	
��	 ����!���������#�
�����
�
��  �

����������������� %���
������'���
����������#�����
!���������	!

�����
��/�+������� � �

������
�) �����������)��


,����  ��������-���)�-'�"���#�	����#������� �������������������
�������� �������'�)	��


����� ���������������� ��
����
!���������/���������
����
������#�� ������ ������'�����

����������������������� ������'�	� ������'����!

�������� ���������������� ���  �������������
������ ����������
���
!������)�  ���
'�

%�����
��%�'��������
	�������� �������������������� �
!��"���#�����������)����������� �
��

<������� ��
����<�������������&����������������)������������������#����������������
�����

����%��� !�����
������� ��)�����#������)��� ����������)�  ������������	�
��������������

�����������������5����������������
�
��%���������� ��
6!������)�  ���
���������)��

� ���������#����������������'���� 	��������
��������)
��
����)
����
���������������  �

���#��
���������#�����#�������!

.#���  ������������
�������
� 
�����%�  ����	�����	������%� �����!���������	�����

��	�������%����
�����!�(�%�#��'�����  ���
�����
�%�����-����������������� ��
����
-���#��

)���������
���"���������
������
������)���	
��"���������
������	
��������
��
����
!�

�����������������	) ����������������%����!

>	
�����������
����� ������������
������
�/���������� ����

�������	���%����)���
'�


��������������������'���

��
/)�'����!�%�	 ��)��)��!�+2�������%����������� �#� ��

��� ����������+��������������������������/���-
�
���'���
�������������'��
�&	
�� �#� �!��"��

����'����������9��7��������������� �
������������'�����������������#��
�5����"�
������
���

�������#��96!�����	�
��	 ��� 
���	) ���;���������������������� ������������/� ��
����

���� ��
��  ����-�����%�������
�
!

"����� ����#�����	) �������������)�����������������������������
��	 ������  ���
���#����

����������������� ���� �
��1�����
���������� ���
�&	
������������������������������ ���� �))��

5%��������	�
���� ��������)�	����� �
�
����������)�	���������� 
�6!�����"���������
��

��������������
����
!

7��������)
�

����%������������������
����
:�������������
�����%������������
������ ��

��%��� ��
� ��) ���������	��)�����������%��� �����"��#�������
���������
���������  �����
'�

������������ �������#��� �����������!�� 
�'��������
�������	
� ��� ��
�����)��%����
����
�

�
�����
'�
��
����) �������	����#���� �
����������)���
�%����)�
���
'�%�������� �)��
'�

��� ��
���
�����
���������
� ������1	� �������)���
�#����������	 �'�����������������


�������
������	 !�+ ��
���������)� �������������
�����%����
�����������
��
��

�)�	��	
����/��!�!�����
�����������
����
��	����	�
� ��%��������������	  ��������

�

�����������)���
�%����#��������)����������
�����%���
������
����	
������!

"-�������#�	������������/
��������� ����������������������������'�����"-�� �

�)��������

�)�	����������� 
�5
	����
������� ��������������������
����6!����"������������	 ��� 
��)��

	
��	 ������#��<�	  
<��#������%�����������5�!�!'����� �6�%����)��)���
�������������
�

�)������������)������#��!

(�
������� ��
�����
1�����%1������ 	������1����
������������������������ �
�

"��%�	 ��)������������������ ������
���	 ����#��
���
����
�����������)���
� �������� ����

������
���������%�  �)������#����������8�����������������������  ��)���
�����#���)��

�������
�
���������������
������#�� �) ���������� �����	
������!

+ ��
��
$	��;������
��	����
���

�) �'�)	����#��
����
����
�%��������� ��
�����)��

������������

+ ��
�����
����������������������������>�
	
�2�������������,�����
���������

(�	
�1�������!�+ ��
��� 
�����
�������
��  ������� �����������	�������	��������������

������������  �����'�������������	 ����	)
�
	����
�����*���
�������
'����)������� 	�'�

8�#��
����'����!�+ ��
�����
��������������� �������������8�#��
����������)������

����������������'���������������������������������������������
� �!����
��� ��
����������
����/�

%�  �����9�+ ��
�����������������������	��!!!

������������� ���������
�����%�	 ��)��%� ����!�"����������������)����
��� ��)���	
��

�������
���%����������������������#������"�������������������������������
��������

����

�) ������������!������������������	�������� �
�
�����
��

����� ������#��� ���
����


��� ��������
� ��
��	�����)���!�"����-�� ����
����
��������	���#����� ��������)��������'��
�

�������	
	�  ��
���������	���������������������)������
���)�
���!

2�

� ��� �����	
�����
��
�����-����#����
�������������!�8������� ��������������� ��

�������������%�!�����������������#���)��������)���
�%�������

�) �!

Page 182



"����#�	�!�*���� �����������������	�����
�������� ���������!!!

"���� ����������%�������������

�)� ������� �������	�����)����������)������� �
������

%�����"����������%����	����#��������	�����������������
����!

�������
����'��������� �����	��!�"
����
����	���EAAA�������� ���
'�����
��������� ����

JA'AAA���� �
�������)�����:����� 
�'��	��������������)���������������������5
��	�����

�� ����������������������6���
������ ������
�
����
!�7�����%������3�%��%��
	����
�

����� ������������'����������-
���)��� �������
����
������!�+��� �������)���
��������
�%�  '�

� ���	����)#��	
 ������$	�����
��	����
�����#����������!

3���
	����������
�����

��#��� � �������
�%�	 ��)��)������
��#���%����� ����������� �/
�� ��
����
!����
������

�	����������� �/������ ���������������
���
!

���
��
���#���������
����9�2��-
���#�����
��#��������9

������� ��)��
�����
��� �����	
�'�����
	���) �������  �����
����)���
�5
��������#�
�����

���������%��������)) ������
'���������� �6!��������� �'�%����-
�)���
��������)���
�%����

#���� �%����

)��
'�����)���
�%����)�
���
�����������	 ������������������������)��
'�

������������������	 ������������	
��
!

��H������.3�������
�
�����
����)������������� �
�
B��E!�%������� ����#��� �������

������#��)���� �� ����
�����������������G!�3.���� ������
����������������)� �
�%����

��� ���'�%�������
�����
�����������������
������������������
��@!�3.�����)���� ��������

��  �%���� �
�
�
����)��
������������������������������������'������� �����	������� �%����

���������?!��������������������� ���� ���
������������%��#�����)��%����#���� �
����������'�

�������#����
�	��) �������������%������������ �
��%�  ���� ���������������
�������	 �������������

���������������
���� ��%�� 
��)�����%��������������
��
�) ����� �
�
'�����
�����
�����

������#���� �
!��J!������� ��
��� �'�3.�������� ��� ���������������� �� ���
�����������	��

����

���;�)������

����%����	���	��������'��������������������������������������F!����
�����

��������
����������	����
�����������#���� �
�� 
��	
����������
!����"����� 
������� �
���
�

%�  ��
����#��'��������� ������������
������������������ �
����#���
�� ��
��� %��
�)������

)� ���!�4����
���������������)������#��
'�)	��)�������)������ �
����������������������

���-
� ���!������������������������������ ����38������������������������������
������/�

Page 183



��������������	 ��������������	��� � �������������������	�
�
����������	�	
����������������
��
���
�	������
��������������
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

�����
�������������������������
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������	�
���������	������	
�������� ���
����!�������
���

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 184



1 of 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING 

PROJECTHIGH CAPACITY CYCLE STAND TRIAL: 

USER SURVEY

How would you rate the use of the high capacity cycle stands?

 
Response

Percent

Response

Count

Easy to use 34.8% 8

Moderately easy 30.4% 7

Difficult to use 34.8% 8

If you have answered 'Difficult to use' please tell us why and how we may improve it?

 
9

 answered question 23

 skipped question 0

Page 185



1 of 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING 

PROJECTHIGH CAPACITY CYCLE STAND TRIAL: 

USER SURVEY

How secure do you feel about locking your bicycle on these stands?

 
Response

Percent

Response

Count

Very secure 31.8% 7

Relatively secure 54.5% 12

Not secure 13.6% 3

 answered question 22

 skipped question 1

Page 186



1 of 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING 

PROJECTHIGH CAPACITY CYCLE STAND TRIAL: 

USER SURVEY

Using a scale of 5 to 1 how would you rate the appearance of the high capacity cycle 

stands? (5 = very attractive, 1 = least attractive)

 
Response

Percent

Response

Count

5 31.8% 7

4 9.1% 2

3 27.3% 6

2 9.1% 2

1 22.7% 5

 answered question 22

 skipped question 1

Page 187



1 of 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING 

PROJECTHIGH CAPACITY CYCLE STAND TRIAL: 

USER SURVEY

Do you feel the cycle stands are suitable to the environment of Cambridge?

 
Response

Percent

Response

Count

Yes 68.2% 15

No 27.3% 6

No Opinion 4.5% 1

 answered question 22

 skipped question 1

Page 188



1 of 1

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING 

PROJECTHIGH CAPACITY CYCLE STAND TRIAL: 

USER SURVEY

Overall do you prefer this particular type of cycle stand over other types of stands you 

have previously used?

 
Response

Percent

Response

Count

Yes 28.6% 6

No 52.4% 11

No Opinion 19.0% 4

 answered question 21

 skipped question 2

Page 189



I think this may be the best that could be done locally in order to get high capacity 
and OAPs will simply have to hope to be able to find a space at a lower level. 

9/9/2013 11:57 AMView Responses

the stands installed at Sidney St, which are high capacity, are very difficult to use. I 
haven't been able to try those at Drummer st, but there are 2 problems with those in 
Sidney St which must not be replicated elsewhere. 1. the stands are accessed from 
the pavement/shop side and not the street. that means bikes are mixing with 
pedestrians - very dffcult to get your bike out after having used the stands. 2. the 
bike can not be placed close enough to the rack/bar if you have a short/medium D-
lock. short/medium length D-locks are the best type of lock for security as it makes it 
harder for thieves to break the lock by twisting. But the bike can not be located close 
enough to the rack in Sidney St. to enable the bicke to locked to the rack. the design 
of this new high capacity racks look a little different, but they must be installed and 
checked to avoid these 2 problems. 

9/8/2013 4:12 PMView Responses

I do not like the high capacity stands. The tyre holder makes it very difficult for me to 
securely lock my bicycle. I have a D Lock and prefer to lock through the frame and 
the front wheel of my bicycle as this reduces the likelihood of theft of the front wheel. 
The tyre holder holds the cycle away from the stand and makes it difficult to lock 
through all parts of the cycle. I also do not like having less space to stand next to my 
cycle when trying to lock and unlock it. Please do not use these in future 
developments around Cambridge. 

8/30/2013 10:51 AMView Responses

I want to lock the frame of my bicycle to the main part of the stand. But the part of 
the frame that holds the front wheel forces the whole bicycle to be slightly too far 
away from the frame. The part of the stand that holds the front wheel should be 
closer to the central main part of the stand. 

8/30/2013 9:40 AMView Responses

When using the 'high level' space, the handlebars of the bike in the 'low level' space 
is level with your frame, when they remove their bike, their handlebar scratches your 
frame.

8/30/2013 9:32 AMView Responses

They're utterly unsuitable for use with disc brakes, which are insreasingly common 
even on cheap bikes 

8/30/2013 8:59 AMView Responses

Because they are always full 

8/26/2013 10:34 AMView Responses

It's a bit difficult to use shorter D locks around the bike frame and the stand, as the 
bike is held some distance away from the main body of the stand. (Locking through 
the wheel only is insecure.) 

Page 190



8/20/2013 10:08 PMView Responses

They are useless for locking. The central bar is too far from the frame. I fail to see 
how they increase lockable capacity. They are also impossible for any non-standard 
bike, of which there are many in Cambridge. 

8/9/2013 12:21 AMView Responses

 

Page 191



Page 192

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�

���������	�
�
��������
����������������

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�

Page 193



014-018/000/101

014-018/000/102

014-018/000/003

014-018/000/004

014-018/000/005

014-018/000/008

014-018/000/009

014-018/000/010

014-018/000/011

014-018/000/012

014-018/000/013

014-018/000/014

014-018/000/015

014-018/000/016

014-018/000/018

014-018/000/019

014-018/000/020

014-018/000/021

014-018/000/022

014-018/000/024

ENVIRONMENT
STREETS & OPEN SPACES
PROJECT DELIVERY

Market Square

Peas Hill and Edward's Passage

Guildhall Street

Bene't Street, King's Parade and Trumpington Street

Park Terrace

Jesus Lane

St John's Street and Trinity Street

Sidney Street

Lion Yard, Sidney Street and St Andrew's Street

Christ's Lane, Drummer Street and Christ's Pieces

Tennis Court Road

Free School Lane

Trumpington Street

Granta Place

Round Church Street

Castle Street

St Andrew's Street

Regent Street

Eden Street

Burleigh Place and Norfolk Street

CAMBRIDGE CITY CENTRE CYCLE PARKING PROJECT

PROPOSALS FOR IMPLEMENTATION

DRAWING INDEX

Page 194



M
A

R
K

E
T

 

S
Q

U
A

R
E

M
arket

H
ill

F
o

u
n

ta
in

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

 T
H

E
 

G
R

E
A

T

S
t

M
a
ry

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

SenateHouseHill

TAXIS

TAXIS

S
t

M
a
ry

's
S

tre
e
t

TAXIS

TAXIS

S
t

M
a
ry

's
S

tre
e
t

S
t

M
a
ry

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

TAXIS

N
o
te

s
:

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
Q

U
A

R
E

A
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 @

 A
3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/1

0
1

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

M
a

rk
e

t S
q

u
a

re

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t M
a
rk

e
t 

S
q

u
a

re
.

N
o

rth
 s

id
e

 (o
u

ts
id

e
 2

7
 to

 2
8

 S
t M

a
ry

's
 S

tre
e

t): 

1
3
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

W
e

s
te

rn
 s

id
e
 (o

u
ts

id
e

 c
h

u
rc

h
): 1

1
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
: 2

4

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 4

8

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - M

A
R

K
E

T
 S

Q
U

A
R

E
 (1

:5
0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:2

5
0

)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0

)

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

 T
H

E
 

G
R

E
A

T

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

S
T

 M
A

R
Y

 T
H

E
 

G
R

E
A

T

M
a
rk

e
t

H
ill

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 g

ra
n
ite

 k
e
rb

 

lin
e
 to

 tie
 in

 w
ith

 e
x
is

tin
g

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 g

ra
n

ite
 k

e
rb

lin
e

 to
 tie

 in
 w

ith
 e

x
is

tin
g

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 C

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

Page 195



T
O

U
R

IS
T

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N

O
F

F
IC

E

PeasHill

S
t

E
d

w
a
rd

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

S
t

E
d

w
a
rd

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

 S
T

 

E
D

W
A

R
D

 K
IN

G
 

A
N

D
 M

A
R

T
Y

R

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 

A
R

T
S

 T
H

E
A

T
R

E

J
a
m

ie
's

Ita
lia

n

LOADING ONLY

W
h
e
e
le

r
S

tre
e
t

DISABLED

DISABLED

LOADING ONLY

LOADING ONLY

S
t

M
a
ry

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

T
O

U
R

IS
T

 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

O
F

F
IC

E

PeasHill

S
t

E
d

w
a
rd

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

S
t

E
d

w
a
rd

's
P

a
s
s
a
g

e

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

 S
T

 

E
D

W
A

R
D

 K
IN

G
 

A
N

D
 M

A
R

T
Y

R

B
e
n
e
't

S
tre

e
t

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 

A
R

T
S

 T
H

E
A

T
R

E

B
A

N
K

T
H

E
 B

A
T

H
 

H
O

U
S

E

(P
H

)

J
a
m

ie
's

Ita
lia

n

LOADING ONLY

W
h
e
e
le

r
S

tre
e
t

DISABLED

DISABLED

LOADING ONLY

LOADING ONLY

N
o
te

s
:

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

P
E

A
S

 H
IL

L
 A

N
D

 S
T

 E
D

W
A

R
D

S
 P

A
S

S
A

G
E

 

(S
O

U
T

H
)

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/1

0
2

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
e
a

s
 H

ill

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t P
e

a
s
 

H
ill o

p
p
o

s
ite

 th
e

 G
u

ild
h
a

ll: 4
2

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 S

h
e

ffie
ld

 h
o
o

p
s
 a

t P
e

a
s
 H

ill J
/W

 

W
h

e
e

le
r S

tre
e

t: 1
2

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

S
t E

d
w

a
rd

s
 P

a
s
s
a
g

e
 (s

o
u

th
)

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

d
ja

c
e

n
t 

to
 C

h
u
rc

h
 o

f S
t E

d
w

a
rd

 K
in

g
 a

n
d

 M
a

rty
r: 1

4

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

3
6

W
a
itin

g
 R

e
s
tric

tio
n

s

2
4

.6
 m

e
tre

 lo
n

g
 lo

a
d

in
g

 b
a

y
.

1
5
.0

 m
e

tre
 lo

n
g

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 b
a

y
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 k

e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t fo

r h
ig

h
 

c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - P

E
A

S
 H

IL
L

 (1
:5

0
0
)

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

g
u
llie

s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
, s

h
o

p
 

fro
n
ta

g
e

s
, o

u
td

o
o
r c

a
fé

 s
e

a
tin

g
 

a
n

d
 w

a
itin

g
 re

s
tric

tio
n
s
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

G
u
ild

h
a

ll to
 re

m
a
in

u
n
o
b

s
tru

c
te

d

E
x
is

tin
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

G
u
ild

h
a

ll to
 re

m
a
in

u
n

o
b
s
tru

c
te

d

9
  n

o
 c

y
c
le

 ra
c
k
s
 

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e

d

5
 n

o
 c

y
c
le

 ra
c
k
s

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

4
 n

o
 b

o
lla

rd
s

to
 b

e
 re

m
o

v
e
d

T
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

s
e

a
tin

g

a
re

a
 

(2
0
.5

2
m

²)

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (N
T

S
)

3
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

b
o
lla

rd
s

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 g

ra
n
ite

 k
e
rb

 

lin
e
 to

 tie
 in

 w
ith

 e
x
is

tin
g

E
x
is

tin
g
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 a

n
d
 

lo
a

d
in

g
 b

a
y
s
 re

c
o
n

fig
u
re

d

(s
e

e
 n

o
te

s
)

E
x
is

tin
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

re
m

a
in

 u
n

o
b
s
tru

c
te

d

E
x
is

tin
g

fire
 h

y
d
ra

n
t

E
x
is

tin
g

 fin
g
e
r p

o
s
t

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 s

e
a

tin
g

a
re

a
 (2

6
.2

9
m

²)

S
in

g
le

 d
is

a
b
le

d
 p

a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
 (2

.4
m

 w
id

e
)

K
e

rb
 re

a
lig

n
m

e
n
t

1
2
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d

S
h
e

ffie
ld

 h
o

o
p
s

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 K
E

R
B

 

R
E

A
L

IG
N

M
E

N
T

, P
A

R
K

IN
G

 B
A

Y
S

 

A
N

D
 C

Y
C

L
E

 R
A

C
K

S
 S

U
B

J
E

C
T

 

T
O

 F
U

R
T

H
E

R
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

Page 196



E
x
is

tin
g

 s
ix

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

Y
O

!

S
U

S
H

I

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 g

ra
n
ite

k
e
rb

s
 to

 tie
 in

 w
ith

 

e
x
is

tin
g

E
x
is

tin
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

G
u
ild

h
a
ll to

 re
m

a
in

u
n

o
b
s
tru

c
te

d

G
A

P

O
A

S
IS

S
T

A
Z

IO
N

E

O
P

T
IC

A
L

E
X

P
R

E
S

S

S
id

e
E

n
tra

n
c
e

GuildhallStreet

T
H

E
 

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L

W
h
eeler

S
treet

S
ta

tu
e

Y
O

!

S
U

S
H

I

P
e
tty

C
u

ry

C
O

R
N

E
X

C
H

A
N

G
E

S
T

G
E

O
R

G
E

 

H
O

U
S

E

G
uildhallPlace

F
IS

H
E

R

H
O

U
S

E

C
H

A
P

E
L

 O
F

 S
T

 

J
O

H
N

 F
IS

H
E

R

Parson'sCourt

P
H

W
h
e
e
le

r
S

tre
e
t

N
o
te

s
:

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/1

0
3

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

G
u

ild
h

a
ll S

tre
e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

G
u
ild

h
a
ll S

tre
e

t. 

2
8
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
: to

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 fo
r 

c
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 5

6
.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 k

e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t fo

r h
ig

h
 

c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - G

U
IL

D
H

A
L

L
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 (1

:5
0
0
)

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

g
u

llie
s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 

d
o

u
b
le

 y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:1

2
5
)

T
H

E

G
U

IL
D

H
A

L
L

3
 n

o
 b

o
lla

rd
s

to
 b

e
 re

m
o
v
e

d

3
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o

s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd
s
 

@
 2

 m
e
tre

 c
e
n
tre

s

E
x
is

tin
g

 n
o
tic

e
b

o
a
rd

to
 b

e
 re

lo
c
a
te

d

Page 197



TrumpingtonStreet

B
e
n
e
't

S
tre

e
t

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

K
IN

G
'S

 P
A

R
A

D
E

, B
E

N
E

'T
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 A

N
D

 

T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
4
 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

n
 th

e
 

c
a

rria
g

e
w

a
y
: 4

1
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

2

B
e

n
e
't S

tre
e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 o

n
 th

e
 

c
a

rria
g

e
w

a
y
: 1

0
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 2

0

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

IN
S

E
R

T
 D

 (1
:2

5
0
)

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

5
0

IN
S

E
R

T
 C

 (1
:2

5
0

)

S
c

a
le

 1
:2

5
0

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - K

IN
G

'S
 P

A
R

A
D

E
/B

E
N

E
'T

 S
T

/T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

 (1
:1

2
5
0
)

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

w
a
itin

g
 re

s
tric

tio
n
s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r

E
x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 b
u
ild

o
u
t to

 re
m

a
in

1
6
 n

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 'A

' fra
m

e

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 b
e
 re

p
la

c
e
d

w
ith

 S
h
e
ffie

ld
 s

ta
n
d
s

E
x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 b
u
ild

o
u
t to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

2
 n

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 P

a
y
 &

 D
is

p
la

y

p
a
rk

in
g
 b

a
y
s
 to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

1
0
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

to
 b

e
 in

s
ta

lle
d

2
 n

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 P

a
y
 &

 D
is

p
la

y
 

p
a
rk

in
g
 b

a
y
s
 to

 re
m

a
in

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

e
x
is

tin
g

 g
u

llie
s
, u

tility
 c

o
v
e

rs
, 

s
h
o
p
 fro

n
ta

g
e
s
 a

n
d
 w

a
itin

g
 

re
s
tric

tio
n

s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

5
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

S
h
e
ffie

ld
 s

ta
n
d
s

1
0
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d

S
h
e
ffie

ld
 s

ta
n
d
s

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

2
 n

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 P

a
y
 &

 D
is

p
la

y

p
a
rk

in
g
 b

a
y
s
 to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

1
4
 n

o
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S

h
e
ffie

ld
 

s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 b
e
 in

s
ta

lle
d

E
x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 b
u
ild

 o
u
t 

a
n
d
 b

o
lla

rd
 to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

5
 n

o
. e

x
is

tin
g
 'A

' fra
m

e
 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 b
e
 re

p
la

c
e
d
 

w
ith

 S
h
e
ffie

ld
 s

ta
n
d
s

E
x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 b
u
ild

 o
u
t 

a
n
d
 b

o
lla

rd
 to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d

5
 n

o
. p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 S

h
e
ffie

ld
 

s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 b
e
 in

s
ta

lle
d

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

TrumpingtonStreet

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:2

5
0
)

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 C

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

w
a
itin

g
 re

s
tric

tio
n
s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r

R
E

V
 A

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

Page 198



Park Terrace

ONLY

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

P
A

R
K

 T
E

R
R

A
C

E

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
5

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
a
rk

 T
e
rra

c
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
1

:

E
x
is

tin
g

 s
ix

 'b
u
tte

rfly
'-s

ty
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 tw
o

 

'd
o

u
b

le
-lo

o
p

s
'-s

ty
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 (c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r 1

0
 

c
y
c
le

s
) to

 b
e

 re
p

la
c
e

d
 w

ith
 1

2
 h

ig
h
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 

s
ta

n
d

s
.

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
2

: 

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t P
a

rk
 

T
e

rra
c
e

 a
d

ja
c
e

n
t to

 m
o

to
rc

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 4

8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - K

IN
G

'S
 P

A
R

A
D

E
/B

E
N

E
'T

 S
T

/T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:1

0
0

)

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 lo
c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 fro

m
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

p
e
d

e
s
tria

n
 g

u
a
rd

 ra
il to

 p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

h
ig

h
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

 s
ta

n
d

s
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 

re
p

la
c
e
 w

ith
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 

e
n

g
in

e
e

r.

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

E
x
is

tin
g

b
o

lla
rd

s

S
e
g

re
g

a
te

d

c
y
c
le

w
a
y

F
o
o

tw
a

y

M
in

2
.0

0

R
E

V
 A

Page 199



D
IS

A
B
LE

D
B
A
Y
S

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

J
E

S
U

S
 L

A
N

E

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
8

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

J
e
s

u
s

 L
a

n
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t J
e
s
u

s
 

L
a

n
e

:
7

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

4

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
2

4
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

J
E

S
U

S
 L

A
N

E

R
E

V
 A

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 d

o
u

b
le

 

y
e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
, b

u
s
 s

to
p

 d
is

a
b

le
d

 

b
a
y
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 o

n
 

s
e

c
tio

n
s
 o

f th
e

 e
x
is

tin
g
 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 b

a
y
s

Page 200



TrinityStreet

C
ro

s
s

C
H

A
P

E
L

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
R

IN
IT

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

0
9

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
rin

ity
 S

tre
e

t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t T
rin

ity
 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 A
ll S

a
in

ts
' P

a
s
s
a

g
e

: 2
8

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 5

6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 d

ra
in

a
g

e
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 

s
ite

 e
n

g
in

e
e
r

L
o

c
a
tio

n
 fo

r 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d

 re
p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e

 w
ith

 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a

c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e

m
o
v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

R
e
m

o
v
e
 a

ll e
x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - S

T
 J

O
H

N
'S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

/T
R

IN
IT

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 (1

:5
0

0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0

)

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

R
E

V
 A

Page 201



SidneyStreet

H
A

L
L

C
O

U
R

T

B
A

N
K

E
L

S
U

B
 

S
T

A

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
ID

N
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
0

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
id

n
e

y
 S

tre
e

t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
id

n
e
y
 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
ta

 T
ra

v
e

l a
n
d

 F
o

p
p

 (to
 re

p
la

c
e

 th
e

 

fo
u

rte
e

n
 e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
): 1

7
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

4
.

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

R
e

m
o
v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p
a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - S

ID
N

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0
)

R
E

V
 A

Page 202



B
A

N
K

C
H

U
R

C
H

 O
F

 

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 

T
H

E
 G

R
E

A
T

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

L
IO

N
 Y

A
R

D
, S

ID
N

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 A
N

D
 S

T
 

A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
1

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
id

n
e

y
 S

tre
e

t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
id

n
e
y
 

S
tre

e
t a

n
d

 S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e

t.

S
id

n
e
y
 S

tre
e

t o
u
ts

id
e
 n

o
 2

3
 P

e
tty

 C
u

ry
: 1

5

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
id

n
e
y
 S

tre
e

t/S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e

t o
p

p
o
s
ite

 L
io

n
 

H
o

u
s
e

/W
a

r M
e
m

o
ria

l (to
 re

p
la

c
e

 th
e

 tw
e

lv
e

 

e
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
): 1

1
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 5

2
.

L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t L
io

n
 Y

a
rd

. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 C
h

u
rc

h
 o

f S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 T

h
e

 G
re

a
t: 6

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - S

ID
N

E
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

/S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T
/L

IO
N

 Y
A

R
D

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0

)

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:2

5
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 C

 (1
:2

5
0
)

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 C

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 g

u
lly

 

a
n
d

 la
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n

. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

R
e
m

o
v
e

 a
ll e

x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 a

n
d
 re

p
la

c
e
 w

ith
 

h
ig

h
-c

a
p

a
c
ity

 ra
c
k
s
 s

e
t a

t 

4
5

° to
 b

u
ild

in
g
 w

a
ll

S
id

n
e
y

S
tre

e
t

S
id

n
e
y

S
tre

e
t

Hobson

Street

R
E

V
 A

Page 203



D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 P
IE

C
E

S
, D

R
U

M
M

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 &
 

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 L
A

N
E

1
6

/0
5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
2

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

A
P

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t B
u

s
 S

ta
tio

n
0
1

 M
a

y
 2

0
1
3

B
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

1
6
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
3

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e
t/C

h
ris

t's
 L

a
n

e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t/C
h

ris
t's

 L
a

n
e

. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 b
u

s
 s

ta
tio

n
: 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

D
ru

m
m

e
r S

tre
e

t/C
h

ris
t's

 P
ie

c
e
s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t D
ru

m
m

e
r 

S
tre

e
t/C

h
ris

t's
 P

ie
c
e

s
.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 p
u

b
lic

 to
ile

ts
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt B

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

B

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

0
0

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

C
H

R
IS

T
'S

 P
IE

C
E

S
, D

R
U

M
M

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 &
 C

H
R

IS
T

'S
 L

A
N

E

R
E

V
 A

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

tre
e
 ro

o
ts

 a
n

d
 g

u
lly

.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e

te
rm

in
e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 

e
n
g

in
e

e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g
 n

o
tic

e
b

o
a
rd

to
 re

m
a
in

L
a

m
p
 

C
o

lu
m

n

L
a

m
p

 

C
o

lu
m

n

E
x
is

tin
g

 h
ig

h
 c

a
p

a
c
ity

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

Page 204



TennisCourtRoad
D

O
  N

O
T

  S
C

A
L

E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
E

N
N

IS
 C

O
U

R
T

 R
O

A
D

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
3

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
e
n

n
is

 C
o

u
rt R

o
a
d

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t T
e

n
n
is

 

C
o

u
rt R

o
a
d

. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 p
u

b
lic

 to
ile

ts
: 1

0
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 2

0

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

g
u

llie
s
,  g

a
te

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 to

 

u
n
iv

e
rs

ity
 b

u
ild

in
g
 a

n
d

 w
a

itin
g

 

re
s
tric

tio
n

s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

G
a
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 

u
n
iv

e
rs

ity
 b

u
ild

in
g

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - T

E
N

N
IS

 C
O

U
R

T
 R

O
A

D
 (1

:5
0
0

)
IN

S
E

R
T

 A
 (1

:1
2
5
)

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

R
E

V
 A

Page 205



D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

F
R

E
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L
 L

A
N

E

3
0
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
4

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

P
U

B
L

IC
 C

O
N

S
U

L
T

A
T

IO
N

F
re

e
 S

c
h

o
o

l L
a

n
e

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
1

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t F
re

e
 

S
c
h

o
o
l L

a
n

e
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 C
o

rp
u

s
 C

h
ris

ti C
o

lle
g

e
: 9

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
2

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t F
re

e
 

S
c
h

o
o
l L

a
n

e
 o

p
p

o
s
ite

 P
h

o
e

n
ix

 B
u

ild
in

g
: 9

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

6

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

B

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:1

2
5

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c
a

le
 1

:1
2
5

S
e
e
 In

s
e
rt A

S
e

e
 In

s
e

rt B

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

F
R

E
E

 S
C

H
O

O
L

 L
A

N
E

R
E

V
 A

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 

b
o
lla

rd

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 e
x
is

tin
g
 

d
o

u
b
le

 y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
 a

n
d
 g

u
llie

s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e
e

r.

F
o
u

r
e

x
is

tin
g

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
re

m
a
in

G
a
te

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

 

S
t B

e
n
e

't's
 C

h
u
rc

h

T
h
re

e
e

x
is

tin
g

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
re

m
a

in

T
w

o
e
x
is

tin
g

P
a

y
a

n
d

D
is

p
la

y
(P

&
D

)
c
a
r

p
a
rk

in
g

b
a
y
s

to
b

e
re

m
o
v
e
d

a
n
d

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

to
b
e

in
s
ta

lle
d

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 e

x
is

tin
g
 

d
o
u
b

le
 y

e
llo

w
 lin

e
s
 a

n
d

 u
tility

 

c
o
v
e
rs

.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 

b
o

lla
rd

Page 206



Trum
pington

Street

G
ro

v
e

L
a
n
e

M
O

TO
R
C
Y
LE

S

Trum
pington

S
treet

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
5

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 F
itz

w
illia

m
 

M
u

s
e

u
m

: 9
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t 

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 G
ro

v
e
 L

a
n

e
: 9

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 3

6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e
n

d
e
d

 fo
r p

u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u
lta

tio
n

3
0
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0

)

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:2

5
0

)

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - T

R
U

M
P

IN
G

T
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 (1

:5
0

0
)

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 

H
o
b
s
o

n
's

 C
o
n

d
u
it. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 

e
n

g
in

e
e
r.

T
w

o
 e

x
is

tin
g

 P
a

y
 a

n
d
 

D
is

p
la

y
 (P

&
D

) c
a

r p
a

rk
in

g
 

b
a
y
s
 to

 b
e
 re

m
o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 

b
e
 in

s
ta

lle
d

P
ro

p
o

s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e

d
 b

o
lla

rd

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 H
o
b
s
o

n
's

 C
o
n

d
u
it. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

T
w

o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 P

a
y
 a

n
d

 D
is

p
la

y
 

(P
&

D
) c

a
r p

a
rk

in
g
 b

a
y
s
 to

 b
e
 

re
m

o
v
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s
 to

 b
e

 in
s
ta

lle
dP

ro
p
o

s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 b
o
lla

rd

R
E

V
 A

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

Page 207



Granta
Place

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

G
R

A
N

T
A

 P
L
A

C
E

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
6

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

G
ra

n
ta

 P
la

c
e

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a
c
ity

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t G
ra

n
ta

 

P
la

c
e

 o
p

p
o
s
ite

 D
o

u
b
le

tre
e

 H
o

te
l: 3

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 6

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r h

ig
h

 c
a

p
a

c
ity

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

D
O

U
B

L
E

T
R

E
E

H
O

T
E

L

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 

w
a
itin

g
 re

s
tric

tio
n
s
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - G

R
A

N
T

A
 P

L
A

C
E

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

0
0
)

3
 n

o
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

R
E

V
 A

Page 208



D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

R
O

U
N

D
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
8

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

R
o

u
n

d
 C

h
u

rc
h

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
o

u
n

d
 

C
h

u
rc

h
 S

tre
e

t. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 M
u

ltis
to

re
y
 C

a
r P

a
rk

: 4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

R
O

U
N

D
 C

H
U

R
C

H
 S

T
R

E
E

T

R
E

V
 A

P
o

s
s
ib

le
 lo

c
a

tio
n
 fo

r tra
d
itio

n
a
l 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s
 o

n
 e

x
is

tin
g
 k

e
rb

 

b
u

ild
-o

u
t

Page 209



D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

C
A

S
T

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

1
9

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

C
a
s
tle

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t C
a

s
tle

 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 M
u

ltis
to

re
y
 C

a
r P

a
rk

: 4
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

S
e
e

 In
s
e
rt A

A

S
c
a
le

 1
:5

0
0

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

C
A

S
T

L
E

 S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

V
 A

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 

d
ra

in
a

g
e
 a

n
d

 la
m

p
 c

o
lu

m
n
s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

Page 210



StAndrew'sStreet

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 

S
T

R
E

E
T

 B
A

P
T

IS
T

 

C
H

U
R

C
H

DIS
ABLED

DIS
ABLED

LOADIN
G

LOADIN
G

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

S
T

 A
N

D
R

E
W

'S
 S

T
R

E
E

T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
0

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t S
t 

A
n

d
re

w
's

 S
tre

e
t. 

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 S
t A

n
d

re
w

's
 S

tre
e

t B
a

p
tis

t C
h

u
rc

h
: 6

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

2

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
3

1
 M

a
y
 2

0
1

3

R
E

V
 A

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - S

T
 A

N
D

R
E

W
'S

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0
)

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 th

e
 e

x
is

tin
g

 

lo
a

d
in

g
 b

a
y
 b

y
 6

 m
e
tre

s
. 

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a

tio
n

 to
 b

e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d

 b
y
 s

ite
 

e
n

g
in

e
e

r.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 b

o
lla

rd

A
m

e
n
d

e
d

 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 b

a
y

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

A
m

e
n
d

e
d
 

lo
a

d
in

g
 b

a
y

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 k

e
rb

 b
u

ild
-o

u
t fo

r re
lo

c
a

te
d

 

lo
a

d
in

 b
a

y

Page 211



RegentStreet

E
S

S
E

X

H
O

U
S

E

MOTORCYCLES

RegentStreet
D

O
  N

O
T

  S
C

A
L

E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

R
E

G
E

N
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

A
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 @
A

3

IH
J

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
1

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

R
e

g
e
n

t S
tre

e
t

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
1

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

S
tre

e
t o

p
p

o
s
ite

 S
e

le
c
t: 6

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d
s

L
o

c
a

tio
n

 #
2

:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t R
e

g
e

n
t 

S
tre

e
t o

u
ts

id
e
 E

s
s
e

x
 H

o
u

s
e

: 3
 c

y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 1

8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

R
E

V
 A

S
ite

 c
o
n
s
tra

in
T

s
 in

c
lu

d
e
 s

h
o
p
 

fro
n
ta

g
e
, tra

ffic
 s

ig
n
s
 a

n
d
 

p
o
s
ts

, litte
r b

in
s
 a

n
d

 b
u
s
 s

to
p

. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

E
x
is

tin
g
 s

ig
n
 a

n
d

 

p
o

s
ts

 to
 re

m
a

in
.

E
x
is

tin
g

 s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 p
o
s
t to

 re
m

a
in

.
T

w
o
 e

x
is

tin
g
 c

y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 re
m

a
in

.

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 b
o
lla

rd

S
ite

 c
o
n

s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 w

a
itin

g
 

re
s
tric

tio
n
s
, in

s
p
e

c
tio

n
 c

h
a
m

b
e
rs

 

a
n

d
 m

o
to

rc
y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
 b

a
y
s
. 

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e

 d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r.

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - K

IN
G

'S
 P

A
R

A
D

E
/B

E
N

E
'T

 S
T

/T
R

U
M

P
IN

G
T

O
N

 S
T

 (1
:5

0
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:1

2
5
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:1

2
5
)

E
x
is

tin
g
 m

/c
y
lc

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

to
 re

m
a
in

 u
n
c
h
a

n
g
e

d

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

Page 212



Existing parking bays

Existing parking bays
Eden Street

Eden Street Backway

E
lm

S
treet

E
d
e
n

C
o
u
rt

O
rc

h
a
rd

 S
tre

e
t

P
H

O
rc

h
a
rd

C
o
u
rt

P
H

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

E
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
2

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

E
d

e
n

 S
tre

e
t

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s
 a

t E
d

e
n

 

S
tre

e
t.

O
p

p
o

s
ite

 H
o

u
s
e

 N
o
. 7

3
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o

ta
l p

o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a

c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a

rk
in

g
: 8

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

A
A

m
e

n
d
e

d
 fo

r p
u
b

lic
 c

o
n

s
u

lta
tio

n
0

3
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
3

S
e
e

 In
s

e
rt A

A

S
c

a
le

 1
:1

0
0

S
c
a

le
 1

:5
0
0

E
D

E
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

R
E

V
 A

S
ite

 c
o

n
s
tra

in
s
 in

c
lu

d
e

 d
o

u
b
le

 

y
e

llo
w

 lin
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
ro

p
p
e

d
 k

e
rb

s
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o

lla
rd

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

b
o
lla

rd

Page 213



C
rispin

P
lace

East Road

N
o

rfo
lk

S
tre

e
t

B
u

rle
ig

h
P

la
c
e

A
B

B
E

Y
G

A
T

E
 

H
O

U
S

E

C
L

U
B

C
a
ro

lin
e

P
la

c
e

East Road

B
u

rle
ig

h
P

la
c
e

B
ritis

h
 

H
e
a
rt 

F
o

u
n

d
a
tio

n

G
R

A
F

T
O

N
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

G
R

A
F

T
O

N
 

C
E

N
T

R
E

B
u

rle
ig

h
P

la
c
e

G
R

A
F

T
O

N

C
E

N
T

R
E

B
u

rle
ig

h
P

la
c
e

G
R

A
F

T
O

N

C
E

N
T

R
E

East Road

B
ritis

h
 

H
e

a
rt

F
o

u
n

d
a
tio

n

East Road

N
o

rfo
lk

S
tre

e
t

D
O

  N
O

T
  S

C
A

L
E

F
ig

u
re

d
 d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 m

u
s
t b

e
 ta

k
e

n
 in

 p
re

fe
re

n
c
e

 to
 

s
c
a

le
d

 d
im

e
n
s
io

n
s
.  C

o
n

tra
c
to

rs
, s

u
b

-c
o
n

tra
c
to

rs
 a

n
d
 

s
u

p
p
lie

rs
 m

u
s
t v

e
rify

 a
ll d

im
e

n
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 s

ite
 b

e
fo

re
 

c
o

m
m

e
n

c
in

g
 a

n
y
 w

o
rk

 o
r m

a
k
in

g
 a

n
y
 s

h
o

p
 d

ra
w

in
g

s
.  

D
is

c
re

p
a

n
c
ie

s
 to

 b
e

 b
ro

u
g

h
t to

 th
e

 c
o

n
tra

c
t 

a
d
m

in
is

tra
to

r's
 / la

n
d
s
c
a
p

e
 a

rc
h

ite
c
t's

 a
tte

n
tio

n
.

R
E

V
A

M
E

N
D

M
E

N
T

S
D

A
T

E

S
im

o
n

 P
a

y
n

e

D
ire

c
to

r o
f E

n
v
iro

n
m

e
n

t 

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
  

P
O

 B
O

X
 7

0
0
, C

a
m

b
rid

g
e
, C

B
1

 0
J
H

    

T
e

l: (0
1

2
2

3
) - 4

5
7

2
0

0
 o

r 4
5
7

2
0

1
 

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
a

te
:

S
c
a
le

:

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
n
 b

y
:

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

o
:

E
N

V
IR

O
N

M
E

N
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
 &

 O
P

E
N

 S
P

A
C

E
S

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 D
E

L
IV

E
R

Y

"T
h

is
 m

a
p

 is
 re

p
ro

d
u

c
e

d
 fro

m
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u

rv
e

y
 

m
a

te
ria

l w
ith

 th
e

 p
e

rm
is

s
io

n
 o

f O
rd

n
a

n
c

e
 S

u
rv

e
y

 o
n

 

b
e
h

a
lf o

f th
e
 C

o
n

tro
lle

r o
f h

e
r M

a
je

s
ty

's
 S

ta
tio

n
a
ry

 

O
ffic

e
  

 C
ro

w
n

 c
o

p
y
rig

h
t. U

n
a
u

th
o

riz
e
d

 

re
p

ro
d

u
c
tio

n
 in

frin
g

e
s
 C

ro
w

n
 c

o
p

y
rig

h
t a

n
d

 m
a
y
 

le
a

d
 to

 p
ro

s
e
c

u
tio

n
s

 o
r c

iv
il p

ro
c

e
e

d
in

g
s

."
 

C
a
m

b
rid

g
e
 C

ity
 C

o
u

n
c
il (L

ic
e
n

c
e
 N

o
. 1

0
0
0
1
9
7
3
0
) 

2
0

1
0

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 O
N

-S
T

R
E

E
T

 L
O

C
A

T
IO

N

B
U

R
L
E

IG
H

 P
L
A

C
E

 A
N

D
 N

O
R

F
O

L
K

 

S
T

R
E

E
T

0
3
/0

6
/2

0
1
3

V
A

R
IO

U
S

 @
A

3

G
R

S
H

0
1

4
-0

1
8

/0
0

0
/0

2
4

C
A

M
B

R
ID

G
E

 C
IT

Y
 C

E
N

T
R

E
 C

Y
C

L
E

 

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 P
R

O
J
E

C
T

B
u

rle
ig

h
 P

la
c
e

L
o
c
a
tio

n
 #

1
:

O
p
p

o
s
ite

 s
ta

ff e
n

tra
n

c
e
: 5

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

L
o
c
a
tio

n
 #

2
:

O
p
p

o
s
ite

 D
e

b
e
n
h

a
m

s
: 4

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o
ta

l p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a
c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
: 1

8

N
o

rfo
lk

 S
tre

e
t

O
p
p
o
s
ite

 E
a
s
t R

o
a
d
: 8

 c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

T
o
ta

l p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a
c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
: 1

6

E
a

s
t R

o
a

d

O
u
ts

id
e
 B

ritis
h
 H

e
a

rt F
o

u
n
d

a
tio

n
: 6

c
y
c
le

s
ta

n
d
s

T
o
ta

l p
o
s
s
ib

le
 c

a
p
a
c
ity

 fo
r c

y
c
le

 p
a
rk

in
g
: 1

2

N
o
te

s
:

N
o
te

s
:

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 lo

c
a

tio
n

 fo
r tra

d
itio

n
a

l c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

R
E

V
 A

E
x
is

tin
g
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 to

s
h

o
p
 to

 re
m

a
in

u
n
o
b

s
tru

c
te

d

E
x
is

tin
g

 c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d
s
 to

 re
m

a
in

 

u
n

c
h
a
n

g
e
d

6
 n

o
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d

 

c
y
c
le

 s
ta

n
d

s

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

  b
e

 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e

r

C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

d
 in

c
lu

d
e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e
d
 

lo
c
a
tio

n
 is

 n
o
t p

a
rt o

f th
e
 h

ig
h
w

a
y
.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d

 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g
in

e
e
r.

C
o

n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e
 e

le
c
tric

a
l 

c
a

b
in

e
ts

, u
tility

 c
o
v
e

rs
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

p
o
s
e
d

 lo
c
a
tio

n
 is

 n
o
t p

a
rt o

f 

th
e

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
.

E
x
a
c
t lo

c
a

tio
n
 to

 b
e
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 

b
y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

P
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 h

a
rd

 s
ta

n
d

 a
re

a
 fo

r c
y
c
le

 

s
ta

n
d

s

L
O

C
A

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 - B

U
R

L
E

IG
H

 P
L

/E
A

S
T

 R
D

/N
O

R
F

O
L

K
 S

T
 (1

:7
5

0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 A

 (1
:2

5
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 B

 (1
:2

5
0

)

IN
S

E
R

T
 C

 (1
:2

5
0
)

IN
S

E
R

T
 D

 (1
:2

5
0
)

C
o
n
s
tra

in
ts

 in
c
lu

d
e

 e
le

c
tric

a
l 

c
a
b
in

e
ts

.

E
x
a

c
t lo

c
a
tio

n
 to

 b
e
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 s

ite
 e

n
g

in
e

e
r.

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 A

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 B

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 C

S
E

E
 IN

S
E

R
T

 D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

C
Y

C
L

E
 S

T
A

N
D

S

S
U

B
J

E
C

T
 T

O
 

F
U

R
T

H
E

R

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

T
IO

N

Page 214



�

�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�����������
�	
�����������������������

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�

Page 215



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 1
 

 

 
G

e
n

e
ra

l 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
1

. 
T

it
le

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 
p

ro
je

c
t,
 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

: 
 

C
am

b
ri

d
g
e 

C
it

y
 C

en
tr

e 
C

y
cl

e 
P

ar
k
in

g
 P

ro
je

ct
 

2
. 

W
h
a
t 
is

 t
h
e

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

 o
r 

p
u

rp
o

s
e

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

?
 

 

T
h
e 

p
u
rp

o
se

 o
f 

th
is

 p
ro

je
ct

 i
s 

to
 i

n
tr

o
d
u
ce

, 
u
p
 t

o
, 
o
n
e 

th
o
u
sa

n
d
 (

1
,0

0
0
) 

n
ew

 c
y
cl

e 
p
ar

k
in

g
 s

p
ac

es
 l

o
ca

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

o
f 

C
am

b
ri

d
g
e.

 

 T
h
is

 w
il

l 
b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

w
o
 p

h
as

es
: 

 

 

P
h
as

e 
o
n
e 

w
il

l 
b
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
lo

ca
li

se
d
 o

n
-s

tr
ee

t 
cy

cl
e 

p
ar

k
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

w
h
er

e 
sp

ac
e 

is
 

av
ai

la
b
le

 a
n
d
 w

h
er

e 
d
em

an
d
 i

s 
h
ig

h
.;

 

 P
h
as

e 
tw

o
 w

il
l 

b
e 

to
 p

ro
v
id

e 
a 

d
ed

ic
at

ed
 s

ec
u
re

d
 u

n
d
er

co
v
er

 o
ff

-s
tr

ee
t 

cy
cl

e 
p
ar

k
in

g
 f

ac
il

it
y
. 

 

3
. 

 
W

h
o
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

?
 

(P
le

a
s
e

 t
ic

k
 t
h

o
s
e

 t
h
a

t 
a

p
p

ly
) 

  
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 

 
  

V
is

it
o

rs
  

 
 

  
S

ta
ff

  
 

 

A
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 c
lie

n
t 

g
ro

u
p

 o
r 

g
ro

u
p

s
 (

p
le

a
s
e

 
s
ta

te
):

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

4
. 

 
W

h
a
t 
ty

p
e

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
 t
h

is
?

 
(P

le
a

s
e

 t
ic

k
) 

  
N

e
w

  
 

 
  

R
e

v
is

e
d

  
 

 
  

E
x
is

ti
n

g
  

 
 

Page 216



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 2
 

 

5
. 

R
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 d

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t,
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e

r 
a
n

d
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e

. 

D
ep

a
rt

m
en

t:
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

 

 S
er

v
ic

e:
 S

tr
ee

ts
 a

n
d
 O

p
en

 S
p
ac

es
 

 S
ec

ti
o
n

: 
P

ro
je

ct
 D

el
iv

er
y
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

 

 H
ea

d
 o

f 
S

er
v
ic

e:
 T

o
n
i 

A
in

le
y
 –

 H
ea

d
 o

f 
S

tr
ee

ts
 a

n
d
 O

p
en

 S
p
ac

es
 

 S
ec

ti
o
n

 M
a
n

a
g
er

: 
A

n
d
re

w
 P

re
st

o
n
 –

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
el

iv
er

y
 a

n
d
 E

n
v
ir

o
n
m

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
 

6
. 

A
re

 o
th

e
r 

d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 o

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n

?
 

  
N

o
 

 
  

Y
e

s
 (

p
le

a
s
e
 g

iv
e

 d
e

ta
ils

):
  

 
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

ar
k
et

in
g
 (

W
eb

 T
ea

m
);

 S
p
ec

ia
li

st
 S

er
v
ic

es
; 

C
am

b
ri

d
g
es

h
ir

e 
C

o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
ci

l 
(a

s 
H

ig
h
w

ay
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
).

 

 T
h
e 

P
ro

je
ct

 m
ay

 i
n
v
o
lv

e 
o
th

er
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g
 t

h
e 

p
ri

v
at

e 
se

ct
o
r,

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it

y
 s

ec
to

r 
g
ro

u
p
s.

 

Page 217



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 3
 

 

G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 D
a

ta
 

7
. 

H
o

w
 d

o
 y

o
u

 (
o

r 
h

o
w

 w
ill

 y
o

u
) 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 c
o
n

tr
a

c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n

?
 

(P
le

a
s
e

 t
ic

k
 a

n
y
 t
h

a
t 
a
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 g

iv
e

 
e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 e

.g
. 
b

e
n

c
h

 m
a

rk
in

g
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 N

e
tw

o
rk

) 

  
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

/t
a

rg
e

ts
 

 
  

B
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 

 
  

U
s
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

 
  

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

 
  

C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 
 

  
F

re
e

d
o

m
 o

f 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 r

e
q
u

e
s
ts

 
 

  
S

e
rv

ic
e

 u
p

ta
k
e

 d
a

ta
 

 
  

E
x
te

rn
a

l 
v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 e
.g

. 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
, 

v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ti
n

g
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 

 
  

S
ta

ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 

 
  
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 
 

  
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 

 
  

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 s
ta

te
:)

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

N
o

n
e

 
 

Page 218



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 4
 

 

8
. 

 
W

h
ic

h
 o

f 
th

e
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 d

o
e

s
 

th
is

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 r
e

la
te

 t
o

?
 

(P
le

a
s
e

 t
ic

k
 a

n
y
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 r

e
le

v
a
n

t)
 

  
A

g
e

  
  
  

 
  

D
is

a
b

ili
ty

 
 

  
G

e
n
d

e
r/

tr
a
n

s
g
e

n
d
e

r 
 (

in
c
 g

e
n
d

e
r 

re
-

a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t,
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
) 

 
  

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
 

  
R

a
c
e

 
 

  
R

e
lig

io
n

/b
e

lie
f 

  
  

 
  

S
e

x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 
 

  
N

o
n

e
 

 

O
th

e
r 

fa
c
to

rs
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 e

.g
. 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
la

s
s
, 

in
c
o
m

e
 o

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
e

x
c
lu

s
io

n
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 
c
a

re
, 

e
x
-o

ff
e
n

d
e

rs
 (

p
le

a
s
e

 s
ta

te
):

 
 N

/A
 

    If
 y

o
u

 c
o

lle
c
t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 d

a
ta

 f
o

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
g
ro

u
p

s
 f

o
r 

d
if
fe

re
n
t 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

y
o

u
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

le
a

s
e

 
g
iv

e
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

e
re

: 
 N

/A
 

 

A
n

a
ly

s
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 D
a

ta
 

 
S

a
m

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

N
o

t 
s
a
m

e
 

im
p

a
c
t 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 

(P
)/

 /
 

N
e

g
a

ti
v
e

(N
) 

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
9

. 
 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 

th
a

t 
y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 o
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
n

g
, 

p
le

a
s
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 i
f 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 i
s
/i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 b
e

 t
h
e

 s
a
m

e
 

fo
r 

th
e
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 a

s
 i
t 

is
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 o
r 

th
e

 w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
s
 a

 
w

h
o

le
. 

A
g
e

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
 

 D
is

a
b

ili
ty

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 G
e

n
d
e

r 
(I

n
c
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 a

n
d
 m

a
te

rn
it
y
) 

 T
ra

n
s
g
e
n

d
e

r 
(i
n

c
 g

e
n
d
e

r 
re

-a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n

t 
) 

 M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 C

iv
il 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 
 R

a
c
e

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 P
  

  P
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 219



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 5
 

 

R
e

lig
io

n
/b

e
lie

f 
  
  

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
o

ri
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

 O
th

e
r 

fa
c
to

rs
 t
h

a
t 
m

a
y
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 i
n

e
q
u
a

lit
y
 

(p
le

a
s
e

 s
ta

te
):

 
 1

. 
In

c
o

m
e

 
  

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 
 

 
    

 
 

 

E
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 G

ro
u
p

 A
ff

e
c
te

d
 

W
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

is
 

E
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a

l 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

if
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 

a
n

y
. 

1
0

. 
 

L
is

t 
a

n
d

 e
x
p

la
in

 a
n

y
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 Q
u

 9
. 
S

ta
te

 
w

h
ic

h
 e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u

p
 i
s
/m

a
y
 b

e
 

a
ff

e
c
te

d
, 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
 n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

is
/m

a
y
 b

e
 a

n
d
 g

iv
e

 d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

a
n

y
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
is

 i
m

p
a

c
t/
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
im

p
a

c
t 
e

.g
. 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n

t 
ti
tl
e

s
, 

w
e

b
 

lin
k
s
. 

 If
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 n
o

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

b
u

t 
b
e
lie

v
e

 i
t 

m
a

y
 

e
x
is

t,
 p

le
a

s
e

 s
a

y
 s

o
. 

 

N
/A

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 220



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 6
 

 

1
1

. 
 

A
re

 o
r 

w
ill

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 

g
ro

u
p

s
 t

a
k
e
 u

p
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d
e

c
is

io
n

 a
t 

th
e

 
s
a

m
e
 r

a
te

 a
s
 t
h

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o

n
 o

r 
th

e
 

w
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 a
s
 a

 w
h

o
le

?
 

 

  
Y

e
s
  

 
 

  
N

o
  

  
  

 
 

  
In

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 

If
 n

o
, 

p
le

a
s
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
 d

e
ta

ils
…

. 
  

 
 
 

 
 

1
2

. 
 

Is
 y

o
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 
p

ro
je

c
t,
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,

 m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 e
x
c
lu

d
e

 
o

r 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 e
q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 i
n

 
th

e
 l
o
n

g
e

r 
te

rm
?

 
 (P

le
a

s
e

 t
ic

k
) 

  
Y

e
s
  

 
  

N
o

  
  
  

  
 

 
  

In
s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 
   

If
 y

e
s

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 w
h

ic
h

 g
ro

u
p

s
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

ff
e

c
te

d
 

a
n

d
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
ill

 b
e

…
 

  
 

 
 

 
 

Page 221



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 7
 

 

 

C
h

e
c

k
in

g
 D

e
li
v
e

ry
 A

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 

 
 

Y
e

s
 

N
o

 
In

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 
R

e
a

s
o

n
 

 
1

3
. 
 

P
le

a
s
e

 c
h

e
c
k
 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
th

e
 s

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

p
o

lic
y
, 

p
la

n
, 

p
ro

je
c
t,

 s
e
rv

ic
e

, 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t,
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h
a

n
g
e
 i
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 o

r 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 a
g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

s
e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

: 
          If

 y
o

u
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 n

o
 t
o

 a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
ri
te

ri
a

, 
p

le
a

s
e

 e
x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
, 

g
iv

in
g
 

d
e

ta
ils

 o
f 

a
n

y
 l
e

g
a

l 
ju

s
ti
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
f 

th
e

re
 i
s
 o

n
e
. 

A
re

 a
n

y
 p

re
m

is
e

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 
a

ll?
  

 Is
 a

n
y
 I

C
T

 s
o
ft

w
a

re
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
m

e
n
t 

a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 t
o

 a
ll?

 
 Is

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 o

f 
a

ll?
 

 A
re

 p
u
b

lic
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 

to
 a

ll?
 

 D
o

 p
u
b

lic
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 a

n
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 a
v
o

id
 

c
o

n
fl
ic

t 
w

it
h

 r
e

lig
io

u
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

?
 

 Is
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
, 

w
e

b
 b

a
s
e
d

 a
n
d

 p
a

p
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
a

ll?
 

 A
re

 i
m

a
g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
e

x
t 

in
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 
p

u
b

lic
it
y
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 o
f 

a
ll?

 
 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 

 

C
o

n
c

lu
s

io
n

s
 a

n
d

 N
e

x
t 

S
te

p
s

 
1

4
. 

a
) 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 n

o
t 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 

a
n

y
 d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 o

r 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

. 
 

N
o

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
a

c
ti
o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
 t
h

is
 f

o
rm

 a
n

d
 s

e
n

d
 t
o

 A
n

d
re

w
 L

im
b

, 
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
S

tr
a

te
g
y
, 

A
n

d
re

w
.l
im

b
@

c
a
m

b
ri
d

g
e

/g
o

v
.u

k
 w

h
o

 w
ill

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

 f
o

r 
it
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 I
n

te
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 I
n

tr
a
n

e
t.

 
 

Page 222



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 8
 

 

b
) 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 
a

re
 n

o
 d

is
a
d

v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 o

r 
n

e
g
a

ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 t
h
a

t 
c
a
n

n
o

t 
b
e
 e

a
s
ily

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 t
h

e
 A

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

c
) 

It
 h

a
s
 n

o
t 

b
e

e
n
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 s

a
y
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

 o
r 

n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

e
.g

. 
th

e
re

 i
s
 i
n

s
u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 
e

v
id

e
n

c
e

.  
 

G
o

 t
o
 Q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 1

5
 

 

d
) 

T
h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
d

is
a

d
v
a

n
ta

g
e

s
 o

r 
n

e
g
a
ti
v
e

 
im

p
a

c
ts

 t
h
a

t 
c
a
n

n
o

t 
b
e
 e

a
s
ily

 
a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
. 

 

C
o

m
p

le
te

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

Page 223



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 9
 

 

G
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
1

5
. 

W
h
a
t 
a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 a
re

 y
o

u
 

g
o

in
g
 t

o
 g

a
th

e
r?

 (
P

le
a
s
e

 t
ic

k
 a

n
y
 

th
a

t 
a

p
p

ly
) 

  
A

d
v
ic

e
 f

ro
m

 e
x
p

e
rt

s
 

 
  

D
e

m
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
 p

ro
fi
le

 e
.g

. 
C

e
n

s
u

s
 

 
  

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
  

 
  

E
x
is

ti
n

g
 u

s
e

r 
d

a
ta

 
 

  
E

x
te

rn
a

l 
v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o
n

 e
.g

. 
e

x
p

e
rt

 v
ie

w
s
 

o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
/o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

ti
n

g
 

e
q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
(s

) 
 

  
L

o
c
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 e
.g

. 
J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 
 

  
N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 e

.g
. 

 
A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
 

 
  

N
e

w
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 
e

q
u

a
lit

y
 g

ro
u

p
(s

) 
 

  
R

e
s
e

a
rc

h
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
  

 
  

R
e

le
v
a

n
t 

s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
 e

x
p

e
rt

is
e

 
 

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 s
ta

te
):

 
  

 
 
 

 
 

1
6

. 
If

 y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
n

y
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 
p

le
a

s
e
 a

d
d

 t
h
e
m

 h
e

re
. 

 

N
o

n
e

  

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

 
1

7
. 
 

N
a

m
e

 a
n
d

 j
o

b
 t

it
le

 o
f 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
le

a
d

 o
ff

ic
e

r:
 

 

S
h
ah

 H
u
ss

ai
n
 –

 P
ro

je
ct

 O
ff

ic
er

 

Page 224



E
q

u
a
li

ty
 I

m
p

a
c
t 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 

 
1
0
 

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
: 

 

0
4
 J

an
u
ar

y
 2

0
1
3
 

N
a

m
e

s
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

te
a
m

 
m

e
m

b
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
e

d
: 

 

N
/A

 

 

D
a

te
 o

f 
n
e

x
t 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 E

q
IA

 
T

h
is

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

re
e

 y
e
a

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 d

a
te

 o
f 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g

in
a

l 
E

q
IA

. 
 

0
4
 J

an
u
ar

y
 2

0
1
4
 

  

Page 225



Page 226

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�����������
�	
��	��	�������������������	��

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 227



 

Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

 
Page 1 of 3 

Assigning a Climate Change Rating to Your Proposal or Recommendation 
 
The purpose of assigning a climate change rating to your proposal or recommendation 
is to ensure that, wherever possible, key decisions help to strengthen the ability of the 
Council to reduce carbon emissions and manage the negative impacts of climate 
change on Cambridge. 
 
Step 1: Impact on carbon emissions 
Using the prompts in the Table 1 below, consider whether your proposal/ 
recommendation will: 

• Help to reduce carbon emissions: if so, assign it a positive (+) impact rating;  
Or 
• Increase carbon emissions: if so, assign it a negative (-) impact rating;  
Or  
• Have no (nil) impact on emissions of carbon dioxide. 

 
Where you have identified a positive or negative impact, consider whether this impact 
is likely to be High, Medium or Low. The Impact Classification provided in Table 2 may 
help with this. 
 

Table 1: Carbon Emissions 
Is Impact +,  – 

or Nil? 
Is Impact H, M or 

L? 
Comments 

1. Reduce the City Council's 
energy consumption 

Nil   

2. Reduce energy 
consumption by others in 
Cambridge 

+ High The introduction of 

more cycling stands 

will promote cycling 

within Cambridge. 

This will help 

promote a greener 

form of transport, 

thereby helping to 

decrease the city’s 

carbon footprint 

3. Increase the proportion of 
the City Council's energy 
consumption from solar, 
wind, biomass or other 
renewable sources 

Nil   

4. Increase the proportion of 
energy consumption by 
others in Cambridge from 
solar, wind, biomass or 
other renewable sources 

Nil   

5. Reduce the level of motor 
vehicle traffic by City 
Council staff commuting or 
operations 

+ Medium The implementation 

of a centralised secure 

cycle parking facility 

within the historic 

core of Cambridge 

will provide a 

favourable condition 

for more cycling 

6. Reduce the level of motor 
vehicle traffic by others in 

+ Medium The implementation 

of a centralised secure 

Page 228



 

Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

Table 1: Carbon Emissions 
Is Impact +,  – 

or Nil? 
Is Impact H, M or 

L? 
Comments 

Cambridge cycle parking facility 

within the historic 

core of Cambridge 

will provide a 

favourable condition 

for more cycling 

7. Increase the proportion of 
the City Council's vehicles 
powered by biofuel, 
electricity, LPG or other 
low-carbon fuels 

Nil   

8. Increase the proportion of 
other vehicles in 
Cambridge powered by 
biofuel, electricity, LPG or 
other low-carbon fuels 

Nil   

9. Reduce the amount or 
increase the level of 
recycling of the City 
Council's own waste 

Nil   

10. Reduce the amount of 
waste or increase the level 
of recycling by others in 
Cambridge 

Nil   

 

Table 2: Impact Classification  Description 
  Low (L) Impact • No publicity 

• No energy related infrastructure or vehicles 

• Capital assets with lifetime <3 years 

• Few risk management benefits 

  Medium (M) Impact • Local publicity 

• Affects delivery of corporate/regulatory commitments 

• Affects service energy/transport/waste performance by 
>10% 

• Capital assets with lifetime >3 years 

• Management of identified service risk 

  High (H) Impact • Regional/national publicity 

• Essential for meeting corporate/regulatory commitments 

• Affects corporate energy/transport/waste performance by 
>10% 

• Capital assets with lifetime >6 years 

• Management of identified corporate risk 

 
Step 2: Helping to manage the impacts of climate change 
Using the prompts in Table 3 below, consider whether your proposal/ recommendation 
is likely to: 

• Increase the ability of Cambridge City to withstand the impacts of climate change 
(such as hotter summers or more heat waves): if so, assign it a positive (+) 
impact rating; 

Or 
• Decrease the ability of Cambridge City to withstand the impacts of climate 

change: if so, assign it a negative (-) impact rating; 

Page 229



 

Environmental Impact Assessment 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

Or 
• Have no (nil) impact on the ability of Cambridge City to withstand the impacts of 

climate change. 
 
Again, where you have assigned a positive or negative impact, refer to Table 2 to 
determine whether this impact is High, Medium or Low.  
 

Table 3: Managing the Impacts of 
Climate Change  

Is Impact 
+,  – or 
Nil? 

Is Impact H, M 
or L? 

Comments 

1. Hotter summers Nil   

2. Drier summers Nil   

3. Warmer winters Nil   

4. Wetter winters Nil   

5. Heavier downpours Nil   

6. Heat waves Nil   

7. Drier soils (subsidence) Nil   

 
Step 3: Assign an overall rating and provide an explanation 
Taking account of Step 1 and Step 2 above, assign a single, overall climate change 
rating to your proposal/ recommendation. You are required to provide a brief 
explanation of the rating that you have given.  
 
If you have identified that your proposal/ recommendation is likely to have a negative 
climate change impact, take time to consider whether the project or course of action 
that you are proposing could be designed and delivered differently, so as to reduce or 
avoid this impact. If ‘doing things differently’ brings additional cost implications, then 
consider whether you may be able to apply to the Climate Change Fund, which invests 
in initiatives that help to reduce the carbon emissions and climate change risks of City 
Council operations. Full details of what the Climate Change Fund is able to support, as 
well as how to make an application, can be found on the Council intranet site at 
http://intranet/sustainability/climate-change-fund.html 
 
Help and Advice 
For help and further information, contact a member of the Sustainability Team: 

• Sally Pidgeon, Climate Change Officer (Job Share), ext. 7174; 
• Clare Palferman, Climate Change Officer (Job Share), ext. 7176. 

 
Overall Climate Change Rating: 

Positive ���� Negative � Nil � 
Explanation: The implementation of secured off-street cycle parking, and on-street cycle 

parking, will provide a safe and attractive environment that will promote the 

move from motor vehicles to an active, healthy and sustainable mode of travel. 

 

As such the project would help to increase the number of motorists opting to 

cycle. This will help to reduce the number of journeys undertaken by motor 

vehicles within Cambridge, further reducing the carbon footprint within the 

city. 

 

Page 230



 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

Project Appraisal and Scrutiny Committee Recommendation 

Project Name: Cambridge 20mph Project – Phase 1 Implementation 
and Phase 2 Consultation 

To: 
Cllr Tim Ward, Executive Councillor for Planning 
and Climate Change 

Report by: Simon Payne – Director of Environment 

Scrutiny committee:  ENVIRONMENT 08.10.13 

Wards affected: 
Arbury, East Chesterton, King’s Hedges and West 
Chesterton 

 

 

Recommendations 

Financial recommendations –  

 

• The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the 
commencement of phase 1 of this scheme, which is already 
included in the Council’s Capital & Revenue Project Plan  

• The total cost of phase 1 is £158,700 funded from the 20mph 
project capital allocation SC532.   

• There are no on-going revenue costs for the project.  

 

Procurement recommendations: 

• The Executive Councillor is asked to approve the carrying 
out and completion of the procurement of: 

§ Phase 1 Safety Audit - £4000 

§ Phase 1 traffic order making process including 
street notices - £8000 

§ Implementation of Phase 1 (in line with the roads 
recommended for inclusion by North Area 
Committee on 01/08/13, see list below) - 
£131,500 

Agenda Item 10

Page 231



 

§ Phase 1 post implementation automatic traffic 
count (ATC) monitoring - £3700 

§ Phase 2 pre-consultation ATC monitoring - £3500 

§ Phase 2 consultation and public engagement 
including exhibitions - £8000   

• Subject to: 
- The permission of the Director of Resources being 

sought prior to proceeding if the quotation or tender 
sum exceeds the estimated contract.  
 

- The permission from the Executive Councillor being 
sought before proceeding if the value exceeds the 
estimated contract by more than 15%. 

 
Recommendations from North Area Committee 
 

- Inclusion of all unclassified roads in the north phase 
area 

- Inclusion of the following C class roads: Chesterton 
High Street, Green End Road, Arbury Road 

- Exclusion of the following C class roads: Kings Hedges 
Road, Gilbert Road 

- For the provision of 20mph on Victoria Road (an A 
class road) to be investigated and progressed. See 
Appendix D for further information. 

Page 232



 

Project Name: Cambridge 20mph Project –  

Phase 1 Implementation and Phase 2 
Consultation 

1 Summary 

1.1 The project 

 

 

1.2 Anticipated Cost 

Total Project Cost £     £158,700 

To provide infrastructure (signs and lines) for a new 20mph speed limit on the 
public highway in the north area of the city, and to undertake public 
consultation activities for a proposed similar limit in the east area of the city. 
The new 20mph infrastructure would include repeater signs mounted on 
existing lamp columns, and white coloured 20mph roundel road markings. 
Entry into new 20mph limits would be via entry points highlighted by larger 
20mph terminal signs, roundel road markings and on more main roads, 
patches of coloured road surface material. 

Target Dates: 

Start of procurement October 2013 

Award of Contract November 2013 

Start of project delivery January 2014 

Completion of project March 2014 

Date that project output is 
expected to become operational 
(if not same as above) 

 

Cost Funded from: 

Funding: Amount: Details: 

Reserves £158,700 SC532-39149  

Repairs & Renewals £  

Developer 
Contributions 

£  

Climate Change 
Fund 

£  

Other £ 
 

 

Page 233



 

1.3 Procurement process 

1.3.1 Procurement for the implementation of Phase 1 will be 
through the Braintree District Framework Agreement, which 
includes six contractors and is in accordance with the 
requirements of the City Council’s Contract Procedure 
Rules.  

1.3.2 Following receipt of tenders, the winning tender will be 
identified following assessment by a skilled officer panel. 

1.3.3 Other elements (ATCs, consultation printing etc. will be 
procured through consideration of tenders from a minimum 
of three service suppliers and identified following 
considerations by a skilled officer panel. 

 

 

2 Project Appraisal & Procurement Report 

2.1 Project Background 

2.1.1 In July 2011, a motion to Council was agreed that requested 
the Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate Change 
(Cllr Tim Ward) to evaluate existing 20mph schemes in 
Cambridge and where appropriate, consult on expansion of 
schemes. Support and commitment from Cambridgeshire 
County Council was secured, and potential project scope 
and resourcing were investigated, which culminated in 
Council Budget funding bids for ‘the Cambridge City 20mph 
Zones Project’. A capital bid for £400,000 to cover works 
was agreed in February 2012. A further revenue Priority 
Policy Fund bid for £59,800 to cover initial staffing costs was 
also approved.  

 
2.1.2 Both funding bids stipulate that the project should have a 

citywide approach. As such the project considers all 
appropriate roads within the Cambridge City Boundary 
where it is appropriate/feasible to introduce a self-enforcing 
20mph limit. Works will be subject to agreement with the 
Highway Authority (Cambridgeshire County Council). 

 
2.1.3 Due to the size of the project, it has been divided into four 

separate phases, reflecting existing area committee 
boundaries. Each phase is being progressed separately and 

Page 234



 

brought to the relevant area committee for recommendation. 
Further information is available on the project web page:  
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/20mph-speed-limit 

 

2.2 Aims & objectives  

2.2.1 Project aims: 
 

• provide conditions that are conducive to an increase in 
active travel modes such as walking and cycling and 
encourage a modal shift towards these modes  

• reduce the severity of personal injury accidents (PIAs) 
that occur on the city’s road network 

• reduce noise and air pollution levels 

• rationalise the existing number of isolated 20mph zones 

• create clarity for motorists with regard to speed limits in 
residential areas.  

 
2.2.2 The project will help to achieve the council’s Medium Term 

Strategic objectives, including: ‘Improve facilities for 
pedestrians, cyclists and public transport users, including 
consideration of extending areas with a 20mph limit’. 20mph 
zones are included within the Council’s Annual Statement 
and ‘Vision for the City’. The project is reflected in strategic 
objective PST4.4 of the Planning and Sustainable Transport 
Portfolio Plan 2012-13. 

 
2.2.3 To include within the project roads that are suitable for the 

introduction of a new 20mph limit and that are in line with 
the outcomes of consultation, as set out in sections 2.2.3 to 
2.3.7 below. The outcomes of officer investigation into the 
suitability of specific C class roads for a new 20mph limit are 
in line with consultation outcomes. Specifically as set out 
below, consultation has provided an overall positive 
response to the inclusion of Chesterton High Street and 
Green End Road. Both these roads have existing traffic 
calming, suitable geometry (with bends and reduced width), 
numerous attractors such as shops, and parks adjacent with 
associated pedestrian and cycle movements, and existing 
low traffic speeds. As such these have been identified as 
suitable to a 20mph limit. Similarly Kings Hedges Road and 
Gilbert Road, due to existing traffic speed, geometry, and 

Page 235



 

directly adjacent land use have been identified as not 
currently suitable for a 20mph limit. Arbury Road received no 
overall positive or negative response at public consultation. 
However, as set out in 2.3.6 below, members at North Area 
Committee have recommended for its inclusion. Officer 
investigation has indicated that due to existing traffic 
calming, relatively narrow road geometry, and adjacent land 
use, including parks with play areas, shops and three 
schools, Arbury Road is suitable for a 20mph limit. In 
addition the suitability of Arbury Road to a 20mph limit will 
be further enhanced following a programmed County 
Council cycle improvements project, set out in 2.12 below. 
Consultation outcomes are in favor of the introduction of a 
20mph limit on Unclassified Roads within the phase area 
and officer investigation agrees with this outcome.     

 

2.3 Major issues for stakeholders & other departments   

 
2.3.1 Impact on police – The local police have highlighted that the 

project may result in additional pressure/requests from the 
public for enforcement activities. The police have highlighted 
that their resources are limited and this will impact on their 
ability to undertake additional enforcement activities. 

  
2.3.2 Impact on Cambridgeshire County Council – The 

infrastructure placed on the public highway will become 
property of the county council once it is installed. As such 
the responsibility for maintenance of the new infrastructure 
will pass to the county. 

 
Consultation undertaken: 
 

2.3.3 Public - Public consultation for Phase 1 took place between 
13/05/13 and 05/07/13 (8 weeks). The consultation was 
undertaken via the delivery of a consultation pack containing 
an explanatory leaflet and freepost return questionnaire to 
all addresses located within the Phase 1 area along with 
statutory consultees (17,321 addresses). A total of 4245 
responses were received. The public consultation outcomes 
are summarised at Appendix C. These include a 66% 
overall response in favour of the principle of 20mph speed 

Page 236



 

limits in Cambridge, and an overall 63% response in favour 
of 20mph on unclassified roads within the north phase area. 

 
2.3.4 Members - The project was taken to the Environment 

Scrutiny Committee on 15/01/13, at which approval was 
provided for the project:   

 

• Programme 

• Governance/Decision making process 

• Board terms of reference 

• Phasing 

• Engagement/Consultation to commence for the first 
phase 

 
 Approval was also provided for the following estimated initial 
project spending: 

 

• Automatic Traffic Counts (ATCs) for project baseline data 
collection – < £12,000 

• Project wide Engagement/Consultation Activities – < 
£50,000 

 
2.3.5 Prior to Phase 1 public consultation, the project was taken to 

North Area Committee on 21/03/13, to request comments on 
the consultation arrangements. 

 
2.3.6 Following the closure of Phase 1 public consultation, the 

project was taken once again to the North Area Committee 
for member recommendation on the consultation outcomes. 
The outcomes are summarised at Appendix D.  

 
2.3.7 Other e.g. Trade Associations, National Bodies - As part 

of project governance, a project board has been convened 
on which local police, bus and taxi operators, local cycle and 
20mph campaigns and the local Health service are 
represented. The views of these groups are be being taken 
into account throughout the project development. The 
project has also been taken to the Cambridge disability 
consultative panel which has commented: ‘Providing the 
signage is clear and there is sufficient awareness over a 
wide enough area, then the Panel welcome this proposal 
and hope it achieves its objectives’. 

Page 237



 

2.4 Summarise key risks associated with the project  

 

2.4.1 Should the project be implemented, the risk of severe 
personal injury resulting from traffic collisions, where these 
occur, is reduced. This reduced level of risk is particularly 
relevant to more vulnerable road users such as the young or 
elderly and those using sustainable and active transport 
modes such as walking or cycling.  

 
2.4.2 Due to a predicted 10% growth in the population Cambridge 

over the next decade, there is going to be increased 
pressure on the local road network. With greater numbers of 
motor vehicles using the roads, increased delay to traffic 
and wear to highway infrastructure, resulting in potential 
negative economic impacts. The provision of 20mph limits 
would help to mitigate this by providing conditions under 
which an increased proportion of the population feel 
comfortable adopting active and sustainable modes of 
transport such as walking or cycling. These modes provide 
economic, health, and wellbeing benefits. 

 
2.4.3 As the local traffic authority, Cambridgeshire County 

Council’s Cabinet will have to consider the project and 
approve the commencement of a statutory traffic regulation 
order process, as well as determine any objections that are 
subsequently received.   

 
2.4.4 The traffic order making process will have to be undertaken 

by Cambridgeshire County Council prior to implementation 
in order for the speed limit to be legal. This process will 
require further consultation with various statutory consultees 
including public service operators. It is possible objections to 
the project will be raised at this stage which could have an 
impact on project delivery. 

 
2.4.5 Following implementation it is possible the new legal limit 

will not be complied with by the majority of drivers. This may 
result in a negative public reaction to the project, leading to 
the need for further measures to improve compliance. Such 
measures have been identified. These include the use of 
movable vehicle activated signs which can be programmed 
to flash up a message such as slow down 20mph to drivers 

Page 238



 

of vehicles approaching the sign in excess of a pre-defined 
set speed. Through being movable the signs could be 
installed at locations were a compliance issue was 
identified, and relocated prior to drivers becoming too 
accustomed to the sign. This would help to maintain the 
signs impact and effectiveness. Should compliance continue 
to be an issue, physical traffic calming measures may be 
considered. For the purposes of the project, a lack of 
compliance would be defined as mean traffic speed in both 
directions in excess of 27mph.    

 
 
2.5 Financial implications 

 

2.5.1 Appraisal prepared on the following price base: 2013/14 
 
2.5.2 Specific grant funding conditions are: 

• None 
 
2.5.3 Other comments: 
 

This appraisal refers to the implementation of Phase 1 and 
consultation for Phase 2 of the Cambridge 20mph Project. 
There are 4 phases and a total of £460,000 available for the 
project in total. On the basis of the costing associated with 
Phase 1, it is likely the current allocation will not be sufficient 
to complete the entire project. The current total estimated 
cost to complete the project inclusive of all professional fees 
is: £600,000 However there are opportunities for cost 
savings within this, and as such this total cost estimate 
should be viewed as a maximum figure. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 239



 

2.6 Net revenue implications (costs or savings) 

 

 

2.7 VAT implications 

TBC 

 

2.8 Energy and Fuel Savings 

 

(a) Is this project listed in the Carbon 
Management Plan? 

 
No 

 If ‘No’, move to 
Section 2.9. 

 

2.9 Climate Change Impact 

 

Positive Impact 
No 

effect 
Negative Impact 

  +L     

 

2.9.1 The implementation of a 20mph limit would provide a safer 
and more attractive environment for active sustainable 
transport modes such as walking and cycling. As such it 
would help to increase the number of road users opting to 
use these modes, and potentially reduce the number of 
journeys undertaken in by private car. In addition where 
motor vehicles are used, research has found that at lower, 

Revenue £ Comments 

Maintenance 0 Once implemented 
maintenance of the 
infrastructure will be the 
responsibility of the County 
Council as the traffic 
authority 

R&R Contribution 0  

Developer Contributions  0  

Energy savings (           0) To the highway authority - 
See below 

Income / Savings (           0)  

Net Revenue effect    0 Cost/(Saving) 

Page 240



 

smoother speeds, PM10 particulate emissions from brake 
and tire wear can be reduced. A 20mph limit can also help 
to reduce the level of traffic noise pollution. 

 
2.9.2 In addition the project would allow for a number of 

illuminated signs to be disconnected and removed which will 
provide an energy saving to the highway authority. 

 

2.10 Other implications  

 

 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been prepared 
for this project and is attached at Appendix E 

 

2.11  Staff required to deliver the project 

 

Service Skills Total Hours 

Streets and Open 
Spaces, Project Delivery 
team 

Project management 

Procurement 

Traffic scheme design 

Contract management 

Project Quality Control 

Project Officer - 4200 
(0.8 of full time until 
project is complete) 

Project Leader – 100 

Project Delivery and 
Environment Manager - 
75  

 

2.12  Dependency on other work or projects 

The designs for any County Council funded traffic safety 
schemes on roads included in the 20mph project may be 
affected by, or have an affect on the 20mph project. This is 
specifically relevant to the implementation of Phase 1 on 
Arbury Road, where a County Council cycle improvements 
project is programmed. This project is due to provide 
improvements to the existing traffic calming measures along 
Arbury Road, and as such would increase the suitability of 
this stretch for a 20mph speed limit. Other programmed 
County Council projects, such as potential improvements to 
Cherry Hinton High Street may have a similar impact on 
future phases of the project. 

Page 241



 

 2.13  Background Papers 

• Responses to Cambridge 20mph Project, North Phase 
Public Consultation 

• Cambridge City Council, Environment Scrutiny Committee 
Report – Cambridge 20mph Project 

http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk//documents/g714/Public
%20reports%20pack%2015th-Jan-
2013%2017.00%20Environment%20Scrutiny%20Committee.
pdf?T=10 

• Department for Transport Local Transport Note 1/07 – 
Traffic Calming 
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/a
ttachment_data/file/3811/ltn-1-07.pdf 

• Department for Transport Draft Speed Limit Circular July 
2012 – Setting Local Speed Limits –  

http://assets.dft.gov.uk/consultations/dft-2012-32/setting-
local-speed-limits.pdf 

• Cambridge City Council Budget Setting Report 
http://mgsqlmh01/documents/s8599/BSR%20Version%20Ve
r%201.1%2021%20Dec%202011_1.pdf 

• Planning and Sustainable Transport Portfolio Plan 2012-
13 

http://mgsqlmh01/documents/s8526/PST_Planning and 
Sustainable Transport Portfolio Plan 2012-13.pdf 

• Cambridge City Council Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2011/12 – 2015/16 

http://mgsqlmh01/documents/s13580/MTS Version 2 
Executive - FINAL_2.pdf 

• Cambridge City Council Climate Change Strategy 2012-
2016 

http://mgsqlmh01/documents/s13710/Appendix A Cambridge 
City Council Climate Change Strategy.pdf 

 

 2.14   Inspection of papers 

 

Author’s Name Ben Bishop 

Author’s phone No. 01223 - 457385 

Author’s e-mail: ben.bishop@cambridge.gov.uk 

Date prepared: 09.08.13 

 

Page 242



 

       Appendix AAppendix AAppendix AAppendix A  

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

£ £ £ £ £

Capital Costs

Building contractor / works 131,500 

Purchase of vehicles, plant & equipment      

Professional / Consultants fees 4,000 Safety Audit

Other capital expenditure:

Phase 2 Consultation costs 8,000 

Traffic orders 8,000 

Phs 1 post implementation Auto. Traffic Counts 3,700 

Phs 2 pre consultation Auto .Traffic Counts 3,500 

Total Capital cost 158,700 0 0 0 0 

Capital Income / Funding

Government Grant

Developer Contributions      

R&R funding

Earmarked Funds

Existing capital programme funding 392,000 SC532-39149

Revenue contributions

Total Income 392,000 0 0 0 0 

Net Capital Bid (233,300) 0 0 0 0 

Comments

P
age 243



Page 244



 

           

    Appendix BAppendix BAppendix BAppendix B    

 

Energy/ 
Fuel: 

Energy 
Savings 
Per Year: 

Details: References: 

Unit 
Energy 

Cost 

(£ per 
kWh or 

litre) 

Estimated 
Annual 

Cost 
Savings 

(£ per year) 

Electricity n/a     

Gas  n/a     

Diesel n/a     

Petrol n/a     
Other 
(please 
specify) 

n/a     

TOTAL ENERGY COST SAVINGS (£ per year):  

 

Key Assumptions: 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 245



 

       

                                                                                                                        Appendix CAppendix CAppendix CAppendix C 

 

Page 246



 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 247



 

 

Page 248



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 249



 

 

Page 250



 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 251



P
age 252



 

Numerical Tables 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 253



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 254



 

Page 25 

                                                                

Appendix DAppendix DAppendix DAppendix D    

Results of councillor vote on 20mph proposal for north Cambridge 
North Area Committee 01/08/13 

 
 

Question Agreed Disagreed 

Do you agree in 
principle with 20mph 
speed limits on 
residential and 
shopping roads in 
Cambridge? 

11 0 

Do you agree with 
installing the proposed 
20mph limit on the 
roads(unclassified 
roads) coloured in with 
solid blue lines  on the 
consultation plan? 

11 0 

Do you agree with installing the proposed 20mph limit on 
each of the more main (C class) roads that are coloured 
in with red dashed lines on the consultation plan? (listed 
below) 

Arbury Road 10 0 

Chesterton High Street 11 0 

Gilbert Road 0 8 

Green End Road 10 0 

King’s Hedges Road 0 5 

 
The councillors also commented that implementing a 20mph limit on 
Victoria Road should be taken forward as a separate project (10 agreed, 
0 disagreed, 1 abstained)  
The inclusion of Victoria Road has been the subject of numerous 
requests received as part of the consultation process in addition to e-
petitions on the City and County Council web sites. Victoria Road is not 
included in the current project as it is an A Class road and therefor 
County policy precludes changes to its speed limit. In addition as an A 
class road it may not be suitable to such a limit. However, 20mph on 
Victoria Road is due to be investigated further as part of a separate work 
stream.    

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

    

Page 255



 

Page 26 

Appendix EAppendix EAppendix EAppendix E 

Cambridge City Council Equality Impact Assessment 
 
Completing an Equality Impact Assessment will help you to think 
about what impact your strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or 
major change to your service may have on people that live in, work in 
or visit Cambridge, as well as on City Council staff.  
 
The template is easy to use. You do not need to have specialist equalities knowledge 
to complete it. It asks you to make judgements based on evidence and experience. 
There are guidance notes on the intranet to help you. You can also get advice from 
David Kidston, Strategy and Partnerships Manager on 01223 457043 or email 
david.kidston@cambridge.gov.uk, or from any member of the Joint Equalities Group.  
 

1. Title of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your 
service: 

 
Cambridge 20mph Project 
 
 

 

2. What is the objective or purpose of your strategy, policy, plan, project, 
contract or major change to your service? 

 
To reduce the speed of traffic on non-classified roads within the city of Cambridge to 
20mph in order to provide a safer, greener and less threatening road environment for 
all road users.   
 
 
 
 
 

 

3. Who will be affected by this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or 
major change to your service? (Please tick those that apply) 

 Residents   
 Visitors   
 Staff   

 
A specific client group or groups (please state):  
 
 

 

4. What type of strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major change to 
your service is this? (Please tick)  

 New   
 Revised   
 Existing   

 

 
 

Page 256



 

Page 27 

5. Responsible directorate and service 

Directorate: Environment 
Service: Streets and Open Spaces 
  

 

6. Are other departments or partners involved in delivering this strategy, 
policy, plan, project, contract or major change to your service? 

  No 
  Yes (please give details):  

Cambridgeshire County Council (as traffic authority) 
Cambridge City Web Team 
Local Police (enforcement) 
Local public transport providers 

 

7. Potential impact 

Please list and explain how this strategy, policy, plan, project, contract or major 
change to your service could positively or negatively affect individuals from the 
following equalities groups.   
 
When answering this question, please think about:  
 

• The results of relevant consultation that you or others have completed 
(for example with residents, people that work in or visit Cambridge, service users, 
staff or partner organisations).  

• Complaints information.  

• Performance information.   

• Information about people using your service (for example whether 
people from certain equalities groups use the service more or less than others).  

• Inspection results.  

• Comparisons with other organisations.  

• The implementation of your piece of work (don’t just assess what you 
think the impact will be after you have completed your work, but also think about 
what steps you might have to take to make sure that the implementation of your 
work does not negatively impact on people from a particular equality group).  

• The relevant premises involved.  

• Your communications.  

• National research (local information is not always available, particularly 
for some equalities groups, so use national research to provide evidence for your 
conclusions).  

 

 

(a) Age (any group of people of a particular age, including younger and older people) 

Page 257



 

Page 28 

The project should have a positive impact on the more vulnerable younger and older 
road users, by providing a less threatening road environment. In addition, at 20mph 
the number of Personal Injury Accidents (PIAs) is reduced and where they do occur 
they result in less severe injury, which is of particular importance to more vulnerable 
road users. 
 

 

(b) Disability (including people with a physical impairment, sensory impairment, 
learning disability, mental health problem or other condition which has an impact on 
their daily life)  

In certain cases road users with a disability such as sensory or physical impairment 
would be classed as vulnerable road users. As such the scheme will provide a 
positive impact by providing a safer road environment. 
It is possible that those with a visual impairment will be negatively impacted as a 
result of being unable to read the consultation material provided as part of the 
project. 

 

(c) Gender  

No specific impact 
 

 

(d) Pregnancy and maternity 
 

No specific impact, other than in providing reduced levels of air born pollution, which 
may be of particular significance to those who are pregnant. 
 

 

(e) Transgender (including gender re-assignment) 
 

No specific impact 
 

 

(f) Marriage and Civil Partnership 
 

No specific impact 
 

 

(g) Race or ethnicity   
 

Studies suggest that minority groups are underrepresented as users of active travel 
modes. Through providing a less threatening road environment, the project is likely to 
have a positive impact by reducing the barriers to walking and cycling that these 
groups encounter.  
 

 

(h) Religion or belief     
 

No specific impact 
 

 

Page 258



 

Page 29 

(i) Sexual orientation  
 

No specific impact 
 

 

(j) Other factor that may lead to inequality (please state):  
 

Given the scheme is sign and line based it is possible there will be a negative impact 
on those who have difficulty reading or interpreting the signage such as those who do 
not read English or who are illiterate. This may also apply to the consultation 
documentation. 
 

 

8. If you have any additional comments please add them here 

None 

 

9. Conclusions and Next Steps 

 

• If you have not identified any negative impacts, please sign off this 
form.  

• If you have identified potential negative actions, you must complete the 
action plan at the end of this document to set out how you propose to mitigate the 
impact. If you do not feel that the potential negative impact can be mitigated, you 
must complete question 8 to explain why that is the case.  

• If there is insufficient evidence to say whether or not there is likely to be 
a negative impact, please complete the action plan setting out what additional 
information you need to gather to complete the assessment. 

 

 
All completed Equality Impact Assessments must be emailed to David Kidston, 
Strategy and Partnerships Manager, who will arrange for it to be published on the 
City Council’s website. Email david.kidston@cambridge.gov.uk.  
 

 

10. Sign off 

Name and job title of assessment lead officer: Ben Bishop - 20mph Project Officer 
 
Names and job titles of other assessment team members and people consulted: N/A 
 
Date of completion: 08.10.12 
 
Date of next review of the assessment: 08.10.13 
 

Page 259



 

Page 30 

Action Plan 

Equality Impact Assessment title: Cambridge 20mph Project    
Date of completion: 08.10.12       
 

Equality Group Age – N/A 

 

Equality Group Disability 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or 
negative impact 

Those with visual disability may not be able to read 
consultation material produced as part of the project 

Action to be taken to 
address the 
disadvantage or 
negative impact 

All Consultation material will be produced in accordance 
with council consultation policy to include options for large 
versions of the documentation to be provided. In addition 
plans will be produced to be as clear as possible for those 
with reduced visual perception. 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Ben Bishop 

Date action to be 
completed by 

During Project Consultation phase 

 

Equality Group Gender – N/A 

 

Equality Group Pregnancy and maternity – N/A 

 

Equality Group Transgender – N/A 

 

Equality Group Marriage and Civil Partnership – N/A 

 

Equality Group Race or ethnicity – N/A 

 

Equality Group Religion or belief – N/A 

 

Equality Group Sexual orientation – N/A 

 

Other factors that 
may lead to 
inequality 

 

Details of possible 
disadvantage or 
negative impact 

Those who do not read English may not be able to 
understand the consultation documentation and signs and 
lines provided as part of the project. 

Action to be taken to 
address the 
disadvantage or 
negative impact 

All consultation documentation to be produced in 
accordance with council consultation policy. The signs and 
lines implemented will be based on national signs and line 
design standards and as such should be easily understood 
by all road users. 

Officer responsible for 
progressing the action 

Ben Bishop 

Date action to be 
completed by 

During scheme design and consultation phases 

 

Page 260



Report Page No: 1 

 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
Item 

 
To: Executive Councillor for Planning and Climate 

Change: Councillor Tim Ward  
Report by: Head of Planning Services 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

8/10/2013 

Wards affected: All 
 
Community Infrastructure Levy – Draft Charging Schedule 
Key Decision 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to update members on the work that is 

being undertaken to prepare a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
for Cambridge and seek approval that a Draft Charging Schedule is 
published for public consultation in November 2013. 
 

1.2 Consultation took place on a Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 
between 18 March and 29 April 2013, the results of which are reported 
at Appendix 2. They have influenced a Draft Charging Schedule 
(Appendix 1) which must be independently examined before it can be 
brought into effect. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 The Executive Councillor is recommended to: 
 

• Approve the publication of the Cambridge Draft Charging 
Schedule (the Draft Charging Schedule is included within the 
Draft Charging Schedule Consultation Document which is 
attached at Appendix 1 to this report) for a six-week consultation 
period starting in November 2013. 

• Approve, for publication alongside the Draft Charging Schedule, a 
statement outlining how S.106 policies will be varied following the 
adoption of CIL 

• Approve, for publication alongside the Draft Charging Schedule, a 
draft Reg.123 List (Appendix B of the Draft Charging Schedule 
Consultation Document) which illustrates the Council’s intention 

Agenda Item 11

Page 261



Report Page No: 2 

with regard to what infrastructure items will or may be funded via 
CIL. 

• Approve, for consultation alongside the Draft Charging Schedule, 
a draft Instalment Policy (Appendix D of the Draft Charging 
Schedule Consultation Document). 

• Agree that, once the period of consultation has closed and all 
comments collated, arrangements be made for the Draft Charging 
Schedule to be subject to independent examination in accordance 
with the appropriate Regulations  

 
3. Background  

3.1 Members will recall that on 12 March 2013 you received a report on 
the introduction of a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) for 
Cambridge. Further, as a first step in introducing a CIL, you agreed at 
that meeting that the Cambridge Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 
be consulted upon for a six-week period between 18 March 2013 and 
29 April 2013. A Statement of Consultation of the key issues raised is 
contained at Appendix 2 to this document. 

3.2 As a reminder, CIL is a charge that local authorities can levy on all 
new development in their area to fund infrastructure improvements 
related to new development. The Planning Act (2008) and the 
Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010) [as amended in 
2011, 2012 and 2013, and likely to be amended again before the end 
of 2013] sets the legislative framework. The Planning Act 2008 
provides a broad (not exhaustive) definition of infrastructure projects 
which can be funded by the levy, including transport, flood defences, 
schools, hospitals and other health and social care facilities. 
Affordable housing is an obvious example of a type of ‘infrastructure’ 
explicitly excluded from the process. 

3.3 The CIL is intended to supplement (not entirely replace) other funding 
streams. For example, a number of contributions will still be acquired 
through S.106 Planning Obligations. These include affordable housing 
requirements and site specific infrastructure. However, the range and 
monetary value of S.106 Planning Obligations will fall with the 
introduction of a CIL because an authority is not permitted to charge a 
developer twice (i.e. via S.106 and via CIL) for the same thing. Indeed, 
it is essential that Cambridge City make it clear what infrastructure it 
intends to deliver via CIL and what will be delivered by S.106 – see 
later for more commentary on this aspect. 

3.4 The government considers that the CIL is a more transparent and 
simpler method of collecting non-site specific funds for infrastructure 
to support development than the current system of using S.106 
Planning Obligations. As such, current regulations restrict from April 

Page 262



Report Page No: 3 

2014 the use of tariff based S.106 Planning Obligations, which means, 
for example, our current approach to collecting contributions for 
education improvements will become unlawful. Regulations state that 
post April 2014 a local planning authority may only enter into five 
planning obligations to secure funding for the same item of 
infrastructure.  This seriously limits the ability of a Council to raise 
funds from S.106 post April 2014, and as such implementing a CIL 
becomes essential. 

3.5 The CIL Regulations are constantly in a period of flux, which makes 
preparing a CIL a challenge. Nevertheless, the latest draft 
Regulations suggest that Government intends to push back the cut-
off date described above from April 2014 to April 2015, which is 
helpful.  

3.6 The CIL takes the form of a charge per square metre of additional 
floorspace (new build or extensions) and can be charged on most new 
developments. The Council (and other beneficiaries of CIL funds) has 
flexibility over what the funds are spent on, provided it is on 
‘infrastructure’. Unlike S.106, CIL does not require the authority to say 
precisely where every £1 collected from a specific developer will be 
spent. Each £1 simply goes into a CIL ‘pot’, and then the Council 
determines what infrastructure to spend it on and when. 

3.7 Another important element of the CIL is that it is non-negotiable. Once 
a CIL is in place, a developer / landowner must pay the set rate. There 
is no room for negotiation, either higher or lower, irrespective of 
whether the Council or developer/landowner would like to. This gives 
developers and businesses more certainty at the start of the process 
as to the overall amount of money a development will be required to 
pay in order to mitigate the wider impacts of their development 
(though, of course, developers will get less certainty as to exactly 
when, where and on what the money they contribute will be spent on; 
and where a development scheme becomes unviable due to the CIL 
charge that would arise, there is nothing the Council or the developer 
can do to ‘relax’ the levy).  

3.8 Before the Council can start charging CIL, it first needs to prepare and 
adopt a CIL Charging Schedule. Publication of the Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule (March 2013) was the first step in an 18-24 month 
statutory process towards adopting and bringing into force a sound 
CIL charging schedule. We are now approaching the second step, as 
the following table outlines: 

 

Preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule Consultation 

March 2013 

Page 263



Report Page No: 4 

Draft Charging Schedule 
Consultation 

November 2013 

Submission of the Charging 
Schedule to government 

February or March 2014 

(same time as the Local Plan) 

Examination by an independent 
inspector 

March – September 2014 

(same time as the Local Plan) 

An Inspector’s Report October 2014 

Adoption (subject to the 
Inspector’s Report) 

Late 2014 

Commencement of CIL 1 April 2015 (likely date) 

Results of the Consultation 

3.9 The results of the consultation are reported in the Consultation 
Statement at Appendix 1. A total of 22 respondents made 
representations to this consultation and raised a total of 107 
comments. The following is a broad summary of the issues raised in 
response to the consultation:  

• Further work is required to relate the list of infrastructure 
projects and the delivery of the levels of growth proposed; 

• Detailed comments on the viability testing and assumptions 
used, including; professional fees; finance costs; build costs; 
S106; and fees; 

• Concerns were raised that the coloured tables used in the 
Viability Assessment are misleading. Request further 
explanation of the analysis of the results that was undertaken to 
arrive at CIL rates; 

• A single residential charging rate could jeopardise the delivery 
of housing in low value areas. There is no clear case for a single 
rather than a zoned level of CIL;  

• The residential CIL rate proposed is too high, especially when 
composed with neighbouring districts; 

• The retail rate should be zero; 

• The student accommodation rate is too high; 

• A nil rate on commercial premises is unrealistic given the 
buoyancy of the Cambridge market and the fact that S.106 
monies have been received from commercial/office 
development in the past. All other uses should be making a 
sensible CIL contribution; 

• A Draft Instalment Policy should be published for comment at 
the Draft Charging Schedule Consultation Stage; 

• The Council should review its approach to discretionary relief for 
charities. A discretionary policy would encourage investment 
and development; 

Page 264



Report Page No: 5 

• The interrelationship between CIL and S.106 including the 
connection between the proposed charges and infrastructure 
requirements – potential issues of ‘Double counting’ of S.106 
contributions and CIL, which is not permitted by law; 

• The Council should consult on a Draft Regulation 123 list as 
soon as possible to ensure the views of landowners and 
developers are taken on board; 

• The Council should have a clear defined review mechanism; 
and’ 

• The Council should have an exceptional circumstances policy. 

3.10 Detailed responses to all comments received are provided in the 
Statement of Consultation (Appendix 2). This is accompanied by 
further analysis below and in the Draft Charging Schedule 
Consultation Document.  

Evidence Base and Wider Issues 

3.11 The CIL Regulations require that in order to set a CIL Charging 
Schedule, the Council must have an appropriate evidence base to 
support the proposed levy. In order to adopt a sound charging 
schedule the Council either must or is recommended to: 

• Have an up to date Local Plan for the area (and ideally prepare 
an updated Local Plan alongside a CIL, which is exactly what we 
are doing in Cambridge); 

• Identify a local infrastructure funding gap and quantify its extent 
and demonstrate the proposed CIL rates will not unduly affect the 
viability of planned development across the city (see below); 

• Produce a list of infrastructure projects (known as a R.123 List) 
it intends to fund in whole or in part through the CIL, and review 
more generally the Council’s wider existing policies for collecting 
developer contributions (see below); 

• Consider whether to offer discretionary relief from the CIL 
and/or put in place a CIL instalments policy (see below).  

An Infrastructure Funding Gap 

3.12 The Council has, in collaboration with South Cambridgeshire District 
Council, produced the Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire 
Infrastructure Delivery Study (IDS). The IDS, and any subsequent 
updates, serves a dual purpose as it is a key part of the evidence 
base for both the Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire Local 
Plans.  

Page 265



Report Page No: 6 

3.13 The IDS, which is based on appropriate and available evidence, 
considers what additional infrastructure is needed in Cambridge City 
and South Cambridgeshire to support development and what other 
funding sources are available (for example, core Government funding 
for infrastructure, anticipated section 106 agreements and anticipated 
necessary highway improvement schemes funded by non-CIL 
sources).  

3.14 In September 2012 the IDS was endorsed by the Council as an 
evidence base document for the Cambridge Local Plan Review and 
the Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy. It was agreed as a 
‘live’ document that can be updated over time to reflect changing 
circumstances such as changes in the planned level of provision of 
housing and employment. 

3.15 To reflect comments made on the Preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule and the now agreed, planned levels of provision emerging 
through the Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire 
District Council Local Plan Reviews’ the IDS has been updated . 
 

3.16 The Infrastructure Delivery Study and subsequent update provide an 
overview of infrastructure required to support new development, an 
overview of who is responsible for delivery, and a broad indication of 
phasing, costs and funding mechanisms.  It acts as a focus for 
delivery but should not be seen as a detailed investment programme. 

3.17 The updated IDS includes summary tables related to CIL eligible 
infrastructure. Infrastructure requirements related to existing planning 
permissions or projects that have any S.106 allocated to them are not 
included in this list. The CIL Eligible Infrastructure Schedule provides 
evidence of the aggregate funding gap required to levy a CIL charge. 
It also provides a starting point for future prioritisation of CIL funding. 

3.18 The Council endorsed the updated IDS for use as an evidence base 
document for both the review of the Cambridge Local Plan and the 
Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) at Development Plan 
Scrutiny Sub Committee on 09 July 2013.  

3.19 The table below provides a summary of the aggregate infrastructure 
funding gap associated with CIL eligible infrastructure.  
 
CIL Eligible Infrastructure Funding Gap 

 
Infrastructure 
Requirements 

Infrastructure Funding 
Gap 

Infrastructure 
requirements within 
Cambridge 

£161.5m £161.5m 

Page 266



Report Page No: 7 

 

Infrastructure 
Requirements 
(Fringe Sites)* 
 

£121.3m £121.3m 

Strategic 
Infrastructure * 
 

£209m £95.5m 

*Both Local Authorities 
 

4.1.1 The aggregate funding gap for Cambridge City and Fringe sites has 
been outlined above. To summarise, the aggregate funding gap for 
Cambridge City (excluding fringe sites) is £161.5m, for fringe sites it is 
£121.3m and for strategic infrastructure it is £95m. The potential 
income from residential development from CIL is £21.9m to 2031 (see 
paras 4.3.8 to 4.3.25 of the consultation document). There is 
therefore, a significant residual funding gap which justifies the 
introduction of a CIL.  

Viability Evidence - CIL rates should not unduly affect the 
viability of planned development across the city 

3.20 Under CIL Regulation 14 a charging authority must aim to strike what 
appears to the charging authority to be an appropriate balance 
between – the desirability of funding infrastructure from CIL and the 
potential effects (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the 
economic viability of development across its. The NPPF states (para 
175) that where CIL is to be introduced, the development and 
consideration of the rate should be undertaken as part of the same 
exercise of viability testing as the Local Plan wherever possible.  

3.21 Viability consultants Dixon Searle LLP (DSP) were commissioned to 
undertake the viability modelling work. The charges proposed are 
considered to be reasonable and will enable the majority of 
development to come forward. Evidence is provided in a suite of 
viability documents produced on behalf of the council. These are The 
Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Community Infrastructure Levy 
Viability Assessment; The Cambridge City Council Local Plan - 
SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level Viability 
Assessment; and, the Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Student 
Housing Affordable Housing Study (Summer 2013). 

Community Infrastructure Levy Viability Assessment 
3.22 This report was put to Members at Environment Scrutiny Committee 

on 12 March 2013 and is available on the website. To summarise, the 
consultants found that it is viable at the current time to levy a CIL 
charge of £125 per sq.m on new residential development and new 

Page 267



Report Page No: 8 

student accommodation development and a charge of £75 per sq.m 
on new retail development. These are the rates the Council consulted 
on at Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule Stage.   

3.23 Since then this viability work has been bolstered by a number of other 
studies, carried out by DSP on behalf of the Council, which provide 
evidence for emerging Local Plan policies as well as the CIL.  

3.24 The SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level Viability 
Assessment, which was endorsed by members as part of the 
supporting evidence for the emerging Local Plan at Development Plan 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee on 29 May 2013, assumed a CIL residential 
rate of £125 per square metre in all appraisals found that ‘on the 
whole good levels of sales values are available to support 
development viability, so that schemes can proceed and frequently 
still bear planning obligations at significant levels as promoted by 
existing and proposed policies’. 

3.25 The Student Accommodation – Affordable Housing Contributions 
Viability Study, which was endorsed by members as part of the 
supporting evidence for the emerging Local Plan at Development Plan 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee on 29 May 2013, provides further evidence of 
the viability of both a residential and student accommodation CIL 
charge of £125 per sq.m. 

3.26 The Small Sites Affordable Housing Viability Study was completed 
in 2013 to inform the Council’s development of affordable housing 
policy. It was endorsed by members at Development Plan Scrutiny 
Sub-Committee on 9 July 2013 and informed the Council’s decision to 
pursue a lower affordable housing threshold in the emerging 
Cambridge Local Plan. This study provides evidence that a residential 
CIL charge of £125 per sq.m is viable alongside the proposed reduced 
affordable housing threshold. 

3.27 Detailed comments were received on the viability testing and 
assumptions used, including; professional fees; interpretation of 
results; finance costs; build costs; S106; and fees. Detailed responses 
to all these comments can be found at Appendix 2.  

3.28 Having considered the comments we received at the previous 
consultation, having taken advice from our viability consultants and 
having reviewed Reports by Inspectors conducting examinations into 
CILs being set elsewhere in the country, it is recommended that we 
carry forward the rates which were consulted on at Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule Stage.  

3.29 The charges proposed are considered to be reasonable charges, 
which will still enable the majority of development to come forward 

Page 268



Report Page No: 9 

within the city. In addition to the comprehensive approach to 
considering viability, the potential CIL rates were set out as %s of 
Gross Development Value (GDV)( CIL Viability Assessment section 
3.10 / Figures 12 & 13) to further inform the Council’s consideration of 
the level(s) to be set. At the levels envisaged, the CIL charging rates 
are a modest proportion of overall scheme value. 

3.30 Allied to this, there are recent and current evidence for the continued 
strength of the City’s housing market, with a range of indications that 
house prices are increasing strongly; more so than in locations other 
than central London and to a degree that looks likely to have already 
out-stripped the above noted %s of GDV. 

Recommended Draft Charging Schedule  

3.31 It is therefore recommended that the Council consults, and defends at 
a subsequent examination, the following CIL Draft Charging Schedule: 

 

DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE 

Use Charge £/sq.m 

Residential (C3; C4 including sheltered 
accommodation) 

£125 

Retail (A1 – A5 and sui generic uses akin to 
retail*) 

£75 

Student Accommodation £125 

All other development including B, C1, C2 
and D Class Uses. 

£0 

* sui generis akin to retail includes petrol filling stations; shops selling 
and/or displaying motor vehicles; retail warehouse clubs. 
 
The relationship between CIL and S.106  

3.32 Although CIL replaces some elements of planning obligations, they 
will still have an important on-going site-specific role. Planning 
Obligations will still be used for site-specific infrastructure or mitigation 
required to make a development acceptable in planning terms. The 
principle is that all eligible developments must pay a CIL as well as, 
any site specific requirement to be secured through Section 106 
Agreements. 

3.33 Added to this, CIL Guidance advises that, for transparency, charging 
authorities should have set out at CIL Examination how their S.106 
policies have been varied and a number of representations received 

Page 269



Report Page No: 10 

on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule asked for clarification of 
the relationship between S.106 and the CIL.  

3.34 It has therefore been necessary to commence a parallel review of the 
Council’s procedures for S.106 Planning Obligations, and in particular 
a review of its Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD), Adopted March 2010, is required. A revised draft 
SPD is proposed to be put to Members in early 2014, consulted upon 
for six weeks, and then adopted and brought into force at the same 
time as the CIL.  

3.35 The table at Appendix A of the Draft CIL Charging Schedule 
Consultation Document sets out how CIL might work alongside S.106 
once CIL is adopted. This table will form the basis for a revised 
Planning Obligations Strategy SPD. The CIL/S.106 interaction table 
does not form part of the charging schedule consultation but it is 
proposed to take comments received on the table into account when 
drafting the Council’s revised Planning Obligations Strategy SPD. 

3.36 Some examples of how other authorities are dealing with the 
interaction between CIL and S.106 are attached at Appendix 3 to this 
report.  
 
What will CIL funds be spent on?  

3.37 CIL will not generate sufficient funding to pay for the entire 
infrastructure needs across the City. Nevertheless, the Council needs 
to agree and publish its intentions for how revenue raised from the 
levy will be spent. This is done through the publication of an 
infrastructure project list known as the ‘Reg.123 list’ (this title being 
taken from the Regulation number which requires publication of such 
a list). It should be noted, however, that simply because a project or 
infrastructure theme goes on the Reg.123 list it does not mean the 
project will definitely happen or get paid for through CIL funds. 
However, it does mean that the said project must not receive any 
funds from a S.106.  

3.38 The current regulations do not require such a list to be published 
until the CIL charge comes into place, though it is encouraged to be 
published in draft alongside the draft Charging Schedule. However, 
the draft regulations are suggesting a draft version of it must be 
published alongside the consultation on the Charging Schedule. At the 
point of preparing this agenda report, the new regulations are due for 
publication imminently. To avoid any risk of not meeting the ‘new’ 
regulations, it is therefore considered appropriate to agree and publish 
a draft Reg.123 list with the next consultation stage on the Charging 
Schedule, whether or not it is strictly required at that point of 
consultation. The need to publish a Draft Reg.123 list was also one of 

Page 270



Report Page No: 11 

the key issues raised during the consultation on the Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule.   

3.39 The Reg.123 list does not have to be a comprehensive detailed list of 
specific infrastructure projects. Indeed experience nationally is 
showing that they do not. Instead, a common approach is one 
whereby the Reg.123 list identifies both broad areas of infrastructure 
(and as such, anything which falls under that broad area would be 
able to be funded by CIL, but not by S.106) and some selected 
specific infrastructure items (such as a named specific highway 
improvement or specific named new school, which again would mean 
that developer contributions for these specific items could not be 
sought from S.106 Planning Obligations).  

3.40 There is a tricky judgement to be taken as to what goes on the 
Reg.123 list. First, it needs to be comprehensive enough so that it is 
demonstrable that there is sufficient infrastructure needed with a 
‘funding gap’ to justify the imposition of a CIL. Second, it needs to be 
not so comprehensive (or broad) as to list (or cover) every single 
piece of infrastructure that is needed, because in such circumstances 
this would mean the Council would not be able to negotiate any S.106 
funding even when it would otherwise be perfectly sensible or 
reasonable to do so 

3.41 The starting point for the prioritisation of projects, or broad areas of 
infrastructure, to go on the Draft Reg.123 list is the Infrastructure 
Delivery Study. The subsequent decision as to which infrastructure 
projects receive CIL funding from the finalised Reg.123 List will 
ultimately lie with the City Council. However, input from the County 
Council and other key stakeholders will be essential on all these 
matters. As such, sound governance arrangements around 
maintaining the Reg.123 list, the prioritisation of CIL spend and the 
policy mechanism around developer contributions in general are 
essential. 

3.42 Thus, at Appendix B of the Draft Charging Schedule Consultation 
Document is the recommended draft Reg.123 List. This sets out 
recommendations as to which sorts of infrastructure will be delivered 
via CIL or other public funds, and therefore NOT funded by S.106 
Planning Obligations.  

3.43 Some examples of other authorities Regulation 123 lists are attached 
as part of Appendix 3 to this report. 

Discretionary Relief from CIL 

3.44 The regulations allow Charging Authorities to permit discretionary 
relief from CIL (e.g. where a reduced or nil payment may be accepted, 

Page 271



Report Page No: 12 

provided these ‘exceptional cases’ met the Regulations). These cases 
are likely to be rare but could include the following: 

• Development by charities for investment activities (as defined by 
Regulation 44)  

• Development by charities where relief would normally constitute 
State Aid (as defined in Regulation 45)  

• Where the city council considers there are exceptional 
circumstances to justify relief (as defined in Regulation 55). 

 
Discretionary Charitable Relief 

3.45 The Council is not obliged to introduce discretionary charitable relief 
policies. Indeed there has been limited take up of these options from 
other authorities implementing a CIL. At this stage the need for a 
discretionary relief in addition to mandatory relief is not considered 
justifiable and moreover, would impose an additional level of 
complexity in the administration and management of the CIL charge. 
Even if it was offered, the instances of it being used would be very low 
indeed. A policy of this kind could be introduced at any stage though 
and this is something the Council will keep under review as the CIL 
system beds in.  

 
Exceptional Circumstances 

3.46 Exceptional Circumstances relief, if such a relief was introduced in 
Cambridge, would only be granted if a planning obligation of greater 
value than the chargeable amount has been entered into in respect of 
the planning permission that permits the chargeable development and 
the Charging Authority considers that payment of the levy would have 
an unacceptable impact on the economic viability of development. In 
such cases a developer would be expected to demonstrate this (as set 
out in Regulation 57) via an ‘open book’ approach with an agreed 
independent valuer (paid for by the developer). Relief can also only be 
granted if it does not constitute ‘notifiable state aid’ (as defined in 
European Law).  

 
3.47 There has been a mixed uptake on this policy option. Roughly one 

third of local authorities that propose to introduce a CIL propose to 
offer exceptional circumstances. The circumstances in which a policy 
of this nature would be likely to be used would be extremely rare given 
the restrictions in the Regulations. To be clear, and in simple terms, if 
Cambridge introduced such a relief it would not mean the Council 
would be willing and able to negotiate a revision to the CIL demand for 
a particular development simply because the developer says the 
development scheme is unviable if the CIL has to be paid. The relief 
could only be offered in very exceptional and defined circumstances.   
 

Page 272



Report Page No: 13 

3.48 On balance, it is considered appropriate to not offer Exceptional 
Circumstances relief as it would add unnecessary complexity to the 
charge. However, this is something that we intend to keep under 
review and a policy of this nature could be introduced at any stage 
once a CIL is adopted. 

 
An Instalment policy 

3.49 Regulation 69B permits a charging authority to allow persons liable to 
pay CIL to do so by instalments following the publication of an 
instalment policy. There is no requirement to publish an instalment 
policy prior to adopting a charging schedule, or indeed at all. However, 
in the absence of an instalment policy the CIL must be paid in full 
within 60 day of the commencement of the CIL liable development. 
For very large development schemes, which could take many years to 
build out (and sale receipts not received for many years), a full CIL 
payment within 60 days of being liable would be an exceptionally high 
burden on a developers cash flow. 

 
3.50 To offset development industry concerns, the March 2013 consultation 

document published by the Council stated the intention of the Council 
to have an instalment policy for CIL and asked for comments.  

 
3.51 Whilst not strictly necessary at this stage, a Draft CIL Instalment 

Policy is set out at Appendix D of the CIL Draft Charging Schedule 
Consultation Document. This is to enable interested parties to 
consider its implication on development finance and delivery. Whilst 
comments are invited alongside the Draft Charging Schedule, it 
should be noted that the Draft Instalment Policy will not itself be 
subject to Public Examination. The Council will consider responses 
when finalising the Cambridge CIL Instalment Policy. Full Council will 
be asked to endorse and adopt this Policy at the point the Council 
adopts a CIL. Please note, for the avoidance of doubt, the Instalment 
Policy will not be examined in the same way as the Charging 
Schedule.  

Next Steps   

3.52 Consultation on a Draft Charging Schedule would be the second step 
in the statutory process towards adoption of a CIL Charging Schedule. 
The key dates in this process are outlined earlier in this report. 
 

4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 
4.1 It is difficult to accurately forecast CIL receipts due to the complicated 

nature of levying the new charge. Revenues will depend on the 

Page 273



Report Page No: 14 

volume, rate of build and type of new development undertaken. The 
main generator of CIL revenue will be residential development. An 
estimate, based on the development strategy emerging through the 
Local Plan Review, is that, in Cambridge City, CIL will generate in the 
region of £22 million from residential development up to April 2031.  
 

4.2 However, of this, 15-25% will need to be set aside for local 
communities agreement on spend, in areas where development takes 
place. The 25% level applies for those areas with an adopted 
neighbourhood plan in place (which, in Cambridge, is currently nil). 
The Council currently operates an approach to devolution of S.106 
funds via Area Committees which are used as a vehicle to fund locally 
determined infrastructure projects. Projects which receive funding are 
determined by the Area Committees in consultation with the 
neighbourhoods.  This process appears to provide an appropriate 
mechanism for managing the spend of the 15% ‘local spend’. Should 
a Neighbourhood Plan be put in place for any part of the Council’s 
area, then at that stage the Council will determine how the 25% ‘local 
spend’ for that area will be managed. 

 
4.3 There will be an on-going requirement to monitor and review the 

Charging Schedule, which could trigger the need for further specialist 
viability modelling should market conditions change significantly.  
 

4.4 Up to 5% of CIL can be retained for administration. Officers are 
carrying out more detailed scoping work on what might be required in 
this area. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications    
 
4.2 CIL can be delivered within existing resources, and is currently led via 

the Planning Policy team. However, on adoption there needs to be 
mechanisms in place to collect CIL. There are potential resource 
implications for Development Management, IT, Finance and Legal.  

 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
4.3 An Equalities Impact Assessment will be published alongside the Draft 

CIL Charging Schedule Consultation Document. 
 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
4.4 There are no direct environmental implications arising from this report. 

Once introduced CIL will assist in the delivery of high quality 
sustainable new developments, alongside the protection and 
enhancement of the built and natural environments of the city. As such 

Page 274



Report Page No: 15 

it is anticipated that CIL will have a positive climate change rating, 
although the precise nature of this positive impact will be dependent 
on the detailed proposals. 

 
(e) Procurement 
 
4.5 There are no direct procurement implications arising from this report. 

The implementation of CIL may however necessitate additional 
training of staff and potentially software. 

 
(f) Consultation and communication 
 
4.6 Appropriate consultation with residents and developers and other key 

stakeholders will be undertaken at key stages. 
 

(g) Community Safety 
 
4.7 There are no direct community safety implications arising from this 

report. 
 

5. Background papers  
 
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Infrastructure Delivery Study, Peter 
Brett Associates on behalf of Cambridge City Council, September 2012,  
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/ldf/CIL/Appendix%20B%20-
%20Infrastructure%20Delivery%20Study%20FINAL%20REPORT%20and%
20Appendices.pdf  
 
Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Infrastructure Delivery Study Update 
2013 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/ldf/CIL/Infrastructure%20Delivery%20
StudyUpdate%20%28Final%20Report%20Amended%20with%20Appendice
s%29.pdf  
 
Draft Cambridge City Council Local Plan Review – Viability, Community 
Infrastructure Levy Viability Assessment, Dixon Searle LLP on behalf of 
Cambridge City Council 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/ldf/CIL/Appendix%202%20-
%20CIL%20Viability%20Assessment%20FINAL%20DRAFT.pdf  
 
Cambridge City Council Local Plan - SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations 
High Level Viability Assessment 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents
/SHLAA%20High%20Level%20Viability%20Assessment%202013.pdf    
 

Page 275



Report Page No: 16 

Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Student Housing Affordable Housing 
Study 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents
/Cambridge%20CC%20-
%20StudentAccommodation%20AH%20Viability%20-
%20Final%20Report%20-%20Combined.pdf  
 
Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Small Sites Affordable Housing 
Viability Study 
https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents
/Cambridge%20City%20Council%20-
%20SmallSites%20Affordable%20Housing%20Viability%20Incl%20Appendi
ces.pdf  
 
CIL frequently asked questions, December 2012, Planning Advisory Service 
http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/core/page.do?pageId=1242969  
 
Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance, 2013, DCLG 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-
guidance  
 
6. Appendices  
 
Appendix 1 – Cambridge CIL Consultation Document – incorporating the 
Draft CIL Charging Schedule 
 
Appendix 2 – Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy Preliminary Draft 
Charging Schedule – Statement of Consultation 
 
Appendix 3 – Relationship between CIL and S.106 - Examples 
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Brendan Troy 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 457442 
Author’s Email:  Brendan.troy@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 276



 

 

 

 

 

Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Draft CIL Charging Schedule and Supporting 

Information – Consultation Document Draft 

Version 
 

October 2013 

Page 277



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 1 

 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 
 

  

1. Introduction  

1.1 Background 2 

   

2.  Context  

2.1 What is CIL? 4 

2.2 What Development is liable for CIL? 4 

2.3 What are the benefits of setting a CIL 5 

2.4 What will CIL be spent on? 5 

   

3. Consultation to date  

3.1 Informal consultation and engagement 7 

3.2 Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule Consultation 7 

3.3 Statement of Representations Procedure 7 

   

4.  Evidence Base  

4.1 Justification for a Cambridge CIL  8 

4.2 An up to date development plan 8 

4.3 An Infrastructure Funding Gap 8 

4.4 Viability evidence base 12 

4.5  The relationship between CIL and S.106 15 

4.6  Draft Regulation 123 List 16 

   

5.  

 

Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule 18 

6.  Implementing the Community Infrastructure Levy  

6.1 How will CIL be collected? 19 

6.2 Payment by instalment 19 

6.3 Payments in Kind 19 

6.4 Mandatory Relief from CIL 20 

6.5 Discretionary Relief from CIL 20 

6.6 Monitoring 21 

  

7. How to comment on this document  

7.1  Your views 22 

7.3 Further Information 

 

22 

 Appendix A – The proposed interaction between CIL and S.106  

 Appendix B – Draft Regulation 123 List  

 Appendix C – Regulation 16 Statement of Regulations Procedure  

 Appendix D – Draft Instalment Policy  

Page 278



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 2 

 

 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 BACKGROUND 

 

1.1.1 This consultation sets out Cambridge City Council’s progress to date with the introduction 

of a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) and produces the Cambridge Draft Charging 

Schedule for consultation. 

 

1.1.2 The CIL regulations 2010
1
 (as amended) and statutory guidance

2
, give guidance to councils 

implementing the levy. Before a CIL Charging Schedule is adopted it must go through two 

formal rounds of consultation followed by an independent examination. 

 

1.1.3 The first formal round of consultation, the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule (PDCS), 

took place between 18
th

 March 2013 and 29
th

 April 2013. A total of 70 representations 

were received from 22 respondents. A complete list of respondents, the full consultation 

responses and a detailed assessment of the responses can be found in the background 

documents in the CIL pages of the Council’s website. These representations have provided 

the basis for the development of the Council’s Draft Charging Schedule, which is now the 

subject of a second formal round of consultation.  

 

1.1.4 The Draft Charging Schedule is set out in Chapter Four. The rest of the document provides 

background to the Charging Schedule, drawing on supporting evidence, and deals with a 

number of issues related to the governance and implementation of the levy.  

 

1.1.5 In order to respond to the comments on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule and to 

reflect updated evidence the Council is now publishing: 

· This Cambridge Draft CIL Charging Schedule;  

· A Statement of Consultation; 

· A Regulation 16 Statement of Representations Procedures 

· A statement on how Section 106 policies will be varied after the introduction of CIL;  

· A Draft Regulation 123 list;  and, 

· A Draft Instalments Policy.  

 

1.1.6 Cambridge City Council has set a timetable to adopt CIL by early 2015. Table 1 below 

outlines the key stages and timetable for adoption of CIL: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
1
 The Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010,  Statutory Instruments 2010 No. 948, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2010/948/contents/made 
2
 DCLG, CIL Guidance, April 2013 

Page 279



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 3 

 

 

 

Table 1: CIL Timetable 

Stage Date 

CIL Preliminary Draft Charging 

Schedule Consltation 

18
th

 March 2013 – 29
th

 April 2013 

Environment Scrutiny to publish 

Draft Charging Schedule 

8
th

 October 2013 

CIL Draft Charging Schedule 

Consultation 

28
th

 October to 9
th

 December 

Submission of Draft Charging 

Schedule to Planning Inspectorate 

for Examination in Public 

March 2014 (same time as  Local 

Plan) 

CIL Examination  

 

March – September 2014 

(Same time as Local Plan) 

Inspectors Report October 2014 

 

Adoption (subject to Inspectors 

Report) 

Late 2014 

Commencement of CIL 1
st

 April 2015 

 

 

1.1.7 Details on how to comment on this consultation can be found in Chapter 6. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 280



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 4 

 

 

 

2. CONTEXT 
 

2.1 WHAT IS CIL? 

2.1.1. The Community Infrastructure Levy is a charge that local authorities can levy on all new 

development in their area to fund infrastructure improvements. It was first introduced in 

April 2010 and is now a major plank of the localism agenda whereby statutory provisions 

provide for an end to tariff based approaches to planning obligations (Section 106 

Agreements), such as that currently operated by the Council, by April 2014. The CIL 

Regulations have been amended three times, in 2011
3
, 2012

4
 and 2013

5
, and further 

regulation will be forthcoming in late 2013 based on a CIL reforms consultation held 

between April 15
th

 and May 28
th

 2013
6
.  

 

2.1.2. The CIL will be run in parallel with, and partly replace, the existing process of planning 

obligations known as ‘Section 106’ agreements. Planning obligations will continue to be 

used alongside CIL to provide on-site infrastructure requirements and affordable housing. 

CIL breaks the link between developer funding and the development site. CIL funds once 

collected will be spent on an approved list of infrastructure to support development in the 

area. 

 

2.1.3. Funds raised through the CIL will be used to help pay for a wide range of community 

infrastructure required to support the needs of sustainable development. The CIL will not 

fund 100% of the costs of the infrastructure requirements and will therefore only ever be 

one element in a range of potential funding sources that need to be used to ensure that 

community infrastructure is effectively delivered. 

 

2.2 WHAT DEVELOPMENT IS LIABLE FOR CIL? 

 

2.2.1 CIL is chargeable on new build floorspace only. Liability to pay CIL arises when, on 

completion of the development, the gross internal area of new build is 100 square metres 

or above. The development of any new dwelling, even if it is less than 100 square metres, 

is also liable to pay CIL. The levy is chargeable on the basis of a calculation related to 

pounds (£) per square metre (sq m) on net additional floorspace. Existing floorspace that 

has been in legal use within a period of six months prior to planning permission being 

granted is not liable for CIL. 

 

2.2.2 CIL will not be charged on changes of use that do not involve new additional floorspace or 

on structures which people do not normally go into (or do so only intermittently for the 

                                                      
3
 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011, SI 2011 No. 987, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/987/contents/made  
4
 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2012, SI 2012 No.2975, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/2975/contents/made  
5
 The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013, SI 2013 No.982, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2013/982/contents/made  
6
 DCLG, Consultation on Community Infrastructure Levy Further Reforms, April 2013, 

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/community-infrastructure-levy-further-reforms  

Page 281



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 5 

 

 

purpose of inspecting or maintaining fixed plant or machinery). Affordable housing 

development and the majority of development by charities is exempt from the charge. 

 

2.2.3 The Draft Charging Schedule (Chapter 4) sets out details of the types of development on 

which it is proposed to introduce a levy. In summary, it is proposed to place a CIL charge on 

residential development, retail development and student housing development in the 

Cambridge City Council area. 

 

2.3 WHAT ARE THE BENEFITS OF SETTING A CIL? 

2.3.1 Most development has some form of impact on the infrastructure needs of an area and, as 

such, it is fair that the development contributes towards the cost of those needs. Those 

needs could be environmental, social and/or economic in nature. The proceeds of CIL will 

be spent on local infrastructure required to support the development of the area. The key 

benefits of a CIL are:  

 

· Local communities will benefit from improved services as the money raised can be 

spent on a wide range of infrastructure; 

· Developers and landowners will be able to determine more transparently, and at an 

early stage, the level of contributions they are required to make towards 

infrastructure provision;  

· CIL will reduce the need for protracted planning obligations negotiations; and, 

· The CIL Regulations provide for an end to tariff based approaches to planning 

obligations (Section 106 Agreements), such as that currently operated by the Council 

by April 2014 (The latest government consultation on amendments to the CIL 

Regulations suggest moving that date to April 2015). If the Council did not introduce 

CIL there would be a significant loss of funding for infrastructure. 

 

2.4 WHAT CAN CIL BE SPENT ON? 

2.4.1 CIL will pay for infrastructure to support new development. Infrastructure could be physical 

(e.g. roads); it could be green (e.g. open spaces) or it could be social (e.g. schools, 

community buildings). It can be used to pay for strategic infrastructure serving a wide area, 

such as guided busway improvements, or it could be localised infrastructure to help reduce 

the impact of new development on the road network. The levy can be spent on 'the 

provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of infrastructure'.  

 

2.4.2 In addition to new infrastructure, CIL receipts can also be used to expand and enhance 

existing infrastructure or for the on-going maintenance or operational costs of providing 

infrastructure. These costs must be directly related to the additional demands arising from 

new development. The up-front and continuing costs of preparing and implementing a CIL 

can also be drawn from CIL receipts subject to annual percentage ceilings.  

 

2.4.3 A capped 15% proportion of CIL revenue will need to be spent on locally determined 

infrastructure in areas where development takes place. This will rise to 25% for those areas 

Page 282



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 6 

 

 

with an adopted neighbourhood plan
7
 or neighbourhood development order (including a 

Community Right to Build Order) in place. It is anticipated that the Council’s approach to 

devolution of Section 106 through Area Committees will provide a template for managing 

these Neighbourhood Funds.  

  

2.4.4 The neighbourhood funding element can be spent on a wider range of things than general 

levy funds. It can be spent on supporting the development of the area by funding: 

a. the provision, improvement, replacement, operation or maintenance of 

infrastructure; or,  

b. anything else that is concerned with addressing the demands that development 

places on an area.  

 

2.4.5 The Council can retain up to 5% of revenue received to meet its costs in administrating the 

levy. 

 

2.4.6 CIL breaks the link between the development and the development site. Unlike 

contributions received via Section 106 Planning Obligations, CIL funds, once collected, will 

go into a central pot. The CIL will not generate sufficient funds to pay for the entire 

infrastructure needs across the authority area and the Council will need to set out its 

intentions for how revenue raised from the levy will be spent, by means of a prioritised list 

of infrastructure. This list is known as a ‘Regulation 123 List’. The Council is publishing a 

Draft Regulation 123 list as part of this consultation. Further detail on this can be found in 

Chapter 4 of this document. The Draft Regulation 123 list is attached at Appendix A. 

 

2.4.7 The governance and prioritisation of future CIL spend is the responsibility of the Charging 

Authority (Cambridge City Council). However, in practice (and in line with statutory 

guidance) the prioritisation of projects will need to be undertaken in partnership with 

other infrastructure providers including Cambridgeshire County Council and South 

Cambridgeshire District Council. During the CIL consultations and adoption process, the 

Council will consider further what governance arrangements need to be put in place to 

guide this process. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
7
 In line with the powers inserted by the Localism Act 2011 into the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

Page 283



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 7 

 

 

3. CONSULTATION TO DATE 
 

3.2 INFORMAL CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT 

 

3.1.1 A wide range of stakeholders were consulted throughout the evidence gathering process. 

The Infrastructure Delivery Study (and update) and the CIL Viability Assessment contain 

further details on the informal consultation that has taken place with key stakeholders. 

 

Stakeholder Meeting 

3.1.2 Together with South Cambridgeshire District Council a Joint Stakeholder Consultation 

Meeting was held which had input from the development industry, the County Council, the 

University of Cambridge and Colleges and other key stakeholders on December 8
th

 2012. 

The purpose of this consultation meeting was to provide stakeholders with an opportunity 

to inform the CIL Viability Assessment. 

 

3.3  PRELIMINARY DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE (PDCS) CONSULTATION (March – April 2013) 

 

3.3.1 A broad range of comments and issues were raised in the representations received on the 

PDCS. The detailed representations and the Councils response to the specific points raised 

are included in the PDCS consultation document. In addition further clarification is 

provided in the remainder of this report to the matters raised. 

 

3.3.2 In general the comments concentrated on specific themes including:  

 

· Funding/infrastructure; 

· Spend; 

· Process; 

· CIL rates; 

· Viability; and,  

· The assumptions used in the viability study. 

 

3.3.3 A summary of comments received and detailed responses to those comments can be found 

in the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule Statement of Consultation. The Statement of 

Consultation is available alongside the consultation documents. 

 

3.4 STATEMENT OF REREPRESENTATIONS PROCEDURE 

 

3.4.1 Regulation 16 of the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) requires that the Council publish a 

Statement of Representations Procedure alongside the Draft Charging Schedule. A copy of 

the Statement of Representations is attached at Appendix B. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 284



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 8 

 

 

4. EVIDENCE BASE 

 
4.1 JUSTIFICATION FOR A CAMBRIDGE CIL 

4.1.1 Local authorities need to ensure that the CIL rate does not put at serious risk the overall 

development of their area. The CIL Regulations are clear that in setting rates, the charging 

authority must aim to strike an appropriate balance between: 

 

a. The desirability of funding from CIL (in whole or part) the actual and expected 

estimated total cost of infrastructure required to support the development of its 

area, taking into account other actual and expected sources of funding; and 

b. The potential effects (taken as a whole) of the imposition of CIL on the economic 

viability of development across its area. 

 

4.1.2 The Charging Schedule has to be informed by an appropriate evidence base. In order to 

adopt a sound Charging Schedule the Council either must or is recommended to: 

· Have an up to date Local Plan for the area 

· Identify a local infrastructure funding gap 

· Demonstrate the proposed CIL rates will not unduly affect the viability of planned 

development across the city 

· Clarify how planning obligations policies will be varied after the introduction of CIL; 

and, 

· Produce a list of infrastructure types/projects (known as a Regulation 123 list) it 

intends to fund in whole or in part through CIL and review more generally the 

Council’s wider existing policies for collecting developer contributions 

 

4.2 AN UP TO DATE DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

4.2.1 Statutory guidance sets out that councils must have an up to date development strategy 

for the area in which they propose to charge.
8
 As set out in the National Planning Policy 

Framework for England, where practical levy charges should be worked up and tested 

alongside the Local Plan.
9
 

 

4.2.2 In Cambridge the CIL charging schedule is being worked up and tested alongside the 

emerging Cambridge Local Plan 2014. The Council intends to submit the Draft CIL Charging 

Schedule for Examination in Public at the same time as the Submission Version Cambridge 

Local Plan. The Council’s CIL proposals are consistent with and will support the 

implementation of the emerging Local Plan.  

 

4.3 AN INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING GAP 

4.3.1 The CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) require that any levy’s rates should be based on 

evidence of the infrastructure needed. The charging authority must consider what 

additional infrastructure is needed in its area to support development and what other 

                                                      
8
 Para 4, Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance, December 2012 

9
 Para 175, National Planning Policy Framework for England 

Page 285



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 9 

 

 

funding sources are available.  The focus should be on providing evidence of an aggregate 

funding gap that demonstrates the need to levy the CIL.  

 

4.3.2 Statutory CIL guidance also states that information relating to the infrastructure needs of a 

Charging Authority should, wherever possible, be drawn directly from the infrastructure 

planning that underpins the Charging Authority’s development plan. 

 

4.3.3 The Council has developed the infrastructure evidence supporting the emerging Cambridge 

Local Plan 2014 and the Draft Cambridge Charging Schedule (DCS) simultaneously. The 

infrastructure evidence supporting the Draft Charging Schedule has been drawn directly 

from the evidence underpinning the emerging Local Plan. 

 

Infrastructure Delivery Study (IDS) 2012 

4.3.4 In March 2010 the Council, in collaboration with South Cambridgeshire District Council, 

commissioned Peter Brett Associates to produce the Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire 

Infrastructure Delivery Study (IDS). 

 

4.3.5 The IDS considers what additional infrastructure is needed in the Cambridge City and South 

Cambridgeshire areas to support development and what other funding sources are 

available (for example, core Government funding for infrastructure, which will continue 

following the introduction of a levy, anticipated planning obligations and anticipated 

necessary highway improvement schemes funded by anyone other than the charging 

authority) based on appropriate available evidence.  

 

4.3.6 In September 2012 the IDS was endorsed by the Council as an evidence base document for 

the Cambridge Local Plan Review and the Cambridge CIL. It was agreed as a ‘live’ document 

that can be updated over time to reflect changing circumstances such as changes in the 

planned level of housing and employment provision. 

 

4.3.7 The objectives of the IDS and subsequent update (see below) were to establish the existing 

capacity of infrastructure provision in Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire, and identify 

what infrastructure would be required in order to serve proposed growth. 

 

4.3.8 The IDS looks at the following infrastructure categories: 

· Physical – Transport, energy, water and drainage, waste, and telecommunications; 

· Social – Education, health care, leisure and recreation, community and social, and 

emergency services; and, 

· Green – Green space 

 

4.3.9 This document and subsequent update will form a key part of the evidence base at both 

the Local Plan and CIL examinations. 

 

 

 

 

Page 286



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 10 

 

 

Infrastructure Delivery Study Update 2013 

4.3.10 Since the consultation on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule the IDS has been 

updated to reflect the, now agreed, planned levels of provision emerging through the 

Cambridge City Council and South Cambridgeshire District Council Local Plan Reviews’.  

 

CIL Eligible Infrastructure 

4.3.11 The updated IDS includes summary tables related to CIL eligible infrastructure. CIL eligible 

infrastructure is comprised of any infrastructure project that relates to a proposed 

development, an existing infrastructure deficiency or an aspirational infrastructure project. 

Infrastructure requirements related to existing planning permissions or projects that have 

any Section 106 allocated to them are not included in this list. The CIL Eligible 

Infrastructure Schedule provides evidence of the aggregate funding gap required to levy a 

CIL charge. It also provides a starting point for future prioritisation of CIL funding.  

 

Infrastructure Delivery Study - Key Findings 

Cambridge City (excluding fringe sites) 

4.3.12 The cost of infrastructure requirements for CIL Eligible Infrastructure in Cambridge 

(excluding fringe sites) identified in the study is approximately £161.5million. The 

aggregate funding gap associated with CIL eligible infrastructure in Cambridge (excluding 

fringe sites) to 2031 is £161.5million. 

 

Fringe Sites (Both Local Authorities) 

4.3.13 The cost of infrastructure requirements for CIL Eligible Infrastructure on fringe sites is 

£121.3million. The aggregate funding gap associated with CIL eligible infrastructure on 

fringe sites to 2031 is £121.3million. 

 

Strategic Infrastructure (Both Local Authorities) 

4.3.14 CIL eligible strategic infrastructure requirements to support both local authorities amount 

to £209million. The aggregate funding aggregate funding gap associated with CIL eligible 

strategic infrastructure in Cambridge to 2031 is £95.5million. 

 

Prioritisation 

4.3.15 In practice financial resources will rarely meet all the identified needs for infrastructure at 

any given time and there will inevitably be a requirement to phase and prioritise projects 

across an area. The IDS and subsequent updates should be a key document in informing 

the prioritisation process. 

 

4.3.16 The role of the IDS is not to provide absolute assurances as to how the Council intends to 

spend CIL, but to illustrate that the intended CIL targets are justifiable given local 

infrastructure need and based on appropriate available evidence. It is not a formal 

investment programme and does not entail commitment by the Council or other statutory 

providers. 

 

4.3.17 Further detail can be found in the IDS 2012 and IDS Update 2013, which should be read in 

conjunction with the Draft Charging Schedule. 

Page 287



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 11 

 

 

 

Projected CIL Income and Residual Infrastructure Funding Gap 

4.3.18 It is difficult to accurately forecast CIL receipts due to the complicated nature of levying the 

new charge and how often landowners will pursue CIL exemptions. Revenues will depend 

on the volume, rate of build and type of development undertaken. 

 

4.3.19 CIL can only be charged on additional floorspace. This reduces the potential CIL for 

collection, particularly in an area like Cambridge City where much of the development will 

take place on brownfield land. 

 

4.3.20 The largest generator of CIL is likely to be residential development. The Draft Cambridge 

Local Plan 2014 housing trajectory has been used to estimate potential CIL revenue from 

residential development to 2031. Projected housing numbers are summarised in the table 

below: 

  

Table 2: CIL Eligible dwellings 

Source Dwelling Numbers 

Potential allocation sites (2015 – 2031) 3018 

Windfall (small sites) (2016 – 2031) 1,850 

Total 4,868 

 

4.3.21 To further refine the potential number of dwellings liable to pay CIL it has been necessary 

to make a number of assumptions. The assumptions used are as follows: 

· A Net floorspace reduction of 27%
10

 (based on historic conversions, changes of use, 

rebuilds and demolitions);  

· A discount of 40% affordable housing for affordable housing on sites over 15 

dwellings; 

· Discount of 15% affordable housing on sites less than 15 dwellings
11

; 

· An average floorspace per dwelling of 85 square metres (consistent with a large two 

bedroom or small three bedroom house) 

· A residential CIL rate of £125/square metre 

 

4.3.22 The Draft Cambridge Local Plan 2014 housing trajectory projects that 4,868 dwellings could 

come forward in the plan period to 2031 that are potentially liable for the CIL.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                      
10

 Completion figures for the past 5 years (1 April 2007 to 31
st

 March 2012) show that 27% of completions comprised 

conversions, changes of use or demolition/rebuilds. 
11

 Draft Local Plan Policy is for provision of a minimum of 10% affordable housing on sites between 2-9 dwellings and 

25% on sites between 10 and 14 dwellings. An average of 17.5% has been applied to the small sites and this has been 

discounted by 2.5% to take account of single dwellings which will not provide for affordable housing 

Page 288



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 12 

 

 

Table 3: Dwellings potentially liable to pay CIL 

Potentially CIL liable dwellings (Draft Cambridge Local Plan 2014 

housing trajectory) 
4,868 

Net floorspace deduction based on brownfield land development – 

27% 
1,314 

Discount of 40% affordable housing on site over 15 dwellings 

(Potential allocation sites = 3018/100*40) 
1,207 

Discount of 15% on smaller sites (Windfall = 1850/100*155) 278 

Number of dwellings potentially liable to pay CIL  2,069 

 

4.3.23 Based on the assumptions outlined above it is estimated that for the period April 2015 – 

April 2031 the CIL revenue for residential development will amount to:  

 

Table 4: Residential income from CIL 

Total CIL liable floorspace CIL Rate Residential CIL Income 

April 2015 – April 2031 

2069 dwellings * 85 sq.m = 175,865 

sq.m 

£125 per sq.m £21,983,125 

 

4.3.24 The aggregate funding gap for Cambridge City and Fringe sites has been outlined above. To 

summarise, the aggregate funding gap for Cambridge City (excluding fringe sites) is 

£161.5m, for fringe sites it is £121.3m and for strategic infrastructure it is £95m. The 

potential income from residential development from CIL is £21.9m to 2031. There is a 

significant residual funding gap which justifies the introduction of CIL.  

 

4.3.25 CIL funds will be raised from development types other than residential for which it is not 

possible to provide a reliable estimate. Nevertheless it is safe to assert that CIL raised by 

those other development types will not bridge the gap identified in this paper.  

 

4.4 VIABILITY EVIDENCE BASE 

 

4.4.1 The requirement to demonstrate that the proposed CIL rates will not unduly affect the 

viability of planned development across the city has been taken into account in a suite of 

viability documents produced on behalf of the Council. These are the Cambridge City 

Council Local Plan – Community Infrastructure Levy Viability Assessment; the Cambridge 

City Council Local Plan - SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level Viability 

Assessment ; the Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Student Housing Affordable Housing 

Study; and the Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Small Sites Affordable Housing Viability 

Study. These documents are available alongside and should be read in conjunction with the 

consultation document. 

 

Local Plan – Community Infrastructure Levy Viability Assessment 

4.4.2 The CIL Regulations require that consideration is given to ‘the potential effects (taken as a 

whole) of the imposition of CIL on the economic viability of development across its area’. 

Page 289



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 13 

 

 

The NPPF states that where CIL is to be introduced, the development and consideration of 

the rate should be undertaken as part of the same exercise of viability testing as the Local 

Plan wherever possible.
12

 

 

4.4.3 This is the approach that has been taken by the Council. Viability consultants Dixon Searle 

LLP were commissioned to undertake viability modeling work on planned development 

across Cambridge. Their work has also examined the viability of the Strategic Housing Land 

Availability Assessment (SHLAA) and emerging Local Plan policies.  

 

4.4.4 The consultants used a residual land value appraisal approach to assess the financial 

capacity of a range of residential and non-residential development scenarios in Cambridge 

to pay a CIL charge. The methodology they used follows a standard development appraisal, 

using assumptions (worked up in consultation with the development industry) on land 

values, build costs, sales values and planning policy considerations (40% affordable 

housing, high quality design standards). The methodology has been through successful CIL 

examinations with other authorities. Further detail is provided in the viability assessment. 

 

4.4.5 The consultants have found that it is viable at the current time to levy a CIL charge on new 

residential development, retail development and student accommodation development. 

When setting the proposed rates the Council has borne in mind the viability advice and 

also some overriding messages from the Government and CIL front-runners. These 

messages are as follows: 

· Keep it simple – Increasing the complexity of the charge makes CIL calculation and 

collection increasingly difficult; 

· The CIL charge is mandatory, if it makes development unviable then development 

may not go ahead. Therefore authorities should carefully consider where they set the 

CIL charge to avoid making desired development unviable; and, 

· Bear in mind the type of development that is likely to come forward in the next three 

to five years, the standard time frame of a charging schedule before it is reassessed. 

 

4.4.6 The CIL Regulations allow for different rates to apply for different zones in which 

development would be situated or by reference to intended use of development. It is not 

proposed to differentiate charging rates by zones in Cambridge but there is some 

differentiation by use. 

 

4.4.7 Residential development - The headline finding is that suitable overall parameters for 

charging CIL in the city were found to be between £100/sq.m to £150/sq.m. Within those 

parameters the consultants have suggested that there are two possible approaches to 

charging a CIL on residential development: 

· A single city wide residential rate;  

                                                      
12

 NPPF, para 175 

Page 290



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 14 

 

 

· Differential residential charging rates based on three zones. A lower value zone 

(north east and east of the city), a medium value zone (northwest and south west) 

and a higher value zone (Market and Newnham) 

 

4.4.8 The Council proposed to have a single city wide residential charging rate of £125/sq.m. This 

decision was taken bearing in mind that a differential charging approach across a small city 

like Cambridge could get quite complicated, unwieldy and difficult to administer; that there 

is not much planned growth in the higher value area and so a higher charge in that area 

would be of little value; and, taking the emerging development strategy into account 

 

4.4.9 Retail - Parameters for retail charging are recommended in the range of £0/sq.m to 

£125/sq.m so that a rate or rates within that range could be selected/aligned to the 

balance of supply. At £0/sq.m to £75/sq metre a charging rate would be responsive to city 

centre comparison retail and out of centre smaller convenience stores. At the upper end of 

these parameters, £125/sq.m, retail warehousing, supermarkets, and new city centre 

convenience shop development have the potential to remain viable. Further detail is 

contained in the Viabiltiy Assessment. 

 

4.4.10 The Council proposes a single approach based on a retail rate set at the relatively low level 

of £75/sq.m. The type of retail development that is most relevant to plan delivery, city 

centre comparison retail, informs this rate.  

 

4.4.11 Student accommodation – The consultants recommend consideration of a students 

housing CIL charging rate of not more than £125/sq.m. A rate of £125/sq.m is supported by 

the Council. 

 

4.4.12 Other uses: The viability assessment concludes that, in the current depressed market 

conditions, many commercial uses would not be viable if a CIL charge was applied to them 

at this time. 

 

4.4.13 Detailed comments were made during the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 

consultation in relation to the viability testing and assumptions used, including professional 

fees; finance costs; build costs; Section 106 and fees. Comments were also raised in 

relation to the proposed rates. A summary of these comments and detailed responses on 

behalf of the Council can be found in the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule Statement of 

Consultation which should be read alongside this document. 

 

SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level Viability Assessment 2013 

4.4.14 Dixon Searle LLP were commissioned by Cambridge City Council to carry out a high level 

viability assessment on a range of sites within the Council’s Strategic Housing Land 

Availability Assessment and a number of potential allocations sites in addition. All sites 

were appraised using proposed Draft Cambridge Local Plan 2014 policy standards as well as 

assuming a CIL residential rate of £125 per square metre. 

 

Page 291



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 15 

 

 

4.4.15 This study found that, ‘on the whole good levels of sales values are available to support 

development viability, so that schemes can proceed and frequently still bear planning 

obligations at significant levels as promoted by existing and proposed policies. This appears 

to be borne through the relatively high level of development interest and activity in the 

city, particularly compared with that seen in many other areas recently’
13

. 

 

Student Accommodation – Affordable Housing Financial Contributions Viability Study 

4.4.16 This study was undertaken to investigate the potential to introduce an affordable housing 

contribution for new student accommodation development in Cambridge City. It did this by 

testing the financial viability of a number of potential student accommodation 

development sites across the city. 

 

4.4.17 This study appraises a number of sites (9) on the basis that the site could accommodate 

either residential development or student accommodation. All the appraisals included an 

assumed CIL rate of £125 per square metre for both residential and student 

accommodation. The study found that while it might not be viable to have both a CIL 

charge and an affordable housing financial contribution towards student accommodation 

one or the other would be viable. This provides further evidence of the viability of both a 

residential and student accommodation CIL charge of £125 per square metre in the 

Cambridge City Council area. 

 

Small Sites Affordable Housing Viability Study 

4.4.18 The Small Sites Affordable Housing Viability Study was completed in 2013 to inform the 

development of the Council’s affordable housing policy. It considered the lowering of 

thresholds for affordable housing. 

 

4.4.19 The Council has subsequently decided to pursue a lower affordable housing threshold in 

the emerging Cambridge Local Plan 2014. This study provides evidence that a residential 

CIL charge of £125 per square metre is viable alongside the reduced affordable housing 

threshold. 

 

4.5 THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN CIL AND SECTION 106 

4.5.1 Although CIL replaces some elements of Planning Obligations, they will still have an 

important on-going site-specific role. Planning Obligations will still be used for site-specific 

infrastructure or mitigation required to make a development acceptable in planning terms. 

This could include the provision of affordable housing, open space, access roads, habitat 

protection etc. In addition, on very large developments, this could also extend to strategic 

infrastructure such as new schools, primary healthcare, strategic highway and 

transportation improvements as they are needed as part of the development. The principle 

is that all eligible developments must pay a CIL as well as, any site specific requirement to 

be secured through Section 106 Agreements. 

 

                                                      
13

 Para 2.1, SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level Viability Assessment 2013, Dixon Searle LLP 

Page 292



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 16 

 

 

4.5.2 Added to this, CIL Guidance advises that, for transparency, charging authorities should 

have set out at CIL Examination how their Section 106 policies have been varied
14

 and the 

Council’s Proposed Submission Local Plan 2014 Policy 85 – Infrastructure delivery, planning 

obligations and the Community Infrastructure Levy states that the introduction of CIL will 

be accompanied by a review of the Council’s guidance on planning obligations. 

 

4.5.3 Furthermore, one of the key issues raised during the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 

consultation was the relationship between CIL and Section 106 contributions and the 

potential issues of ‘Double Counting’ of Section 106 contributions and CIL, which is not 

permitted by law.  

 

4.5.4 It has therefore been necessary to commence a parallel review of the Council’s procedures 

for Section 106 Planning Obligations, and in particular a review of its Planning Obligations 

Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2010, is required. A revised draft SPD 

will be published alongside the Submission Version CIL Charging Schedule. 

 

4.5.5 The table at Appendix A sets out how CIL might work alongside Section 106 once CIL is 

adopted. This table sets out the broad areas of infrastructure which, first, will continue to 

be matters which the developer will be responsible for delivering and, second, which items 

could benefit from CIL funding.  This table will form the basis for a revised planning 

obligations strategy SPD. The CIL/Section 106 interaction table does not form part of the 

Charging Schedule consultation but the Council will take into account any comments 

received on the table when drafting the Council’s revised Planning Obligations Strategy 

SPD.  

 

4.6 DRAFT REGULATION 123 LIST 

4.6.1 Although the current regulations do not require it until after the CIL charge comes into 

place, latest CIL guidance
15

 encourages the Council to ‘set out at Examination a draft list of 

the projects and types of infrastructure that are to be funded in whole or part by the levy’. 

This list is known as the Regulation 123 list (the title being taken from the Regulation 

number which requires the publication of such a list). It should also be noted that draft CIL 

Regulations suggest that a draft version of the Regulation 123 list will need to be published 

alongside the consultation on the Charging Schedule.  

 

4.6.2 The need, in the eyes of the development industry, to consult on a Draft Regulation 123 list 

as soon as possible to ensure the view of landowners and developer are taken on board  

was one of the key issues raised during the consultation on the PDCS. 

 

4.6.3 It is therefore considered appropriate to publish a draft Regulation 123 list alongside the 

Draft Charging Schedule, whether or not it is strictly required at this point in the 

consultation. 

 

                                                      
14

 Para 87, CIL Guidance, April 2013, DCLG 
15

 Para 15, CIL Guidance 2013 

Page 293



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 17 

 

 

4.6.4 It must be stressed that comments on the Draft Regulation 123 list will not form part of the 

Charging Schedule consultation, unless the Regulations are amended which require us to 

do so. However, either way, the Council will take into account any comments received on 

the Draft Regulation 123 before the examination of the Draft Charging Schedule.   

 

4.6.5 The table at Appendix A, which sets out how current Section 106 policies will be varied, has 

heavily influenced the Draft Regulation 123 list. This is for the simple reason that, if 

something is on the Regulation 123 list, a Section 106 Planning Obligation for said item is, 

by default, not lawful. The Draft Regulation 123 list is attached at Appendix B. It has been 

formulated via a review of practice elsewhere, a review of infrastructure needs identified 

in the IDS and in consultation with colleagues at Cambridgeshire County Council. 

 

4.6.6 Following CIL adoption, this draft list will form the basis of the Council’s ‘Regulation 123 

List’ of CIL funded projects for which Section 106 planning obligations cannot be sought. 

This list has to be published and any revisions to it would be subject to appropriate 

consultation. This requirement to publish a Regulation 123 List is specifically designed to 

prevent ‘double charging’ of developers. 

 

4.6.7 The Cambridge Draft Regulation 123 is not a comprehensive detailed list of specific 

infrastructure projects. Indeed experience nationally shows that in general Regulation 123 

lists are not so specific. Instead, a common approach is one whereby the Regulation 123 

list identifies both broad areas of infrastructure (and as such, anything which falls under 

that broad area would be able to be funded by CIL, but not by Section 106) and some 

selected specific infrastructure items (such as a named specific highway improvement or 

specific named new school, which again would mean that developer contributions for 

these specific items could not be sought from Section 106 Planning Obligations). 

 

4.6.8 The starting point for the prioritisation of projects, or broad areas of infrastructure, to go 

on the Draft Regulation 123 list is the IDS. The subsequent decision as to which 

infrastructure projects receive CIL funding from the finalised Regulation 123 List will 

ultimately lie with the City Council. However, input from the County Council and other key 

stakeholders will be essential on all these matters. As such, sound governance 

arrangements around maintaining the Regulation 123 list, the prioritisation of CIL spend 

and the policy mechanism around developer contributions in general are essential. The 

Council is committed to working with key stakeholders to ensure appropriate governance 

arrangements are in place for the administration of CIL once it is adopted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 294



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 18 

 

 

5. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE 
 

 

Cambridge City Council Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule 

 
The Cambridge City Council Draft Charging Schedule is set out in the table below and has been 

prepared in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act 2008 and the Community 

Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended). 

 

The Charging Authority 

Cambridge City Council, as the Planning Authority, is the Charging Authority (CA). 

 

Schedule of Rates 

Cambridge City Council is proposing to charge CIL in respect of development for the following 

rates: 

Use Charge £/sq.m 

Residential (C3; C4 including sheltered accommodation) £125 

Retail (A1 – A5 and sui generic uses akin to retail*) £75 

Student Accommodation £125 

All other development including B, C1, C2 and D class uses £0 

* sui generis akin to retail includes petrol filling stations; shops selling and/or displaying motor 

vehicles; retail warehouse clubs. 

 

HOW WILL THE CHARGABLE AMOUNT BE CALCULATED? 

CIL charges will be calculated in accordance with CIL Regulation 40 (as amended). The 

chargeable amount will be equal to the aggregate of the amounts of CIL chargeable at each of 

the relevant rates as set out in this Charging Schedule.  

 

The chargeable amount will be index linked using the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors’ 

All-in Tender Price Index figures for the year in which the planning permission is granted and the 

year in which this charging schedule took effect. 

 

Date of Approval 

This charging schedule was approved on xx/xx/xxxx (to be inserted in final Draft Charging 

Schedule) 

 

Date of Effect 

This Charging Schedule will take effect on xx/xx/xxxx (to be inserted in final Draft Charging 

Schedule – likely to be 01/04/2015) 

 

Page 295



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 19 

 

 

6. IMPLEMENTING THE COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY 
 

6.1 HOW WILL CIL BE COLLECTED? 

6.1..1 The Council will issue a notice of liability as soon as practicable on or after the day on 

which a planning permission first permits development, stating the chargeable amount in 

relation to the development. The responsibility to pay the levy runs with the ownership of 

land on which the liable development will be situated and is a local land charge. Payment 

of the levy is due from the date the chargeable development commences. A 

commencement notice must be submitted to the Council no later than the day before the 

day on which the chargeable development is to be commenced. It is the intention of the 

Council to prepare and make available to appropriate documentation and templates on its 

website prior to implementing the CIL. 
  

6.2 PAYMENT BY INSTALMENT 

6.2.1 Regulation 70(7) of the CIL Regulations (as amended) sets a default of full payment of the 

Levy within 60 days of commencement of development. The CIL Regulations also enable a 

charging authority to set an Instalment Policy that allows payments to be spread over 

longer periods. The Council has concluded that it is reasonable to spread payment 

instalments according to the scale of development that is proposed. 

 

6.2.2 The Council can change its Instalment Policy at any time as long as the previous Instalment 

Policy has been in effect for more than 28 days. 

 

6.2.3 Regulation 69B states that an instalment policy must contain: 

· the date on which it takes effect; 

· the number of instalment payments; 

· the amount or proportion of CIL payable in any instalment; 

· the time (to be calculated from the date the development is commenced) that the 

first instalment payment is due, and the time that any subsequent payments are due; 

and 

· the minimum amount of CIL below which CIL may not be paid by instalment 

 

6.2.4 A Draft CIL Instalment Policy has been set at Appendix D to enable interested parties to 

consider its implications on development finance and delivery. Whilst comments are 

invited alongside the Draft Charging Schedule, it should be noted that the Draft Instalment 

Policy will not itself be subject to Public Examination. The Council will consider responses 

when finalising the Cambridge CIL Instalments Policy. 

 

 

6.3 PAYMENT IN KIND 

6.3.1 The Regulations provide the potential for a charging authority to accept payments in kind 

for CIL, in the form of a transfer of land to be used for infrastructure provision (as set out in 

Regulations 73 and 74). The value of the land needs to be equal to the amount of the CIL 

that would have been paid – with the land value being assessed by an independent valuer. 

Page 296



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 20 

 

 

It is in lieu of CIL, and is in addition to any transfer of land which may be required via 

Section 106 Agreements. It is the City Council’s prerogative to agree to a transfer. 

 

6.4 MANDATORY RELIEF FROM CIL 

6.4.1 The CIL regulations offer mandatory exemptions and discretionary relief from CIL for 

certain types of development 

 

6.4.2 The CIL Regulations offer mandatory relief for the following types of development: 

· Where the overall chargeable amount of a scheme is less than £50 (Regulation 40); 

· Development of less than 100sqm provided that it does not result in the creation of a 

new dwelling (Regulation 42); 

· The conversion of any building previously used as a dwelling house to two or more 

dwellings; 

· The conversion of, or works to, a building in lawful use that affects only the interior 

of the building; 

· Those parts of a development that are to be used as affordable housing (Regulation 

49); 

· Development by registered charities for the delivery of their charitable purposes 

(Regulation 43); and, 

· Structures or buildings that people do not normally go into, or go into only 

intermittently for maintenance (e.g. sports pitches, sub-stations or wind 

turbines)(Regulation 6). 

 

6.5 DISCRETIONARY RELIEF FROM CIL 

6.5.1 The regulations allow charging authority’s to permit discretionary relief from CIL (e.g. 

where a reduced or nil payment may be accepted). These cases are likely to be rare but 

could include the following: 

· Development by charities for investment activities (as defined by Regulation 44);  

· Development by charities where relief would normally constitute State Aid (as 

defined in Regulation 45); and,  

· Where the City Council considers there are exceptional circumstances to justify relief 

(as defined in Regulation 55).  

 

Discretionary Charitable Relief 

6.5.2 It is not the intention of the Council to offer this type of relief at present. At this stage the 

need for a discretionary relief in addition to mandatory relief is not considered justifiable 

and moreover, would impose an additional level of complexity in the administration and 

management of the CIL charge. A policy of this kind could be introduced at any stage 

though and this is something the Council will keep under review as the CIL system beds in. 

 

Exceptional Circumstances Relief 

6.5.3 Regulation 55 of the CIL Regulations permits a charging authority to grant relief from 

liability to pay CIL in ‘exceptional circumstances’. This may only happen if a planning 

obligation of greater value than the chargeable amount has been entered into in respect of 

the planning permission that permits the chargeable development and the charging 

Page 297



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 21 

 

 

authority considers that payment of the levy would have an unacceptable impact on the 

economic viability of development. In such cases a developer would be expected to 

demonstrate this (as set out in Regulation 57) via an ‘open book’ approach with an agreed 

independent valuer (paid for by the developer). Relief can also only be granted if it does 

not constitute ‘notifiable state aid’ (as defined in European Law). 

 

6.5.4 It is not the intention of the Council to offer this type of relief at present. The 

circumstances in which a policy of this nature would be likely to be used would be 

extremely rare given that the CIL rate is set based on viability evidence, moreover it would 

impose an additional level of complexity in the administration and management of the CIL 

charge. A policy to this kind could be introduced at any stage though and this position can 

be kept under review. 

 

6.6 MONITORING 

6.6.1 One of the issues that came up through the PDCS consultation was in relation to the need 

for a clear defined review mechanism. 

 

6.6.2 As required by Regulation 62, the City Council will publish an Annual CIL Report (for the 

financial year), which shows:  

· The amount of CIL collected;  

· The amount of CIL that has been spent;  

· Information on how CIL funds have been spent (i.e. which infrastructure projects, and 

how much has been used to cover administrative costs); and,  

· The amount of CIL retained at the end of the reporting year.  

 

6.6.3 This report will also indicate whether, over the coming year, a review of any element of the 

Cambridge CIL is likely. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 298



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 22 

 

 

7. HOW TO COMMENT ON THIS DOCUMENT 
 

7.1 YOUR VIEWS 

7.1.1 Once you have looked through the Draft Charging Schedule, please send us your 

comments. There are a number of ways in which you can do this 

· Using the Council’s online consultation system - This is the Council’s preferred 

means of receiving representations because it is the fastest and most accurate 

method and it will help us to manage your representations quickly and efficiently. 

Separate instructions on how to use the electronic system are provided on the 

Council’s website and officers in the planning policy team are always available to help 

if you have any queries. Please go to the following link: 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy; 

· By email at policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk using the electronic response form on 

the Council’s websites; or, 

· Using a response form - If you do not have access to a computer, a paper form can be 

completed and sent to the Council. Copies of the response form are available from 

the Planning Policy team. 

· Please be aware that your comments will be published on the Council’s website 

together with your name. 

 

7.1.2 Your views are important to us, and we recognise that the planning system is not always 

easy to understand and find your way around. We want to make sure that as many people 

as possible have an opportunity to have their say as the new CIL is prepared. You can 

contact us using one of the following methods: 

 

· You can phone us on 01223 457000 (ask to speak to someone in the Planning Policy 

team); or, 

· You can email us at policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk. 

 

7.1.3 A Regulation 16 Statement of Representations Procedures is attached at Appendix C. 

 

7.2 FURTHER INFORMATION  

 

· Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Infrastructure Delivery Study, Peter Brett 

Associates on behalf of Cambridge City Council, September 2012, 

http://www.cambridge.gov.uk/democracy/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=184&MId=686

&Ver=4  

· Cambridge and South Cambridgeshire Infrastructure Delivery Study Update 2013 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents/Infras

tructure%20Delivery%20StudyUpdate%20%28Final%20Report%20Amended%20with

%20Appendices%29.pdf  

· Draft Cambridge City Council Local Plan Review – Viability, Community Infrastructure 

Levy Viability Assessment, Dixon Searle LLP on behalf of Cambridge City Council 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/public/ldf/CIL/Appendix%202%20-

%20CIL%20Viability%20Assessment%20FINAL%20DRAFT.pdf  

Page 299



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 23 

 

 

· Cambridge City Council Local Plan - SHLAA and Potential Site Allocations High Level 

Viability Assessment 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents/SHLA

A%20High%20Level%20Viability%20Assessment%202013.pdf 

· Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Student Housing Affordable Housing Study 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents/Camb

ridge%20CC%20-%20StudentAccommodation%20AH%20Viability%20-

%20Final%20Report%20-%20Combined.pdf  

· Cambridge City Council Local Plan – Small Sites Affordable Housing Viability Study 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/sites/www.cambridge.gov.uk/files/documents/Camb

ridge%20City%20Council%20-

%20SmallSites%20Affordable%20Housing%20Viability%20Incl%20Appendices.pdf 

· CIL frequently asked questions, December 2012, Planning Advisory Service 

http://www.pas.gov.uk/pas/core/page.do?pageId=1242969  

· Community Infrastructure Levy Guidance, April 2013, DCLG 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/19

7687/Community_Infrastructure_Levy_2013.pdf  

·  Community Infrastructure Levy – Collection and Enforcement, Information 

Document, October 2011, DCLG 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-

collection-and-enforcement-guidance  

· Community Infrastructure Levy Relief – Information Document, May 2011, DCLG 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/community-infrastructure-levy-relief-

guidance  

· The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2010/9780111492390/contents  

· The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2011, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2011/987/contents/made  

· The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2012, 

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukdsi/2012/9780111529270  

· The Community Infrastructure Levy (Amendment) Regulations 2013 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/19

3363/uksi_20130982_en.pdf  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 300



 

  

 

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 A

 –
 T

h
e

 I
n

te
ra

ct
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 a

n
d

 C
IL

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 

 U
p

o
n

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
 C

IL
, 

o
r 

b
y 

6
th

 A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
4

, 
w

h
ic

h
e

v
e

r 
is

 t
h

e
 s

o
o

n
e

r,
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 s
ca

le
d

 b
a

ck
 (

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

a
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
p

o
se

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
6

th
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
1

4
 b

e
 e

xt
e

n
d

e
d

 t
o

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
1

5
).

 O
n

ce
 t

h
e

 C
IL

 i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

li
n

g
 o

f 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 l
im

it
e

d
 t

o
 f

iv
e

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

n
ly

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 a
 s

in
g

le
 p

ie
ce

 o
r 

ty
p

e
 o

f 
in

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
. 

C
IL

 r
e

ce
ip

ts
 w

il
l 

b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 f
u

n
d

, 
in

 w
h

o
le

 o
r 

p
a

rt
, 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 o
r 

m
it

ig
a

te
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
n

e
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
a

n
 a

re
a

, 
w

h
e

re
a

s 
S

e
ct

io
n

 

1
0

6
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
il

l 
re

m
a

in
, 

m
a

in
ly

 f
o

r 
o

n
-s

it
e

 m
it

ig
a

ti
o

n
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
. 

 S
ta

tu
to

ry
 C

IL
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
1

6
, 

is
su

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s 
a

n
d

 L
o

ca
l 

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
in

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
, 

st
a

te
s 

(p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 8

7
):

  

 

“W
h

e
n

 a
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

s 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
In

fr
a

st
ru

c
tu

re
 L

e
v
y

, 
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
ca

le
d

 b
a

ck
 t

o
 t

h
o

se
 

m
a

tt
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 d

ir
e

ct
ly

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 a

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

si
te

, 
a

n
d

 a
re

 n
o

t 
se

t 
o

u
t 

in
 a

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

3
 l

is
t.

 F
o

r 
tr

a
n

sp
a

re
n

cy
, 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 

sh
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
t 

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

ir
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 p

o
li

ci
e

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 v
a

ri
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
xt

e
n

t 
to

 w
h

ic
h

 t
h

e
y

 h
a

ve
 m

e
t 

th
e

ir
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

ta
rg

e
ts

.”
  

 E
xa

ct
ly

 w
h

a
t 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 w
il

l 
re

ce
iv

e
 C

IL
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 C
IL

 r
e

la
te

d
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
1

2
3

 l
is

t.
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 p
u

b
li

sh
 

it
s 

in
te

n
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
h

o
w

 r
e

ve
n

u
e

 r
a

is
e

d
 f

ro
m

 C
IL

 w
il

l 
b

e
 s

p
e

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
li

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
is

 l
is

t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 j

u
st

 b
e

ca
u

se
 a

n
 i

te
m

 o
r 

ty
p

e
 o

f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 g
o

e
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 l
is

t,
 i
t 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
m

e
a

n
 i
t 

w
il

l 
d

e
fi

n
it

e
ly

 h
a

p
p

e
n

 o
r 

b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 C

IL
 f

u
n

d
s.

 I
t 

d
o

e
s 

m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 s
a

id
 p

ro
je

ct
 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

re
ce

iv
e

 a
n

y
 f

u
n

d
s 

fr
o

m
 a

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

. 
 

T
h

e
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 1

2
3

 l
is

t 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 t
o

 b
e

 a
 c

o
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 l
is

t 
o

f 
sp

e
ci

fi
c 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 I

n
d

e
e

d
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

ll
y

 s
h

o
w

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t.

 I
n

st
e

a
d

, 
a

 c
o

m
m

o
n

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 i
s 

o
n

e
 w

h
e

re
b

y
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

1
2

3
 l

is
t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
b

o
th

 b
ro

a
d

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 (
a

n
d

 a
s 

su
ch

, 
a

n
y

th
in

g
 

w
h

ic
h

 f
a

ll
s 

u
n

d
e

r 
th

a
t 

b
ro

a
d

 a
re

a
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y

 C
IL

, 
b

u
t 

n
o

t 
b

y
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
) 

a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
le

ct
e

d
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 i

te
m

s 
(s

u
ch

 a
s 

a
 n

a
m

e
d

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

h
ig

h
w

a
y

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
n

a
m

e
d

 n
e

w
 s

ch
o

o
l,

 w
h

ic
h

 a
g

a
in

 w
o

u
ld

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
th

e
se

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

it
e

m
s 

co
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

fr
o

m
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s)

. 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

6
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

vy
 G

u
id

a
n

ce
, 

D
C

LG
, 

A
p

ri
l 

2
0

1
3

 

h
tt

p
s:

//
w

w
w

.g
o

v.
u

k
/g

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t/
u

p
lo

a
d

s/
sy

st
e

m
/u

p
lo

a
d

s/
a

tt
a

ch
m

e
n

t_
d

a
ta

/f
il

e
/3

6
7

4
3

/C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

_
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
_

Le
vy

_
g

u
id

a
n

ce
_

F
in

a
l.

p
d

f 
 

Page 301



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

a
 t

ri
ck

y
 j

u
d

g
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

s 
to

 w
h

a
t 

g
o

e
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 1

2
3

 l
is

t.
 F

ir
st

, 
it

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

it
 i

s 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
b

le
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 i
s 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 w
it

h
 a

 ‘
fu

n
d

in
g

 g
a

p
’ 

to
 j

u
st

if
y

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

o
si

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 C
IL

. 
S

e
co

n
d

, 
it

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 n
o

t 
so

 

co
m

p
re

h
e

n
si

v
e

 (
o

r 
b

ro
a

d
) 

a
s 

to
 l

is
t 

(o
r 

co
v
e

r)
 e

ve
ry

 s
in

g
le

 p
ie

ce
 o

f 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
is

 n
e

e
d

e
d

, 
b

e
ca

u
se

 i
n

 s
u

ch
 c

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 m
e

a
n

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o

 n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
 a

n
y

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 e
v
e

n
 w

h
e

n
 i

t 
w

o
u

ld
 o

th
e

rw
is

e
 b

e
 p

e
rf

e
ct

ly
 s

e
n

si
b

le
 o

r 
re

a
so

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

. 
A

s 
a

 

re
m

in
d

e
r,

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

st
il

l 
b

e
 u

se
d

 f
o

r 
si

te
-s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 o

r 
m

it
ig

a
ti

o
n

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 i
n

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
e

rm
s.

 T
h

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
 i

s 
th

a
t 

a
ll
 e

li
g

ib
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 m
u

st
 p

a
y

 a
 C

IL
 a

s 
w

e
ll

 a
s 

a
n

y
 s

it
e

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 b
e

 s
e

cu
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

 It
 i

s 
th

e
re

fo
re

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
to

 r
e

v
is

e
 i
ts

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S
tr

a
te

g
y 

S
P

D
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 c
le

a
r,

 f
o

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 a
s 

w
e

ll
 a

s 
th

e
 p

u
b

li
c,

 h
o

w
 C

IL
 

a
n

d
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 w

il
l 

in
te

ra
ct

 w
it

h
 e

a
ch

 o
th

e
r 

o
n

ce
 C

IL
 i

s 
a

d
o

p
te

d
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

to
 t

h
is

, 
it

 w
il

l 
b

e
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 m
a

k
e

 i
t 

cl
e

a
r 

to
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
rs

 a
t 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
 i

n
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 h
o

w
 C

IL
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
n

ce
 C

IL
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
ce

rn
s 

ra
is

e
d

 a
b

o
u

t 
d

o
u

b
le

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

e
e

d
b

a
ck

 r
e

ce
iv

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 P

re
li

m
in

a
ry

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
IL

 G
u

id
a

n
ce

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

th
e

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

 h
o

w
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 p

o
li
ci

e
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 v

a
ri

e
d

 a
t 

C
IL

 e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

. 
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 p
re

se
n

ts
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e

v
e

l 
v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

o
w

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
m

ig
h

t 
w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 i

n
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 o

n
ce

 C
IL

 i
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
It

 i
s 

a
n

ti
ci

p
a

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 t
a

b
le

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

b
o

th
 t

h
e

 R
e

v
is

e
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S
tr

a
te

g
y

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 1

2
3

 l
is

t.
 W

e
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 a

n
y

 

th
o

u
g

h
ts

/p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 y
o

u
 m

a
y

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

is
 d

ra
ft

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 
 

T
h

e
 f

o
ll

o
w

in
g

 a
ls

o
 p

re
se

n
ts

 a
n

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
h

a
s 

se
cu

re
d

 i
ts

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 o

v
e

r 
re

ce
n

t 
y

e
a

rs
. 

       

Page 302



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 T
a

b
le

 1
 -

 P
ro

p
o

se
d

 M
e

ch
a

n
is

m
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

u
tu

re
 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 
W

o
rk

s 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

 -
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 

w
o

rk
s 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 o

n
 

si
te

 b
y 

th
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

a
n

d
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
(S

1
0

6
 +

 

S
.2

7
8

).
 

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 –
 C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

a
re

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
ro

m
 a

ll
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

s 

d
e

fi
n

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 A

re
a

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 P
la

n
s 

w
h

ic
h

 g
e

n
e

ra
te

 

in
 e

xc
e

ss
 o

f 
5

0
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 

W
o

rk
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

 –
 

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 m

a
y

 c
a

u
se

 

a
 s

it
e

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

im
p

a
ct

 w
h

ic
h

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 a

d
d

re
ss

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

it
se

lf
, 

o
r 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

a
t 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 a

ch
ie

v
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

u
se

 S
2

7
8

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
r 

S
1

0
6

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 

   

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 –
   

 C
IL

 

fu
n

d
s 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 u

se
d

 t
o

 

a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 c
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
 

im
p

a
ct

s 
o

f 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 n
e

tw
o

rk
. 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 g

ro
w

th
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

to
 

p
ro

m
o

te
 w

a
lk

in
g

, 

cy
cl

in
g

, 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

se
 p

u
b

li
c 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

tr
a

ff
ic

 c
a

lm
in

g
 a

n
d

 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 

O
n

ce
 C

IL
 i

s 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 lo

ca
l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 a
b

le
 t

o
 p

o
o

l 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 5

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 

to
 f

u
n

d
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
ie

ce
 o

r 
ty

p
e

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 
T

h
is

 w
o

u
ld

 m
a

ke
 i

t 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

o
o

le
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s.

. 
C

IL
 

w
il

l 
p

ro
v

id
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

fu
n

d
e

d
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

fu
tu

re
.  

 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

7
 S

e
ct

io
n

 2
7

8
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 a

re
 l

e
g

a
ll

y
 b

in
d

in
g

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
ca

l 
H

ig
h

w
a

y
 A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
ve

lo
p

e
r 

to
 e

n
su

re
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 

h
ig

h
w

a
y

 w
o

rk
s.

 C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
, 

th
e

 l
im

it
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

3
 d

o
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 s
e

ct
io

n
 2

7
8

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

 

Page 303



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

p
e

rs
o

n
 t

ri
p

s 
to

 a
n

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 

o
n

 a
 d

a
il

y 
b

a
si

s.
 E

a
ch

 A
re

a
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 P
la

n
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

a
 l

is
t 

o
f 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

to
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

fo
r 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 a

re
 

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

. 
 

 

w
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
. 

 

 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

W
o

rk
s 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

 –
 I

f 
a

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

is
 l

a
rg

e
 e

n
o

u
g

h
 t

o
 

n
e

ce
ss

it
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
n

 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 f

a
ci

li
ty

 o
n

 s
it

e
 t

h
e

n
 i

t 

is
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

v
ia

 

a
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

. 

O
ff

 s
it

e
 –

 A
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

ls
, 

se
co

n
d

a
ry

 s
ch

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
re

-

sc
h

o
o

l 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

. 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 –
   

 T
h

is
 w

il
l 

n
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 v
ia

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 

 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

  
-

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 o

r 
e

xp
a

n
si

o
n

 o
f 

e
xi

st
in

g
 s

ch
o

o
ls

 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 e
a

rl
y

 y
e

a
rs

, 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 o

r 
se

co
n

d
a

ry
 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 v

ia
 t

h
e

 

C
IL

 

R
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

o
n

 p
o

o
li

n
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

n
ce

 C
IL

 i
s 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

d
 

w
o

u
ld

 m
a

ke
 i

t 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 

to
 f

u
n

d
 E

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

o
o

le
d

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s.

 T
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 L
o

ca
l P

la
n

 2
0

1
4

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 

co
n

ta
in

 a
n

y
 n

e
w

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

s 
la

rg
e

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 

n
e

ce
ss

it
a

te
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 o

r 
se

co
n

d
a

ry
 s

ch
o

o
l o

n
 

si
te

. 
C

IL
 w

il
l 

b
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
/i

m
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

. 
(S

ch
o

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 s
e

cu
re

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
n

 m
a

jo
r 

si
te

s 
in

 t
h

e
 

Page 304



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

W
h

e
re

 it
 i

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
in

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 a

 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 c
re

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

sc
h

o
o

l 

p
la

ce
s.

 T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 a

re
: 

P
re

-s
ch

o
o

l:
 £

8
1

0
/d

w
e

ll
in

g
 u

n
it

 

P
ri

m
a

ry
: 

£
1

3
5

0
/d

w
e

ll
in

g
 u

n
it

 

S
e

co
n

d
a

ry
: 

£
1

5
2

0
/d

w
e

ll
in

g
 u

n
it

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 F
ri

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
se

 s
it

e
s 

h
a

v
e

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

im
p

a
ct

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

IL
) 

 

W
a

st
e

 
F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
a

re
 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 f

ro
m

 a
ll

 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

a
st

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

cy
cl

in
g

 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

–
 F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
a

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 in
 

re
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

a
ll

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

M
in

i 
R

e
cy

cl
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
–

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

1
,0

0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

u
n

it
s 

a
re

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

a
st

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

cy
cl

in
g

 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s  

–
 F

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

a
st

e
 

a
n

d
 r

e
cy

cl
in

g
 r

e
ce

p
ta

cl
e

s 
g

e
n

e
ra

te
d

 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
o

f 
th

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  

M
in

i 
R

e
cy

cl
in

g
 C

e
n

tr
e

s 
–

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

1
,0

0
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
it

s 
a

re
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

 n
e

w
 u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 7
 u

n
it

 

m
in

i 
re

cy
cl

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s.

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
 –

 

La
rg

e
 s

ca
le

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 

a
n

d
 w

a
st

e
 r

e
cy

cl
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
 

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

a
st

e
 a

n
d

 r
e

cy
cl

in
g

 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 m

in
i 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
re

 d
ir

e
ct

ly
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

si
te

 a
n

d
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 a

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 i

n
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 t
e

rm
s.

 T
h

e
se

 c
o

u
ld

 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
  

H
o

u
se

h
o

ld
 w

a
st

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

jo
r 

w
a

st
e

 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

a
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 C

IL
 w

il
l b

e
 a

 

m
o

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 

Page 305



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

in
co

rp
o

ra
te

 n
e

w
 u

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 7
 

u
n

it
 m

in
i 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s.
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
 

–
 1

0
0

0
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
u

n
it

s 
a

re
 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 o
n

 a
 s

it
e

 b
y

 s
it

e
 b

a
si

s.
 

M
a

jo
r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s 

 

1
0

0
0

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l u
n

it
s 

a
re

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 

o
n

 a
 s

it
e

 b
y

 s
it

e
 b

a
si

s.
  

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
. 

 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 

li
fe

lo
n

g
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

 

A
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 i
s 

so
u

g
h

t 
fr

o
m

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
4

 

o
r 

m
o

re
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s.

 T
h

e
 le

ve
l 

o
f 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 i
s 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

W
il

l 
n

o
 lo

n
g

e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 u
n

d
e

r 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 l

if
e

lo
n

g
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

s 
a

 r
e

su
lt

 

o
f 

n
e

w
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
 

R
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

o
n

 p
o

o
li

n
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 m

a
k

e
 it

 v
e

ry
 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 

li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 l

if
e

lo
n

g
 l

e
a

rn
in

g
 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 L

o
ca

l P
la

n
 

2
0

1
4

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
co

n
ta

in
 a

n
y 

n
e

w
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
si

te
s 

la
rg

e
 

e
n

o
u

g
h

 t
o

 n
e

ce
ss

it
a

te
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

a
 l

ib
ra

ry
 o

n
 s

it
e

. 
C

IL
 

w
il

l 
b

e
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
/i

m
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

in
 

th
e

 f
u

tu
re

 t
o

 r
e

sp
o

n
d

 t
o

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 

Page 306



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

d
e

m
a

n
d

 f
ro

m
 a

 l
a

rg
e

r 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 

Li
b

ra
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 s

e
cu

re
d

 

o
n

 s
it

e
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 o

n
 

m
a

jo
r 

si
te

s 
in

 t
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 

F
ri

n
g

e
. 

T
h

e
se

 s
it

e
s 

h
a

ve
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 

im
p

a
ct

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

IL
).

 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 –
 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

S
p

o
rt

s 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s  

O
n

si
te

: 
A

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

o
n

 s
it

e
 a

t 
a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

1
.2

 

h
e

ct
a

re
s 

p
e

r 
1

0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

.  

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 

o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

o
n

si
te

 t
h

e
 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s 
a

re
 m

e
t 

in
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
 

o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 

to
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

 o
r 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e

se
 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s.
 

 

O
n

si
te

: 
O

u
td

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 s
it

e
 a

t 
a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

a
m

b
r i

d
g

e
 L

o
ca

l P
la

n
 

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

o
n

si
te

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 

m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 

n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
  o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

 i
n

 t
h

e
se

 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s 
( S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

e
 5

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 r
u

le
) 

 

O
u

td
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 L

o
ca

l 
P

la
n

 

2
0

1
4

 s
ta

te
s 

th
a

t 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 o

n
si

te
 o

r 

v
ia

 a
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 n

o
t 

v
ia

 C
IL

. 
In

 m
o

st
 c

a
se

s 
it

 w
il

l n
o

t 
b

e
 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

fo
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
sp

o
r t

s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

o
n

 s
it

e
 a

n
d

 s
o

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 

w
il

l 
h

a
ve

 t
o

 b
e

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

. 
It

 m
a

y
 b

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
o

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 (

e
.g

. 
d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

2
0

0
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s 

o
r 

m
o

re
) 

a
b

o
v

e
 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
m

u
te

d
 p

a
ym

e
n

t 
w

o
u

ld
 

Page 307



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

b
e

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

in
 l

ig
h

t 
o

f 
re

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

o
n

 

p
o

o
li

n
g

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 –
 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
O

p
e

n
 

S
p

a
ce

 

O
n

si
te

: 
P

ro
v

id
e

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

 a
t 

a
 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

1
.8

 h
e

ct
a

re
s 

p
e

r 

1
0

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

 

E
v

e
n

 i
f 

it
 i

s 
n

o
t 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 

th
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

, 
fo

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

 it
 i

s 

n
o

t 
p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 s

o
m

e
 

fo
rm

s 
o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
l  
o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
, 

su
ch

 a
s 

u
rb

a
n

 p
a

rk
s,

 a
n

d
 l

a
rg

e
r 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

n
a

tu
ra

l 
g

re
e

n
sp

a
ce

 

o
n

si
te

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 

in
fo

rm
a

l p
la

y
sp

a
ce

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 2

5
 u

n
it

s 
a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

a
ct

iv
it

y
 a

re
a

s 
o

n
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 1

0
 u

n
it

s  

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 

o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

 o
n

si
te

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

a
re

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

O
n

si
te

: 
In

fo
rm

a
l 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 w
il

l b
e

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 s
it

e
 a

t 
a

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 L

o
ca

l P
la

n
 

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
l 

o
p

e
n

 

sp
a

ce
 o

n
si

te
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 

m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 

n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e

se
 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s.
 (

S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e

 5
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 r
u

le
) 

In
fo

rm
a

l O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
 

S
e

e
 a

b
o

v
e

 –
 I

n
fo

rm
a

l 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
 

ra
is

e
s 

th
e

 s
a

m
e

 is
su

e
s 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 

th
e

 5
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
 r

u
le

. 

In
tr

o
d

u
ci

n
g

 a
 t

h
re

sh
o

ld
 a

b
o

ve
 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

so
u

g
h

t 
m

ig
h

t 
b

e
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 
 

  

Page 308



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 

sp
a

ce
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

e
xi

st
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e

se
 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s.
 

 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 –
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 

C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

T
e

e
n

a
g

e
rs

 

O
n

si
te

: 
E

q
u

ip
p

e
d

 c
h

il
d

re
n

’s
 p

la
y

 

a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 o

u
td

o
o

r 
y

o
u

th
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

te
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 a

re
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 a

t 
a

 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

 o
f 

0
.3

 h
e

ct
a

re
s 

p
e

r 

1
0

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
. 

T
h

e
y

 a
re

 p
ro

vi
d

e
d

 

o
n

si
te

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 2

5
 

u
n

it
s,

 l
o

ca
l p

la
y

 a
re

a
s 

a
re

 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
la

rg
e

r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

co
m

p
ri

si
n

g
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

0
 u

n
it

s,
 

n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 p

la
y

 a
re

a
s 

a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

in
 

th
e

 u
rb

a
n

 e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 l

a
rg

e
r 

O
n

si
te

: 
P

ro
v

is
io

n
 f

o
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 

te
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

il
l 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

si
te

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 2

5
 u

n
it

s,
 lo

ca
l 

p
la

y
 a

re
a

s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

la
rg

e
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
m

p
ri

si
n

g
 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 1

0
0

 u
n

it
s,

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
 

p
la

y
 a

re
a

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 

e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
th

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 l

a
rg

e
r 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

  

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
ce

 f
o

r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
rs

 o
n

si
te

 t
h

e
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 

a
n

d
 T

e
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

il
l 

n
o

t 

b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 C
IL

 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 L

o
ca

l 
P

la
n

 

2
0

1
4

 s
ta

te
s 

th
a

t 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
ch

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 

te
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 w

il
l 

b
e

 o
n

si
te

 o
r 

v
ia

 a
 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
v

ia
 

C
IL

. 
P

o
o

li
n

g
 o

f 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 r
e

st
ri

ct
e

d
 t

o
 5

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
p

e
r 

p
ro

je
ct

. 
 

Page 309



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

ts
 

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 

o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 o
p

e
n

 

sp
a

ce
 f

o
r 

ch
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 

te
e

n
a

g
e

rs
 o

n
si

te
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 

a
re

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 

sp
a

ce
 o

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 

e
xi

st
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 i

n
 t

h
e

se
 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s.
 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 m
e

t 
in

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

ce
 o

r 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

xi
st

in
g

 o
p

e
n

 

sp
a

ce
 i

n
 t

h
is

 c
a

te
g

o
ry

. 
( S

u
b

je
ct

 t
o

 

th
e

 5
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
 r

u
le

) 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 -
 

A
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
 

O
n

si
te

: 
O

n
si

te
 a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 u

rb
a

n
 

e
xt

e
n

si
o

n
s 

a
t 

a
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 o

f 
0

.4
 

h
e

ct
a

re
s 

p
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 

O
ff

si
te

: 
T

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 c
o

m
m

u
te

d
 

su
m

 b
u

t 
o

n
ly

 i
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s.
 

O
n

si
te

: 
T

h
e

se
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 

si
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
il

t 
u

p
 a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y 

a
n

d
 i

n
 u

rb
a

n
 e

xt
e

n
si

o
n

s  
a

t 
a

 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

 a
s 

se
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 

Lo
ca

l P
la

n
 

O
ff

si
te

: 
W

h
e

re
 it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 o
r 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 p

ro
v

id
e

 a
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
 

o
n

si
te

 t
h

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

w
il

l b
e

 m
e

t 
in

 

th
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
co

m
m

u
te

d
 p

a
ym

e
n

ts
 

to
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 
n

e
w

 

A
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
 w

il
l 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 L

o
ca

l 
P

la
n

 

2
0

1
4

 s
ta

te
s 

th
a

t 
A

ll
o

tm
e

n
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
il

l b
e

 o
n

si
te

 o
r 

v
ia

 a
 

fi
n

a
n

ci
a

l 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
v

ia
 

C
IL

. 
F

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

st
 p

a
rt

 i
t 

w
ill

 n
o

t 
b

e
 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
 o

n
 

si
te

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
il

t 
u

p
 a

re
a

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
. 

F
in

a
n

ci
a

l 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

w
il

l b
e

 

re
st

ri
ct

e
d

 t
o

 5
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

p
e

r 

p
ro

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

 

th
re

sh
o

ld
 a

b
o

ve
 w

h
ic

h
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

Page 310



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

a
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
 o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 a

llo
tm

e
n

ts
 i

n
 t

h
e

se
 

ca
te

g
o

ri
e

s.
 (

S
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 t

h
e

 5
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 r
u

le
) 

 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
in

 

li
e

u
 o

f 
o

n
-s

it
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 m
a

y
 b

e
 t

h
e

 

m
o

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
. 
 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 –
 

In
d

o
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 

(f
o

rm
a

l 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 s
u

ch
 

a
s 

sp
o

rt
s 

h
a

ll
s 

a
n

d
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 

p
o

o
ls

) 

O
n

si
te

: 
P

ro
v

id
e

d
 o

n
 s

it
e

 i
f 

p
o

ss
ib

le
. 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
a

re
 1

 S
p

o
rt

s 

h
a

ll
 p

e
r 

1
3

,0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 1

 

sw
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o

l 
p

e
r 

5
0

,0
0

0
 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

O
ff

si
te

: 
T

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
a

re
 

g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 m

e
t 

in
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
 o

f 

co
m

m
u

te
d

 p
a

ym
e

n
ts

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

n
e

w
 o

r 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

xi
st

in
g

 

in
d

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
lt

ie
s.

  

P
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

il
l 

n
o

t 
b

e
 u

se
d

 

to
 s

e
cu

re
 i

n
d

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 o
f 

in
d

o
o

r 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 C
IL

 

(L
e

is
u

re
 s

p
o

rt
s 

a
re

 

p
re

d
o

m
in

a
n

tl
y

 i
n

d
o

o
r 

a
n

d
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
 s

p
o

rt
s 

st
a

d
ia

, 
ic

e
 r

in
k

s,
 s

p
o

rt
s 

h
a

ll
s,

 b
o

xi
n

g
 c

e
n

tr
e

s,
 

h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 f
it

n
e

ss
 

ce
n

tr
e

s 
e

tc
.)

 

In
 m

o
st

 c
a

se
s 

it
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 o

r 
p

ra
ct

ic
a

l 
fo

r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
e

 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s 
fo

r 
in

d
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
n

 s
it

e
. 

R
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

o
n

 

p
o

o
li

n
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 

m
a

ke
 i

t 
v

e
ry

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 a

n
 

in
d

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

s 
fa

ci
li

ty
 v

ia
 S

e
ct

io
n

 

1
0

6
. 

C
IL

, 
a

ft
e

r 
it

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
, 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 t
h

e
 m

o
st

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
 

(e
.g

. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

O
n

 s
it

e
 –

 F
o

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

1
0

0
 u

n
it

s 
o

r 

m
o

re
 o

n
 s

it
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s 

ca
n

 b
e

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
. 

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

n
o

rm
a

lly
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 v

ia
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

w
h

e
re

 a
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
in

vo
lv

e
d

 t
h

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 v

ia
 

th
e

 C
IL

. 
 

G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
o

li
n

g
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
o

n
 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 

a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

C
IL

 it
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

b
e

 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 

Page 311



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

ro
o

m
s,

 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

ce
n

tr
e

s,
 p

u
b

li
c 

h
a

ll
s,

 p
u

b
li

c 

to
il

e
ts

 e
tc

. 
th

e
 

li
st

 i
s 

n
o

t 

e
xh

a
u

st
iv

e
)  

O
ff

 s
it

e
 –

 W
h

e
re

 i
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

n
 s

it
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s 
is

 n
o

t 

p
ra

ct
ic

a
l/

fe
a

si
b

le
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
m

o
st

 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

co
m

p
ri

si
n

g
 l

e
ss

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

0
 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
fi

n
a

n
ci

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

a
re

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

(o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 

h
e

a
lt

h
ca

re
).

 (
£

1
,2

5
6

 p
e

r 
1

 o
r 

2
 

b
e

d
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
, 

£
1

8
8

2
 p

e
r 

3
 b

e
d

) 

lo
ss

 o
f 

a
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y 
fa

ci
li

ty
 a

n
d

 a
n

 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 n
e

e
d

s 
to

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

, 

e
it

h
e

r 
o

n
 s

it
e

 o
r 

in
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

. 

 
co

m
m

u
n

it
y

 f
a

ci
lit

ie
s 

v
ia

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
  

P
u

b
li

c 
A

rt
 

A
ll

 m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

1
0

 o
r 

m
o

re
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s,

 o
r 

a
 s

it
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 

0
.5

h
a

 o
r 

m
o

re
, 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

1
0

0
0

sq
.m

 o
r 

m
o

re
 d

e
d

ic
a

te
 1

%
 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

ca
p

it
a

l 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

to
 p

u
b

li
c 

a
rt

. 
In

 

th
e

 c
a

se
 o

f 
ve

ry
 l

a
rg

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 

is
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 c
a

se
 b

y
 c

a
se

 

b
a

si
s.

 

W
h

e
re

 o
n

 s
it

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

a
rt

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 

th
e

 d
e

si
g

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

n
d

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 

in
to

 t
h

e
 s

u
b

m
it

te
d

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

. 
 

O
ff

-s
it

e
 p

ro
v

is
io

n
 o

f 

p
u

b
li

c 
a

rt
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 v

ia
 C

IL
 

G
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
o

n
 p

o
o

li
n

g
 

m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 f

iv
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 

C
IL

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 o

ff
 s

it
e

 

p
u

b
li

c 
a

rt
 i

n
 t

h
e

 f
u

tu
re

.  

P
u

b
li

c 
R

e
a

lm
 

a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 s

e
cu

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 

P
u

b
li

c 
re

a
lm

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

/i
m

p
ro

ve
m

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 

O
ff

-s
it

e
 p

u
b

li
c 

re
a

lm
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

 

Page 312



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

sa
fe

ty
 

im
p

ro
v

e
m

e
n

ts
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 o
n

 a
 s

it
e

 b
y 

si
te

 

b
a

si
s 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

o
n

 s
it

e
 o

r 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

si
te

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
e

cu
re

d
 

v
ia

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 

th
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
d

e
si

g
n

/d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.  

fu
n

d
e

d
 v

ia
 C

IL
 

B
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

 

(n
a

tu
re

 

co
n

se
rv

a
ti

o
n

, 

sp
e

ci
e

s 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 

h
a

b
it

a
t 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n

) 

 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 s

e
cu

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
a

n
d

 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 o
n

 a
 s

it
e

 b
y 

si
te

 

b
a

si
s 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

O
n

 s
it

e
 h

a
b

it
a

t 
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t;

 r
e

lo
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 

p
ro

te
ct

e
d

 s
p

e
ci

e
s 

to
 a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

 s
it

e
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 s

e
cu

re
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 c

o
n

d
it

io
n

 t
o

 

re
in

fo
rc

e
 t

h
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 

d
e

si
g

n
/d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
.  

N
e

w
 h

a
b

it
a

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

fu
n

d
e

d
 v

ia
 C

IL
 

 

C
a

rb
o

n
 

R
e

d
u

ct
io

n
 

M
e

a
su

re
s 

(C
o

d
e

 f
o

r 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 

h
o

m
e

s,
 

B
R

E
E

A
M

, 
w

a
te

r 

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 s

e
cu

re
d

 v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
r 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

 

W
h

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

lr
e

a
d

y 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

o
th

e
r 

le
g

is
la

ti
o

n
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s,
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l w

ill
 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
e

cu
re

 c
a

rb
o

n
 r

e
d

u
ct

io
n

 

m
e

a
su

re
s 

v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 

a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

 t
h

e
 n

o
rm

a
l 

d
e

si
g

n
/d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 

C
IL

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 

p
a

y
 f

o
r 

ca
rb

o
n

 

re
d

u
ct

io
n

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

 

Page 313



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
) 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

H
o

u
si

n
g

  

C
u

rr
e

n
tl

y
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s.
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

se
e

k
s 

4
0

%
 o

r 
m

o
re

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

o
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

1
5

 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
o

r 
m

o
re

 

W
il

l 
co

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 b

e
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 

li
n

e
 w

it
h

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 L
o

ca
l P

la
n

 P
o

li
cy

 

C
IL

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 

p
a

y
 f

o
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 

R
e

st
ri

ct
io

n
s 

o
n

 p
o

o
li

n
g

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 

o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
d

o
 n

o
t 

a
p

p
ly

 t
o

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

S
U

D
S

 
C

u
rr

e
n

tl
y

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 s
it

e
 o

r 

d
ir

e
ct

ly
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 s
it

e
 

T
o

 b
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 o
n

 s
it

e
 o

r 
d

ir
e

ct
ly

 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 s
it

e
 s

e
cu

re
d

 v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 

o
r 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
p

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 t
o

 r
e

in
fo

rc
e

 

th
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 
d

e
si

g
n

/d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.  

 
 

F
lo

o
d

 

P
ro

te
ct

io
n

 

O
n

 s
it

e
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

n
 F

R
A

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
a

s 
a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

O
n

 s
it

e
 m

e
a

su
re

s 
w

h
ic

h
 a

n
 F

R
A

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

s 
a

s 
a

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

se
cu

re
d

 

v
ia

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
 o

r 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
 

to
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
 t

h
e

 n
o

rm
a

l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

.  

 
 

O
th

e
r 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

  

A
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 

ca
n

 b
e

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

to
 r

e
m

e
d

y
 s

it
e

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
d

e
fi

ci
e

n
ci

e
s 

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

S
it

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
is

su
e

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 a
d

d
re

ss
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 u
se

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s/
o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 v
ia

 

C
IL

 

 

Page 314



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
C

u
rr

e
n

t 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
tr

a
te

g
y

 -
 A

ll
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 v

ia
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
e

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

is
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

S
2

7
8

 o
f 

th
e

 

H
ig

h
w

a
y

s 
A

ct
 o

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s.

  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 v
ia

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 o
r 

C
IL

 
N

o
te

s 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
it

e
m

s 
to

 b
e

 

d
e

li
v

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

2
7

8
1

7
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h

w
a

y
s 

A
ct

 o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 C
o

n
d

it
io

n
s 

C
IL

 

co
m

p
e

n
sa

to
ry

 m
e

a
su

re
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

   
 t

h
e

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

a
n

d
 

co
n

st
ra

in
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

si
te

 

 D
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 t
a

rg
e

ts
 

 T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
s 

b
e

lo
w

 p
ro

v
id

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 l
e

ve
l 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r 

fu
n

d
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
.1

0
6

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 t
o

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 i
n

 r
e

ce
n

t 
y

e
a

rs
. 

T
h

e
 f

ir
st

 t
a

b
le

 r
e

la
te

s 
to

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
p

e
rm

is
si

o
n

s 
o

f 
le

ss
 t

h
a

n
 3

0
0

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
o

n
ly

. 
T

h
e

 s
e

co
n

d
 t

a
b

le
 i

s 
a

 

su
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
S

.1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
d

 o
n

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
la

rg
e

 s
ca

le
 (

g
re

a
te

r 
th

a
n

 3
0

0
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s)

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
s 

in
 r

e
ce

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

. 
T

h
e

se
 t

a
b

le
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
it

 i
s 

v
ia

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

ll
e

ct
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

It
 a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 S

.1
0

6
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

u
se

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
re

 a
cc

u
ra

te
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 e

xt
ra

ct
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

ls
 S

.1
0

6
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 d
a

ta
b

a
se

. 
It

 s
h

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 s
ta

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

h
a

s 
co

n
si

st
e

n
tl

y
 d

e
li

v
e

re
d

 4
0

%
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 o
n

 s
it

e
s 

o
ve

r 
1

5
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 

S
.1

0
6

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

        

Page 315



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

T
a

b
le

 1
 –

 S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 A
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

p
e

rm
is

si
o

n
 o

f 
le

ss
 t

h
a

n
 3

0
0

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
–

 2
0

1
0

 -
 2

0
1

2
 

 
2

0
1

2
 

2
0

1
1

 
2

0
1

0
 

  
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
2

 

N
o

. 
o

f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

1
8
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
1

 

N
o

. 

o
f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
1

 

N
o

. 
o

f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

  

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 

£
6

0
1

,2
7

4
 

4
7

7
 

£
1

,2
6

1
 

n
/a

 
£

2
4

8
,6

6
1

 
2

7
1

 
£

9
1

8
 

n
/a

 
£

5
9

3
,8

5
5

 
6

5
0

 
£

9
1

4
 

n
/a

 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

1
9
 

£
5

7
7

,4
3

7
 

4
7

7
 

£
1

,2
1

1
 

£
1

,2
1

1
 

£
2

9
0

,6
0

1
 

2
7

1
 

£
1

,0
7

2
 

£
1

,0
7

2
 

£
6

0
5

,2
9

0
 

6
5

0
 

£
9

3
1

 
£

9
3

1
 

In
d

o
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 

£
2

2
9

,6
7

8
 

4
7

7
 

£
4

8
2

 
n

/a
 

£
1

5
0

,7
0

9
 

2
7

1
 

£
5

5
6

 
n

/a
 

£
5

6
,1

0
8

 
6

5
0

 
£

8
6

 
n

/a
 

P
u

b
li

c 
R

e
a

lm
 

£
5

9
,1

2
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

1
2

4
 

- 
£

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
0

 
- 

£
2

8
,9

8
5

 
6

5
0

 
£

4
5

 
- 

P
u

b
li

c 
A

rt
 

£
3

5
,0

0
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

7
3

 
n

/a
 

£
0

 
2

7
1

 
£

0
 

n
/a

 
£

1
0

5
,0

0
0

 
6

5
0

 
£

1
6

2
 

n
/a

 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

  
£

8
4

,5
1

5
 

4
7

7
 

£
1

7
7

 
- 

£
0

 
2

7
1

 
£

0
 

n
/a

 
£

1
,2

4
1

,8
5

0
 

6
5

0
 

£
1

,9
1

1
 

- 

Li
b

ra
ri

e
s 

£
3

2
,9

6
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

6
9

 
n

/a
 

£
1

0
,4

0
0

 
2

7
1

 
£

3
8

 
n

/a
 

£
3

9
,2

0
2

 
6

5
0

 
£

6
0

 
n

/a
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

£
3

0
6

,9
9

0
 

4
7

7
 

£
6

4
4

 
n

/a
 

£
1

2
5

,9
2

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
4

6
5

 
n

/a
 

£
2

,0
6

1
,1

4
0

 
6

5
0

 
£

3
,1

7
1

 
n

/a
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 W
a

st
e

 
£

6
,8

5
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

1
4

 
n

/a
 

£
0

 
2

7
1

 
£

0
 

n
/a

 
£

0
 

6
5

0
 

£
0

 
n

/a
 

W
a

st
e

 F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
£

5
5

,2
0

0
 

4
7

7
 

£
1

1
6

 
£

1
1

6
 

£
3

6
,5

2
5

 
2

7
1

 
£

1
3

5
 

£
1

3
5

 
£

3
1

,7
1

0
 

6
5

0
 

£
4

9
 

£
4

9
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 
£

1
9

,5
0

0
 

4
7

7
 

£
4

1
 

- 
£

1
0

,9
5

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
4

0
 

- 
£

1
4

,8
5

0
 

6
5

0
 

£
2

3
 

- 

Le
g

a
l 

£
1

1
,5

2
4

 
4

7
7

 
£

2
4

 
- 

£
7

,2
2

4
 

2
7

1
 

£
2

7
 

- 
£

6
,8

8
0

 
6

5
0

 
£

1
1

 
- 

N
a

tu
re

 

C
o

n
se

rv
a

ti
o

n
 

£
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

0
 

n
/a

 
£

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
0

 
n

/a
 

£
3

8
,4

3
2

 
6

5
0

 
£

5
9

 
n

/a
 

M
is

ce
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s 

£
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

0
 

- 
£

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
0

 
- 

£
1

0
1

,9
9

2
 

6
5

0
 

£
1

5
7

 
- 

R
ig

h
ts

 o
f 

W
a

y
 

£
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

0
 

n
/a

 
£

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
0

 
n

/a
 

£
1

9
,3

1
5

 
6

5
0

 
£

3
0

 
n

/a
 

O
th

e
r 

£
0

 
4

7
7

 
£

0
 

- 
£

0
 

2
7

1
 

£
0

 
- 

£
2

0
2

,9
6

2
 

6
5

0
 

£
3

1
2

 
- 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
1

8
 S

.1
0

6
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 o

n
 a

 c
a

se
 b

y
 c

a
se

 b
a

si
s 

1
9
 I

n
cl

u
d

e
s 

F
o

rm
a

l 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
, 

In
fo

rm
a

l 
O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
, 

P
la

y
sp

a
ce

 f
o

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 a

n
d

 T
e

e
n

a
g

e
rs

, 
O

u
td

o
o

r 
S

p
o

rt
s 

F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
a

n
d

 a
ll

o
tm

e
n

ts
  

Page 316



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

 
2

0
1

2
 

2
0

1
1

 
2

0
1

0
 

  
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
2

 

N
o

. 
o

f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

1
8
 

S
e

ct
io

n
 

1
0

6
 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
1

 

N
o

. 

o
f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 

A
g

re
e

d
 

2
0

1
1

 

N
o

. 
o

f 

U
n

it
s 

£
/u

n
it

 
P

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 

li
a

b
le

 f
o

r 

S
.1

0
6

 i
f 

C
IL

 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 i

n
 

p
la

ce
 -

 

£
/u

n
it

  

 T
o

ta
l 

A
g

re
e

d
 

£
2

,0
2

2
,0

9
5

 
4

7
7

 
£

4
,2

3
9

 
£

1
,3

2
6

 
£

8
8

0
,9

9
0

 
2

7
1

 
£

3
,2

5
1

 
£

1
,2

0
7

 
£

5
,1

4
7

,5
7

1
 

6
5

0
 

£
7

,9
1

9
 

 

£
9

8
0

 

 

                     

Page 317



 

  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 –

 O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 

 

 

T
a

b
le

 2
 -

 A
n

 e
x

a
m

p
le

 o
f 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 l

a
rg

e
r 

si
te

s 
in

 r
e

ce
n

t 
y

e
a

rs
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 b
e

lo
w

 

 
C

la
y

 F
a

rm
 (

2
3

0
0

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s,
 4

0
%

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
) 

–
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
d

 

2
0

1
0

 

T
ru

m
p

in
g

to
n

 M
e

a
d

o
w

s 
(1

2
0

0
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s,

 4
0

%
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
) 

–
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
d

 2
0

1
0

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 F
a

ci
li

ti
e

s 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 l
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

a
n

d
 l

if
e

lo
n

g
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s)
 

£
3

,6
0

5
,8

0
6

 
£

4
,4

6
1

,5
9

9
 

O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
ce

 (
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 £

2
4

5
,0

0
0

 f
o

r 
in

d
o

o
r 

sp
o

rt
s 

fa
ci

li
ti

e
s)

 

£
5

,4
6

8
,7

7
3

 
£

1
,7

9
8

,8
6

3
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

  
£

6
,0

8
0

,1
4

7
 

£
1

0
,8

8
0

,7
1

4
 

E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 

£
1

8
,1

5
9

,3
9

9
 

£
1

2
,8

8
4

,6
3

1
 

W
a

st
e

 
£

8
2

4
,4

2
5

 
£

4
2

6
,9

3
5

 

P
u

b
li

c 
A

rt
 

£
8

0
5

,0
0

0
 

 

O
th

e
r 

£
1

0
6

,2
5

0
 

£
4

7
4

,0
0

0
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
3

5
,0

4
9

,8
0

0
 

£
2

3
,7

2
9

,0
2

3
 

P
e

r 
D

w
e

ll
in

g
 

£
1

5
,2

3
9

 
£

1
9

,7
4

4
 

    

Page 318



 

 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 

 

APPENDIX B  

 

Cambridge City Council 

Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Regulation 123 List 

(Version to accompany the Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule consultation) 

The infrastructure listed below will be eligible to be funded through the Community Infrastructure 

Levy. 

The Draft Regulation 123 list, as set out below, defines which projects and/or types/sections of 

infrastructure that the Council will fund through CIL revenues. It will take effect upon the 

implementation of the Council’s CIL Charging Schedule. 

The list is not definitive, and in no order of priorities, as no formal decisions have yet been taken 

to confirm how CIL funds will be allocated amongst the listed infrastructure projects. It is a list of 

infrastructure that CIL could be used to fund, subject to Council priorities and the levels of 

available CIL funding. 

Ultimately, it will be necessary to prioritise both within theme areas (e.g. strategic transport) and 

also between theme areas (e.g. education or community facilities). Factors such as whether an 

infrastructure element is essential or even required by legal statute or regulation if a development 

was to go ahead would be taken into account.  

CIL Draft Regulation 123 List - Infrastructure types and/or projects that will, or may, be funded in 

whole or in part by CIL:  

Strategic Transport Infrastructure (excluding development specific mitigation  works on, 

or directly related to, a development site) 

Education Infrastructure 

Household waste and major waste recycling facilities 

Libraries and lifelong learning facilities 

Community Facilities 

Strategic public realm improvements 

Indoor Sports Facilities 

 

Page 319



 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 

 

 

APPENDIX C – Regulation 16 Statement of Representations 

 
Cambridge City Council 

Draft Charging Schedule Consultation  

Statement of Representations Procedure 

 

Consultation 

Cambridge City Council hereby gives notice that it intends to submit a Community Infrastructure 

Levy Draft Charging Schedule for public examination, under Section 212 of the Planning Act 2008.  

 

In accordance with Regulation 16 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 

amended) the Cambridge City Council is inviting representations on its Draft Charging Schedule.  

 

The following documents, and relevant supporting evidence on viability and infrastructure are 

available for inspection: 

· Cambridge City Council Draft Charging Schedule Consultation Document, including the 

Cambridge City Council Draft Charging Schedule and Draft Regulation 123 list; 

· Statement of consultation on the Cambridge City Council CIL Preliminary Draft Charging 

Schedule 

 

Consultation Period  

MONDAY, OCTOBER 28
th

 2013 – MONDAY, DECEMBER 9
th

 2013 

In accordance with Regulation 17(2)(a), any representations must be made within this period. 

 

Availability of Consultation Documents  

The Draft Charging Schedule Consultation Document, which includes the Draft Charging Schedule 

and supporting documents are available for inspection: 

· Online on the Cambridge City Council website: 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy  

· At Cambridge City Council’s Customer Service Centre at Mandela House, 4 Regent Street, 

Cambridge, CB2 1BY from 8am-5.15pm on Mondays, and 9am–5.15pm on Tuesdays, 

Wednesdays, Thursdays and Fridays. 

 

Submission of Representations 

Representations should be made using: 

· The online response system available on the City Council website http://cambridge.jdi-

consult.net/ldf/;  

 

A paper response form is also available. The completed form should be returned; 

· by email to policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk; or, 

· by post to CIL Draft Charging Schedule Consultation, Planning Policy Team, Cambridge City 

Council, PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 0JH  

 

Withdrawal of Representations 

Any person making representations on the Draft Charging Schedule may withdraw those 

Page 320



 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 

 

 

representations at any time by giving notice to Cambridge City Council in writing to the address 

above. 

 

CIL Examination: right to be heard  

Any person making representations on the Draft Charging Schedule may request the right to be 

heard by the Examiner at the Community Infrastructure Levy public examination. Anyone who 

wishes to be heard must make a request to Cambridge City Council in writing before the end of 

the consultation period (midnight on 9
th

 December 2013). 

 

Notifications 

Any person making representations may request that they be notified at a specified address of any 

of the following: 

· That the Draft Charging Schedule has been submitted to the examiner in accordance with 

section 212 of the Planning Act 2008; 

· The publication of the recommendations of the examiner and the reasons for those 

recommendations; and, 

· The approval of the charging schedule by Cambridge City Council. 

 

Further Information or Enquiries 

For further information or enquiries about the Cambridge City Council Community 

Infrastructure Levy, please contact the Planning Policy Team by email at 

policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk or by phone at 01223 457000 

Statutory Compliance 

This Statement of Representations Procedure has been produced and published in accordance 

with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) and Part 11 of the 

Planning Act 2008 (as amended). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 321



 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 

 

 

APPENDIX D – Draft Instalment Policy 

 

Cambridge City Council 

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Instalment Policy 

(Draft) 

This Instalment Policy will take effect on xx/xx/xxxx 

Cambridge City Council as Charging Authority for its area will permit the payment of CIL liability by 

instalment in accordance with Regulation 69B of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as 

amended).  

Level of CIL Payable  Number of 

Instalments 

Potential Instalment Policy 

Under £25,000  1 Full amount payable within 60 days of 

commencement of development 

£25,000 or greater but less 

than  £100,000  

2 50% payable within 120 day of commencement 

50% payable within 240 days of commencement  

£100,000 or greater but less 

than £250,000  

3 20% payable within 120 days of commencement 

40% payable within 240 day of commencement 

40% payable within 360 days of commencement 

£250,000 or greater but less 

than £500,000  

4 10% payable within 120 days of commencement 

30% payable within 240 days of commencement 

40% payable within 540 days of commencement 

20% payable within 720 days of commencement 

£500,000 or greater  4 10% payable within 120 days of commencement 

30% payable within 360 days of commencement 

40% payable within 720 days of commencement 

20% payable within 900 days of commencement 

 

As permitted under Regulation 9(4) of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended), 

where outline permission has been granted which permits development to be implemented in phases, each 

phase of the development as permitted by Cambridge City Council is a separate chargeable development, 

and the Instalment Policy will therefore apply to each chargeable development and the associated separate 

chargeable amount. 

 

CIL Instalment Policy Advice 

The requirements set out in Regulation 70 of the CIL Regulations must be complied with if the persons 

liable for paying CIL wish to do so by instalment, in accordance with this published Instalment Policy. 

Page 322



 
 Community Infrastructure Levy Draft Charging Schedule – October 2013 

 

 

This Instalment Policy only applies where: 

1. The Council has received a CIL Assumption of Liability form prior to the commencement of the 

chargeable development (Regulation 70(1)(a)), and 

2. The Council has received a CIL Commencement Notice prior to commencement of the chargeable 

development (Regulation 70(1)(b)) and the Council does not challenge the date of commencement 

specified. 

If the above requirements are not met, the CIL liability is payable in full at the end of the period of 60 days 

beginning with the intended commencement date of the chargeable development. 

Where the above requirements have been met, instalment payments must be made in accordance with this 

Instalment Policy. Where an instalment is not received in full on or before the day on which it is due, the 

unpaid balance of the CIL liability becomes payable in full immediately (Regulation 70(8)(a)). 

To summarise, in order to be eligible to pay a CIL liability by instalment, all the relevant forms must be 

submitted to the Council prior to the commencement of the chargeable development, and all the payments 

must be made in accordance with this CIL Instalment Policy and Regulatory requirements.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 323



Page 324

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule – 

Statement of Consultation (Draft Version) 
 

October 2013 
 

 

 

Page 325



 

 

Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule - Statement of Consultation 

1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this document, in line with the Community Infrastructure Levy 

Regulations (as amended), is to set out the consultation methods and engagement 

with the local community that has taken place in relation to the development of the 

Council’s Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  

 

1.2 In order for CIL to be adopted, it is required by the CIL Regulations 2010 (as amended) 

that the Council holds a minimum of two rounds of public consultation.  

 

· The first round of public consultation was the Preliminary Draft Charging 

Schedule (PDCS), which was carried out from 18 March 2013 and 29 April 2013 

· The second round of public consultation will be on the Draft Charging Schedule 

(DCS).  

 

1.3  In addition, on 6 November 2012, the Council carried out a CIL engagement workshop 

with developers, commercial agents, planning agents and other interested 

stakeholders. This was an informal public consultation event, prior to the preparation 

of the DCS, that allowed the Council and its viability consultants to gauge the opinions 

of the developers, local community and other organisations with an interest in 

development in the city.  

 

1.4 Regulations 15 and 16 of the CIL Regulations specify the consultation bodies that the 

Council must consult for the PDCS and DCS. The Council has consulted beyond the 

statutory minimum requirement to ensure that a wider range of consultation bodies 

were given the opportunity to make representations.  

 

2. Consultation on Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule 

2.1 The purpose of the PDCS was to allow developers, land owners, businesses and local 

communities to make representations on the initial proposed draft charging schedule 

for a CIL in Cambridge. This was the first stage of consultation required by the CIL 

Regulations. The consultation on the PDCS was held between 18 March 2013 to 29 

April 2013.  

 

2.2 The Council complied with Regulation 15 of the CIL Regulations in terms of the 

requirements for consultation on the PDCS. Regulation 15 sets out that a charging 

authority must send a copy of the PDCS to each of the consultation bodies, and invite 

them to make representations on it. In addition, the Council has also invited 

representations on the PDCS from persons who are residents or carry on business in 

the borough, including voluntary bodies and bodies that represent the interests of 

persons carrying on business in the borough.  

 

2.3 The following methods of consultation were used: 

Page 326



 

 

· Public notice in the Cambridge Evening News 18/03/2013 (Appendix 3); 

· Letter/e-mail notification to the consultees; and, 

· Information about the consultation, including documents and how to respond, 

on the Council’s public website. 

 

2.4 The locations of where the PDCS was made available for inspection: 

· Cambridge City Council’s Customer Service Centre 

 

Consultation Statistics 

2.5 A total of 22 respondents made representations to this consultation and raised a total 

of 107 comments. The table below provide a breakdown of the type of respondent: 

 

Table 1 – Type of CIL respondent 

Type of Respondent Number of 

Respondents 

Developers or representatives 5 

University of Cambridge and colleges/Anglia 

Ruskin Universtiy/Schools or representatives 

7 

Residents Associations/Parish Councils 1 

Other agencies or authorities 7 

Individuals 1 

 

2.6 The PDCS consultation raised four key consultation questions. A summary of all 

comments received and detailed officer responses can be found at Appendix 1. The 

following is a broad summary of the key issues raised in response to the consultation:  

 

Question 1: Do you agree with the assumptions and methodology used in the CIL 

Viability Assessment? If not please explain why? 

Key Issues: 

o Further work is required to relate the list of infrastructure projects and the 

delivery of the levels of growth proposed. The Infrastructure Delivery Study is 

aspirational rather than a route map for delivery 

o Detailed comments on the viability testing and assumptions used, including; 

professional fees; finance costs; build costs; S106; and fees 

o A viability buffer should be incorporated into the benchmark land value 

o Concerns were raised that the coloured tables used in the Viability Assessment 

are misleading. Request further explanation of the analysis of the results that was 

undertaken to arrive at CIL rates 

 

Question 2: Do you agree with the proposed CIL rates for, (a)residential 

development; (b) retail; (c) student accommodation, and; (d) all other uses? 

Key Issues: 

o Detailed comments on the viability testing and assumptions used, including; 

professional fees; finance costs; build costs; S106; and fees 

o A single residential charging rate will jeopardise the delivery of housing in low 

Page 327



 

 

value areas. There is no clear case for a single rather than a zoned level of CIL.  

o The residential CIL rates proposed is too high, especially when composed with 

neighbouring districts 

o The retail rate should be zero 

o The student accommodation rate is too high 

o A nil rate on commercial premises is unrealistic given the buoyancy of the 

Cambridge market and the fact that S.106 monies have been received from 

commercial/office development in the past. All other uses should be making a 

sensible CIL contribution 

 

Question 3: Do you have any views on how the Council should apply an instalment 

policy (In accordance with Regulation 69b of the CIL Regulations)? Please give 

reasoning with your answers.  

Key Issues: 

o A Draft Instalment Policy should be published for comment at the Draft Charging 

Schedule Consultation Stage. The timing and scale of the initial and subsequent 

contributions should vary depending on the scale of the CIL liability. There should 

be an overriding mechanism in that where the CIL payment threatens the viability 

of a scheme it  could be negotiated and agreed on a one to one basis 

o A charge in full should be levied at the assigned date to avoid deferrals 

experienced with S106 levies in the past 

o The 60 day collection period would be too short 

 

Question 4: Do you have any other comments on the PDCS or evidence base 

documents? Please provide reasoning with your answers.  

Key Issues: 

o The Council should review its approach to discretionary relief for charities. A 

discretionary policy would encourage investment and development 

o The interrelationship between CIL and S.106 including the connection between 

the proposed charges and infrastructure requirements – potential issues of 

‘Double counting’ of S.106 contributions and CIL, which is not permitted by law 

o The Council should consult on a Draft Regulation 123 list as soon as possible to 

ensure the views of landowners and developers are taken on board 

o The Council should have a clear defined review mechanism 

o The Council should have an exceptional circumstances policy 

 

 

3. Consultation on the Draft Charging Schedule 

3.1 A consultation on the Cambridge Draft Charging Schedule (DCS) will take place from 

28
th

 October to 14
th

 December 2013. The purpose of this round of consultation is to 

get the opinions of local communities, developers and businesses on the final 

proposed charging schedule.  

 

3.2 In line with Regulation 16 of the CIL regulations, before submitting the DCS for 

Examination, the Council, as the Charging Authority (CA), is required to publish for 

Page 328



 

 

consultation the DCS along with the relevant evidence on infrastructure costs, other 

funding sources and economic viability. The CA is also required to publish a statement 

of the representations procedure, and a statement of the fact that the draft charging 

schedule and relevant evidence are available for inspection and of the places at which 

they can be inspected. 

 

3.3 This will be the final stage of consultation before the Examination of the DCS, unless 

further modifications are required, prior to examination. Any further modifications 

would be subject to a separate consultation/notification process.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 329



  

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 S

u
m

m
a

ry
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

P
D

C
S

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
s 

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
: 

D
o

 y
o

u
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

 u
se

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t?

 I
f 

n
o

t 
p

le
a

se
 e

x
p

la
in

 w
h

y
. 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y 

2
5

2
3

0
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

G
re

a
te

r 
cl

a
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
ra

n
sp

a
re

n
cy

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
fu

n
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 

ID
S

 i
s 

a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
 

ro
u

te
 m

a
p

 f
o

r 
d

e
li

v
e

ry
. 

 

 F
u

rt
h

e
r 

cl
a

ri
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 i
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 o
n

 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 u

n
d

e
rl

y
in

g
 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 C
IL

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 

th
re

a
te

n
 e

co
n

o
m

ic
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
: 

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 A
g

re
e

 t
h

a
t 

2
0

%
 o

f 
G

ro
ss

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

V
a

lu
e

 

(G
D

V
) 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
fe

e
s:

 r
a

te
 o

f 
1

0
%

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

1
2

%
 w

o
u

ld
 m

o
re

 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 o

u
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 

 N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 I
D

S
 w

il
l 
b

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
T

h
e

 

ID
S

 w
a

s 
n

e
v
e

r 
in

te
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

n
 i

n
v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

co
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 D

ra
ft

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 1
2

3
 l

is
t 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
T

h
e

 l
is

t 
is

 n
o

t 
d

e
fi

n
it

iv
e

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 n
o

 o
rd

e
r 

o
f 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s,
 a

s 
n

o
 

fo
rm

a
l 
d

e
ci

si
o

n
s 

h
a

ve
 y

e
t 

b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 c

o
n

fi
rm

 h
o

w
 C

IL
 f

u
n

d
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 

a
ll

o
ca

te
d

 a
m

o
n

g
st

 t
h

e
 l

is
te

d
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s.
 I

t 
is

 a
 l

is
t 

o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
se

d
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
, 

su
b

je
ct

 t
o

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
a

v
a

il
a

b
le

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

in
g

. 

U
lt

im
a

te
ly

, 
it

 w
il

l 
b

e
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 t

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

se
 b

o
th

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
m

e
 a

re
a

s 
(e

.g
. 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
) 

a
n

d
 a

ls
o

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
m

e
 a

re
a

s 
(e

.g
. 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
 o

r 

co
m

m
u

n
it

y
 f

a
ci

lit
ie

s)
. 

F
a

ct
o

rs
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

a
n

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
is

 

e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
o

r 
e

v
e

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y

 le
g

a
l 

st
a

tu
te

 o
r 

re
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 i

f 
a

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
a

s 
to

 g
o

 a
h

e
a

d
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 i

n
to

 a
cc

o
u

n
t.

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 N
o

te
d

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
F

e
e

s:
 A

t 
1

0
%

 t
h

is
 i

s 
a

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li
sh

e
d

 m
a

rk
e

t 
n

o
rm

. 
ty

p
e

 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
s 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
th

is
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
st

u
d

y
. 

A
s 

w
it

h
 a

ll
 o

th
e

r 

Page 330



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 I

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
fe

e
s 

fo
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 a

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 s

e
e

n
. 

A
n

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 

o
f 

7
.5

%
 f

o
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 f

e
e

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
 

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 P
a

ra
 2

.6
.4

 o
f 

th
e

 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

st
a

te
s 

th
a

t 

5
.8

5
%

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
u

il
d

 

co
st

s 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 f
o

r 
su

st
a

in
a

b
le

 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 c

o
st

s.
 I

t 
is

 u
n

cl
e

a
r 

w
h

a
t 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 

a
n

d
 w

e
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 c

la
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
. 

A
ls

o
 

n
o

te
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
fo

r 
st

u
d

e
n

t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
ly

 a
d

d
s 

5
%

 f
o

r 

B
R

E
E

A
M

 a
n

d
 i

s 
th

e
re

fo
re

 

in
co

n
si

st
e

n
t 

S
.1

0
6

: 
G

re
a

te
r 

cl
a

ri
ty

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 o
n

 

w
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

.1
0

6
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
IL

. 

U
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
co

m
m

e
n

ta
ry

 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s,
 i
n

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 t

h
e

 c
a

se
 s

p
e

ci
fi

cs
 w

il
l 

v
a

ry
 b

u
t 

th
is

 i
s 

a
b

o
u

t 

m
a

k
in

g
 a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 o
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

n
d

 h
a

s 
p

ro
v
e

n
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

st
 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
su

ch
 s

tu
d

ie
s.

 I
n

 a
ls

o
 d

e
a

li
n

g
 w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
sc

h
e

m
e

-

sp
e

ci
fi

cs
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

tr
y

, 
D

S
P

 h
a

v
e

 f
o

u
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 t
h

is
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 

li
e

s 
in

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 s
a

y
 3

 t
o

 1
2

%
, 

b
u

t 
w

it
h

 m
o

st
 a

t 
5

 t
o

 1
0

%
 a

n
d

 l
o

w
e

r 
to

 m
id

-

ra
n

g
e

 e
xa

m
p

le
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

is
 r

a
n

g
e

 n
o

t 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ri
ly

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 s
m

a
ll

e
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
s.

 I
n

 t
h

e
 c

a
se

 o
f 

m
a

n
y

 l
a

rg
e

r 
sc

h
e

m
e

s,
 w

h
il

st
 o

th
e

r 
co

st
s 

a
sp

e
ct

s 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 m
a

y
 g

ro
w

, 
it

 i
s 

a
ls

o
 l

ik
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
re

p
e

ti
ti

o
n

 o
f 

d
e

si
g

n
s 

e
tc

. 

w
il

l 
b

ri
n

g
 s

o
m

e
 b

a
la

n
ce

 t
o

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 c
o

st
s 

p
ic

tu
re

 

 B
e

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

 m
in

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 w

h
o

le
 s

tu
d

y
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

s 
n

o
t 

ju
st

 a
b

o
u

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s,
 

it
 

is
 

m
o

st
 

im
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
th

e
 

co
ll
e

ct
io

n
 

o
f 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s,
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y 

in
te

ra
ct

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
a

k
e

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 h
ig

h
-l

e
v
e

l 
o

v
e

rv
ie

w
. 

In
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
te

xt
, 

it
 s

h
o

u
ld

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 n

o
te

d
 f

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 t

h
a

t 
D

S
P

 h
a

s 
m

a
d

e
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
su

rv
e

y
 c

o
st

s 
 a

n
d

 

h
a

s 
a

ls
o

 v
a

ri
e

d
 t

h
e

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 (
in

cr
e

a
se

d
 f

ro
m

 5
 t

o
 7

%
) 

w
h

e
re

 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 

 

In
 D

S
P

’s
 v

ie
w

 a
n

d
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

, 
o

n
 b

a
la

n
ce

 t
h

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 8
 t

o
 1

0
%

 p
ro

b
a

b
ly

 b
e

st
 

su
m

m
a

ri
se

s 
th

e
 p

la
ci

n
g

 o
f 

th
is

 f
e

e
 c

o
st

s 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 a
n

d
, 

a
ll

 i
n

 a
ll

, 

1
0

%
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 a
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

it
. 

In
 t

h
e

 u
su

a
l 

w
a

y
, 

si
te

-b
y
-s

it
e

 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
n

e
g

o
ti

a
ti

o
n

s 
w

o
u

ld
 p

ic
k
 u

p
 o

n
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
a

n
y

 a
b

n
o

rm
a

l 
co

st
s 

n
o

t 
u

su
a

ll
y

 d
e

a
lt

 w
it

h
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
. 

 

F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 W

it
h

 D
S
P

 p
la

ci
n

g
 t

h
is

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
t 

7
.0

%
 t

h
is

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ts
 a

 

Page 331



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

£
1

0
0

0
 p

e
r 

u
n

it
 i

s 
su

g
g

e
st

e
d

 b
u

t,
 f

o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
, 

u
n

d
e

r 
st

u
d

e
n

t 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 n

o
 f

ig
u

re
 i

s 
g

iv
e

n
. 

1
%

 f
o

r 
A

rt
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 f

a
ct

o
re

d
 

in
to

 t
h

e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 i
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
te

n
d

s 
to

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r:
 A

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
u

ff
e

r 
a

g
a

in
st

 a
n

y
 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

n
e

w
 o

r 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 p

o
li

cy
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s.

 T
h

is
 

b
u

ff
e

r 
a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 a

ct
u

a
l 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 c

o
st

s 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 

th
o

se
 u

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s.

 

si
m

il
a

r 
v
ie

w
 t

o
 t

h
a

t 
p

u
t 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
. 

D
S

P
 w

o
u

ld
 n

o
t 

e
xp

e
ct

 t
o

 

b
e

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

ll
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

p
u

t 
fo

rw
a

rd
 b

y 
a

n
o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

y
; 

v
a

ri
a

n
ce

s 

to
 s

o
m

e
 d

e
g

re
e

 a
re

 q
u

it
e

 u
su

a
l.

 A
n

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
t 

a
ro

u
n

d
 7

%
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 
b

e
e

n
 

q
u

e
ri

e
d

 o
r 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 u

n
so

u
n

d
 i
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s 

st
u

d
ie

s.
 I

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
D

S
P

’s
 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 a

cr
o

ss
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
si

te
-s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
, 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

6
%

 o
r 

le
ss

 t
o

 7
-7

.5
%

 i
s 

se
e

n
; 

7
%

 b
e

in
g

 a
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

 

m
a

rk
e

t 
n

o
rm

 t
y

p
e

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

o
n

fi
d

e
n

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 

u
se

d
 a

n
d

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
a

re
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 i

n
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 
m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
is

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 

o
v
e

rv
ie

w
. 

 

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 I
t 

is
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
m

a
k
e

s 
cl

e
a

r 
w

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 
a

ss
u

m
e

d
, 

n
o

ti
n

g
 

th
a

t 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 
I 

to
 

th
e

 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
im

e
d

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

to
o

. 

In
 

su
m

m
a

ry
, 

th
e

 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 

in
 

re
sp

e
ct

 
o

f 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 

co
st

 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
su

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y

 a
re

:  

§
 

B
a

se
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 –

 C
fS

H
4

 c
o

st
s 

a
ss

u
m

e
d

, 
b

y
 a

d
d

in
g

 5
.8

5
%

 t
o

 P
a

rt
 L

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 R
e

g
.s

 2
0

1
0

 b
a

se
li

n
e

. 
 

In
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

, 
th

e
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s 
w

e
re

 
a

d
d

e
d

 
to

 
th

e
 

sa
m

e
 

b
a

se
li

n
e

 i
n

 r
e

sp
e

ct
 o

f:
 

- 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

5
.5

%
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 
w

a
te

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 e

q
u

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
a

t 
a

sp
e

ct
 o

f 
C

fS
H

5
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 c

o
st

s,
 

Page 332



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
n

d
; 

- 
£

3
,5

0
0

 p
e

r 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

n
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 

fo
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
co

st
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

p
o

li
cy

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
in

k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 s
tu

d
y

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
re

 f
ir

st
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 

T
h

is
 

m
a

y
 

b
e

 
re

g
a

rd
e

d
 

a
s 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 a
li

g
n

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 o

r 
in

d
e

e
d

 a
n

y 
o

th
e

r 
co

st
s 

a
re

a
. 

§
 

S
e

n
si

ti
v
it

y
 t

e
st

in
g

 –
 F

u
ll
 C

fS
H

5
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 c
o

st
s 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 b

y
 

1
5

%
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 2

0
1

0
 b

a
se

li
n

e
 a

n
d

 a
g

a
in

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 £
3

,5
0

0
/d

w
e

ll
in

g
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

s/
o

th
e

r 
co

st
. 

§
 

T
h

e
 s

im
il

a
r 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
co

st
 e

n
h

a
n

ce
m

e
n

t 
(f

o
r 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

fa
ct

o
rs

) 
o

f 
5

%
 f

o
r 

B
R

E
E

A
M

 (
co

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
fS

H
4

) 
is

 
n

o
t 

in
co

n
si

st
e

n
t;

 
a

s 
a

 
n

o
n

-r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
, 

a
n

d
 

in
 

co
m

m
o

n
 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
o

th
e

r 
n

o
n

-r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
/ 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
s 

te
st

in
g

, 
B

R
E

E
A

M
 

w
a

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 
to

 
b

e
 

a
 

m
o

re
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

fe
re

n
ce

 -
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
n

 f
a

ct
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 w
a

s 
v
e

ry
 s

im
il

a
r.

 T
h

e
 N

H
B

C
 w

e
b

-s
it

e
 s

ta
te

s 
th

a
t 

‘B
R

E
E

A
M

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

su
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
n

o
t 

co
v
e

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

C
o

d
e

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
st

u
d

e
n

t 
a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 l
iv

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
-

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
o

ff
ic

e
s,

 r
e

ta
il
, 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 
u

n
it

s’
. 

 S
.1

0
6

: 
N

o
te

d
, 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

te
n

d
s 

to
 

p
u

b
li

sh
 

a
n

d
 

co
n

su
lt

 
o

n
 

a
 

D
ra

ft
 

Page 333



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il
s 

o
f 

h
o

w
 S

.1
0

6
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 C
IL

 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

a
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t,
 t

h
is

 

w
il

l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S
P

D
. 

 

 V
ia

b
il

it
y

 B
u

ff
e

r:
  

D
S

P
’s

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 f
o

u
n

d
 r

o
b

u
st

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 C

IL
 E

IP
s 

to
 d

a
te

 i
s 

to
 l

o
o

k
 m

o
re

 w
id

e
ly

 a
t 

th
e

 a
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

cu
sh

io
n

in
g

 /
 b

u
ff

e
ri

n
g

, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 k
e

y
 a

sp
e

ct
 a

n
d

 r
e

fl
e

ct
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

 n
o

t 
to

 s
e

t 
C

IL
 

ra
te

s 
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
rg

in
s 

o
f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

; 
b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 n

o
ti

n
g

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 C
IL

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 

in
v
o

lv
e

 
a

cc
e

p
ta

n
ce

 
th

a
t 

a
ll

 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 
e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 
to

 

re
m

a
in

 v
ia

b
le

. 
 

D
S

P
’s

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

o
b

u
st

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 i
s 

n
o

t 
si

m
p

ly
 t

o
 l

o
o

k
 a

t 
a

 m
a

xi
m

u
m

 

th
e

o
re

ti
ca

l 
o

r 
si

m
il

a
rl

y
 n

a
m

e
d

 t
y

p
e

 C
IL

 r
a

te
 (

w
h

ic
h

 m
a

y
 i

n
 i

ts
e

lf
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 

th
e

o
re

ti
ca

ll
y

 
a

ch
ie

v
a

b
le

 
b

a
se

d
 

o
n

 
u

n
d

e
li

ve
ra

b
le

 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s)

 
a

n
d

 
th

e
n

 

a
p

p
ly

 a
n

 a
rb

it
ra

ry
 l

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
d

is
co

u
n

t 
to

 t
h

a
t.

 D
S

P
 f

in
d

s 
th

a
t 

ca
n

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 a
 

v
e

ry
 

w
id

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 
fr

o
m

 
w

h
ic

h
 

to
 

p
lu

ck
 

fi
g

u
re

s,
 

a
n

d
 

ca
n

 
a

ls
o

 
le

a
d

 
to

 

u
n

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 

(b
u

t 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
a

b
le

) 
C

IL
 

ra
te

s 
e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
s 

fr
o

m
 

lo
ca

l 

m
e

m
b

e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

rs
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 f
u

ll
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 w

it
h

 g
ro

w
th

. 
In

st
e

a
d

, 
D

S
P

 p
re

fe
rs

 a
n

d
 h

a
s 

re
li

a
b

ly
 i

n
fo

rm
e

d
 i

ts
 

cl
ie

n
t’

s 
C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
s 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
 t

w
o

fo
ld

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 m
a

k
in

g
 

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

a
re

 n
o

t 
se

t 
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
rg

in
s 

o
f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

: 

1
. 

R
e

a
li

st
ic

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
se

tt
in

g
; 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
 l

a
y

e
re

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 t

o
 c

o
st

s 

Page 334



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 v
a

ri
o

u
s 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
ci

e
s,

 f
u

ll
 p

ro
fi

ts
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s,
 s

e
n

si
ti

v
it

ie
s 

to
 v

a
lu

e
s 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s,

 e
tc

.,
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
s 

n
o

te
d

 a
b

o
ve

. 
 

2
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

g
e

n
e

ra
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

a
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
te

xt
 o

f 
a

 s
ca

le
 

o
f 

sa
le

s 
v
a

lu
e

s 
(V

a
lu

e
s 

le
v
e

ls
 –

 V
Ls

) 
a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

la
n

d
 

v
a

lu
e

s.
 T

h
is

 i
s 

sh
o

w
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t’
s 

re
su

lt
s 

ta
b

le
s 

a
n

d
 i

s 

a
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
 
in

 
th

e
 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
te

xt
. 

T
h

e
 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 
a

n
d

 p
ro

ce
ss

 

a
ll

o
w

s 
D

S
P

 
a

n
d

 
in

 
th

is
 

ca
se

 
th

e
 

C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

to
 

a
ss

e
ss

 
th

e
 

co
n

fi
d

e
n

ce
 l

e
v
e

ls
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

re
su

lt
s,

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
ce

 o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
re

su
lt

s 
a

re
a

s 
to

 l
o

ca
l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 P
la

n
 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 e

n
a

b
le

s 
fu

ll
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
s 

a
n

d
 

co
n

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 
w

it
h

 
va

ri
o

u
s 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 

st
ra

te
g

ie
s 

g
iv

e
n

 
th

a
t 

th
e

re
 

a
re

 
o

ft
e

n
 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

to
 

d
is

cu
ss

 
in

 
w

e
ig

h
in

g
-u

p
 

th
e

 
m

o
st

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 l
o

ca
l 

b
a

la
n

ce
. 

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 

B
u

rs
a

rs
’ 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

2
5

2
5

3
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 A
g

re
e

 t
h

a
t 

2
0

%
 o

f 
G

ro
ss

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

V
a

lu
e

 

(G
D

V
) 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
d

o
p

te
d

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
fe

e
s:

 r
a

te
 o

f 
1

0
%

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

1
2

%
 w

o
u

ld
 m

o
re

 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 o

u
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 N
o

te
d

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
F

e
e

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

 F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

(2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li
a

 R
u

sk
in

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 

Page 335



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 I

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
fe

e
s 

fo
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 a

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 s

e
e

n
. 

A
n

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 

o
f 

7
.5

%
 f

o
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 f

e
e

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
 

S
.1

0
6

: 
G

re
a

te
r 

cl
a

ri
ty

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 o
n

 

w
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

.1
0

6
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
IL

. 
A

t 

p
re

se
n

t 
th

e
re

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 

b
e

 a
n

y
 S

.1
0

6
 a

cc
o

u
n

te
d

 f
o

r 
in

 t
h

e
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r:
 A

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
u

ff
e

r 
a

g
a

in
st

 a
n

y
 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

n
e

w
 o

r 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 p

o
li

cy
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 

S
.1

0
6

: 
N

o
te

d
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
te

n
d

s 
to

 p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
 o

n
 a

 D
ra

ft
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S
P

D
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 e

xa
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il
s 

o
f 

h
o

w
 S

.1
0

6
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 C
IL

 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 

a
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t,
 t

h
is

 

w
il

l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S
P

D
. 

T
h

e
 s

.1
0

6
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 i

s 
£

1
0

0
0

 p
e

r 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 i

n
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

s.
1

0
6

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 i

s 
a

 t
y

p
ic

a
l 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
t 

th
is

 s
tu

d
y

 l
e

v
e

l,
 a

s 
fo

u
n

d
 

su
it

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

st
 i

n
 o

th
e

r 
ca

se
s;

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

b
a

si
s 

th
a

t 
C

IL
 w

o
u

ld
 l

a
rg

e
ly

 r
e

p
la

ce
 s

.1
0

6
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 a
cr

o
ss

 s
m

a
ll
e

r 

a
n

d
 

n
o

n
-s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

ty
p

e
 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

a
s 

a
re

 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 

su
p

p
ly

. 
It

 i
s 

a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

si
d

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s 

a
n

d
 s

o
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 

b
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
co

ll
e

ct
iv

e
 c

o
st

s 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s;
 a

s 

d
o

e
s 

th
e

 
£

4
0

0
,0

0
0

/h
a

 
in

p
u

t 
fo

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

w
o

rk
s 

o
n

 
th

e
 

la
rg

e
r 

si
te

s 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
m

a
d

e
 i

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
b

u
il

d
 c

o
st

s,
 b

u
il
d

 

co
st

 u
p

li
ft

s,
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s 
a

n
d

 a
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s.

1
0

6
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s 

a
g

a
in

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 l

a
rg

e
r  

sc
h

e
m

e
 s

ce
n

a
ri

o
s 

(s
e

e
 L

o
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

IL
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

se
ct

io
n

 2
.1

0
.1

).
 F

ro
m

 D
S

P
’s

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 i

t 
is

 d
e

b
a

ta
b

le
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 f
u

ll
 £

4
0

0
,0

0
0

/h
a

 a
ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
t 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
a

p
p

ra
is

e
d

, 
n

e
v
e

rt
h

e
le

ss
 a

g
a

in
 t

h
e

 v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e

n
 w

a
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
co

st
s 

a
t 

th
e

 
v
e

ry
 

le
a

st
 

a
d

d
e

d
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 
/ 

b
u

ff
e

ri
n

g
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l,
 

a
n

d
 

/ 
o

r 
m

o
re

 
g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

 
re

fl
e

ct
e

d
 

Page 336



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s.

 T
h

is
 

b
u

ff
e

r 
a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 a

ct
u

a
l 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 c

o
st

s 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 

th
o

se
 u

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s.

 

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 F
ro

m
 t

h
e

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

co
st

s 
fo

r 
a

 1
0

0
 u

n
it

 s
ch

e
m

e
 i

s 

£
4

,3
3

4
,6

7
0

, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
fl

e
ct

s 
£

4
3

,3
4

7
 

p
e

r 
ro

o
m

. 
In

 t
h

e
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 

B
E

P
S

C
 t

h
is

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll

y
 

b
e

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

 m
in

d
 (

i)
 t

h
e

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 

li
st

e
d

 s
ta

tu
s 

o
f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 in
 C

a
m

b
s 

C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
ii

) 
th

e
 l
o

n
g

 T
e

rm
 v

ie
w

 

th
e

 B
E

P
S

C
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 (
ii

i)
h

ig
h

 

q
u

a
li
ty

 d
e

si
g

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 

b
e

li
e

v
e

 £
1

1
0

,0
0

0
 0

 £
1

3
0

,0
0

 i
s 

m
o

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 a
n

d
 a

re
 h

a
p

p
y

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 a

t 
th

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 t
im

e
. 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
w

h
e

re
 s

u
ch

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

s 
co

u
ld

 b
e

 a
p

p
li

ca
b

le
. 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 B
u

ff
e

r:
  

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 A
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
’ 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 p
ro

ce
ss

 (
w

o
rk

sh
o

p
, 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
m

e
e

ti
n

g
s 

in
 D

e
ce

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
2

 a
n

d
 f

o
ll
o

w
-u

p
 p

e
ri

o
d

) 
e

xa
m

p
le

 v
a

lu
e

s,
 

co
st

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s 

so
u

g
h

t 
fr

o
m

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
a

rt
ie

s 

in
v
o

lv
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

m
a

rk
e

t,
 i
n

cl
u

d
in

g
 f

ro
m

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

s 

o
f 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
/C

o
ll

e
g

e
s 

a
t 

th
e

 s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 

 N
o

 f
e

e
d

b
a

ck
 w

a
s 

re
ce

iv
e

d
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
s 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 r
e

la
te

d
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
s 

a
 r

e
su

lt
 o

f 
th

a
t.

 

F
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 

B
u

rs
a

rs
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
ta

ct
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
n

t,
 

a
g

a
in

 t
o

 r
e

q
u

e
st

 /
 i
n

v
it

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
il
d

 c
o

st
s 

le
v
e

ls
 

re
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 i

n
 t

h
e

ir
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 i

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
ce

iv
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

p
ly

 h
a

s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 b
u

t 
w

a
s 

n
o

t 
co

m
p

a
ra

b
le

 o
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
v
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 C

IL
 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

u
rp

o
se

s,
 b

e
in

g
 l

im
it

e
d

 t
o

 w
h

o
le

 s
ch

e
m

e
 c

o
st

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 t
o

 a
 

sm
a

ll
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
sc

h
e

m
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
 s

o
m

e
 y

e
a

rs
 a

g
o

. 
W

h
il

st
 t

h
a

t 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 C

IL
 l

ia
b

le
 i

n
 a

n
y

 e
ve

n
t,

  
th

e
 f

ig
u

re
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 w
e

re
 

n
o

t 
su

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
co

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 a
n

d
 d

id
 n

o
t 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

 a
 n

e
w

-b
u

il
d

s 
co

st
 

v
ie

w
. 

 

In
 t

h
e

 a
b

se
n

ce
 o

f 
su

ch
 l

o
ca

ll
y

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
, 

a
s 

w
it

h
 o

th
e

r 
a

re
a

s 
o

f 

Page 337



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

th
e

 s
tu

d
y

, 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
ly

 D
S

P
 h

a
s 

u
se

d
 t

h
e

 e
st

a
b

ls
ih

e
d

 k
e

y
 s

o
u

rc
e

 o
f 

b
u

il
d

 

co
st

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
fo

r 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

u
rp

o
se

s;
 B

C
IS

 –
 i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 a
 1

3
%

 

u
p

li
ft

 t
o

 b
a

se
 f

ig
u

re
s 

re
fl

e
ct

in
g

 it
s 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

 a
d

ju
st

m
e

n
t 

fa
ct

o
r.

' 

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll
 

G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

2
5

2
5

7
 

O
b

je
ct

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 N
o

te
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

fi
t 

o
f 

2
0

%
 o

n
 

G
ro

ss
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

V
a

lu
e

 (
G

D
V

).
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

6
%

 p
ro

fi
t 

o
n

 

co
st

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

is
 u

n
re

a
li

st
ic

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
t 

a
 r

e
ce

n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 

to
 L

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
n

o
r,

 S
h

in
fi

e
ld

, 

R
e

a
d

in
g

. 
D

S
P

’s
 i
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

f 
2

0
%

 

p
ro

fi
t 

o
n

 G
D

V
 f

o
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

a
n

d
 6

%
 p

ro
fi

t 
o

n
 c

o
st

 f
o

r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 e

q
u

a
te

s 
to

 a
 

b
le

n
d

e
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

o
f 

1
7

.5
%

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

fa
r 

to
o

 l
o

w
. 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
fe

e
s:

 r
a

te
 o

f 
1

0
%

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

1
2

%
 w

o
u

ld
 m

o
re

 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 
A

cr
o

ss
 

a
 

w
id

e
 

ra
n

g
e

 
o

f 
si

te
-s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
re

v
ie

w
s 

a
n

d
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

ti
o

n
s,

 D
S

P
 h

a
s 

y
e

t 
to

 c
o

m
e

 a
cr

o
ss

 a
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 r

o
b

u
st

ly
 a

d
h

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

y
 

a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

th
a

t 
in

v
o

lv
e

s 
se

e
k
in

g
 2

0
%

 p
ro

fi
t 

o
n

 G
D

V
 a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 

a
n

d
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 w
it

h
in

 a
 s

ch
e

m
e

. 
D

S
P

 a
re

 n
o

t 
fa

m
il

ia
r 

w
it

h
 a

ll
 t

h
e

 

b
a

ck
g

ro
u

n
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 S

h
in

fi
e

ld
 c

a
se

 m
e

n
ti

o
n

e
d

, 
b

u
t 

a
re

 n
o

t 
co

n
v
in

ce
d

 o
f 

it
s 

re
le

v
a

n
ce

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 s
in

ce
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r’

s 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 o

n
ly

 2
%

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 f

ro
m

 1
2

6
 u

n
it

s 
so

 t
h

e
re

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 v
e

ry
 l

it
tl

e
 

fo
cu

s 
o

n
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 a

 d
is

ti
n

ct
 p

ro
fi

t 
le

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 v
e

ry
 l

it
tl

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

ce
 m

a
d

e
 t

o
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
if

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

d
 b

e
e

n
 d

o
n

e
 b

y
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r.

 I
t 

a
p

p
e

a
rs

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

In
sp

e
ct

o
r’

s 
th

in
k
in

g
 m

a
y

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
a

se
d

 m
o

re
 o

n
 a

n
 a

b
se

n
ce

 o
f 

d
e

ta
il
 

th
a

n
 o

n
 e

xp
li

ci
t 

p
ro

fi
t 

p
o

si
ti

o
n

s 
n

o
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 h
o

u
se

b
u

il
d

e
r’

s 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
. 

W
e

 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 s

u
re

 o
f 

th
e

 f
u

ll
 f

a
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 i
n

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

th
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o

 q
u

e
ry

 

w
h

e
th

e
r,

 a
t 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 s

ta
te

d
, 

so
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

fi
t 

le
v
e

ls
 m

a
y

 i
n

 f
a

ct
 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 %
 o

f 
co

st
 a

n
d

 n
o

t 
G

D
V

; 
a

 p
ro

fi
t 

m
e

a
su

re
 u

se
d

 b
y

 

so
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 p

ic
tu

re
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

a
se

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
p

ro
vi

d
e

 c
e

rt
a

in
ty

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 a
n

y
 

e
v
e

n
t 

it
 i

s 
o

n
ly

 o
n

e
 m

a
rk

e
r 

b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

se
t 

o
f 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 

v
ie

w
s;

 a
m

o
n

g
st

 a
 m

u
ch

 w
id

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
w

h
e

re
 i

n
 o

u
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 

Page 338



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 o

u
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 I

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
fe

e
s 

fo
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 a

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 s

e
e

n
. 

W
e

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

 

th
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 7
%

 f
in

a
n

ce
 r

a
te

 

S
.1

0
6

: 
G

re
a

te
r 

cl
a

ri
ty

 i
s 

n
e

e
d

e
d

 o
n

 

w
h

a
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

.1
0

6
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 o
f 

C
IL

.  
W

e
 

b
e

li
e

v
e

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 i

s 
a

 g
ro

ss
 

u
n

d
e

re
st

im
a

te
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
st

 o
f 

S
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

e
n

 

a
ss

e
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 

ra
te

s.
  T

h
is

 t
h

e
n

 f
e

e
d

s 
in

to
 a

n
 

o
v
e

re
st

im
a

te
 a

s 
to

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

C
IL

 

th
a

t 
is

 v
ia

b
le

. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 r
a

is
e

d
 

in
 r

e
ce

n
t  

y
e

a
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
.1

0
6

 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 e
xt

e
n

t 
to

 

w
h

ic
h

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 

o
th

e
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
e

t 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 a
cc

e
p

te
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
li
e

d
 u

p
o

n
. 

 

T
h

is
 v

ie
w

 i
s 

re
in

fo
rc

e
d

 b
y

 a
n

 I
n

sp
e

ct
o

r’
s 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

d
e

ci
si

o
n

 a
t 

W
h

it
e

 

H
o

u
se

 F
a

rm
, 

S
to

k
e

sl
e

y
, 

N
 Y

o
rk

s 
(A

P
P

/G
2

7
1

3
/A

/1
2

/2
1

7
9

9
2

2
) 

w
h

e
re

 i
t 

w
a

s 

st
a

te
d

 
th

a
t  

th
a

t 
‘T

h
e

 
R

IC
S

 
g

u
id

a
n

ce
 

st
a

te
s 

th
a

t 
a

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r’

s 
p

ro
fi

t 

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
t 

a
 l

e
v
e

l 
re

fl
e

ct
iv

e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
rk

e
t 

a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 a

n
d

 

sh
o

u
ld

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

 t
h

e
 r

is
k
s 

a
tt

a
ch

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
sc

h
e

m
e

. 
W

it
h

 t
h

a
t 

in
 m

in
d

, 

th
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

o
f 

th
e

 I
n

sp
e

ct
o

r 
a

t 
a

 r
e

ce
n

t 
a

p
p

e
a

l 
[S

h
in

fi
e

ld
] 

a
re

 o
f 

li
m

it
e

d
 

a
ss

is
ta

n
ce

 i
n

 a
ss

e
ss

in
g

 t
h

e
 m

e
ri

ts
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l.
 T

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 a
p

p
li

e
s 

to
 t

h
e

 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

s 
to

 p
ro

fi
t 

le
v
e

ls
 i

n
 o

th
e

r 
sc

h
e

m
e

s’
. 

 F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 w
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

r 
th

a
t 

w
h

a
t 

o
n

e
 I

n
sp

e
ct

o
r 

fi
n

d
s 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
 i

n
 o

n
e

 s
e

t 

o
f 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
m

e
a

n
 

th
a

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 
v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
s 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 f
o

r 
o

th
e

rs
 r

e
g

a
rd

le
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
d

e
ta

il
s.

 

 In
 D

S
P

’s
 l

o
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

ce
n

t 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

b
o

th
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 l

e
v
e

l 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 s
tu

d
ie

s 

it
 

is
 

in
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 

to
 

a
ll

o
w

 
fo

r 
th

e
 

fu
ll
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
p

ro
fi

t 
le

v
e

l 
a

cr
o

ss
 

th
e

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

s 
w

e
ll

. 
W

h
il

e
 D

S
P

 p
re

fe
rs

 t
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
6

%
 p

ro
fi

t 
b

a
se

d
 

o
n

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
 (

G
D

V
),

 n
o

t 
ju

st
 b

u
il

d
 c

o
st

, 
a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 l

o
w

e
r 

p
ro

fi
t 

le
v
e

l 
o

n
 t

h
is

 s
ch

e
m

e
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

lo
n

g
 b

e
e

n
 a

cc
e

p
te

d
 a

s 
a

 m
a

rk
e

t 

n
o

rm
. 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
s 

re
fl

e
ct

e
d

 i
n

 m
o

st
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 a
n

d
 s

tu
d

ie
s,

 r
e

g
a

rd
le

ss
 o

f 

th
e

ir
 

sp
e

ci
fi

c 
p

u
rp

o
se

. 
T

h
is

 
co

n
ve

n
ti

o
n

, 
a

cc
e

p
te

d
 

o
n

 
m

a
n

y
 

p
re

v
io

u
s 

o
cc

a
si

o
n

s,
 h

a
s 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 s
im

p
ly

 b
e

ca
u

se
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 i
s 

a
 v

e
ry

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 (

a
lm

o
st

 e
n

ti
re

ly
 d

e
-r

is
k
e

d
) 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 

o
v
e

ra
ll

 s
ch

e
m

e
. 

It
 a

m
o

u
n

ts
 t

o
 o

ff
 p

la
n

 s
a

le
s,

 a
lb

e
it

 a
t 

re
d

u
ce

d
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 

Page 339



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
ro

d
u

ce
d

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

co
lo

u
re

d
 t

a
b

le
s 

a
re

 m
is

le
a

d
in

g
. 

C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
in

k
e

d
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

ll
y

 t
o

 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
. 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
e

xp
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

su
lt

s 
th

a
t 

w
a

s 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

to
 a

rr
iv

e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

u
g

g
e

st
e

d
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s.
 

W
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 

cl
e

a
rl

y
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
a

te
s 

o
f 

C
IL

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 

je
o

p
a

rd
is

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

la
n

d
 s

u
p

p
ly

. 
 

S
in

g
le

 r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
ch

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
: 

T
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
re

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
th

re
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 c
it

y
. 

In
 

le
v
e

ls
 

co
m

p
a

re
d

 
w

it
h

 
m

a
rk

e
t 

fi
g

u
re

s;
 

p
ro

d
u

ci
n

g
 

ca
sh

 
fl

o
w

 
ce

rt
a

in
ty

 
a

t 

fi
xe

d
 p

o
in

ts
 o

r 
e

v
e

n
 p

h
a

se
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 u
su

a
ll

y
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 f
o

rm
 o

f 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
r,

 R
P

 a
n

d
 l

o
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
. 

 

D
S

P
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

re
 f

ir
m

 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

 t
h

a
t 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
ro

fi
t 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

. 
D

S
P

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
re

ca
ll

 t
h

e
 p

ri
n

ci
p

le
s 

o
u

tl
in

e
d

 

in
 t

h
e

 p
re

ce
d

in
g

 p
a

ra
g

ra
p

h
 b

e
in

g
 a

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 d

is
p

u
te

d
 p

o
in

t 
o

r 
a

 m
a

jo
r 

d
is

cu
ss

io
n

 a
re

a
 a

t 
a

n
y

 s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

it
s 

e
xt

e
n

si
v
e

 v
ia

b
il
it

y
 c

a
se

 l
o

a
d

. 
T

h
e

 

co
n

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 u
se

d
 r

e
m

a
in

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

h
e

n
ce

 i
ts

 u
se

 b
y

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

v
ia

b
il
it

y
 

p
ra

ct
it

io
n

e
rs

.  

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
F

e
e

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

 F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

(2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li
a

 R
u

sk
in

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 S
.1

0
6

: 
S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
3

) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 B

u
rs

a
rs

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 

a
b

o
v
e

. 
T

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
co

n
ta

in
s 

a
 

su
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
S

.1
0

6
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
st

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

y
e

a
rs

 a
t 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

. 
 

Page 340



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

ch
o

o
si

n
g

 t
o

 s
e

t 
a

 r
a

te
 o

f 
£

1
2

5
/s

q
.m

 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 f

a
il

s 
to

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 

si
n

g
le

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
a

te
 w

il
l 
n

o
t 

je
o

p
a

rd
is

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
h

o
u

si
n

g
 

in
 l

o
w

 v
a

lu
e

 a
re

a
s.

 A
ll

 o
f 

th
e

 l
a

n
d

 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 l

o
w

 v
a

lu
e

 a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 a

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 m

e
d

iu
m

 

v
a

lu
e

 a
re

a
. 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r:
 A

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
u

ff
e

r 
a

g
a

in
st

 a
n

y
 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

n
e

w
 o

r 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 p

o
li

cy
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s.

 T
h

is
 

b
u

ff
e

r 
a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 a

ct
u

a
l 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 c

o
st

s 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 

th
o

se
 u

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s.

 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 T
h

e
 c

o
lo

u
re

d
 t

a
b

le
s,

 a
s 

d
e

sc
ri

b
e

d
, 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 g
u

id
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
su

lt
s 

tr
e

n
d

s.
 D

S
P

 h
a

s 
u

se
d

 s
im

il
a

r 
te

ch
n

iq
u

e
s 

fo
r 

su
m

m
a

ri
si

n
g

 
re

su
lt

s 
a

n
d

 
tr

e
n

d
s 

o
n

 
a

 
la

rg
e

 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
o

cc
a

si
o

n
s 

n
o

w
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 
fo

r 
C

IL
 

st
u

d
ie

s 
e

n
d

o
rs

e
d

 
a

t 
E

IP
. 

D
S

P
 

n
o

te
s 

th
a

t 
o

th
e

r 

p
ra

ct
it

io
n

e
rs

 h
a

ve
 a

ls
o

 u
se

d
 s

im
il

a
r 

w
a

y
s 

o
f 

su
m

m
a

ri
si

n
g

 a
n

d
 d

is
p

la
y

in
g

 

re
su

lt
s 

tr
e

n
d

s 
–

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 im
p

a
ct

s.
  

T
h

e
 

st
u

d
y

 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
cl

e
a

rl
y

 
d

e
sc

ri
b

e
s 

th
e

 
m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y

 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 

th
e

 

re
le

v
a

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

s 
le

v
e

ls
 (

V
Ls

),
 t

ri
a

l 
C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

s,
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 

co
m

p
a

ri
so

n
 l

e
v
e

ls
 /

 b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
s 

(r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
‘V

ia
b

il
it

y
 T

e
st

s’
),

 t
h

e
ir

 r
o

le
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

re
v
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

n
d

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
 o

n
 r

e
su

lt
s.

 

T
h

e
 t

a
b

le
s 

sh
o

w
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

y
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

co
m

b
in

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
V

L,
 A

H
%

 o
r 

o
th

e
r 

se
n

si
ti

v
it

y
 a

n
d

 t
ri

a
l 

C
IL

 r
a

te
 p

la
y

 o
u

t 
to

 p
ro

d
u

ce
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
re

si
d

u
a

l 

la
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s 

(R
LV

s)
; 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 l

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
th

o
se

 R
LV

s 
m

e
a

su
re

 a
g

a
in

st
 t

h
e

 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
s 

(c
o

m
p

a
ri

so
n

s 
w

it
h

 l
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s 
a

n
d

 r
a

n
g

e
s 

o
f 

th
o

se
).

 

T
h

e
 u

se
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
V

Ls
 h

e
lp

s 
to

 s
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
ce

 
o

f 
th

e
se

 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s 
in

 
re

sp
e

ct
 

o
f 

th
e

 
li

k
e

ly
 

n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

si
te

 s
u

p
p

ly
, 

a
ll
 a

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l.

  

A
s 

e
xa

m
p

le
s 

o
f 

th
e

 n
u

m
e

ro
u

s 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
s,

 t
o

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

il
lu

st
ra

te
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
n

in
g

 /
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

in
g

 t
h

is
 d

is
cu

ss
io

n
: 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

Ia
, 

T
a

b
le

 1
c 

–
 1

0
 f

la
ts

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

 a
t 

V
L3

 m
e

e
ts

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 4

 i
.e

. 

Page 341



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 e

xc
e

e
d

s 
th

e
 t

y
p

ic
a

l 
co

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

la
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s 

ra
n

g
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
, 

b
e

a
ri

n
g

 i
n

 m
in

d
 t

h
e

 l
ik

e
ly

 h
o

st
 s

it
e

 t
yp

e
 o

n
 m

a
n

y 
o

cc
a

si
o

n
s 

–
 a

t 
a

ll
 t

ri
a

l 
C

IL
 

ra
te

s 
to

 £
2

0
0

/s
q

. 
m

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 t

e
st

 l
im

it
.  

A
t 

V
L4

, 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 5

 i
s 

m
e

t 
(i

.e
. 

R
LV

 
e

xc
e

e
d

in
g

 
e

xi
st

in
g

 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
u

se
 

le
v
e

l 
co

m
p

a
ri

so
n

 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 

a
t 

£
2

.9
m

/h
a

) 
a

cr
o

ss
 t

h
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
to

 £
1

5
0

/s
q

. 
m

. 
A

t 
th

e
 5

0
/5

0
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 t

e
n

u
re

 m
ix

 t
ri

a
l,

 t
h

e
 R

LV
 i

s 
st

il
l 

w
e

ll
 i

n
 e

xc
e

ss
 o

f 
th

a
t 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 5

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

t 
£

2
0

0
/s

q
. 

m
 C

IL
. 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

II
a

, 
ta

b
le

 
1

h
 

–
 

1
0

0
 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
m

ix
e

d
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 o

cc
u

rr
e

n
ce

 i
n

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s 

/ 
fr

o
m

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

si
te

 t
yp

e
s.

 I
n

 a
 

g
re

e
n

fi
e

ld
 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

, 
fr

o
m

 
V

L2
 
u

p
w

a
rd

s 
th

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 

(1
) 

is
 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 e

xc
e

e
d

e
d

 a
t 

a
ll

 t
ri

a
l 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 l
e

v
e

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
e

st
 l

im
it

 o
f 

£
2

0
0

/s
q

. 
m

. 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 t

e
st

 2
 (

g
a

rd
e

n
 /

 a
m

e
n

it
y

 l
a

n
d

) 
is

 e
xc

e
e

d
e

d
 a

t 
V

L2
 w

it
h

 

C
IL

 t
ri

a
ll

e
d

 t
o

 £
1

7
5

/s
q

. 
m

, 
so

 t
h

a
t 

u
p

 t
o

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 l
e

v
e

l 
R

LV
s 

co
m

p
e

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

fo
rm

e
r 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
si

te
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s 

lo
o

k
 t

o
 b

e
 a

ch
ie

v
e

d
. 

V
L2

 

re
p

re
se

n
ts

 l
o

w
e

r-
e

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s 
/ 

b
e

n
e

a
th

 t
y

p
ic

a
l 

n
e

w
-b

u
il
d

 l
e

v
e

ls
. 

W
it

h
 V

L3
 

a
ss

u
m

e
d

, 
th

e
 R

LV
s 

m
e

e
t 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 4

 b
y

 e
xc

e
e

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

la
n

d
 

v
a

lu
e

s 
ra

n
g

e
 a

t 
a

ll
 t

ri
a

l 
C

IL
 l

e
v
e

ls
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
e

st
 l

im
it

 o
f 

£
2

0
0

/s
q

. 
m

. 
A

t 
V

L4
, 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
e

st
 5

 i
s 

e
xc

e
e

d
e

d
 w

it
h

 C
IL

 a
t 

u
p

 t
o

 £
1

7
5

/s
q

. 
m

.  

S
in

g
le

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
C

h
a

rg
in

g
 R

a
te

: 
 A

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
u

tt
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 v
ia

b
le

 o
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 

in
fo

rm
in

g
 

th
e

 
d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

, 
a

s 
w

e
ll

 
a

s 

p
u

tt
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
h

e
 s

in
g

le
 r

a
te

 b
a

si
s,

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 

Page 342



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 
o

n
 

a
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
o

p
ti

o
n

 
to

 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
a

 
d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 

ra
te

 
fo

r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t,

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 a
 3

-t
ie

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 s

u
g

g
e

st
e

d
 a

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 

£
1

0
0

, 
£

1
2

5
 a

n
d

 £
1

5
0

/s
q

. 
m

 b
y

 b
ro

a
d

 v
a

lu
e

 a
re

a
; 

w
it

h
 t

y
p

ic
a

ll
y

 l
o

w
e

r  
>

 m
id

 

>
 t

y
p

ic
a

ll
y

 h
ig

h
e

r 
v
a

lu
e

s.
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 v

a
lu

e
s 

in
 a

ll
 a

re
a

s 
w

e
re

 a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
d

 

to
 b

e
 v

a
ri

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
o

n
 s

ch
e

m
e

-s
p

e
ci

fi
cs

. 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 p
ri

n
ci

p
le

s 
a

im
 

fo
r 

si
m

p
li

ci
ty

; 
a

v
o

id
in

g
 c

o
m

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

 w
h

e
re

 i
t 

is
 n

o
t 

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
si

d
e

rs
 i

t 
im

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 s

tr
e

ss
 t

h
a

t 
‘l

o
w

e
r 

v
a

lu
e

s’
 a

n
d

 a
n

y
 

re
la

te
d

 ‘
lo

w
e

r 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

’ 
is

 a
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

, 
in

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
xt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
’s

 

h
ig

h
 

h
o

u
se

 
p

ri
ce

s.
 

In
 

g
e

n
e

ra
l,

 
a

cr
o

ss
 

th
e

 
C

it
y

 
p

ic
tu

re
, 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

a
re

 
so

u
g

h
t 

a
ft

e
r.

 
A

s 
n

o
te

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 
C

IL
 

V
ia

b
il
it

y
 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

re
se

a
rc

h
 i

n
to

 t
h

e
 n

e
w

-b
u

il
d

 v
a

lu
e

s 
th

a
t 

a
re

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

to
 t

h
is

 

p
o

si
ti

v
e

 
o

v
e

ra
ll

 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 
p

ic
tu

re
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
re

la
te

d
 

re
p

o
rt

 
d

e
ta

il
, 

th
e

 

in
ci

d
e

n
ce

 o
f 

v
a

lu
e

s 
b

e
n

e
a

th
 t

h
e

 s
tu

d
y

’s
 v

a
lu

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
2

 (
‘V

L2
’)

 i
s 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

to
 b

e
 l

im
it

e
d

; 
V

L1
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

a
in

 
a

 l
o

w
e

r-
e

n
d

 /
 f

a
ll

in
g

 m
a

rk
e

t 

se
n

si
ti

v
it

y
 t

e
st

. 
T

h
e

 V
L2

 t
o

 V
L4

 v
a

lu
e

s 
a

re
 t

h
o

se
 m

o
re

 t
y

p
ic

a
ll

y
 s

e
e

n
 i

n
 t

h
e

 

lo
w

e
r 

to
 m

id
-v

a
lu

e
 a

re
a

s 
o

f 
th

is
 e

xp
e

n
si

v
e

 C
it

y
. 

 

C
IL

 h
a

s 
a

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 s

m
a

ll
 i

m
p

a
ct

 o
n

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

. 
A

t 
th

e
 s

u
g

g
e

st
e

d
 r

a
te

s 
it

 

re
p

re
se

n
ts

 
a

 
sm

a
ll
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 
g

ro
ss

 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
e

s 
(s

a
le

s 

v
a

lu
e

s)
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 u
n

d
e

rl
y

in
g

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
’s

 m
a

rk
e

t;
 a

b
o

u
t 

3
.1

 t
o

 

4
.2

%
 o

f 
G

D
V

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 l

o
w

e
r 

to
 m

id
 v

a
lu

e
s 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 b

y
 V

L3
 t

o
 V

L4
 

(a
p

p
ro

x.
 3

.5
%

 o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
).

 I
n

 t
h

is
 c

o
n

te
xt

, 
a

n
d

 l
o

o
k
in

g
 a

t 
re

la
ti

v
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 

Page 343



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

in
fl

u
e

n
ce

s,
 t

h
e

 r
e

ce
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

p
ic

k
-u

p
 i

s 
a

ls
o

 n
o

ta
b

le
. 

 

A
s 

th
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
s,

 C
IL

 i
n

 i
ts

e
lf

 i
s 

h
ig

h
ly

 u
n

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 

cr
e

a
te

 n
o

n
-v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

t 
th

e
 r

a
te

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

. 
M

a
rg

in
a

l 
o

r 
n

o
n

-v
ia

b
il
it

y
 o

f 
a

n
y 

si
te

s,
 

w
h

ic
h

 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

a
re

 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 
to

 
b

e
 

se
e

n
 

in
fr

e
q

u
e

n
tl

y
, 

is
 

u
su

a
ll

y
 i

n
h

e
re

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

s 
o

f 
th

o
se

 s
it

e
s,

 r
a

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 a

 c
o

n
se

q
u

e
n

ce
 o

f 
C

IL
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

w
id

e
r 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

ce
s 

is
 s

u
ch

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 i
n

h
e

re
n

t 
n

o
n

-v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
w

h
e

re
 i

t 
is

 

se
e

n
, 

w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
u

su
a

ll
y

 b
e

 o
v
e

rc
o

m
e

 e
v
e

n
 w

it
h

 a
 v

e
ry

 l
im

it
e

d
 o

r 
n

il
 C

IL
. 

  

A
 s

in
g

le
 m

id
-r

a
n

g
e

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
, 

n
o

t 
p

it
ch

e
d

 t
o

o
 h

ig
h

 f
o

r 
th

e
 l

o
w

e
r 

to
 

m
id

 v
a

lu
e

 a
re

a
s 

a
n

d
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
it

 i
s 

n
o

t 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 

fo
r 

a
ll

 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 

si
te

s 
to

 

re
m

a
in

 
v
ia

b
le

, 
w

a
s 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

a
 

m
o

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 
so

lu
ti

o
n

; 
it

 
b

e
tt

e
r 

re
p

re
se

n
ts

 t
h

e
 m

ix
 a

n
d

 b
a

la
n

ce
 o

f 
lo

ca
l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

ly
 

sm
a

ll
 

o
v
e

ra
ll
 

C
it

y
 

a
re

a
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 
b

lu
rr

in
g

 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

v
e

ry
 

lo
ca

li
se

d
 

ch
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

s.
 T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 s
ta

y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 h
ig

h
e

r 
ra

te
s 

th
a

t 
D

S
P

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
si

d
e

r 
co

u
ld

 
h

a
v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

ju
st

if
ie

d
 

w
it

h
in

 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
, 

a
s 

w
e

re
 m

o
o

te
d

 a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

n
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

ro
u

te
, 

re
sp

e
ct

s 
th

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 o
f 

se
e

k
in

g
 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

b
a

la
n

ce
 i

n
 s

e
tt

in
g

 u
p

 t
h

e
 C

IL
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
a

ls
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

e
 

w
id

e
r 

C
IL

 i
m

p
li

ca
ti

o
n

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

th
e

 d
if

fi
cu

lt
ie

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 a

rr
iv

in
g

 a
t 

su
it

a
b

le
 d

if
fe

re
n

ti
a

l 
ra

te
s 

b
o

u
n

d
a

ri
e

s 
(i

n
 i

ts
e

lf
 t

e
ll

in
g

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

w
e

ig
h

in
g

 

u
p

 t
h

e
 o

p
ti

o
n

s)
, 

th
e

 c
la

ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 s
y
st

e
m

, 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 s
id

e
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

Page 344



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
IL

 
re

ce
ip

ts
 e

st
im

a
te

s.
 A

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 
o

p
p

o
si

n
g

 t
e

n
si

o
n

 
to

 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
o

f 

o
p

ti
m

a
l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

w
a

rd
s 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

th
ro

u
g

h
 

th
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

e
d

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 g
a

p
, 

th
is

 a
ll

 f
o

rm
e

d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

b
a

la
n

ce
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

e
le

ct
e

d
 s

in
g

le
 r

a
te

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 

T
h

e
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

h
a

s 
ca

re
fu

ll
y
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

th
e

 
d

is
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 
ty

p
e

 
o

f 
si

te
s 

e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
 i

ts
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 l
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
, 

b
e

n
e

fi
tt

in
g

 a
ls

o
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

e
xt

e
n

si
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
si

te
s 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
t 

a
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 l
e

v
e

l 
a

n
d

 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 i
ts

 S
H

LA
A

 w
o

rk
. 

W
h

il
st

 t
h

is
 a

lw
a

y
s 

h
a

s 
to

 b
e

 a
cc

e
p

te
d

 a
s 

a
n

 

e
v
o

lv
in

g
 p

ic
tu

re
 t

h
a

t 
w

il
l 

b
e

 k
e

p
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
, 

a
t 

p
re

se
n

t 
it

 c
a

lc
u

la
te

s 
th

a
t 

in
 
te

rm
s 

o
f 

g
e

n
e

ra
ll

y
 l

o
w

e
r 

v
a

lu
e

 
a

re
a

s,
 

th
e

 o
v
e

rw
h

e
lm

in
g

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
in

 t
h

e
se

 a
re

a
s 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 f
o

r 
si

te
s 

th
a

t 
e

it
h

e
r 

th
e

 f
in

e
r-

g
ra

in
e

d
 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 
w

o
rk

 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 

m
e

d
iu

m
 

o
r 

h
ig

h
 

v
ia

b
il
it

y
 

p
ro

sp
e

ct
s 

fo
r 

o
r 

a
re

 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 
fo

r 
g

re
e

n
fi

e
ld

 
la

n
d

 
w

it
h

o
u

t 
P

D
L 

ty
p

e
 

e
xi

st
in

g
 

u
se

 
v
a

lu
e

 

e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
(a

n
d

 
in

 
th

o
se

 
ca

se
s 

w
it

h
o

u
t 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

si
te

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
s.

1
0

6
/2

7
8

))
. 

O
ve

ra
ll

, 
g

iv
e

n
 

th
e

 
ty

p
ic

a
l 

le
v
e

ls
 

o
f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 
e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 

to
 

su
p

p
o

rt
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

co
st

s 
a

cr
o

ss
 

th
e

 
C

it
y

, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 
th

e
 

b
lu

rr
in

g
 

o
f 

ch
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

s 
a

n
d

 v
a

lu
e

s 
o

v
e

r 
sh

o
rt

 d
is

ta
n

ce
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

is
 q

u
it

e
 c

o
m

p
a

ct
 

u
rb

a
n

 
a

re
a

 
(i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 
th

e
 

d
if

fi
cu

lt
y 

in
 

a
ss

ig
n

in
g

 
so

m
e

 
a

re
a

s 
to

 
a

 
cl

e
a

r 

g
ro

u
p

in
g

),
 

th
e

 
si

n
g

le
 

ra
te

 
p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
is

 
a

 
fi

tt
in

g
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

. 
T

h
is

 
is

 
a

ll
 

a
s 

d
is

cu
ss

e
d

 
in

 
th

e
 
a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
re

p
o

rt
 
a

n
d

 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 
a

rr
iv

e
d

 
a

t 
a

ft
e

r 
a

ls
o

 

Page 345



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

co
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 
th

e
 

w
a

y
 

in
 

w
h

ic
h

 
in

cr
e

a
si

n
g

 
p

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

v
a

lu
e

s 
te

n
d

 
to

 
d

ri
v
e

 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s;

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

si
te

 v
a

lu
e

 e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
in

 t
h

e
 l

o
w

e
r 

v
a

lu
e

 

a
re

a
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 t

h
e

 i
n

h
e

re
n

t 
lo

w
e

r 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s;
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 h

ig
h

e
r 

p
ro

p
e

rt
y

 
p

ri
ce

s 
d

ri
v
in

g
 

th
e

 
o

p
p

o
si

te
 

e
ff

e
ct

 
in

 
h

ig
h

e
r 

v
a

lu
e

 
si

tu
a

ti
o

n
s.

 

T
h

e
se

, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

it
y

’s
 w

id
e

r 
re

la
ti

o
n

sh
ip

 t
o

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
in

g
 a

re
a

s 

(a
n

d
 

th
e

re
fo

re
 

a
g

a
in

 
th

e
 

n
e

e
d

 
to

 
a

v
o

id
 

u
n

n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 
m

u
lt

ip
le

 
ra

te
s 

if
 

p
o

ss
ib

le
),

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 b

a
la

n
ci

n
g

 f
a

ct
o

rs
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 

T
h

e
y

 a
d

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

to
 

th
e

 s
o

u
n

d
n

e
ss

 o
f 

th
e

 s
in

g
le

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 s

e
le

ct
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
ca

re
fu

l 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 
B

u
ff

e
r:

 
 

S
e

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 
C

it
y

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 
to

 
th

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

T
a

y
lo

r 

W
im

p
e

y
 E

a
st

 

A
n

g
li

a
 a

n
d

 

B
a

rr
a

tt
 H

o
m

e
s 

E
a

st
e

rn
 

C
o

u
n

ti
e

s 

2
5

2
6

0
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 N
o

te
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

fi
t 

o
f 

2
0

%
 o

n
 

G
ro

ss
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

V
a

lu
e

 (
G

D
V

).
 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 w

e
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

6
%

 p
ro

fi
t 

o
n

 

co
st

 f
o

r 
th

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 

e
le

m
e

n
t 

is
 u

n
re

a
li

st
ic

 a
n

d
 h

ig
h

li
g

h
t 

a
 r

e
ce

n
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 d
e

ci
si

o
n

 r
e

la
ti

n
g

 

to
 L

a
n

d
 a

t 
th

e
 M

a
n

o
r,

 S
h

in
fi

e
ld

, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

fi
t:

 N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
5

7
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll
 G

ro
u

p
 o

f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 T
h

e
 £

1
,0

6
2

/s
q

. 
m

 q
u

o
te

d
 i

s 
a

 b
le

n
d

e
d

 f
ig

u
re

 s
h

o
w

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
su

m
m

a
ry

 a
n

d
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 a
 m

ix
 o

f 
h

o
u

se
s 

a
n

d
 f

la
ts

. 
 

A
 1

0
%

 n
e

t-
to

-g
ro

ss
 a

d
ju

st
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 e

ff
e

ct
iv

e
ly

 i
n

fl
a

te
 t

h
e

 

b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s 

in
p

u
t 

in
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

th
e

 f
la

tt
e

d
 o

n
ly

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

m
e

n
ti

o
n

e
d

 h
e

re
; 

re
fl

e
ct

iv
e

 o
f 

m
in

im
a

l 
co

m
m

o
n

 a
re

a
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
y

p
ic

a
l 

si
m

p
le

 

Page 346



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

R
e

a
d

in
g

. 
D

S
P

’s
 i
n

cl
u

si
o

n
 o

f 
2

0
%

 

p
ro

fi
t 

o
n

 G
D

V
 f

o
r 

p
ri

v
a

te
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 

a
n

d
 6

%
 p

ro
fi

t 
o

n
 c

o
st

 f
o

r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
su

in
g

 e
q

u
a

te
s 

to
 a

 

b
le

n
d

e
d

 p
ro

fi
t 

o
f 

1
7

.5
%

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

fa
r 

to
o

 l
o

w
. 

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 T
h

e
 b

u
il
d

 c
o

st
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 b
y

 D
S

P
 f

o
r 

1
0

0
 a

n
d

 2
5

0
 

u
n

it
 t

yp
o

lo
g

ie
s 

a
p

p
e

a
r 

to
 b

e
 b

a
se

d
 

o
n

 n
e

t 
in

te
rn

a
l 
fl

o
o

r 
a

re
a

s 
ra

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 g

ro
ss

. 
F

la
ts

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s 

sh
o

u
ld

b
e

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 g
ro

ss
 i

n
te

rn
a

l 

fl
o

o
r 

a
re

a
 i

n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 t
a

k
e

 i
n

to
 

a
cc

o
u

n
t 

co
m

m
u

n
a

l 
a

re
a

s,
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

co
rr

id
o

rs
, 

st
a

ir
s 

a
n

d
 l

if
ts

. 

S
u

b
se

q
u

e
n

tl
y
 t

h
e

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
 o

f 

£
1

,0
6

2
/s

q
m

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
s 

th
e

 a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
o

f 
5

0
 f

la
ts

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 

m
a

k
e

 a
n

y
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
b

a
se

m
e

n
t 

ca
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
s 

u
su

a
ll

y
 a

 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 s

ch
e

m
e

s 
o

f 
th

is
 

n
e

w
 b

u
il
d

 b
lo

ck
s 

n
o

t 
e

xc
e

e
d

in
g

 3
 s

to
ri

e
s,

 w
it

h
in

 m
ix

e
d

 h
o

u
si

n
g

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

o
f 

th
e

 t
y

p
e

 e
n

v
is

a
g

e
d

. 
W

e
 r

e
it

e
ra

te
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 c
o

st
s 

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
s 

a
re

 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 
a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

a
n

d
 
if

 
a

n
y

th
in

g
 m

o
re

 
th

a
n

 
su

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
g

iv
e

n
 
th

e
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ri
n

g
: 

- 
B

C
IS

 p
lu

s 
lo

ca
ti

o
n

a
l 
in

d
e

x 
fa

ct
o

r 
1

3
%

; 

- 
A

d
d

it
io

n
 f

o
r 

e
xt

e
rn

a
l 

w
o

rk
s 

(b
a

se
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 i

n
d

e
xe

d
 c

o
st

s)
 t

y
p

ic
a

ll
y

 a
t 

1
5

%
; 

- 
C

o
n

ti
n

g
e

n
ci

e
s 

a
t 

5
-7

%
; 

in
p

u
t 

a
t 

7
%

 f
o

r 
th

e
 5

0
 u

n
it

s 
fl

a
tt

e
d

 s
ce

n
a

ri
o

s  

- 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s 
fo

r 
su

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
co

n
ti

n
g

e
n

cy
 f

o
r 

re
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e

rg
y

 /
 s

im
il
a

r 
(o

r 
o

th
e

r 
co

st
s)

 –
 a

ll
 a

s 
n

o
te

d
 a

b
o

v
e

; 

T
a

k
in

g
 a

cc
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 n

e
t-

to
 g

ro
ss

 r
a

ti
o

, 
th

e
 f

la
ts

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
 i

s 
£

1
,1

3
8

/s
q

. 
m

 

a
p

p
li

e
d

 
to

 
th

e
 

n
e

t 
fl

o
o

r 
a

re
a

 
p

ri
o

r 
to

 
e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s;
 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 

to
 

£
1

,3
0

8
/s

q
. 

m
 a

p
p

li
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

t 
a

re
a

 w
it

h
 e

xt
e

rn
a

ls
. 

In
 g

ro
ss

 a
re

a
 t

e
rm

s,
 a

s 

u
se

d
, 

th
e

se
 e

q
u

a
te

 t
o

 £
1

,0
2

4
/s

q
. 

m
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 e
xt

e
rn

a
ls

; 
£

1
,1

7
8

/s
q

. 
m

 w
it

h
 

e
xt

e
rn

a
ls

.  

A
s 

ca
n

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 a
t 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 I

Ia
 t

a
b

le
 1

g
, 

th
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e

su
lt

s 
ca

n
 b

e
 

cl
e

a
rl

y
 s

e
e

n
 -

 a
s 

re
la

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 5
0

 u
n

it
s 

ty
p

ic
a

ll
y 

h
ig

h
 v

a
lu

e
 a

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ts
 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

 r
e

fe
rr

e
d

 t
o

. 
B

y
 V

L3
, 

e
v
e

n
 a

t 
£

2
0

0
/s

q
. 

m
 C

IL
 t

h
e

 R
LV

s 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

e
xc

e
e

d
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
in

d
ic

a
te

d
 b

y
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 t

e
st

 5
 (

la
n

d
 a

t 
£

2
.9

m
/h

a
).

 I
n

 f
a

ct
, 

w
e

 

ca
n

 s
e

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

o
se

 a
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
a

r 
si

g
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

co
st

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

s 
if

 

Page 347



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

si
ze

 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
fe

e
s:

 r
a

te
 o

f 
1

0
%

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

1
2

%
 w

o
u

ld
 m

o
re

 

a
cc

u
ra

te
ly

 r
e

fl
e

ct
 o

u
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 

m
a

jo
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 

F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 I

n
 t

h
e

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

m
a

rk
e

t 
fe

e
s 

fo
r 

fi
n

a
n

ce
 a

re
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a

n
 p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 s

e
e

n
. 

T
h

e
 

co
n

so
rt

iu
m

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

 t
h

e
 a

d
o

p
ti

o
n

 

o
f 

a
 7

%
 f

in
a

n
ce

 r
a

te
 

S
.1

0
6

: 
T

h
e

 c
o

n
so

rt
iu

m
 b

e
li

e
v
e

s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 £

1
,0

0
 p

e
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

 S
.1

0
6

 

co
st

 a
ll

o
w

e
d

 i
s 

in
cr

e
d

ib
ly

 l
o

w
. 

 

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

co
lo

u
re

d
 t

a
b

le
s 

a
re

 m
is

le
a

d
in

g
. 

C
o

n
ce

rn
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
in

k
e

d
 g

e
o

g
ra

p
h

ic
a

ll
y

 t
o

 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 l
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

ly
. 

R
e

q
u

e
st

 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
e

xp
la

n
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 

th
a

t 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
 w

e
re

 n
e

ce
ss

a
ry

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s.

 A
s 

a
n

 e
xa

m
p

le
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

 s
ch

e
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
a

se
m

e
n

t 
ca

r 
p

a
rk

in
g

 w
o

u
ld

 u
su

a
ll

y 
in

v
o

lv
e

 

re
d

u
ce

d
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s 
–

 t
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 b

e
 s

o
m

e
 b

a
la

n
ci

n
g

. 
In

 a
n

y
 e

v
e

n
t,

 D
S
P

 

a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
s 

th
a

t,
 a

s 
is

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
h

ig
h

ly
 v

a
ri

a
b

le
 a

b
n

o
rm

a
l 

co
st

s 
a

re
 

n
o

t 
a

ll
o

w
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
t 

th
is

 s
tu

d
y

 l
e

v
e

l;
 s

o
 t

h
a

t,
 d

e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 n

a
tu

re
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
e

xc
a

v
a

ti
o

n
s 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

s 
a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 a

sp
e

ct
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

a
n

y
 

u
n

d
e

rg
ro

u
n

d
 c

a
r 

p
a

rk
in

g
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
, 

m
a

y
 w

e
ll
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 f

a
ct

o
re

d
 i

n
to

 

a
n

y
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
 s

it
e

-s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

s 
a

s 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 

a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r’

s 
o

v
e

ra
ll
 b

a
la

n
ci

n
g

 o
f 

p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

je
ct

iv
e

s.
 P

le
a

se
 n

o
te

 a
g

a
in

 

th
e

 h
ig

h
 b

u
il

d
 c

o
st

s 
co

n
ti

n
g

e
n

cy
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 (
a

t 
7

%
) 

a
p

p
li

e
d

 

n
o

tw
it

h
st

a
n

d
in

g
 t

h
e

se
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

. 

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
F

e
e

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 F
in

a
n

ce
 C

o
st

s:
 S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 

(2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li
a

 R
u

sk
in

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

 S
.1

0
6

: 
S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
3

) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 B

u
rs

a
rs

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 

a
b

o
v
e

.  

In
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t:

 N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
7

) 
fr

o
m

 S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll

 

Page 348



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

su
lt

s 
th

a
t 

w
a

s 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 

to
 a

rr
iv

e
 a

t 
th

e
 s

u
g

g
e

st
e

d
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s.
 

W
e

 d
o

 n
o

t 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 

cl
e

a
rl

y
 d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
a

te
s 

o
f 

C
IL

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 

je
o

p
a

rd
is

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
p

la
n

n
e

d
 

la
n

d
 s

u
p

p
ly

. 
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r:
 A

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 i
n

co
rp

o
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 

b
e

n
ch

m
a

rk
 l

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
. 

T
h

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 o
f 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 c
o

st
s 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 b
u

ff
e

r 
a

g
a

in
st

 a
n

y
 

ch
a

n
g

e
s 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
s 

o
f 

m
e

e
ti

n
g

 

n
e

w
 o

r 
e

m
e

rg
in

g
 p

o
li

cy
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 s

u
ch

 a
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s.

 T
h

is
 

b
u

ff
e

r 
a

ls
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
s 

fo
r 

a
n

y
 a

ct
u

a
l 

v
a

ri
a

ti
o

n
s 

in
 c

o
st

s 
o

v
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
b

o
v
e

 

th
o

se
 u

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s.

 

 

G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 B
u

ff
e

r:
  

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 o

n
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 

1
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

 

Page 349



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

B
o

y
e

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 

B
e

rk
e

le
y

 H
o

m
e

s 

2
5

2
3

4
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

A
re

a
s 

o
f 

M
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

ic
a

l 
w

e
a

k
n

e
ss

: 
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
ra

te
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
: 

N
o

 o
th

e
r 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 G

re
a

te
r 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

A
re

a
 p

ro
p

o
se

s 
to

 s
e

t 
a

 c
h

a
rg

e
 a

s 

h
ig

h
 a

s 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
. 

P
o

in
ts

 o
u

t 
th

a
t 

O
xf

o
rd

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 a
 l
o

w
e

r 
ra

te
 

o
f 

£
1

0
0

/s
q

.m
.  

S
a

le
s 

ra
te

s:
 I

t 
is

 n
o

t 
cl

e
a

r 
w

h
e

th
e

r 

re
g

a
rd

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 h

a
d

 t
o

 a
ss

u
m

e
d

 

sa
le

s 
ra

te
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

o
u

tl
e

ts
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
a

ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

 s
it

e
s.

  

B
u

il
d

 C
o

st
s:

 T
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 u

n
re

a
li

st
ic

 

b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s.

  

S
.1

0
6

: 
£

1
,0

0
0

/s
q

.m
 p

e
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

 i
s 

li
g

h
t.

 T
h

e
 n

o
ti

o
n

a
l 

su
m

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 

to
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 s

it
e

s 
o

f 
£

4
0

0
,0

0
0

 p
e

r 

g
ro

ss
 h

e
ct

a
re

 w
o

u
ld

 t
y

p
ic

a
ll

y
 b

e
 

R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
ra

te
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
: 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

th
is

 i
s 

th
e

 c
a

se
. 

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 h

a
s 

o
n

ly
 a

 s
in

g
le

 i
m

m
e

d
ia

te
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

r,
 i

t 
is

 s
u

rr
o

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y
 

S
o

u
th

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
; 

a
n

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
w

h
ic

h
 D

S
P

 h
a

s 
a

ls
o

 b
e

e
n

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

o
n

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

. 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
s 

a
ll
 h

a
ve

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t 
w

it
h

 r
e

g
a

rd
 t

o
 l

o
ca

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

a
n

d
 

th
e

 b
a

la
n

ce
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 c

o
rr

e
ct

 i
n

 e
a

ch
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
’s

 c
a

se
. 

K
e

y
 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
se

 l
o

ca
l 
ch

a
ra

ct
e

ri
st

ic
s 

is
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 v
a

lu
e

 /
 c

o
st

s 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
s,

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
th

e
 c

ru
x 

o
f 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 C

IL
 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 s

e
tt

in
g

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
s 

in
 b

a
la

n
ce

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
E

v
e

n
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 a

 v
e

ry
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
q

u
ic

k
 

co
m

p
a

ri
so

n
, 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
 f

o
r 

th
e

 C
it

y
 i

s 
n

o
t 

e
xc

e
ss

iv
e

 w
h

e
n

 

lo
o

k
in

g
 a

t 
o

th
e

rs
. 

T
h

e
 c

o
m

p
a

ri
so

n
s 

a
re

 e
xp

la
in

e
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

o
n

ce
 t

h
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 

o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
 a

re
a

 m
a

rk
e

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

su
lt

a
n

t 
v
a

lu
e

s 
b

e
g

in
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

re
la

ti
v
e

 t
o

 t
h

o
se

 i
n

 m
a

n
y 

su
rr

o
u

n
d

in
g

 a
re

a
s.

 W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
e

xp
e

ct
 t

o
 s

e
e

 

id
e

n
ti

ca
l 

ra
te

s,
 o

r 
n

e
ce

ss
a

ri
ly

 r
a

te
s 

a
t 

v
e

ry
 s

im
il

a
r 

le
v
e

ls
. 

T
o

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
o

u
n

te
r-

in
tu

it
iv

e
 s

u
g

g
e

st
s 

a
 b

y
p

a
ss

in
g

 o
f 

th
e

 

d
y

n
a

m
ic

s 
o

f 
w

h
a

t 
v
ia

b
il
it

y
 a

n
d

 C
IL

 i
s 

a
ll

 a
b

o
u

t.
 W

e
 w

o
u

ld
 e

xp
e

ct
 t

o
 s

e
e

 a
 

h
ig

h
e

r 
ra

te
 in

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 t

o
 s

o
m

e
 e

xt
e

n
t,

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

u
t 

a
ls

o
 

u
n

d
e

rp
in

n
e

d
 b

y
 i

ts
 v

e
ry

 n
a

tu
re

. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ri
n

g
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
, 

th
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
s 

%
s 

o
f 

G
D

V
 (

re
p

o
rt

 s
e

ct
io

n
 3

.1
0

 /
 F

ig
u

re
 

Page 350



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

e
xc

e
e

d
e

d
. 

It
 i

s 
u

n
cl

e
a

r 
if

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 

st
a

n
d

a
rd

s 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
lo

o
d

 

a
n

d
 W

a
te

r 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
A

ct
 2

0
1

3
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 C

IL
 a

n
d

 

S
.1

0
6

, 
a

n
d

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r,
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 i
s 

o
n

e
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 c

a
re

fu
ll

y 
, 

in
 t

e
rm

s 
o

f 

th
e

 r
e

la
ti

v
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

f 
b

o
th

 

e
le

m
e

n
ts

. 

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s:
 T

h
e

 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 
se

e
m

s 
to

 a
ss

u
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll
 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
w

il
l 
b

e
 b

u
il
t 

to
 c

o
d

e
 l

e
v
e

l 

4
. 

P
o

st
 2

0
1

6
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 

in
to

 a
cc

o
u

n
t  

F
e

e
s:

 I
t 

is
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 f

o
r 

m
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 

co
st

s 
to

 b
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

rd
e

r 
o

f 
4

%
 o

f 

m
a

rk
e

t 
tu

rn
o

v
e

r 
a

s 
o

p
p

o
se

d
 t

h
e

 

3
%

 a
ss

u
m

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t.

 I
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 l
e

g
a

l 

1
2

) 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l(
s)

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t.
 I

t 

ca
n

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 t
h

a
t 

a
t 

£
1

2
5

/s
q

. 
m

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u

n
te

d
 t

o
 4

.1
7

%
 G

D
V

 t
o

 

2
.5

%
 G

D
V

 a
cr

o
ss

 V
Ls

 2
 t

o
 6

; 
3

.5
%

 t
o

 2
.7

8
%

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 m

d
-v

a
lu

e
s 

ra
n

g
e

 V
Ls

 

3
 t

o
 5

. 
A

t 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

 i
s 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

o
f 

o
v
e

ra
ll

 s
ch

e
m

e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 D
S
P

’s
 w

id
e

r 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 l
e

ve
ls

. 
A

ll
ie

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 

re
ce

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
’s

 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 m
a

rk
e

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

th
a

t 
h

o
u

se
 p

ri
ce

s 
a

re
 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
; 

m
o

re
 s

o
 t

h
a

n
 i
n

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

o
 a

 d
e

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
lo

o
k
s 

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 o
u

t-
st

ri
p

p
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 

n
o

te
d

 %
s 

o
f 

G
D

V
. 

S
a

le
s 

ra
te

s:
 

Y
e

s,
 

b
u

il
d

 
a

n
d

 
sa

le
s 

ti
m

in
g

s 
a

n
d

 
d

u
ra

ti
o

n
s 

h
a

v
e

 
b

e
e

n
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 

In
 t

h
e

 s
m

a
ll
e

r 
si

te
s 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

ls
 t

h
is

 i
s 

m
o

re
 a

b
o

u
t 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
s 

m
a

d
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

e
ri

o
d

s 
o

v
e

r 
w

h
ic

h
 c

o
st

s 
a

re
 f

in
a

n
ce

d
. 

A
s 

e
xa

m
p

le
s 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

is
 m

a
k
e

s 
m

o
re

 i
m

p
a

ct
 o

n
 l

a
rg

e
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
s,

 t
h

e
 1

0
0

 

u
n

it
 s

ce
n

a
ri

o
s 

a
ss

u
m

e
 m

a
in

 c
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 o
v
e

r 
a

 2
 y

e
a

r 
(2

4
 m

o
n

th
) 

p
e

ri
o

d
; 

sa
le

s 
o

v
e

r 
2

4
 

m
o

n
th

s 
b

u
t 

st
a

rt
in

g
 

a
n

d
 

co
m

p
le

ti
n

g
 

la
te

r.
 

T
h

e
 

a
p

p
ra

is
a

l 

sh
o

w
s 

a
 p

ri
v
a

te
 m

a
rk

e
t 

sa
le

s 
ra

te
 o

f 
2

.4
 p

e
r 

m
o

n
th

, 
a

ft
e

r 
a

ll
o

w
in

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s 

sa
le

s.
 I

n
 t

h
e

 2
5

0
 d

w
e

ll
in

g
s 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s,
 t

h
e

se
 t

a
k
e

 i
n

p
u

ts
 

ta
k
e

 e
ff

e
ct

 o
v
e

r 
o

ff
-s

e
t 

5
 y

e
a

r 
p

e
ri

o
d

s,
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 a

 v
e

ry
 s

im
il

a
r 

m
a

rk
e

t 
sa

le
s 

ra
te

.  

Page 351



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

fe
e

s 
it

 i
s 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 p
e

r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

 r
a

te
 o

f 
£

7
5

0
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

m
o

re
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
, 

w
it

h
 a

t 
le

a
st

 

0
.5

%
 o

f 
m

a
rk

e
t 

tu
rn

o
v
e

r 
a

ll
o

w
e

d
 

to
 c

o
v
e

r 
co

n
v
e

y
a

n
ci

n
g

 o
f 

th
e

 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 u
n

it
s 

a
lo

n
e

. 

 

B
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s:

 W
e

 a
re

 c
o

n
fi

d
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
 u

se
d

 a
n

d
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
re

 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

m
a

k
in

g
 t

h
is

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
. 

S
.1

0
6

: 
S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
3

) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 B

u
rs

a
rs

 o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 

a
b

o
v
e

.  

S
u

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s:
 I

t 
is

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

m
a

k
e

s 
cl

e
a

r 

w
h

a
t 

h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 

a
ss

u
m

e
d

, 
n

o
ti

n
g

 
th

a
t 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 

I 
to

 
th

e
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
is

 a
im

e
d

 t
o

 a
ss

is
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

to
o

.  

In
 

su
m

m
a

ry
, 

th
e

 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
p

p
li
e

d
 

in
 

re
sp

e
ct

 
o

f 
b

u
il

d
in

g
 

co
st

 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
su

st
a

in
a

b
il

it
y

 a
re

: 

§
 

B
a

se
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 –

 C
fS

H
4

 c
o

st
s 

a
ss

u
m

e
d

, 
b

y
 a

d
d

in
g

 5
.8

5
%

 t
o

 P
a

rt
 L

 

B
u

il
d

in
g

 R
e

g
.s

 2
0

1
0

 b
a

se
li

n
e

. 
 

In
 

a
d

d
it

io
n

, 
th

e
 

fo
ll

o
w

in
g

 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s 
w

e
re

 
a

d
d

e
d

 
to

 
th

e
 

sa
m

e
 

b
a

se
li

n
e

 i
n

 r
e

sp
e

ct
 o

f:
 

- 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

5
.5

%
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

h
ig

h
e

r 
w

a
te

r 
e

ff
ic

ie
n

cy
 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 –
 e

q
u

a
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
a

t 
a

sp
e

ct
 o

f 
C

fS
H

5
 e

st
im

a
te

d
 c

o
st

s,
 

a
n

d
; 

- 
£

3
,5

0
0

 p
e

r 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
 r

e
fl

e
ct

in
g

 a
n

 a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 

n
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 

Page 352



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

fo
r 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
co

st
s 

a
ss

o
ci

a
te

d
 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
C

o
u

n
ci

l’
s 

p
o

li
cy

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
in

k
in

g
 a

t 
th

e
 t

im
e

 s
tu

d
y

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
w

e
re

 f
ir

st
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 

T
h

is
 

m
a

y
 

b
e

 
re

g
a

rd
e

d
 

a
s 

a
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 a
li

g
n

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

is
 o

r 
in

d
e

e
d

 a
n

y 
o

th
e

r 
co

st
s 

a
re

a
. 

§
 

S
e

n
si

ti
v
it

y
 t

e
st

in
g

 –
 F

u
ll
 C

fS
H

5
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 c
o

st
s 

re
p

re
se

n
te

d
 b

y
 

1
5

%
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 2

0
1

0
 b

a
se

li
n

e
 a

n
d

 a
g

a
in

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
ct

io
n

 w
it

h
 

th
e

 £
3

,5
0

0
/d

w
e

ll
in

g
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
re

n
e

w
a

b
le

s/
o

th
e

r 
co

st
. 

§
 

T
h

e
 s

im
il

a
r 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
co

st
 e

n
h

a
n

ce
m

e
n

t 
(f

o
r 

su
st

a
in

a
b

le
 c

o
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 

fa
ct

o
rs

) 
o

f 
5

%
 f

o
r 

B
R

E
E

A
M

 (
co

m
p

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 b

a
se

 e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

C
fS

H
4

) 
is

 
n

o
t 

in
co

n
si

st
e

n
t;

 
a

s 
a

 
n

o
n

-r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
, 

a
n

d
 

in
 

co
m

m
o

n
 

w
it

h
 

th
e

 
o

th
e

r 
n

o
n

-r
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
/ 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
sc

e
n

a
ri

o
s 

te
st

in
g

, 
B

R
E

E
A

M
 

w
a

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 
to

 
b

e
 

a
 

m
o

re
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

a
n

d
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 t
o

 r
e

fe
re

n
ce

 -
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
n

 f
a

ct
 t

h
e

 c
o

st
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 w
a

s 
v
e

ry
 s

im
il

a
r.

 T
h

e
 N

H
B

C
 w

e
b

-s
it

e
 s

ta
te

s 
th

a
t 

‘B
R

E
E

A
M

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s 

su
st

a
in

a
b

il
it

y
 a

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
n

o
t 

co
v
e

re
d

 b
y

 t
h

e
 

C
o

d
e

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
st

u
d

e
n

t 
a

cc
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 s

h
e

lt
e

re
d

 l
iv

in
g

, 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
-

d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
o

ff
ic

e
s,

 r
e

ta
il
, 

sc
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 i
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l 
u

n
it

s’
. 

F
e

e
s:

 I
n

 D
S
P

’s
 e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

, 
3

%
 i

s 
a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 m
a

rk
e

t 
n

o
rm

 a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

. 
In

 p
ra

ct
ic

e
 3

%
 i

s 
q

u
it

e
 c

o
m

m
o

n
ly

 u
se

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 o
n

 

si
te

-s
p

e
ci

fi
cs

. 
4

%
 i

s 
a

n
 u

p
p

e
r 

e
n

d
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
, 

n
o

t 
in

co
rr

e
ct

 a
n

d
 s

o
m

e
ti

m
e

s 

se
e

n
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
ve

ra
ll

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
s 

o
n

 t
h

is
 –

 a
t 

sa
y

 1
.5

 t
o

 6
%

, 

Page 353



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
lt

h
o

u
g

h
 t

h
o

se
 f

ig
u

re
s 

a
re

 t
h

e
 e

xt
re

m
e

s.
 O

ve
ra

ll
, 

3
%

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ts
 a

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

. 

A
 p

e
r 

d
w

e
ll

in
g

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 i

s 
m

a
d

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 i
s 

p
la

ce
d

 a
t 

£
7

5
0

; 
a

 r
e

a
so

n
a

b
le

 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
in

 n
o

rm
a

l 
p

a
ra

m
e

te
rs

.  

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

P
C

T
 

2
5

2
1

6
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
A

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

te
n

ts
 

o
f 

th
e

 P
re

li
m

in
a

ry
 D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 

N
o

te
d

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

2
5

2
0

8
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

a
g

re
e

s 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
si

d
u

a
l 

v
a

lu
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 a
n

d
 n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 h
a

s 
p

re
v
io

u
sl

y
 

su
cc

e
ss

fu
ll

y
 b

e
e

n
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 4
 t

im
e

s 
a

n
d

 s
o

 h
a

s 

p
ro

v
e

n
 t

o
 b

e
 r

o
b

u
st

. 

C
C

C
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 
a

n
a

ly
se

d
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 w

h
e

n
 c

o
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 c
h

a
rg

e
 r

a
te

, 
b

u
t 

w
o

u
ld

 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

th
a

t 
th

e
 r

a
te

s 
fo

r 
C

IL
 

w
o

u
ld

 a
p

p
e

a
r 

to
 s

tr
ik

e
 t

h
e

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 b
a

la
n

ce
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

N
o

te
d

. 

Page 354



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

fa
ci

li
ta

ti
n

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 

b
e

 n
o

te
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
is

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

co
v
e

r 

fu
ll

 c
o

st
s 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 i

s 
li

k
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 

si
g

n
if

ic
a

n
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 g

a
p

. 
G

iv
e

n
 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 i
ss

u
e

s,
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

su
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

se
 r

a
te

s 
su

b
je

ct
 t

o
 a

 

re
v
ie

w
 o

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
b

a
si

s 
to

 

a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 g
a

p
 a

n
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
s 

o
f 

C
IL

 

re
v
e

n
u

e
 b

e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

r 
C

o
u

n
ty

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

se
rv

ic
e

s.
 

M
r 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

 

G
re

e
n

 

2
4

7
6

0
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 o
f 

co
re

 

a
n

d
 o

u
te

r 
co

re
 z

o
n

e
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

e
n

a
b

le
d

: 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
co

re
 m

e
rg

in
g

 

th
e

 h
is

to
ri

c 
ce

n
tr

e
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

(C
B

1
) 

a
n

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 P
a

rk
, 

a
n

 o
u

te
r 

co
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 r

in
g

 r
o

a
d

 

a
n

d
 a

n
o

th
e

r 
fi

n
a

l,
 o

u
te

r 
zo

n
e

 f
o

r 

g
ro

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
u

rb
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

C
IL

 c
a

n
 o

n
ly

 b
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
te

d
 i

n
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

r 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
. 

T
h

e
 V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

d
e

m
o

n
st

ra
te

 t
h

a
t 

d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
ti

o
n

 i
s 

p
o

ss
ib

le
 i

n
 t

h
is

 w
a

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

m
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

2
5

2
2

3
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
 

1
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
e

n
a

b
le

 

Page 355



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 

P
a

ri
sh

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

1
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

n
o

 a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 f

o
r 

ch
a

n
g

in
g

 e
xp

e
ct

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
re

tu
rn

 o
n

 

la
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s 

2
. 

H
a

v
in

g
 i

d
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

 p
o

ss
ib

le
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

£
1

0
0

 -
 £

1
5

0
, 

re
co

m
m

e
n

d
in

g
 £

1
2

5
 i

s 
a

 g
ro

ss
 

o
v
e

rs
im

p
li
fi

ca
ti

o
n

 

3
. 

T
h

e
re

 i
s 

n
o

 c
le

a
r 

ca
se

 f
o

r 
a

 

si
n

g
le

, 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 a
 z

o
n

e
d

, 
le

v
e

l 
o

f 

C
IL

 

4
. 

It
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

a
ll

o
w

 f
o

r 
cu

rr
e

n
t 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s  

th
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
E

v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

su
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 

T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n
 -

 S
H

LA
A

 a
n

d
 

P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

, 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n
 –

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 

S
tu

d
y 

(S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

).
 

2
. 

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
7

) 
fr

o
m

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll

 G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

3
. 

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 (
2

5
2

5
7

) 
fr

o
m

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll

 G
ro

u
p

 o
f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

o
n

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

4
. 

T
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
sy

st
e

m
 o

f 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

w
il

l 
b

e
 s

ca
le

d
 b

a
ck

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 

in
tr

o
d

u
ct

io
n

 o
f 

C
IL

. 
A

p
p

e
n

d
ix

 A
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
s 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 o
n

 h
o

w
 C

IL
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 

S
.1

0
6

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
d

o
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

IL
. 

T
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
ls

 m
a

k
e

 

a
ll

o
w

a
n

ce
 f

o
r 

a
 s

ca
le

d
 b

a
ck

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
S

.1
0

6
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s.
  

T
h

e
 s

.1
0

6
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 i

s 
£

1
0

0
0

 p
e

r 
d

w
e

ll
in

g
. 

T
h

is
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 i

n
 r

e
sp

e
ct

 o
f 

s.
1

0
6

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 i

s 
a

 t
y

p
ic

a
l 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

 a
t 

th
is

 s
tu

d
y

 l
e

v
e

l,
 a

s 
fo

u
n

d
 

su
it

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 r
o

b
u

st
 i

n
 o

th
e

r 
ca

se
s;

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

o
n

 t
h

e
 

b
a

si
s 

th
a

t 
C

IL
 w

o
u

ld
 l

a
rg

e
ly

 r
e

p
la

ce
 s

.1
0

6
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 a
cr

o
ss

 s
m

a
ll
e

r 

Page 356



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
n

d
 

n
o

n
-s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 

ty
p

e
 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

a
s 

a
re

 
re

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

v
e

 
o

f 
th

e
 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 

su
p

p
ly

. 
It

 i
s 

a
 s

e
p

a
ra

te
 a

ss
u

m
p

ti
o

n
 a

si
d

e
 f

ro
m

 b
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s 

a
n

d
 s

o
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 

b
e

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
o

th
e

r 
co

ll
e

ct
iv

e
 c

o
st

s 
a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

s;
 a

s 

d
o

e
s 

th
e

 
£

4
0

0
,0

0
0

/h
a

 
in

p
u

t 
fo

r 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 

w
o

rk
s 

o
n

 
th

e
 

la
rg

e
r 

si
te

s 
w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
m

a
d

e
 i

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

m
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
b

u
il

d
 c

o
st

s,
 b

u
il
d

 

co
st

 u
p

li
ft

s,
 e

xt
e

rn
a

l 
w

o
rk

s 
a

n
d

 a
n

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
s.

1
0

6
 a

ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 t
h

a
t 

h
a

s 

a
g

a
in

 b
e

e
n

 r
e

ta
in

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 l

a
rg

e
r 

sc
h

e
m

e
 s

ce
n

a
ri

o
s 

(s
e

e
 L

o
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

IL
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

se
ct

io
n

 2
.1

0
.1

).
 F

ro
m

 D
S

P
’s

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 i

t 
is

 d
e

b
a

ta
b

le
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

th
e

 f
u

ll
 £

4
0

0
,0

0
0

/h
a

 a
ll
o

w
a

n
ce

 n
e

e
d

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
t 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
a

p
p

ra
is

e
d

, 
n

e
v
e

rt
h

e
le

ss
 a

g
a

in
 t

h
e

 v
ie

w
 t

a
k
e

n
 w

a
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

in
cl

u
si

o
n

 
o

f 
th

e
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
co

st
s 

a
t 

th
e

 
v
e

ry
 

le
a

st
 

a
d

d
e

d
 

fu
rt

h
e

r 

co
n

ti
n

g
e

n
cy

 
/ 

b
u

ff
e

ri
n

g
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l,
 

a
n

d
 

/ 
o

r 
m

o
re

 
g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

 
re

fl
e

ct
e

d
 

sc
e

n
a

ri
o

s 
w

h
e

re
 s

u
ch

 i
n

cr
e

a
se

d
 c

o
st

s 
co

u
ld

 b
e

 a
p

p
li

ca
b

le
. 

 

D
r 

E
d

w
a

rd
 

Ll
o

y
d

 J
e

n
k
in

s 
 

2
4

8
5

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

C
IL

 r
a

te
 t

o
o

 h
ig

h
: 

I'
m

 s
u

re
 t

h
e

 l
e

v
y
 

se
t 

a
t 

£
1

2
5

 p
e

r 
sq

 m
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

o
o

 

h
ig

h
 f

o
r 

a
 l

a
rg

e
 s

w
a

th
e

 o
f 

re
si

d
e

n
ts

 

in
 R

o
m

se
y

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 a

d
v
o

ca
te

 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

ct
io

n
, 

o
r 

a
lt

e
rn

a
ti

v
e

ly
, 

sp
li

t 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
le

v
y

 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
a

re
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il
it

y
, 

a
n

d
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 w

e
ll

-

e
st

a
b

li
sh

e
d

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 w
il

l 
e

n
a

b
le

 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

m
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

E
v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 s

u
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 L

e
v
y

 V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 -
 S

H
LA

A
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
H

ig
h

 L
e

v
e

l 

Page 357



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

m
o

re
 p

re
ci

se
ly

 in
to

 m
o

re
 d

e
fi

n
it

e
 

a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
. 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 a
n

d
, 

th
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
Lo

ca
l 
P

la
n

 –
 S

tu
d

e
n

t 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

tu
d

y
 (

Su
m

m
e

r 
2

0
1

3
).

 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 c
o

n
si

d
e

ri
n

g
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
, 

th
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 s
e

t 
o

u
t 

a
s 

%
s 

o
f 

G
D

V
 (

re
p

o
rt

 s
e

ct
io

n
 3

.1
0

 /
 F

ig
u

re
 

1
2

) 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l(
s)

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t.
 I

t 

ca
n

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 t
h

a
t 

a
t 

£
1

2
5

/s
q

. 
m

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u

n
te

d
 t

o
 4

.1
7

%
 G

D
V

 t
o

 

2
.5

%
 G

D
V

 a
cr

o
ss

 V
Ls

 2
 t

o
 6

; 
3

.5
%

 t
o

 2
.7

8
%

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h

e
 m

d
-v

a
lu

e
s 

ra
n

g
e

 V
Ls

 

3
 t

o
 5

. 
A

t 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

 i
s 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 

o
f 

o
v
e

ra
ll

 s
ch

e
m

e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 D
S
P

’s
 w

id
e

r 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 o
f 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 l
e

ve
ls

. 
A

ll
ie

d
 t

o
 t

h
is

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 

re
ce

n
t 

a
n

d
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
d

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

 o
f 

th
e

 C
it

y
’s

 

h
o

u
si

n
g

 m
a

rk
e

t,
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

in
d

ic
a

ti
o

n
s 

th
a

t 
h

o
u

se
 p

ri
ce

s 
a

re
 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
; 

m
o

re
 s

o
 t

h
a

n
 i
n

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
o

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 c
e

n
tr

a
l 

Lo
n

d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

o
 a

 d
e

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
lo

o
k
s 

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 o
u

t-
st

ri
p

p
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 

n
o

te
d

 %
s 

o
f 

G
D

V
. 

 

S
o

u
th

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

2
5

2
4

0
 

S
C

D
C

 h
a

s 
a

ls
o

 a
p

p
o

in
te

d
 D

ix
o

n
 

S
e

a
rl

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 (

D
S

P
) 

to
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

vi
a

b
il

it
y

 

a
n

a
ly

si
s 

o
f 

th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 

in
fo

rm
 S

C
D

C
's

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 

N
o

te
d

 

Page 358



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
. 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

. 
S

C
D

C
 r

e
a

d
il

y
 

a
ck

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 r

e
si

d
u

a
l 

la
n

d
 

v
a

lu
e

 m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
 a

d
o

p
te

d
 b

y
 

D
S

P
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 c
o

n
si

d
e

re
d

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 b
y

 C
IL

 e
xa

m
in

e
rs

 a
n

d
 

is
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 G

u
id

a
n

ce
 

D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

2
. 

          

Page 359



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 2
a

 –
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t?

 I
f 

n
o

t 
w

h
a

t 
d

o
 y

o
u

 t
h

in
k

 t
h

e
 r

a
te

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
d

 w
h

y
?

 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

T
a

y
lo

r 
W

im
p

e
y

 

E
a

st
 A

n
g

li
a

 &
 

B
a

rr
a

t 
H

o
m

e
s 

E
a

st
e

rn
 C

o
u

n
ti

e
s 

2
5

2
6

1
 

T
h

e
 c

o
n

so
rt

iu
m

 h
a

s 
co

n
ce

rn
s 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
u

se
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ia
b

il
it

y
 m

o
d

e
ls

 a
n

d
 

th
e

 i
n

te
rp

re
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 b

a
se

 w
h

e
n

 

se
tt

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s.
 I

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 

·
 

B
u

il
d

 c
o

st
s,

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y 

fo
r 

fl
a

ts
; 

·
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

fi
t 

fo
r 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 

h
o

u
si

n
g

; 

·
 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

a
l 
fe

e
s;

 

·
 

S
1

0
6

 c
o

st
s;

 

·
 

T
h

e
 a

n
a

ly
si

s 
o

f 
th

e
 l

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
ly

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 r
e

su
lt

s;
 a

n
d

 

·
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 b
u

ff
e

r 

 

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
6

0
) 

fr
o

m
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

T
a

y
lo

r 
W

im
p

e
y

 E
a

st
 A

n
g

li
a

 &
 B

a
rr

a
t 

H
o

m
e

s 
E

a
st

e
rn

 

C
o

u
n

ti
e

s  
in

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 1
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

  

B
o

y
e

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 o

n
 

b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
B

e
rk

e
le

y
 

H
o

m
e

s 

2
5

2
3

5
 

T
h

e
 r

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 

C
IL

 r
a

te
 i

s 
to

o
 h

ig
h

 w
h

e
n

 

co
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 r
a

te
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

, 
e

xa
m

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 

a
d

o
p

te
d

 i
n

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
ri

n
g

 d
is

tr
ic

ts
 

S
e

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
3

4
) 

fr
o

m
 B

o
y

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 o
n

 

b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 
B

e
rk

e
le

y
 H

o
m

e
s 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 1

 

a
b

o
v
e

.  

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

P
C

T
 

2
5

2
1

7
 

A
g

re
e

 w
it

h
 r

a
te

s 
N

o
te

d
 

Page 360



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

2
5

2
0

9
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

co
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 

ra
te

s 
fo

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 
a

s 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 

b
u

o
y

a
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
t.

 Q
u

e
ry

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 z

o
n

e
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 n
o

w
 b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 

g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
ce

n
t 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
e

fo
rm

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
fo

r 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 

si
ze

s 
o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

  

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

D
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 

C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

d
if

fe
re

n
t 

si
ze

s 
o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

ca
n

n
o

t 
b

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
. 

W
h

il
e

 

a
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
to

 a
ll

o
w

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 A
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

to
 

co
n

si
d

e
rs

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
ti

n
g

 r
a

te
s 

o
n

 t
h

is
 b

a
si

s 
w

a
s 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
a

 r
e

ce
n

t 
g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
co

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i

t 
is

 n
o

t 

k
n

o
w

n
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
th

is
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 
w

il
l 
fo

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

re
v
is

e
d

 C
IL

 r
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
o

r 
w

h
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
w

il
l 

h
a

p
p

e
n

. 

D
a

rw
in

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

 
2

5
1

9
9

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

N
o

te
d

 

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

2
5

2
4

9
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
a

k
e

n
 s

e
e

m
s 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
 

N
o

te
d

 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
5

2
2

4
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 z

e
ro

. 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

a
re

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 c

h
a

rg
e

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

st
il

l 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
E

v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

su
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 

Page 361



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 -
 S

H
LA

A
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e

l 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

, 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
L o

ca
l 

P
la

n
 –

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

tu
d

y
 (

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

).
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 

co
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 v
ia

b
il
it

y
, 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

s 
%

s 
o

f 
G

D
V

 (
re

p
o

rt
 s

e
ct

io
n

 3
.1

0
 /

 F
ig

u
re

 

1
2

) 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l(
s)

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t.
 I

t 
ca

n
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 t

h
a

t 
a

t 

£
1

2
5

/s
q

. 
m

 t
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

 a
m

o
u

n
te

d
 t

o
 4

.1
7

%
 G

D
V

 t
o

 

2
.5

%
 G

D
V

 a
cr

o
ss

 V
Ls

 2
 t

o
 6

; 
3

.5
%

 t
o

 2
.7

8
%

 a
cr

o
ss

 

th
e

 m
d

-v
a

lu
e

s 
ra

n
g

e
 V

Ls
 3

 t
o

 5
. 

A
t 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l 

e
n

v
is

a
g

e
d

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

 i
s 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll
 s

ch
e

m
e

 v
a

lu
e

 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 

D
S

P
’s

 w
id

e
r 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 
in

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
d

 

a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 le
v
e

ls
. 

A
ll

ie
d

 t
o

 

th
is

, 
th

e
re

 a
re

 r
e

ce
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
v
id

e
n

ce
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
 o

f 
th

e
 C

it
y

’s
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 m

a
rk

e
t,

 

w
it

h
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
in

d
ic

a
ti

o
n

s 
th

a
t 

h
o

u
se

 p
ri

ce
s 

a
re

 

in
cr

e
a

si
n

g
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
; 

m
o

re
 s

o
 t

h
a

n
 i
n

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s 
o

th
e

r 

th
a

n
 c

e
n

tr
a

l 
Lo

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t

o
 a

 d
e

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
lo

o
k
s 

Page 362



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr

e
a

d
y

 o
u

t-
st

ri
p

p
e

d
 t

h
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 n
o

te
d

 

%
s 

o
f 

G
D

V
. 

D
r 

E
d

w
a

rd
 L

lo
yd

 

Je
n

k
in

s  

2
4

8
5

3
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

o
o

 h
ig

h
 f

o
r 

la
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 

h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

in
 c

e
rt

a
in

 a
re

a
s 

o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
.  

N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
2

4
) 

fr
o

m
 H

is
to

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
in

g
to

n
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 2

a
 a

b
o

v
e

. 
C

IL
 w

il
l 

n
o

t 
b

e
 

le
v
ie

d
 o

n
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

s.
  

S
o

u
th

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
4

1
 

S
C

D
C

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
d

is
a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

re
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l 
ra

te
s.

  

W
h

il
st

 S
C

D
C

 c
o

n
si

d
e

rs
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 m
a

y
 h

a
v
e

 

b
e

e
n

 a
 c

a
se

 f
o

r 
C

C
C

 t
o

 l
e

v
y
 a

 h
ig

h
e

r 
re

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l 

C
IL

 r
a

te
, 

n
o

t 
le

a
st

 h
a

v
in

g
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

u
rr

e
n

t 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 s
e

cu
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
S

C
D

C
 r

e
co

g
n

is
e

s 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

ra
te

 f
o

r 
e

a
ch

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

a
re

a
 i

s 
a

 m
a

tt
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 t
e

rm
s 

o
f 

st
ri

k
in

g
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 b

a
la

n
ce

. 
 

S
C

D
C

 a
ls

o
 a

ck
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

s 
th

e
 g

u
id

a
n

ce
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 v
ia

b
ly

 t
h

e
 s

it
e

s 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 i

n
 t

h
e

 L
o

ca
l 

P
la

n
 

sh
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 t

h
re

a
te

n
e

d
 b

y
 in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 C
IL

 

N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
2

4
) 

fr
o

m
 H

is
to

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
in

g
to

n
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 2

a
 a

b
o

v
e

.  

Page 363



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

ra
te

s.
 

D
e

lo
it

te
 R

e
a

l 

E
st

a
te

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti

o
n

 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

2
5

2
4

6
 

W
h

il
st

 U
S

S
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

o
b

je
ct

 t
o

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

ch
, 

th
e

y
 r

e
q

u
e

st
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
e

n
su

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 r
a

te
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 d

e
tr

im
e

n
ta

l 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

sc
h

e
m

e
s 

a
n

d
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

h
in

d
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

. 

N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
re

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

2
5

2
2

4
) 

fr
o

m
 H

is
to

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
in

g
to

n
 

in
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 2

a
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

          

Page 364



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 2
b

 –
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

re
ta

il
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t?
 I

f 
n

o
t 

w
h

a
t 

d
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n

d
 w

h
y

?
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

P
C

T
 

2
5

2
1

8
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
N

o
te

d
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
1

0
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
W

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

re
ta

il
 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 m
a

rk
e

t 
co

n
d

it
io

n
s.

 

N
o

te
d

 

D
a

rw
in

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

 
2

5
2

0
0

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

N
o

te
d

 

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

2
5

2
5

0
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 s
e

e
m

s 
re

a
so

n
a

b
le

 
N

o
te

d
 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
5

2
2

5
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 z

e
ro

. 
N

o
te

d
. 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
a

re
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 c

h
a

rg
e

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

st
il

l 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
E

v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

su
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 -
 S

H
LA

A
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e

l 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

, 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n
 –

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

Page 365



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

tu
d

y
 (

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

).
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 

co
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 v
ia

b
il
it

y
, 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

s 
%

s 
o

f 
G

D
V

 (
re

p
o

rt
 s

e
ct

io
n

 3
.1

0
 /

 F
ig

u
re

 

1
3

) 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l(
s)

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t.
 A

t 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

 i
s 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll
 

sc
h

e
m

e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 D
S
P

’s
 w

id
e

r 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 

o
f 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 C
IL

 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 l

e
ve

ls
. 

       

Page 366



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 2
c 

–
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

st
u

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t?
 I

f 
n

o
t 

w
h

a
t 

d
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n

d
 w

h
y

?
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
i t

y
 o

f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 B
u

rs
a

rs
 

a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 S

u
b

-

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

2
5

2
5

4
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
B

u
il
d

 C
o

st
s.

 W
e

 n
o

te
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 s

tu
d

e
n

t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

th
a

t 
th

e
 t

o
ta

l 
co

st
s 

fo
r 

a
 1

0
0

 u
n

it
 s

ch
e

m
e

 i
s 

£
4

,3
3

4
,6

7
0

 w
h

ic
h

 

re
fl

e
ct

s 
£

4
3

,3
4

7
 p

e
r 

ro
o

m
. 

In
 t

h
e

 e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
 o

f 

th
e

 B
E

P
S

C
, 

th
is

 i
s 

to
o

 l
o

w
, 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll

y
 b

e
a

ri
n

g
 i

n
 

m
in

d
 (

i)
 t

h
e

 h
e

ri
ta

g
e

 /
 l

is
te

d
 s

ta
tu

s 
o

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

in
 t

h
e

 C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

e
n

tr
e

 (
ii

) 
th

e
 l

o
n

g
 t

e
rm

 

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 B
E

P
S

C
 t

a
k
e

 o
n

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 (
ii

i)
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li
ty

 d
e

si
g

n
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

W
e

 b
e

li
e

ve
 a

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 

a
ro

u
n

d
 

£
1

1
0

,0
0

0
 -

 £
1

3
0

,0
0

0
 i

s 
m

o
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

, 
a

n
d

 

if
 n

e
ce

ss
a

ry
, 

w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 m
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 h

a
p

p
y

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 a

t 
th

e
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 t

im
e

 t
o

 

th
e

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

n
ts

. 

N
o

te
d

. 
S

e
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 S

a
v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 B
u

rs
a

rs
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-C

o
m

m
it

te
e

 i
n

 

re
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 1

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
 

2
5

2
6

4
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
A

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

e
 o

f 
£

1
2

5
/s

q
.m

 c
o

u
ld

 

se
ri

o
u

sl
y
 u

n
d

e
rm

in
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
's

 a
sp

ir
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

p
ro

v
id

in
g

 s
tu

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 s

it
e

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 b
e

li
e

v
e

s 
th

a
t 

st
a

te
 s

e
ct

o
r 

e
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

xc
lu

d
e

d
 f

o
rm

 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
a

re
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 c

h
a

rg
e

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

st
il

l 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

e
 

Page 367



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
IL

 l
ia

b
il

it
y

. 
T

h
e

y
 a

ls
o

 p
o

in
t 

o
u

t 
th

a
t 

th
e

y
 m

a
y 

q
u

a
li
ty

 f
o

r 
a

 m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 e

xe
m

p
ti

o
n

 d
u

e
 t

o
 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

s 
a

s 
a

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 c

h
a

ri
ty

. 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
E

v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

su
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 -
 S

H
LA

A
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e

l 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

, 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n
 –

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

tu
d

y
 (

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

).
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

si
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 

co
n

si
d

e
ri

n
g

 v
ia

b
il
it

y
, 

th
e

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
w

e
re

 

se
t 

o
u

t 
a

s 
%

s 
o

f 
G

D
V

 (
re

p
o

rt
 s

e
ct

io
n

 3
.1

0
 /

 F
ig

u
re

 

1
3

) 
to

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

in
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l’

s 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

l(
s)

 t
o

 b
e

 s
e

t.
 A

t 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

l 
e

n
v
is

a
g

e
d

, 
th

e
 C

IL
 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

 i
s 

a
 m

o
d

e
st

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
o

v
e

ra
ll
 

sc
h

e
m

e
 v

a
lu

e
 i
n

-l
in

e
 w

it
h

 D
S
P

’s
 w

id
e

r 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 

o
f 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 o
n

 s
u

it
a

b
le

 C
IL

 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 l

e
ve

ls
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

b
y

 c
h

a
ri

ti
e

s 
fo

r 
th

e
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 

ch
a

ri
ta

b
le

 p
u

rp
o

se
s 

is
 e

xe
m

p
t 

fr
o

m
 a

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

e
 

u
n

d
e

r 
R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 4

3
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s.

  

Page 368



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

P
C

T
 

2
5

2
1

9
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
N

o
te

d
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
1

1
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
W

e
 c

o
n

si
d

e
r 

th
e

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

st
u

d
e

n
t 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

ti
o

n
 a

s 
a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
m

a
rk

e
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s  

N
o

te
d

 

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

2
5

2
5

1
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
a

k
e

n
 s

e
e

m
s 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
. 

N
o

te
d

. 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
5

2
2

6
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 z

e
ro

. 
N

o
te

d
. 

S
e

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l 
C

o
ll
e

g
e

 

a
b

o
v
e

 i
n

 r
e

sp
o

n
se

 t
o

 q
u

e
st

io
n

 2
c 

a
b

o
v
e

. 

       

Page 369



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 2
d

 –
 D

o
 y

o
u

 a
g

re
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 C
IL

 r
a

te
s 

fo
r 

a
ll

 o
th

e
r 

u
se

s?
 I

f 
n

o
t 

w
h

a
t 

d
o

 y
o

u
 t

h
in

k
 t

h
e

 r
a

te
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n

d
 w

h
y

?
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

R
e

g
io

n
a

l 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
 

2
5

2
6

5
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

 w
e

lc
o

m
e

s 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
sa

l 

th
a

t 
'a

ll
 o

f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 B
, 

C
1

, 
C

2
 

a
n

d
 D

 C
la

ss
 U

se
s'

 w
il

l 
n

o
t 

o
n

 t
h

e
 b

a
si

s 
o

f 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
e

xp
e

ct
a

ti
o

n
s,

 b
e

 s
u

b
je

ct
 t

o
 a

 l
e

v
y
 

ch
a

rg
e

. 

N
o

te
d

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
1

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
q

u
e

ry
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

 n
il

 r
a

te
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
/b

u
si

n
e

ss
 

p
re

m
is

e
s 

a
n

d
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
a

 c
h

a
rg

e
 i

sn
't

 v
ia

b
le

 

e
sp

e
ci

a
ll

y
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
h

ri
v
in

g
 l

o
ca

l 
e

co
n

o
m

y 
a

n
d

 

sp
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y
 i

n
 t

h
o

se
 m

o
st

 s
o

u
g

h
t 

a
ft

e
r 

a
re

a
s.

 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 r

a
te

s 
a

re
 b

a
se

d
 o

n
 c

le
a

r 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 o

f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 b
a

se
d

 o
n

 w
e

ll
-e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
 

m
e

th
o

d
o

lo
g

y
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s 
p

ro
p

o
se

d
 a

re
 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 t

o
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 c

h
a

rg
e

s,
 w

h
ic

h
 w

il
l 

st
il

l 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

to
 c

o
m

e
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

. 
E

v
id

e
n

ce
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

su
it

e
 o

f 
v
ia

b
il

it
y

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

ci
l.

 T
h

e
se

 a
re

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 –
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 L
e

v
y

 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 A
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t;

 T
h

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Lo
ca

l 
P

la
n

 -
 S

H
LA

A
 a

n
d

 P
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e

 A
ll

o
ca

ti
o

n
s 

H
ig

h
 L

e
v
e

l 
V

ia
b

il
it

y
 A

ss
e

ss
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

, 
th

e
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
Lo

ca
l 

P
la

n
 –

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

H
o

u
si

n
g

 A
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 H

o
u

si
n

g
 S

tu
d

y
 (

S
u

m
m

e
r 

2
0

1
3

).
 

V
ia

b
il

it
y

 e
v
id

e
n

ce
 h

a
s 

n
o

t 
d

e
m

o
n

st
ra

te
d

 s
co

p
e

 f
o

r 

Page 370



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l/
b

u
si

n
e

ss
 c

h
a

rg
e

. 
T

h
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y 

re
su

lt
s 

w
e

re
 t

y
p

ic
a

ll
y

 p
o

o
r 

fo
r 

th
e

se
 s

ce
n

a
ri

o
s,

 s
u

ch
 t

h
a

t 

o
n

ly
 t

h
e

 m
o

st
 f

a
v
o

u
ra

b
le

 c
o

m
b

in
a

ti
o

n
s 

o
f 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 v

ia
b

le
 s

ce
n

a
ri

o
s,

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

n
 o

n
ly

 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
si

te
 a

n
d

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
w

h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
co

n
si

d
e

re
d

 t
o

 b
e

 

su
ff

ic
ie

n
tl

y
 c

o
n

si
st

e
n

t 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 

C
IL

 

ch
a

rg
in

g
. 

T
h

e
se

 f
in

d
in

g
s 

a
re

 a
 r

e
fl

e
ct

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 p
o

o
r 

re
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

v
a

lu
e

s 
a

n
d

 

co
st

s,
 c

o
m

p
o

u
n

d
e

d
 b

y 
u

n
ce

rt
a

in
 m

a
rk

e
t 

co
n

d
it

io
n

s,
 a

n
d

 a
re

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

Lo
ca

l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

s.
 D

S
P

 c
o

n
cl

u
d

e
d

 t
h

a
t,

 

re
g

a
rd

le
ss

 o
f 

a
n

y
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 

a
re

a
 b

a
se

d
 v

a
ri

a
ti

o
n

, 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
n

li
k
e

ly
 t

o
 i

m
p

ro
v
e

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 t

o
 

cl
e

a
rl

y
 e

v
id

e
n

ce
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

co
p

e
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 

u
se

s 
(e

.g
. 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

ll
y

 h
ig

h
e

r 
re

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 

ca
p

it
a

l 
v
a

lu
e

s 
fo

r 
so

m
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
rm

s 
in

 t
h

e
 

h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it

y
 o

r 
in

 s
ci

e
n

ce
 p

a
rk

 t
y

p
e

 l
o

ca
ti

o
n

s)
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

s 
w

it
h

 a
ll

 C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 r
a

te
s,

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

 b
e

 

k
e

p
t 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

s 
in

 l
ig

h
t 

o
f 

e
co

n
o

m
ic

 c
ir

cu
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
a

n
d

 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 v
a

lu
e

 c
o

st
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
s h

ip
s.

 

Page 371



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

 

D
a

rw
in

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

 
2

5
2

0
1

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

N
o

te
d

 

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

2
5

2
5

2
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
a

k
e

n
 s

e
e

m
s 

re
a

so
n

a
b

le
 

N
o

te
d

 

M
r 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

 

G
re

e
n

 

2
4

7
6

1
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

re
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ra
te

 a
p

p
li

e
d

 

to
 n

o
n

-r
e

ta
il

 b
u

si
n

e
ss

 u
se

, 
p

e
rh

a
p

s 
o

f 
£

1
5

0
 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 g

re
a

te
r 

im
p

a
ct

 o
n

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
, 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 R

O
I 

is
 n

o
t 

to
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 b

u
t 

m
a

y 
b

e
 t

o
 

sh
a

re
h

o
ld

e
rs

 o
f 

b
u

si
n

e
ss

e
s 

m
a

n
a

g
e

d
 a

n
d

 

d
o

m
ic

il
e

d
 e

ls
e

w
h

e
re

, 
in

 c
o

n
tr

a
d

is
ti

n
ct

io
n

 t
o

 

re
ta

il
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
li
e

s 
a

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

im
m

e
d

ia
te

 a
re

a
, 

a
s 

it
s 

ra
ti

o
n

a
le

 f
o

r 
b

u
il
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
 o

p
e

ra
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

a
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
. 

S
e

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 2

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
5

2
2

7
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
S

e
tt

in
g

 a
 z

e
ro

 r
a

te
 m

e
a

n
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

cu
rr

e
n

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s 

to
 t

h
e

 C
o

rr
id

o
r 

A
re

a
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 P
la

n
s 

(e
.g

. 
N

o
rt

h
e

rn
 a

t 
£

3
9

9
 p

e
r 

tr
ip

, 

in
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

o
f 

cl
a

ss
 u

se
) 

w
il

l 
n

o
t 

b
e

 m
a

d
e

. 
 

C
la

ss
 (

d
) 

–
 a

ll
 o

th
e

r 
u

se
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
t 

th
e

 b
a

re
 

m
in

im
u

m
, 

b
e

 m
a

k
in

g
 a

 s
e

n
si

b
le

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 t

o
 

O
n

ce
 C

IL
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
d

 t
a

ri
ff

 b
a

se
d

 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
th

is
 n

a
tu

re
 b

e
co

m
e

 u
n

la
w

fu
l.

  

Page 372



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

 p
la

n
s 

S
o

u
th

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

2
5

2
4

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
S

C
D

C
 i

s 
a

w
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
se

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 m
o

n
ie

s 

a
re

 b
e

in
g

 s
e

cu
re

d
 f

ro
m

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l/

o
ff

ic
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
m

a
tt

e
rs

 s
u

ch
 a

s 
tr

a
n

sp
o

rt
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
S

C
D

C
 i

s 
co

n
sc

io
u

s 
th

a
t 

th
e

 

p
ro

p
o

sa
l 

b
y 

C
C

C
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
C

IL
 r

a
te

 

a
t 

n
il
 w

il
l 

m
e

a
n

 t
h

a
t 

m
o

n
ie

s 
th

a
t 

co
u

ld
 

re
a

so
n

a
b

ly
 b

e
 e

xp
e

ct
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
su

lt
 f

ro
m

 

co
m

m
e

rc
ia

l/
o

ff
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 l

o
st

. 

S
C

D
C

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 k
e

e
n

 t
o

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

 h
o

w
 C

C
C

 

in
te

n
d

 u
si

n
g

 s
e

ct
io

n
 1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 f
u

n
d

 

si
te

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 i
n

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
a

n
y

 

st
ra

te
g

ic
 s

it
e

s 
th

a
t 

m
a

y
 r

e
su

lt
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
ir

 n
e

w
 

lo
ca

l 
p

la
n

, 
a

n
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

e
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 j

o
in

e
d

-

u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 i
n

 t
h

is
 r

e
g

a
rd

.  

S
e

e
 r

e
sp

o
n

se
 t

o
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
sh

ir
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

 

re
la

ti
o

n
 t

o
 q

u
e

st
io

n
 2

d
 a

b
o

v
e

. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

te
n

d
s 

to
 p

u
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
P

D
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
.  

T
h

e
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 

co
n

ta
in

s 
a

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

S
.1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l

a
st

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

y
e

a
rs

 a
t 

A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

.  

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

  
2

5
2

3
7

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
. 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 

d
ra

ft
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 r

a
te

s 
a

s 
th

e
y 

e
xc

lu
d

e
 a

n
y 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

re
la

ti
n

g
 t

o
 n

e
w

 o
r 

e
xi

st
in

g
 s

it
e

s 

fo
r 

in
d

o
o

r 
o

r 
o

u
td

o
o

r 
sp

o
rt

, 
su

ch
 a

s 
p

la
y

in
g

 

fi
e

ld
s,

 t
e

n
n

is
 c

o
u

rt
s,

 b
o

w
li

n
g

 g
re

e
n

s,
 s

p
o

rt
s 

h
a

ll
s,

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 p
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 f

it
n

e
ss

 

N
o

te
d

 

Page 373



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

ce
n

tr
e

s.
 A

ll
 t

h
e

se
 s

it
e

s 
u

su
a

ll
y

 f
a

ll
 w

it
h

in
 U

se
 

C
la

ss
 D

2
 w

h
ic

h
 i

s 
sp

e
ci

fi
ca

ll
y

 e
xc

lu
d

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

ch
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
s,

 a
n

d
 I

 a
ss

u
m

e
 t

h
a

t 
sp

o
rt

in
g

 

u
se

s 
th

a
t 

fa
ll
 o

u
ts

id
e

 U
se

 C
la

ss
 D

2
 (

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 s

it
e

s 
fo

r 
m

o
to

r 
sp

o
rt

s,
 s

h
o

o
ti

n
g

 

ra
n

g
e

s 
e

tc
.)

 w
il

l 
a

ls
o

 b
e

 e
xe

m
p

t.
 

T
h

e
 T

h
e

a
tr

e
s 

T
ru

st
 

2
5

2
0

6
 

W
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
 n

il
 r

a
te

 in
 T

a
b

le
 2

 f
o

r 
'A

ll
 o

th
e

r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

'.
  
P

le
a

se
 n

o
te

 f
o

r 
cl

a
ri

ty
 t

h
a

t 

th
e

a
tr

e
s 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 s

u
i 
g

e
n

e
ri

s,
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 n
o

t 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 r
e

ta
il
 u

se
s,

 a
s 

th
e

y
 a

re
 f

re
q

u
e

n
tl

y
 

e
rr

o
n

e
o

u
sl

y
 d

e
si

g
n

a
te

d
 D

2
. 

T
h

e
a

tr
e

 u
se

s 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y
 u

n
a

b
le

 t
o

 b
e

a
r 

th
e

 

co
st

 o
f 

C
IL

 f
o

r 
v
ia

b
il
it

y
 r

e
a

so
n

s.
  

T
h

e
 T

h
e

a
tr

e
s 

T
ru

st
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
s 

e
it

h
e

r 
th

e
 s

e
tt

in
g

 o
f 

a
 n

il
 

ra
te

, 
th

e
 a

p
p

li
ca

ti
o

n
 o

f 
ch

a
r i

ta
b

le
 o

r 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 r

e
li

e
fs

, 
a

p
p

ly
in

g
 D

1
/D

2
 r

a
te

s 

w
h

e
re

 d
if

fe
re

n
ti

a
l 
ra

te
s 

a
re

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

, 
o

r 

re
cy

cl
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
rg

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 t
h

e
a

tr
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

w
h

e
re

 a
 s

in
g

le
 r

a
te

 i
s 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

. 

N
o

te
d

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 
2

5
2

0
5

 
T

h
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
s 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

 n
il
 r

a
te

 
N

o
te

d
 

Page 374



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 
fo

r 
a

ca
d

e
m

ic
 a

n
d

 r
e

se
a

rc
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

D
e

lo
it

te
 R

e
a

l 

E
st

a
te

 o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti

o
n

 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

2
5

2
4

7
 

W
it

h
 r

e
g

a
rd

s 
to

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 B

, 
C

1
, 

C
2

 a
n

d
 D

 

u
se

 c
la

ss
 r

a
te

, 
U

S
S
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
s 

th
e

 r
a

te
 o

f 
£

0
 p

e
r 

sq
u

a
re

 m
e

tr
e

. 

N
o

te
d

 

         

Page 375



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 3
 –

 D
o

 y
o

u
 a

g
re

e
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 v
ie

w
s 

o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
p

p
ly

 a
n

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 (
in

 a
cc

o
rd

a
n

ce
 w

it
h

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
9

b
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s)
?

 P
le

a
se

 g
iv

e
 r

e
a

so
n

in
g

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
a

n
sw

e
rs

. 
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y  

2
5

2
3

1
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 

In
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 a
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 I

n
st

a
lm

e
n

ts
 P

o
li

cy
, 

w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

) 
p

a
y

a
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 v
a

ry
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

. 
T

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
n

 a
ls

o
 v

a
ry

 b
y

 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 l

ia
b

il
it

y
. 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

ic
h

, 
in

 c
e

rt
a

in
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
re

a
te

n
s 

th
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

u
s 

th
e

 

d
e

li
v
e

ra
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

, 
ca

n
 b

e
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
n

 a
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 b

a
si

s.
 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
 D

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

e
re

b
y

 C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

is
 n

o
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

sc
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
(s

e
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 7
0

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

0
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
).

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 

2
5

2
5

5
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
W

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
C

C
C

 

p
u

b
li

sh
 d

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
ci

e
s 

fo
r 

co
m

m
e

n
t 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
 D

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

Page 376



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

B
u

rs
a

rs
’ 

a
n

d
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

a
t 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

st
a

g
e

, 
if

 n
o

t 
b

e
fo

re
. 

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

) 
p

a
y

a
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 v
a

ry
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

. 
T

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
n

 a
ls

o
 v

a
ry

 b
y

 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 l

ia
b

il
it

y
. 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

ic
h

, 
in

 c
e

rt
a

in
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
re

a
te

n
s 

th
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 o
f 

th
e

 s
ch

e
m

e
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

, 
ca

n
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 

o
n

e
-t

o
-o

n
e

 b
a

si
s.

 

T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

e
re

b
y

 C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

is
 n

o
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

sc
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
(s

e
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 7
0

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

0
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
).

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll

s 
G

ro
u

p
 o

f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

2
5

2
5

8
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
W

e
 r

e
co

m
m

e
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
C

C
C

 p
u

b
li

sh
 a

 

d
ra

ft
 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 f
o

r 
co

m
m

e
n

t 
a

t 
th

e
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 s
ta

g
e

. 

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

) 
p

a
y

a
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 v
a

ry
 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
 D

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

e
re

b
y

 C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

is
 n

o
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

sc
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
(s

e
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 7
0

 o
f 

Page 377



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

. 
 T

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
n

 a
ls

o
 v

a
ry

 b
y

 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 l

ia
b

il
it

y
. 

 T
h

is
 s

h
o

u
ld

 

in
cl

u
d

e
 a

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 t

o
 a

ll
o

w
 t

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 o
f 

C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 

o
n

e
-t

o
-o

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

in
 c

e
rt

a
in

 s
it

u
a

ti
o

n
s 

w
h

e
re

 

C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
re

a
te

n
 t

h
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
n

d
 

d
e

li
v
e

ra
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
a

 s
ch

e
m

e
.  

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

0
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
).

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

T
a

y
lo

r 
W

im
p

e
y

 

E
a

st
 A

n
g

li
a

 &
 

B
a

rr
a

tt
 H

o
m

e
s 

E
a

st
e

rn
 C

o
u

n
ti

e
s 

2
5

2
6

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
A

 d
ra

ft
 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
ci

e
s 

b
e

 

p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 f

o
r 

co
m

m
e

n
t 

a
t 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
. 

 

In
 d

e
te

rm
in

in
g

 a
 s

u
it

a
b

le
 I

n
st

a
lm

e
n

ts
 P

o
li

cy
, 

w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 r
e

co
m

m
e

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 i
n

it
ia

l 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 (
%

) 
p

a
y

a
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 

co
m

m
e

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 v
a

ry
 

d
e

p
e

n
d

in
g

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

ca
le

 o
f 

th
e

 t
o

ta
l 

C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
d

u
e

. 
T

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 a
n

d
 p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

su
b

se
q

u
e

n
t 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 t
h

e
n

 a
ls

o
 v

a
ry

 b
y

 

th
e

 s
ca

le
 o

f 
th

e
 C

IL
 l

ia
b

il
it

y
. 

T
h

e
re

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
 D

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 o

v
e

rr
id

in
g

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

w
h

e
re

b
y

 C
IL

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 n

e
g

o
ti

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 

a
g

re
e

d
 o

n
 a

 o
n

e
 t

o
 o

n
e

 b
a

si
s 

is
 n

o
t 

w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

sc
o

p
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
(s

e
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 7
0

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

0
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
).

 

Page 378



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

w
h

ic
h

, 
in

 c
e

rt
a

in
 s

it
u

a
ti

o
n

s 
sh

o
u

ld
 t

h
e

 C
IL

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 t

h
re

a
te

n
 t

h
e

 v
ia

b
il

it
y

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

u
s 

th
e

 

d
e

li
v
e

ra
b

il
it

y
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ch
e

m
e

 p
ro

p
o

se
d

, 
ca

n
 b

e
 

n
e

g
o

ti
a

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 o
n

 a
 o

n
e

-t
o

-o
n

e
 b

a
si

s.
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
1

3
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

o
u

ld
 w

e
lc

o
m

e
 

th
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 

o
n

 a
n

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
ts

 p
o

li
cy

 o
n

ce
 a

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

 i
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 a
 D

ra
ft

 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
t 

p
o

li
cy

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

M
r 

Jo
n

a
th

a
n

 

G
re

e
n

 

2
4

7
6

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
A

 c
h

a
rg

e
 i
n

 f
u

ll
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 l
e

v
ie

d
, 

a
t 

th
e

 

a
ss

ig
n

e
d

 d
a

te
, 

to
 a

v
o

id
 t

h
e

 d
e

fe
rr

a
ls

 

e
xp

e
ri

e
n

ce
d

 w
it

h
 S

1
0

6
 l

e
v
ie

s 
o

f 
th

e
 p

a
st

, 
a

s 

w
it

h
 C

B
1

, 
to

 u
n

d
e

rw
ri

te
 t

h
e

 g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
 o

f 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

, 
fo

r 
e

xa
m

p
le

, 
o

f 
G

re
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
 w

h
ic

h
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 e
xa

ct
ly

 r
e

la
te

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
e

tr
e

 s
q

u
a

re
d

 

a
ss

e
ss

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 m
in

im
u

m
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s 

fo
r 

G
re

e
n

 

S
p

a
ce

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i

n
cr

e
a

se
d

 s
ig

n
if

ic
a

n
tl

y
 a

n
d

 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
, 

fo
r 

a
ll

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

, 
to

 a
tt

e
n

u
a

te
 

th
e

 u
n

d
e

rp
ro

v
is

io
n

 i
n

 p
a

st
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s.

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 m

a
d

e
 e

v
e

n
 

a
t 

th
e

 c
o

st
 o

f 
a

 r
e

d
u

ce
d

 f
o

o
tp

ri
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 b

u
il

d
, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 r
o

o
f 

te
rr

a
ce

s 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

fo
rm

s 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

re
 i

s 
n

o
 c

la
w

b
a

ck
 p

e
ri

o
d

 f
o

r 
C

IL
. 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 

C
h

a
rg

in
g

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

it
 t

o
 

ch
a

n
g

e
 O

p
e

n
 S

p
a

ce
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s.

 

Page 379



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

b
e

si
d

e
s 

g
ro

u
n

d
 l

e
v
e

l.
 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

2
5

2
2

8
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
W

h
il

st
 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
ts

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

a
cc

e
p

ta
b

le
, 

it
 i

s 
cl

e
a

r 
th

a
t 

th
is

 i
s 

n
o

t 
si

m
p

le
. 

 

It
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
a

so
n

a
b

le
 t

o
 e

xp
e

ct
 t

h
e

re
 t

o
 b

e
 

a
n

 i
n

it
ia

l 
co

m
p

o
n

e
n

t,
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 r

e
m

a
in

d
e

r 

re
la

te
d

 t
o

 s
it

e
 o

cc
u

p
a

ti
o

n
, 

si
ze

 a
n

d
 k

e
y

 s
it

e
 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
. 

It
 i

s 
u

n
li

k
e

ly
 t

h
a

t 
a

n
y

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

 

in
st

a
lm

e
n

t 
p

la
n

 c
a

n
 t

h
e

re
fo

re
 b

e
 e

st
a

b
li

sh
e

d
. 

It
 i

s 
d

if
fi

cu
lt

 t
o

 s
e

e
 h

o
w

 t
h

is
 c

a
n

 b
e

 a
ch

ie
v
e

d
 i
n

 

a
 m

e
a

n
in

g
fu

l 
a

n
d

 s
im

p
le

 m
a

n
n

e
r,

 w
h

ic
h

 l
e

a
d

s 

to
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

 a
 p

o
li

cy
 o

f 
n

o
 i
n

st
a

lm
e

n
ts

 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
d

o
p

te
d

.  

N
o

te
d

. 
C

IL
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
a

t 
in

st
a

lm
e

n
ts

 

p
o

li
ci

e
s 

a
re

 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 d

a
te

, 
n

o
t 

si
te

 o
cc

u
p

a
ti

o
n

s 
o

r 

re
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 (

se
e

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 7
0

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
2

0
1

0
 (

a
s 

a
m

e
n

d
e

d
).

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

 D
ra

ft
 i

n
st

a
lm

e
n

t 
p

o
li

cy
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 t
h

e
 

D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

D
r 

E
d

w
a

rd
 L

lo
yd

 

Je
n

k
in

s  

2
4

8
7

3
 

O
b

je
ct

. 
T

h
e

 6
0

 d
a

y
 c

o
m

p
u

ls
o

ry
 c

o
ll

e
ct

io
n

 

p
e

ri
o

d
 w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 t

o
o

 s
h

o
rt

 f
o

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 r
e

si
d

e
n

t 

in
 s

o
m

e
 c

it
y

 a
re

a
s!

 A
 s

ix
 m

o
n

th
 p

e
ri

o
d

 w
o

u
ld

 

ca
u

se
 m

u
ch

 l
e

ss
 f

ri
ct

io
n

 a
n

d
 h

a
rd

sh
ip

 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 p
u

rp
o

se
 o

f 
a

n
 i

n
st

a
lm

e
n

t 
p

o
li

cy
 i

s 
so

 

th
a

t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

/s
it

e
 o

w
n

e
rs

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

ce
 t

h
e

ir
 p

ro
je

ct
 

in
 a

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
m

a
n

n
e

r.
  

S
o

u
th

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

D
is

tr
i c

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 

2
5

2
4

3
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

. 
A

s 
th

e
 p

re
m

is
e

 o
f 

th
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 

is
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
d

u
st

ry
 w

it
h

 

ce
rt

a
in

ty
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
si

st
e

n
cy

 S
C

D
C

 f
e

e
ls

 t
h

a
t 

a
n

 

in
st

a
lm

e
n

ts
 p

o
li

cy
 c

o
u

ld
 h

e
lp

fu
ll

y
 b

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 

N
o

te
d

 

Page 380



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

u
p

 c
lo

se
ly

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 t

w
o

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s.

 S
C

D
C

 w
o

u
ld

 h
o

p
e

 t
h

a
t 

a
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

co
u

ld
 b

e
 r

e
a

ch
e

d
 i
n

 s
u

ch
 r

e
g

a
rd

 f
o

ll
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 

cl
o

se
 o

f 
th

e
 P

D
C

S
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 a

h
e

a
d

 o
f 

th
e

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l 
co

n
su

lt
in

g
 o

n
 i

ts
 o

w
n

 P
D

C
S

. 

           

Page 381



  

Q
u

e
st

io
n

 4
 –

 D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 o
th

e
r 

co
m

m
e

n
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e
 P

D
C

S
 o

r 
e

v
id

e
n

ce
 b

a
se

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
?

 P
le

a
se

 p
ro

v
id

e
 r

e
a

so
n

in
g

 w
it

h
 y

o
u

r 
a

n
sw

e
rs

. 
 

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

A
n

g
li

a
 R

u
sk

in
 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y 

2
5

2
3

2
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

 r
e

v
ie

w
 i
ts

 a
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

re
li

e
f 

fo
r 

ch
a

ri
ti

e
s 

- 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 

a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 i
s 

n
o

t 
a

 s
u

ff
ic

ie
n

t 

b
a

rr
ie

r 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
 d

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 p
o

li
cy

. 
A

 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 p

o
li

cy
 w

o
u

ld
 e

n
co

u
ra

g
e

 

in
v
e

st
m

e
n

t 
in

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
R

e
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i

s 

k
e

y
, 

to
 e

n
su

re
 C

IL
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

st
if

le
 d

e
ve

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 r
ig

h
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s  

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

.1
0

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

IL
: 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 

‘d
o

u
b

le
 c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

’ 
o

f 
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 C

IL
 i

s 
n

o
t 

p
e

rm
it

te
d

 b
y

 l
a

w
.  

R
e

g
 1

2
3

 L
is

t:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
sh

o
u

ld
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 

D
ra

ft
 R

.1
2

3
 l

is
t 

a
s 

so
o

n
 a

s 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 t
o

 e
n

su
re

 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s 

o
f 

la
n

d
o

w
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 c
a

n
 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 n

o
t 

o
b

li
g

e
d

 o
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li

cy
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
so

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 u
n

d
e

r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s 
th

e
 C

IL
 s

y
st

e
m

 b
e

d
s 

in
. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

 

d
e

ta
il
e

d
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

. 
 

A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

, 
th

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

IL
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s:

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 
 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 

(i
.e

. 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

m
u

ch
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 

co
st

s)
  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

 T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

1
0

6
 a

n
d

 C
IL

: 
N

o
te

d
, 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
te

n
d

s 
to

 p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
 o

n
 a

 D
ra

ft
 

Page 382



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

b
e

 t
a

k
e

n
 o

n
 b

o
a

rd
. 

 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
P

D
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 e

xa
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 

h
o

w
 S

.1
0

6
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 C
IL

 i
s 

p
ro

v
id

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

. 

D
ra

ft
 R

.1
2

3
 L

is
t:

 N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
co

n
su

lt
 o

n
 

a
 d

ra
ft

 R
.1

2
3

 l
is

t 
a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 t
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
IL

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

th
e

 U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

B
u

rs
a

rs
’ 

a
n

d
 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 S
u

b
-

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

2
5

2
5

6
 

O
b

je
ct

 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 S

tu
d

y
: 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
o

rk
 i

s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

la
te

 t
h

e
 I

D
S

 l
is

t 
o

f 
p

ro
je

ct
s,

 t
h

e
ir

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
li

v
e

ry
 o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

re
 i

s 
a

 n
e

e
d

 

fo
r 

a
 d

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li

cy
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 

ch
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
s 

a
ct

iv
it

ie
s 

w
h

ic
h

 a
re

 o
ft

e
n

 c
o

m
p

le
x.

 D
u

e
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

u
n

iq
u

e
 c

h
a

ra
ct

e
ri

st
ic

s 
o

f 
th

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 

m
a

rk
e

t 
it

 i
s 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 c

ru
ci

a
l 

th
a

t 
C

C
C

 b
ri

n
g

 

in
 a

 d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 p

o
li

cy
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
th

is
 f

a
ci

lit
y

 w
il

l 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 S

tu
d

y
: 

A
n

 u
p

d
a

te
 t

o
 t

h
is

 

st
u

d
y

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
si

n
ce

 t
h

e
 P

re
li
m

in
a

ry
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
is

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

 ‘
C

IL
 L

ia
b

le
’ 

li
st

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 g

a
p

. 
 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 n

o
t 

o
b

li
g

e
d

 o
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li

cy
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
so

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 u
n

d
e

r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s 
th

e
 C

IL
 s

y
st

e
m

 b
e

d
s 

in
.  

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
w

e
e

n
 S

1
0

6
 a

n
d

 C
IL

: 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

Page 383



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
ll

o
w

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 m
e

e
ti

n
g

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 4
4

 t
o

 

b
e

 a
ss

e
ss

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 m

e
ri

ts
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

.1
0

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
r 

to
 a

v
o

id
 d

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
. 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 k

in
d

: 
W

e
 a

re
 p

le
a

se
d

 t
o

 s
e

e
 t

h
a

t 

C
C

C
 h

a
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 u

se
 a

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 k
in

d
 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
m

 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a

rl
y

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

. 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

' w
e

b
si

te
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
s 

k
e

y
, 

to
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
st

if
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s.

 

in
te

n
d

s 
to

 p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
su

lt
 o

n
 a

 D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

 p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
h

o
w

 

S
.1

0
6

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 

a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

.  

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 k

in
d

: 
N

o
te

d
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 

(R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

) 
in

cl
u

d
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

.  

A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

, 
th

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

IL
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s:

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 
 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 

(i
.e

. 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

m
u

ch
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 

co
st

s)
  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

Page 384



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

 

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

M
a

rs
h

a
ll
 G

ro
u

p
 o

f 

C
o

m
p

a
n

ie
s 

2
5

2
5

9
 

C
C

C
 C

IL
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 i
n

cl
u

d
e

: 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

o
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
 t

h
e

 r
e

le
v
a

n
t 

'c
h

a
rg

e
a

b
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t'

/l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
C

IL
. 

 

G
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 l
ia

b
il

it
y

 t
o

 p
a

y
 C

IL
/A

p
p

e
a

ls
 

p
ro

ce
ss

. 

A
p

p
ro

a
ch

 t
o

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 in

 k
in

d
 -

 n
o

ta
b

ly
 

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 f

o
r 

la
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 t

h
e

 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
to

 a
cc

e
p

t 
la

n
d

 f
o

r 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 a

s 
a

 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 k
in

d
. 

 

E
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s:

 G
u

id
a

n
ce

 o
n

 r
e

li
e

f 

fr
o

m
 C

IL
 a

n
d

 a
 p

o
li

cy
 o

n
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

a
l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
fo

r 
re

li
e

f.
  

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a

rl
y

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

. 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

' w
e

b
si

te
. 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 i
s 

k
e

y
, 

to
 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
st

if
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 k

in
d

: 
D

e
ta

il
s 

o
f 

a
n

y
 p

a
y

m
e

n
ts

 in
 k

in
d

 

p
o

li
cy

 w
il

l 
b

e
 p

u
b

li
sh

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y

 c
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
e

b
si

te
 

b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 i

s 
im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
. 

E
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s:

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
re

li
e

f 
o

n
 C

IL
 o

n
 i
ts

 w
e

b
si

te
 o

n
ce

 t
h

e
 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 i
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

n
 e

xc
e

p
ti

o
n

a
l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
p

o
li

cy
 b

u
t 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 t
h

is
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s 
C

IL
 b

e
d

s 
in

. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 

(R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

) 
in

cl
u

d
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

.  

A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

, 
th

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

IL
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s:

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 
 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 

(i
.e

. 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

m
u

ch
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 

Page 385



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s.

h
e

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

C
IL

. 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 S
.1

0
6

: 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 

w
o

rk
 i

s 
a

ls
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
la

te
 t

h
e

 l
is

t 
o

f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

. 
T

h
e

 I
D

S
 i

s 
a

n
 a

sp
ir

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

 l
is

t 
o

f 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 r
o

u
te

 m
a

p
 

fo
r 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
ts

 r
a

is
e

d
 i

n
 r

e
ce

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 S
.1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

e
xt

e
n

t 
to

 w
h

ic
h

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

si
n

g
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
e

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 p

ro
d

u
ce

d
 i

n
 

a
d

v
a

n
ce

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 

T
h

e
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 s

ch
e

d
u

le
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
r 

th
a

t 

‘d
o

u
b

le
 c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

’ 
o

f 
S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 

a
n

d
 C

IL
 i

s 
n

o
t 

p
e

rm
it

te
d

 b
y

 l
a

w
. 

co
st

s)
  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

 In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 S
.1

0
6

: 
A

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 

st
u

d
y

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
si

n
ce

 t
h

e
 P

re
li
m

in
a

ry
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

c h
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
is

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

 ‘
C

IL
 L

ia
b

le
’ 

li
st

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 g

a
p

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

te
n

d
s 

to
 p

u
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
P

D
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
h

o
w

 S
.1

0
6

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 

b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

.  

  

S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 o
f 

T
a

y
lo

r 
W

im
p

e
y

 

2
5

2
6

3
 

O
b

je
ct

: 
R

e
g

 1
2

3
 L

is
t:

 N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
co

n
su

lt
 o

n
 a

 

d
ra

ft
 R

.1
2

3
 l

is
t 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

Page 386



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

E
a

st
 A

n
g

li
a

 a
n

d
 

B
a

rr
a

tt
 H

o
m

e
s 

E
a

st
e

rn
 C

o
u

n
ti

e
s 

R
e

g
 1

2
3

 L
is

t:
 T

h
e

 R
.1

2
3

 l
is

t 
sh

o
u

ld
 b

e
 

p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
 a

t 
D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

 

C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
.  

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 S
.1

0
6

: 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 

w
o

rk
 i

s 
a

ls
o

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
la

te
 t

h
e

 l
is

t 
o

f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 l

e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
g

ro
w

th
 

p
ro

p
o

se
d

. 
T

h
e

 I
D

S
 i

s 
a

n
 a

sp
ir

a
ti

o
n

a
l 
d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

w
it

h
 a

 l
is

t 
o

f 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 a

 r
o

u
te

 m
a

p
 

fo
r 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
 o

f 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 

T
h

e
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
sh

ip
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 S

.1
0

6
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
le

a
r 

to
 a

v
o

id
 d

o
u

b
le

 c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
. 

 

P
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 i

n
 k

in
d

: 
W

e
 a

re
 p

le
a

se
d

 t
o

 s
e

e
 t

h
a

t 

C
C

C
 h

a
s 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 u

se
 a

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
in

 k
in

d
 

m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 c

le
a

rl
y

 d
e

fi
n

e
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

. 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 d
a

ta
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
ie

w
s 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 

re
g

u
la

rl
y

 p
u

b
li

sh
e

d
, 

fo
r 

e
xa

m
p

le
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

ci
ls

' 
w

e
b

si
te

. 
R

e
g

u
la

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 i

s 
k
e

y
, 

to
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
 a

n
d

 S
.1

0
6

: 
A

n
 u

p
d

a
te

 t
o

 t
h

is
 

st
u

d
y

 h
a

s 
b

e
e

n
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
si

n
ce

 t
h

e
 P

re
li
m

in
a

ry
 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 c

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

. 
T

h
is

 

id
e

n
ti

fi
e

d
 a

 ‘
C

IL
 L

ia
b

le
’ 

li
st

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 

fu
n

d
in

g
 g

a
p

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

te
n

d
s 

to
 p

u
b

li
sh

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 

D
ra

ft
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 O

b
li

g
a

ti
o

n
s 

S
P

D
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h

e
 

e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

F
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

ta
il

s 
o

f 
h

o
w

 S
.1

0
6

 w
il

l 
w

o
rk

 a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 

is
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

 C
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
t,

 t
h

is
 w

il
l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 

b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

. 

R
e

v
ie

w
 &

 M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 C
IL

 R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

s 

(R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

) 
in

cl
u

d
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

.  

A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

, 
th

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

IL
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s:

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 
 

Page 387



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

C
IL

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
st

if
le

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

in
 

th
e

 r
ig

h
t 

lo
ca

ti
o

n
s.

h
e

re
 n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 o
f 

C
IL

. 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 

(i
.e

. 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

m
u

ch
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 

co
st

s)
  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

 

A
n

g
li

a
n

 W
a

te
r 

2
9

2
1

5
 

W
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

: 
I 

w
o

u
ld

 e
xp

e
ct

 

th
e

re
 b

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 w
it

h
in

 C
IL

 f
o

r 
w

a
st

e
w

a
te

r 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

. 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
o

n
-s

it
e

 

a
n

d
 o

ff
-s

it
e

) 
a

re
 g

e
n

e
ra

ll
y

 f
u

n
d

e
d

/p
a

rt
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 

th
ro

u
g

h
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 v
ia

 t
h

e
 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

se
ct

io
n

s 
o

f 
th

e
 W

a
te

r 
In

d
u

st
ry

 A
ct

 

1
9

9
1

. 
T

h
e

 c
o

st
s 

a
re

 d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 w

e
 a

re
 

a
p

p
ro

a
ch

e
d

 b
y

 a
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

a
n

d
 a

n
 a

p
p

ra
is

a
l 

is
 

ca
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t.
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
a

y
m

e
n

t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s 

a
v
a

il
a

b
le

 t
o

 d
e

ve
lo

p
e

rs
. 

O
p

ti
o

n
s 

in
cl

u
d

e
 d

e
d

u
ct

in
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 t

h
a

t 
w

il
l 

b
e

 

ra
is

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
ly

 c
o

n
n

e
ct

e
d

 d
w

e
ll

in
g

s 

(t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 h

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 w
a

st
e

w
a

te
r 

ch
a

rg
e

s)
 

o
v
e

r 
a

 p
e

ri
o

d
 o

f 
tw

e
lv

e
 y

e
a

rs
 o

ff
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
it

a
l 

co
st

 o
f 

th
e

 n
e

tw
o

rk
 u

p
g

ra
d

e
s.

 T
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
r 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
co

n
su

lt
 o

n
 a

 d
ra

ft
 R

.1
2

3
 l
is

t 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

  

     

Page 388



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

th
e

n
 p

a
y

s 
th

e
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 s

u
m

. 

B
o

y
e

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

2
5

2
3

6
 

D
o

u
b

le
 C

o
u

n
ti

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 k
e

y
 p

o
in

t 
th

a
t 

w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 

ra
is

e
 a

t 
th

is
 p

re
li

m
in

a
ry

 c
o

n
su

lt
a

ti
o

n
 s

ta
g

e
, 

a
si

d
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
ce

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

ss
in

g
 b

o
th

 

th
e

 S
P

D
 a

n
d

 R
e

g
 1

2
3

 L
is

t,
 i

s 
to

 e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

re
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 n
o

 d
o

u
b

le
-c

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 i
n

 r
e

sp
e

ct
 

o
f 

it
e

m
s 

th
a

t 
w

o
u

ld
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
ll

y
 f

a
ll

 t
o

 b
e

 e
it

h
e

r 

d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 s
p

e
ci

fi
c 

si
te

s 
o

r 
fu

n
d

e
d

 

th
ro

u
g

h
 S

e
ct

io
n

 1
0

6
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

ss
o

ci
a

te
d

 

w
it

h
 t

h
e

se
. 

 

D
o

u
b

le
 C

o
u

n
ti

n
g

: 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
te

n
d

s 
to

 p
u

b
li

sh
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 D

ra
ft

 P
la

n
n

in
g

 O
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 
S

P
D

 

p
ri

o
r 

to
 t

h
e

 e
xa

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
ta

il
s 

o
f 

h
o

w
 S

.1
0

6
 w

il
l 

w
o

rk
 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

IL
 i

s 
p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
s 

a
n

 a
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

D
ra

ft
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
 C

o
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

t,
 

th
is

 w
il

l 
fo

rm
 t

h
e

 b
a

si
s 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 o
b

li
g

a
ti

o
n

s 

S
P

D
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

co
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 d

ra
ft

 R
.1

2
3

 l
is

t 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 t

h
e

 D
ra

ft
 C

IL
 C

h
a

rg
in

g
 S

ch
e

d
u

le
. 

  

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
1

4
 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
: 

C
C

C
 w

a
n

t 
to

 i
n

p
u

t 
o

n
 

u
p

d
a

te
s 

to
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
H

a
v
e

 

co
n

ce
rn

s 
o

v
e

r 
sh

o
rt

fa
ll

s 
fo

r 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
, 

a
n

d
 

it
 w

il
l 

b
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
th

e
 m

o
st

 c
ri

ti
ca

l 
a

n
d

 

e
ss

e
n

ti
a

l 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 r

e
ce

iv
e

s 
fu

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 

su
p

p
o

rt
 s

u
st

a
in

a
b

le
 g

ro
w

th
. 

W
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 w

o
rk

 

w
it

h
 l

o
ca

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
o

n
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

sa
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 a
n

d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
o

n
 w

h
a

t 
w

il
l 

b
e

 

fu
n

d
e

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
n

. 
 

In
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 D
e

li
v
e

ry
: 

N
o

te
d

. 
C

C
C

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

co
n

su
lt

e
d

 o
n

 a
ll

 a
sp

e
ct

s 
o

f 
th

e
 I

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 

D
e

li
v
e

ry
 S

tu
d

y
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 

co
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 

a
lo

n
g

si
d

e
 C

C
C

 w
it

h
 r

e
g

a
rd

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

sa
ti

o
n

 o
f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

.  

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 C
h

a
rg

e
: 

 D
e

ta
il
e

d
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

s 
fo

r 

th
e

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
C

IL
 i

s 
a

n
 

a
re

a
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
h

a
t 

is
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
, 

b
u

t 
w

il
l 

b
e

 c
la

ri
fi

e
d

 

b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
s 

th
e

 C
IL

 (
li

k
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 

Page 389



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 C
h

a
rg

e
: 

C
C

C
 a

re
 u

n
cl

e
a

r 
if

 t
h

e
y

 

w
il

l 
re

ce
iv

e
 a

n
y 

o
f 

th
e

 5
%

 C
IL

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 

ch
a

rg
e

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
re

 e
n

ti
tl

e
d

 t
o

 

a
p

p
ly

.  

M
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
: 

C
C

C
 w

a
n

t 
to

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
o

n
 t

h
e

 m
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 
p

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 a
n

d
 

a
li

g
n

 w
it

h
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 a

im
s.

 T
h

o
u

g
h

t 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 b

e
 

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

ci
ty

 d
e

a
l  

A
p

ri
l 
1

st
 2

0
1

5
).

  

M
e

a
n

in
g

fu
l 

P
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
: 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
is

 

cu
rr

e
n

tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 C

C
C

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 C
IL

 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

.  
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
ce

 o
f 

C
IL

, 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

 h
o

w
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

 f
u

n
d

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 d
e

a
lt

 

w
it

h
, 

w
il

l 
b

e
 c

la
ri

fi
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
in

tr
o

d
u

ce
s 

th
e

 C
IL

 (
li

k
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
 A

p
ri

l 1
st

 2
0

1
5

).
 

   

E
n

g
li

sh
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 

2
5

2
4

8
 

H
is

to
ri

c 
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t:

 I
t 

w
il

l 
b

e
 i

m
p

o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 

e
n

su
re

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 h
is

to
ri

c 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

is
 

ca
re

fu
ll

y
 c

o
n

si
d

e
re

d
 a

s 
a

 t
o

p
ic

, 
a

n
d

 w
e

 

w
e

lc
o

m
e

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
se

d
 c

la
ri

fi
ca

ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
 f

u
tu

re
 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
g

im
e

s 
w

il
l 

b
e

 a
p

p
li

e
d

. 

T
h

e
re

 w
il

l 
b

e
 s

o
m

e
 c

a
se

s 
w

h
e

re
 h

e
ri

ta
g

e
 m

a
y

 

w
e

ll
 b

e
 d

e
fi

n
e

d
 a

s 
in

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
, 

a
n

d
 

co
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 p
u

b
li

c 
re

a
lm

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 

ce
rt

a
in

 h
is

to
ri

c 
st

ru
ct

u
re

s 
a

n
d

 h
is

to
ri

c 
o

p
e

n
 

sp
a

ce
s 

m
a

y
 b

e
 a

re
a

s 
th

a
t 

ca
n

 b
e

n
e

fi
t 

fr
o

m
 C

IL
. 

N
o

te
d

 

Page 390



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

W
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 p
le

a
se

d
 t

o
 d

is
cu

ss
 t

h
is

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

w
it

h
 y

o
u

. 

F
it

zw
il

li
a

m
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 
2

5
2

0
7

 
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 C
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 R

e
li

e
f:

 C
o

m
m

e
n

t 

re
fe

rs
 s

p
e

ci
fi

ca
ll

y
 t

o
 s

e
ct

io
n

 5
.5

 o
f 

th
e

 

D
o

cu
m

e
n

t 
"D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 C
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 R

e
li
e

f"
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
n

te
n

ti
o

n
 e

xp
re

ss
e

d
 b

y 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
n

o
t 

to
 o

ff
e

r 
th

is
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 
re

li
e

f 
a

t 
th

e
 p

re
se

n
t 

ti
m

e
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
ll
e

g
e

 d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l'
s 

a
ss

e
rt

io
n

 t
h

a
t 

it
 d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

p
ro

p
o

se
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

 

a
 d

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li
cy

 f
o

r 
C

IL
. 

It
 i

s 

co
n

si
d

e
re

d
 c

ru
ci

a
l 

th
a

t 
th

e
 C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

 s
u

ch
 a

 p
o

li
cy

. 
W

e
 d

o
 n

o
t 

b
e

li
e

v
e

 t
h

e
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

v
e

 

co
m

p
le

xi
ty

 i
s 

a
 s

u
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

b
a

rr
ie

r 
to

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

a
 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 p

o
li

cy
 m

e
ch

a
n

is
m

. 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 n

o
t 

o
b

li
g

e
d

 o
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li

cy
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
so

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 u
n

d
e

r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s 
th

e
 C

IL
 s

y
st

e
m

 b
e

d
s 

in
. 

H
is

to
n

 a
n

d
 

Im
p

in
g

to
n

 P
a

ri
sh

 

C
o

u
n

ci
l  

2
5

2
2

9
 

O
b

je
ct

: 

C
IL

 R
e

ce
ip

ts
: 

T
h

e
 d

o
cu

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 s

h
o

u
ld

 

cl
e

a
rl

y
 i

d
e

n
ti

fy
: 

a
. 

th
e

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ct
io

n
 

o
f 

C
IL

 

C
IL

 R
e

ce
ip

ts
: 

T
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 S
ch

e
d

u
le

 

co
n

su
lt

a
ti

o
n

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 c

o
n

ta
in

 a
n

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
C

IL
 r

e
v
e

n
u

e
 (

p
a

ra
s 

4
.3

.1
8

 –
 4

.3
.2

5
) 

a
n

d
 a

n
 

a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

S
.1

0
6

 a
g

re
e

d
 i
n

 r
e

ce
n

t 
y

e
a

rs
 

(A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 A

) 

R
e

g
 1

2
3

 L
is

t:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
w

il
l 

co
n

su
lt

 o
n

 a
 d

ra
ft

 

Page 391



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

b
. 

th
e

 e
xp

e
ct

e
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 r
e

tu
rn

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 

sw
it

ch
 t

o
 C

IL
 f

ro
m

 S
1

0
6

 p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 

R
e

g
 1

2
3

 L
is

t:
 T

h
e

 d
o

cu
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 s
h

o
u

ld
 

id
e

n
ti

fy
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 
p

ro
je

ct
s 

fo
r 

w
h

ic
h

 f
u

n
d

in
g

 i
s 

b
e

in
g

 s
o

u
g

h
t.

  

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 R

e
v
ie

w
: 

It
 i

s 
e

ss
e

n
ti

a
l 
th

a
t 

a
n

 

e
ff

e
ct

iv
e

 m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
ce

ss
 i

s 
in

 

p
la

ce
 

 

R
.1

2
3

 l
is

t 
a

lo
n

g
si

d
e

 t
h

e
 D

ra
ft

 C
IL

 C
h

a
rg

in
g

 

S
ch

e
d

u
le

. 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 R

e
v
ie

w
: 

T
h

e
 C

IL
 R

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
s 

(R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

) 
in

cl
u

d
e

 d
e

ta
il

e
d

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 

m
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

.  

A
s 

re
q

u
ir

e
d

 b
y 

R
e

g
u

la
ti

o
n

 6
2

, 
th

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 

p
u

b
li

sh
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
C

IL
 R

e
p

o
rt

 (
fo

r 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
ci

a
l 

y
e

a
r)

, 
w

h
ic

h
 s

h
o

w
s:

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 c

o
ll

e
ct

e
d

  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 t

h
a

t 
h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 
 

·
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 h

o
w

 C
IL

 f
u

n
d

s 
h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
p

e
n

t 

(i
.e

. 
w

h
ic

h
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 p
ro

je
ct

s,
 a

n
d

 h
o

w
 

m
u

ch
 h

a
s 

b
e

e
n

 u
se

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
a

d
m

in
is

tr
a

ti
v
e

 

co
st

s)
  

·
 

T
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
C

IL
 r

e
ta

in
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 y
e

a
r.

  

  

M
a

g
d

a
le

n
e

 C
o

ll
e

g
e

 
2

5
2

3
3

 
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 C
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 R

e
li

e
f:

 T
h

e
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
 

m
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 s
h

o
w

n
 f

o
r 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 r

e
li
e

f 

fr
o

m
 C

IL
 b

e
in

g
 a

 r
e

g
is

te
re

d
 c

h
a

ri
ty

. 
W

h
il

st
 t

h
e

 

C
it

y
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

o
u

ld
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 C

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

is
 n

o
t 

o
b

li
g

e
d

 o
r 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

ce
 a

 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 c

h
a

ri
ta

b
le

 r
e

li
e

f 
p

o
li

cy
 a

t 
th

is
 s

ta
g

e
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
so

m
e

th
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 u
n

d
e

r 

Page 392



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

d
is

ce
rn

in
g

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
sc

h
e

m
e

s,
 i

t 
se

e
m

s 
sh

o
rt

-

si
g

h
te

d
 n

o
t 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 f

o
r 

d
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
a

ry
 

re
li

e
f 

to
 a

ll
o

w
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

m
ix

e
d

 a
n

d
 s

o
p

h
is

ti
ca

te
d

 s
ch

e
m

e
s 

if
 t

h
e

y
 w

o
u

ld
 

b
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

id
e

r 
e

co
n

o
m

ic
 i

n
te

re
st

s 
o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y

. 

A
s 

a
 n

e
w

 p
o

li
cy

 a
n

y
 i

n
it

ia
l 

a
ss

u
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
re

la
ti

n
g

 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 r
e

g
u

la
rl

y
 a

g
a

in
st

 

a
ct

u
a

l 
e

xp
e

ri
e

n
ce

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 t
im

in
g

 o
f 

a
n

y
 C

IL
 

p
a

y
m

e
n

ts
 s

h
o

u
ld

 r
e

a
li

st
ic

a
ll

y
 r

e
fl

e
ct

 t
h

e
 c

a
sh

 

fl
o

w
 p

ro
fi

le
 o

f 
ty

p
ic

a
l 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

sc
h

e
m

e
s.

 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s 
th

e
 C

IL
 s

y
st

e
m

 b
e

d
s 

in
. 

N
a

tu
ra

l 
E

n
g

la
n

d
 

2
5

2
4

5
 

G
re

e
n

 I
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
: 

A
d

v
is

e
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

g
iv

e
s 

ca
re

fu
l 
co

n
si

d
e

ra
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 C
IL

 h
a

s 
in

 t
h

e
 

cr
e

a
ti

o
n

, 
p

ro
te

ct
io

n
, 

e
n

h
a

n
ce

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s 

o
f 

b
io

d
iv

e
rs

it
y

 a
n

d
 

g
re

e
n

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 a

n
d

 l
is

t 
th

e
 t

y
p

e
 o

f 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 t
h

a
t 

m
ig

h
t 

in
cl

u
d

e
 

N
o

te
d

. 

S
o

u
th

 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

n
ci

l  

2
5

2
4

4
 

S
C

D
C

 s
u

g
g

e
st

s 
th

a
t 

re
fe

re
n

ce
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

in
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 r
e

q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
S

o
u

th
 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

sh
ir

e
 i

s 
re

m
o

ve
d

 f
ro

m
 T

a
b

le
 1

 t
o

 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
o

re
 t

ra
n

sp
a

re
n

t 
ca

se
 t

h
a

t 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 C
it

y
 i

s 
in

tr
o

d
u

ci
n

g
 C

IL
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 i
ts

 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 i
n

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
b

o
th

 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti

e
s 

a
re

 i
n

e
xt

ri
ca

b
ly

 l
in

k
e

d
.  

Page 393



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

o
w

n
 i

n
fr

a
st

ru
ct

u
re

 n
e

e
d

s.
 

S
p

o
rt

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 
2

5
2

3
8

 
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 S

tu
d

y
: 

W
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 o
f 

sw
im

m
in

g
 p

o
o

ls
, 

sp
o

rt
s 

h
a

ll
s 

a
n

d
 

sp
o

rt
s 

p
it

ch
e

s 
b

e
in

g
 i

n
cl

u
d

e
d

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e
 

d
e

fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
'L

e
is

u
re

 a
n

d
 R

e
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
' f

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

to
 b

e
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 C

IL
. 

W
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

p
ri

n
ci

p
le

 o
f 

a
 j

o
in

t 
In

fr
a

st
ru

ct
u

re
 D

e
li

v
e

ry
 P

la
n

 

w
it

h
 S

C
D

C
, 

a
s 

th
e

re
 i

s 
a

 g
re

a
t 

d
e

a
l 
o

f 
in

te
r -

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

cy
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 t

h
e

 t
w

o
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s 
w

it
h

 

re
g

a
rd

 t
o

 s
p

o
rt

s 
p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
 W

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 I
D

P
 

b
e

in
g

 a
 '
li

v
in

g
' d

o
cu

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
w

il
l 
b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 

a
n

d
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 a
t 

re
g

u
la

r 
in

te
rv

a
ls

. 
S

im
il

a
rl

y
, 

th
e

 

S
p

o
rt

s 
F

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

C
a

lc
u

la
to

r 
a

n
d

 S
p

o
rt

s 
F

a
ci

li
ti

e
s 

C
o

st
in

g
s 

a
re

 a
ls

o
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
re

g
u

la
r 

in
te

rv
a

ls
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

re
 w

il
l 
b

e
 a

 n
e

e
d

 t
o

 u
p

d
a

te
 C

IL
 

d
o

cu
m

e
n

ts
 a

cc
o

rd
in

g
ly

.  

N
o

te
d

 

T
e

rr
e

n
ce

 O
’R

o
u

rk
e

 

o
n

 b
e

h
a

lf
 o

f 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

ie
s 

S
u

p
e

ra
n

n
u

a
ti

o
n

 

S
ch

e
m

e
 

2
5

2
3

9
 

E
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

R
e

li
e

f:
 T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

sh
o

u
ld

 a
d

o
p

t 
a

n
 e

xe
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
p

o
li

cy
. 

T
h

is
 w

o
u

ld
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 m
e

ch
a

n
is

m
 f

o
r 

a
ss

is
ti

n
g

 w
it

h
 

d
e

li
v
e

ry
 in

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
k
e

y
 b

ro
w

n
fi

e
ld

 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 s

it
e

s 
a

re
 f

a
ce

d
 w

it
h

 a
b

n
o

rm
a

l 

E
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

ir
cu

m
st

a
n

ce
s:

 T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ci

l 
w

il
l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 

g
u

id
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
re

li
e

f 
o

n
 C

IL
 o

n
 i
ts

 w
e

b
si

te
 o

n
ce

 t
h

e
 

C
IL

 c
h

a
rg

in
g

 s
ch

e
d

u
le

 i
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

d
o

e
s 

n
o

t 
in

te
n

d
 t

o
 i

n
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 

ci
rc

u
m

st
a

n
ce

s 
p

o
li

cy
 b

u
t 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 t
h

is
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 

Page 394



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

a
n

d
 u

n
fo

re
se

e
n

 c
o

st
s.

 I
n

 t
h

e
 a

b
se

n
ce

 o
f 

su
ch

 a
 

p
o

li
cy

, 
th

e
se

 s
it

e
s 

m
a

y
 b

e
 s

ty
m

ie
d

, 
to

 t
h

e
 

d
e

tr
im

e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

it
y

's
 e

co
n

o
m

y
 a

n
d

 v
ib

ra
n

cy
. 

T
h

is
 i

s 
a

 u
se

fu
l 
to

o
l 

in
 f

in
d

in
g

 s
it

e
 s

p
e

ci
fi

c 

so
lu

ti
o

n
s,

 g
iv

e
n

 t
h

e
 u

n
iq

u
e

n
e

ss
 o

f 
e

a
ch

 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
si

te
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 g
e

n
e

ri
c 

n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

v
ia

b
il

it
y

 a
ss

e
ss

m
e

n
ts

. 
S
u

ch
 a

 p
o

li
cy

 w
il

l 
p

ro
v
id

e
 

fl
e

xi
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 a
b

il
it

y
 t

o
 

tr
e

a
t 

p
ro

p
o

sa
ls

 o
n

 a
 s

it
e

 b
y

 s
it

e
 b

a
si

s.
 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

v
ie

w
 a

s 
C

IL
 b

e
d

s 
in

. 

 

U
n

iv
e

rs
it

y
 o

f 

C
a

m
b

ri
d

g
e

 

2
5

2
6

6
 

C
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 R

e
li

e
f:

 T
h

e
 U

n
iv

e
rs

it
y

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s 
th

e
 

re
p

re
se

n
ta

ti
o

n
s 

su
b

m
it

te
d

 b
y

 S
a

v
il

ls
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
lf

 

o
f 

th
e

  
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

o
ll

e
g

e
s'

 B
u

rs
a

rs
' 

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 S

u
b

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 

(B
E

P
S

C
),

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti

o
n

 t
o

 c
h

a
ri

ta
b

le
 

re
li

e
f 

fr
o

m
 c

h
a

rg
e

a
b

le
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 

m
a

n
d

a
to

ry
 r

e
li

e
f 

a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 p

o
si

ti
v
e

 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
d

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

a
ry

 r
e

li
e

f.
 

N
o

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

w
il

l 
p

u
b

li
sh

 g
u

id
a

n
ce

 f
o

r 
re

li
e

f 

o
n

 C
IL

 o
n

 i
ts

 w
e

b
si

te
 o

n
ce

 t
h

e
 C

IL
 c

h
a

rg
in

g
 

sc
h

e
d

u
le

 i
s 

a
d

o
p

te
d

. 
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 
d

o
e

s 
n

o
t 

in
te

n
d

 t
o

 

in
tr

o
d

u
ce

 a
n

 e
xc

e
p

ti
o

n
a

l 
ci

rc
u

m
st

a
n

ce
s 

p
o

li
cy

 b
u

t 

w
il

l 
k
e

e
p

 t
h

is
 p

o
si

ti
o

n
 u

n
d

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s 
C

IL
 b

e
d

s 
in

. 

D
r 

E
d

w
a

rd
 L

lo
yd

 

Je
n

k
in

s 
 

2
4

8
6

6
 

O
b

je
ct

. 

M
o

re
 e

m
p

h
a

si
s 

o
n

 t
h

e
 p

o
ss

ib
le

 b
e

n
e

fi
ci

a
l 

in
tr

o
 

o
f 

re
cr

e
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
fa

ci
li

ti
e

s 
su

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
a

ll
 a

g
e

s 

a
n

d
 b

a
ck

g
ro

u
n

d
s.

 T
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

 

N
o

te
d

. 

Page 395



  

R
e

sp
o

n
d

e
n

t 
 

R
e

p
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

 o
f 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 
C

a
m

b
ri

d
g

e
 C

it
y

 C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
e

sp
o

n
se

 

in
 a

re
a

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
M

il
l 

R
o

a
d

, 
n

e
e

d
s 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 i
n

 

a
n

 a
g

re
e

a
b

le
 a

n
d

 i
n

cl
u

si
v
e

 w
a

y
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 l
e

v
y

 

sh
o

u
ld

 b
e

 u
se

d
 e

v
id

e
n

tl
y 

fo
r 

th
is

 p
u

rp
o

se
 i
n

 

ce
rt

a
in

 a
re

a
s.

 

   

Page 396



 

 

APPENDIX 2 – LIST OF CONSULTEES  

Below is a list of organisations that were directly informed of the CIL Preliminary Draft 

Charging Schedule consultation via email (individuals are not listed). In addition to this list, 

the public will be informed through a press release and through the Council’s webpages. 

 

SPECIFIC CONSULTATION BODIES 

· Anglian Water 

· Barton Parish Council 

· British Gas 

· Cambridge Crown Court 

· Cambridge University Hospital 

(Addenbrooke’s) 

· Cambridge Water Company 

· Cambridgeshire Constabulary 

· Cambridgeshire County Council   

· Cambridgeshire Primary Care Trust 

· Comberton Parish Council 

· Coton Parish Council 

· Cottenham Parish Council 

· E.On Energy 

· East Cambridgeshire District 

Council 

· EDF Energy 

· English Heritage 

· Environment Agency 

· Fen Ditton Parish Council 

· Fenland District Council 

· Fulbourn Parish Council 

· Girton Parish Council 

· Grantchester Parish Council 

· Great Shelford Parish Council 

· Hauxton Parish Council 

· Highways Agency 

· Histon and Impington Parish 

Councils 

· Homes and Communities Agency 

· Horningsea Parish Council 

· Huntingdonshire District Council 

· Madingley Parish Council 

· Milton Parish Council  

· N Power 

· National Grid Transco 

· Natural England 

· Network Rail 

· Norfolk Suffolk and 

Cambridgeshire Strategic Health 

Authority 

· Npower Renewables 

· Orchard Park Community Council 

· Peterborough City Council 

· Scottish and Southern Electric 

· Scottish Power 

· South Cambridgeshire District 

Council 

· Teversham Parish Council 

 

COUNCILLORS AND MPS 

· 42 x City Councillors 

· All County Councillors (City Wards) 

· Julian Huppert MP 

· Andrew Lansley MP 

 

COMMUNITY ORGANISATIONS 

· Age Concern Cambridgeshire 

· Arthur Rank Hospice Charity 

· Cambridge Citizens Advise Bureau 

· Cambridge Ethnic Community 

Forum 

· Cambridge Federation of 

Residents’ Associations 

· Cambridge Interfaith Group 

· Cambridgeshire Older Peoples 

Enterprise (COPE) 

· Cambridgeshire Voluntary Sector 

Infrastructure Consortium (CVSIC) 

· Disability Cambridgeshire 

· East of England Faiths Council 

· Encompass Network 

· Irish Traveller Movement in Britain 

· National Federation of Gypsy 

Liaison Groups 

· The Church of England Ely Diocese 

· The COVER Group 

Page 397



 

 

· The East Anglian Gypsy Council 

· The GET Group 

· Traveller Solidarity Network 

· Work Advice Volunteering 

Education Training (WAVET) 

 

ENVIRONMENTAL 

· Cam Valley Forum 

· Cambridge Carbon Footprint 

· Cambridge Friends of the Earth 

· Cambridge Past, Present and 

Future  

· Cambridgeshire Local Access 

Forum 

· Campaign to Protect Rural England 

· Conservators of the River Cam 

· Countryside Restoration Truse 

· Hobson’s Conduit Trust 

· National Trust 

· RSPB Eastern England Office 

· The Wildlife Trust 

· Transition Cambridge  

 

DEVELOPERS/AGENTS 

· Artek Design House 

· Barratt Eastern Counties 

· Barton Wilmore 

· Beacon Planning Ltd 

· Bellway Homes 

· Berkeley Homes 

· Bidwells  

· Bovis Homes Ltd 

· Brookgate 

· Capita Symonds 

· Carter Jonas 

· Chartered Institute of Architectural 

Technologist 

· Cheffins 

· Countryside Properties 

· DPP 

· Drivers Jonas 

· Estate Management and Building 

Service, University of Cambridge 

· Gallagher Estates 

· Grosvenor USS 

· Home Builders Federation 

· Iceni Projects Ltd 

· Januarys 

· Liberty Property Trust 

· RPS 

· Savills  

· Skanska UK Plc 

· Taylor Vinters 

· Taylor Woodrow Developments 

Ltd 

· Terrance O’Rourke 

· The Home Builders Federation 

· The Howard Group of Companies 

· The Universities Superannuation 

Scheme 

· Unex 

· Liddl  

 

BUSINESSES 

· ARM Holdings 

· Cambridge Cleantech 

· Cambridge Energy Forum 

· Cambridge Hoteliers Association 

· Cambridge Network 

· Cambridgeshire Chambers of 

Commerce  

· CRACA 

· Creative Front 

· Ely Cathedral Business Group 

· Encompass Network 

· Federation of Small Businesses 

· Future Business 

· Greater Cambridge Greater 

Peterborough Local Enterprise 

Partnership 

· Love Cambridge  

· Marshalls Group of Companies 

· One Nucleus 

· Redgate Software 

· Royal Mail Group Ltd 

· St John’s Innovation Centre 

 

 

Page 398



 

 

 

 

EDUCATION 

· Anglia Ruskin University  

· University of Cambridge 

· All Colleges of the University of 

Cambridge  

· The Bursars’ Committee 

· Sixth Form Colleges 

· Private Schools 

· Cambridge Regional College 

· Language Schools 

· Secondary Schools in Cambridge 

 

RESIDENTS ASSOCIATIONS 

· All residents associations in 

Cambridge  

· FECRA (Federation of Cambridge 

Residents Associations) 

 

OTHERS 

· Argyle Street Housing Cooperative 

· BT Open Reach Newsites 

· Cable and Wireless UK 

· Cambridge Association of 

Architects 

· Cambridge Cycling Campaign 

· Cambridge Federation of Tenants 

and Leaseholders 

· Cambridge Local Access Forum 

· Cambridgeshire Campaign for 

Better Transport 

· Cambridgeshire Fire and Rescue 

Service 

· Design Council/CABE 

· Fenners Lawn Residents 

Association Ltd 

· Friends of Milton Road Library 

· Local Strategic Partnership 

· Mobile Operators Association 

· Registered Social Landlords 

· Shape East 

· Sport England 

· The Linchpin Project 

 

Page 399



 

 

APPENDIX 3 – NEWSPAPER NOTICE 
  
The following appeared in the Cambridge Evening News on 18 March 2013: 
 
Notice of publication of the Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy Preliminary Draft 

Charging Schedule (March 2013) for public consultation 

 

Cambridge City Council is in the process of preparing a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 

Charging Schedule. CIL is a new charge that local authorities can levy on all new 

development in their area to fund infrastructure improvements related to new 

development. The levy will be used to fund infrastructure to support growth. 

 

A CIL Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule has been developed which sets out the proposed 

charging rates for Cambridge. The Council considers that the preliminary Draft Charging 

Schedule strikes an appropriate balance between contributing to funding infrastructure and 

not putting development across Cambridge at risk. 

 

In accordance with Regulation 15 of the CIL Regulations (as amended), comments are 

invited on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule, and its associated evidence base 

documents, during the consultation period starting 18 March 2013 and ending 29
 
April 

2013 at 5PM. 

 

The Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule and other relevant supporting documents are 

available for inspection: 

· Online on the City Council’s website: 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy  

· At Cambridge City Council’s Customer Service Centre at Mandela House, 4 Regent 

Street, Cambridge, CB2 1BY from 8am-6pm on Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays and 

Fridays, and 9am–6pm on Thursdays. 

 

Comments should be made using: 

· The online response system available on the City Council website 

http://cambridge.jdi-consult.net/ldf/;  

· Printed response forms are available from the Customer Service Centre (as above) or 

can be downloaded and filled in electronically by visiting 

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy 

 

Completed response forms should be sent to: 

· CIL Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule Consultation, Planning Policy Team, 

Cambridge City Council, PO Box 700, Cambridge, CB1 0JH  

· Or emailed to policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk  

 

Representations received on the preliminary draft charging schedule will be taken into 

consideration in preparing the draft charging schedule. Following an additional period of 

consultation on the second draft, the charging schedule will be examined in public by an 

independent inspector. 

Page 400



 

 

 

For further information, please contact the Planning Policy team at 01223 457000 or e-mail 

using the address above  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 401



 

 

APPENDIX 4 – CONSULTATION LETTER/EMAIL  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 402



Patsy Dell, Head of Planning, Cambridge City Council, PO Box 700, CB1 0JH 

14th March 2013 

Brendan Troy 
Senior Planning Officer 
Email: policysurveys@cambridge.gov.uk
Tel: 01223 457000 
Fax: 01223 457369 

Planning Services

Dear Consultee, 

Community Infrastructure Levy Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule – notice of 
consultation

Cambridge City Council is in the process of preparing a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) 
Charging Schedule. CIL is a new charge that local authorities can levy on all new 
development in their area to fund infrastructure improvements related to new development. 
The levy will be used to fund infrastructure to support growth. 

A preliminary Draft Charging Schedule has been developed which sets out the proposed
charging rates for Cambridge. The Council considers that the preliminary Draft Charging 
Schedule strikes an appropriate balance between contributing to funding infrastructure and 
not putting development across Cambridge at risk. 

In accordance with Regulation 15 of the CIL Regulations (as amended), comments are
invited on the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule, and its associated evidence base 
documents, during the consultation period starting 18 March 2013 and ending 29 April
2013 at 5PM. 

A copy of the Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule and supporting documents can be found 
at the following address - https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/community-infrastructure-levy .

Please send us any representations using our online consultation system 

http://cambridge.jdi-consult.net/ldf/.  This is the Council’s preferred method for receiving

representations, but if you prefer to fill in a response form please return electronically

wherever possible. If you do not have access to a computer, a paper form can be completed

and sent to the Council. The response form can be downloaded from the Council’s website

or obtained by contacting the Council. 

If you have any queries please do not hesitate to contact the planning policy team. 

Yours sincerely

Brendan Troy 

Senior Planning Officer 

Page 403



Page 404

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 - Relationship between CIL and Section 106 – Examples from other authorities 

Oxford City Council – Draft Affordable Housing and Planning Obligations SPD – April 2013 – 

proposed mechanisms for the delivery of various types of infrastructure 

 

Type 
Infrastructure and other items to be 

delivered through S106 Agreements; 

S278 of the Highways Act; or through 

Planning Conditions 

 

Infrastructure to be funded or part 

funded through CIL 

Affordable Housing On-site provision and financial 

contributions towards affordable housing. Section 2 

of this SPD sets out the arrangements that will apply 

in respect of the delivery of affordable housing 

through planning obligations. 

CIL will not be used to pay for affordable 

housing 

Biodiversity On-site habitat creation or 

enhancement ; relocation of protected species to a 

suitable alternative site; some minor off-site 

mitigation, for instance where measures are 

required to mitigate identified impacts upon a 

nearby area of high biodiversity interest 

Any off-site measures (other than those 

specified in the previous column) 

Community Facilities Only where there is a specific 

requirement for the facility to be located on that 

site. In exceptional circumstances, where granting 

planning permission leads to the loss of community 

facilities, the City Council will secure alternative 

provision of equivalent or improved benefit to the 

community in terms of size, utility and access. This 

may be through contributions towards 

replacement/improvement of facilities 

or direct provision on an alternative site. 

Most community buildings/facilities 

Day-care provision for 

adults 

Not provided under S106 All day-care provision 

Education Only where there is a specific 

requirement for the facility to be located on 

that site. 

Most provision of new schools or 

expansion of 

existing schools including early years, 

primary and secondary (covering ages Environmental 

Improvements 

Only where there is a specific 

requirement for environmental improvements to 

be undertaken on that site. 

Off site provision or enhancement, 

including 

public realm improvements 

Flood Defence On-site measures which an FRA 

identifies as a requirement 

Flood defence works 

Page 405



 

Type 
Infrastructure and other items to be 

delivered through S106 Agreements; 

S278 of the Highways Act; or through 

Planning Conditions 

 

Infrastructure to be funded or part 

funded through CIL 

Indoor sports facilities Only where there is a specific 

requirement for facilities to be provided on that 

site. In exceptional circumstances, where granting 

planning permission leads to the loss of indoor 

sports facilities, the City Council will secure 

alternative provision of equivalent or improved 

benefit to the community in terms of size, utility 

and access. This may be through contributions 

towards 

replacement/improvement of facilities or direct 

provision on an alternative site. 

Most indoor sports provision including 

swimming pools, gyms and indoor sports 

halls 

Libraries Not provided under S106 All library provision 

Maintenance Infrastructure provided under S106 

agreements and transferred to the 

local authority will require a contribution 

towards future 

 

Outdoor sports facilities, 

public open 

space/children’s play 

areas, allotments  

Only where there is a specific requirement for facilities 

to be provided on that site. In exceptional 

circumstances, where granting planning permission 

leads to the loss of outdoor sports facilities, public 

Most outdoor sport and play provision, 

including outdoor sports pitches, courts and 

greens, recreational open space, allotments  

Public art Where on-site public art is required, it should 

preferably be considered as part of the design process 

and incorporated into the submitted planning 

application. The public art would then be secured by 

Off-site provision  

SUDS  SUDS provision will normally be on-site and may 

require a maintenance payment  

CS11  

Transfer of land  In-kind payments under CIL regulations  Transfer of land  

Waste recycling centre Not provided under S106 All     provision     of     waste     

recycling/waste management facilities 

Youth services Not provided under S106 All aspects of the Youth Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 406



Chelmsford City Council – Draft Planning Obligations SPD, June 2013 – Guide to infrastructure 

covered by S.106 and CIL 

 

Infrastructure  Type                                                                                          CIL                S.106   
S106  
Affordable Housing                                                                                                                  √ 

 

Recreation and Leisure 

Improvements to existing Strategic or Local Open Space                                    √ 

Provision of new Strategic or Local Open Space                                                                     √ 

 

Highways, Access and Transport 

Strategic Highway or Transportation Projects                                                 √ 

Site Specific Infrastructure                                                                                                            √ 

 

Education 

Additional Primary and Pre-School Provision                                                      √ 

Additional Secondary Provision                                                                     √ 

New Primary or Pre-School Provision                                                                                   √ 

 

Environmental Mitigation 

Strategic Mitigation Measures                                                                             √ 

Site related Mitigation Measures                                                                                                   √ 

 

Public Realm and Public Art 

Strategic Public Realm Projects                                                                           √ 

On site Public Realm and Public Art                                                                                       √ 

 

Health and Well-being 

Improvements to existing Primary Healthcare Provision                                     √ 

Provision of new Primary Healthcare Facilities                                                                        √ 

 

Community Facilities                                                                                                              √ 

 

Flood Protection and Water Management 

Strategic Flood Alleviation Measures                                                              √ 

Site Related Flood Protection Measures                                                                                       √ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 407



Bolton Council – Infrastructure and Planning Contributions Draft SPD April 2013 

Infrastructure Type  Planning Condition  Section 106 

Agreement  

Community 

Infrastructure Levy  

Affordable housing  

 
X √ X 

Open Space 

√ 

√ 

relating to policy 

CG1.4 development 
 

 

√ 

relating to policy CG1.4 

development 

 

Health and Well 

being 
X X √ 

Education (Outside 

vicinity of HLW) 
X X √ 

Education (within 

vicinity of HLW) 
X √ X 

Community and 

cultural facilities 
X X √ 

Public Realm √ X √ 

Public Art √ X √ 

Transport 
√ 

√ 

relating to paragraph 

4.26 projects 

√ 

relating to paragraph 

4.26 projects 

Other mitigation √ X √ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 408



Hertsmere Regulation 123 List – July 2013 

 

Hertsmere Borough Council 

Draft CIL Regulation 123 List 

 

Hertsmere Borough Council’s Regulation 123 draft list of infrastructure that it intends will be 

partly or in whole funded through Community Infrastructure Levy is as follows: 

 

· Education facilities (with the exception of those in the relation to the Elstree Way 

Corridor) 

· Transport improvements (with the exception of those in the relation to the Elstree Way 

· Corridor) 

· Publically accessible Leisure facilities (including children play areas and outdoor/indoor  

· facilities) 

· Publically accessible open space provision and allotments. Health care facilities 

· Library services 

· Emergency services 

Unless the need for the infrastructure arises directly from five or fewer developments, where 

section 106 arrangements may continue to apply if the infrastructure is required to make the 

development acceptable in planning terms. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 409



Huntingdonshire District  Council Regulation 123 List  

 
 Development Specific (Non-CIL funded) 
infrastructure  

Remaining Infrastructure (CIL funded)  

Local site-related road / transport 
requirements  

Remaining Roads and other transport facilities  

Large scale major (1) development specific 
school provision contributions  

Remaining Schools and other educational 
facilities  

Large scale major (1) development specific 
health provision contributions  

Remaining Health facilities  

Large scale major (1) development specific 
sport and recreational facilities contributions  

Remaining Sport and recreational facilities  

Development specific provision of informal and 
formal green space land requirements  

Remaining Green infrastructure open spaces  
/ facilities  

Large scale major (1) development specific 
library provision and community facilities 
contributions  

Remaining Social infrastructure  

Local site-related economic inclusion 
requirements  

Remaining Economic regeneration  

Large scale major (1) development specific 
police provision contributions  

Remaining Emergency services  

Local site-related utility requirements  Remaining Utilities  

Local site-related flood risk solutions 
requirements  

Remaining Flood defences  

 
 (1) Residential development of 200 or more dwellings or ,where the residential units is not given, a site area of 
4 hectares or more, or any other development where the floor space to be built is 10,000 sq m or more or 
where the site is 2 hectares or more (DCLG Development Control PS 1/2 statistical definition 2007/8)  

 

 

East Cambridgeshire District Council Regulation 123 List 

· Littleport Secondary School 

· Ely Leisure Centre 

· Soham Railway Station 

 

 

Page 410



Report Page No: 1 

 

 

Cambridge City Council 
 

Item 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Public Places: Councillor Andrea Reiner 

Report by: Head of Streets and Open Spaces 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment Scrutiny Committee 8/10/2013 

Wards affected: Market 
 
 
ROUSE BALL PAVILION CONSULTATION 
Non Key Decision 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 Previous Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) bids in 2008, 2011 and 2012 have considered options to develop the 
Rouse Ball Pavilion (location detailed in Appendix A) into a valued community asset providing a café facility, 
meeting space, storage for operational use and new toilets.  
 
1.2 Bids have also considered the location, and the merits of forging links with the Jesus Green swimming pool. 
 
1.3 The Rouse Ball pavilion is located on the northern edge of Jesus Green near to the river and in close proximity 
to busy thoroughfares.  The pavilion has storage space, staff accommodation and toilet provision for park users.  
 
1.4 The building is in a poor state of repair, both externally and internally and is currently providing little value to 
Jesus Green. 
 
1.5 Developer contributions collected for community facilities and formal sport1 can be used to meet the costs of 
some work, a capital bid may be required and external funding opportunities will also be sought prior to any bid. 
 
1.6 This project reflects on the previous consultation undertaken for the HLF bids, it also takes into consideration 
the previously developed, audience development plan and business case used to support the grant bids. 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
The Executive Councillor is recommended: 
 
To instruct Officers to consultation on a range of options for the future of the Rouse Ball Pavilion on Jesus Green, to 
include the following:- 
 

a) The refurbishment of existing pavilion; 
b) The demolition and rebuilding of the pavilion around the same location; 
c) The demolition and rebuilding of a pavilion in a new location on Jesus Green; 
d) The demolition and rebuilding of a pavilion in a location that would provide facilities for users of both the 

Green and the outdoor swimming pool and retain the kiosk in the current position. 
And; 

e) To instruct officers to seek external funding to support options, and to prepare a project appraisal for a 
future Scrutiny Committee. 

 
3. Background  
 
3.1 The Rouse Ball Pavilion is a significant building on Jesus Green.  It currently is in need of repair.  There is also 
a need to consider current and future use.  
 
3.2 The pavilion was gifted by and named after Walter William Rouse Ball, known as W. W. Rouse Ball (14 
August 1850 – 4 April 1925)  Educated at University College School, he entered Trinity College, Cambridge in 1870, 
became a scholar and first Smith's Prizeman, and gained his BA in 1874 as second Wrangler. He became a Fellow 
of Trinity in 1875, and remained one for the rest of his life.  He is buried at the Parish of the Ascension Burial 
Ground in Cambridge. 
 
3.3 The Pavilion currently provides toilet facilities for the Green and storage facilities for grounds maintenance 
equipment. 
 

                                            
1
 Linked to the Jesus Green outdoor swimming pool only) 

Agenda Item 12

Page 411



Report Page No: 2 

3.4 The Heritage Lottery bids in 2008, 2011 & 2012 amongst other things looked to secure funding to support the 
refurbishment or rebuilding of the pavilion to create a community hub, which could incorporate café facilities, 
meeting room, toilets and space for and opportunities for volunteering. 
 
3.5 Rouse Ball Pavilion has significant structural repair issues that need to be addressed.  These include 
subsidence and structural movement, and a failing roof.   
 
3.6 Financial cost analysis has been undertaken which illustrates repair and rebuild costs are not significantly 
different.  
 
3.7 The building is currently significantly under used, but in its current state has not got the capacity to be utilised 
further. 
 
3.8 The Arts & Recreation Section are keen to develop greater scope for use of the outdoor swimming pool and 
associated buildings. Currently the basic catering provision is undertaken by volunteers on an ad hoc basis. This 
project gives the opportunity to considering creation of one all-purpose building which would serve both the park and 
pool.  
 
3.9 Consultation has previously been undertaken in association with Heritage Lottery Fund ‘Parks for People’ bids 
in 2008, 2011 & 2012. Additional consultation work will be required once the proposals have been developed which 
will include local stakeholder groups such as Jesus Green Association and Friends of Jesus Green Swimming Pool, 
plus wider consultation with users of Jesus Green. 
 
3.10 The total cost of the project is estimated between £700k & £800k funded through a combination of section 106 
contributions, toilet renovation capital program and external funding options. 
 
3.11 The anticipated on-going revenue costs of the project will be funded through income generation.  It is 
expected that this project may yield an income for the Council greater than the revenue costs although a full 
business case has yet to be developed. 
 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 

This project is included in the Council’s Capital & Revenue Project Plan reference (PR034j), and there is 
currently £185,000 allocated.  Further additional allocations could be made from S106 monies received. 

 
(b) Staffing Implications 
 None currently identified 
 
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 An equalities impact assessment will be completed when the consultation feedback has been analysed.  
 
(d) Environmental Implications 

None identified at this stage however it is anticipated that any new building would incorporate sustainable 
building techniques and have a medium positive rating. 

 
(e) Procurement 
It is intended that once the consultation finding are known and the Executive Councillor has approved a project 
appraisal, the approval will seeks the authority to utilise the Planscape Framework for the design and 
construction. 

 
The Planscape framework will speed up the delivery of the project, realise best value resulting from a national 
competitive tendering exercise and allow for early contractor involvement throughout the design to ensure cost, 
time and maintenance are considered throughout all project stages. 
 
(f) Consultation and communication 
Consultation will be undertaken in four phases; 

1) A discussion group with key Officers to establish justifications and limitations of each options (Mid October); 
2) A working group of key stakeholders to consider various options (Mid October); 
3) A review to consider if  all options should be considered for wider consultation; 
4) Onsite and web based consultation for six week period, to begin at October half term and conclude 9th 

December. 
 

(g) Community Safety 
The recommendations have no direct impact on Community Safety, however, the outcomes of the consultation 
could detail concerns and areas to be covered when drafting future proposals for the Rouse Ball Pavilion. 

 
 

Page 412



Report Page No: 3 

5. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
Audience Development Plan 2008 
HLF Bid documentation 2008, 2011 & 2012 
Engineers report on the condition of the Rouse Ball Pavilion 
 
6. Appendices  
Appendix A - Location Plan  
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Alistair Wilson 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 - 458514 
Author’s Email:  alistair.wilson@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
    

Page 413



Page 414

This page is intentionally left blank



Layer: J:\WORKING\
Template: J:\Projects\ArcGIS_Templates\ist_portrait_a4
Plan ref: N:\PROPERTY\GIS\GENERAL\PDFs jg_rbp_2500

Sta

17
 to

 1
9

9

3

6

2
4

P
a

th

CARLYLE ROAD

7

31

Alexandra Gardens

38

2
1

2
0

18

S
T

 J
O

H
N

'S
 R

O
A

D

28

CH
ESTERTO

N R
O

A
D

P
o

rt
u

g
al

PA
R

K
 PA

R
A

D
E

Carlyle

GRASMERE GARDENS

Sluice and Footbridge

47

1

44

20
1

33

35

29

Jesus Close

10
3

Path

Bank

Area

Riverside Court

CHESTERTON ROAD

Warehouse

6
 to

 8

Maltings Yard

CW

9.1m

15

2

3
1

S
h

ip
 L

a
n

e

Posts

2
8

9

6

1 to 3

8.8m

22a

P
o

sts
6.4m

10.7m

1

15

20a

4

11

14

22

21

Garage

CR

ED & W
ard Bdy

Tennis Courts

22

8

1 to 45

Jesus Green

C
P

8.2m

19
 to

El Sub Sta

31

14

12.5m

Tennis

Swimming Pool

C
O

R
O

N
A

 R

Second Court

Half

T
H

O
M

P
S

O
N

S
 L

A
N

E

2

F
IS

H
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

Bishop

20

18

20
15

Posts

27

6.4m

1

1a

LOWER PARK STREET

7

Weir

37

58

1

13

Jubilee

115

2

VICTORIA ROAD

18

12

8

Boat
1

7.9m

O
R

D
 S

TR
EET

15

owling Green

6.
7
m

11

P
la

ce

11

H
O

L
L

A
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

21

16

Bateman

36
34

5

Club

45

Hotel

28

PH

4

47
 to

 6
1

65

63

Def

18

Yard

31

101

TCB

3

1

PCs

16

Picnic

7
.0

m

8

22

La Mimosa

2
3

P
o

rt
u

g
a
l

Court

13

3

NEW
 PAR

K

P
o

s
ts

S
T

R
E

E
T

16

P
O

R
T

U
G

A
L
 S

T
R

E
E

T

17

12

13.1m

G
ovt O

ffices

5.8m

TCBs

73-79

8.5m

25

16

Lock

91

7

39

1a

1

North Court

Court

C
R

O
F

T
 H

O
L

M
E

 L
A

N
E

2

Garage

House

Pavilion

Cam

3
2

2

3
0

1

12

Institute

New Chesterton

5 t
o 9

1

R
iv

er
 C

am

1
3

ED
 &

 W
ard

 B
dy

41

race

19

10

19

Prim
ary

 S
chool

12

House

2

U
nd

LB

41a

PC

Rouse Ball Pavilion

2

60

81

34

24

PH

121

14

Ditch

24a

Moon Yard

Sub

15

14

12.5m

1

School

R
ic

h
m

o
n

d
 T

e
rr

a
c

e

B
e

au
fo

rt

1

Bishop Bateman Court

23
22

2

Place

S
tr

e
et

22

26

25

31

71a

80

37

41

68

Lock

Albert

A
L
B

E
R

T
 S

T
R

E
E
T

12

8.2m
6

Jesus Green Skate Park

House

9.4m

14

Jesus

Path

Jesus Close

Playground

Jesus C

El

S
t 

C
le

m
e
n

ts
 G

a
rd

e
n

s

14

PH

29

1
12

CR

6.4m

Post

Park
 S

tre
et C

 o
f E

13

17

Tennis Courts

9

19

El Sub Sta

39

Shelte
r

35

House

52

1

5

2

PH

Jesus Green

Playground

River

2

22

PH

129

1

(Founde

7 8

24

Scale:

Date:

Produced by:

Section/Department:

24/09/13

Steve Udall

Informations Systems Team

© Crown copyright and database right 2013. Ordnance Survey Licence number 100019730.

Rouse Ball Pavilion - Jesus Green

1:2,500

«

Information Systems 

Team

@ A4

Rouse Ball

Pavilion

Page 415



Page 416

This page is intentionally left blank



Cambridge City Council Item

To: Executive Councillor for Public Places: Councillor Andrea Reiner

Report by: Head of Streets and Open Space

Relevant scrutiny 
committee: 

Environment Scrutiny Committee 8/10/2013

Wards affected: Abbey, East Chesterton & Market

AN UPDATE ON MOORINGS AT RIVERSIDE
Non Key Decision

1. Executive summary

1.1 This report sets out the results of the recent consultation (Spring 2013) on exploring options for the future 
management of the moorings at Riverside.  

1.2 The City Council has asserted its ownership of, and registered its title1 to, the subsoil of Riverside.   The 
registration of title provided an opportunity to consider management options for moorings at Riverside.  

1.3 In early 2013, Officers carried out an assessment of the possible approaches that could be adopted at 
Riverside.  The appraisal was intended to assist identification of suitable solutions for addressing the management 
of moorings, whilst minimising or mitigating any adverse effects of any solution.  

1.4 The Council identified six possible options for the Riverside Wall moorings.  None of these has been tested for 
legality, technical feasibility, or cost, as it was felt appropriate to put all options to consultation before going to the 
expense of detailed feasibility appraisal on options that might actually prove unacceptable to the public interest

1.5 The Council expressed a wish to consult with statutory and other bodies concerned with Riverside, and, with 
boat owners, local residents, and other stakeholders, to ensure that any final decision is informed by an appropriate 
range of views.

1.6 This report intends to inform and make recommendations on the development and feasibility of a shortlist of 
options, set within the context of the consultation findings.

2. Recommendations

The Executive Councillor is recommended:

a To instruct Officers to carry out feasibility work on options 2 & 3 (detailed at paragraph 3.6); and to consult on 
Executive Councillor approved  solutions and to report back consultation findings to Environment Scrutiny 
Committee for further consideration and decision.

b Not to pursue creating solutions for options 1,4,5 & 6, (detailed at paragraph 3.6) at this stage, and not to 
consult on these options further, but not to discount these options completely until the outcomes of further study of 
options 2 & 3 are known.

3. Background

3.1 Cambridge City Council manages residential moorings on the River Cam, and over a number of years has 
developed a moorings policy that governs the way this service works.

3.2 The existing City Council Moorings Policy was approved by the Executive Councillor for Community 
Development and Leisure on the 24th March 2005, and it currently does not cover land at Riverside.

3.3 Following a review of the Moorings Policy, The Executive Councillor for Arts and Recreation on the 18th 
January 2007 approved the recommendation; to instruct officers to continue to assist the County Council in relation 
to consideration on moorings issues on the Riverside Area.

3.4 The County Council until recently was believed to be the owner of land at Riverside as detailed in Appendix A.
There is evidence that supported a claim, that the City Council is in fact the riparian owner.  The successful claim to 
register an interest in/ or ownership of the land at Riverside with the Land Registry by the City Council allows the 
Council to consider how it wishes to manage this land and regulate any moorings or any other activities.

1
Title no. CB368081, dated 17 Feb 2012

Agenda Item 13

Page 417



3.5 In a report to the Executive Councillor for Art, Sports and Public Places on the 12th January 2012 it was 
recommended that any decision on the future management of the land at Riverside should be informed by the views 
of different groups of people, who have a reasonable interest in what happens to this area.  

3.6 A consultation was approved by the Executive Councillor that considered:
Option 1:  Permit mooring on Riverside wall, integrating the area into the city's mooring policy;
Option 2:  Permit mooring on Riverside wall, but not where the river is narrowest;
Option 3:  Ban mooring on Riverside wall, and relocate Riverside craft to other locations on the river;
Option 4:  Ban mooring on Riverside wall and give existing resident moorers notice to vacate;
Option 5:  Re-organise mooring so as to make Riverside a visitor mooring area only, opening up existing 
visitor moorings for residential use;
Option 6: Do nothing; leave things as they are.

3.6.1 Opportunity was also provided to suggest alternative options (labelled Option 7 in this report).

3.7 A total of 650 people took part in the consultation through either the questionnaire or a separate letter; in 
addition 348 other responses were received through a campaign and 77 through an associated petition.  A total of 
1,075 people have been counted as taking part.  Residents account for just over half the questionnaire response 
(about a third of these live on streets close to Riverside), and a third are rowers; other interests are represented in 
smaller numbers.

3.7.1 The results have been analysed in two ways:  the overall preference of each respondent, and their opinions on 
individual options.

3.8 Analysis of individual responses

Interest group

Option

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 N

Riverside moorer 7 1 0 0 1 6 2 17

Licensed moorer 7 5 3 5 3 4 2 29

Waiting list 10 3 0 1 2 4 5 25

Riverside resident 14 19 11 26 4 15 8 97

Other resident 22 45 11 29 2 24 11 144

Rower 2 50 34 50 4 3 11 154

Angler 2 0 1 2 0 2 1 8

Other interest 17 17 3 11 7 9 5 70

Overall 72 117 57 108 21 65 36

476

Overall % 15% 25% 12% 23% 4% 14% 7%

Table 1:  Preferred option (individuals)2

3.8.1 The leading individual choice is Option 2, whereby mooring would be permitted on Riverside Wall other than at 
the narrowest points of the river.  This option achieves a quarter of the total response.   Whilst Option 2 is thus the 
front runner, it is by no means a consensus choice, with three people preferring an alternative to every one person 
who chooses this option.

3.8.2 Option 4, the option which bans mooring at Riverside and gives existing occupants notice to vacate, is in fact 
very close behind.  Only a handful of preferences separate this result from that for option 2, and again it accounts 
for around a quarter of the overall result.  

3.8.3 All the other options have their advocates, with Option 1, whereby Riverside is integrated into the City Council 
mooring policy, securing 15% of the overall individual vote, and Option 3, which bans mooring on Riverside and 
relocates existing moorers, around 12% overall.  Option 6, the 'Do nothing' option, is favoured by 14% of 
respondents, around one in every seven of those taking part.

2
The overall result counts each response once; but the breakdown allows each response to be counted within each group to which the respondent belongs, which 

is why the figures in the final column total more than the overall number of votes cast.Page 418



3.8.4 Option 5, which re-designates Riverside as visitor moorings, receives relatively little support, with just 5% 
choosing this as their preferred option.

3.8.5 Moorers generally favour Options 1 and 2, with Option 1 a strong preference for those resident at Riverside 
Wall.

3.8.6 Licensed moorers favour Option 1 but spread their support fairly thinly across all the options with no distinctive 
preference. Option 1 is also a strong preference for those on the waiting list to secure a Cam mooring, but this 
group offers only limited support for any of the other options.

3.8.7 Residents are divided on their preference.  Riverside residents tend to favour Option 4, but not by a significant 
margin; Option 2 is also quite popular here, and so are Options 1 and 6.  Other residents are most likely to choose 
Option 2, but there is also support in this group for Option 4, and to a lesser extent for Options 1 and 6.  Residents 
thus show no clear consensus, either collectively or when broken down into component groups.

3.8.8 Rowers similarly divide on preferences, split between Option 2 and Option 4, which attract rowers' support in 
equal measure.  A substantial minority of rowers choose Option 3, but few look for their preferred solution in any of 
the other options.

3.8.9 Anglers show no consensus, other than rejecting Options 2 and 5 completely.

3.9 Opinion on options 

3.9.1 Option 1 generates a polarised view.  Over half of respondents dislike this option, but 41% are favourable.   
Moorers tend to favour this option, but rowers oppose it; Riverside residents tend to dislike it, but those from 
elsewhere in Cambridge are more favourable.

3.9.2 Option 2 response is also polarised, but this time the position is reversed; Over half of respondents like it, but 
38% are opposed to this solution.  Moorers are generally positive, and a majority of rowers like it.  Riverside 
residents divide on the proposal, with a majority opposed to it, whilst other residents tend to like it.

3.9.3 Option 3 also generates a polarised view, with a majority disliking it, and a substantial minority finding things to 
like about it.  Moorers, anglers, and people on the waiting list, dislike it strongly.  Riverside residents tend to be 
favourable, but a significant group of these express strong dislike for this option; other residents tend towards a 
negative position.  Rowers are especially likely to favour this option.

3.9.4 Half of all respondents dislike Option 4, with a significant minority in favour.  Riverside moorers dislike this 
option, but some of their licensed counterparts think it has merits; the waiting list also dislikes this option strongly. 
Riverside residents are divided almost evenly on this option, but other residents tend to be negative about it.  
Rowers, on the other hand, like it a lot.

3.9.5 Three-quarters of respondents dislike Option 5, more than half of them disliking it strongly.  No respondent 
group favours this option; support tends to be small numbers in each group.

3.9.6 Option 6 is rejected by two thirds of respondents, with significant levels of strong dislike.  Although it is liked by 
Riverside moorers, and by some licensed moorers and waiting list respondents, Riverside residents strongly oppose 
this option, with support from other residents.  Rowers find little to like in this option.

3.10 Stakeholders and other organised responses

3.10.1 An organised campaign attracted considerable volumes of support, both in terms of letters and emails 
(348 responses) and a petition (77 responses).  The text of the campaign letter is not specific about a preferred 
option, but expresses what are clearly widely held opinions on some of the issues concerned.  The key messages of 
the campaign letter are these:

• boats should remain on Riverside (this rules out options 3, 4 and 5)
• boats are an important element in a diverse local community
• moored craft at Riverside are part of the area's history, and have been there much longer than many 

land-based residents
• there is nowhere for displaced boaters to go (this suggests that options 2, 3 and 4 are ruled out)
• existing regulations should be enforced, and derelict boats removed 
• mutually satisfactory solutions should be sought
• existing residents should not be displaced (this rules out options 3, 4 and 5)

3.10.1.1 In essence, then, the campaign tends to support Option 6 (the 'do nothing' option), except that it also 
calls for the enforcement implicit in the mooring policy, which is an important element of Option 1

Page 419



3.10.2 The National Bargee Travellers' Association, which represents the views of liveaboard boaters, also 
favours Option 6, which best protects the interests of their constituency and their rights under the European 
Convention on Human Rights.

3.10.3 The Cam Conservators express a desire for change, and call for a full feasibility study on Option 2 
(which would require their permission).  Should an engineered solution prove infeasible, they suggest consideration 
of Options 3 and 4.   The Environment Agency expresses informal support for the Conservators' view, but prefers 
Option 3 to Option 4.

3.10.4 The Riverside Area Residents Association do not express a preferred option, and encourage their 
members to express their own views direct to the consultation; however, they reject Option 6 completely.  The 
Association does however seek some assurances on the wider interests of its members, and also on the need to 
manage any change sensitively.

3.10.5 Rowing clubs tend to favour Option 2, with Options 3 and 4 also popular.

3.11 Option 7 – Alternatives

3.11.1 The consultation allowed the opportunity for respondents (both stakeholders and individuals) to suggest 
additional options.  Several took the opportunity, but in many cases they restate issues already clarified under 
existing options, emphasising points that have already been made, or indicating where their priorities lie, rather than 
offering genuine alternative suggestions.  Thus there are many comments about removing the derelict or 
unoccupied craft, prioritising the needs of one group against another, imposing charges on all moorers regardless of 
the preferred option, and - above all - ensuring that rules and regulations are applied to moorers and properly 
enforced.

3.11.2 There are nevertheless some new points made under this heading, and the most commonly mentioned 
seventh option is the possibility of creating additional moorings which might accommodate the Riverside moorers, or 
increase the potential for visitor mooring, or both.  The most commonly suggested solution within this idea is the 
creation of a marina, perhaps at Fen Ditton although other locations are also suggested.  The flood relief elements 
of the CamToo project, which if implemented would create additional mooring space, are mentioned here.  The 
creation of these facilities is recognised and supported, however, there are many unknowns with delivering these 
projects and therefore their timescales to do not fit with the decisions needed from this report.

3.11.3 A potentially simpler solution that might replace Options 1 and 2 is the introduction of gates and ladders 
into the railings, as an alternative to pontoons, providing access to those locations where mooring might safely be 
permitted on this stretch; the Conservators comment on this possibility as well.  Another suggestion is to integrate 
Riverside into the existing scheme, but charge a lower fee for mooring there to recognise the access issues.

3.12 Conclusions

3.12.1 Whilst this is a genuine attempt to summarise the views of stakeholders, the summary necessarily 
abbreviates the opinions and representations made; and several other stakeholders and interest groups also 
express a view.

3.12.2 There is no clear consensus in this consultation to guide the Council towards a particular solution for 
Riverside.  However, there is broad agreement that will help the Council to narrow down its options ahead of the 
next stage of work on this issue.

3.12.3 Although Option 6 (Do nothing) is the preferred option of a large number of people responding to a 
campaign, the Council has already committed to taking some action. 

3.12.4 Option 5 (visitor moorings) has little support, and its cost is not justified by the benefits it secures.  

3.12.5 Option 4 (ban mooring, evict moorers) is popular in some quarters, and the second most popular 
solution overall, but is regarded as too drastic a solution, and insufficiently sensitive to the needs of those who 
would lose their moorings.

3.12.6 Option 1 (keep mooring, integrate into Mooring Policy) has some support, but does too little to address 
the legitimate concerns of rowers and local residents.  Under Option 1, the problems they identify would remain 
unabated.  It is also costly, although some of that cost would be recoverable through licence fees; and it would call 
for a much stronger enforcement regime than is currently in operation.

3.12.7 Option 3 (ban mooring, relocate Riverside moorers) has moderate levels of support, but this is held 
down because there is a widespread view that the Council does not have sufficient mooring space to allow this 
option to be implemented.  

Page 420



3.12.7.1 More space could be created temporarily on Council land to accommodate those removed from 
Riverside and no new licences issued from the waiting list until the numbers return to the 70 prescribed in the 
current Moorings Policy. This option has possibilities, although the waiting list is penalised by it - unless the Council 
can demonstrate that it has enough spare capacity to introduce this option without taking up spaces that would 
otherwise have been offered to the waiting list.

3.12.7.2 This option could provide for a ‘grandfathering’ provision, so that Riverside moorers would take a place 
on the waiting list and allow them to moor at Riverside until a mooring on the Councils Mooring Policy becomes 
available.  This approach would mean that those on the waiting list and those at Riverside would be treated equally, 
however it does not overcome possible health and safety concerns about unsafe moorings.

Option 3, would require

 the completion and implementation of the enforcement process currently being undertaken against licence 
breaches in the mooring policy;

 the identification of additional locations within the mooring policy areas;

 explanation to the waiting list that their status is not compromised by this;

3.12.8 Option 2 (allow Riverside mooring, but only where river is widest) is widely recognised as offering 
something to everyone, and as a good compromise.  This is positive, but leaves open the question of whether the 
‘something’ it offers is enough to satisfy different groups’ expectations.  There are also questions of feasibility to be 
explored, both in terms of engineering feasibility (access and achieving a stable platform) and the required consents 
of statutory bodies including the Conservators and the County Council.  This option receives enough support, and 
achieves enough of the Council's Vision, to merit further consideration.  Option 2, could be explored further by

 The identification and quantification of spaces at wider points3, compared with the number of boats 
requiring space;

 Exploration of the planning position and the standing of any moorings that may thus be created;

 An engineering and safety-related feasibility study;

 Working up and detailing the design of land point pontoons, access ladders and gates.

3.12.9 The consultation seems to rule out Options 5 and 6 altogether.  Option 4 may also be discarded as 
contravening the Council's commitment to minimise hardship, while Option 1 would need consideration as to how 
any suggested solution could overcome opposition to it.

4. Implications 

(a) Financial Implications
i) The cost of carrying out the feasibility study and Option appraisal is estimated at.....

A subsequent round of consultation would cost in the region of £2,500 plus VAT.

ii) If consultation results recommend extending the Council's mooring scheme along Riverside, and 
licensing moorings, we would need to undertake works alongside the embankment. These might include the 
installation of a landing pontoon to the river and improved means of access; e.g. Ladders. The cost of these 
works could be significant and approximately £12,000 to £20,000 for every two boats. There is £75,000 in the 
Councils Capital Plan for 2014/15 reference number SC561 for this work should it be required.

iii) A further consequence of permitting mooring would be that the Council would be expected to regulate 
any nuisance caused by those living on boats.  The income received from any licence fees would (if set at the 
current fee) be sufficient to allow regular enforcement visits.

iv) If mooring were to be permitted, we would need consent from the Cam Conservators.  The position in 
respect of planning permissions would need to be established, before any subsequent recommendations.

v) If the Council decides to prohibit mooring, along all or part of Riverside, this would give rise to several 
issues:-

 There would be a resource implication, for Legal Services in taking any court action necessary against 
boats moored without the Council's authority. There would also be resource implications for the Streets 
and Open Spaces team in evidence gathering.

 To indicate a prohibition of mooring by signs may be an issue (e.g. planning issues) with placing signs in 
such a sensitive location. It may also be considered necessary to install some sort of physical barrier to 
mooring; e.g. a string of marker buoys. There would be a cost to installing and maintaining a barrier.

(b) Staffing Implications   
There are no staffing implications beyond normal duties.

3
The Cam Conservators areas for mooring are detailed on Appendix A Page 421



(c) Equal Opportunities Implications
A full Equality Impact Assessment will be completed prior to the creation of any future policy recommendations 
to be made to Environment Scrutiny Committee

(d) Environmental Implications
The recommendations contained within this report have no climate change impact but future options should 
improve the local environmental quality.

(e) Procurement
There are no procurement implications at this stage.

(f) Consultation and communication
The Council has committed to further consultation before any attempt is made to implement a decision on any 
of these options, but has also indicated that it intends to rule some options out at this first stage.  Any future 
consultation will therefore need to be more focussed on available options, and will also benefit from a higher 
level of information to guide respondents as to their preference in response.  This will include engineering 
assessments of Option 2 (and by implication, Option 1) and appraisals of the potential for implementing Option 
3, and their implications for existing river users, residents and the waiting list. 

The first stage consultation has shown not only the presence of strong views within the different communities 
affected by this situation, but also highlights the lack of consensus.  A future consultation will need to be 
careful to ensure that information provided to inform participants is neutral in tone and needs to avoid any 
suggestion of leading respondents towards a preferred solution.  But it also needs to be comprehensive and 
balanced as to the presentation of advantages and disadvantages, as this first stage consultation has been.

It may be that the feasibility studies identify costs or other implications that affect the deliverability of these 
options, so it would be unwise to rule out all other options from the second stage consultation; but any 
reintroduction of these options should be supported by clear and unequivocal argument and explanation.   
However, there is little merit in reconsidering Option 5 (low support) or Option 6 (contrary to existing Council 
commitment) at this second stage.

An online approach is the most cost-effective way of achieving a satisfactory level of participation, but will 
need to be supported by paper-based options as Riverside moorers in particular have preferred this method of 
response, and should not be inadvertently excluded by the methodology.  The Council may also expect to 
receive letters and perhaps other campaign materials promoting particular viewpoints, including those which 
are not being explored further at this point.

Because feelings run high, and because there are a variety of interests to be heard here, a public meeting is 
also suggested to allow presentation and discussion of the feasibility study findings for Options 2 and 3.  
Whatever decision is made will inevitably disappoint some residents and this disappointment may be 
heightened if they feel their voices have been insufficiently heard; a public meeting will provide an opportunity 
for these points to be made.  However, a wider consultation is needed to ensure that those with softer voices, 
or who lack the confidence to stand up in public, are also heard.

(g) Community Safety
The recommendations have no direct impact on Community Safety, however, the outcomes of the 
consultation will detail concerns and areas to be covered when drafting future policies relating to the 
management of /and regulation of moorings at Riverside

5. Background papers
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report:
12/10/CS Riverside Riparian Ownership & Moorings
Consultation briefing note on Riverside Moorings
Mooring at Riverside Wall - Summary Report on consultation
Moorings at Riverside Wall – A report for Cambridge City Council by Phil Back Associates Ltd, May 2013.

https://www.cambridge.gov.uk/riverside-mooring-options-consultation

6. Appendices
Appendix A - Map showing land at Riverside and Cam Conservators Mooring areas

7. Inspection of papers

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report please contact:

Author’s Name: Alistair Wilson
Author’s Phone Number: 01223 - 458514
Author’s Email: alistair.wilson@cambridge.gov.ukPage 422



Page 423



Page 424

This page is intentionally left blank



�

����������	�
�����
�

������������������	
�������������

�

�

����
�
�������������������������	������	�������
�������������������

����������� ������������������������ �!�����	�����

!�������������������� �"#$�%"&�"������ '�(�%�������)*+�

,��������������� &��-����

�

��������������������������� ����
"��./������������
�
�

!"#�� �$��%��&���%''��(�
�

�(�������������������������������(��������������0���������������
�������������
(���
�������������(���1�����
������������(��
�������	��-��2��	����3�

�

�(�������������������(������������������(�����0�����������4�
��������
����������������������������(������-����������������(���
����4�1(��(�1�����������������������������(�������
������������(�������������(�������������(����
(���
�
����������(���������1�����
���������3�

�
�

)"#� ����''��*�������
�

�(�������������������������������������5�
�
)"!� ������(�������(������������������������������
(���
�����
��

�������������������������������(��	��-��2��	�����6�
(���
�
	��0���4���������������1��(��(������������������������
	��������������3�

�

)")� ����
���������-���(�����������������������(�����������0����
���������������������������������(��	��-��2��	�����6�
(���
�
���0���4���������(��������������!�����������������������4����
�������������1��(��(���(��������!��-��4����0��������(��������
������������0���������������������
�78*4***3�

Agenda Item 14

Page 425



�

����������	�
����)�
�

+"#��,
���-
���

�(������0��������������(�������������������������������
(���
���������
����
��(���1�����
��������(�����������(����������������������
(�
(1����������	��-��2��	����3�
�

!����6��������	����
�

�
�

��������	
�����������
�������
����	�����	�����
�

���	
����-
�����	����
�*��
./�

������������� �%������� �'�"��������

���������	����������� "��������)*+�

�1���������������� ���������)*+�

����������������������� 9�������)*:�

	��0��������������� ;��������)*:��

Page 426



�

����������	�
����+�
�

+"!� ������0��
���.��

����������������	��0��������� 7�����8*4***�

�

+")� �����
�
���0��
..�
�

	�����������1��������(���
(�����<���������<����������������(����
����������� ��
(���
� ������������ ��� ����������� 1��(� �� 1�������
�������������3� =���������� 1���� ��� ��������� ��� �� �-������ ��������
������ ���� ��������� ��� ����������� 1��(� �� ������ �����������
��(���4�����������������������<������������������3��

�
�
+"+� 1��2	�����

�
+3+3�	��-��2�� 	����� ��� ���������� ��� �����1�� ��� �(�� �������
��

6����������(��������������������
�
���
��
��� ������ ��� �� ��
��� �
���� ������ ��� ���� ��	��� ����� ��� ����
�����
���������
��������������	���������
��
��������
������������
���
������������������	���
���	��������������������
������������������
��� �� 	���	�� ������ ��� ����
������ ���
�� �
�� ���� �� �
� ������
���������������������!
�������"��������������	������
���������
���
"����#���$�	�
��������
�������������������������������%�
�

�����;������������

;�����
�� �������� ���������

��������� 7)4***3**�

&�'�
���������$�����(	���
)*+,�---�--.�

$���
�����!
�����

)*/�---�--.�

��������>�����1���� 7*3**� �

����������
��������������

7+?4***3**�
�	�����0�����1�'�����
�
����
��	������)*23�---�--.�

���������(��
��
;����

7*3**� �

%�(��� 7*3**� �

Page 427



�

����������	�
����:�
�

�
+3+3)��(���������
�@�����$$�6��������
(���
���������������(�������������(��

�1�� ����� ���(�� �(��� ������ �(�� ���-� ���
������� ���� ��� -��1��
�������� ��� �������� �(��-�����3� � �(�� 6������ !������ ����� ���� �(���
�����������������

�
A"����$�����
������+4,-��������
�����$�	�
�5�������������������
��������������
�����������������������������$�	��5���������������
����������������������������������
���������
��������6�������
�����������7�����
�����������������������������������
�	��
���������
��

����7���������
������������
���������������
�������
�	���5
�
����������!��8���������������������'�
��������������������%�
�

+3+3+�	��-��2��	�����1��� ������������ ��� �(������������������������� ���
����������������(����1�����-����8)4�����(�����������������������
���(��
��� �(���
(���� ���� (������3� �(��� ��������� ������������ (���
��������(����������
������������(�������3���(����������������1��(���
�(���������������������������������������(������2��(������������3�
�

+3+3:�B����
� ����� �(��4� ��� (��� ������ (��� ��� ������� 1��(� �(�� �(��
��
�
�������� ���� ���� ���4� 1(��(� (������� �(�1�� (��� ��-��� ����� ���
�
��������(���������������3�!��������(���(��
����������5�

�
�� @�������������������������-�������(�C'+�����'+)D3�
�� !���������������(�����������������������(���������

����������������(��(�������������������������-����������
����������3�

�� !����������		�����������������������������1���1��5����
���
��1���������������������������(����������C���������'+?D3�

�� +*�����������������������"����������	��-��2��	�����C'8'D3�
�� $���������������������������������	��-��2��	�����C��������

���������'E'D3�
�� ,��������-��������(��
��������������������������������(��

���	��-��2��	�����C��������''*D3��
�� 	��(�����	��-��2��	�����1�������������������C���������

'?*D3�
�� �������������������������������������	��-��2��	�����C��������

�(��-�����D�C���������'?+D3�
�� B�����	�����������������	��-����	����3�C?)ED�
�� 	��(��1�������������������������.����������������
�����

�������3�
�� 	��(�����"������������	��-��F��	�������������3�C)***D�

�

Page 428



�

����������	�
����G�
�

�

+3+3G�$��������������������
����������(��4�����(��������(��
���������-��1����
��������� ��� ��� ����������� ��� ���������� ���(�� ��� ''*4� ��� 1���
(�
(��
(���� �(��� �(��� �(����� ��� ���4� 1(��(� ��������� ���� ��� �(��
�������������������������(��-���������������������3�
�

+3+38�!������(����(�������(�����������������������������(�������������
����������
�� ������������ ��� �������������������������� �(�������
)*������4�1��(��(��<�����������������������������(��(�������������-���
����(�����������������(������4�����������������������������3��
�

+3+3E��(��� ���0������ ��������� ��� ����������� 1���� ��������� ��� ���������
��������� ��� �(�� ��������� ��� �(�� ����� ������� ��� ���������
������
����������������������3�
�

+3+3'�	��-��2��	����������(�
�������������
����������������������
�4�
(�
(��
(���
� �(�� 
����� ������ �(��� (�
(� <������� 
����� ������� ����
����
� ��� ��� ������ ������������ ���� ��� ��1� ������ �(�� ����� (���
������
����������������������������������������������������������
����(������������4������1��
��(����������������(��������
���3�
�

�

+"3� ��-
������.�4���-
���5
.�

�
+3:3�;���������������(������������������������
(���
��������	��-��2��

	�����(���������������3�
�

+3:3)�$��)**+4��(���������������������������
���-��1������(��
��������������!������;���4�1(��(����������(���������1��(��������
�������������������4�������������������������������������������
��������������(������4����������
��������������������������������
��
(���
3�

�
+3:3+�	��-��2��	�����1�������������������������������������(����

�������������4���������������(������-�����������������
����
����
(���������4���
��������(����������������������(��
���
���	��-��2��	�����������(�������:**������3���

�
+3:3:��������������������������������(����������������1�����������

	��-��2��	����������������������(����(������0�������������
�1��(���
�����������������(���(�����1�����(�����������1(��������������
�������������������������3�

Page 429



�

����������	�
����8�
�

+3:3G�������������������(�������������4��(��!�����"��
(����(����������
������������
��(����	������(�������������������������������
�����������(���������������1�����(��(��������'�**�����*8�**�
�(���
(����)*)������(��	��-��2��	���������3������������
����-��1���������������������������H�����(���������3�
�

+3:38�$��1��������������������(����(������������������������(���
��
����������4����(��
(��(����������������������������������������
������3�
�

+3:3E������������GE�����������1������������������
�)*)���������
5�
�

��#���������� � G�
���(������ � G�
���������� � :�
��!���%������� �

�
+3:3'��(����0������������������������������������������������1�����(��

(�������������
(������*:�**(��3���1��I"������������������
��������������������������1����)�**(������������
(�3�����
������������������������������������������)�**(��3�
�

+3:3?�,��(��(����0���������������������-��
������������
��(��(��������
���-����4����
����
�������������������
(���
����������������������
��������������������(��������������3��
�
�

�
+"6� ��.����������*��
�

�
+3G3�$��&���(��(������������������������������1����������������

�������
����1(��(����������������
(���
����	��-��2��	�����1�����
���1����������������������������-������3��
�

+3G3)��(������������������������������������
(���
������4���-��
�
���������������1������(�������������������������(��	���������
�(����������������(��������������
(���
3��
�

+3G3+��(���������������1�����������������
���������4*+?�������
��������������������������������1��-�3�
�

Page 430



�

����������	�
����E�
�

+3G3:������������(����������������������������������������������������
�(���������4��������������(��-��������������1���5�

�

�� �(��(�����������
�����������(��	���������(��������������
�

�� ������ ���-4� �(���� ���� ��� ����� ������� ��� ���� ����� ����� ��� �(��

	����3�

�� �(�� ��������� ��
(���
� ��������� �(�� ����������� ��� �������

��
����������4� ����������� ���� 1����4� ����
��� ������� ����

��������5�1(�����������������1(������(��������1��������������3�

�� E8J� ��� ������������ 1������� �(�� ����� ��� ��
(���
� 	��-��2��

	����4�1��(�EJ��(��-��
��(������1�������������3�8?J�1������

��� ���� �(�� ��(���� ��������� C���������� ����
� ������4�

�������������1����D3�

�� 8)J��������������1������������������������3���

�� �(�� ����� ����������� 
������ ��������
� 1����4� ����
���

�(��������������������1��������(��1(����
���������������������

��
(���
4� 1(����� ������ ������� 1���� ����� ���������� ��� �(��

������������������
(���
3��

�
!�����������������������������
(���
�1������������1���
�

�� �(����������1(��������������������1��-���������(�����-3�

�� �(��� ��������� 1����� ���� ��� ���������� ���� ��������� ����

�����������3�

�� �(���������
(���
�1�������
����������������������(���(��������

����(�������3�

�� $���������������������
(������������1�����������������3�

�� $�� 1��� ��

������ ��� �������� ������������ �(��� ����(���

�������������� �(����� ��� 
����� ��� �(�� ����
�� ��� �(�� ��
(���
�

��������3�

�

Page 431



�

����������	�
����'�
�

+"7� ��	,���	�*
.�	��*
5
�0�
���
�

+383���������(�������
������������������������������(������������������
�����������
(���
����	��-��2��	����4��������������������������(���
����
��������������1��-3�
��

+383)��(����������������(����������(��������������������������������
�������������
(���
�����
����������������������3�
�

+383+��(���
����������������������������������-��������������������(��
����������������(�����������
�����������(���1�������������(�����
�����
�����3�
�

+383:�,(������(���������������������������������������������(��
���������������(���(������������(�������������
������
(��(����4����
�����������������(����(����1������
�������������������������
��������������������(���������(�����������������������3�
�

+383G�H��(��(���������������������������������1������������
��������
����������1��(�������������(������������������3�
�

+3838��(�����������������������������������������
�����1(��(���������
��
(�����������������������������������3��$������(��
(���(����(�������
�������(����(���������������-����������������������������4�
������������������
��(�������������������-��������(��������������
�������������������������(��
�����3���
�

+383E���������(�������������(�������
�����������(����������������������4�
�(����1����������(�
(����-������������������(�����������
���������������.
���
��������������������������3�

�
+"8� ��0.
����	,���	�*
.�	��

�
+3E3�$�����
�������������������(����(�������������(��������������
�

����������
(���
4����������������������������1��(���������
������4����������������������(�������(���
(��(������������������
��
(���
��������3�
�

+3E3)��(������������(�����������������4�1(��(���(�������(����������
�����������
(���
�1(�����(����
��(�����������������������������(��
�(������������(��	����4�����������(������������������������1���
(���
�
�������3�

Page 432



�

����������	�
����?�
�

�
+3E3+��(�������������
(���
�����������������������K������2����

K1��������2���
(���
4���������
������������
(���(��1�����������(�����
�����������(���������������������������-�������������(��	����3��
�

+3E3:��(����
(���
����������������������������'������������4�1(��(������
�����������(��
(���������(���1��������������4�������
�������������������������(����������3��
�

+3E3G�!(��������
(���
��(����(���1��������������-�������-��
��������������
�����������
�������������������(����������������������3��������
��
(���
��(����(���1������(������(�
(����(������������(��-�����4�
1(��(����������1�������������������������3�
�

+3E38��(�� �������� (���� ����� ��������� ��� ���1���� '*�� ���� *G��
�������4� ������������������������������� �(�����
��������(�3�"��
�������1��������������1��(���'*��������������������(��-�����3�
�

+3E3E��(�� ��������� ��
(���
� ������� ����
�� ��� �(�1�� ��� ;�
���� 3*�
����14�������������������������������������������(��	����4�����(�1��
���;�
����)3*3�

��

�
�

(��	
��+�-�����������������
�������������������	������������
��������

Page 433



�

����������	�
����*�
�

�
�

�
�
����(��	
��9�-����
������������������������������	��������������
�
�

+3E3'�$����������������������(�������������(����������1��(����(��	����4�
�(��������
���(�����������������������1���������������1������4�
��������
�������������1�������
������������C��
�+3*D����������
��1������(�����(������(���(�����B����������0��������C��
�:3*D3�
�

+3E3?��(�������������������������������������0����������(����
������(��
���(��1��(����(��
����4������������������������1��(��(����������
������������������������1�3�

�
�
�
�

Page 434



�

����������	�
�����
�

�
�

(���2�-:����������������������	���������������
���0��������

�����
�
�

+3E3*� �(���� ���������� ���� �������� (���� ����� ��������� ���� �(��
�����1��
��������5�

�
�� H���
��������������������
(��1��������1�������1����4������������

����� ��� ��
(�� ��� ��� �(��1�� ��� ��� �(�� ���(�� �(��� ��������

�������������������4�1��(����������(������������
����3�

�� '���������������1����������������������������3�

�� �(����������1������������������(���������
���������������-�����3�

�� ��� �(��������
� ���������4� �(������������1���� ������� K�������2�

��� 1��� ������� ��
(��4� 1(����� ������ ������
� ����� ������ ���� ���

(�
(������������������1�����(��3��

�� ��� �(���� ������
� �(�� �������� 1���� ���� 
���� �� ��
�������4�

����������� ����� ��� ��������� ����������� ������� �(�� ����3� �(���1����

�������������(���������������������-��
���K����������123�

�

�

Page 435



�

����������	�
����)�
�

�
�

���(���7�-:�����������������������	���������������
������������������	
������;�����0�����

�
�
�
�

Page 436



�

����������	�
����+�
�

�� �(����
(���
�(�����1��������������1��(���������I����������������4�

����
���� ��� ������� ��
(�� ��1���� �(�� ���(4� 1(���� ��� ��� ������4�

1(��������������
������������������(��
������������(���
(���
(��

������
�3�

�� �(�� ������� �������4� 1(�� ���� ������������ ���� ��������

�(��-�����4�(�����������������������������������������������(���

���������������3���

�� �(�� ��������� ��
(���
� ��������1���� ���� �(�� �����1(���� ��
(��

�������������(����
�4�1(��(������������
����������������������

�������������������3��

�� �(�� �������� ���������� ���� ��� ���� �������� ��� ������ K��������

�(��-�����2������(��#����������(������������(�����-3�

�� �(����������1���� ���� ��� ������� �(��� K���������(��-�����24� ����

���� ����� ������4� �(������ �������
� �(�� ����������� �(��� �(���

K�������2�1��(��(������������������3�

�� �(����������1����������������������������������C����-D������������

�(��-�����3��

�� H�������
����1����������������4��(������������1�����������
��

�(��������������-����������(��
���������������(��������
������

��
(�� ����4� ���(��� �(��� ��� ��������4� �(��� ���������
� �������

������3�

�� �(�������������
(���
����������������������������
��������(������

�(����(��������������3�

�� �����
� �(�� ���� ����4� �(�� ����������� ��1� ������� ��� ���������

�������������1(��� ����� ���
��������1��������������(����
������

������������1���������������������(��	����3�

�
+3E3��(�� ��������� ����������� �(�� �������� ������� ��� �������� ���

�������� �(�� �������� ��
(���
� ������������4� 1(����� ����
�
���������� ��� �(���(�������4� ��������� ������������ �(��	����������
1(���3��
�

Page 437



�

����������	�
����:�
�

+3E3)���� ���(� �(�� ��������1���� ������� �(�� �������� ����������� ���-�
������������ �(�����.������������(����(4�����1���������������������
��
(���(�����(�������������������(����(��3�

�
+3E3+�;�
����G�����1������������������������������(����
(���
���������(���

���� ��� ��������� ��� �(�� ������� ���������� ��������4� 1(��(�
��������� �(�� �������� ��
(�� ������� ����� �������� �(��-�����4�
�����1��
���������(�����1��-��(������������������3�

�
�

�
�

(���/����"	<������=��������������
������������������'������
������
��
���������

�
�

Page 438



�

����������	�
����G�
�

+"9� ������������
.����������
	�
.�
�
@������(�����������������������(������������(�����
�����������
�(�������4����1�����������������
�����������������������������������
�������
�4����������������-�������������������(��������������
�����������(���������4���������
5�

�
�� �������
��6����������)**8�

�� 6����������(�������������������

�� 	��-��2��	������������������	����)**�

�� $����������������������(������������
������4�����������4������

����������������������������������

�� �������������������������������������-������)*+�

�� �����������1��(���
(���
����������������������������
�������

�(�����������

�
�
+3?� �������
�������������������������������3�

�
�
�(�������1��
������������������(���������������������������������
�������������(������0�����
�

�� �������1(��������L����������(���������������������������������

��-��
� ���� ���� �<������ -���� ��� ������� ����������� ����

����������������������

�� �� ����� 1(���� ������� ��(����1��(� �������������� ���� ��(����

���� 1(���� (���� ���� ��������� ���� ����������� 1(�������

���������1��(���������������
��(���������������

�� �������1(��(����1������������������������������(���������������

���� ��(������ �� ������ ��� ������ ��� ���� ��� ���� ������ 1��(�


������������������������������1���.�����
�����������
��

�

�

�

Page 439



�

����������	�
����8�
�

:3*� 	��-��2��	������������������	����)**3��

:3*3��(��	��-��2�� 	����� ������������� ����� ��� ��1���.����������� ����
�(����
(���������4���������
� �(��(�������������
������������� �(��
	����4� ��� 1���� ��� 
����
� �� ������ ���� ��� 
�������� ������
�����������
�(�1��(��(�����
���������(������������
���
���
�
���1���3�

:3*3)��(��������������������(�
(��
(����(���(����������� �(��	���������
��������������������������(������������������-���������������1��(�
�(������������������������(��-����������(��������3�

�0������������������
����
������������
����
��������
��
>���������
?'�������
��	������
���������������
����������������������������
�
��
	��	
����
��
��������%��$�������/�+�9:���
��
��������������
'�����������9--+�

�
:3*3+�,(������(���(�����������	��-��2��	�������������������������������

��������������������
��(���������������������1���
(���
��������4�
�(�������������������(���(��������������������������������������
����������(��	�����(�������1����������������������3�

�
:3*3:�"���������������������������������2���
����1��(��(�������
����

�(�����
��������(��������������
����������(��-�����4������(����
������������1���������������������������������
������(�������
�����
�3�

�
:3*3G��(����������
�����������������G3)3)�1(��(�������5�

�
�����
��
��������������������
���'��������	�����������������
��������������������������������<�������
��������	�����������

��������������
������	���������������������������	��
����
�������������	�����������������������'��	����	

�����%�

�
� ����
�

�������	�������
��
>������������
��	������
�������
��������������
�
���������	�����������������'�
� �����
����
� ������
������������
������������
��	������� ������
��	����'��	������
�� �	���������� ���
�������
����
��������<���������������������

�

Page 440



�

����������	�
����E�
�

:3*3G�$�� ����� ����� ��� (�
(��
(���� �(��� �(��� ����� ��� ���� ��� ���.
�����������
���������4����������������(�������������������������
�����
(����������
�3�

:3*38��$�� ����� (�1����� ����
����� �(�� ����������� ��� ������� ���������
�����(�����(��������(����
(����5�

�&��	
��������������������������
������������������������������������
���'�����������
�����������������������
�����������������%�

�
�?�� ������� ��
���	��
�� ��� �����
�� ���� )��
�����.� ����� ����
��
�����������	�������������������������
���������
��
������������
����
����������
�����
��%�
�
�����������������������������
������
��
>����������������
�����������'���������	�� 	���������������!��'���������������
;�����0�����
�
�?����
���������������������
��������������������
�����������
�
�'��������	����
���	
������
����
��
������������	�����
����
�������������������
��
���������	�����������������������
����������������
��	�	
��������������%�
�

:3*3E��(�� �������
�� B�������� ����� ����������  � 9���� )**8� �����
����
�������(����������������	��-��2��	�����������(����
(����5�

������������
��������������
�������
����������������������������
��
������������������������	������
������
�	���	��������
�%�

�
:3*3'��(���������������������������������
(���
4�����������(�������������

�(���������������	���4��(������������������(��������(���	��-��2��
	������(������������1������������4��������
����������(������3�
�(��	������������������������(��
�������-���4�����������������������
����(������2���������������������������������3�

�
:3*3?��(���������������������������
������������(��
��
��(���������������

���������������������������������
�1��(���(������������(��������
���������������(��������������������������������������3�

�
�

�

Page 441



�

����������	�
����'�
�

+"9� :���,
����.��������4��00�5��.�
�
+3'3��������1����������������������������(��������������1���������������

���� ���� ����� 1��-�� ����� ;������ �(� %������� )*+4� ��� 
����
�������-�����(�����0�������������3�

�
+3'3)���(�� �������� ��� �(��� �������������1���� �(��� �������� ���������� ���

�(�� ����� �������2�� 1������� ���� �� ��������� ��� 1(��(��� ���
���������� �(�� ���0���� ��<������� ����� �(�� ���������� �����������
����	������	������������������������������4� ����������������1��(�
�(���(��������!��-������������������!�����������������3�

�
+3'3+��(�� ��������� ��� �(�� ��
(���
� �������� ������������ ����������

�������������������������	����)4��������4����������H�����(����1��
���� �������� 	������
� C@������� 	��������� ������������ %����D�
??G�C����������D3�

�
+3'3:����������
�������������1���� �(������������ ��� ��<������ ��������� ���

�������� �(�� ��������� �������� ��� 	��-��2�� 	����4� �(����� ������
���������������������������
������3�

�
�
+";� �������.
�2
����.2.��..����
��<��,��,
�0�-
����

�

+3?3��(����(��������������������
(���
�1��������
���(���(������������(���
�����4��������
���2������������<����������������4��(���
(�����������

����������������
�3�

�

+3?3)��(��� ����������� ��� ��1� ��
(���
� 1���� ��� ������������ 1��(����
������������������(���1��-��
�1��(��������
��(�����������������
������(�����������3�

�

+3?3+��(����(�������������
(���
���(�����������
��������������������
���������������������(�����������(��	����3�

�

+3?3:��(��� �(�� ������������ ��� ����������� ��� ����
��4� ��������
� ���
���������������������������������3�

�

�

�

Page 442



�

����������	�
����?�
�

+"!#� :�����������0�������.�

�

�3� �����������������������(�������1��
�������������)*+I:�

�3� �(��������������������
�����������
�����������3�

�
�
+"!!� �
���
5
��
���0�������.�=�.�.���.�5��	.>�

�

�

�

+"!)� &�����0�������.�

�

M�(��#��� ������������ �(������0����1���� ����� ������ �������������1��(���
�(�� �������F�� ������� 	������� ���������� C	�D� �����������4� ��� �������
7)4***3��(���#������-��1�����F����������������F�����(����������(�����
�(��� ������ ���� ��������#���������� ��������� C�3
3� �(�� (����
� ��� ����D3�
�(���� ��� �� ���-� ��� �(�� �������4� ���������� ��� ��(��� �������� ��(�����
�����������4��(�����F��GJ�����������������������������������3�����������
�������
�����(������-�1��������������������F�����
�������F��(�������3��
�
B�1����4� �(���������������������
����������������(������
�4���������(��
�����������������
��������������������������#��������3��(��������������
�(�������������������(����(��������������������������������1��(����(��
������ 	�� �����3� �������� ���������
� ��� �(�� ����������� C#��� >�
��������D� ��� ����
� �����
����� ���� ���� �����
����� ����� �(�� ��������
�������� ������������ 1���� ��� �������� ��� �(�� ��������� ��� ���������� ����
���������������������������-��3M�

�

�

�
5
��
� ?� ���
��.�

&����������� 7����?**� ����
��������>��������
�

�>��������������� 7�4***� �������������������������:*�
���������
�������

������������������������� � �

����
�������
�� C�����������D� !�������1�

$������I�!����
�� C�����������D� �

�
���
5
��
�
@@
��� 7�4?**� �
5
��
�1����
A���
��

Page 443



�

����������	�
����)*�
�

+"!+� ��
�	������:�
����5��	.�

�

C�D� $�� �(��� ���0���� ������� ��� �(�� �������
&���
������	���N�

�
"��
�

�
�
�
+"!3� ������
��,��	
���0����

�

	��������$������
"��
�������

"�
������$������

� � � "��� � � �

�

�

+"!6�����@@��
A���
�����
��5
���,
�0�-
���

�

�
�5��
� �2���.� ��������.��

$�
���������@����
$��������
� ����1���'�
�
����?����������

����	��������

�
��	
������

����
������������
������

�����
	������$	��
'������

�
� �����	���������
���

?��
�<�������+/-�

�

�

+"!7��*
0
��
�������,
��<�2���0�-
��.�

�

�(�� K�������
�������2� 	���������������������1���� ����� ��� ��-�� �����
�������� �(�� ��������� ��������� ��� �(���� �������� �(���
(� �(�� ����
��
�����������
�����(�����1��-3�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 444



�

����������	�
����)�
�

+"!8���00
����
.�����1��2	�������0
�.�

�

�		�"�$O�����.� �������������I;�����
�	�������
�
�		�"�$O�H���.� )*)����������$�������������	��-��2��	����������
�
�		�"�$O�����.� 6�
(���
���������������������������
�
�
�

+"!9� ��.0
�����@�0�0
�.�

�

���(��2��"���� �����1�	�������

���(��2���(����"�3� *))+�.�:GE)E�

���(��2���.������ �����13�������P�������
�3
��3�-�

��������������� '�(�!���������)*+�

�
�

Page 445



�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	
�


�
��
�)
)
�

��
�

�

�
�
0
��
��
��
�
-

�
��
�
0
0
��
�.
�
��
B�
�
�
0
��
�
��
�
.�
.
�4
�@
�
�
�
��
	
�B
��
�
@�
��
�
	

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

)
#!
+
C!
3

)
#!
3
C!
6

)
#
!6
C!
7

)#
!
7C
!8

)
#!
8
C!
9

?
?

?
?

?

�
�
0
��
��
��

.
�.

H
��
��
��

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�I
�1
��
-�
�

G
:4
**
*
�

	
��
�(
�
��
��
���
�
(
��
��
�4
��
��
�
��
>
��
<
��
�
�
��
�

��
���

	
��
��
��
��
�
��
�I
��
��
��
���
��
��
��
�
�

84
**
*
�

%
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

%
�(
�
��
��
�
���
���
��
��
�
���
��
�

�

��
��
�
�
0
��
��
��

.
�

7
#D
##
#
�

#
�

#�
#
�

#
�

�
�
0
��
��
���
�
�


�C
�:
�
�
�
��
	

@
�
��
��
�
�
��
�@
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
�
�

+
?4
**
*
�

	
�
�
���
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
�
���
�
�

�
>
�
��
��
�
��



�
��
�
�
�-
�
�
�;
�
�
��

�
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
���
��


��
�
�
�
���
�
�
��



)
4
**
*
�

!
�
��
��
�
���
�@
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�!
�
��
��
�;
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
��

��
���

�

��
��
��
�

�



7
#D
##
#
�

#
�

#�
#
�

#
�

�


��
�
�
0
��
�
��
1
��

#
�

#
�

#�
#
�

#
�

�

�
�


�
�.

Page 446



�

����������	�
����)+�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�����*�$�1�
)*)�$����������������������(��	��-��2��	����������

�

Page 447



Page 448



�

����������	�
����)G�
�

�
.
���,�����
������������
���0
.C�����
��.C��1���
�������������2
�.���
�
D��������	
������	��,
�

,��.�@����2�
.."�
�

1
�<

��+!C!)C!!�����+!C!)C)#!)�E��
0��
���
�<

���,
�,��.�@�!9"##�
����#7"##"��
����������	
�����	���	����������	����������������
������������������

���������	
��� ������

�������� ��

�������� ��

��������� ��

����� ��

���������������� ��

�������
� ��

������������� ��

������
� ��

�� �
!�������� ��

"�#�$%%� ��

"����������&��'� ��

"��������� (�

	)�%�� ��

*�������� ���

$�)��� ��

���	���������������	����������	
�	��������	����	��
������������	�����	������
���

�������	������ !�����
!�

"���#$��
������������	
������������������	�����	��������
���%&!�������

�������	!�

'��� ���������������	
���������������	���	���	������%&!����
!�

'����������	
�����	�����������������	���������������	����������!��

��
��%�+��&� ��,��%�����������

-����
� ��

	����
� ��

+�������
� .�

	)����
� ���

�����
� ���

"�����
� �/�

"���
� ���

�

Page 449



�

����������	�
����)8�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�����*�$���
6�
(���
���������������������������

�

Page 450



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 1 of 47 

 

Lighting Parker's Piece 

 

 
Image © copyright Cambridge 2000, used with permission 

 

A report for Cambridge City Council 

by Phil Back Associates Ltd 

 

March 2013 

 

Page 451



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 2 of 47 

Executive Summary 

 

1. The lighting trial took place over four weeks in early 2013, and a linked consultation 

generated a total of 1,039 valid responses, which is a good level of response for this 

type of consultation.  The response has been particularly strong from students (and 

hence from younger people) and care is needed in interpreting overall results 

because of distortions on response as a result. 

 

2. Two thirds of respondents use the paths on Parker's Piece at least twice a week; 

over a third use these paths on most days.  The heaviest usage is in the early 

evening, but the paths are well used at all times of day, and two thirds of those 

participating in the survey use the footpaths late at night.  Most late-night users are 

students and younger people. 

 

3. Parker's Piece holds few fears for its users in the daytime; four out of five users feel 

safe in daylight on the site.  However, after dark this changes dramatically, with only 

a quarter feeling safe, and three out of five people feeling unsafe.  A quarter of 

people feel unsafe crossing Parker's Piece after dark; perceptions of safety after 

dark are lowest among women and young people.  Four out of five students (79%) 

feel safe during the day; but four out of five (76%) feel unsafe after dark. 

 

4. The trial improved perceptions of safety significantly, and especially for the key 

groups of women, younger people, and students:  all felt safer while the trial was 

operational, and over half of each group felt a lot safer. 

 

5. Three quarters of respondents (76%) welcome the idea of lighting Parker's Piece, 

and a further 7% are okay with the idea, but with reservations.  In contrast, just 8% 

overall think this is a bad idea, and a further 9% don't like it, making 17% in total who 

are opposed to the idea.   

 

6. However, there are significant variations between different groups of respondents.   

The most vulnerable groups - women, young people, and students - all welcome the 

idea enthusiastically, but older people in particular are much more resistant to the 

introduction of lighting.   

 

7. The main areas of objection are the effect on the look and feel of Parker's Piece, the 

creation of obstructions and hazards (especially for cyclists), and the view that 

vulnerable people have the option of walking around, rather than across, the space.  

The scheme used is criticised by objectors for its lack of aesthetic quality and its 

Page 452



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 3 of 47 

failure to reflect the character of the space.  Light pollution, and the value of unlit 

spaces in an urban context, also feature as objections. 

 

8. Although there is strong support for the principle of the lighting scheme, the support 

for the design actually chosen is more equivocal, suggesting that the if the scheme 

is to be progressed, further thought should be given to design.   

 

9. A retracting bollard went largely unnoticed, but attracts generally positive feedback 

nevertheless. 

 

10. The effectiveness of the scheme gets a positive response, but with some 

qualification; women and young people tend to find the scheme more effective, as 

do students.  Factors affecting effectiveness focus particularly on the height and 

brightness of the lights, which clearly have caused cyclists problems with dazzle and 

distance vision. 

 

11. Asked to rate different aspects of a lighting scheme, vandal resilience emerges as 

the most important factor, ahead of energy efficiency and design.  Issues such as 

value for money and light pollution emerge as less important overall.  People with an 

interest in open spaces, though, are more concerned about all these issues than 

other interest groups are, especially students. 

 

12. Two thirds of respondents (69%) want to see the scheme extended; these are 

primarily young people and students, and women are also more enthusiastic about 

extending the scheme.  Older people however want to see either a different scheme, 

or no scheme at all. 

 

13. In summary, the most vulnerable groups - women, young people, students - are all 

generally keen to see a scheme adopted and support the roll-out of a scheme 

following the trial; there is a case, though,  for reconsidering the format and design of 

the scheme to accommodate different users more comfortably.  Older people, non-

students, and people with an interest in the character of open space in Cambridge, 

are much more equivocal, and much less enthusiastic, about this possibility.  It is 

also likely that any proposal to introduce a scheme would face significant, and 

articulate objection, even though most of those most directly affected seem likely to 

support it.. 

 

 

 

Page 453



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 4 of 47 

1 Objectives and methodology 

 

Parker's Piece is a large, flat open space close to the city centre in Cambridge, bordered by 

offices and commercial premises, and close to a residential area.  The open space is 

crossed by several surfaced pathways and is a popular cut-through for both pedestrians 

and cyclists, avoiding both the noise and traffic on adjacent roads and also, when crossing 

from one corner to another, providing a short cut.  The proximity to several colleges, and to 

Anglia Ruskin University, makes it a particularly popular route for students, but the space is 

widely used by a variety of people.  It is also popular as a recreational space and is used 

for exercise and for other active pastimes, as well as for relaxing and sunbathing. 

 

In early 2013, following reports of incidents occurring after dark, and especially late at night, 

to people crossing Parkers Piece, and after discussion with the Police, the City Council 

decided to trial a lighting scheme on one of the footpaths radiating from the centre of the 

open space.  A set of lights was installed, together with noticeboards advertising the 

purpose of the scheme and inviting people to comment on the idea. The lighting scheme 

was left in place for around four weeks (interrupted by a vandal attack on the installation) 

from late January 2013 to early March 2013. 

 

A QR Code was provided to give access to an online questionnaire for mobile phone users, 

and a website address was also provided for those preferring to use the Council's 

consultation pages on their website.  In addition, a letter drop was made to local residents, 

again setting out the background to the trial and asking for their comments and feedback. 

 

The response from the two methods is shown here: 

 

Table 1.1:  Validated response 

 

Response method Validated response 

Website 996 

Mobile QR Code 43 

Total validated response 1,039 

 

 

A total of 1,039 people provided valid feedback on the trial, though not everyone answered 

every question.  This is a good level of response for an exercise of this nature and 

Page 454



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 5 of 47 

demonstrates both the significant level of interest in the idea, and also the value of the 

feedback mechanisms provided.  The number shown as the 'validated response'  excludes 

a small number of responses that were left blank - perhaps because the respondent started 

to respond, but then decided to view the scheme before responding more fully - and some 

obvious duplicates, where it was apparent that a respondent had completed the survey 

more than once.  Both these features are commonplace in an online survey and the effect 

of this is not material in context of the volume of responses actually received. 

 

No weighting has been applied to the data, but our analysis is careful to identify different 

subgroups within the response to allow a clearer understanding of the range and nature of 

opinions expressed.  The factors that might need to be taken into account in considering 

the overall result are discussed below. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 455



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 6 of 47 

2 Respondent profile 

 

This section explores the demographic and other characteristics of respondents to this 

survey. 

 

Table 2.1:  Gender of respondents 

 

Gender Proportion of 

respondents 

Male 43% 

Female 57% 

N (=100%) 901 

 

 
 

There is a slight predominance of women in the survey, though not an overwhelming one.  

It means we need to be careful to see whether the views of people of different genders are 

distinctive in any way.  But although we could look at weighting the data to offset this 

imbalance, we also suspect it may reflect a greater level of concern or interest in safety on 

this open space on the part of women. 

 

 

 

 

 

Male 
Female 

Page 456



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 7 of 47 

Table 2.2:  Age of respondents 

Age-group Proportion of 

respondents 

16-24 45% 

25-34 22% 

35-54 22% 

55-64 7% 

65 and over 4% 

N (=100%) 904 

 

There is a significant imbalance here towards the younger age-groups.  Relatively few older 

people have taken part in the survey, compared with their presence in the local population.  

Again, we need to be careful to ensure that the views of older people are not swamped by 

those of younger respondents.  The imbalance may be due to the methodology used 

(though internet capability is higher among older residents than these results suggest), but 

it may also be linked to a reduced tendency to venture out after dark, or to use open 

spaces after dark, on the part of many older people. 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

45% 

16-24 25-34 35-54 55-64 65 and over 

Page 457



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 8 of 47 

Respondents were also asked to describe their status in relation to Parkers Piece; this 

enables us to distinguish between the views of different interest groups.   

 

Table 2.3:  Type of respondent 

 

Respondent type 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Someone who uses the footpaths to cross 

Parker's Piece 
73% 

Local resident 62% 

A student at Cambridge University 42% 

Someone with an interest or concern about 

open spaces in Cambridge 
34% 

Someone who uses Parker's Piece for 

recreation or exercise 
26% 

Someone who works nearby 21% 

A student at ARU 7% 

Some other interest 4% 

N (=100%) 1,035 

 

Page 458



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 9 of 47 

 

In this instance, respondents could choose one or more options to indicate their interest in 

the space, so the totals add up to more than 100%. 

By far the commonest reason for completing the survey was as someone who uses the 

footpaths in question:  three quarters of those answering the survey claim to be footpath 

users.  Three in five are local residents, and one in five works nearby, while around a third 

of those completing the survey have an interest in open spaces more generally. 

Only a quarter of those responding actually use Parker's Piece for exercise or recreation, a 

proportion that is much lower than those using it as a through route to somewhere else, 

and also much lower than the proportion of local residents.  This suggests that for many 

people this is a functional and amenity space rather than one fulfilling a wider role as a park 

or similar space; this does not diminish it in any way, but may give an insight into its main 

usage, perhaps particularly during the winter months.  

Student presence in the sample is substantial and the space is clearly an important one to 

many students.   Around half of those responding to the survey are students, with the vast 

majority of these - six out of every seven - being students at the University of Cambridge.  

The representation of ARU students is small, especially given the proximity of a major ARU 

building to Parker's Piece. 

Clearly there are significant overlaps between many of these different interest groups; a 

large proportion of respondents ticked two or more areas of interest in this issue.   

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

Page 459



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 10 of 47 

 

Most local residents also use the footpaths across the space (85% of residents do so), 

and almost half of local residents (44%)  take a wider interest in open spaces in Cambridge 

generally.  But only a third (33%) of those describing themselves as local residents use the 

space for exercise or relaxation.  A quarter (27%) of local residents work nearby, and a 

third (34%)  of those who live locally are also students. 

 

Footpath users are primarily local residents:  three quarters (72%) of those using the 

footpaths live locally.  But a quarter (27%) of footpath users work in the vicinity of the 

space, and the paths are heavily used by students, with 43% of footpath users being at one 

of the two universities.  

 

There is no overlap between the two groups of students.  Four out of five (82%) of ARU 

students use the footpaths, and three out of five (61%) of Cambridge University students in 

the survey do so.  Again, though, the space is largely functional, with only around a quarter 

to a third of students using the space for relaxation or exercise. 

 

Most of those expressing a wider interest in open spaces are themselves users of 

Parker's Piece.  Almost all (92%) use the footpaths, and a large proportion (80%) live 

locally.  Two in five of this group use Parker's as a place for relaxation or exercise. 

 

The survey also collects the postcode of respondents, and the distribution of those who 

provided a valid postcode is shown here: 

 

Table 2.4:  Postcode (district only) of respondents 

 

Respondent location 
Proportion of 

respondents 

CB1 39% 

CB2 26% 

CB3 9% 

CB4 15% 

CB5 6% 

Other CB postcodes 2% 

Postcodes outside CB postal area 3% 

N(=100%) 861 

Page 460



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 11 of 47 

 

Over half the response comes from the CB1 and CB2 postal areas.  Parker's Piece sits 

almost on the boundary between these two areas (the boundary is Regent Street/St 

Andrews Street) and the concentration of responses in these areas is appropriate for a 

local open space. 

Areas CB3, CB4 and CB5 generate a further third of the response (30% in total).  These 

are the areas respectively to the northeast, north and northwest of the City Centre, and 

residents in these areas are a little further away from Parker's Piece itself.  A small number 

of responses come from further afield, mainly from the St Neots/Huntingdon area. 

A number of people reply to postcode questions by providing only the outer portion of their 

postcode, imagining that this is sufficient to locate them.  In Cambridge this is not the case:  

the CB1 postcode area covers a large area of land reaching out towards Haverhill.  Those 

who provided a full valid postcode are plotted on this map: 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

CB1 CB2 CB3 CB4 CB5 Other CB Other CB 

Page 461



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 12 of 47 

Map 2.1:  Location of respondents 

 

 
 

Although response is scattered across Cambridge, there is a clear concentration in the 

area to the south and south-east of the City Centre, stretching as far southeast as the 

Railway station and largely corresponding to the streets closest to Parker's Piece. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 462



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 13 of 47 

3 Results 

 

Frequency of use 

 

The table shows how often people use the footpaths on Parker's Piece. 

 

Table 3.1 Frequency of use 

 

Frequency 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Most days 37% 

Two or three times a week 30% 

Once a week 16% 

Once or twice a month 14% 

Less often 3% 

Never walked across Parker's Piece 0% 

N(=100%) 1,022 

 

 
 

Two thirds (67%) of respondents are frequent users of the footpaths, and more than half of 

the frequent users visit the footpaths on most days.  About a third (30%) visit between one 

and four times a month, and very few people in this survey are occasional users.  Nobody 

Most days 

Two or three 

times a week 

Once a week 

Once or twice a 

month 

Less often 

Page 463



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 14 of 47 

at all says that they have never walked across the space.  In total, 83% of those taking part 

in the survey use the footpaths at least once a week. 

 

There is very little difference in the pattern of use of the footpaths according to the gender 

of the respondent; men and women make roughly equal use of the pathways.  There are 

differences, though, according to the age of the respondent, with people in the 25-64 age 

range tending to use the footpaths more often than those who are younger (aged 16-24) or 

older (aged 65+).  Having said that, even among the 16-24 year olds, where the frequency 

of use is lowest, well over half (57%) use the paths at least twice a week. 

 

Looking at the different types of respondent, all the different interest groups are at least 

fairly frequent users of the space.  The most frequent users are those who work in the 

vicinity, with 87% using the paths across the site at least twice a week, and those who use 

Parker's for recreation or exercise, where 83% visit at least twice a week.  The lowest 

levels of visiting are from Cambridge University students, but even among this group 61% 

use the paths at least twice a week, with half of these using the paths on most days.  ARU 

students, by contrast, are more likely to use the footpaths more often, and 80% use them at 

least twice a week, with a majority (52% of all ARU students taking part) using the paths on 

most days. 

 

 

Time of use 

 

This table shows the time of day when people use Parker's Piece: 

 

Table 3.2 Time of use 

 

Time of day 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Early morning 42% 

Daytime 69% 

Early evening 83% 

Late at night 67% 

N(=100%) 1,009 

 

Page 464



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 15 of 47 

 

The footpaths are used at all times of day and night, with the busiest footfall occurring in 

the early evening, which is when six out of seven people taking part in the survey use them.   

The lowest levels of use are in the early morning, when two in five respondents use the 

paths.  Two thirds use the paths during the daytime, but a surprisingly high proportion, 

again around two thirds, use the paths late at night. 

There are few differences between men and women during daylight, with both genders 

using the paths to a similar extent.   Women are a little more likely to use the paths in the 

early evening, but a lot less likely to use them after dark - three quarters (74%) of men use 

the paths at night but just two thirds (64%) of women do so.   Even so, there is relatively 

high female usage of the paths at night. 

There are also variations by age.  People between 25 and 55 are a lot more likely to use 

the paths in the early morning than either younger people or older people.  During the 

working day, though, it is younger and older people who are the more likely users.  At night, 

a high proportion of younger people (78% of 16-24s, and 73% of 25-34s) use the paths, but 

many fewer older people do so (just 45% of over 55s cross Parker's Piece after dark). 

The most likely early morning users are people visiting for recreation and exercise 

purposes, and those who work in the locality.  Students are the least likely users at this 

time, though two in five students (39%) use the paths in the early morning. 

In the daytime, recreation and exercise users are again prominent, but so too are ARU 

students; the early evening shows very little variation between the groups with similar levels 

of use across all interest groups. 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

Early morning Daytime Early evening Late at night 

Page 465



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 16 of 47 

Late at night, the main users are students, three-quarters of whom use the paths at this 

time; usage is particularly high among ARU students at this time of night.  The least likely 

users after dark are those who work locally, but even so two thirds (64%) say they use the 

footpaths late at night. 

Visiting the site 

The survey asked people whether they had yet visited Parker's Piece since the lighting trial 

began, with these results: 

Table 3.3 Visiting the site 

Visiting 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Yes, daytime 52% 

Yes, after dark 66% 

No, not yet 22% 

N (=100%) 972 

 
0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 

Yes, daytime 

Yes, after dark 

No, not yet 

Page 466



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 17 of 47 

At the time of completing the survey, one in five respondents had yet to visit Parker's Piece 

to see the installation.  These people would therefore have been answering based on 

feedback from others, or on local media coverage of the trial.  However, over three quarters 

of those completing the survey had done so, and in many cases had seen it both during the 

day and after dark. 

 

Men and women are equally unlikely to have seen the installation for themselves, but 

younger people aged 16-24 are a little more likely to be relying on feedback rather than 

personal observation.  Cambridge University students are less likely to have seen for 

themselves (though three have visited for every one who has not), and one in five people 

expressing an interest in open space in Cambridge had yet to visit the trial at the time of 

completing the survey. 

 

 

Feelings of safety 

 

The survey asked people to indicate how safe they felt using Parker's Piece before the 

lighting trial was installed, and produced these results, separated into perceptions during 

the day and after dark. 

 

Table 3.4 Feelings of safety (before lighting trial) 

 

Perception 

Proportion of respondents 

Daytime After Dark 

Very safe 46% 10% 

Fairly safe 36% 16% 

Neither safe nor unsafe 10% 14% 

Fairly unsafe 6% 36% 

Very unsafe 2% 24% 

N(=100%) 995 982 

 

Page 467



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 18 of 47 

 

In the daytime, Parker's Piece is not seen at all as a threatening place.  Four out of five 

people feel at least fairly safe using the space, with the majority of these feeling very safe.  

Just one in thirteen people (8%) feel at all unsafe on this site during the day. 

The perception changes significantly, though, after dark.  Only a quarter of people feel safe 

after dark, and only one in ten feels very safe at this time.  In contrast, three in five people 

(60%) feel unsafe, and a large proportion of these feel very unsafe after dark on Parker's 

Piece.  Whilst it is normal to see reductions on perceptions of safety between daytime and 

night-time, a transformation of perception on this scale is remarkable. 

In the daytime, men feel safer than women (this is a normal result in questions of this type) 

but although women feel less safe than men, they do not feel unsafe.  After dark, though, 

there is a striking difference in perceptions.  Two in five men feel safe (38%), but just 17% 

of women feel safe on Parker's Piece after dark.  Two in five men feel unsafe (45%) but 

three quarters (74%) of women feel unsafe on Parker's Piece after dark. 

During the day, people of all ages feel safe on Parker's Piece; the lowest feeling of safety is 

among 16-24s, but even here three quarters (77%) feel safe.  Over 80% of all other age-

groups feel safe during the day on this site.  After dark, it is the young who feel especially 

vulnerable - perhaps because it is they who use the site most at this time of day.  Three in 

five (61%) of over 55s feels safe on Parker's Piece after dark, but this proportion falls to just 

10% of 16-24 year olds, and 22% of 25-34 year olds, with three quarters of people in each 

of these age-groups feeling unsafe.  A third (31%) of 16-24s, and a quarter (27%) of 25-

24s, feel very unsafe on Parker's Piece after dark.  Perceptions of safety are thus a much 

stronger issue for younger people in Cambridge than for their older counterparts. 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 

Very safe 

Fairly safe 

Neither safe nor unsafe 

Fairly unsafe 

Very unsafe 

After Dark Daytime 

Page 468



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 19 of 47 

It is not surprising, then, that students in particular feel unsafe after dark on Parker's Piece.  

Four out of five students (79%) feel safe during the day, but this proportion falls to just 11% 

after dark; conversely, the proportion who feel unsafe rises from 9% during the day to 76% 

after dark. 

Asked about the effect of the lighting trial on feelings of safety, people respond in this way: 

Table 3.5 Feelings of safety after dark  (after lighting trial) 

Perception 

Proportion of respondents 

All Women 

Young 

people aged 

16-34 

Students 

A lot safer 45% 55% 53% 52% 

A little safer 34% 32% 37% 41% 

No difference 16% 9% 8% 6% 

A little less safe 4% 2% 1% 1% 

A lot less safe 2% 2% 1% 0% 

N(=100%) 953 514 604 481 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

All 

Women 

16-34s 

Students 

A lot safer A little safer No difference A little less safe A lot less safe 

Page 469



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 20 of 47 

The vast majority of respondents (79% in total) say the lighting installation makes them feel 

at least a little safer than before the trial; more than half of these say it makes them feel a 

lot safer.  Very few people think the paths are less safe after the lighting installation has 

been put in place. 

 

Looking at the three groups of people already identified as feeling least safe before the trial 

period, all three show dramatic signs of improved safety perceptions..  Over half of the 

women in the sample feel a lot more safe after installation, as do over half of the young 

people and over half of the students.  The proportions who feel safer to any degree are 

87% of women, 90% of young people and 93% of students, suggesting that even a limited 

trial installation has had a dramatic impact on perceptions of safety. 

 

The small number of people who say that the lighting made them feel less safe were asked 

why this is.  There are three main areas of concern; the concerns are mainly, though not 

exclusively, expressed by people who cycle at night on the paths. 

 

One is that the new lights have a potential to dazzle and to reduce night vision already 

gained from cycling in much less well lit areas.  The new lights are bright, and the height 

they are placed at makes it difficult for cyclists to see clearly because the lights dazzle 

them.  This is closely linked to a second observation, that it is difficult to distinguish 

between footpath lights and the lights of oncoming cycles, raising the risk of collision, while 

the bollards themselves make it difficult for cyclists to leave the path to avoid groups of 

pedestrians or other cyclists, again increasing the hazard either of a collision with another 

path user or of a collision with a bollard. 

 

A third strand of comment draws attention to the fact that a well-lit path makes it easy for 

those in the darkness to see potential victims of crime, whilst themselves remaining much 

less visible to those whose night vision has been destroyed by the bright lights.  A small 

number of people describe the increased feeling of safety as an illusion, a false sense of 

security conveyed by the lights which may actually attract more people into a space that is 

unsafe to be in. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 470



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 21 of 47 

Opinion in principle 

This table shows people's views on the principle of lighting Parker's Piece: 

Table 3.6:  Opinion in principle 

Opinion 
Proportion of 

respondents 

I welcome this 76% 

I have some reservations, but am okay with it 7% 

I can see why you've done it, but I don't like it 9% 

I think it's a bad idea 8% 

Don't know/no opinion either way 0% 

N (=100%) 969 

 

Overall, a substantial majority of respondents endorse the principle of lighting Parker's 

Piece, though this does not mean they necessarily agree with the specific approach taken 

to achieve this.  A small number of people are still reasonably comfortable with the idea, in 

spite of reservations, giving an overall positive endorsement of 83%, the equivalent of five 

out of every six people responding. 

On the other side of the argument, 9% dislike it, even after giving some thought to the 

reasons for the decision to trial this scheme; and a further 8% just dislike it altogether, 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

Welcome Okay but Don't like Bad idea DK 

Page 471



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 22 of 47 

making a minority of 17%, one in six of all respondents, who oppose the idea to some 

extent. 

There are significant differences in opinion by gender, as this table shows: 

Table 3.7:  Opinion by gender  

Opinion 

Proportion of respondents 

Male Female 

I welcome this 65% 85% 

I have some reservations, but am okay with it 9% 5% 

I can see why you've done it, but I don't like it 13% 7% 

I think it's a bad idea 14% 4% 

Don't know/no opinion either way 0% 0% 

N (=100%) 383 518 

 

Women are much more strongly in favour than men, with 85% of women welcoming the 

idea against just 65% of men.  The negative element in the overall result is largely male in 

origin, with one in seven men who think this is a bad idea, against just 4% of women.  

Having said that, there is a clear majority in both gender groups for the principle of lighting 

Parker's Piece. 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

80% 

90% 

Welcome Okay but Don't like Bad idea DK 

Male Female 

Page 472



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 23 of 47 

There are also clear differences in opinion according to age, as can be seen here: 

Table 3.8:  Opinion by age-group 

Opinion 

Proportion of respondents 

 

16-24 25-34 35-54 55 and over 

Welcome 95% 82% 55% 30% 

Okay with reservations 1% 8% 11% 13% 

Can see why, but 

negative 
3% 5% 18% 30% 

Bad idea 1% 5% 16% 27% 

Don't know 0% 0% 0% 0% 

N (=100%) 405 202 202 95 

 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

Welcome 

Okay but

Don't like 

Bad idea 

16-24 25-34 35-54 55 and over 

Page 473



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 24 of 47 

Enthusiasm for the idea falls as age increases.  At the younger end of the age-range, there 

is almost universal welcome for the idea of lighting Parker's Piece, and this remains high 

among 25-34s as well, with a slight reduction of support.  There is still a majority in favour 

of the idea among 35-54 year-olds, although in this age-group a third are negative about 

the idea, whilst among older people the majority view is actually on the negative side of the 

coin, with a quarter who think this is a bad idea augmented by a further 30% who dislike the 

concept, making 55% against. 

 

Looking at whether people's views are influenced by having seen the trial, it is noticeable 

that those who have seen the installation after dark, when the lights are lit, tend to be a little 

more supportive than those who have visited during the day, though the difference is not 

statistically significant.  Moreover, 79% of those who have yet to visit also welcome the 

principle of lighting Parker's Piece.  

 

This table shows how opinion varies according to the nature of the respondent: 

 

Table 3.9:  Opinion by type of respondent  

 

Opinion 

Proportion of respondents 

 

Resident 
Rec & 

exercise 
Path user Worker ARU U of C Interest 

Welcome 69% 72% 73% 67% 96% 94% 62% 

Okay with 

reservations 
9% 9% 7% 10% 0% 2% 9% 

Can see 

why, but 

negative 

12% 10% 10% 9% 3% 3% 14% 

Bad idea 10% 9% 9% 13% 0% 1% 14% 

Don't know 0% 0% 1% 1% 1% 0% 1% 

N (=100%) 606 255 714 203 73 408 332 

 

Page 474



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 25 of 47 

 

There is a majority in each of the seven groups in favour of the principle of lighting Parker's 

Piece, but the size of the majority does vary quite substantially.  Among the two student 

groups, support is almost universal, but the views of other interest groups are a little more 

mixed.   

Three quarters of path users, and a similar proportion of those who use the space for 

recreation and exercise, welcome the lighting idea, with just one in five against.  Two thirds 

of local residents, and of those who work in the vicinity of Parker's Piece, are supportive, 

but again one in five of each of these groups opposes the idea. 

The group that scores lowest on support for the idea is that with an interest in local open 

spaces; in this group opposition to the idea rises to over a quarter (28%), but the proportion 

who welcome the idea is still a majority of three-fifths of this group, with a little support from 

those who have reservations. 

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100% 

Resident 

Rec & exercise 

Path user 

Worker 

ARU 

U of C 

Interest 

Welcome Okay but Don't like Bad idea 

Page 475



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 26 of 47 

The map shows the distribution of those who welcome the idea, or who are okay but with 

reservations (only those with valid postcodes are shown): 

 

Map 3.10  Distribution of positive responses 

 

 
 

There are concentrations of support for the principle to the south and southeast of the City 

Centre, in those parts of the city closest to Parker's Piece.  There is also support across the 

rest of the city. 

 

This map shows where opponents of the idea live (again, only those with valid postcodes 

are shown): 

 

 

 

 

Page 476



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 27 of 47 

Map 3.11  Distribution of negative responses 

 

 
 

Again, there is a concentration around the area of Parker's Piece, reflecting the overall 

distribution of the response at large, but the results are sparser (there are fewer negative 

responses overall) and more thinly scattered as a result. 

 

Looking specifically at the responses from streets immediately surrounding Parker's Piece, 

we find that out of 24 responses giving a postcode, 17 are in favour of the idea in principle, 

and 7 against. 

 

Those who gave a negative view of the principle of lighting Parker's Piece were invited to 

expand on that view, and many did so, sometimes at length.  All the comments have been 

Page 477



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 28 of 47 

read carefully, and the main points being made (several comments ranged across a 

number of issues) have been grouped into broad themes.  

 

 

Table 3.12:  Reasons for negative view 

 

Comment No. of comments 

Effect on look and feel of Parker's Piece 48 

Lights are ugly/badly chosen 48 

People should choose a different route 34 

Creates an obstruction/hazard 33 

Urbanisation of open spaces 33 

Gives false impression of safety 23 

Ineffective 23 

Potential for vandalism/damage 19 

Increases light pollution 18 

Dark spaces should be preserved 18 

Waste of money/cost excessive 14 

Reduces versatility/utility of site 13 

Not needed 13 

Energy waste/environmental impact 7 

Conflicts with Conservation commitment 2 

N  159 

 

The most common issue with lighting this space is the effect the lights have on the look 

and feel of the space as it is.  Objectors draw attention to the flat, open nature of the 

space as it stands, and are negative about the impact of the lights on visual appearance 

during the day as well as when the lights are in use after dark.  People value the open 

space as a contrast to the urban area around it, and do not welcome the 'clutter' that street 

furniture brings into a historic open space with a distinctive character.  Many see this as a 

creeping urbanisation of the city's open spaces.  Two comments consider the 

installation against the backdrop of the City Council's existing commitment to this open 

space in its Conservation Plan. 

 

Page 478



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 29 of 47 

Although the question asked about the principle of lighting Parker's Piece, several 

comments refer to the nature of the installation itself.  For many, this is an additional 

issue to add to an already negative perception, but for some this is the essence of the 

problem:  the lights are dazzling, or badly aligned for visual confidence (this seems to be a 

particular problem for cyclists) and the net effect is to reduce visibility and, they say, 

increase the risk of collision or impeded the objective of seeing what lies ahead more 

clearly.  Cyclists largely take the view that their own lights are adequate for their needs 

when crossing this type of space at night.  But many other comments ask not for the 

rejection of lighting, so much as for a better choice of lighting more suited to the needs of 

those intended to benefit. 

 

There is also a substantial body of opinion that people who are nervous about crossing 

Parker's Piece after dark should simply take the long way round the edge, where there is 

adequate lighting, rather than expose themselves to perceived risk.  In the case of Parker's 

Piece, this is not a major detour.  Other comments on perceptions of safety suggest that 

the presence of lighting may actually give a false impression of safety, when in fact the 

risks are still present, or perhaps even amplified by the loss of night vision on a lit path.  

This also contributes to opinion that the lights are ineffective in addressing safety 

concerns. 

 

The risk of vandalism is prominent in several comments, and the experience of a vandal 

attack on the lights during the trial reinforces the view that the lights are prone to damage, 

either deliberately or through accidental collision.  Vandalism disfigures an area, but is also 

costly in terms of Council budgets.  The lights are also seen as a hazard to path users, 

particularly cyclists, in that they may inhibit their ability to veer off the paths to avoid 

pedestrians or oncoming cyclists, or may be an obstacle to free progress; they are also 

seen as an obstruction, or a hazard, to those who use the green space for sport or 

recreation, while the placing of lighting bollards is seen as potentially dividing the space up 

into smaller open spaces and reducing its versatility or usability for some types of 

activity. 

 

Several people make observations about light pollution, and the increase in pollution that 

would result from lighting the site; others (not always the same people) draw attention to 

the importance and value of dark spaces where the stars can be seen, especially in an 

urban context. 

 

Cost is not a major component of objectors' comments, but cost and cost-effectiveness do 

arise; some people simply say that the installation is unnecessary, without always giving 

Page 479



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 30 of 47 

reasons.  The energy and environmental costs are also raised in a small number of 

comments. 

 

Although the number of negative comments is relatively small compared to the 

endorsement given to the trial by this consultation, it is clear from many comments that 

there is a strength of feeling on this issue.  The City Council should be aware of this in 

formulating any future lighting plan for Parker's Piece; any proposal will meet with strongly 

voiced and articulate opposition. 

 

 

Appearance 

 

This table shows how people responded on the question of the appearance of the 

installation: 

 

Table 3.13:  Appearance 

 

Appearance 
Proportion of 

respondents 

I think it looks good 37% 

I'm okay with it 30% 

I don't like it much 10% 

I think it looks terrible 12% 

Don't know/no opinion either way 11% 

N (=100%) 950 

 

Page 480



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 31 of 47 

 

Just under two in five people think the appearance of the trial installation is good; a further 

30% are reasonably comfortable with it, meaning that two thirds of respondents are broadly 

positive about the appearance.  Whilst this is a positive result for appearance, the response 

seems more circumspect that might have been expected from the enthusiasm with which 

the idea itself is welcomed, suggesting that the design utilised might usefully be 

reconsidered in any future lighting plan.   

A quarter of people are negative about the appearance of the scheme, and these are 

evenly divided between what might be interpreted as a moderately negative view and a 

strong one.  One in nine people offer no opinion on design at all; a large proportion of these 

are people who have not visited the site since the installation took place. 

Women are much more positive about appearance than men:  45% of women think it looks 

good, against just 29% of men, whilst 20% of men say it looks terrible, against just 6% of 

women.  Support for appearance also reduces with increasing age, so the older a person is 

the less likely they are to think the installation looks good; the proportion who think it looks 

good is 45% of 16-24s, and 40% of 25-34s, but reduces to just 19% among over 55s.  In 

contrast, the proportion who think the installation looks terrible is only 2% of 16-24s, and 

9% of 25-34s, but rises to 44% of over 55s. 

Looking at the views of different groups of people, the most positive views are those of 

ARU students, where 55% think it looks good, and a further 39% are okay with 

appearance; only 6% of ARU students express any negative opinion.  Also supportive, but 

more circumspect, are Cambridge University students, of whom 43% like the appearance 

and 36% are okay with it; again, just 6% are negative. 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

I think it looks 

good 

I'm okay with it I don't like it 

much 

I think it looks 

terrible 

Page 481



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 32 of 47 

Most other groups take broadly similar views, with 35%-40% saying the appearance looks 

good, and 25%-30% disagreeing to some extent.  The exception is the group of people with 

an interest in open spaces; here the level of support is similar, as is the overall level of 

disagreement; the difference is the strength of disagreement, with one in five (21%) of this 

group thinking the installation looks terrible, a much higher proportion than in any other 

interest group. 

 

Interestingly, only half of those who welcome the principle of lighting Parker's Piece (48%) 

think the current installation looks good; a further third (35%) are okay with it, and few are 

negative, but one in eight (13%) are reserving judgement on appearance at this point.  

Opponents of the idea are also negative about appearance, and there is a stronger 

correlation between negative opinion on the principle and negative opinion on the 

appearance; three quarters (72%) of those who think lighting Parker's Piece is a bad idea 

also think this installation looks terrible, and there are few opponents of the idea who 

reserve judgment on appearance. 

 

 

Functionality 

 

One of the bollards in the installation was designed to retract when not in use, so as to 

reduce visual clutter on the space during the daytime.  Respondents were asked to give a 

view on this as an idea, with these overall results: 

 

Table 3.14:  Functionality 

 

Opinion 
Proportion of 

respondents 

I like this, it should be adopted for the whole scheme 23% 

I didn't notice, but it's a good idea 43% 

I didn't notice, but I don't think it's necessary 17% 

I don't like this 8% 

Don't know/no opinion either way 9% 

N (=100%) 950 

 

Page 482



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 33 of 47 

 

Overall, a quarter of people both noticed this feature and give it a positive assessment, 

whilst 8% noticed it and react differently.  Among those who noticed the feature, positives 

outweigh negatives by three to one overall.  Two in five respondents didn't notice, but think 

it's a good idea, against one in six who didn't notice and don't think this feature is needed.  

Overall, the retracting light is supported by two in three respondents, and opposed by a 

quarter; a small number of respondents offer no view.  This last group includes some who 

have yet to visit, but in this question non-visitors were more willing to express an opinion. 

Men were a little more likely to notice the retracting bollard, but men and women are 

equally supportive of the idea.  Younger people were also more aware of the feature, and 

the younger a person is the more likely they are to welcome this feature; dislike of the idea 

increases with age, rising from just 2% of 16-24s to 32% of over 55s. 

As for the different groups of respondents, the position is similar to the results for overall 

appearance, with stronger endorsement from students (especially from ARU students) and 

stronger dislike of the idea from those with a wider interest in open spaces. 

Those who express dislike for the appearance of the lights were asked to expand on their 

reasons, and many did so.  Their reasons include several factors already identified under 

the broader principle of lighting open spaces, so again there are comments about light 

pollution, loss of amenity, visual intrusion and obstruction/hazard that do not need to be 

rehearsed.   

Comments about appearance focus on whether the lights should be at ground level or at a 

greater height similar to street lamps, with no genuine consensus on this, and whether the 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

45% 

I like this, it should 

be adopted for the 

whole scheme 

I didn't notice, but 

it's a good idea 

I didn't notice, but 

I don't think it's 

necessary 

I don't like this 

Page 483



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 34 of 47 

light distribution from the trial lights is adequate or ideal, with challenges on both the 

strength of light (too strong for some people) and the tone of the light (excessively bright for 

some people).  Another important issue is that many people feel the design of the bollard 

lights in particular is out of keeping with a historic open space - some describe the design 

as 'tacky', while others consider them 'modern', but not in a positive sense; there is also a 

view that they are out of keeping with the Reality Checkpoint at the centre of the space.  

Although there are some favourable comments on the retractable column, there is also a 

certain lack of confidence in its resilience and reliability. 

Effectiveness 

Views on the effectiveness of the scheme in lighting the footpath are summarised below: 

Table 3.15  Effectiveness 

Opinion 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Very effective 28% 

Fairly effective 47% 

Not particularly effective 7% 

Not at all effective 3% 

Don't know/no opinion either way 15% 

N (=100%) 933 

 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

Very effective Fairly effective Not particularly 

effective 

Not at all 

effective 

Page 484



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 35 of 47 

Overall, a quarter of respondents think the scheme is very effective in lighting the footpath, 

and three quarters (75%) think it is at least fairly effective.  It is surprising in the light of 

comments made in response to earlier questions that just 10% say it is ineffective, with 

15% reserving their position on this question; a substantial proportion of the latter have 

either not visited, or not visited after dark, and cannot therefore answer this question. 

 

Women find the scheme more effective than men; four out of five women (81%) find the 

scheme at least fairly effective, against 69% of men.  Perceptions of effectiveness are 

higher among young people, but decline rapidly among over 55s; only 1% of 16-34s find 

the scheme not at all effective, but this rises to 16% of over 55s. 

 

There is very little difference in perceptions of effectiveness according to the group of 

respondents, apart from a predictable higher level of enthusiasm from the student cohort, 

and especially from those studying at ARU, where the proportion who find the scheme very 

effective rises to 47%, with a further 44% ticking 'fairly effective'. 

 

The reasons given for ineffectiveness are largely observations already provided elsewhere, 

such as glare and dazzle, the amount of light, and the way the units distribute light.  Factors 

include the spacing between lights, which for some people causes  'pooling' of light 

interspersed with darker spaces, and the need to refocus the diffusion of the light away 

from people's eyes and on to the footpath more directly.  The lights are, for some 

respondents at least, too easily confused with oncoming cycle lights. 

 

 

Features 

 

Respondents were asked how important different aspects of a lighting scheme would be to 

them; the question also recognised that those who object in principle might not wish to 

answer a question of this nature. 

 

The answers people gave have been converted into mean scores1, to facilitate comparison 

between them, and are listed below: 

 

 

                                                 
1
 Mean scores are calculated by applying a score value to each valid answer, and then averaging the final 

score for each element of the question.  In this instance, a score of +2 or +1 has been applied to each 'very 
important' or 'fairly important' answer respectively, and a score of -1 or -2 to each 'not very important' or 'not at 
all important' answer respectively.  'neither' responses are scored as zero, and blanks are ignored completely.  
The resulting mean score indicates whether an answer is positive or negative, and also the strength of the 
answer, both in its own right and relative to other elements of the question. 

Page 485



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 36 of 47 

Table 3.16:  Relative importance of features 

Feature Mean score 
No. of 

respondents 

Vandal-resistant 1.56 808 

Energy efficient 1.32 804 

Appropriate design 1.21 810 

Low carbon footprint 0.98 807 

Good value for money 0.84 804 

Light pollution 0.69 807 

 

Overall, the most important of these six features on any potential installation is that it 

should be vandal-resistant - a result which may well have been influenced by the vandal 

attack on the trial installation early on in its life-cycle.  Also scoring highly on the list of 

attributes are energy-efficiency and the appropriateness of design.  These three attributes 

score above 1.00, indicating features that are more than just 'fairly important'. 

The other three attributes all score positively, but at levels that are close to or below 'fairly 

important' on average.  Interestingly, given its prominence in the feedback, light pollution is 

the least important of the six features offered to respondents, while value for money - an 

issue that is much less prominent in the feedback - is given a higher rating for importance 

overall.  A low carbon footprint comes in at the 'fairly important' level. 

0 0.2 0.4 0.6 0.8 1 1.2 1.4 1.6 

Vandal-resistant 

Energy efficient 

Appropriate design 

Low carbon footprint 

Good value for money 

Light pollution 

Page 486



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 37 of 47 

There are differences in view according to the respondent's gender.  Men attach higher 

importance to appropriateness of design, and to some extent to light pollution, while women 

score a low carbon footprint much more highly, and are also more concerned about energy 

efficiency. 

 

Younger respondents are much less concerned about light pollution and appropriate 

design, and tend to attach lower importance to all these issues than their older 

counterparts.  Older respondents are much more exercised about vandalism and light 

pollution; vandalism gets an average score of 1.89 from over 55s, indicating that most rate 

it as 'very important'.  Over 55s tend to attach more importance, though, to all these 

features and all get strong positive scores for importance. 

 

People with an interest in open spaces give generally higher scores than other interest 

groups, and are especially concerned about vandalism.  Students are much less concerned 

about light pollution than those in other groups, whilst people who work in the vicinity of 

Parker's Piece give a greater importance to design, and also to vandal-resistance. 

 

 

Next step 

 

Asked how the Council should move forward from this trial, people respond as follows: 

 

Table 3.17 Next step 

 

Opinion 
Proportion of 

respondents 

Extend the scheme to all paths on Parker's Piece 69% 

Put in a different scheme on all paths 11% 

Remove the lighting scheme 11% 

Extend the trial period 4% 

Do something else 2% 

N (=100%) 912 

 

Page 487



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

Page 38 of 47 

 

The majority view is that the lighting scheme should be extended to cover all the main 

paths on Parker's Piece; two thirds of respondents give this a green light.  In contrast, only 

one in nine want to see a different scheme installed right across the space, while a similar 

proportion want to see the scheme removed altogether.  There is little enthusiasm for 

extending the trial, or for any other alternative approach. 

Women are much more enthusiastic about extending the scheme across the site; 78% of 

women, compared to 58% of men, want a rollout across the space.  However, 20% of men 

want the scheme dropped altogether, in comparison with just 7% of women. 

As might be expected from the results hitherto, younger people are much more likely to ask 

for the scheme to be extended:  86% of those aged 16-24 want the scheme rolled out 

across Parker's Piece, as do 74% of 25-34s, but this falls to just 26% of over 55s.  Over 

55s are nevertheless interested in a different scheme; a quarter of over 55s (26%) want to 

see a different scheme, but a slightly higher proportion (34%) of over 55s want the scheme 

removed altogether. 

The main differences in perception according to interest group are also largely predictable:  

students are very keen to see the scheme extended to cover all the main paths in Parker's 

Piece, with little difference between ARU and the University of Cambridge on this point, 

whilst those with an interest in open spaces are more likely to seek a different scheme 

(16%), or to call for the idea to be dropped completely (20%); even so, a majority (57%) of 

those interested in open spaces want to see the scheme extended. 

0% 

10% 

20% 

30% 

40% 

50% 

60% 

70% 

Extend the 

scheme to all 

paths on 

Parker's Piece 

Put in a different 

scheme on all 

paths 

Remove the 

lighting scheme 

Extend the trial 

period 

Do something 

else 

Page 488



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 39 of 47 

Those who do suggest alternative approaches tend to reiterate points already made, such 

as using softer tones of light, or different designs; they also suggest educating people not 

to cross dark spaces late at night, and designing a scheme in consultation with cyclists as 

well as pedestrians to arrive at a better solution. 

 

 

  

Page 489



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 40 of 47 

4 Additional responses 

 

In addition to the formal survey online, we received a small number of comments and 

observations directly, by-passing the normal response mechanism.  In most cases, these 

offer comments that are already well-addressed in the discussion of the online results, and 

are not rehearsed here. 

 

The Police were asked for an opinion on the trial.  They comment that the trial was too 

short, and too limited in scope, for them to be able to assess its impact on safety, and that 

they have had no feedback that would suggest improved perceptions.  However, they do 

suggest that, if the trial is to be extended or the scheme rolled out to cover more footpaths, 

the services of their Architectural Liaison Officers be sought to provide some further advice 

about design and choice of lighting type. 

 

Cambridge Past Present and Future is a local charity with an active interest in planning 

and green spaces within the city.  Whilst welcoming the idea of a trial, they record their 

objection to the scheme, citing several reasons for this view: 

 

· the adverse impact on the character and nature of green spaces, which they 

describe as 'the urban countryside'; 

· possible adverse impact on safety, by making it harder to see people lurking in 

shadowed areas; 

· the Conservation Plan (2001) recommends the avoidance of lighting, whilst the 

Cambridge Historic Core Appraisal notes the importance of Parker's Piece to the 

character of the historic central core of the city; 

· safety issues for users playing sports; 

· the need for design compatibility with Reality Checkpoint, especially as this is a 

listed structure. 

 

Cambridge Past Present and Future suggests the use of tall lighting columns around the 

perimeter of the space, and stresses the need to use high-quality materials in any solution. 

 

The full text of the CPPF representation is in the public domain and is therefore included as 

an appendix. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 490



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 41 of 47 

Appendix 1:  the questionnaire 

 
Parkers Piece 

 

Introduction 
Thank you for your interest in our project on Parker's Piece. 
 
As you may be aware, we've installed some lighting on one of the footpaths on Parker's Piece. The City 
Council is responding to some incidents that have occurred there, and - after consultation with Student 
Unions and Cambridgeshire Police - we've decided to test a small lighting scheme aimed at improving safety 
for people crossing the space after dark. 
 
The small lighting scheme we've installed is a trial. If it's successful, and makes people feel safer, we will look 
to extend it to cover the main footpaths across Parker's Piece. If it isn't successful, though, the lighting will be 
re-used at Cherry Hinton Hall, where replacement lighting is needed on an access road. 
 
At the moment, though, we want to see whether or not lighting has the desired effect, and also whether 
people welcome the idea or not. 
 
This questionnaire has been designed to allow you to give your views on the trial scheme. What you tell us 
here will help us to decide whether or not we take this idea forward. 
 
The survey is completely confidential. You can move through the questionnaire by clicking on the 'Next' 
button. It's quite a short survey, but if you need to you can use the 'Save and return' option to allow you to 
take a break without having to start again. 

 

 

Interest 

Are you responding to this survey as.. 
 
Please tick all that apply 
[ ] A local resident 

[ ] Someone who uses Parker's Piece for recreation or exercise 

[ ] Someone who uses the footpaths to cross Parker's Piece 

[ ] Someone who works nearby 

[ ] A student at ARU 

[ ] A student at Cambridge University 

[ ] Someone with an interest or concern about open spaces in Cambridge 

[ ] Other (please specify) 

 

 

Page 491



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 42 of 47 

Frequency 

 

How often do you generally use the footpaths on Parker's Piece? 
( ) Most days 

( ) Two or three times a week 

( ) Once a week 

( ) Once or twice a month 

( ) Less often 

( ) Never walked across Parker's Piece 

 

 

Timing 

And when you use the footpaths, is that 
 
Please tick all that apply. 
[ ] in the early morning 

[ ] during the day 

[ ] in the early evening 

[ ] late at night 

 

 

Daytime safety 

Thinking about the time before we installed the lighting, how safe did you feel when using the 
footpaths on Parker's Piece during the day? 
( ) Very safe 

( ) Fairly safe 

( ) Neither safe nor unsafe 

( ) Fairly unsafe 

( ) Very unsafe 

 

 

Page 492



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 43 of 47 

Safety after dark 

And, again thinking about the time before we installed the lighting, how safe did you feel when using 
the footpaths on Parker's Piece after dark? 
( ) Very safe 

( ) Fairly safe 

( ) Neither safe nor unsafe 

( ) Fairly unsafe 

( ) Very unsafe 

 

 

Visited 

Have you visited Parker's Piece since we installed the trial lighting scheme? 
 
Please tick all that apply. 
[ ] Yes, during the day 

[ ] Yes, after dark 

[ ] No, not yet 

 

 

Lighting in principle 

 

How do you feel about us putting lighting on Parker's Piece, in principle? 
( ) I welcome this 

( ) I have some reservations, but am okay with it 

( ) I can see why you've done it, but I don't like it 

( ) I think it's a bad idea 

( ) Don't know/no opinion either way 

 

 

Why not liked? 
You said you don't like us putting lighting on Parker's Piece. Can you say why that is? 

 

 

Page 493



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 44 of 47 

Safety after 

 

Now that the lighting has been installed, does this make you feel safer when using the paths after 
dark? 
( ) Yes, a lot safer 

( ) Yes, a little safer 

( ) Makes no difference to me 

( ) No, I feel a little less safe 

( ) No, I feel a lot less safe 

 

 

Why not safer? 
You said you don't feel safer, even after the lighting has been installed. Can you say why that is? 

 

 

Appearance 

And how do you feel about the appearance of the scheme we're trialling at the moment? 
( ) I think it looks good 

( ) I'm okay with it 

( ) I don't like it much 

( ) I think it looks terrible 

( ) Don't know/no opinion either way 

 

 

Functionality 

 

One of the pathside lights retracts into the ground when it isn't needed. What did you think of this? 
( ) I like this, it should be adopted for the whole scheme 

( ) I didn't notice this, but it's a good idea 

( ) I didn't notice this, but I don't think it's necessary 

( ) I don't like this 

( ) Don't know/no opinion 

Page 494



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 45 of 47 

 

 

Why dislike appearance? 
You said you don't like the appearance of the scheme we're trialling. Can you say what it is that you dislike 
about it? 

 

 

Effectiveness 

 

And how effective do you think the scheme is, in lighting the footpath? 
( ) Very effective 

( ) Fairly effective 

( ) Not particularly effective 

( ) Not at all effective 

( ) Don't know/no opinion either way 

 

 

Why not effective? 
You said you don't think the lighting scheme is effective. Can you say why you think that? 

 

Important features 

How important are these features in choosing a lighting scheme for an open space? 
 
If you've already said you object to lighting parks in principle, you may wish to skip this question. 

 
Very 

important 
Fairly 

important 
Neither 

Not very 
important 

Not at all 
important 

Low carbon 
footprint 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Energy 
efficient 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Vandal-
resistant 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Minimises 
light 
pollution 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Appropriate 
design 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Good value 
for money 

( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  ( )  

Page 495



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 46 of 47 

 

 

Moving forward 

How would you want us to move forward from this trial? 
( ) Extend the current lighting scheme to cover the main paths on Parker's Piece 

( ) Put in a different lighting scheme to cover the main paths on Parker's Piece 

( ) Remove the lighting scheme altogether 

( ) Keep the trial going for a longer period 

( ) Do something else 

 

What would you want us to do? 

 

About you 

Finally, a couple of questions about you. Are you... 
( ) Male 

( ) Female 

 

And which of these age-groups do you belong to? 
( ) Under 16 

( ) 16 - 24 

( ) 25 -34 

( ) 35 - 54 

( ) 55 - 64 

( ) 65 or over 

 

What is your postcode? We use this only to analyse the responses to this survey. 
____________________________________________  

 

Thank You! 
Thank you for taking our survey. Your response is very important to us. 
 
We'll provide the results of the survey on the Council website once the survey period is over, and the analysis 
has been completed. 

 

 

Page 496



Lighting Parker's Piece 
Report on consultation 

 

 

Page 47 of 47 

Appendix 2:  CPPF response 

 

 

Page 497



Page 498

This page is intentionally left blank



�

�

����������	�
�����
�

��������	

��������������������������������������������

�������������
������������
���������	����������
�����������

���������� ��������������������������������

����������� 	������	������

���������������  �!�������"#$�

��������������������� �������������������

������������� %������&���'�
�

�

����������������

�

 ������������������������(��
�

�� ���� �)�������� ����������� ��� ��'��� ��� �������� ����
��������������*� �����������+�,����� ����������� ���������
�������������������������-���������	��.����	����/	�#$0�12���

�� ���� ������ ����� �*� ���� ���.���� ��� 34+###� *������ *����
�����������������������2��

�� ���� ��
���
� �������� ������������� ,���� ��� �������� ���
�)�����
������������
���2�

�

��������������������������5�
�

�� �����)������������������������'�������������������������
�
��������������������*������������������*�������������
��
�������	��������������������2�

�

�� 6*�����7������������������������)��������������������
����������������������������48�����������������*�����
�)�����������������������9���������*�:�������,����������
���
������������������
2�

�
�
�
�

Agenda Item 15

Page 499



�

����������	�
����"�
�

�!""	�#�

$%&� '(����������

2#2���������.������������������������������������������'����
���������*���������,��'+�,����������������������������
��
�������������'��,���
���������������������������������������
���������������������
�����:����������������������������� ;$2�

2#2"�����������������,�����������
��*������������������*�	��'�����
	������������������������*�*�����������������,����������������*�
�������
�+����������������������������������������2��

2#2$�������)��������
���*����������������������34+###+�,�����
������������.��������
������*���2�

�

�

��������������
�������������*���������������)����*�������������
�

�

$%$� '(������

/����������������)���*�����������������*��������������1�
�

�

'��)��������������)����������*�

���������	����������� !�������"#$�

������������� <����"#0�

����������������������*�	��*������
�������

!�������"#0�

�,�����*���������� !�������"#0�

	������
������������� 9��������"#0�

���������:����������� :��������"#4�

	��.��������������� <����"#4�

+�,���
����� -� ��������

���������������� ;###�
0�%�2��������
���������

������������ =4+###� ������������������

	��*���������>�������������*���� "+###�
6�����������.����
����
������*���2�

?�����2
2��������
�����*����� "###� �

������������������� 4+###� �

Page 500



�

����������	�
����$�
�

�

�

2� .��/)������

22�	��'�����	�����,����,��������������������
���������;$����
,����)����
���,���������������
��������������*�������
��.�������*�@������A������@����+���������������������������+�
��������������*�������������B����C������+��������������
�2�6��

���������������*������,����	��'��+������'�,��������������
�����*�����������������
������,���
�������������
�������*����
�����2��

22"�6������=����������+����������������*����������������������

�������������������������������D�����������*��������
������
���������E�������?��������
������!)*�������'������������2�
:��������,��������������������������	����2���

22$������+�	��'��F��	�����������������������������������������*�
�������*��������
����+�������,������������������������
��
�������*� 0 �,����*����������������������2��

220����� �������
�� ������ ,���� �� ����� �*� *�������� ������ *�����
���,���������������
��D���������+����� ������������� ���
���
��� *��������� �� 
���� ����� ,��� ����������� ��� ��������� ,���
��������������������������*���������������*�����������������
,���� ��**������ �����2� ���� �������
�� ������ ���� �������� *���
����,��
� 
���� '��'�+� ����,G���+� ���� *��,���� ������� ���� *���
���������
� ������
�,������������
���������2�������������,����
����� ��*��������� ��� ���� ��������� �*� ���� ������� ������ �*�
������������ :�������+� ���,�� ��� ��� C������ ��� ���� :��������
��������������� ;$2�

�
�
�

�������������:������*���5�

:�����
5� ������5� 9������5�

9���������
��������������

-$$01&&&�
��������	
��������	�
���
	���
�����

!����� � �

�!��C� -$$01&&&� �

Page 501



�

����������	�
����0�
�

2"� '(��������������

2"2� :������.������*��������������������������������������
	�����������������7�������*���������������������������������
������0�������������*��������������
2��

2"2"� B���������������������������'����������*���������������������
��������������������+����������������������������.����,��������
��������������/�������������������,������,����������
���*���
����12�

2"2$� �����������
��������������������������������7������
����*�������
�������������7��������*����������7���������
�������'����H��������)�������������������������2��

2"20� ��������,��������7������+�����������������)�����������7������
*�������������������,���������������*����������.���������
��
��������������������������
������+������������������������������
����������
������������������������������������@������2�

2"24� ��������,��'��
��������������,�������������.������7����������
����������������������������������������������
������������
*�����2��

2"2;� �����
�������*���
������������������,���������������2��

2"2I� !**������,����,��'�,����������)��������������������,���������
��
�����������*��������������������*��������������������
,�������������
�����2��

2"2 � :������������
�������**������,��������������*�������������7����*����
�����)��������������������������
��������������������������2�

2"2=� �����������*�����������,���������������������������������
���������������������������������������.��������*+�,���������
���*���������������)����*������������2��

2"2#���������,��������������*����*�34##�*��������,��'2�����*����
����������,�������������������.�����*����������������������2�

2"2�����������������*�����������������������,����������������
������������*������)��������,����������������������
��������������������.�����������������������������������
	��'�����	�������������
��������������������������������
����*H�7��������*���'��
H����������+���*��������*���������
�����������������G������������������,��'������������������
����������������*���H��������.���������
����������
������������������������������,��'�/�*�����������12��

Page 502



�

����������	�
����4�
�

2"2"�����������������
������������������������������������������
�������������������**�����������������*����2���������*����
������������������������������������+���,����+�����
���������������������������������������������������	��'�����
	����������*���������
���������������������*��������������
����������*��������
��������������������������*�����
:����������������������������������������������
���������������2��

2"2$�6���������������������������������	��'�����	�����������
��**����������
����������������������������.�����������+�����
����.����������*�������+��������������������������������������
�������2�

2"20�B��������������������������������������������������,������
	��'�����	����+��������������������������,�����������������
������������'��
������������������"##��������������	����
����,�������������������
��*������������������*��������������
�������������,�������������������������2���������,��'��������
����������������,����������,����������)���*�	��'�����	�����
��������������������������,���������������������2�

2"24�:����,��
�������������*�����*�������������+���
���������������,��������������������)�������������������
*���	������	�����+�������������������+�,���,������'������
*������������������������*���������,��'����������������
������������������2�

�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 503



�

����������	�
����;�
�

2$� 2(��������(������3��4������������(��
������5�

�

��������.����,��������������������������
�����*����,��
���������
E������5�

�� 67�7��*�	������8(��(����������������������1�������
����������8(��(�4���)�
��
�����)��(�������8(����
���������������(���(��������/������(������������

�� ����
����������������,���������*�����������������*�
�������������������������������
��������������
�
��
,������������������

�� 67�7��*�	������8(�������9���������(�����������������

�4��������������/��)����������:������/�������
�����
������������������������������������

�� �������������������*������
��
�����������������������
���������
�������������������,�����������*��������
��

�� ���������������
�����������*�������

�� ����������������������������������������-�����
���������
������������������������
��������������*���������2�

�� ����������������������������+�����
������������*��������
,�������������������������������������

�� ���������������*�����+��������������������������������
���������������������*��������������.����,��'��
�
/������
���������
�����+����������+�����������������
��������������������������1�

�
�� 67�7��*���)����
������������1�����������8��/�

�� �������,��������,��������������*������������������������
�����������������������������*���������������*�����������
,����
������������������������������,���G�����
����
�������
��

�� �������,�������������
������������������������*��������
,���������������������������������
���������G
�������������������
���������������

�
�

Page 504



�

����������	�
����I�
�

20� ����������(������������������/�(������3���(���
��
����������

�
����������������!�����������	��.����9�������������,����
����
����������������2�
�
���������������*����������.����������������������������������
�)���������������������������������������������������������
���.���2��
�
����,��'��������'������������������������������������������
,�������������
���,��'���������,������	��'�����	����2�
�

�
24� ���������/�����/����������8��(��(��
��������

�
�����������������*������������*���
�������������*������������
�
�����������*����.���������������*�����������������*���������.���2�

�
�������.����������������������������
�	������
�	���������2�

�
�
�
�
2;�  �����������
���������

�

�2� ��������������������������*����,��
�����������5�"#$>0�

�2� �����*���
�����*�����
������������,���5�%����

�

�
2I� 6	'���
���������

���������������������E���������������������������.���2�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 505



�

����������	�
���� �
�

2 � ��������������7�
���������

����������������.����,�������������,����������������������
��������2�
��

������*��������.�����������+�������������������������
�����
�������������������*������
��
������������������������
�2�
6*��������*����������.����,�����������
�������������������������
�������������������2�
�

�
;%<������(�����
����������

�
�:�����

����������
�������.��������������
������������������������*�������������,2��
�
�����������������
%>��

�
�
;%$&�������������������)�����������:������������������(����


�������

����	����������!**�����,�������������������.�����������
����������,�������.��������
�����������������	��.����
9������������2��������������*���������������,����������
����������,�������*�����������������������
�����������
������������������������������*�����������2�

�
�

�/������:������=�������������
���������

���������
���4������
(����

���
����'��������

�����������
 ���(�
�����

	��.���������������������
����
��������������	
� $##�

�
#=>#>$�

�
$>#;>4�

C�
��������������������	
� #� ���4>#$>$� "">#0>$�

��������������������������	
� 44#� "">#;>$� $>#;>4�

�

�

�

Page 506



�

����������	�
����=�
�

;%$$���7��������������
����������
�����(���8��/����
�������

�����%����
�

�
;%$;� 	

�����������.��/)��������
���

�

�

�		�%96J���� (�� :6%�%����A����
�
�		�%96J�&� G� ���6���&�6�:�
�
�		�%96J��� G� 	�!<����	�!@��??��
�

�

����	������������������������	������
�9��������
����5>>,,,2�������
�2
��2�'>������>����>	�����8"#���8"#�
������������8"#	������
8"#9�������2��*�
�
���������������
��
����5>>,,,2�������
�2
��2�'>���>�������>�������G���G
�������������>����G������
�2���
�
	��'�����	������������������	����"##�
�����5>>,,,2�������
�2
��2�'>�����>,,,2�������
�2
��2�'>*�
���>����>	��'��F�8"#	����8"#������������8"#	���2��*�
�

�

;%$>�7�
����������
�
���

�

���������%���� %������&���'�

���������������%�2� #""$�04I"I$�

����������G����5� ������2����'K�������
�2
��2�'�

9������������5� ����������"���"#$�

Page 507



Page 508



�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��
	
�


�
��
�

�

��
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��
��
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
7?
�	
�

;
&
$
>
=$
@

;
&
$
@
=$
0

;
&
$
0
=$
A

-
-

-

�
�


��
�
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
��
��

;
#
#
#

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

"
#
+#
#
#
�

I
4
+#
#
#
�

	
�
��
�
�
��
��
*�
��
�
��
��
�+
��
��
�
��
-
��
7
�
��
�
�
�
�

	
��
*�
��
��
�
�
��>
��
�
�
��
���
�
��
�*
�
�
�

$
+#
#
#
�

4
+#
#
#
�

0
+#
#
#
�

?
��
��
:
�
�
�

4
#
#
�


+4
#
#
�

'
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�

�

<
10
&
&
�

;
A
10
&
&
�

B
<
1&
&
&
�

�
�


��
�
��
7�
�
�
�
�
�=
� 
�
�
�
��
)

@
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
@
��
�
�

9
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
���
�
�

=
+#
#
#
�

"
;
+4
#
#
�

I
=
+#
#
#
�
�

�
	��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

���
�
�

�
-
�
�*
�
�
�
��



�
�
��
�
�'
�
�
�:
�
�
�
�

�
)�
��
��


��
�
�
���
���
��


��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
��



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
���
�
�

'
�
��
��
7�
�
�
�
�

<
10
&
&
�

;
A
10
&
&
�

B
<
1&
&
&
�

�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
.
��

&
�

&
�

&
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 509



Page 510



�

����������	�
����$�
�

�

�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

	�����7?�.�
	�����.�����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 511



�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

��������	
�������������	�����
��������������
�
������
����

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�������	
�������������
������������

���

�������
������
��
���
��� 
��!
���

Page 512



"��
#���	
�$�%�
�

�
�

�
�

���������
�

�
�
�

������������������
&�''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''�(�

�

���
�#�)�*''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''�+�

�

,������
������
��''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''� -�

�

��	����
''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''�..�

�

"��	
�''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''�..�

�

����	
�
��'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''�.%�

�

,��
���
�������
���'''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''� .+�

�

������������#���/
��
�����#��
��
��'''''''''''''''''''''''� .0�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 513



"��
#���	
�$�(�
�

���
������������������ ��
�
�
���*
�1����
�
���������	
���������
������
�����������	
�������
���
�������������

230�/
����
��#�4
��5�������
��	���������3��/
�����
�������!
��
�����	����������4�

�����4��*��	�����������	����/�6���������/
��
���
�4/
�
��/
�
����/������6������

���	�
��������6�4/��/�������7�������*�4�����	��������	
�8��!
����������
����

����
�������/
�*����3����*
�1����
�
��������
��������*��
����
6����*���
6�

9�!���
�����
6������
	
����
����
����������������
�!��
������#�������
����������	�

���*���
�����
�����:��
��������6��/
����*���
��4�����	���������/
�;
��
��

;
����	
��������
���
3�����������
��4��/����/
��
���������
�!�����,�
�6�4/��/����

�/
����	
������
�!�����,�
������������	
3�

�

���*
�1����
�
�4���4�
����������������
	
��������.0.(����4���
&�/��	
��4��/��/
�

�������	
����������#���/
���������#�9���
��<��
��9�

�6��������������/
�

��!
�����6������/
����
�#��/
�����
���)�
��=������6������������
	
3����	���
������

���
�#�����4�������*
�6����*�4/��
��
���/
������#��������������
	
�����4���

	����
���/
���	/�����#��������3��%>.(����*���/
�?>>�/�,���!
������#��/
������#�

�������	
���*��	�4�
��/���#����*
�1����
�
3�

�

����/
�.2�/��
�����6�����
���
��
�#��/
�����������������	��������
���������
����

����/
�8��!
������#��������	
��������
����������������/
���	�������&#����*�

����
��/
�
3�:������4��������������
�����/
���
�
6��������
�����
������/
�

#��4��	�7�������#���9
�	
�����
6�����
��#�@
�������
	
�A.B(BCD�E���4��*��	�

4��/�)������4
�����
��������*
�F����
�
������/
�
���4���
�#����94���
��

������	����#�����3��/
��!
����������!
���
���#��/
���
�
�4
�
�������	GH��

�

����6����*
�F����
�
�/�������
���������
�����/
�/������#���
���#������	��
�6�

������4���/
�
��/����/
��������	
����
��#�.B?B�4
�
�#��������������������
3���/
�

�������	
����
��4
�
�����
�#�#���������
��#��������4���������������	
�

8��!
�����6������/
���
�������	/����#������
���	��
��/���4������
�����
���

����
����4/�/�������
��!��������
��#����������/��#����������
��/�4��/�

��##
�
������
�3��/
��������	
����
����
������
�#�����4��	�	���*��*�6��/�45���6�

����#�4��������
������#����
!
����	�������	�4/�����/����	��/
�����3��/
�
����
��

Page 514



"��
#���	
�$�?�
�

4
�
�!
�����#��
����������/
���
�����#��/
���
������
��#�,���������:�����6�

���4��������=��������/
�:������,������������.B0(3��

�

���
�
����
��/
��������	
����
�������/
�����������
����/
���
�����#��/
�

:������,������������
�6�������/�4����
5
����
�����,�����%>>>��
�4

����#������

�
���#���@����1����	/�5�/
��
�6���/��
��#���/
�/�
�
���4/��/����
������*
�1��

��
�
������/
��������	
�8��!
������#�����I�3���/
�8��!
������4��+5%3���/
�����/�

4�������
�����#������*���#��/
��
���6����/
��������	
����
����������	��������

��
����������
��������
����/
���
��#��������#��/
����
3����/�4����/
����
�
�����6�

�����������#���/
�����/��/������������
�����
������������
�
��3��:�:,���
���/
�

����������
����/
�
��������#��������
�����������	�J��
6����4/��/�����
����
���/
�

��
���#�������	���#
�������4/����/
���	������������#��/
�	��
�4��3��/
�����/�

4����
#
�

����� �!������
��6���	����1���
����	��
#
�

6��/
�����/����
������4���

���
����@�����<�����/
�4
��5*�4��#���������
����������������	��
��������3��

,#�
���/
�	��
������7�
�
&�������	��/
��������	
����
�������/
�/���������

��������
�#��/
�	��
�4����##�&
��������

������*
�1����
�
6��
����	��/
�#��4��	�

����������D�K<
�
������*
�F����
�
6�����/
�.B>>�6�����
����
�������/
���������

�
��#������
�#���������
��
��/������	��*������!
�#��
6�4/��/�#����
�����/��	��/
�

���������F/��*��	3��/
�
�F�������	
����
�F��
���
��/
��
#����	���#��
��
����/
�

.B0(�:������,������������
�13�

�

<������!����6���	�������������*
����!����������4����
����������������
�����/
�

��������#��/
���
�
��������*��
����
3����*
�1����
�
�4���������!
��
�#��#�����

����������*
������/
�.2�/��
�����3��/
���!�����������
���#�
���/
�#�������	���/�

����*
�
�6�@��*�<���6�4/��
���
��/�������
����/
���
�
3�����6����*
�F����
�
����

#�
��#���
��4��/��
��
���������
��&��	������	��/
�����
�6������������/����
��������

��������������#��/
�#����������
��
�4�*����
����	��/
��������/����	���
���

�/��	/����/
��
��3��/
�����
������
��#��#�����	��
��#�����*
�6�#����������

��/�
����6�����������#�����*��*����������	��
��#�!��
��������
����������/
�

����
�����/�3����*���
���/����
���/
���
�
�#���/�������
�������3����
����

�������	
�
!
������
������
	�������/
���/
�
3�

�

�

Page 515



"��
#���	
�$�+�
�

 �
����/
���������
�#����*
�1����
�
����������������4��/����/
��
������

���
�!�����,�
�6������
4�����
���
!
���
���4�*��4��/��������
��
7���
����

�
���	�
��
���
�����!
�����������
�
�!
���
�/���
��/
��/�����
�������
�����
�

#��/
���
�3����%>>.������
�!����������#�����*
�F����
�
�4�������!
������!��
�

��������#����������	
�
�����������#
	������/
�
�
�
�����/����������	
��
���
����

�����
���/�����
����
�!
��#���/
�#����
3��/
���������������������	��
��������#�

�����
!
���
���#��/
����������	����#��/
�����
����
�#��������
�����6�4/��/�

��	/��/�!
���������������3�

�
���*
�1����
�
����
�!����������%>>.�
�
/����DLL4443�������	
3	!3�*L���
�L4443�������	
3	!3�*L#��
�L���L���*
�F�M%>��

�
M%>���
�!����M%>����3��#�
�
�

�

���!�����"�
#�

�

�/
���������

*���������������������������*
����������#��������4�*6�4/��/�

�
�
����
���/
�K�������	
����
�1��������*�4�
�	
���/
������������
��/����/
�
�

���
������
�����
�������/��	��/
�:������,������������
�����.B0(3�����������

����������/����/��������������	��#�
���/
���������
�#����*
�1����
�
�����/
�����/�

����
�#�#��������/��������4��/����/
������#��������	
6�������/���������������

���
����������3��/
���&��������	
��#���/���������������N2+6>>>3��

�

�/
�%>>.����*
�1����
�
����
�!������������
���/
���
�
1������	����
�������

#����������*�4�
�	
�#��/������
�����������
������#�����������/��
�������*
�����

��
�4��6��������/��	��/
�������/�������������
��4��/����*
�1����
�
3��/
������

���������/
�
����
���������
����
����
�������
�
����
�����������������
�

4���4��/������������	��/
�
��
�������/�����
��#����*
�1����
�
3��

�

�/
�!�����#���/������������������
�
����
���������
��/
�K�������	
����
�1�

�����/
����������������/
������
������/
�#�������#��/
�:������,������������
�6�

.+>��
�����	3��/
�������
����������/�����
!
���������4�*��/���
�	�	
��4��/��/
�

Page 516



"��
#���	
�$�0�
�

�
��
�#��������	
������
���������
6�4/��/���!
����������
�*�4������

�������������6�4/��/�/���/�����	�����������3���

�

�/
�������������
����/����/����������	��#��������������6�4/��/����#�����6�

�
	����6����������������
�����������	��#�����
������
����
�#��/�������������#�


&�
��������
������������
&�
��
��
������	/�3�

�

�/
��������/����������������/������K
!
��1���������
�4��/��/
������/�#��/
�

���4�*6�4/��/��
�
����
��#�����������������	
1����
�����/
�#�������#��/
�

:������,������������
�3��/
�������
��������������
��
7���
����/�!
�����	�
�

4��/��/
�������������/4������
	���
��/
������/�#��/
����4�*�4��/����/���K
!
��16�

�/�����/
�K
!
��1�	��/
��3�

�

�/
���������
���������4�����
��
7���
����4�*�4��/��/
�����������������

���*
/��
������
!
����/
���������3���/
����������4����������
��
�
���/��	�

�/
��������	
����
�������/
���
��/
������
������/
�#�������#��/
�:������

,������������
�3��

�

�/
���������
�	���
���/������
�����������������������
��
����
����������

��##
�
�������!���
��#���3��/
����
#�����
�������
���
����������/
�������6�/4
!
�6�

�������
���
�������������
�������
����
������/��������*
�1����
�
����
�#�����

�
�	���
��/
���������
�#��/
�����
����/
������#��������	
��������/
�

�
!
���
���#��/
�:������,������������
����/������������������
����������3�

<�!��	�������/��6����*
�1����
�
��
�����������##
�
����/��	����������
��
6�������

���������
�4/��/��������������#�����6����������������/�����
��
�����!
����/��3�

�/
�����
��4�*�������������/�!
��������
�������
#
�
��
�3�

�

)/
�
���������������
������������������
�!
�����4��/������*
�1����
�
6��/
�

#��4��	�������/4���/
��������4/
�
����/�������4�*������
�������
�3�,����

�
#�
�����#��/
���������
�#��/
�/�����������
6������������
��������
��4��/������

������
��
!
��
����*��	�������������/
�%>>.����
�!��������������4��/����

���
��������	�#��/
��
�����!����#��/
����
����������������4��/��������
�!�����

,�
�3��/
�����4�*��/��������
���������4��/����/
�4��
�����
&��#����*
�1����
�
�

����/�!
������������������4��/����/
�
�!����
��3�

Page 517



"��
#���	
�$�-�
�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�/�����������������
��
��!
�
����
�������/
�������
��������6����/
�������
��

�������4�*��	���������������4��/��/
��3��/
���������
����������/����/4
!
���
�

�
�������
�#������4�*����
���/
��������3��#��/
��������4��/
��������������������

���
����#��/
�������������/
��������������
������������������6��/
���������/�����
�

�
�������
�#���
�
����	L���������	�����#���/
���������L�������������/��������
�


�	�	
�����/������
��������������/������	
�
�����/�����
��
�4

���/
����������

�����/
�������L����5��������3�

�

�!!����������
������

�

�/���������������������
��#��4����	
�3��

�

��������$��

:������������7����#�
������
&�
��
��
����������4�����
���!��
�����
��������/������
#�

�/��	/�4����
���������4���
����3��/���4�����
��
#
��
���������K���
���������13�

Page 518



"��
#���	
�$�B�
�

,�������4�����
��������#

�#�N.+>>�#���/���4�*3����������������
���/����/
��
�
��
��

����������!��
�������
���*
��/���
�
�
���#��/
���������6�4�����
�	�!
�����
����#�

����&����
���.%�4

*�����
�
���/��/
����
#������
!
��������
����������#��

�������������/
�������3���/
�#�����������4�����
���!��
������
�
����/
�����������

������##��
��)�*��	�9���3� ����	��/
���
�
���������������4�����
����
���
&������

�/
����
����
����/
����
#6�������
���!��
�����
�������
�/4��/
����
����������

/����

���
!
��
�3���/
��##��
��)�*��	�9����4�����
�	�!
���/
���������������*�

7�
���������������#��������������
�#���/
�����
����#��/
�������3����/��������4����

/�!
�?+������
�������
���*
��/
���
�
����������������4
��7�
�����3��

�

� ��	����������
�!����$�

,�������#��/
����
�����������
�
��������
��6����
&/�������#��/
�?����
���

��������4�����
��
����������/
�=
������
����##��
�6�4��/�������#����/
�������3��/���


&/�������4������!��
��
��
���#��/
���������/
��������������

��/
�#���

��������������*
����
��������/
����������/
��
�!
��4��������
�����
�������

�������!�
3��/
���������4�����
�
!�����
������/
��##��
��)�*��	�9�����������

���
�
��
���,���,�!����A4/������������*
����������
���������
�������
�

�����	��/
��������
&/������C�����4/�4�����
���
�������
#
��
������������/
�

�&
����!
���������3�

�

�/
����
���
���#�
��/����
����������4����������
��/
�
!��������#��/
�
&�
�����

4/��/��/
��������/����
����
�����/
�����
�������
�����������
������/�����

���*
�1����
�
6���������	���*��	�������������/
��
�����!
��
����	�#����*
�1����
�
�

�����/
�	������
�������
������/������
#O�7�������#���*��	O��
�/�����6���#
�������

#���������!�������������
��5���
����
��/
����4�*������
��
!
��
�������
��!
�
��

��#
��O��������
��
����	
!�������������
����
�����
���������/
�4�*�A�#�

���������
C3������#�������#��/
�
!�����������
���
���������
�������������
������/
�


���#��/������
#3�

�

��������/
���
�
�������,���������
��
7���
�����������������
�
��6�4/��/������
��

�/
������������
����
����/
����
#O���������	����
��������	��������
���
������#��/
�

���
#6��/
�����
��������/
���������/����
�
���/������
!
���
���������������	��/
�

��������
���#�#

��#���/
��
��!
���#����	
�%�#��/
����
���A��������	��/
����	
�%�

�
��	��#

C3�,��
&���������#�/4��/
��������4����
����
��/
����
�������
��!
�
����

Page 519



"��
#���	
�$�2�
�

���
���������	
����*���������
7���
�3�����/
�����
�
�������������
��
7���
����

��#�����/
����
����
�������
�
��/
����������4��/����/
�!
�����N2+6>>>����	
��

�����/
��#��������
��������/�������/
���&��������	
���!������
3��/������������L#�������

�/
����
���
�������
���3�

�
�/
�#������������
!
����	��/
����
�����������4�����
��
7���
���D�

�� ��������/
��
7���
�������������
�
���A��������
����!
C�

�� ��!��
���
���#���/
���
���!
����
���
������#��/
����
������6�4/��/�#��#����/
�

���
#���������	���#�������

�� ��!��
��������6�4/��/���
����������
����/
��
�����!
����
&��#����*
�1��

��
�
������
�������
��/
�%>>.����*
�1����
�
����
�!����������/����

��

��*
�����������������/
��
��	�����
��3�)/
�
���������������
����
����

�������
�6��/
�������������/�!
������������������#��/
���
�
����
�#�

��  
!
�����
����/��	/�������������#��
�
���/����������������4��/�*
��

���*
/��
��6������/
��##��
��)�*��	�9����

�� ��!��
��������������#��6�4/��/������
�
&/����
��������������
&/�������

�

�/
����������
��*
����	����
����
���
��#���/
����
�����
����#��4��������������

������
��!������
�4��/����/������
#���
D�

�

P� ����
�����������
#��������������
!
������
����������D����%��	�
�&'()�

P�  
�����
����
�
�!
����
����������D��*�
���&'(+�

P� ,��
�������
&/��������
����������D���!
����,�-����&'(+�

P� ,��������
#
��
��������������4�����������D������	�
�&'(+�

P� :������
��
����
��L���
���������#������!��D��.����	�
�&'(+�

P� �������#���������	��
�������D���-����
/�&'(0�

P� ,��4�*L�����
�����
�
�������������
����D��-��/�&'(0�

�

�

������1�$��

,���/���������/
��##��
��)�*��	�9����4����������
�����K��
#
��
����������
1�����

�
���
����/
����
�����!
������/
��&
����!
���������������!����
������������

������

3����
��/
�����!���������
6��/
��������4�����/
���
���*
����4�*�����/
���

Page 520



"��
#���	
�$�.>�
�

���
���������������
����
������#��������
���
��	�3�,�#���/
��#

�#�N(>>>�4�����
�

���4
��#���/���
�
�
���#��/
����
��3��

�

,��
!��������#��/
�#��������
���������4�����
������
���������/
��##��
��)�*��	�

9����4/�4�����
���
������/
��&
����!
������������#��������4�����/
�

������������/
�����������
�����/���#��������
��������3��#��/
���
#
��
��������1��

�������������
��
�������/
�����������4���
���/
�����������	�,����������4����

�
���
���
�������������
���/�����/����
��
7���
�������/
��������4�����
��
7���
����

��������
����/
���
��������#��/
��������	�����������3��#��/
���������
7���
��

�������	��
�������6��/
���������4�����
��4���
����
��/
��������	�����!������

	����
�3��#��/
���������
������
7���
��������	��
�������6��/
���/
���������4����

�
��4���
������/������	
3��

�

�

�/
���
#
��
���������4�����
��
7���
���D�

�

�� =����
����
���4��/��/
����
���##��
��4�*��	�	�����������
�������	
��!
��

�/
��
!
���
���#��/
��
��	��#��/
�#��������4�*L�����������
�#�����

�
��	��L�
������#���/
����4�*�6�4/��/�������
�������
�/��������
��#��������L�

�
�/������
�
����#������
�
���������������������4�*6����
���
��������

�����������
����
�����6�4/��/���
�#��������
��������/�
!���
�4��/����/
�

���	
���

�� )�*�4��/��/
�����������
!
����������
�	�	
�
������
�����

�� ��!��
����4��	��
��3�#�������
�
�������������	��
��������������������4��/�

�������	��
������������������

�� ,��
����������������
��

���	������
!
�������*
�����/
����
�������
7���
��

�� ��#����/
����
�������	
���������������
���/�����	/������������/
�

���
����
�����������������#�4�*�

�� ��!��
L�������L����������/
����4�*A�C����
�#O����
�!��
��/
�#��������������

������������#��/
�4�*�������������������
��6�����
�
������

�� ,������4��/��/
�����������������/�#��/
�������������
�
�
������
�

�
!
��
����������
�
��

�

Page 521



"��
#���	
�$�..�
�

�
�
�����

�

�/
����������
��*
����	����
����
���
��#���/
����
�����
����#��4��������������

������
��!������
�4��/����/������
#���
D��

�

P� ����
�����������
#��������������
!
������
����������D��

P�  
�����
����
�
�!
����
����������D�

P� ,��
�������
&/��������
����������D��

P� ,��������
#
��
��������������4�����������D�

P� :������
��
����
��L���
���������#������!��D�

P� �������#���������	��
��������4

*��
	�����	D��

P� ,��4�*L�����
�����
�
�������������
����D�

�

�

�

�

�%�
����2*� ����3�������

�

:�����������4�����
�
�!
�������
���#�N.+>>����
!
����/
����
���������6�4/��/�

������
���/
��
7���
�
����������
�
&/����������
�����4��/����/�������
��3�

�

�/
��������&��������	
��#������
�
�
����#��/
���������#���/
���
#
��
����������

����������N2+6>>>6�4/��/�����������!
�#��/
�N(>>>��
����
���
��	�����	
�#

������#�

�/
�������1��#�������
��L�����
����/
����
���
&�

����/������	
���/
���/
���������/����

�
�4/�����
�������
�#������!
���
��3�

�

�/
����4�*����	
�������������
�����#

�6��������������	
���6�
&�
��
�6����������


�	�	
�
��6���#��6��������	��
����������������!�������6����
�����6�#���������6�

�����������������6���������6����
���
�������6������������6����5��������������6�

�
�/��������������	���!��
�A��������	������������
�	��

���	���!��
C6���������
������

�����/
��������������
��4��/��/
���*��	���������������#��/
����4�*�6�
&������	�

�,�3�

�

Page 522



"��
#���	
�$�.%�
�

��/�����

,����	
�
����#������
����4�����
��	�

��4��/��/
������������4�����
���
���

�
�#�����
��
���
�����
���
��4��/����/
�������������4��/��/��������
��!
����
��

���/��
�����	��������	��
�������������/
�����
����#��/
�
����
����
��3�

�/
�����
��������	
�
����#���/
����
����/�����
����#��4�D�5�

�

�� :���������
���������	���	��/
��������3�.>M�

�

�� �
��������
���#��4��	�	������	�#��������	��
�������3�%>M�

�

�� �/��������
�������������������/
�#�������������
���#��/
����
��6�4/��/����


!��
��
���������
����������L���/�	���/�3�?>M�

�

�� :���/�����
������/
�����
��#��������������L����
����#��/
����4�*L������

�#�
���/
�K�����/�
!
��13�(>M�

�

:���/
������
�#��/������
��6��/
�
�����
������	
���/�����
���
�������	���
3�

<4
!
�6����������
����##
��������������
������������������
������
�
�3�

�

�

*���������

�

�/
����
���4�����
���*
��#�4����������������##��
��)�*��	�9���6�4/��/�������
��

#��/
��&
����!
���������6��������������##��
��6��������������!���3��/
�������1��

�������,����##��
��4�����
��/
����
����
�������4�����
�������
��4��/����
���

����	
�
�������/
�������1�����

���������
������
�����
��� 
��!
����
��3��/
�

��������/�����
�������/
����
���=
��������/
��##��
��)�*��	�9�����
	������3�

�

�/
��##��
��4�*��	�9����4�����
���!�!
�����!
��

��	��/
��
!
���
�������

�
��!
���#��/
���������3��/
��&
����!
����������#�������������
��4��������!
�

�/
����
����
��	�������/
�#��������
���
��	�3�

�

Page 523



"��
#���	
�$�.(�
�

��	�����������������

�/
������������
7���
�����������4��/���������##��
��6���
��
���
��
��������/
��

*
�����*
/��
��������	��/
����
����
��	�����	
��#��/����������������4/��/�

�/����������
����������
&/�������#��/
����4�*���
��	�3��/
��������
&/�������#��/
�

���
����
��	��4����#��������#��/
���������������
��6��/���
&/����������#��

��#�������������	��/
�����
��������!����������/
�
&/�������4�����
�����
�

��!��
����!�
�5��

�,������
������
����

�

4�����/�����*�����������

�/
�4�*��/�����
�#���/�	/�7������6���������������������
���6�������������
����#�

�/
����
�����������
�/��	����
�������������#�����
3��/
�4�*��/������!�!
���

���������
!
��#������
����
��/��	/���������#
3����������
�������������������!
�����

/�!
�������������������������������/��/
����
����
�����4��
��!�������3����������
�

�
��	�
�6�����#�����
�������������
������	�����������
����
�����6����
��
������

�
�/��7�
��4/
�
!
��������
�����������4��/�"�����/��������������8�
7��!��
���

4/
�
����������
3��/
����
�����������
�/��	�
����!�!
������/
������������#��/
�

���4�*��������
�����!
������/
�#��������
���
��	��#���/
����4�*3�

�

5������6������/�

�/
���������������*
������������/
���/�������#
��������
�������4/
���
!
����	�

�/
��
��	��#���/
����4�*3��/����/��������
���<
���/�������#
�����/������	��/
�

����������L��������������/��
����������/��	/��/
�
����
���#
�#��/
���������3�

�/
���/�����
��4��
��/����/
�4�*�4�����
����
��������
���������
�����
����������
�3�

�/
�4�*��/�����/
�
#�
��
����
�#���5/�J���������
������������������

���
�
�������������/��	/��/
��/��	/#��
�3�

�

����
�����

�������=�����������������
��������!���
�#�+��������������4�����

�����
���!��
��

����/
�������3�

�

����
����

�/
��������4������!��
��
����������������������
7�
��3�

�

�

Page 524



"��
#���	
�$�.?�
�

7�������������	����/���%��1�

:�����������#��/��������
6�4/
�
�����������
���������������6��/
�#�������������������#�

����������
�4�����
��
!�
4
���/��	/��/
���
�#���
���������	��	
���
�����/���� �����

"������

����������
��������	
�
��3�)/���������������������L:��������
���6�������

���������
���/����/
�����
��#�����������
�4������/�
!
�����������#�+.��	�������/
�

 �"�:�����
����
����
&�����/�
!
����������
�������*����
�#�+.�����
3�

:����������������������/������&�������
���������������/
���
�
��
�#��
���

���	
�
���6����*����������/
������!
����
!
����4���������
������
�
�3��/
�

��������
�
�!
���/
���	/�����
!�
4�����������
1�����������
#�
��4�����	��/���

�������3�,���#����������
#
�
��
������/
��
��
�����
���4�����
�����
��
���#��/
�

������6������
��/���������
��4��/�4/���/
��������4��������
��/
��������3�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

�

Page 525



"��
#���	
�$�.+�
�

�����������
�
�/
��������
������
�
��6����
�����������������
�!�
4��4�����
����
��
������/
�
�##��
��)�*��	�9�����������
�����#��4�D�
�
"8 9���5��,��L:,�=�
�
8� ����,� ��9��<��"���:L�,"�=��Q���� �=�����������R8���������
A?+MC�
�
,����������,����������R8,=��Q�A?+MC�
�
�,�,9��9����;�A.>MC�
�

,C�,��
���
�������
���� "C�,��
���
���R�
����� �C��M����
�
�!������
��
��
7�
�����
�

"��	
�� .3���#���������/����/
����
���
4�����
��
��!
�
��4��/������	
��
�

�,��L:,�=�

8��
��������	�#��/
�
���
#L������������
��!
��
�����
7���
�
����

%3��&�
�����4/��/��/
��������
/����
����
�����/
����
�����
�/
�	������
�������
������/���
���
#�

�
(3��
�/����������#���������
!��������������
	��5����
!
���
�����
��!
���/
����4�*6����
��
���/�����������#
����6�4/��/�
�
�������
����
��
!
��
��
���4�����
��
�/������������
#�����������!����
����
��!
����
���
�����4��/������	
��
��������	��
���������	��/������
���!���
�#����
�3�

�

�
%+M�
�
�
�
%>M�

,���������������
�����
R�������

?3�,�����1���������
�L�
�/��
�
+3��/
�7�������#��/
���*��	6�
���
��
����	
!���������4�
�����
����
�#��/
�4�*�

�

%+M�
�
%>M�
�
�

����	��	����*� 03��/
���������������������
���������*��

�

+M�

������������ -3�9������������������
��
�
��������*�����
�

+M�

�

Page 526



"��
#���	
�$�.0�
�

����
����������
���������
����������
�$�
�
�
�/
������	����
�#���/
�����������#������
��
�����.+3>>����"��
�
5��������%�
�����	��������������	��
���
������$�
�
��
��#���/
��������	
����
���������,������������
�/
� ��
����#��
����
��
�������	
�������������
�/
�9����/����
�������	
��"%�(R@�
�
��	�������������%�
���	/�!���������	��
���
������$�
�
��
��#���/
��������	
����
���������,������������
�/
� ��
����#��
����
��
�������	
�������������
���"&�->>�
�������	
��".�>@<�
�
�/
��
�����
�!
��
L����*�	
�������
����/
�4����S�/
��������	
����
���������,���
��������H3��#�������
�����/
����
������
��!
����
�!��
���
���
����
��
�
����
�
�/����/
������
�#������������������*�	��	������
�����/
���!
�4���3�
�
�/
������	����
��������
�����������
��/4�����/
��
�����
�!
��
3��
��
���
�������
���#�
���/
����
��������
��/4��4�����
��
�
��
�������
����
�����/
�
������6����
�����
���
!��
��
�#������	�A���#�������������������������
�
���	��/
�
�����	����
C�����!������
3�
�
�
��
�����������
��������
�����#�&���
5����3�
�
�
:����
���#�������������/�����������6���
��
�������D�
�
�����������#�8���	�����
��������
�
�
�
�
�/�
�>.%%(�?+-%-(�
����
�>-2-2.>>B%+�
�
�����D������
3����*T�������	
3	!3�*�
�
���
�1��
������,��
�9����.���%�
/�6���%�
�������*����
�
�
�
�/�
�>.%%(�?+-%-.�
����
�>-2>>�?>%.2%�
�����D�,���
43��
���T�������	
3	!3�*�
�
�

Page 527



�

����������	�
������
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

���������	�
�
������
��
����

�

Page 528



��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
	
�
�




�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��

��
	�



�

��
�

�
�


�

�
��

�


�
�



�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

� �
�

��
 �

!
"�

�
#

#
��

$
�
%�

&
'
�
��

�
�
�

(
�

)
��

*
��

'
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

 
��


!

�
�"

�
�

#
�
�
��
$
%&
'
%�
�

�
��
�&
(
%&
$
%�
�

�
&
&
�

)
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
*
	
�


!
�
�
�+
�
 
��
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
��

�
	
	
�





�
�
�!
�
,
�

#
�
�
�&
$
%&
$
%�
�

#
�
�
�&
-
%�
&
%�
�

'
&
�

(
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
 


!

�
�!
�
,

�
�


�&
'
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


�&
'
%�
&
%�
�

&
�

-
�
�
�
��
 
�
��
�
.�
�
�

.

��


!
��
�
��
�
/


�
�
�
�
�
�+
�
 
��
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
��

�
	
	
�





�
�"

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
%&
-
%�
�

0


!
��
&
%&
'
%�
�

&
�

'
�
�
*
	
��
�
��
�
��
.�
/


�
�
�
�
�
�+
�
 
��
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
��

�
	
	
�





�
�
�!
�
,
�

�
�
�
��
�
%&
'
%�
�

#
�
�
�&
(
%�
&
%�
�

&
�

$
+
�
 
��
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
��

�
	
	
�




��
�
�
��
 
�
��
�1
�
�
*
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
2
��
�
�
��
 
�
�3

�
�!
�
,

�
�


�&
-
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


�&
-
%�
&
%�
�

&
�

�
&

�
�

�
�"

+�
"�



�

,
,

+�
�
+�

)
+)

-
&
'
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�

��
�
��

*
��

�
�

�
�
�&

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
�

/


�


�
��
�
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
*
�

��
�
��
�

(
�"

�
�

0


!
��
�
%&
$
%�
�

�
�


��
�
%�
&
%�
�

�
&
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
���
�
�
�
��
�

�
�"

�
�

0


!
��
�
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


��
$
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
�

��
�
�


��
�
�
�
�
�.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�!


 


��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�

�
�	

�
�
�

0


!
��
&
%�
�
%�
�

�
�


��
)
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
)

�


�
!
���



�.
�
��
�

�


��
�
�
.�
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
�
*
	
��
�
��
�
�

&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


��
)
%&
�
%�
�

�
�


��
)
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
(

4
..
��


��
�
�
�


�
�
	


�
�
�
.�
�
�
*
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�!
�
�
�


�"

�
�
�5
�
�
��
,
��
��


��
�

�
�"

�
�

0


!
��
(
%&
�
%�
�

�
�


��
'
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
-

�
�
��
�
�
�

�


�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�!
�
,

0


!
��
$
%&
�
%�
�

0


!
��
$
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
'

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�#

�


��
�
��

�
�"

�
�

�
�
�
��
&
%&
�
%�
�

0


!
�&
�
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
$

�
�
�!
�
�
�/



�
�
��
�
�
�
�

'
�"

�
�

�
�
�
�&
�
%&
�
%�
�

0


!
��
'
%&
)
%�
�

&
�

�
&

�
�
*
���
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

(
�"

�
�

�
�
�
��
$
%&
)
%�
�

0


!
�&
$
%&
-
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
��
�
���


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
"
�
�
��


2
�
��
�


� 
��


�

�
�"

�
�

�
�
�
��
&
%&
-
%�
�

0


!
��
�
%&
-
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�/



�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

!
�

�
�"

�
�
�
�
��
�
%&
-
%�
�

0


!
��
&
%&
-
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
"
�
�!
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�2
�


!
��
�
!
��


�
�

!

�
�"

�
�

0


!
�&
'
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


��
�
%�
&
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
)

	,
#

%�
,

�
)

"�
"+

�
)

��
.

�
�
�

�
*
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�

�&
&
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
(

�


�
��


!
��



�
�2
�

(
�"

�
�

0


!
��
�
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


�&
�
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
-

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
.�
�
��
�
�
��
2
��
�
�
���
�
�
�
�
�!
�
�
�
	


�
�
�
�
�

�
�"

�
�

0


!
�&
�
%�
�
%�
�

�
�


��
(
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
'

�
�
2


��
��
�
,
	


�
�
�
��
�
��


&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


��
(
%�
�
%�
�

�
�


��
(
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
$

�
��
�
�
��
2
��
�
�
���
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�"

�
�

0


!
��
-
%�
�
%�
�

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

&
�

�
&

�
�
2


��
��
�
,
	


�
�
�
��
�
��


&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

&
�

�
�

�
�
*
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
.�
�
�
"
�
��

�
�	

�
�
�

0


!
�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

�
�


��
�
%&
(
%�
)

&
�

�
�

�
�
2


��
��
�
,
	


�
�
�
��
�
��
�
1)
&
�
��
�
	
�
�

�
�
�
��
.�
.�
*
��
�
�
�
�
�
3

&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


��
�
%&
(
%�
)

�
�


��
�
%&
(
%�
)

&
�

�
�

��
�
�
���

�
�
�
��
.�
�
�
"
�
��

�
�"

�
�

0


!
��
�
%&
(
%�
)

�
�


�&
-
%&
-
%�
)

&
�

�
�

6
�
 


���
�
2
��
.�
�
�
"
�
��

�
�!
�
,

�
�


��
�
%&
-
%�
)

�
�


��
�
%&
-
%�
)

&
�

�
)

�
��
�
��
�
�
2


��
�
,
	


�
�
�
��
�
��


&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


��
�
%&
-
%�
)

�
�


��
�
%&
-
%�
)

&
�

�
(

�
-

/
)

$
�
+%
+)

-
��

$
�
)

"�
0

�
$
�
%�

#
,

�
)

"
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
'

��
 
�


��

�
�


��
.�
�
�
	
*
��
!
2


�
�
��
�
 


���
�
�
��
�

�
�!


�
�
�
.�
�


��
�

�
�"

�
�

0


!
�&
$
%�
&
%�
�

�
�


�&
)
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
$

�
��
�
�
2


�"

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��


��
�
!
�!


 


��
�
�

 


�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�"

�
�

�
�


��
�
%&
(
%�
�

#
�
�
�&
�
%&
-
%�
�

&
�

�
&

+
�
�
*
���
�
�*
�
!
2


�
�

5
�
��


!
%�
 
�
���

*
�

�.
�
��


 


�


�
�	

�
�
�

�
�


�&
�
%&
-
%�
�

#
�
�
��
(
%&
'
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
�
�
��


��
�
,
��
!
!
�
��
�
�
��
*
�
!
2


�
�

5
�
��


!

�
�	

�
�
�

�
�


��
-
%&
'
%�
�

#
�
�
��
'
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
��
�
���


��
��
�
�
�


!
��
�
 


���
�
2
�

 


�
�
�
�
�
 
�
,

�
�	

�
�
�

�
�


��
$
%�
�
%�
�

#
�
�
��
-
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
�

�
�

�


�
�
�
��
�
�
�


!
��
�
 


���
�
2
��
�
�
 
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
7
�
�
�!
�.
�
��
�
�
�
��
 
�
�

&
�!
�
,
�

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

&
�

�
�

�
)

1
�
2

�
��

�
%�

�
�
�
��

��
-

��
,

,
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�

�
��

�
��

�
��

�
�

�
�
��

&
��

�
��

�
�
�

�
(

��
�
��
�
�
�


!
�
�
�.
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�"

�
0


!
��
(
%&
�
%�
�

�
�


�&
�
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
-

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�


�
�

�
�"

�
�
�
�
�&
�
%&
�
%�
�

0


!
�&
$
%&
�
%�
�

&
�

�
'

�
��
�
�
�


!
��
�
��
�
�
"
�
�!

�
�"

�
�
�


��
�
%&
(
%�
�

#
�
�
��
-
%&
(
%�
�

&
�

�
$

�
��
�
�
��
2
��
�
�
���
�
�
�
�
��
�
*
	
�


!

�
�"

�
0


!
��
-
%�
�
%�
�

�
�


��
�
%�
�
%�
�

&
�

)
&

�
��
�
�
��
2
��
�
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
*
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
	


�
�



�
�"

�
0


!
�&
�
%&
�
%�
)

�
�


��
&
%&
�
%�
)

&
�

)
�

�
�
"
�
��
��
�
�
�
���

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
	


�
�


��
�
!
��
�
 


���
�
2
�!
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
�


!

�
�"

�
0


!
��
-
%&
)
%�
)

�
�


�&
�
%&
(
%�
)

&
�

�
�

�
� '

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
� �

�

�
�

�
� �

� �
�

�
�

�
� �

�

�
�

�
� �

� �
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

#
8

8
�

�
4

�
�

8
�

#
�

#
8

8
�

�
4

�
�

8
�

#
�

#
8

8
�

�
&
�
�

�
&
�
)

�
�
�
�

�
��
2
�

�
�

7
�
�


���



#
��

�
�
�



7
�
�


���


�#

��

�
�
�



�
�
	
	
�
�,

/
�
��

!
�6
�
��
�
�
�

/
�
��

!
�6
�
�#

��

�
�
�



7
�
�


���


��
�
	
	
�
�,

/
�
��

!
�6
�
�7
�
�


���



/
�
��

!
�6
�
�7
�
�


���


�#

��

�
�
�



/
�
��

!
�6
�
��
��
2
�

�
�

�
�
��

7
�
�


���


��
�
��

+
9


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
�
	
	
�
�,

:
��
�
�
�7
,
��
�
	
	
�
�,

�


�
!
���



�
�

�
�

�
�

��
��

	�



�
��



�
(

3
�

	0
4

�
��

/
5

�
�

��
�

/
3

5
	


��
�

�
�


�

�
��

�


�
�



�

��
�


4

�
�

(
(

�
6

�
��

+�
)

��
��

7�
�

�
�
2


��
��
.�
�

�
�




�
�;
�4

�


�
��
�
�
�


�
��


� 
��



�
��
�

�
<
��
�
��


�=
�
��
�

�


��
�
"
�
��
��
��
�

�

�
�


<�
#
�
�
��
�
%&
$
%�
�

Page 529



Page 530

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Page No: 1 

 

Cambridge City Council 

 

Item 

 

To: Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste 
Services: Jean Swanson 

Report by: Jen Robertson – Waste Strategy Manager 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

ENVIRONMENT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

8TH OCTOBER 2013 

Wards affected: All Wards 

 

Joint Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) procurement process 

Key Decision 

 

1. Executive summary  

1.1 Cambridge City Council currently has a contract for the bulking, 
sorting and onward processing/sale of recyclable materials, collected 
from blue bins.  This contract expires at the end of November 2014. 

1.2 The Council needs to procure a new contract before the current expiry 
date and various options, included in the Joint MRF Common Paper 
attached at Appendix 3, have been analysed. 

1.3 Officers consider that a joint procurement with the relevant RECAP 
partners (see Background - Section 3) is likely to result in an overall 
net saving for the partners and represents the best overall option. 

1.4 Collaborative procurement is an important part of the Whole Systems 
Approach Programme agreed by the RECAP partners, which should 
provide gains for all partner authorities involved. 

1.5 Work has commenced on market testing and putting together an 
Invitation to Tender (ITT) with a view to contract award taking place in 
March 2014.  

 

2. Recommendations  

The Executive Councillor is recommended to: 

2.1 Approve the ‘RECAP Partnership Charter’, as attached at Appendix 1, 
including approval of the additional Schedule 2 Governance 
Agreement relating to the operation of the Joint MRF contract, 
commitment to participating in the joint contract and the inclusion of 
kerbside recyclate materials in the contract. 

Agenda Item 17

Page 531



Report Page No: 2 

2.2 Commit the Council to the appointment of a Contractor to deliver Joint 
MRF services for bulking, sorting and onward processing/sale of 
recyclable materials for all RECAP participating partners, unless all 
participating partners agree not to appoint. 

2.3 Agree delegation of authority to the Director of Environment, in 
consultation with the Executive Councillor for Environmental and 
Waste Services plus the Chair and Spokes of ESC, to approve the 
final Invitation to Tender (ITT) and to award the Contract for 
Cambridge City Council. 

2.4 Agree that Peterborough City Council (as lead authority for the joint 
procurement exercise) will nominate, in collaboration with and on 
behalf of the participating RECAP partners, a preferred supplier for 
the contract of providing the services of bulking, sorting and onward 
processing/sale of recyclable materials.  The contract would be 
awarded to the contractor who submits the Most Economically 
Advantageous Tender to the partners as a whole. 

2.5 Agree the approach to compliance with the Waste Framework 
Directive regarding source separation of recyclate, as agreed by the 
RECAP Board on 4th September 2013 and as attached at Appendix 2 

 

3 Background  

3.1 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership, known as 
RECAP, is a well established partnership bringing together the five 
district councils of Cambridgeshire, Peterborough City Council and 
Cambridgeshire County Council. The purpose of the Partnership is to 
improve the management of municipal waste across the area.  
Recently the focus has been on working more closely together in 
order to:-  

• Increase value for money.  Achieving sustained value for money, 
not at the expense of customer service and satisfaction.   

• Increase service improvement.  Improving services for local 
areas based on what local communities say and need. 

• Improve environmental performance.  Reducing the carbon 
impact of service delivery and waste management.  

• Level-up services.  Achieving consistently high quality services 
across the partnership area. 

3.2 This Joint MRF Procurement project is a key workstream identified as 
part of the Whole Systems Approach Programme agreed by RECAP 
in autumn 2012 and endorsed by Cambridgeshire Leaders and Chief 
Executives as a ‘flagship collaboration’. The programme seeks to 
develop an optimum waste management system across RECAP in 

Page 532



Report Page No: 3 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough through a collaborative approach 
that: 

• Reduces the overall expenditure to the public purse;  

• Increases the overall income to the public purse; whilst 

• Improving services for the customer, which would include levelling-
up services across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to achieve 
consistently high quality services across the partnership area; and 

• Improving environmental performance 

3.3 By working collaboratively and procuring jointly, it is assumed that 
maximising the collective offer (in terms of tonnage) to the market of 
recyclate materials across the RECAP Partnership, will help achieve 
best value.  The assumption is that maximising the amount of material 
available under the contract will increase the attractiveness to the 
market and drive competition, which in turn will drive costs down and 
income up and benefit the public purse and the participating 
partnership authorities.  This particular project does not include 
Cambridgeshire County Council as it does not have a requirement for 
this type of contract. 

3.4 The timescales for this procurement are very tight, with the ITT to be 
sent out by 24 November 2013 in order to meet the required award of 
contract scheduled for March 2014.  Implementation of services for 
each partner under the contract will be phased to coincide with the 
different expiry dates of partners’ existing contracts.  Cambridge City 
Council’s existing contract with Viridor expires at the end of November 
2014, although it includes an option to extend by 2 years (which will 
not be exercised).  Peterborough City Council’s current contract 
expires in June 2014. 

3.5 An officer Task Group has been set up with representatives from each 
partner authority.  This group reports to the Senior Officer Group who 
in turn report to the RECAP member Board.  Cambridge City Council’s 
representative on the Board is Executive Councillor Jean Swanson.  
There is also a link to Cambridgeshire Public Service Board through 
the Chief Executive of South Cambridgeshire DC, Jean Hunter who is 
the overall Programme Sponsor. 

3.6 It is essential that cross party support is gained for this Partnership 
procurement and the associated RECAP Partnership Charter, which 
will commit the authority to sending all its kerbside recyclate material 
through this jointly procured contract.  Withdrawing from the 
procurement, post tender bidding, would not only potentially negate 
the process, but also fundamentally prejudice the service continuity for 
the remaining Partners and risk irrevocably fracturing the Partnership. 

Page 533



Report Page No: 4 

3.7 A soft market testing exercise has been carried out to help inform the 
nature of the contract, the mix of materials (including likely impacts on 
values), the pricing mechanism and quality requirements. 

3.8 The Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP), a government 
funded advisory body, has also been consulted and involved in 
developing the best approach to the marketplace, including provision 
of industry intelligence and a project peer review. 

3.9 The MRF procurement does not require changes to services or 
collection systems. However, it may provide opportunities for some 
authorities to add additional materials to their existing collection 
arrangements.   

3.10 A separate Whole Systems Approach workstream, the Optimum 
Service Design, will consider possible changes to collection services.  
This workstream is probably the most appropriate vehicle to consider 
how the RECAP partners should address the requirements of the 
Waste Framework Directive (WFD) and the Waste (England and 
Wales) Regulations, which transpose it into UK law. A duty to collect 
specific waste streams separately comes into force in January 2015.  
The WFD/TEEP (Technically, Environmentally and Economically 
Practicable) paper (Appendix 2) sets out how RECAP intends to 
address and broadly comply with these requirements. The legal 
position (clarified by Judicial Review) is that collection of paper, metal, 
plastic and glass separately from one another is required only if it is 
both practicable and necessary.  The aim of the WFD is to achieve 
“High Quality Recycling”, the benchmark for which is that resulting 
from separately collected single waste streams. The MRF 
procurement will focus on achieving the required quality with existing 
collection methods, thereby demonstrating that separate collection is 
not ‘necessary’.  The OSD will address considerations of 
‘practicability’. This approach has been agreed by the WSA 
Programme Board (1st August 2013) and by the RECAP Board (4th 
September 2013) 

3.11 A pricing mechanism will be developed which seeks to minimise 
processing cost, maximise materials income and help manage risk.  
The agreed model will seek to achieve a balance between cost 
certainty and the potential to take advantage of market volatility in 
order to maximise income. 

 

4. Implications  

(a) Financial Implications 

One of the objectives of the project and reasons for the joint procurement is 
to maximise the tonnage to the market, which should provide a more 

Page 534



Report Page No: 5 

attractive tender to the market and result in increased competition and 
better value. 

It is intended that the contract pricing mechanism will help manage the 
financial risks of market volatility thereby reducing risk to the authority, 
whilst still allowing the authority to benefit from market upturns in material 
value. 

 

(b) Staffing Implications   (if not covered in Consultations Section) 

There are no staffing implications for Cambridge City Council. 

 

(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out, but if one is 
required it will be carried out as part of the tendering process. 

 

(d) Environmental Implications 

The blue bin service provides residents with an easy way to separate 
material for recycling.  This contract provides for the sorting of this material 
so that it can be made into new products.  It avoids the use of landfill and 
uses existing resources which has a high positive impact on the 
environment. 

 

(e) Procurement 

The procurement will be subject to the Public Procurement Regulations 
2006 and thus falls under the ambit of the ‘OJEU/European Procurement’ 
regime.  An Open (one stage) tender process will be used.  Peterborough 
City Council will act as lead authority for the procurement exercise on behalf 
of all participating partners and will ensure the process is OJEU compliant.  
The contract will be awarded to the Most Economically Advantageous 
Tender to the partners as a whole.  The approach being used is fully in 
keeping with the City Council’s own Contract Procedure Rules.  

 

(f) Consultation and communication 

Consultation with potential bidders has been carried out in the form of a Soft 
Market Testing Exercise.  The results of this will be used to inform the ITT. 

There will be communication with residents in the form of press releases 
and an article in Cambridge Matters once the contract has been let. 

 

(g) Community Safety 

Page 535



Report Page No: 6 

There are no Community Safety issues. 

 

5. Background papers  

This background paper was used in the preparation of this report and is also 
attached at Appendix 3:  

Joint Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) Procurement Common Paper for 
RECAP Partners Decision-Making Processes - September 2013 

 

6. Appendices  

Appendix 1 – RECAP Partnership Charter and Schedule 2 Joint MRF 
Procurement Governance Agreement 

Appendix 2 - Compliance with the Waste Framework Directive and Waste 
Regulations 2011- Recyclate Materials Streams Collections (TEEP) 

Appendix 3 - Joint Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) Procurement 
Common Paper for RECAP Partners Decision-Making Processes - 
September 2013 

 

7. Inspection of papers  

 

To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 

 

Author’s Name: Jen Robertson  

Author’s Phone Number:  458225 

Author’s Email:  Jen.robertson@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 536



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

1

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 

 RECAP ‘Advanced Partnership Working’ Charter 
 

Version: 1.2  

Date: October 2013 

Circulation: 

Endorsed by Date 

Cambridge City Council  tbc 

Cambridgeshire County Council  tbc 

East Cambridgeshire District Council   tbc 

Fenland District Council  tbc 

Huntingdonshire District Council tbc 

Peterborough City Council tbc 

South Cambridgeshire District Council tbc 

 

          

 

Purpose 

This Partnership Charter was developed by the RECAP Board initially in October 2011 and 
encapsulates the RECAP approach to advanced partnership working.  The Board had 
directed that the Partnership be more ambitious in its collaborative working and bolder in its 
decision-making, with the expectation of tangible delivery with pace and purpose.  
Developments had to respect individual Council positions and differences - avoiding an ‘all 
or nothing’ approach in the progression of opportunities. Subsequently, Schedules have 
been added to capture the collaborations taking place across the advance partnership 
Whole Systems Approach work streams and within the spirit and principles of the Charter 

 

RECAP Partners     RECAP Board Members 

Cambridge City Council    Cllr Jean Swanson 

Cambridgeshire County Council   Cllr Matthew Shuter  

East Cambridgeshire District Council    Cllr Kevin Ellis (Chair) 

Fenland District Council   Cllr Pete Murphy 

Huntingdonshire District Council Cllr Darren Tysoe 

Peterborough City Council Cllr Gavin Elsey 

South Cambridgeshire District Council Cllr Mick Martin 

 

Page 537



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

2

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 

 

Vision 

In October 2011 RECAP agreed the following outline vision for advanced partnership 
working, now with the addition of Peterborough City Council: 

‘Working ever closer together to deliver the best most cost effective waste services 
for the benefit of all local communities in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough’. 

 

Objectives 

Advanced Partnership Working in RECAP will seek to deliver: 

• Increased best value for money.  Achieving sustained value for money, not at the 
expense of customer service and satisfaction.   

• Increased service improvement.  Improving services for local areas based on what 
local communities say and need. 

• Improved environmental performance.  Reducing the carbon impact of service 
delivery and waste management.  

• Leveling-up of services.  Achieving consistently high quality services across the 
partnership area.      

 

Guiding Principles 

Advanced Partnership Working guiding principles, underpinning the achievement of the 
Vision and Objectives are: 

• Strong leadership and clear governance 

• Commitment to the partnership  

• Good communications and continuous dialogue 

• Build trust through openness, honesty and transparency  

• Learn from each other 

• Treat each other as equals with respect  

• Willingness to compromise 

• Seek a benefit to all partners to their mutual advantage 

• Deal with issues promptly and effectively 

• Deliver through clear and agreed project management methodology 

• Contribute to joint ventures in a fair and equitable way   

• Make decisions at the appropriate level 

Schedule 1 

Page 538



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

3

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

WHOLE SYSTEMS APPROACH 

  

Scope of Activities 

Advanced partnership working activities will extend to all waste related service delivery 
across the disposal and collection RECAP partners. 

 

Governance 

The following governance arrangements have been set up to oversee the RECAP advanced 
partnership working Whole Systems Approach development: 

 

Organogram 
 

 

 
Roles and responsibilities 
 
Programme Sponsor 

- Promotes visibility of work. 
- Ensures clear communication and engagement with the Cambridgeshire Public Service 

Board. 
- Provides briefings and ensures engagement with the Leaders’ & Chief Executives’ meeting. 
- Oversees project deliverables. 

 
Programme Board 

- Oversees the development of a partnership work programme on behalf of their respective 
authorities. 

- Approves and commissions all work on behalf of their respective authorities in accordance 
with internal decision-making processes. 

- Sets all tolerances e.g. resources and timescales. 

- Responsible for relevant communications to stakeholders as per communications plan. 

RECAP Board - Members Group 
(Programme Board) 
 

Joint Waste Officer Group (JWOG) - 
Senior Officer Group 
(Project Board) 

Project Teams 
(As required, including JWOG Sponsor) 

Networking Groups 

Jean Hunter  
Programme Sponsor - Cambridgeshire 
Public Service Board  

Leaders & Chief Executives Group 
 

Page 539



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

4

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

- All papers for meetings of the Board will be made accessible to the public with an annual 
meeting of the Board to be held in public. 

 
Project Board 

- Facilitates decision-making by the Programme Board and respective authorities on the 
development of a partnership work programme. 

- Accountable to the Programme Board for the delivery of the advanced partnership working 
programme. 

- Appoints and directs resource to deliver work programme, providing a sponsor for each 
project from the Project Board to sit on the Project Team. 

- Provides direction and Mentorship to Networking Groups 
 
Project Teams 

- Appointed as required Project Board as task and finish groups with roles and skills required 
by the project. 

- Delivers project in accordance with direction from the Project Board.  
- Includes an appointed Sponsor from the Project Board.   

 

Ends 

Page 540



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

5

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 

SCHEDULE 2 

Joint MRF Procurement 

for  the operation of a joint contract for bulking, sorting and onward processing/sale of 
recyclable materials. 

 

GOVERNANCE AGREEMENT 

October 2013 

 

Applicability: To all RECAP partners, with the exception of Cambridgeshire County Council 

Term: Effective from October 2013  

Objective: To generate maximum value from recyclate which is dependent on all collected 
recyclate materials being presented collectively by the participating Partners working 
collaboratively together and in compliance with the detailed terms of the related Contract(s).  

 
Governance: 
 
RECAP acts collaboratively as the collective governance mechanism and point of contact 
for procurement and contract management purposes on behalf of its constituent contract 
Partners as set out in the agreed PID of 7 June 2013.  
 
Organogram – to be inserted once agreed by JWOG (to detail strategic and operational 
contract management and monitoring arrangements)   
 
Basis of Collaboration 
 
The Partners declare that :-  
 

(a) they are independent Contracting Authorities;  
(b) they have, as they each deemed necessary obtained independent legal advice; 

prior to entry into the consortium; 
(c) they enter into the Joint MRF Collaboration at their own risk. 

 
Principles of Collaboration 
 
The Partners agree to operate the contract in accordance with the ‘Objectives’ and the 
‘Guiding Principles’ of the RECAP Charter in their collaboration with each other. 
 
In addition:  

 
1. The Partners hereby commit to exclusively utilising the applicable contract(s) (for the 

duration, excluding any agreement to extend) for the bulking, processing and sale of 
their recyclable materials, either commingled or source separated and no Partner will 
retain any of these materials in pursuit of alternative selling opportunities. 

 

Page 541



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

6

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 
2. Any Partner leaving the contract agrees to be liable for any costs arising directly from 

their early termination as incurred by the Partners remaining in the consortium and any 
costs incurred related to the management of such a change (for clarity, such costs 
including reductions in income per tonne from the sale of materials that stem directly 
from the decision to leave until the end of fixed contract period)  

 
Relationship Management:  
 
The Partners agree to act collaboratively as RECAP and not independently in initiating any 
action against the Contractor employed under the terms of the Joint MRF Contract. 
 
The Partners agree that once the MRF Consortium contract has been awarded, all partners 
are committed to participation in and to the detailed terms of that Contract, for the duration 
of the Contract (excluding any agreement to extend), thereby ensuring that all savings and 
efficiencies identified and projected prior to the start of the collaborative contract are 
achieved.  
 
Partners have the right to opt out or terminate their involvement in the Contract if a 
Contractor is in serious or material breach as defined within the termination provisions of the 
Contract. 
 
Contract Management: 
 
Strategic contract management duties will be overseen by JWOG on behalf of all Partners 
to simplify the relationship with the Contractor.  
 
JWOG will designate ‘Point of Contact’ officers from within the RECAP partner authorities 
resources to assist in any specialist areas required to manage the contract for the collective 
benefit of all Partners (detail to be captured by organogram evolving from ITT). 
 
Partner authorities will manage day to day service and operational issues directly with the 
contractor, however, recurring issues across the partners should be highlighted to JWOG 
for direction and resolution. 
 

Dispute Resolution 
 
In the case of a disagreement between Partners and/or the Contractor engaged in the Joint 
MRF contract, reasonable endeavours will be made by JWOG to settle the disagreement 
swiftly, in line with the detailed provisions of Contract and overall spirit of the Charter.  
 
Status: 
 
Nothing in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be deemed to, establish any Partnership 
or joint venture among the Partners, constitute any Partner as the agent of the other 
Partners, nor authorise any of the Partners singularly to make or enter into any 
commitments for or on behalf of the other Partners. 
 
 

Page 542



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

7

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

Associated Documents: 
 
Overall arrangements for the joint MRF procurement and contract operation are as set out 
in: 

- PID dated 7 June 2013 
- ITT dated  25 November 2013 
- Contract(s) dated …tbc… 

 
The approach to Waste Framework Directive compliance and the issue of TEEP are as set 
out in the agreed 4 September 2013 RECAP Board paper. 
 

Ends 

Page 543



Page 544

This page is intentionally left blank



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

1

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

Compliance with the Waste Framework Directive and Waste Regulations 2011- Recyclate 
Materials Streams Collections (TEEP) 
Whole Systems Approach (WSA) Programme Board 
1 August 2013 
 

Purpose: 
 

1. To agree a common RECAP approach to the WFD/ Waste Regulations requirements 
relating to collection of recyclate materials streams from 2015, so as to inform the 
progress of the Optimum Service Design (OSD) and Joint MRF Procurement 
workstreams of the WSA programme. 

 
Issue: 

 
2. As the RECAP WSA is currently considering both new MRF contract provision and also 

OSD options that will span across the effective 2015 date, there is a need to consider how 
the WFD & Waste Regulations impact and influence these work streams. 

 
3. WSAPB has previously advised (26 June) that the MRF procurement is not necessarily 

expected to change service design or collection systems, but rather intended to maximise 
existing volumes/materials with more into existing bins if operationally and financially 
practicable and partners ’levelling up’ recyclate type. It is understood that it is the options for 
OSD that will fully consider the implications of operational changes to collections services 
and thereby, potentially offers the more holistic work stream through which to properly 
consider the Directive and Regulation requirements. 

 
4. Consequently, the issue for WSAPB to resolve is to determine: 

 

• how to best consider compliance with the WFD/Waste Regulation requirements 

• determine how to assess and balance the considerations under TEEP, and 

• agree why this is the common adopted approach of RECAP.  
 

Summary: 
 

5. From 1st January 2015 every waste collection authority must, when making arrangements 
for the collection of waste paper, metal, plastic or glass, ensure that those arrangements are 
by way of separate collection, wherever separate collection:  

 
(a) is necessary to ensure that waste undergoes recovery operations... and to facilitate 

or improve recovery; and  
(b) is technically, environmentally and economically practicable (TEEP) 

 
6. There is no statutory guidance to authorities (or to the Environment Agency which will 

enforce these duties) on assessing these obligations and what the requirement to collect 
separately particularly means. A recent Judicial Review seems to support comingled 
collections (subject to the above considerations) but identified glass as a material for 
particular thought. DEFRA advise that it is planning to consult on guidance on "TEEP" in the 
autumn and that in the interim, Authorities will need to take their own legal advice as 
appropriate on the applicability of those duties, and their effect on contracts entered into 
before, and continuing after, that date (1 Jan 2015). 

 

7. As part of assessing how these legal duties apply to them, it will be for local authorities to 
weigh up the evidence of what is necessary and practicable. The High Court ruling 
against a challenge to the Regulations (effectively around whether comingled recyclate 

Page 545



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

2

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

collections were permissible) made it clear that whether separate collection is technically, 
environmentally and economically practicable depends upon a balancing exercise that is 
both sophisticated and context-specific.  

 
Context: 

 

8. The Waste (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 as amended by the Waste (England 
and Wales) (Amendment) Regulations 2012 on the separate collection of recycling, 
transpose the revised Waste Framework Directive 2008/98/EC and came into force on 1 

October 2012. 
 

9. Regulation 13 sets out duties for the separate collection of waste paper, plastic, metal 
and glass for recycling by 1 January 2015. This obligation is qualified, by “practicability” 
and “necessity” and the improvement of quality of recyclate for end use, i.e. separate 
collection is required if it is technically, environmentally and economically practicable 
(TEEP) and necessary to facilitate or improve recovery (meeting appropriate quality 
standards).  

 
10. WFD Article 3 defines "separate collection" as the collection where a waste stream is 

kept separately by type and nature so as to facilitate a specific treatment. 
 

11. WFD Article 11 says - Member States shall take measures to promote high quality 
recycling and, to this end, shall set up separate collections of waste where technically, 
environmentally and economically practicable and appropriate to meet the necessary 
quality standards for the relevant recycling sectors. 

 
12. European Commission guidance on the WFD seeks to define TEEP, stating: 

 

• “‘Technically practicable’ means that the separate collection may be implemented 
through a system which has been technically developed and proven to function in 
practice.   

• ‘”Environmentally practicable’ should be understood such that the added value of 
ecological benefits justify possible negative environmental effects of the separate 
collection (e.g. additional emissions from transport).   

• ‘”Economically practicable’ refers to a separate collection which does not cause 
excessive costs in comparison with the treatment of a non-separated waste stream, 
considering the added value of recovery and recycling and the principle of 
proportionality.” 

 
13. A Judicial Review launched by the Campaign for Real Recycling challenged the 

transposition into the Regulations of the requirements of the Directive on the separate 
collection of recycling and was dismissed 6 March 2013. Mr Justice Higginbottom’s ruling 
included the judgements that: 

 

• The phrase “technically, environmentally and economically practicable” is used in the 
Directive as a term of art, importing the principle of proportionality and demanding a 
sophisticated context-driven exercise of judgment, balancing (amongst other things) 
the positive and negative environmental and economic effects of separate collection. 

 

• It was and is open to the United Kingdom to fulfil its obligations under the Directive by 
the system created by the 2011 Regulations, which allows a local authority to 

Page 546



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

3

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

determine within its area whether separate collection is technically, environmentally 
and economically practicable; enforced by the Environment Agency. 

 

• It appears to be common ground that, whilst glass is a well-recognised potential 
contaminant, metal and plastic can be separated at a stage later than kerb-side 
without any significant contamination or other relevant disadvantage. 

 
14. The key issues in the JR outcome and Higginbottom’s specific comments suggest the 

assumptions that: 
 

• Whilst kerbside sort could be considered the de minimus stance, comingled recyclate 
collection is permissible, provided Authorities have assessed (a sophisticated 
context-driven exercise of judgment) that kerbside sort is either: 

 
o not necessary to ensure appropriate quality of material for its intended end 

use (i.e. it is a matter for the MRF supplier technologies and onward materials 
markets) 

o not practicable in regard to TEEP (‘economically’ likely to be best practicable 
test given cost of separate/separated collections, especially in rural areas but 
may be different in urban parts) 

 

• Glass is identified as a particular material that can contaminate and thereby 
negatively impact upon the quality of other recyclate and consequently may 
specifically warrant separate sort and collection at kerbside (subject to quality 
requirements and TEEP as above). 

 
15. In a wider sense and in the absence of further case law or DEFRA guidance, it may also 

be appropriate to assume on the basis of logic and professional/industry deliberation to 
date, that the key focus of considerations are: 

 

• The general objective of improving the quality of recyclate materials for the 
appropriate end use, ideally a ‘closed loop’ system. 

• Whether it is therefore necessary to kerbside sort - dependant upon the MRF 
supplier technologies and known end markets 

• The practicalities of kerbside sort (TEEP) and the balance and sophistication of 
those judgements, including whether they apply homogenously across entire council 
areas i.e. rural -v-urban 

 
Consequently, the emerging key linkage is the flow between how materials are collected, 
how they are processed and for what intended re-use, requiring a mature relationship 
between collection authority and MRF supplier and the initial key test being that of 
necessity i.e. if it is proven not necessary to kerbside sort then the TEEP consideration 
need not apply. 

 
Considerations and Risks: 

 
16. The Regulations came into force 1 October 2012 so the legislative requirements are known 

and therefore a technical requirement for compliance exists. The effective date for separate 
collection of recyclate (paper, metal, plastic or glass) in compliance with the Regulations is 1 
January 2015. The contract deriving from the joint MRF procurement will span this period, as 
will any adopted OSD, so again, there is a technical requirement for compliance. Therefore, 
RECAP will need to show how it has considered and dealt with the obligations. 

Page 547



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

4

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 
17. In terms of risk of challenge, whether from the Environment Agency as enforcing authority or 

from any further Judicial Review, whilst there is of course a technical risk, the practical risk is 
less easy to quantify. As RECAP currently operates a long established comingled recyclate 
service, except for East Cambs that currently kerbside sorts but is moving to a system to 
match and converge with RECAP partners, there is potentially less risk of challenge than for 
those Authorities considering a move away from separate collections to comingled, perhaps 
as a result of austerity/efficiency measures. However, the fact that RECAP is letting a new 
MRF contract and also considering OSD options may heighten the risk of scrutiny of those 
new arrangements. Any such risks can be mitigated if RECAP is able to demonstrate how it 
has paid due regard to the legislative obligations. 

 
18. Glass being identified by Mr Justice Higginbottom as a specific recyclate material impacting 

on quality of recyclate, suggests particular attention needs to be given to the assessment of 
separate glass collections. The picture nationally is varied, with some authorities, such as 
Dorset already separating glass but also experiencing difficulties regarding Health & Safety 
of operatives and noise issues. More locally, Suffolk already collects glass separately, 
through bring banks and Household Recycling Centres, but has included comingled glass as 
one of its four mix options in its current MRF ITT. Industry experience also suggests that 
separate glass collections, where the material is not mixed with either other recyclate or 
residual waste (thereby shielded) has high attrition rates on freighter assets. Interestingly, 
the CIWM recently highlighted a report by consultancy WYG Group into national kerbside 
recycling performance for 2011/12 that demonstrates the top recycling Authorities have fully 
comingled services, including glass, whilst the worst performers are separated kerbside sort 
systems. 

 
19. Given that RECAP, as of September, will all operate comingled recyclate collections, 

including glass, there also needs to be consideration as to how the public may react to 
changes in collection systems and what actions the public are expected to undertake, 
particularly if multiple changes are sought. Indeed, in terms of actual practicality, there is 
some question whether any specific material (such as glass) could ever be successfully 
removed from an existing waste stream in totality, even though alternately capturing the 
majority may be a sufficient and worthwhile objective. Additionally, consideration of kerbside 
sort implications and particularly the separation of any one key material (certainly a weighty 
material such as glass), potentially impacts across the other waste collection streams, 
particularly residual and fleet management/asset regimes - a matter better considered 
holistically by the OSD deliberations rather than MRF procurement. 

 
20. It would seem simpler to allow the MRF joint procurement arrangements to progress largely 

on the basis of status quo systems, with any major changes in either material type, sorting 
requirements or receptacles left for a single holistic change resulting from OSD - which could 
then be communicated, implemented and monitored with more consistency and clarity 
across the whole partnership. It may also have less potential political impact than multiple 
sequential changes if system change was driven by both MRF and OSD outcomes. The 
exception would be unless the MRF soft market test identifies any recyclate basket mix 
issues that prompt value realignment of any material(s) i.e. significant value income 
offsetting collection cost if a material(s) was separated from the mix.  

 
21. Should this be the preferred approach, of course the MRF procurement will need to make 

proper reference to this process. In that regard, the ITT and any contract will need to 
articulate, recognise and make provision for any implications of OSD upon how materials 
might be presented in the future, including importantly, the ability to renegotiate materials 
basket values at that future time. It is not untypical for contracts to have provision for future 
service change scenarios.  

Page 548



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

5

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 
22. A further MRF consideration is of course remembering the fundamental intent of the 

objectives, to ensure appropriate quality recyclate. It is the ‘necessary’ provision that is the 
initial judgement to be made, i.e. if there is no necessity to kerbside sort to achieve the 
material quality required for end use - because the MRF technologies can sort and separate 
sufficiently and/or the materials end markets are contract tied or require the material as 
already supplied – then there is no legislative requirement for TEEP (see Para 15 above). 
That is not to say that collection authorities should not play their part in consistently driving 
up the quality of material supply and how materials are presented, but that then creates 
further complexities and opportunities in working constructively with a MRF supplier to 
ensure quality through the emerging MRF Code of Practice and ongoing development of 
national End of Waste Criteria for the recyclate types. In that regard, the MRF procurement 
soft market test and evaluation of bids could and should adequately explore, test and weight 
the quality requirements of potential suppliers.  

 
23. In effect, compliance with WFD / Waste Regulations would be deemed by RECAP to be a 

considered and reasoned two stage process - the MRF procurement initially levelling-up and 
jointly presenting a collective and consistent volume/type of material to the market and then; 
OSD securing the most efficient (saving) and value creating (income) collection systems that 
ensures the recyclate stream is captured in the most practicable way to ensure appropriate 
quality for maximised end use – indeed, exactly as required by the legislation, remaining 
agile to future statutory guidance when available, whilst also mitigating the risk of any 
challenge.  

 
24. An alternative would be to abort the current joint MRF procurement, pending the outcome of 

OSD. However, given the above reasoning, that seems an unnecessary and draconian 
action that would have its own attendant risks and disadvantages. It would defer or prevent 
one of the key objectives of the WSA in securing assumed maximum value for a collective 
whole partnership offer of combined recyclate volume; fail to achieve the convergence of 
contracts and ease of future procurements (perhaps on an even bigger geographical scale) 
and importantly; would leave a number of partners out of contract in 2014 and potentially 
irrevocably fracture the RECAP partnership approach.  

 
Recommendation: 

 
25. It is recommended that the two stage approach as set out at Para 23 above is adopted as 

the RECAP position on WDF / Waste Regulations compliance,  for the reasons identified in 
Paras 21-24 - requiring the MRF procurement process to test material quality requirements 
with suppliers and the OSD options to test the TEEP considerations of potential kerbside 
sort. 

 
 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 549



Page 550

This page is intentionally left blank



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

1

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 
Joint Materials Recycling Facility (MRF) Procurement 

Common Paper for RECAP Partners Decision-Making Processes 
September 2013 

 
1. PURPOSE: 
 
1.1  This paper seeks to inform the consideration of the Recycling Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough (RECAP) partner Councils to approve a Joint Procurement of MRF services for 
bulking, sorting and onward processing/sale of recyclable materials for all RECAP partners, 
except Cambridgeshire County Council. All Partners will agree entering into the same 
contract, to commence by June 2014 in order to meet, sequentially, Peterborough City 
Council’s current contract expiry date of June 2014, with all remaining Partners’ recyclate 
materials coming into the same joint contract at the following times: 

 

• Peterborough City Council - June 2014 

• Cambridge City, Huntingdonshire and Fenland District Council - November 2014. 

• South Cambridgeshire - October 2015  

• East Cambridgeshire - May 2016. 
 
1.2 Critical to realising the potential benefits to the public purse that are expected from this joint 

procurement and collective offer of Partners’ materials, is the need for Partners to agree, in 
advance of the actual tender process itself, to present their respective recyclate materials to 
the market jointly and collaboratively, thereby securing greatest influence over securing best 
value in processing cost and materials income. Withdrawing from the procurement, post 
tender bidding, would not only potentially negate the process, but also fundamentally 
prejudice the service continuity position of Partners and risk irrevocably fracturing the 
Partnership.  

Page 551



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

2

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 

R E C O M M E N D A T I O N S 
The Cabinet Member / Committee is recommended to:  
 
1. Agree that the Council is committed to the procurement and appointment of a Contractor to deliver 
Joint MRF services for bulking, sorting and onward processing/sale of recyclable materials for all 
participating RECAP partners, unless all partners agree not to appoint. 
 
2. Approve on behalf of the Council the ‘RECAP Partnership Charter’, as attached at Appendix 1, 
including approval of the additional Schedule 2 Governance Agreement relating to the operation of 
the Joint MRF contract, commitment to participation in and commitment of recyclate materials into 
the joint contract. 
 
3. Agree delegation to the appropriate (named) Officer responsible for authorisation of the final 
Invitation to Tender (ITT), to award the Contract, in consultation with Members as appropriate. 
 
4. Agree that Peterborough City Council will nominate a preferred supplier in collaboration with the 
participating partners, for the provision of the services of bulking, sorting and onward 
processing/sale of recyclable materials contract, on behalf on both Peterborough City Council and 
the RECAP participating partners. 
 
5. Note and agree the approach to the Waste Framework Directive compliance regarding source 
separation of recyclate, as agreed by the RECAP Board on 4th September and as attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 

 
2. SUMMARY OF MAIN ISSUES: 
 
2.1 Recycling in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough (RECAP) Waste Partnership is made up of 

Cambridge City Council, Cambridgeshire County Council, East Cambridgeshire District 
Council, Fenland District Council, Huntingdonshire District Council, Peterborough City 
Council, South Cambridgeshire District Council. Cambridgeshire County Council is a 
member of the Partnership although it will not be party to this joint MRF procurement, as 
recyclate materials received by the County Council are via its Household Waste Recycling 
centres and already dealt with through the PFI contract. 

 
2.2 This Joint MRF Procurement project is a key work stream identified as part of the Whole 

Systems Approach Programme agreed by RECAP in autumn 2012 and endorsed by 
Cambridgeshire Leaders and Chief Executives as a ‘flagship collaboration’. The programme 
seeks to develop an optimum waste management system across RECAP in 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough through a collaborative approach that:   

 

• Reduces the overall expenditure against the public purse;  

• Increases the overall income to the public purse; whilst 

• Improving services for the customer, which would include levelling up services across 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough to achieve consistently high quality services across 
the partnership area; and  

• Improving environmental performance.  
 
2.3 By working collaboratively and procuring jointly, it is assumed that maximising the collective 

offer of recyclate materials across the RECAP Partnership to the market will represent the 
most effective and efficient mechanism to achieving the best value in reducing processing 
costs and maximising materials income to best benefit the public purse. 

Page 552



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

3

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

 
2.4 Individual approaches to the market at sequential expiry of existing MRF contracts is unlikely 

to represent the strongest and most cost effective influence on the market. Neither would it 
accord with the Whole Systems Approach and spirit of partnership espoused by RECAP and 
captured in the existing RECAP Advanced Partnership Working Charter already signed by 
the Cambridgeshire partners in January 2012 (see Appendix 1) and now to be signed also by 
Peterborough City Council as part of this process. 

 
3. TIMESCALE:  
 
3.1 To ensure efficient and effective procurement in line with the agreed Project Initiation 

Document, agreement to the joint procurement and collective offer of recyclate materials into 
the resultant contract is required from all partners by 11 October 2013, in order to ensure 
robust procurement and to meet the contract requirements of Peterborough City Council in 
the first instance and participating RECAP partners as set out at Para 1.1. 

 
3.2 Agreement to associated detailed procurement documentation, such as finalised ITT, 

contract structure and Partnering arrangements, can be effectively achieved by delegation to 
a Chief Officer, in consultation with Portfolio Member/Committee Chair, ITT to be issued by 
25th November 2013 and with award of contract scheduled for March 2014.  Agreement to 
and issue of the ITT is the point at which the participating Partners will be committed to 
appointment of a Contractor(s), unless the outcome of the procurement process prompts all 
those Partners to collectively agree not to appoint. 

 
4. DECISIONS REQUIRED: 
 
4.1 To approve the Joint Procurement of services for bulking, sorting and onward 

processing/sale of recyclable materials with all RECAP partners, in effect committing offering 
all the recyclate materials of each Partner Council into a common contract(s). 

 
4.2 To approve delegation of final approval of detailed procurement documentation, including 

ITT, to appropriate Chief Officer in consultation with relevant service Portfolio Member / 
Committee Chair, noting that ultimately, final contract award will be subject to the 
appropriate Constitutional and Member approval compliance of the individual Partner 
authorities. 

 
4.3 To approve the appointment of a preferred bidder by Peterborough City Council, in 

consultation with and on behalf of the participating RECAP partners, with contract to be 
awarded to the Most Economically Advantageous Tender. 

 
4.4 Approve and sign / reaffirm on behalf of the Council the RECAP Partnership Charter which 

sets out the Vision and Objectives of the Partnership; to improve environmental 
performance; improved value for money; level-up services where differences occur; and 
improve service performance. Cambridgeshire Councils have previously signed the original 
Charter, but  collective agreement is also now required to the proposed additional Schedule 
2 ‘Governance Agreement’ that sets out how RECAP will collaborate in regard to this Joint 
MRF procurement and the operation and management of the resultant contract. 

 
5. CONSULTATION 
 
5.1 Consultation has been undertaken with a wide spectrum of the companies currently 

operating in the business of recycling, sorting, bulking and transportation of recyclable 
materials, with a Soft Market Test process undertaken in August 2013. The soft market test 

Page 553



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

4

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

will help inform the nature of the contract, the mix of materials within the recyclate basket 
(including likely impacts on values), the pricing mechanism and also quality requirements.  

 
5.2 The project is consultative and collaborative with all of the authorities in the RECAP 

partnership, with the project being resourced by a Task Group drawn from across all the 
Partners. Peterborough City Council acts as the project sponsor, with progress and 
recommendations overseen by the Whole Systems Approach Programme Board (WSAPB) 
of senior Council Officers responsible for waste management. Section 151 financial officers 
are also involved in the consideration of the most effective pricing mechanism. The 
Cambridgeshire Public Sector Board (CPSB) has also been appraised of this project. 

 
5.3 The RECAP Board of elected Members monitors the Whole Systems Approach work 

streams, of which Joint MRF Procurement is one, and is expected to have approved this 
common paper and supporting documents (see 7.1) at its meeting on 4th September 2013. 

 
5.4 The Waste and Resources Action Programme (WRAP), a government funded advisory 

body, has also been consulted and involved in developing this approach to the marketplace, 
including provision of industry intelligence and project peer review. 

 
6. ANTICIPATED OUTCOMES 
 
6.1 To generate greater revenue for the partnership as a whole, by seeking to reduce processing 

costs and maximise materials values.  
 
6.2 To develop, as far as possible, service consistency/harmonisation, therefore achieving the 

minimum amount of variation in all aspects of the tender - notably materials, operational 
processes, procedures and management requirements - and thereby service efficiencies. 

 
6.3 To develop an approach to the market place that achieves the best value from materials for 

the Partnership as a whole, effectively responding to logistical factors and the requirements 
of the market place (e.g. not assuming the appointment of one single contractor will 
guarantee best value).     

   
6.4 To effectively manage the financial risks of market volatility, developing pricing mechanisms 

that provide financial security in seeking to mitigate risk, whilst also allowing scope to derive 
benefits from the potential uplift in material values across the contract period. 

 
6.5 To ensure the joint procurement contributes to and supports the development of an optimum 

waste management system through a whole systems approach across the Partnership. 
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS & RELEVANT BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
7.1 With the increased value of recyclable materials as a resource, local authorities were 

previously incurring costs for services to bulk, sort and process such materials are now, at 
this time, receiving an income - although it should be noted that the market for recyclable 
materials fluctuates and incomes consequently volatile. Joint working in this area has been 
shown to potentially increase financial benefits to local authorities, for example, by increasing 
the quantity of recyclable material presented to the market place and therefore its potential 
value.  It can also remove duplication of effort depending on the partnership approach and 
benefits can be derived from combining learning and expertise.  

 
Supporting documents 

 

• RECAP Partnership Charter and MRF Governance Agreement Schedule 2 (Appx 1) 

Page 554



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

5

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

• WFD-TEEP report (Appx 2) 

• Joint MRF Project Initiation Document 
 
7.2 The MRF procurement is not necessarily expected to change service design or collection 

systems, but rather intended to maximise existing volumes/materials with more into existing 
bins if operationally and financially practicable and partners ’levelling up’ recyclate type. It is 
understood that it is the options for Optimum Service Design (OSD), a separate Whole 
Systems Approach workstream, that will fully consider the implications of operational 
changes to collections services and thereby, potentially offers the more holistic work stream 
through which to properly consider the Waste Framework Directive requirements for how 
recyclable waste steams are collected by 2015 - source separated or comingled. The 
WFD/TEEP paper (Appendix 2) sets out how RECAP intends to address and broadly comply 
with these matters. The MRF procurement will focus on quality and ‘necessity’ issues, with 
OSD addressing ‘practicable’ considerations. This approach has been agreed by the WSA 
Programme Board (1 August) and is expected to be agreed by the RECAP Board on 4th 
September. 

 
7.3  Best practice and challenging economic circumstances encourages Councils to work 

together to achieve the best outcomes for the residents and communities they serve. 
Reaffirmation of the RECAP Charter and its Guiding Principles (see Appendix 1) helps 
refresh the spirit of partnership and the collaborative ethos by which Partners would engage 
in the collaborative procurement and ongoing management of the resultant contract and 
partnership/contractor relationships.  

 
7.4 Procuring collectively also further strengthens the RECAP Partnership ethos of collaborative 

working, achieving more together than we can deliver individually, for the overall best benefit 
to the public purse and the consistency of service to residents, helping meet the RECAP 
Vision of: 

 
‘Working ever closer together to deliver the best most cost effective waste services for the 
benefit of all local communities in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough’ 

 
ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
8.1 The following options were considered as part of the project initiation. 
 

Option Description Initial Assessment 

1 Do nothing - Delay procurement at 
this time by investigating and 
assessing opportunities for partners 
to utilise existing contract 
arrangements within the partnership, 
or utilising extensions, procuring 
jointly at a later date.   
 

• East Cambridgeshire have recently utilised the 
existing South Cambridgeshire contract, 
however, this contract would not allow for 
further excessive additional volumes of material 
without creating a significant change to the 
contract requiring re-tender.  

• Cambridge City/Huntingdon/Fenland District 
Council contracts do not allow for additional 
partners without creating a significant change 
to contract requiring re-tender. 

• Peterborough would be required to procure 
individually. 

• Partners could be financially disadvantaged 
utilising extensions and missing the potential 
benefits from re-tendering at this stage.   

2 Utilise PFI contract arrangements.  • Initial discussion with legal team at 

Page 555



 
The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Waste Partnership 
 

RECAP Authorities: 
Cambridge City   Cambridgeshire County  East Cambridgeshire  South Cambridgeshire 
Fenland    Huntingdonshire    Peterborough City   

6

 

Recycling in Cambridgeshire 
& Peterborough 

Cambridgeshire County Council indicates this 
would potentially mean a significant change to 
the contract, leading to significant legal costs 
and even re-tender.  

• May not generate competition and therefore 
achieve financial benefit. 

• Could reduce resource/time involved in 
tendering but revisions to the contact could 
counter this.  

3 Jointly procure the design and build 
of a MRF, primarily dedicated to the 
partnerships use.  

• Is counter to conclusions to recent market 
testing by Peterborough. 

• Lengthy process which would require interim 
contract arrangements. 

• Capital investment required. 

• Is being undertaken by a group of authorities in 
the South West although DCLG funding 
received for this.   

 
IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 Following the completion of the procurement, the prevailing market conditions might lead to 

a lower price being received for the recyclable materials than is presently received by the 
individual partners.  By procuring collectively and taking advantage of the large tonnage of 
material available to the Partnership as a collective, we aim to mitigate risks arising from 
market conditions. It is unlikely that Partners procuring individually or in smaller collectives 
would exert the same influence over and therefore any greater value from the market. 

 
9.2 A pricing mechanism that seeks to minimise processing cost, maximise materials income 

and manage risk e.g. frequency of review, will be developed in conjunction with Section 151 
Officers. That model will be agreed as offering the best balance between cost certainly and 
informed appetite for risk that secures best flexibility to market volatility in mitigating 
exposure and maximising materials income.   Should the market may be at a, comparative, 
low point when the procurement completes, by building flexibility into the payment 
mechanism and acting collaboratively, these risks can be mitigated to a greater or lesser 
extent.  

 
9.3 The collaborative procurement seeks to jointly offer all existing recyclate across the 

Partnership as currently collected, i.e. largely comingled but also recognising the separate 
paper collection within South Cambs. The contract(s) will need to be both flexible to make 
provision for future collection/disposal service changes that may stem from Optimum Service 
Design and also be structured to ensure that existing and future materials streams continue 
to attract maximum value. No partners would be expected to retain recyclate materials for 
alternate treatment outside the joint procurement process.  

 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
 
As 7.1 above and Appendices 1-2. 
 
 
 
 
 

@ 30 August 2013 

 

Page 556



Report Page No: 1 

 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
Item 

 
To: Executive Councillor for Environmental and Waste 

Services: Jean Swanson 
Report by: Jas Lally, Head of Refuse and Environment 

Relevant scrutiny 
committee:  

Environment 
Scrutiny 
Committee 

8th October 2013 

Wards affected: All Wards 
 
Proposal for the Collection of Commercial Food Waste for Composting 
Non- Key 
 
 
1. Executive summary  
 
1.1 In the Government’s Review of Waste Policy 2011 it identified 

preventing and reducing food waste sent to landfill from commercial 
businesses as a priority. 
 

1.2 Unlike household premises educational establishments and businesses 
are currently unable to have a segregated food waste collection service 
provided by the City Council. 

 
1.3 We are currently undertaking a survey of our existing commercial 

customers and it is anticipated that a high proportion of those responding 
will be interested in food waste collections. We are aware that a number 
of customers from the education sector have expressed an interest and 
it is therefore anticipated that food waste collections would be welcomed 
by many of Cambridge’s business and the Education sector.  It is 
proposed to start a food waste service for businesses utilising existing 
resources with vehicles becoming multi use. Initially the scheme is 
expected to be self-financing and in the future some income forthcoming 
to secure the future sustainability of the service. 

 
2. Recommendations  
 
The Executive Councillor is recommended: 
 
2.1 To approve a food waste collection service for businesses and 

educational establishments to begin in April 2014.  At this stage this 
service would not require any capital investment as it is proposed to use 
existing vehicles which will become multi use. The scheme would initially 

Agenda Item 18

Page 557



Report Page No: 2 

be self-financing.  
 

2.2 To approve any net  profit generated from the service be retained to 
support vehicle and bin R & R contributions for the first 3 years, at which 
point a review will be undertaken and a decision made as to the capital 
required for the service as a more specialised vehicle may be required.  If 
capital investment is not required the money will be returned to the 
general fund as a saving. 

 
 
 
 
3. Background  
 
3.1 The government previously identified food waste as a priority waste-

stream for action as it goes to landfill in considerable quantities, and 
accounts for almost half of all waste CO2eq emissions. The total annual 
food waste arisings in Britain are estimated at around 16 million tonnes 
with at least 40% of this disposed to landfill. 

 
3.2 Tackling food waste is an example of where prevention and 

recycling/recovery go hand in hand. According to the Government 
Review of Waste Policy in England 2011 we need to cut down the 
estimated 16 million tonnes of food waste produced every year in Britain, 
while ensuring that much more of the food waste which is produced is 
not simply disposed of in landfill 

 
3.3 In particular the government is keen to target those waste streams with 

high carbon impacts. Food waste has both high embedded carbon 
impacts and direct emissions impacts when landfilled. Improvements in 
the management of business waste will be a critical part of the move 
towards a zero waste economy. The governments’ ‘Call for Evidence’ 
identified a range of problems and barriers, particularly in relation to 
waste and recycling services provided to SMEs. 

 
These included: 

• A lack of recycling services in some areas and in relation to 
some materials (particularly food waste); 

• High cost of service to the business user and lack of 
convenience; 

• A lack of awareness amongst SMEs of their legal 
obligations (e.g. Duty of Care, Pre-treatment Regulations.) It 
is likely that many micro businesses are using household 
services without prior agreement or payment; and 

• A lack of awareness amongst SMEs of services available in 
their area. 

Page 558



Report Page No: 3 

 
3.4 Consequently we intend to promote a food waste service to facilitate the 

opportunity for small businesses such as cafes to benefit from the 
service by the provision of small receptacles. 

 
3.5 Customers will also have the opportunity to have a more comprehensive 

service which included additional options such as bin washing and 
additional receptacles tor inside the kitchens to enable the hygienic 
separation of waste for composting. This is because odour and hygiene 
are considered a barrier to recruiting businesses to take up the scheme. 

 
3.6 The survey of customers will provide further information on the business 

sector who are most likely to take up this service and consequently 
where we will focus our marketing. 

 
3.7 We aim to be collecting 4 tonnes per day by the end of the first year 

which could equate to a reduction in landfill of approximately 800 - 1000 
tonnes per year. 

 
3.8 A core service of around 50-100 bins per day should provide this yield. 

However the continued expansion of the service will be limited by the 
resources available to undertake collections. 

 
3.9 The food and green waste collected will be transported to our normal 

tipping point in Waterbeach and it is likely the disposal of which will fall 
under the existing County Council contract. This has been discussed 
with the County Council. 

 
3.10 The food and green waste will most likely be processed via In-Vessel 

Composting (IVC) which is the same process our household food and 
green waste undergoes. 

 
3.11 The costs for disposal of food waste by IVC are cheaper than the costs 

of landfill or processing by Mechanical Biological Treatment (MBT). 
 
3.12 Existing staff and vehicles will be used to provide the service and a 

review will be undertaken to consider whether some collections of waste 
defined as household eg. Schools and colleges could be collected 
alongside the existing fortnightly collection services. It is however 
anticipated that more frequent collection will be required and these will 
be facilitated by optimising the collections for the four existing 
commercial landfill collection vehicles. 

 
3.13 A recent report by WRAP, “Collecting food waste from small 

businesses and schools” has suggested that to encourage SME’s to take 
up the service it is necessary to not just provide cheaper collections than 

Page 559



Report Page No: 4 

landfill collections but to also provide cheaper collections overall and 
reducing the total cost of waste disposal.  

 
3.14 It would therefore be beneficial if additional training was provided to 

staff to enable them to undertake effective waste audits and effectively 
review the collections of existing customers to provide the most cost 
effective solution available to them and help customers identify their own 
waste collection cost savings. 

 
3.15 WRAP provide resources for businesses in their “Business Resource 

Efficiency Hub” it will be necessary for staff to understand and promote 
these available resources in order to encourage businesses to take up 
the service.  

 
 
4. Implications  
 
(a) Financial Implications 
 
It is anticipated that route optimisation within the commercial waste services 
will enable vehicle and staff resource to be freed up to facilitate a small 
number of customers on a daily basis.  
 
Income from the initial customer base will be set to cover the initial 
operational costs, and some bin purchases. It is hoped that income in the 
first three years may be between £30,000 and £60,000 offsetting the 
operational costs, disposal costs and bin purchase with a small surplus at 
the end of year three. 
 
Expansion of the service should it remain successful is likely to be reliant on 
additional capital to procure a bespoke vehicle adapted to facilitate these 
collections. However it is proposed that any additional income raised from 
the new food waste service be retained through R & R to support the 
service expansion for initially 3 years. Should funds not be required the 
additional funds will be returned to the general fund. 
 
(b) Staffing Implications   (if not covered in Consultations Section) 
 
Additional operational staff resource is not required to initially facilitate the 
service start up. As the service develops resource needs will be determined 
and reviewed. Any additional resource requirements will be funded from the 
service income generated. 
 
The additional office staff resource is limited with no dedicated 
administrative resource therefore the development of the service will be 
limited by the ability of the existing commercial team to facilitate the 

Page 560



Report Page No: 5 

progression of the service. New service start-up will require considerable 
management oversight. 
  
(c) Equal Opportunities Implications 
 
This new service is an extension of the existing services and there are no 
equal opportunities implications. As an extension of the existing services an 
equalities impact assessment has not been completed. 
 
(d) Environmental Implications 
 
The removal of food waste from land fill has significant carbon benefits. The 
extent of these benefits is dependent on how much food waste can be 
diverted which would have ordinarily gone to landfill. 
 
As this is currently unknown the service is likely to have a low to medium 
positive impact. 
 

(e) Procurement 
 
The procurement for the procurement of new bins for this project will be on 
a small scale and under EU procurement thresholds. In addition there is an 
ESPO framework contract for the purchase of bins. 
 

(f) Consultation and communication 
 
A survey of customers is continuing over the next few months and will 
provide further information on the business sector who are most likely to 
take up this service and consequently where we will focus our marketing. 
 
The service like all commercial waste services is an opt-in service and 
extensive marketing will be required with Cambridge businesses to 
encourage participation in the service some resource may be required to 
facilitate this. 
 
Advertising will also be done on Facebook and Twitter. 
 

 
(g) Community Safety 

 
There are no community safety implications. 
 
 
5. Background papers  
 
These background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 

Page 561



Report Page No: 6 

 

• WRAP, “Collecting food waste from small businesses and schools” 

• Government Review of Waste Policy in England 2011 
 
6. Appendices  
 
 
7. Inspection of papers  
 
To inspect the background papers or if you have a query on the report 
please contact: 
 
Author’s Name: Chloe Hipwood 
Author’s Phone Number:  01223 458079 
Author’s Email:  chloe.hipwood@cambridge.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 562


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes Public Pack, 14/05/2013 Environment Scrutiny Committee
	Minutes Public Pack, 23/05/2013 Environment Scrutiny Committee
	Printed minutes 11th-Jun-2013 17.00 Environment Scrutiny Committee

	7a Dog Control Orders
	DCO - report

	7b Tourist Information Centre - Air Cooling (Special Urgency)
	Project Appraisal - TIC_1 - Final 2rd July

	7c Stourbridge Common Riverbank Restoration
	Out of Cycle Dec DRAFT Stourbridge Riverbank revised
	Stourbridge Common PA_1
	Stourbridge Common River Bank Draft PA July 13

	9 Cambridge Cycle Parking Project
	APPENDIX A
	APPENDIX B
	APPENDIX C
	APPENDIX D
	APPENDIX E

	10 Cambridge 20mph Project Œ Phase 1 Consultation Report
	11 Cambridge Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Œ Draft Charging Schedule
	Appendix 1 Draft Charging Schedule 24092013
	Appendix 2 - Statement of Consultation 24092013
	Appendix 3 EXAMPLES 24092013

	12 Rouse Ball Pavilion - Project Appraisal
	Rouse Ball Appendix

	13 Riverside Moorings Consultation Findings and Options Appraisal
	Riversdie Moorings Report - Appendix A

	14 Parker's Piece Lighting
	15 Parkers Piece Public Art Project
	17 Joint Materials Recycling Facility Procurement Process
	App 1 RECAP Charter with Schedule 2 Governance Agreement
	App 2 WFDTEEP_AGREED@040913
	App 3 MRF Common Paper_Agreed@040913

	18 Proposal for Collection of Commercial Food Waste for Composting

